SIEMENS

Introduction	1
Energy Manager PRO Client	2
Energy Manager Web	3
Reference	4

SIMATIC

SIMATIC Energy Manager PRO V7.4 - Operation

Operating Manual

Legal information

Warning notice system

This manual contains notices you have to observe in order to ensure your personal safety, as well as to prevent damage to property. The notices referring to your personal safety are highlighted in the manual by a safety alert symbol, notices referring only to property damage have no safety alert symbol. These notices shown below are graded according to the degree of danger.

DANGER

indicates that death or severe personal injury will result if proper precautions are not taken.

WARNING

indicates that death or severe personal injury **may** result if proper precautions are not taken.

indicates that minor personal injury can result if proper precautions are not taken.

NOTICE

indicates that property damage can result if proper precautions are not taken.

If more than one degree of danger is present, the warning notice representing the highest degree of danger will be used. A notice warning of injury to persons with a safety alert symbol may also include a warning relating to property damage.

Qualified Personnel

The product/system described in this documentation may be operated only by **personnel qualified** for the specific task in accordance with the relevant documentation, in particular its warning notices and safety instructions. Qualified personnel are those who, based on their training and experience, are capable of identifying risks and avoiding potential hazards when working with these products/systems.

Proper use of Siemens products

Note the following:

WARNING

Siemens products may only be used for the applications described in the catalog and in the relevant technical documentation. If products and components from other manufacturers are used, these must be recommended or approved by Siemens. Proper transport, storage, installation, assembly, commissioning, operation and maintenance are required to ensure that the products operate safely and without any problems. The permissible ambient conditions must be complied with. The information in the relevant documentation must be observed.

Trademarks

All names identified by [®] are registered trademarks of Siemens AG. The remaining trademarks in this publication may be trademarks whose use by third parties for their own purposes could violate the rights of the owner.

Disclaimer of Liability

We have reviewed the contents of this publication to ensure consistency with the hardware and software described. Since variance cannot be precluded entirely, we cannot guarantee full consistency. However, the information in this publication is reviewed regularly and any necessary corrections are included in subsequent editions.

Table of contents

1	Introducti	on	11
	1.1	Security information	11
	1.2	Note on the EU General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)	11
	1.3	Why we need energy management	12
	1.4	What is Energy Manager capable of doing in the field of energy management?	12
	1.5	Areas of application	13
	1.6	Preface	14
2	Energy Ma	anager PRO Client	15
	2.1 2.1.1 2.1.2 2.1.3 2.1.4 2.1.5 2.1.5.1 2.1.5.2	Basics Start Energy Manager Client as navigation tool Basic configuration Search for object Quicklinks Create Quicklinks Editing Quicklinks	
	2.1.6	Help	
	2.2 2.2.1 2.2.1.1 2.2.2 2.2.2.1 2.2.2.2 2.2.2.3 2.2.2.4 2.2.3 2.2.3.1 2.2.3.1	Configuration of the PRO client Objects in the Client "File" menu tab Options Configuration Account settings Licensing "Acquisition" menu tab Architecture and interfaces	
	2.2.3.2 2.2.3.3 2.2.3.4 2.2.3.5 2.2.3.6 2.2.3.7 2.2.3.8 2.2.3.8	Automatic acquisition Connecting acquisition components to server Configuring interfaces for data acquisition Starting the kernel service Datapoints Acquisition categories in Energy Manager Compression of the acquired measured values	
	2.2.3.9 2.2.3.10 2.2.3.11 2.2.3.12	Manual acquisition with the matrix Manual acquisition with the SIMATIC Energy Manager app Importing data	176 180 182 182

2.2.4	"Processing" menu tab	183
2.2.4.1	Preprocessing	183
2.2.4.2	Calculation	192
2.2.4.3	Profiles	196
2.2.4.4	Plants and product definition	212
2.2.4.5	Batch and material-related analysis	223
2.2.4.6	Forecast	239
2.2.4.7	Consumers	265
2.2.5	"Analysis" menu tab	274
2.2.5.1	Reporting	274
2.2.5.2	Energy efficiency	327
2.2.6	"Master Data" menu tab	329
2.2.6.1	Folder	329
2.2.6.2	Localization	330
2.2.6.3	Authorizations	338
2.2.6.4	Output	361
2.2.6.5	Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)	365
2.2.6.6	Configuration	369
2.2.7	"Administration" menu tab	381
2.2.7.1	Management and monitoring	381
2.2.7.2	Service Cockpit	384
2.2.7.3	Message lists	389
2.2.7.4	Jobs in Energy Manager PRO	398
2.2.7.5	Task Management	405
2.2.7.6	Import and export	407
2.2.7.7	Backup and Restore	411
2.2.8	Historizing calculation logic	415
2281	History management basics	415
2282	Historization of data points	418
2.2.8.3	Historization of measurement variables	421
2284	Historization of reports	422
2.2.9	Defining the properties of an object	425
2.3	Manual acquisition of data	428
2.3.1	Matrix	428
2.3.2	Energy Manager PRO Mobile	430
2.3.2.1	Basics of Energy Manager PRO Mobile	430
2.3.2.2	Navigation structure of Energy Manager PRO Mobile	431
2.3.2.3	Entering measured values	432
2.3.2.4	Synchronizing data	434
2.3.3	Parameter	435
2.4	Analysis	436
2.4.1	Basic information on analysis	436
2.4.2	Report results	437
2.4.2.1	Generating a report result manually	437
2.4.2.2	Opening report results	443

2.4.3 2 4 3 1	Charts Fundamentals	
2.4.3.2	Standard Chart	
2.4.3.3	Histogram	
2.4.3.4	Bell-shaped curve	
2.4.3.5	Boxplot	
2.4.3.6	Correlation and regression	
2.4.4	Dashboards	
2.4.5	widget Dashboards in the client	
2.5	Energy efficiency measures	
2.5.1	Basics on energy efficiency	
2.5.2	Creating energy efficiency measures	
2.5.5	Calculating cost effectiveness	407 469
2.5.5	Specifying responsibilities	
2.5.6	Specifying domains	
2.5.7	Adding documents	
2.5.8	Displaying information	
2.6	File management	
2.6.1	Document management basics	
2.6.2	Inserting documents	
2.6.3	Saving documents	
261	Editing documents	170
2.0.4	Euling uocuments	
Energy M	lanager Web	
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1	lanager Web Basics	479
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1	Basics	480
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 2.1.2	Basics Introduction	479 480 480 480 483 483
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4	Basics Introduction Definition of home page	480 480 480 480 483 483 486 488
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5	Basics	480 480 480 483 483 483 486 488 490
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web	479 480 480 480 483 483 483 486 488 490 492
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks	479 480 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web	479 480 480 480 483 483 483 486 488 488 490 492 494 494
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web	479 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object. Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web	479 480 480 480 483 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 496 499
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web	479 480 480 480 483 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 496 499
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web Folder Widget Dashboards	479 480 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 494 494 495 499 500
2.0.4 Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object. Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web Folder. Widget Dashboards. Overview of Widget Dashboards.	479 480 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 496 499 500 500
Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2.2 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.2.2.2 3.2.2.2.2.2 3.2.2.2	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web Folder Widget Dashboards Overview of Widget Dashboards Widget Dashboards for consumers	479 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 494 496 499 500 505 507
Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.3 3.2.4	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web Folder Widget Dashboards Overview of Widget Dashboards Widget Dashboards for consumers Online Monitoring Benorts	479 480 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 494 494 499 500 500 505 507 511
Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.3 3.2.4 3.2.5	Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web Folder Widget Dashboards Overview of Widget Dashboards Widget Dashboards for consumers Online Monitoring Reports Charts	479 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 494 495 500 500 505 507 511 516
Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.3 3.2.4 3.2.5 3.2.5.1	Banager Web Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web Folder Widget Dashboards Overview of Widget Dashboards Widget Dashboards for consumers Online Monitoring Reports Charts	479 480 480 480 480 483 483 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 494 499 500 500 505 507 511 516 516
Energy M 3.1 3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.7.1 3.1.7.2 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.2.1 3.2.2.2 3.2.3 3.2.4 3.2.5 3.2.5.1 3.2.5.2	Banager Web Basics Introduction Login Definition of home page Navigation Search for object. Consumers and structured view on the web Quicklinks. Creating Quicklinks in the Web Editing Quicklinks in the Web Data analysis in the Web Folder. Widget Dashboards. Overview of Widget Dashboards. Online Monitoring Reports. Charts. Overview. Configuring charts	479 480 480 480 480 483 483 486 488 490 492 494 494 494 494 494 494 494

3

3.3	Energy efficiency measures in the Web	528
3.4	Manual acquisition of data in the Web	530
3.4.1	Datapoints	530
3.4.2	Parameter	532
3.4.3	Matrices	535
3.4.3.1	Overview	535
3.4.3.2	Configuring matrices	537
3.4.4	Setting up mobile data acquisition with the SIMATIC Energy Manager app for iOS and	520
3.4.5	Importing measured values	541
3 5	Configuration of the analysis objects	545
351	Shortcut menu	545
352	Tree configuration	548
353	Dashboards	550
3531		550
3537	Setting up dashboards	550
3533	Editing deshboards	551
3534	Deleting dashboards	553
3535	Widgets	554
354	Renorts	502
3541		508
3.5.4.1	Croating reports	508
3.5.4.2	Editing reports	605
2514.5	Editing reports	606
3.5.4.4	Charte	607
2.5.5	Croating charts	607
2.2.2.1	Editing charts	6007
5.5.5.Z	Eulility clidits	610
5.5.5.5	Deleting Charles	610
5.5.0	Matrices	611
5.5.0.1	Creating matrices	611
3.5.6.2	Creating matrices	011
5.5.0.5 2 E C 4	Euling matrices	612
3.5.0.4	Deleting matrices	013
3.5./	Folder	614
3.5.7.1	Overview	614
3.5.7.2	Creating folders	614
3.5./.3	Editing folders	616
3.5.7.4	Deleting folders	617
3.6	Project configuration	618
3.6.1	Overview	618
3.6.2	Creating subfolders	621
3.6.3	Data source	623
3.6.3.1	Overview	623
3.6.3.2	Creating data sources	625
3.6.3.3	Editing data sources	627
3.6.3.4	Deleting data sources	628
3.6.3.5	Manual acquisition	629
3.6.3.6	Derived data points	629
3.6.3.7	Data channels	630

3.6.4	Data point	657
3.6.4.1	Overview	657
3.6.4.2	Creating data points	659
3.6.4.3	Configuration of the data points	660
3.6.4.4	Editing data points	672
3.6.4.5	Deleting data points	675
3.6.4.6	Recalculating derived data point	675
3.6.5	Parameter	676
3.6.5.1	Overview	676
3.6.5.2	Creating parameters	678
3.6.5.3	Editing parameters	680
3.6.5.4	Deleting parameters	681
3.6.6	MEVA / KPI	682
3.6.6.1	Overview	682
3.6.6.2	Creating MEVAs / KPIs	684
3.6.6.3	Editing MEVAs / KPIs	687
3.6.6.4	Deleting MEVAs / KPIs	688
37	Settings	689
371	Overview of settings	680
372	Mail settings	692
373	Account settings	694
374	Web Client settings	700
375	User Management	700
3751		702
3752	Creating users	702
3753	Editing users	704
3754	Deleting users	707
376	Units	708
3761		708
3762	Creating units	710
3763	Editing units	711
3764	Deleting units	712
377	Alarm lists	713
3771		713
3772	Editing alarm lists	715
378	Backun	716
379	Regional settings	718
3 7 10	Modhus device templates	720
3 7 10 1	Overview	720
3 7 10 2	Exporting Modbus device templates	721
3,7,10,3	Creating a Modbus device template	721
3,7,10,4	Editing a Modbus device template	723
3.7.10.5	Deleting a Modbus device template	723
3.7.11	Data provider	724
3.8	Notification Center	726
3.9	Batch analysis	729
	,	

	3.10	Service Cockpit	732
	3.10.1	Navigation area	733
	3.10.2	Services	734
	3.10.3	System	/35
	3.10.4	Installed software	736
	3.10.6	Gap recognition	739
	3.10.7	Troubleshooting with log files	740
	3.10.7.1	Kernel fault	740
	3.10.7.2	Acquisition service error	741
	3.10.7.3	Reporting service error	742
	3.10.7.4	Reporting service error	744
4	Reference		745
	4.1	Acquisition status of a value	745
	4.2	Correction status of a value	747
	4.3	Query types	749
	4.4	Filter criteria for a message list	756
	4.5	Time unit abbreviations	756
	4.6	Unit conversion Energy/Power	757
	4.7	Module overview	758
	4.8	Display modes	774
	4.9	Existing functional groups	774
	4.10	Available functional rights	775
	4.11	Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)	784
	4.12	Description of MCL	794
	4.13	Functions for measuring variables	798
	4.14	User jobs of the job queue	827
	4.15	Task Management	831
	4.15.1	Task Management	831
	4.15.2	Task	835
	4.15.3	Interval definition	837
	4.16	ASCII FTP formats	839
	4.16.1	ASCILETP import interface	839
	4.16.3	BDATA	841
	4.16.4	BDATA XML Format	842
	4.16.5	DALOG	843
	4.16.6	EXCELCSV	844
	4.16.7	EXCELCSVNODST	845
	4.16.8 1.16.0	FKEJA	846 947
	4.16.10	ZenOn	847
			- . /

4.17	XMI stylesheets	848
4.17.1	XML export interface	848
4.17.2	CSV localtime.xsl	850
4 17 3	CSV normtime xsl	850
4 17 4	CSV_simple xsl	851
4 17 5	CSV_V6Style xsl	851
4 17 6	Standard(SV/vsl	852
4 17 7	Selecting a personal XML style sheet	852
		052
4.18	SAP interface	854
4.18.1	DTD for the ERP interface	854
1 10	Dashboard objects	850
4.19	Configuring the dechloard	850
4.19.1	Configuring the time range	860
4.19.2	Pounded rectangle	061
4.19.5		062
4.19.4		005
4.19.5		004 0CF
4.19.6	Polyline	865
4.19.7	Image	866
4.19.8	Traffic light	867
4.19.9	Value	870
4.19.10	Value difference	8/3
4.19.11	Time selection	876
4.19.12	Status	878
4.19.13	Bar chart	881
4.19.14	Pie chart	883
4.19.15	Line chart	885
4.19.16	Gauge	887
4.19.17	Panel switch	889
4.19.18	Data table	892
4.19.19	Line for Sankey chart	894
4.19.20	Polyline for Sankey chart	896
4.19.21	Flow info	898
4.19.22	Process	900
4.19.23	Process overview	902
4 20	Log files	002
4.20	Log mes	903
4.20.1	Kernel	903
4.20.2	Acquisition service	908
4.20.2.1	Compression	908
4.20.2.2	Raw file provider	911
4.20.2.3	SinkDataImporter	911
4.20.2.4	Data deletion	912
4.20.2.5	Acquisition component Host	912
4.20.2.6	SQL provider	912
4.20.3	Calculation service	913
4.20.3.1	Calculation service	913
4.20.3.2	Recalculation	913
4.20.3.3	MEVA calculation	916
4.20.3.4	Counter calculation	916
4.20.3.5	Machine calculation	916
4.20.3.6	Calculation component host	916

4.20.4	Report Server	917
4.20.5	MindUpload	918
4.20.6	Tasks	918
4.21	Cipher Suites	919
4.22	Counter value filtering	921
4.23	Manual acquisition with Energy Manager PRO Mobile	925
4.23.1	Configuring a mobile device in Energy Manager	925
4.23.2	Generating barcode	927
4.24	Importing data	928
4.24.1	ODBC connector	928
4.24.1.1	Basics on the ODBC interface	928
4.24.1.2	Configuring manual data import	930
4.24.1.3	Configuring automatic data import	936
4.24.1.4	Configuring restrictions for the files to transfer	936
Index		938

Introduction

1.1 Security information

Siemens provides products and solutions with industrial security functions that support the secure operation of plants, systems, machines and networks.

In order to protect plants, systems, machines and networks against cyber threats, it is necessary to implement – and continuously maintain – a holistic, state-of-the-art industrial security concept. Siemens' products and solutions constitute one element of such a concept.

Customers are responsible for preventing unauthorized access to their plants, systems, machines and networks. Such systems, machines and components should only be connected to an enterprise network or the internet if and to the extent such a connection is necessary and only when appropriate security measures (e.g. firewalls and/or network segmentation) are in place.

For additional information on industrial security measures that may be implemented, please visit (http://www.siemens.com/industrialsecurity).

Siemens' products and solutions undergo continuous development to make them more secure. Siemens strongly recommends that product updates are applied as soon as they are available and that the latest product versions are used. Use of product versions that are no longer supported, and failure to apply the latest updates may increase customers' exposure to cyber threats.

To stay informed about product updates, subscribe to the Siemens Industrial Security RSS Feed visit (http://support.automation.siemens.com).

1.2 Note on the EU General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)

Siemens adheres to the principles of data protection, in particular the principle of data minimization (privacy by design). For this product, SIMATIC Energy Manager, this means: The product processes/stores the following personal data:

User name, first name and surname, e-mail address, department, address, country, phone number and user role. In addition, relevant changes to the configuration, such as data points, MEVAs/KPIs, reports or changes to measured values are logged together with time stamps and user information.

The above data is required for login, internal user administration (the authorized user can see the role and status of other users) and audit trail.

The storage of data is appropriate and limited to what is necessary to identify the authorized operators and to meet basic audit trail requirements.

The above data will not be stored anonymously or pseudonymized, as the purpose (identification of the operating personnel) cannot be achieved otherwise. The data will be used only within the product and will not be automatically passed on to third parties or unauthorized persons.

Our product does not provide for automatic deletion of the above data.

Regarding cookies, please refer to the Siemens cookie guidelines (http://www.siemens.com/cookie-policy-en).

1.3 Why we need energy management

Energy costs take a substantial slice in the cost balance of many companies. However, it is possible to significantly reduce this cost factor by optimizing energy consumption and taking advantage of the benefits offered by the liberalized energy market. Investments in this optimization process can be amortized on a short-term basis in many cases. Utilization of the entire spectrum of energy cost reduction demands integrated system solutions: the range covers the monitoring, analysis, and evaluation of the relevant energy and operational data, as well as energy forecasts and optimization functions. Under the aspect of a continuous adaptation process that is enforced based on requirements of the liberalized energy market, it must be possible to adapt the systems used without considerable investment. The following sections provide more arguments in favor of energy management.

- Rising energy costs.
- Only partial transparency across infrastructure processes, preventing an overall assessment of all processes and media.
- Cost centers or cost units change continuously.
- The existing heterogeneous system environment poses high demands on interface management.
- Equipment for automatic measurement data recording is not available in the relevant areas.
- Poor transparency prevents further optimization of energy supply contracts.
- In many cases, energy costs represent an extremely high portion of unmanaged production costs.

1.4 What is Energy Manager capable of doing in the field of energy management?

Energy Manager PRO provides exactly the functionalities that are indispensable for the comprehensive analysis of energy management. Thanks to its flexible **scalability**, B.Data can provide solutions for both medium-sized companies and large corporations with location-spanning requirements.

Firstly, the customizable **interface management** function supports current standards such as OPC, ODBC, ASCII, or XML. Secondly, the interface management provides direct interfaces to Siemens products such as WinCC and PCS 7. which support synchronization of the configuration of data points.

Energy Manager PRO offers a highly diversified Real-time **kernel** in its interface management. The calculation core supports numerous mathematical functions, as well as the mapping of non-linear cohesions.

B.Data provides functions for **data plausibility checks** and various substitute value strategies that enhance database quality.

Transparency of the energy flows in all types of media in a company is indispensable for energy management. Energy Manager PRO is the ideal tool for calculating **energy and material balances** as well as **key figures** that can be used to compare different processes, including different operations.

The diversity of the liberalized energy market demands a precise forecast of future energy consumption. Use Energy Manager PRO's **Schedule Management** to make forecasts that are derived from basic load profiles and current production plans at company or division level.

Only the allocation of energy costs based on the cost-by-cause principle generates **cost transparency** and sensitization with regard to energy costs. The **Cost Center Management** tool of Energy Manager PRO maps cost centers and allocates consumption accordingly based on distribution codes, area data, employees, or measured data.

It also enables the mapping of cost center changes during the year, as the calculation logic and all changes are recorded. **Reproducibility** of report results is of particular importance in this area. All changes made to the data are also recorded. This means that users can always rely on the old data for their evaluations.

An automatic reporting system that is easy to configure forms a key factor that has considerable influence on the reduction of personnel workload. At the same time, the quality of the reports is significantly improved. In addition to the fully-fledged client, you can also use **Energy Manager PRO Web** to view the reports and results.

Energy Manager PRO provides functions for the **batch-related** recording and evaluation of data to support more detailed analyses of the various processes.

Energy Manager PRO's **Document Management** enables users to generate links to their documents in the system, or to save these to the database in order to make them generally available to other users.

The Energy Manager PRO **Task Management** enables the time-controlled execution of reporting, interfaces, calculations, etc.

1.5 Areas of application

Energy Manager acts as a link between the process and office environments, focusing on energy management in industry.

1.6 Preface

Purpose of this documentation

This documentation contains information pertaining to the full functionality of Energy Manager. Energy Manager Basic is a functionally limited version of Energy Manager Web. The section "Energy Manager Web" applies to Energy Manager Basic and Energy Manager PRO. If a function described in the section "Energy Manager Web" is not available or only to a limited extent for the Energy Manager Basic user, the user will be made aware of this at the appropriate place with the help of notes for users. All other sections only apply to Energy Manager PRO. The user information a limited function of Energy Manager Basic does not apply to the Energy Manager PRO user.

This documentation is aimed at plant managers, planners, and plant operators as well as service and maintenance personnel.

Basic knowledge required

General knowledge in the fields of IT, automation engineering, as well as general electrical engineering is indispensable for comprehension of this manual.

WARNING

Working with electrical systems

Energy Manager does not exempt users from responsibilities with respect to the handling of electrical systems.

Moreover, it is presumed that users have appropriate knowledge related to the use of computers running on a Windows operating system.

Scope of this manual

This manual is valid for Energy Manager.

Guides in the manual

The manual contains the following guides that support rapid access to the information you require:

- A complete table of contents and a list of all tables are available in the opening section of the manual.
- An overview of the topical contents is provided at the beginning of each chapter.

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.1 Basics

2.1.1 Start Energy Manager

Login

Requirement

• Energy Manager Login information is known

Procedure

To start Energy Manager, follow these steps:

1. Double-click the "Energy Manager PRO Client" icon on the Windows Desktop or open the program by double-clicking it using [installation path]:\EnMPRO\GUI\BData2008\DocLiber.exe.

Note

When you start Energy Manager for the first time after installation, the "Energy Manager Configuration" dialog is opened.

The login dialog of Energy Manager is opened.

2. Type in the user name and password.

If "Single Sign On" is activated for your user account or for the user group to which you belong, the user name and password do not have to be entered. Additional information about "Single Sign On" is available in sections "Setting up users (Page 343)" and "Creating functional groups (Page 357)".

For the user name, you can also enter the email address that is stored in your Energy Manager user account.

Select the language, if necessary. The following languages are available:

- German
- English

SIEMENS	Login Login with your username or E-Mail add	Ø
	User	
	Password	
		Login
SIMATIC	Energy Manager P	RO
Languages en 🗸	▶ Change Password	▶ Password Lost

- 3. Click the "Login" button. If incorrect login data is entered and the defined number of login attempts is exceeded, the user will be blocked.
- 4. If your user account is blocked, contact the system administrator.

Note

The password requirements are set by the administrator in Energy Manager PRO Web under "Configuration > Settings > Account settings" in the "Password settings" tab, see section "Account settings (Page 694)". The number of login attempts is defined by the administrator in Energy Manager PRO Client under "File > Options" in the "Database" tab with an entry in the "MAX_ATTEMPTS_TO_LOGIN" field, see section "Options (Page 53)". The password can be unlocked by the administrator for the respective user and a new password can be set, see section "Creating users (Page 704)".

Result

Energy Manager is started and the Energy Manager PRO Client is displayed.

Change password

You can change your Energy Manager password in the login dialog. In order to change it, you need your existing password or a temporary password.

Requirement

• Energy Manager login information is known.

Note

Unsupported punctuation

Quotation marks are not supported for passwords.

Procedure

To change the password in Energy Manager, follow these steps:

1. Click the "Change Password" button at the bottom of the dialog window.

The "Change Password" dialog opens.

2. Enter the required data for "User", "Password", "New Password" and "Confirm Password".

Note

If you have been notified by email about a password change without having changed your password, this can indicate a hacked user account. Always contact your administrator in this case.

SIEMENS	Change Passwor Determine a new pass	rd sword here. Use combir	Back A Back
	User	Admin	arty.
	Password		
	New Password	•••••	
	Confirm Password	••••••	
			Change Password
SIMATIC	Energy Ma	nager PR	0
		0	
Languages en 🗸	▶ Change Pa	assword	Password Lost

3. Click the "Change Password" button below the "Confirm Password" entry field.

Result

The password is changed. You are notified about the password change by email.

Note

Subsequent changing of the Windows password

The services log on with the password of the Windows user that was specified during installation. If you change the Windows password subsequently, the new password is not automatically applied in the services. You have to re-enter the new password in each service. Right-click the relevant service and select the properties of the service from the shortcut menu.

Connect the Energy Manager acquisition component again with the Energy Manager Server (Pairing).

Forgot password

If you have forgotten your password, you can have a temporary password generated. The temporary password will be sent by email to the email address that is stored in your Energy Manager user account.

Requirement

The email address stored in your user account is known.

Procedure

1. Click the "Password Lost" button at the bottom of the dialog window.

The "Password Lost" dialog appears.

2. Enter the required email address in the "User" entry field.

Note

In order for the user to receive a temporary password via email, an SMTP server must be entered and accessible. The entry is set by the administrator in "File > Options", "Appl" tab, "SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\Mail" field.



3. Click the "Send E-Mail" button.

Result

When you have received the email with the temporary password, click the "Change Password" button in the Login dialog and change the password.

See also

Client as navigation tool (Page 20) Configuration (Page 65)

2.1.2 Client as navigation tool

The **Client** is the Windows-oriented user interface of Energy Manager. You configure all of the objects you need for energy management in your organization in the Client :

• You configure the objects that contain your operating data, such as datapoints or matrices.

With the object-oriented approach of the Client, you use one object at multiple places, such as for the calculation of performance indicators or in reports. Modifications will automatically be applied to all points of application and are recorded simultaneously in change management to ensure reproducibility of older configurations.

- You evaluate your operating data or performance indicators with the help of reports or charts, or display these data clearly as a Dashboard.
- You use a wizard to configure the interfaces such as WinCC or OPC, which provide you with operating data.

The Energy Manager PRO Client has the following structure:

File	Acquisition	n Proces	ssing	Analysis	Master	r Data	Administration	Help
				113	B +	€-		
Automati	cacquisition	Datapoint	Manu	al acquisition	Impor	t Data		
📄 Syste	m 🕨 Config	uration 🕨	Rights	administration	n ▶ Fu	nctiona	l groups	

Menu bar

All buttons for system operation are placed in the menu bar and organized in categories.

2 Navigation bar

The navigation bar shows the current position in the project tree in text form.



③ Project tree

You create objects that you need for energy management in the predefined "System" root in the project tree.

You can organize the project tree, for example, according to locations or function. Create favorites to frequently required objects in the "Quicklinks" area.

Se	arch in 'Functional groups'	(
Children	Description	🛨 Add Quicklink
Administrator	Administratorgruppe mit a	allen Rechten
Konfigurator	Anwender welche gewöh	nliche Objekte konfigurieren können
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
3 node(s)		

Quick search
 The quick search is a simple full-text search. The search result is displayed in the display area ④.

```
Display areaThe display area shows details of the object that you selected in the project tree.
```

See also

Objects in the Client (Page 36) Displaying object relations (Page 50) Object naming conventions (Page 52) Search for object (Page 27) Quicklinks for client (Page 347) "Processing" menu tab (Page 183) "Analysis" menu tab (Page 274) 2.1 Basics

2.1.3 Basic configuration

Basic configuration of Energy Manager

A basic configuration of the system is automatically installed with the installation of Energy Manager. The basic configuration contains the following objects and structures:

- 5 pre-configured templates for reports
- Acquisition object with four previously created interfaces for data acquisition
- 4 Functional and 4 user groups
- 5 KPI message lists
- Several preconfigured units
- Entry point "Energy Manager Web" in Energy Manager PRO Web

Note

When you update your existing Energy Manager system to the latest version, the new acquisition object with the created interfaces is not installed. Instead, your acquisition configurations are applied during the update.

The following table shows the objects installed with the basic configuration:



Acquisition object "h_Lo- cal_PC" with four created	OPC UA WinCC					
interfaces	Energy Suite					
	• Energy Suite					
	Modbus ICP					
	System ► Configuration ► Acquisiton configuration ► h_Local_PC ►					
	Menu					
	All Structured					
	Image: System Image: System					
	The acquisition object including interfaces is created in the system under the following path:					
Eunctional groups and	System > Configuration > Data collection					
user groups	Administrators					
	Configurators					
	Operators					
	Guests					
	Display="block" style="block: margin: style="block: style: style					
	Menu					
	All Structured					
	Energy Manager - Web					
	Configuration					
	🛱 🛄 Acquisiton configuration					
	Printer, E-Mail, Directory					
	Lost & Found					
	🛱 🛄 Prototypes					
	Har Rights administration					
	🛱 🗁 User groups					
	🕀 🎬 Guests					
	📴 🎆 Super Admin					
	Administrators					
	The functional groups and user groups are created in the system under the following path:					
	"System > Configuration > User, Groups, Rights management > User groups or Functional groups"					

2.1 Basics

KPI message lists	• All			
	All Warnings			
	All Violations			
	GAP detection not acknowleded			
	All not Acknowledged			
	System ► Configuration ► KPI Alert Lists ►			
	Menu			
	H F H H S			
	All Structured			
	Image: System Image: System <td< td=""></td<>			
	"System > Configuration > KPI message lists"			



2.1 Basics



See also

Report templates (Page 375) Configuring units (Page 369) Report templates (Page 293) Basic information on message lists (Page 389) Defining an entry point (Page 355) User group (Page 354) Functional group (Page 357) Message lists (Page 389)

2.1.4 Search for object

Overview

The Energy Manager search function evaluates the following information:

- Object name
- Description of the object
- Object properties
- Object ID

A separate tab with search results is created for each search in the display area of the Client. All tabs with search results are deleted when you close the BEnergy Manager PRO Client .

Procedure

- 1. In the project tree of the Client, select the folder in which you want to search.
- 2. To limit the search to specific objects, activate one or more object types in the selection menu of the search.

In the following example, the search is limited to reports and measuring variables:

Help	💄 Welcome Syste	em/Admin! Active Domain: <all></all>
Production		
Description		Search for all types
		Acquisition
		Datapoint / Matrix / Parameter
		Loop / Prototype
	1	MEVA
	1	Report
		Trend
		User
		Dashboard/Visualization
		Energy Efficiency / Alert
		ERP / Profile / Material
		File / Folder / Task
		General Config

3. Enter your search term in the search field.

4. Click 🔢.

A tab with the search result is created in the display area.

	Search in 'System'	ini -
Name	Description	
Noduction Plan		
177 mar		
Searched in 'Syste	m': Found 1 node(s) of 'production'	
Objects × 🖬 pro	duction	

5. To refine the search result, enter another search term.

The search results are filtered.

6. As soon as you use the <Return> key in the search field, another tab is created for the new search term.

2.1.5 Quicklinks

2.1.5.1 Create Quicklinks

Overview

You can create Quicklinks for objects that are required often as well in the Energy Manager PRO Client.

Requirement

• You have the functional authorizations "Create Quicklinks" and "Configure Quicklinks".

Procedure

- 1. Select the object for which you want to create a Quicklink in the "Menu" area , for example "Costcenter Report".
- 2. Click the "Add Quicklink" icon.



3. Click "Yes" and the Quicklink is created.



4. Change from the menu area to the Quicklink area.



Result

The Quicklink is created as follows:

- The object name is applied.
- The preset icon and background color are used.

Menu	Children	Description
Quicklinks	Southeast Cost Conter Re Cost Conter Re Cost Conter Re	port_Derived port_Balance port_Month
Costcenter Res port	Costcenter Re	port_Ad-Hoc
	4 node(s)	

See also

Creating Quicklinks in the Web (Page 494) Quicklinks for client (Page 347)

2.1.5.2 Editing Quicklinks

Overview

You can change the order of the Quicklinks in the "Quicklinks" area or delete them if they are no longer needed. You can also customize the Quicklinks, for example, by changing the background color or the icon.

Requirement

• You have the functional authorizations "Configure Quicklinks" and "Delete Quicklinks".

Change the sequence of the Quicklinks

 Open the "Quicklink" area and use drag-and-drop to place it at the required position. The Quicklink is placed at the respective location.

Customize Quicklink

 Click the "PencilTool" icon in the "Quicklinks" area above the required Quicklink. The "Edit Quicklink" dialog box opens.



2. To rename the Quicklink, enter the desired name in the "Name" input box.

3. To change the Quicklink icon, click on "lcon" and select the desired icon.



There are 18 predefined icons available to you.

4. To change the background color of the Quicklink, click on "Background Color" and select the required background color.

Edit Quicklink – 🗆 🗙
Rename Quicklink Validation Delete
Icon Background Color
Use as Startpage
Report Options Open Report Overview
Open latest Report
Excel
OPDF
OK Cancel

5. To specify the Quicklink as homepage, select the "Choose Quicklink as homepage" check box.

Note

If you do not specify any Quicklink as homepage, the first Quicklink in the "Quicklinks" area is used as homepage page.

- 6. If you want to create a Quicklink to the overview of the report, select the "Use report overview".
- 7. If you want to create a Quicklink to the last result of the report, select the option "Open last report" and select the required format, for example, "Excel "or" PDF ". If you select this Quicklink, the report opens in the selected format.
- 8. Save your changes by clicking "OK".

See also

Editing Quicklinks in the Web (Page 496) Quicklinks for client (Page 347)

2.1.6 Help

Help

The Energy Manager Help is displayed web-based in a browser or on a mobile device.

Open the Help in the Energy Manager PRO Client by clicking the question mark symbol on the "Help" tab.



Open the help via the Info icon in the Energy Manager Web.



The Operating Manual is opened in the browser and you can navigate through the table of contents.

SIEMENS SIMATIC Energy Manager PRO V7. - Operation

			6 6	Q
Legal information		Introduction	B	. G.
Document information				
Introduction	^	V Overview		
Energy Manager PRO Client Energy Manager Web	^	Energy Manager Web is a browser-based user interface for the Energy Manager energy management system. Energy Manager PRO Web is used to access Energy Manager PRO via the Internet/Intranet.		
Basics	~	The administrator configures the data you may access in Energy Manager.		
Introduction		Note		d
Login		Installation of Energy Manager Web		1
Definition of home page		You can find information on the installation of Energy Manager Web in the installation manual "Energy Manag - Installation", section "Setting up Energy Manager Web".	er	
Navigation				5
Search for object		NOTICE		
Consumers and structured view on the web		Secure connection between web client and web server		
Ouicklinks		If you configure the connection between web client and web server, use only secure Cipher Suites.		
Annemica	~	A list of secure Cipher Suites can be found in the reference under "Cipher Suites a "		

Note

If you experience display problems in the browser, check the compatibility view settings in your browser. These should be deactivated.

2.2 Configuration

2.2.1 Configuration of the PRO client

2.2.1.1 Objects in the Client

Object basics

Object definition

Objects let you configure all of the components you need for energy management in your organization in Energy Manager .

The following objects are available, for example.

• Folder

Object for structuring in the project tree of the Client

- Datapoint Object for saving the measured values of a measuring point
- Prototype, loop
 Objects for processing measured values during import
- Parameters, measuring variables
 Objects for time-independent processing of measured values
- ERP domain, cost center relation, cost center, service type Objects for Enterprise Resource Planning
- Report, Chart, Dashboard
 Objects for the display of measured values
- User, user group, functional group, domain
 Objects for configuring authorizations in Energy Manager
- Hardware, process, driver source, IO buffer
 Objects for configuring data acquisition in Energy Manager
Object properties

A property is a characteristic that is assigned to a specific object. In Energy Manager, an object can have the following properties:

• Automatically generated properties

The system automatically generate these properties,, e.g. "Name" and "Description", when you create an object.

Manually assigned properties

You can assign these properties to an object, such as "Created on" or "Created by".

Manually assigned properties are then subdivided into the following categories:

• Default properties

You can assign a property that is already defined in Energy Manager to an object, "Created on" for example.

• User-defined properties

You can also create your own properties, which you can then assign to an object.

You can use object properties for the following purpose:

- To search for these properties
- For titles in reports

Access rights for objects

You can prevent unauthorized read access to specific objects by defining these in Energy Manager:

• Authority level

You specify the authority level with a value between 0 and 1000:

- "0"

All users can view the object.

- "1" to "1000"

If you enter "50", for example, the object is visible to all users assigned authority level equal to or higher than 50.

You can automatically assign the authority level of an object to all nested objects.

• Domain

The domain represents a location of a business, for example. Users can be assigned to one or several domains.

Only the objects of the domain you activated are displayed. Newly objects are assigned exclusively to this domain.

Using and copying objects

Once an object is created, you can use it elsewhere in the project tree, e.g. in a report or calculation. You can also create a clone of the object in order to create a similar object.

This is done using the following Energy Manager commands:

- Using "Copy and paste", you use the same object elsewhere.
- "Disconnect", to cancel the use of the object.
- "Delete", to remove the object from the project tree.
 "Delete" removes all instances of an object in the project.
- Using "Clone", you receive a copy of the object's contents.

See also

Object properties (Page 40) Object management (Page 44) Authorizations (Page 338)

Creating an object

Overview

If you are installing Energy Manager for the first time, the project tree contains only one default object: the "System" root.

Note

You cannot edit or delete the "System" root.

You may create and configure further objects in the project tree. Rule: Objects are always created as child object of the selected parent object.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which you want to create the object.
- Click the object that you want to create in the menu bar, for example, "Data point". The object configuration dialog opens.
- 3. Select the respective object and click "OK".

Result

The object is created in the project tree in the selected folder.

Report Data Collection
 e_gas_consumption_1
 Chart Data Collection

You can view the object properties of the object, or create new properties for the object.

See also

Displaying object relations (Page 50) Object naming conventions (Page 52) Object properties (Page 40)

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Object properties

Opening properties

Requirement

You have created the object.

Procedure

- Select the object and click the "Properties" command in the shortcut menu. The object properties dialog opens.
- 2. Edit the name and description of the object as required.
- Enter a value in "Authorization level" to specify the access rights for the object. The authority level is set to "0" by default.
- 4. You can transfer the authority level to all child objects by activating the "Children inherit authority level".

Result

The object properties are open.

	Folder - Configu	ration	- 🗆 ×
Name: Description:	Configuration		
Authority Level:	750	Inherit Authori	ty Level to children.
Properties			
Name	Value		New Edit Delete
9		ОК	Cancel

You can assign new properties to the object.

See also

Assigning properties (Page 41) Creating an object (Page 39) Object basics (Page 36)

Assigning properties

Requirement

- You have created the object.
- The object properties are open.

Procedure

1. Click "New" in the "Properties" area.

The "Property" dialog opens.

	Property - CREATED ON	_ 🗆 🗙
Name:	CREATED ON	New
Value Type:	Date/Time	Edit
		Delete
Value 06.06.2012	00:00:00	
	OK	Cancel

2. Select the property in the "Name" area.

The data type of the selected property is automatically entered in "Value type".

- 3. Enter a value.
- 4. Click "OK".

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Result

The selected property is assigned to the object.

	Folder - Co	nfiguration	- 🗆 ×
Name:	Configuration		
Description:			^
Authority Level:	750	Inherit Author	ity Level to children.
Properties			
Name	Value		New
CREATED ON	06.06.201	2 00:00:00	Edit
9		ОК	Cancel

You can assign a new property to the object. You can also define custom properties and assign these to the object.

See also

Creating an object (Page 39) Opening properties (Page 40) Object basics (Page 36) Defining custom properties (Page 43)

Defining custom properties

Requirement

- The object properties are open.
- The "Property" dialog is open.

Procedure

1. Click "New".



	Property Type	– 🗆 ×
Name:		
Value Type:	Integer	•
	ОК	Cancel

- 2. Type in a name for the property.
- 3. Select the data type for the property in "Value type".
- 4. Click "OK".

Result

You have defined a custom property. You can now assign this new property to the object.

See also

Assigning properties (Page 41)

Object management

Object management basics

Overview

The following Energy Manager commands are available for managing objects in the project tree:

- Move
- Copy and disconnect
- Clone and delete

Moving objects

Use the "Move" command to move an object to a different location.

Example:

1. You have created the "e_gas_consumption_1" data point in the "Report Data Collection" folder:

Report Data Collection
 e_gas_consumption_1
 Chart Data Collection

2. However, you no longer need the "e_gas_consumption_1" datapoint for evaluation in a report; now you need it for visualization in a Chart. Move the datapoint to the "Chart Data Collection" folder:

Reusing objects

Use the "Copy" command to use an object in another location. Copied objects always have the same name. If you edit the object at one location, any changes will be applied to all other points of application.

Example:

1. You have created the "e_gas_consumption_1" data point for evaluation in a report in the "Report Data Collection" folder:



2. You also need the "e_gas_consumption_1" datapoint for visualization in a trend. Copy this datapoint to the "Chart Data Collection" folder:



Revoke re-use of objects

To revoke the re-use of an object in one location, use the "Disconnect" command.

Example:

1. You are using the "e_gas_consumption_1" datapoint in the "Report Data Collection" and "Chart Data Collection" folders:



2. You no longer need the "e_gas_consumption_1" datapoint for visualization in a trend. Disconnect the datapoint in the "Chart Data Collection" folder. This datapoint is deleted in the Chart Data Collection folder. The data point is retained in the "Report Data Collection" folder:



Copying objects

You copy an object by using the "Clone" command. Use this command if you want to create several objects with similar properties. Example:

1. You have created the "e_gas_consumption_1" data point for evaluation in a report in the "Report Data Collection" folder:



For evaluation in a report, you require a further data point for the gas consumption of a different plant. Clone the "e_gas_consumption_1" data point, rename this data point "e gas consumption 2" and customize the properties accordingly:



Deleting objects

Use the "Delete" command to irrevocably delete an object from the project tree.

Example:

1. You are using the "e_gas_consumption_1" datapoint in both the "Report Data Collection" folder and the "Chart Data Collection" folder:



2. You no longer need the "e_gas_consumption_1" data point. Delete this data point. All instances of the data point in the project tree are deleted irrevocably. You can no longer restore the data point.



See also

Folder (Page 329)

Managing objects

Requirement

The objects have already been created.

Moving or re-using objects

- 1. Right-click the object and drag-and-drop it to the selected position. Observe the position of the guide line:
 - If you place the guide line directly underneath the object, the selected object is copied to the same structure level in the project tree for re-use.



 If you place the guide line to the right of the object, the selected object is copied to the next nested level in the project tree structure, or re-used.



The shortcut menu for moving and re-using is displayed.



2. To move the object, click "Move here".

The object is moved.

3. To re-use the object, click "Copy here".

The object is re-used.

Deleting/copying/canceling the re-use of an object

Chart Data Collection		Properties Domains
	X	Cut
	1	Сору
	Ē	Paste
	2	Clone
		Lock
	L. AX	Disconnect
	×	Delete
	1	<u>E</u> dit
		<u>M</u> easurement Values

1. Click "Delete" in the shortcut menu to delete a selected object.

The object is deleted irrevocably from the project tree.

- You cancel the re-use of a selected object by clicking "Disconnect" in the shortcut menu. The object is no longer used at that location, but remains available for use in other locations.
- 3. Proceed as follows to co copy the object:
 - Select the object and click "Clone" in the shortcut menu.

The object configuration dialog opens.

– Edit the object and then click "OK".

The copied object is created in the project tree.

Locking objects

You can lock the created objects in the project tree of the Client. This prevents the objects from being moved unintentionally within the project tree.

1. Select the object and click "Lock" in the shortcut menu.

Chart Data Collection	PropertiesDomains
	X Cut
	🗓 Сору
	D Paste
	😂 Clone
	Lock
	🔆 Disconnect
	× Delete
	✓ <u>E</u> dit
	MeasurementValues

You can no longer move the object and its nested objects in the project tree.

2. Deactivate the "Lock" command if you want to move a child object in the project tree. You can now move the child object. The parent object remains in locked state.

See also

Creating an object (Page 39) Object management basics (Page 44)

Displaying object relations

Overview

An object created in Energy Manager forms a relation to other Energy Manager objects. The relation between objects in Energy Manager is termed "parent-child relation":



- ① Parent object: This object can have more than one child object.
- ② Child objects: While each child object can only have one parent object, it can also be the parent object for other child objects.

Requirement

You have created the object.

Procedure

1. To display all child objects that you have created directly under a parent object, select the parent object from the project tree and click the "Father to Child" button.

The child objects are displayed in the display area of the Client.



2. To display the object under which you have created other objects, select the child object from the project tree and click the "Child to Father" button.

The parent object is displayed in the display area of the Client.

File	Acquisition	Processing	Analysis	Master Data	Administration	Help
Autom	atic acquisition	⊡ Datapoint	iy Manual acqu	uisition Import	😎	
📜 Cust	omer 🕨					
Mer	าน			Parent	s	Descri
h F Ø			🛃 Sys	stem		
	Customer } System					

See also

Creating an object (Page 39)

Object naming conventions

Notes on the naming of objects

Observe the following when naming objects:

- Use an unambiguous name.
- Use a maximum of 255 characters.
- Use the following characters:
 - "A" to "Z"
 - "a" to "z"
 - "0" to "9"
 - _ " "

Name prefixes

In order to enable the unambiguous identification of Energy Manager objects for acquisition and calculation of measured values, the following name prefixes were defined.

Prefix	Object
a_	Derived data point
d_	Data point
e_	Generic data point
k_	Constant
p_	Prototype
I_	Loop
t_	Parameters
m_	Measuring variable

Note

When you create an object, the prefix is automatically entered in the name field.

Recommendation for naming objects

In order to ensure the uniqueness of the names, create a concept for naming the objects in Energy Manager before you start to configure your system. Use the following syntax. for example:

Prefix_FIS_physical measuring variable_[plant unit]_plant

2.2.2 "File" menu tab

2.2.2.1 Options

"Energy Manager options" support configuration tasks in all system areas and user-specific customizations. The following table shows the available areas:



Access

To open "Energy Manager options", click the "Options" button in the menu bar under "File".

SIEMENS			
	File	Acquisition	
	📙 <u>S</u> ave		
	🏌 Optior	IS	
	📝 Configuration		
	🔐 Account Settings		
	<u>]</u> License Management		
	🙀 Change Password		
	≉∏Logou	ıt	
	🛞 Exit		

Note

Changes in the extended parameters of the Energy Manager options can have undesired effects on the system behavior and should therefore only be carried out by trained users or administrators.

Energy Manager options in detail

Tab	Functions		
General	Common Eventeble Teaks Meure, Jaka Quan Turas Madula Turas DD, Ann. Oliant		
	Common Executable Tasks Mevas Jobs Query I	ypes module lypes DB App. Client	
	en en		
	Tooltips: Show ToolTips.		
	Show extensive ToolTips.		
	Show ToolTips for folders.		
	Show Reason Tooltips.		
	Other: Show node description price	or name in Tree.	
	✓ Use my DB-DLV for new Explorer.		
	Explorer Appearance: 🔽 Show Navigation Bar.		
	Show Quick Search.		
	Show Nodes Count.		
	The "General" tab primarily contain	as user-specific settings. In this dialog, you can customize the	
	client language, the tooltips, and	the Explorer appearance.	
Executable tasks			
	Common Executable Tasks Mevas Jobs Query	Types Module Types DB App. Client	
	Id Name 🛆 Desci	ription Execution File Active <mark>A New</mark>	
	2 ASCII FTP Import ASCII	FTP Import TskFtpTransfer.cmd Edit Edit	
	42 ASCII FTP Import Text ASCII 41 Batchdata recalc Batchd	tata recair. TskGenBatchBecair rmd	
	14 Bootstrap routine (reports) Bootst	rap routine for re RestartReport.cmd	
	34 Bootstrap routine (rerun reports) Bootstrap routine (reru TskRestCalcRep.cmd		
	See Jobs in Energy Manager PRO (Page 398)		
Measuring variables	see sous in Energy manager rice (
weasuring variables	Common Executable Tasks Mevas Jobs Query T	ypes ModuleTypes DB App. Client	
	ld Name Description Active 📤		
	2708 Multiplication of n MEVA's This function can multiply a variable count of MEVA's VALUE[x] = M		
	2772 Subtraction of a MEV/Ve This function outbracts a variable sound of MEV/VeV/VULLENE MEV/VeV/VULLENE MEV/VeV/VULLENE MEV/VeV/VULLENE MEV/VeV/VULLENE MEV/VeV/VULLENE		
	2689 Energy rate with availableness	Energy rate with availabilitylinked objects: data point, digital data p	
	2691 Energy rate with limit	Energy rate with thresholdlinked objects: data point, profile1, profil	
	You can activate or deactivate "Me	pasuring variables" in this tab	
lobs			
3083	Common Executable Tasks Mevas Jobs Query T	ypes ModuleTypes DB App. Client	
	ld Name	Description Active 📤	
	2825 Exportiob SAP R/3 PM historical PPD 6h	Exportiob SAP R/3 PM historical counted measurand of prior prior	
	2826 Exponjub SAP R/3 PM historical PD on 2743 Job for purging acquisition data ext	Lob for purging acquisition data extended	
	2781 Job for DP's to roll out	Job for DP's to roll out	
	2808 Querytype default period for purging	Job for assigning "Querytype and -directory" the default periods fo	
	You can activate or deactivate "En	ergy Manager database" jobs in this tab.	
Query types			
2	Common Executable Tasks Mevas Jobs Query Types Module Types DB App. Client		
	Id Name $ extsf{Description}$	n Active 📤	
	1051 14 days back Query 14 d	ays back	
	1049 Business year Business v	vear I	
	1048 Business year + 6h Business y	rear + 6h	
	1032 Comparison (internal) Internal du	mmy for comparison query	
	You can activate or deactivate "ou	erv types" in this tab.	
	Tou can activate of deactivate query types in this tab.		

Tab	Functions		
Module types	Common EverytableTacke Mayas John Oue	ny Tynes Module Tynes DB Ann Client	
	Id Name	Description Active	
	1443 Acquisition control	Acquisition control	
	3929 Alarms batch	Alarms batch	
	1402 Balance	Balance module	
	3926 Balance batch	Balance batch	
	3935 Balance BFS with timestamp	Balance BFS with timestamp	
	You can activate or deactivate "	module types" in this tab.	
Database	Common Executable Tasks Mevas	Jobs Query Types Module Types DB App. Client	
	Name	🔺 Value 🔶 Edit	
	ABGL_CHANGE_KLASSIFIZIERUNG	0	
	ABGL CHANGE MAX RUNTIME P1	ann	
	ABOL_OHANOE_MAY_DUNTIME_D	000	
	ABGL_CHANGE_MAX_RONTIME_P	900	
	ABGL_CHANGE_QUEUE_READ_P1	1000	
	Tab for editing global database	settings.	
	Setting Varia	ble – 🗆 🗙	
	Name: DB_BACKUP_DEST	NATION_PATH	
	Value Type: Text		
	Value		
	C:\EnMPRO\DB\EnMPRO\Admin\b	ackup	
	OK Cancel		
	The tab provides corresponding number and text input fields.		
	Description of the various options:		
	Name	Description	
	ABGL_CHANGE	If this value equals 1, derived datapoints will be re- calculated during execution of the "Recalculate de- rived measurements" job.	
	ABGL_CHANGE_IMPORT	Import functions may set this value to indicate the number of values most recently imported. Recalcula- tion is stopped if the value overshoots the limit of	
		50,000 and resumed when the value has dropped below this limit again. Recalculation should be in wait state during the import of large data volumes. This parameter is only relevant if ABGL_CHANGE_WAIT = 1.	
	ABGL_CHANGE_KLASSIFIZIERUN	IG Generally enables (value = 1) or disables (value = 0) differentiation between actual and forecast values for derived datapoints during execution of the "Re- calculate derived measurements" job for derived datapoints.	

Tab	Functions	
Database (continued)	ABGL_CHANGE_WAIT	Specifies whether to delay the recalculation of de- rived datapoints during execution of the "Recalcu- late derived measurements" job for derived datapoints. Enabled if value = 1, disabled if value = 0.
	ABGL_DEBUG	If >= 2, all recalculations are logged to the error journal during execution of the "Recalculate derived measurements" job for derived datapoints. Logging is disabled if the value is < 2.
	AUSROLL_ANZAHL_MONATE	Number of month for "Job DP roll-out", starting with job initiation. The default value is 36, i.e. three years.
	AUSROLL_INIT_FLAG	"Job DP roll-out" issue:
		1: The entire time frame that has been defined for the rollout will be processed. Existing gaps will be padded in this way.
		0: Roll-out only up to the first value that exists.
		The default is 0.
	AUSROLL_ROOT_ORDNER	For "Job DP roll-out", this specifies the node ID of the folder that contains the derived measurements or datapoints to roll out. The job is canceled and a cor- responding error message is generated if this entry is missing.
	AUSROLL_STATISTIK	Specifies the number of datapoints rolled out for the currently active "Job DP roll-out" job.
	EXPORT_FILENAME_MODUS	Concerns the "Job for ASCII export to Energy Man- ager PRO Standard":
		0: File name with date and time.
		1: File name without date and time
	EXPORT_PATH	Concerns the "Job for ASCII export to Energy Man- ager PRO Standard":
		Export directory. An error message is output and "C:\Data\Import" is returned as default directory if this entry is missing.
	BDATA_LASTPRF_QS	Specifies whether or not to include corrupted values in the calculation for the "Load profile analysis" mod- ule.
		0: Corrupted values are ignored.
		1: Corrupted values are included.
	BILA_HEADER	Concerns the "Balance" module:
		0: Hide header.
		1: Show header.
	COUNTRY_CODE	Saves the regional setting the user has selected in database setup. Currently, the following coun- tries/regions are supported: 2511 for Austria, 2512 for Germany, 2513 for Spain (Catalonia).

Tab	Functions			
Database (continued)	DB_DATE_FORMAT	Date/time property format. Default: dd.mm.yyyy hh24:mm:ss		
	DB_FEJO_THRESHOLD	Concerns the error journal:		
		Suppression in [s] if many error messages with iden- tical text content are being received. All new incom- ing error messages having a time stamp within the threshold and identical text entries in the error jour- nal will not be entered in the error journal. All error messages are output when the value is 0.		
	DB_ZAEHLER_CHECK	Specifies whether to enable or disable filtering for "MEVAs with count functionality".		
		0: Filtering is disabled.		
		1: Filtering is enabled.		
	DB_ZAEHLER_DEBUG	Specifies whether or not to enter additional diagnos- tics messages in the error journal for "MEVAs with count functionality".		
		0: disabled.		
		>= 1: enabled.		
	DB_ZAEHLER_FILTER	Minimum value to be set for count filters in order to be taken into account for "MEVAs with count func- tionality".		
	DEFAULT_CAHE_BEHALTEN	The "Delete analyses job" does not delete analyses (reports started manually or automatically) marked with selected "Keep" check box. This parameter de- fines the check box default for the creation of new analyses.		
		0: Do not keep		
		1: Кеер		
	DELETE_BY_COMPRESS_UNTIL	For the "Compress measurement journal job", if the "Delete measured values" has been parameterized at the datapoint: Age in seconds as of which deletion is permitted. Default is "14 days" (=1209600 sec).		
	DELETE_MSJO_COMMIT	For the "Delete measurement journal job": Defines the number of data records to delete before a COMMIT is set. Default: 1000		
	DELETE_MSJO_UNTIL	For the "Delete measurement journal job": Age in days as of which deletion is permitted. The job is canceled and a corresponding error message is gen- erated if this entry is missing.		
	FEJO_EXPORT_FLAG	For the "Delete error journal job": If the value 1 is set, the messages are exported to a file prior to dele- tion; the messages are only deleted if 0 is set.		
	FEJO_EXPORT_MESS_FLAG	For the "Archive MV errors" job: If the value 1 is set, the messages are exported to a file prior to deletion; the messages are only deleted if 0 is set.		
	FEJO_EXPORT_MESS_PATH	For the "Archive MV errors" job: Specifies the export directory for messages to be deleted. The file name "FEJO_EXPORT_MESS_PATH_" plus the date (DD-MM- YYYY) is set permanently.		
	FEJO_EXPORT_MESS_UNTIL	For the "Archive MV errors", this parameter specifies the number of days the entries from the MV editor are retained in the database.		
		Ihe entries will be deleted on expiration of this time.		

Tab	Functions			
Database (continued)	FEJO_EXPORT_PATH	For the "Delete error journal job": Specifies the export directory for messages to be deleted. The file name "FEJO_EXPORT_PATH_" plus the date (DD-MM-YYYY) is set permanently.		
	FEJO_EXPORT_UNTIL	For the "Delete error journal job", this parameter specifies the number of days the error messages are retained in the database.		
		The error messages will be deleted on expiration of this time.		
	FILE_MAX_SIZE_KB	Specifies the maximum size in KB for files to be saved to the database. Default: 3000 KB		
	IMPORT_DEBUG	Enables/disables detailed logging at the DB inter- faces; enable (1)/disable (0)		
	ITSEC_EXPORT_FLAG	For the "Delete old IT Security Data" job: If the value 1 is set, the error messages are exported to a file prior to deletion; the messages are only deleted if 0 is set.		
	ITSEC_EXPORT_PATH	For the "Delete old IT Security Data" job: Specifies the export directory for messages to be deleted. The file name "FEJO_ITSEC_EXPORT_" plus the date (DD- MM-YYYY) is set permanently.		
	ITSEC_EXPORT_UNTIL	For the "Delete old IT Security Data" job: All security entries that are no older than ITSEC_EXPORT_UNTIL (specified in days) at the time of execution are de- leted from the error journal.		
	LANGUAGE_CODE	Specifies the language for the Energy Manager data- base. Set by the Database Setup program. Currently supported languages are German and English. Possi- ble values: DEU (German), ENG (English)		
	Manual Insert Offset	Defines the handling of the first time stamp during manual input:		
		0: Values are entered with default Energy Manager end time stamp. The additional time stamp entered at the start is therefore listed as start time stamp.		
		1 (default): Values are entered with default Energy Manager end time stamp.		
	MATRIX_MAX_WORK_LOAD_FOR_FULL_CLI ENT	Limits the number of values in a matrix to the en- tered number.		
	MATRIX_MAX_WORK_LOAD_FOR_WEB	Limits the number of values in a matrix in Energy Manager PRO Web to the entered number.		
	MAX_ATTEMPS_TO_LOGIN	Specifies the maximum number of unsuccessful login attempts to tolerate before the account is locked (an administrator may release the account again)		
	MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN	1: Check for gaps in the "df_mess_plusx", "df_avg", "df_max", and "df_min" time sequences (15 min). 0: No check		
		abled (= 0).		

Tab	Functions			
Database (continued)	MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD	Specifies the threshold for the status returned for a specific Meva.		
		> 0: threshold percentage: numbers with decimal		
		places are also permitted, e.g.: 60.8.		
		Valid for the following Mevas: minimum, maximum, average, total, total real		
		Can only be active if MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN is disabled (= 0).		
	MODULE_EINHEIT	Valid for the "Log with from/to" and "Continuous trend" modules. The units specified in the integrated Mevas are not output in the header unless MODULE_UNIT = 1. Also valid for the "Query with 2 time stamps (from/to)" module. The units of the in- tegrated datapoint are output accordingly in the header.		
	NO_DST	Global parameter; usually configured by means of Database Setup. Daylight saving time YES (value = 0) / NO (value = 1). Example: 0=Europe with day- light saving time, or 1=China without daylight sav- ing time.		
	NURSE_CYCLE	Cycle in ms during which "autonurse.exe" is launched		
	NURSE_SEARCH_PATHS	Path(s) scanned by "autonurse.exe" for existing sink files. The paths are separated by the ' ' character (without single quote)		
	NURSE_STORAGE_DAYS	Specifies the number of days to expire before the imported sink files are deleted from the import folder.		
	NURSE_TABLE	Specifies the table to use for entries (MSJO, or MSJO4)		
	NURSE_TRANSFERID	1 for MSJO, 0 for MSJO4		
	OLD_PASSWORDS_NUMBER	User: Specifies the number of recent passwords that the system remembers to prevent redundant assign- ments by users. Example: The last three passwords may not be used to assign a new PWD.		
	PASSWORD_ADMIN_EXPIRED_DAYS	User: Specifies the number of days (z. B.: 90 days) after which administrators must change their password.		
	PASSWORD_EXPIRED_DAYS	User: Specifies the number of days to expire until the password must be changed.		
	PASSWORD_FORBIDDEN_CHARS	Password: Invalid characters in the password.		
	PASSWORD_LANG_SPECIFIC_CHARS	Password: Definition of valid country-specific special characters		
	PASSWORD_MIN_CHARS	Password: minimum character length of the pass- word.		
	PASSWORD_MIN_DIGITS	Password: Minimum number of digits the password must contain.		
	PASSWORD_MIN_LANG_SPECIFIC_CHARS	Password: Minimum number of country-specific special characters the password must contain.		
	PASSWORD_MIN_LENGTH	Password: minimum length of the password (>= MIN_CHARS+MIN_DIGITS+MIN_PUNCT_MARKS+MIN _LANG_SPECIFIC_CHARS)		

Energy Manager PRO Client

Tab	Functions			
Database (continued)	PASSWORD_MIN_PUNCT_MARKS	Password: minimum number of special characters the password must contain.		
	PASSWORD_PUNCT_MARKS	Password: Definition of valid special characters		
	PLAUS_GAP_KKS	Specifies whether or not to display the KKS text for the "Plausibility check gaps".		
		0: No		
		1: Yes		
	PREPROCESSOR_DEBUG	Specifies whether or not additional debug infor- mation is entered in the error journal while online compression is activated.		
		0: No		
		1: Yes		
		2: Yes (extensive debug information)		
	PREPROCESSOR_ENABLE	Activates the online compression of measured val- ues during the import to Energy Manager. Online compression is only executed if one of the several compression functions have been configured at the corresponding datapoint.		
		You can always run the compression functions by means of the "General recalculation" or "Compression of the measurement journal" jobs.		
		0: No		
		1: Yes		
	PRINT_VOLLZUGS_MELDUNG	Compress, expand: Defines whether or not to display completion reports.		
	Productplan_limit	Specifies the number of recent days for which users may still modify production plans.		
	REPA_LOES_ADHOC_DEF	Specifies the period for deleting storage folders of the type "ad hoc" for the "Storage folder deletion pe- riod defaults" job. All specifications in days.		
	REPA_LOES_JAHR_DEF	Specifies the period for deleting storage folders of the type "year" for the "Storage folder deletion pe- riod defaults" job. All specifications in days.		
	REPA_LOES_MONAT_DEF	Specifies the period for deleting storage folders of the type "month" for the "Storage folder deletion pe- riod defaults" job. All specifications in days.		
	REPA_LOES_MONATVAR_DEF	Specifies the period for deleting storage folders of the type "current month" for the "Storage folder de- letion period defaults" job. All specifications in days.		
	REPA_LOES_TAG_DEF	Specifies the period for deleting storage folders of the type "day" for the "Storage folder deletion period defaults" job. All specifications in days.		

Tab	Functions		
Database (continued)	STP_HOTFIX	Hotfix number: Set by the Database Setup during the Energy Manager Packages updates.	
	STP_LAST_UPDATE	Date of last update: Set by the Database Setup dur- ing the Energy Manager Packages updates.	
	STP_SERVICE_PACK	Service pack number: Set by the Database Setup during the Energy Manager Packages updates.	
	STP_VERSION	Version: Set by the Database Setup during the En-	
	VERBOSE	If > 0, additional debug information is written to the error journal during calculation of modules and me- vas. Possible values are 0, 1, and 2; no debug infor- mation is entered if the value = 0, the most debug info is entered when the value = 2.	
Appl. "Application	Common ExecutableTasks Mevas Jobs QueryTypes ModuleT	vnes DR Ann. Client	
Server"	Volume Name Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL Trace On Off Info Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL HostName Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL PortNumber Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL PortNumber Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL Timeout Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL Timeout Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL Excel Print Timeout Open this tab to edit registry values on the " Open this tab to edit registry values on the "	Value 5=Off, 1=On, 0 results in most trace info localhost 27442 600000 900000 'Application Server".	
	Setting Variable Name: VE\SOFTWARE\Siemens\B.Data\Kernel\TaskWatcH Value Type: Text Value C\GD ata\GUInftp OK	AFTP Import, Directory	
	Setting Variable Name: OFTWARE\Siemens\B.Data\ExcelReportServer, Ma Value Type: Number Value OK	x lines for pretty tables	

Tab	Functions			
Appl. "Application	Description of the various options:			
Server" (continued)	Context	Name	Description	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO	Autoprint Cycle	Cycle in seconds for automatic report- ing. In this cycle, the function checks whether to calculate or print the re- ports, or transfer these by email in au- tomatic mode.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\Er ror Reporter	FileName	File name (including the path) for er- ror reporting on the application server.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\Er ror Reporter	Trace level	Depth of detail for error reporting. Range of values from 0 to 5. 0: maximum detail depth.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\Er	Trace On Off Info	Description of the Trace Level value	
	ror Reporter		0: error reporting is enabled. Maximum scope of error information.	
			1: error reporting is enabled.	
			5: error reporting is disabled	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportClient	HostName	Host name of the PC running ExcelReportServer.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportClient	PortNumber	Communication port of the ExcelReportServer.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportClient	Timeout	Timeout in milliseconds for communi- cation with the ExcelReportServer.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportServer	Excel Print Timeout	Wait state interval between two print jobs, initiated upon print job prob- lems.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportServer	Kill Excel	Activation of Excel killer: If = 0: disabled. If = 1: enabled.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportServer	Max. lines for pretty ta- bles	Limits the number of lines for ExcelRe- portServer at which the color coding of values is disabled automatically (due to their value status).	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportServer	PortNumber	Port used to communicate with the ExcelReportServer.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportServer	Set Cell Colors	Specifies whether to enable or disable color coding of the report values based on their value status.	
			0: disabled.	
			1: enabled.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\E xcelReportServer	Show Model	Specifies whether to enable or disable the display of a selected report model in the report header data.	
			0: Inactive	
			1: Active	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\K ernel	Startup Delay	Waiting time in milliseconds at the kernel start before the start of pro- gram execution of the kernel.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO\M ail	Mail Text	Mail text template for automatic emailing	

Tab	Functions			
Appl. "Application Server" (continued)	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \Mail	my email address	Sender address that Energy Manager enters for automatic transmission.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \Mail	SMTP server	SMTP Server for automatic transmis- sion of emails.	
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \Matrix	TimestampsAlignLeft	Defines whether to display a valid range instead of time stamps for ma- trix value input.	
			If = 0: disabled; "time stamp", e.g.:	
			"01.10.2010 03:00:00"	
			If = 1: enabled; "valid range", e.g.:	
			"01.10.2010 02:00:00 - 01.10.2010 03:00:00"	

Tab	Functions		
Client	Openmen Eusentekle Taska Meuse, Jaka Oue		
	Host Context A Name	ry Types Module Types DB App. Clien	
	Win81V6 HKEY_CURRENT_USER\ ShowAd	quisitionObjects 1	Edit
	Win81V6 HKEY_CURRENT_USER\ ShowBI	DataErrorDetails 0	
	Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\ Enablef	ReportCalculationStatusDialog 0	
	Win81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINEL ShowNe	odeldInDialog 0	
	WIN81V6 HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\ Usequi	CKF liter 1	
	Use this tab to edit registry valu	es on the "Client PC".	
	Setting Va	ariable – 🗆 🗙	
	Name: IE\SOFTWARE\Siemens\B.Data	NDocLiberNPortalConnection, PortalName]
	Value Type: Text		1
	Value		
	BDataRemotingPortal.rem		
		OK Cancel	
	Catting M	vishla – 🗆 X	
	Setting va		
	Name: MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Siemen:	s\B.Data\DocLiber\PortalConnection, Port	
	Value Type: Number]
	Value		
		4444	
		OK Calicei	
	The tab provides corresponding	number and text input fie	lds
Client (continued)	Description of the various ont	ions:	M3.
Cheffi (continued)	Context	Name	Description
			Description
	\DocLiber\Logging	EnableOutputriags	will be set.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO	LogFiles	Concerns logging: Maximum time in
	\DocLiber\Logging	_DeleteLogsOlder-	days of log file availability.
		ThanDays	
	SOF I WARE\Siemens\EnMPRO	LogFiles_RootPath	Concerns logging: root directory for log files.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO	LogFiles_Untouchable-	Concerns logging: minimum available
	\DocLiber\Logging	FreeDiscSpaceInMb	hard disk space that is not affected by
			logging actions in log files.
	SOF I WARE\Siemens\EnMPRO	SendTraceOutput2Log-	Concerns logging: enable output to
	IDOCLIDETILOGGING	LIIE2	IUY IIIes.
			II = U: disabled.
			IT = I: enabled.

Tab	Functions		
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \DocLiber\Logging	SendTraceOut- put2TraceToolViewer	Concerns logging: enable output to TraceToolView. If = 0: disabled. If = 1: enabled. This option requires an installation of TraceToolViewer that is independent of Energy Manager.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \DocLiber\Logging	SuppressOutputFlags	Concerns logging: output flags that will be cleared.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \DocLiber\PortalConnection	Host	Host name of the Portal computer. Caution : Do not modify this value un- less you know exactly what your are doing.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \DocLiber\PortalConnection	Port	Port for use by the Portal for client connections. default is 4444. Caution : Do not modify this value un- less you know exactly what your are doing.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \DocLiber\PortalConnection	PortalName	Portal name.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \ExcelReportClient	HostName	Host name of the PC running ExcelReportServer.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \ExcelReportClient	PortNumber	Communication port of the ExcelRe- portServer.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \ExcelReportClient	Timeout	Timeout in milliseconds for communi- cation with the ExcelReportServer.
	SOFTWARE\Siemens\EnMPRO \Matrix	TimestampsAlignLeft	Defines whether to display a valid range instead of time stamps for ma- trix value input. 0: disabled; "time stamp", e.g.: "01.10.2010 03:00:00" 1: enabled; "valid range", e.g.: "01.10.2010 02:00:00 - 01.10.2010 03:00:00"

See also

Mail settings (Page 692)

2.2.2.2 Configuration

The "Energy Manager Configuration" dialog can be used to edit the connection settings of the Energy Manager Portal.

On completion of the Energy Manager Setup, enter the connection settings once at the beginning of the startup process using the main menu: "File > Energy Manager Configuration".

SIEMENS



The "Energy Manager Configuration" dialog cautions you that modified connection settings may have a negative impact on the Energy Manager system functionality. Be careful when making changes!

1 III	B.Data Configuration ×	
Take care when ch B.D. Portal	anging your B.Data configuration.	
Port:	4444 Restart	
	✓ Encrypt	
B.D. ⁴ Client		
Portal Connec	ion	
Host	WIN81V6	
Port	4444	
Use Proxy		
Manual	Proxy Configuration	
Proxy		
Port	80	
Use Spe	cificUser Credentials	
Username		
Password		
	OK Cancel	

You can edit the connection settings for the components that have been installed in the corresponding group settings.

Option	Description			
Portal	Port number at which the Energy Manager Portal listens. The currently set port is displayed. Default is "4444". Select the "Restart" option to restart the Portal service with "OK". Both options are active once only and are disabled again at the next startup.			
Client	Portal connection: "Computer": Name of the PC/server on which the Portal is running. "Port": Number of the port of the PC/server port on which the Portal is listening.			
	Portal Connection Portals Found: WIN81V6:4444 (DB = BDATA) Host: WIN81V6 Port: 4444 OK Cancel			
	Computer Browser Filter Start Start Stop Belection: WIN81V6 Cancel "Use proxy": Activates use of a proxy server, through which communication with the portal is			
	established. "Manual proxy configuration": Activates configuration of a proxy server. Enter its URL and the port. If you do not activate this option, the proxy server that is configured in the operating system will be used. "Use specific user login information": Activates ontry of login data for the proxy server			

 Table 2-1
 Energy Manager Configuration

You are always prompted to confirm your changes to connection settings. Your changes will be discarded of you click "No".

2.2.2.3 Account settings

General

Overview

Enter the path in which the Account settings are stored in the "Archive basic directory" text box.

Account Settings - Systen	n an	
General Password Settings	s Data Storage Delete options	
Archive base directory:	C:\EnMPRO	
	ОК	Cancel

See also

Account settings (Page 694)

Password settings

Overview

Manage the password requirements in the password settings. For the "Password for Admin expires after (days)" and "Password expires after (days)" text boxes, you can enter a one to five-digit number. For all other numeric text boxes you can enter a one to two-digit number.

Note

Unsupported punctuation

Quotation marks are not supported for passwords.

eneral Password Settings Data Stora	ge Delete	options	
ease define the requirements for passwor	ds.		
assword for Admin expires after (Days):	1000	Password expires after (Days):	365
in. length:	6	Password History:	3
ower case characters:	1	Upper case characters:	0
in. digits:	0	Forbidden characters:	@;.
in. specific characters:	0	Specific characters:	äöüÃÕÜß
in. punctuation marks:	0	Punctuation marks:	!#\$%^&*()<>+-=':]{}/ \'~

See also

Options (Page 53) Account settings (Page 694)

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Data storage

Overview

In data storage you manage the duration in which you save the cyclically acquired data in the system. You also set the archiving behavior on expiry of the entered time. The archive directory displays the path under which the measured values of the cycle times are saved. You can only change the archive directory in the "General" tab.

Jeneral Fassword Jenni	Jo Data Storage	Delete options		
lease define archive timef	rame of cyclic acqu	isition data.		
Data with Cycle Time 🗳	St. D. Value	St. D. Unit	Action after storage duration	
1 s	99	Y	No Action	
5 s	99	Y	No Action	
10 s	99	Y	No Action	
15 s	99	Y	No Action	
1 min	99	Y	No Action	
5 min	99	Y	No Action	
10 min	99	Y	No Action	
15 min	99	Y	No Action	
1/2 h	99	Y	No Action	
- Ia		34	N1- 0-4	
rchive Directory: System	1\Values			

Managing the storage duration

To manage the cyclically acquired data, follow these steps:

1. In the 2nd column enter a numerical value for the storage period of the corresponding cycle time.

The first column shows the available cycle times.

- 2. Select the unit of the associated storage period in the 3rd column.
- 3. Select the archiving behavior in the last column. If you select the menu command "Delete and export to file", the data is first archived and then deleted. If you select the menu command "Delete", the data is deleted from the system after expiry of the selected storage period.

See also

Account settings (Page 694)

Delete options

Overview

In the deletion options you set the duration after the expiry of which messages and alarms are deleted from the Logging Viewer. To enable the deletion process, select the respective check boxes. You can enter a one to six-digit number in the text boxes. The adjacent archive paths show you where the corresponding messages are stored.

ogging viewer				
Messages System	older than	100	d	System\General
Messages IT-Security	older than	100	d	System\ITMessages
Messages Measurement	older than	100	d	System\ChangedValues
lerts				
Messages	older than	372	d	System\Alerts
		2650	А	
archived files hold for		3030		

See also

Account settings (Page 694)

2.2.2.4 Licensing

The Energy Manager "Licensing" provides an overview of the currently used licenses as well as the available or missing licenses.

Procedure

1. Click the "Licensing" button in the menu bar under "File".

SIEMENS



The following information is displayed:

- Datapoints: Number of used datapoints as well as the total number of available datapoints (including used ones).
- Acquisitions: Number of used acquisitions and total available acquisitions.
- Client: Number of currently used Energy Manager systems as well as total number of available Energy Manager systems.
- Web clients: Number of currently used Energy Manager web clients as well as total number of available Energy Manager web clients.
- Consumer: The presence of the additionally available license for the consumer functionality and the number of consumers licensed are indicated here.
- Function packages: Additionally licensed function packages, such as Planning and Prognosis, are displayed here.

Missing licenses, such as at a test license, are displayed in red.

Note

Since you can use the licensed Energy Manager PROClient count as well as the licensed Web client count simultaneously on different computers (concurrent use), only the number of actively used licenses is displayed.

If the user is not working actively in the Energy Manager PRO Client or in the Energy Manager PRO Web, the license is released again after a few seconds so that it is available again for other users.
2.2.3 "Acquisition" menu tab

2.2.3.1 Architecture and interfaces

The data you need for energy management often exist in different formats and systems:

- Data from analog and digital measuring devices
- Data from other production sites
- Archived consumption data from the previous year

In addition to the standard interfaces to Siemens products such as WinCC or PCS 7, Energy Suite and EE-Monitor, Energy Manager supports conventional standards so that you can acquire data from different sources:

- Acquisition of energy and operational data from the field level via OPC or Modbus.
- Acquisition of data from S7 controllers via SIMATIC NET.
- Acquisition of data from measured value archives via OPC.
- Acquisition of data from maintenance, production planning and ERP system databases.
- Import of ASCII data from the company-wide file system, such as CSV or XML.
- Manual entry of the measured and count value readings.

Depending on the interface used, the data are either imported directly into the Energy Manager database or pre-processed in the acquisition component:





Acquisition components

You can install the acquisition component on a separate computer.

- The kernel acquires the values from the data sources and transfers them to the EnMPRO Acquisition Service.
- The EnMPRO Acquisition Service stores these acquired values in files. Every data point has its own file. The files are stored in a folder for the current day. When the next day starts, new files and a new folder are created.
- Files are created for totally 62 days. From the 63rd day, the oldest day is deleted. In this manner, the values of the data point are saved for 62 days.
- With a minimum scan cycle time of 1 second, a file is 2 MB in size, and with higher cycles, correspondingly lower.
- The acquired values are compressed in the EnMPRO Acquisition Service. The compressed values are temporarily stored in the local database of the acquisition component. Thereafter, the EnMPRO Acquisition Service synchronizes the local database with the MS SQL database.

Raw Files

Acquisition cycle smaller than the first compression stage

- The acquired measured values are written to the files, but not transferred to the SQL Server.
- But the acquired measured values can be visualized in a chart of a data point so as to quickly and easily monitor the data acquisition in the Energy Manager.
- Only the compressed values are present in the SQL Server.

Acquisition cycle same as the first compression stage

- The acquired measured values are stored on the SQL Server.
- The acquired measured values and the compressed values are present on the SQL Server itself.
- The acquired measured values are stored in the first compression stage and processed further there (for example, conversion to the consumption value).

2.2.3.2 Automatic acquisition

Creating hardware

Overview

If you want to acquire data automatically with Energy Manager, you must map at least one acquisition component as object of the type "Hardware". An acquisition component is, for example, a PC or a mobile device (smartphone). You configure the data acquisition for this hardware in an additional step by means of a wizard.

Note

The example project of the Energy Manager database already contains a "Hardware" object named "h_Siemens_PC" that is completely configured and enabled under "System > Customer > Data collection > Interfaces / Drivers".

If you do not want to use the preconfigured object, disable the "Active" option. This will release the license that is bound to it.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the hardware is going to be created.
- Click "Add hardware" in the menu bar under "Acquisition > Automatic acquisition". The "Hardware" configuration dialog opens.
- 3. Enter a name and, if necessary, a description.

Recommendation: Also use the prefix "h_" as unique identification.

4. Assign the PC or the mobile device to the "Hardware" object using the "..." button.

Note

The name "localhost" is not permitted as computer name.

5. Select the "Active" option to use the hardware for data acquisition.

- 6. Activate the type of acquisition component depending on the use:
 - Acquisition
 - Application server

Only necessary if the application server is installed on the acquisition component.

- Mobile device (is not required for the acquisition app)

	Hardware - h_Siemens_P	C – 🗆 🗙
Name:	h_Siemens_PC	
Description:		^
		¥
Hostname:	WIN81V6 Settings	Active
Address:	10.0.14.1	Acquisition
Guid:		Mobile Device
	Kernel	
	OK	Cancel

Result

The "Hardware" object has been configured.

Note

The acquisition ID is entered automatically under "Guid" when you have configured the acquisition component in the Energy Manager acquisition configuration. The acquisition ID uniquely identifies the connection between the Energy Manager Server and the acquisition component.

See also

Configuring a mobile device in Energy Manager (Page 925) Configuring acquisition components per wizard (Page 78) Creating data sources (Page 625) Connecting acquisition components to server (Page 78)

2.2.3.3 Connecting acquisition components to server

Configuring acquisition components per wizard

Overview

In the Energy Manager acquisition configuration you establish the logical connection between the acquisition component (Acquisition) and the Energy Manager Server (Pairing). The Energy Manager acquisition component is installed together with the "Energy Manager Acquisition" software component. The acquisition component supports communication via a proxy server.

You can configure the connection to the Energy Manager Server either by using the wizard or manually.

• Configuring the connection manually

You can configure the connection to the Energy Manager Server with or without access to the Energy Manager Server. The connection is created when saving the configuration data. If the Energy Manager Server cannot be reached, the configuration is saved locally. Upon restarting the Energy Manager acquisition configuration, an attempt is made to establish the connection using the saved configuration.

• Setting up a connection using the wizard

Configuration with the wizard requires a connection to the Energy Manager Server. The wizard performs a step by step check of the connection data that have been entered.

Configuring the connection using the wizard

You need the following data to log the acquisition component in to the Energy Manager Server:

- Address and port of the Energy Manager Server
- Energy Manager user name and password
- Name of the "Hardware" object in Energy Manager

Requirement

- The "Energy Manager Acquisition" software component is installed on the PC.
- Microsoft Internet Information Service (IIS) is installed on the PC.
- The PC is connected to the Energy Manager Server.
- The "Hardware" object is set up on the Energy Manager Server.
- A user with the "Configure acquisition" authorization is set up on the Energy Manager Server.
- For communication via proxy:
 - A proxy server must be available in the network.
 - The URL and login data must be known.

Procedure

1. Start the web browser on the acquisition component and enter the following address: http://[COMPUTERNAME]/EnMPROAcquisition/Login.aspx

SIEMENS		
	User	en 🗸
	Password	Login
SIMA	TIC En	ergy Manager PRO
Acqui	isition	

© Siemens AG, 2016. All Rights Reserved.

2. Log on with the operating system user under which Energy Manager was also installed.

The "Status" page of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration is displayed. If the acquisition component is not yet logged in to a Energy Manager Server, the "Configure the acquisition" dialog is displayed.

nease choc	se configuratio	n option
start wi	th wizard	8-40 8 -20136
O start wi	th manual setti	nas

- 3. Select the "Start connection wizard" option in the "Configure the acquisition" dialog.
- 4. Enter the following connection data:
 - Address and port of the Energy Manager Server

Serveraddress:	PI-BDATA-TS-34	
Port:	4444	
Proxyserver:	Configure proxy settings	
	Serveraddress:	
	Port 80	
	Use specific credentials	
	User:	
	Password:	
Status:	online	Check Connection

- 5. As needed, select "Configure proxy settings", and enter the following connection data depending on the configuration of the proxy server:
 - Address and port of the proxy server
 - User name and password
 - Click on "Test connection".
- 6. Enter your Energy Manager user name and password and click "Login".

Step 2: Authenticate		
User:	admin	
Password:	•••••	Login

An acquisition ID is allocated and the name of the acquisition computer is displayed.

Schritt 3: Erfassung			
Erfassungs ID:	d374304c-b955-4af7-ae9a-8fcc0acc78a6		
Erfassungseintrag:	h_Siemens_PC	~	Speichern

7. Save your entries.

Result

The "Acquisition ID" is generated and entered for the connection between the acquisition component and the Energy Manager Server.

The figure below shows a correctly configured connection to the Energy Manager Server:

Server connection		
Serveraddress: BDA	TA	
Status: 📃 o	nline	
		Check Connection
Acquisition Service (Ke	rnel)	
Status:	Running	
Acquisition Name:	h_Siemens_PC	
Acquisition ID:	0cad1c53-5963-4fa0-8f5c-061519ec3fb1	
Buffer size (MB):	0 / 16173.8	
Actual Date/Time OS:	11/5/2014 7:29:08 AM	
	Start/Restart	Stop
Configuration status		
Server connection cor	figuration: 📕 configured	
Actual acquisition con	figuration: 🚺 received	
		Reset

See also

Areas in the Energy Manager acquisition configuration (Page 85) Creating hardware (Page 76) Setting up users (Page 343)

Configuring the acquisition component manually

Overview

The connection to the Energy Manager Server can be configured both with and without access to the Energy Manager Server . The connection to the Energy Manager Server is established when the configuration data are saved. If the Energy Manager Server cannot be reached, the configuration is saved locally. Upon restarting the Energy Manager acquisition configuration, the connection is restarted using the saved configuration.

Requirement

- The "Energy Manager Acquisition" software component is installed on the PC.
- Microsoft Internet Information Service (IIS) is installed on the PC.
- The PC is connected to the Energy Manager Server (optional).
- The "Hardware" object is set up on the Energy Manager Server.
- A user with the "Configure acquisition" authorization is set up on the Energy Manager Server.
- For communication via proxy:
 - A proxy server must be available in the network.
 - The URL and login data must be known.

Procedure

- 1. Start the web browser on the acquisition component and enter the following address: http://[COMPUTERNAME]/EnMPROAcquisition/Login.aspx
- 2. Log on with the operating system user under which Energy Manager was also installed.

The "Status" page of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration is displayed.

If the acquisition component is not yet logged in to a Energy Manager Server, select the "Manually configure connection" option in the "Configure the acquisition" dialog that is displayed.

- 3. Enter the following connection data in the "Settings" area:
 - Address and port of the Energy Manager Server
 - Energy Manager user name and password
 - Name of the "Hardware" object in Energy Manager

- 4. As needed, select "Configure proxy settings", and enter the following connection data depending on the configuration of the proxy server:
 - Address and port of the proxy server
 - User name and password
- 5. Save your entries.

Connection setup to the Energy Manager Server is started.

If connection to the Energy Manager Server is not possible, your configuration is saved locally. Upon the next restart of the acquisition component, a connection will be attempted using the saved configuration. You can start the acquisition component once more by using "Start / Restart".

Result

The acquisition ID is generated and entered as soon as the Energy Manager Server can be reached. Connection setup is started again upon each restart of the acquisition component with the specified data. Provision of the acquisition configuration depends on the configured start delay time of the acquisition service.

The figure below shows a correctly configured connection to the Energy Manager Server:

Server connection		
Serveraddress: BDA	TA	
Status: 📃 o	nline	
		Check Connection
Acquisition Service (Ke	rnel)	
Status:	Running	
Acquisition Name:	h_Siemens_PC	
Acquisition ID:	0cad1c53-5963-4fa0-8f5c-061519ec3fb1	
Buffer size (MB):	0 / 16173.8	
Actual Date/Time OS:	11/5/2014 7:29:08 AM	
	Start/Restart	Stop
Configuration status		
Server connection cor	figuration: 📕 configured	
Actual acquisition con	figuration: 🚺 received	
		Reset

Managing the acquisition component

Overview

You use the web page of the acquisition component for the following tasks:

- Start or stop acquisition service
- Modify or reset the connection data
- Configuring a proxy server for the communication
- Execute the software update for the acquisition component

status	Server connection	
Settings Wizard	Serveraddress: BDATA Status: colline	Check Connection
bout	Acquisition Service (Kernel)	
ogout	Status: Running Acquisition Name: h_Stemens_PC Acquisition ID: 0cad1c53-5963-4fa0-8f5c-081519ec3fb1 Buffer size (MB): 0 / 16172.95 Actual Date/Time OS: 11/5/2014 7:32:12 AM Start/Restart	δαρ
	Configuration status	
	Server connection configuration: Configured Actual acquisition configuration: Configured	Read
		-
<u>ф</u>	C	2

2 Display and configuration area. The content depends on the selection in the navigation area.

2.2 Configuration

Requirement

- The Energy Manager configuration is displayed in the Web browser.
- The acquisition component is connected to the Energy Manager Server.

Start or stop acquisition service

- 1. Click "Status" in the navigation area.
- 2. Click the appropriate button.

If the acquisition service is stopped, data is not acquired.

Changing configuration settings

- 1. Click "Status" in the navigation area.
- 2. If you want to assign the acquisition component to another "Hardware" object, reset the acquisition service.
- 3. If you want to change the user data, stop the acquisition service.
- 4. Click on "Settings" or "Wizard" in the navigation area.
- 5. Enter the connection data.

Reset configuration settings

- 1. Click "Status" in the navigation area.
- Click the appropriate button.
 The configuration settings of the acquisition component are deleted after confirmation. The acquisition component is not acquiring data any longer.
- 3. Log the acquisition component in to a Energy Manager Server again afterward.

Configuring a proxy server for the communication

- 1. Click "Status" in the navigation area.
- 2. Click "Configure proxy settings"
- 3. Depending on the configuration of the proxy server, enter the following connection data:
 - Address and port of the proxy server
 - User name and password

Updating acquisition software

- 1. Click "About" in the navigation area.
- 2. Enter the path and file name of the setup file under "Software update", for example, "C:\Installation\Setup.exe".
- 3. Click "Update".

The acquisition service is stopped and the acquisition software is updated. The acquisition service is started once again when the installation is complete.

See also

Configuring acquisition components per wizard (Page 78)

Areas in the Energy Manager acquisition configuration

Layout of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration

The figure below shows the layout of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration after login:

put Acquisition St gout Acquisition St Acquisition I Acquisition I Buffer size (I Actual Date/I	envice (Kernel) Running Name: h_Siemens_PC D: 0cad1c53-5963-4fa0-8/5c-06151 MB): 0/16172.95 IVID: 0/16172.95	9ec3fb1	
jout Status: Acquisition M Acquisition II Buffer size (N Actual Date/1	Running Name: h_Siemens_PC D: 0cad1c53-5963-4fa0-8f5c-06151 MB): 0 / 16172.95 Dimen QS: 11/67014.73212.444	9ec3fb1	
	1110 00. Those 14 1.52.12 Mil		
Configuration	status		Stop
Server conne Actual acquis	ection configuration: configured sition configuration: received	_	Reset

- ① Navigation area
 - Status: Indicates the connection status of the acquisition component.
 - Settings: Displays the current configuration settings.
 - Wizard: Starts the wizard for input of the configuration settings.
 - Help: Opens the documentation on the Energy Manager acquisition component in PDF format.
 - About: Displays the installed software version. You can update the software version.
 - Logout: Displays the login window of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration again.
- 2 Display and configuration area. The content depends on the selection in the navigation area.

"Status" area

Server connection		
Serveraddress: BDA	TA	
Status: o	nline	
		Check Connection
Acquisition Service (Ke	rnel)	
Status:	Running	
Acquisition Name:	h_Siemens_PC	
Acquisition ID:	0cad1c53-5963-4fa0-8f5c-061519ec3fb1	
Buffer size (MB):	0 / 16173.8	
Actual Date/Time OS:	11/5/2014 7:29:08 AM	
	Start/Restart	Stop
Configuration status		
Server connection con	nfiguration: 📕 configured	
Actual acquisition con	figuration: 📕 received	
		Reset

The "Status" area of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration consists of the following areas:

Area	Entry	Description
Server connection	-	-
	Server Address	Shows the name of the Energy Manager server.
	Status	Displays the status of the connection to the Energy Manager Server. The following statuses are possible:
		• Green/online: The acquisition component is connected to the Energy Manager Server.
		• Gray/offline: The acquisition component is not connected to the Energy Manager Server.
Acquisition Service	-	-
(Kernel)	Status	Indicates the acquisition state.
		The following statuses are possible:
		• Started: The acquisition has started and is running.
		• Stopped: The acquisition is stopped.
	Acquisition Name	Displays the name of the hardware object.
	Acquisition ID	Displays the acquisition ID which uniquely identifies the connection between the Energy Manager Server and the acquisition component.
	Current Date/Time OS	Shows the current date and time of the PC on which the acquisition is running.

Area	Entry	Description	
Configuration Status	-	-	
	Connection Configuration	Shows whether the connection to the Energy Manager Server has al- ready been configured.	
	Current Acquisition Config- uration	Displays the status of the current acquisition configuration.	
		The following statuses are possible:	
		• Received: The acquisition configuration has been successfully syn- chronized with the Energy Manager Server.	
		• Not Received: The acquisition configuration has not been success- fully synchronized with the Energy Manager Server.	

"Settings" area

Server connection:			
Serveraddress:	BDATA		
Port:	4444		
Proxyserver:	Configure proxy settings Manual proxy configuration Serveraddress: Port: 80 Use specific credentials User: Password:		
User settings:			
User:	System\Admin		
Password:	•••••		
Acquisition entry:			
Acquisition Name:	h_Siemens_PC		
Acquisition ID: 0cad1c53-5963-4fa0-8f5c-061519ec3fb1			
	Save		

The "Settings" area of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration consists of the following areas:

Area	Entry	Description		
Server	-	-		
	Server Address	Shows the name of the Energy Manager server.		
	Port	Shows the port of the Energy Manager server.		
		Displays the status of the connection to the Energy Manager Server. The following statuses are possible:		
		• Green/online: The acquisition component is connected to the Energy Manager Server.		
		• Gray/offline: The acquisition component is not connected to the Energy Manager Server.		
Proxy server	Configure proxy settings	Indicates whether a proxy server will be used for the communication. The following statuses are possible:		
		• Use system proxy settings: The proxy server that is configured in the operating system will be used.		
		• Manual proxy configuration: Proxy server is manually configured:		
		The server address and port are required. The type of authorization depends on the proxy server that is used.		
User settings	-	-		
	Energy Manager PRO user name	Energy Manager user name		
	Password	Password of the Energy Manager user (encrypted)		
Acquisition entry	-	-		
	Acquisition Name	Name of the "Hardware" object		
	Acquisition ID	Uniquely identifies the connection between the Energy Manager Server and the acquisition component.		

"Wizard" area

The "Wizard" guides you through three steps for logging the acquisition component in to the Energy Manager Server. To run the wizard, the acquisition component must be connected to the Energy Manager Server.

Step 1: Choose Server	
Serveraddress:	PI-BDATA-TS-34
Port:	4444
Proxyserver:	Configure proxy settings Manual proxy configuration Serveraddress: Port: 80
	Use specific credentials
	User:
	Password:
Status:	offline Check Connection

Entry	Description
Server Address	Energy Manager Server name
Port	Port number of the Energy Manager server
Proxy server	Activates configuration of a proxy server.
Status	Displays the status of the connection to the Energy Manager Server.
Test connection	Checks the connection between the Energy Manager Server and the acquisition component. The next step is only displayed when the check is successfully completed.

The area of the wizard in "Step 1" contains the following entries:

Step 1: Choose Server	
Serveraddress:	PI-BDATA-TS-34
Port:	4444
Proxyserver:	Configure proxy settings Manual proxy configuration Serveraddress: Port: 80 Use specific credentials User: Password:
Status:	online Check Connection
Step 2: Authenticate	
User:	System\Admin
Password:	Login
1	

The area of the wizard in "Step 2" contains the following entries:

Entry	Description
User	Energy Manager user name
Password	Password of the Energy Manager user (encrypted)
Login	Registers the user in Energy Manager. The next step is only displayed when the login is suc- cessfully completed.

Step 1: Choose Server		
Serveraddress:	PI-BDATA-TS-34]
Port:	4444	
Proxyserver:	Configure proxy settings Manual proxy configuration Serveraddress: Port: 80 Use specific credentials User: Password:	
Status:	online	Check Connection
Step 2: Authenticate		
User:	System\Admin	
Password:	•••••	Login
Step 3: Choose Acquisition entry		
Choose Acquisition entry:	Connect new acquisition C replace existing acquisition [h_Siemens_PC]▼	Save

The area of the wizard in "Step 3" contains the following entries:

Entry	Description
Connecting new acquisition	Shows only the "Hardware" type objects configured in Energy Manager under "Select acquisi- tion" that have not yet been connected to an acquisition component.
Replace existing acquisition	Shows all the "Hardware" type objects configured in Energy Manager under "Select acquisi- tion".
Select acquisition	Assigns the acquisition component to the "Hardware" type object configured in Energy Manager.
	If you have enabled the "Replace existing acquisition" option, the existing assignment to this object is deleted.
Save	Generates the acquisition ID, which uniquely identifies the connection between the Energy Manager Server and the acquisition component.

"About" area

The "About" section of the Energy Manager acquisition configuration displays the software version installed on the acquisition component.

2.2.3.4 Configuring interfaces for data acquisition

Acquisition wizard for interface configuration

Overview

Use the "Acquisition wizard" to configure the interface for data acquisition from a selected data source. Energy Manager supports the data acquisition via the following interfaces:

- OLE DB
- WinCC/PCS 7
- S7
- Modbus
- FTP, sFTP
- File Import
- OPC DA, OPC HDA, OPC UA
- Machines with SIMATIC EE monitor
- Energy Suite Import
- Simulation

Note

SAT interface

The SAT interface is only available upon request. Contact Siemens Customer Support.

Acquisition structure in the Client

The acquisition wizard creates the following acquisition structure under the "Hardware" object:

	C_Matrikon2 PC
1	Process:
	The process is created by the acquisition wizard and provides the configuration of the in- terface for the Windows service "Energy Manager PRO Kernel". The process contains the driver source, which in turn contains the driver itself.
2,3	Driver source and driver:
	Define the data transfer from the data source via the driver.
4	IO buffer:
	The IO buffer contains the setting for the cycle time of sampling. An ASCII file is read in or measured values are requested from the data source according to this cycle time. In the case of the FTP, sFTP and File Import interfaces, the directory of the ASCII files is defined here. These settings are defined in the acquisition wizard.
5	Datapoints that you created or selected during the configuration.

Action overview

The acquisition wizard guides you through the configuration of the interface. The following configuration steps are basically required for all interfaces after starting the acquisition wizard:

- 1. Define the channel name
- 2. Select the device configuration
- 3. Configure the connection
- 4. Define the datapoints
- 5. Define the data transmission

After this step, you can create another link or create the acquisition structure.

6. Create the acquisition structure

Example

The following example shows how to acquire data from a WinCC log via the "WinCC / PCS 7" interface using the acquisition wizard.

1. Select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu of the "Hardware" object.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Select the interface.

<i>*</i>	Acquisition Wizard
SIEMENS	Database > OLE DB SIMATIC > WinCC/PCS7 > S7 Foreign Driver > Modbus Data Import Data Import Data Import PTP, sFTP > File Import Interface standards > OPC DA > OPC DA > OPC HDA > OPC HDA > OPC UA Machine Interface > Machines Energy Suite Interface > Energy Suite Import Other > Simulation

3. Enter the channel name and select the initial state for the acquisition:

P	WinCC_PCS7 (WinCC) - Define	channel Name		×
Enter name for communication channel:	WinCC			
Use default location from acquisition h	ardware			
O Select location for this specific channel	l			
	Germany		v	
Initial State:	ACTIVE		•	
	Step 1 out of 5	< Back	Next >	Cancel

4. Select the WinCC log from where the data is to be acquired:

P	WinCC_PCS7 (WinCC) - Browse WinCC	X
Archive: ConsumpCurr	rFurnace1_15Min	
	Step 2 out of 5 < Back Next > Can	cel

5. Select the logging tag with the values to be acquired.

The corresponding datapoint is created automatically.

WinCC_PCS7 (WinCC) - Create data points		×
ConsumpCurrFurnace1_15Min HMI_MixerConsumption ConsumpCurrFurnace1_15Min	WinCC_PCS7 (WinCC) - Create data points B.Data Datapoint d_ConsumpCurrFurnace1_15Min	Edit
	Step 3 out of 5 < Back Next >	Cancel

6. Define the transfer interval:

ð	P	WinCC_PCS7 (WinCC) - Select	transmission interval	×
	Data transmission interval: Retrieve data since:	15 min 26.03.2014 17:45:06 Override TSP settings		
		Step 4 out of 5	< Back Nex	t > Cancel

Interim result: The connection is established to the WinCC log:

P	WinCC_PCS7 (WinCC) - Communication channel overview			
Channel overview for this unit:				
WinCC		New	Edit	Delete
ConsumpCurrFurnace1_15Min				
	Step 5 out of 5	< Back	Finish	Cancel

7. Define an additional connection to another WinCC log with "New".

- or -

Create the acquisition structure with "Finish".

The following figure shows the acquisition structure created with the acquisition wizard:



See also

Creating hardware (Page 76) Location (Page 330) Assign time zone for acquisition or calculation (Page 334)

Display of cycle times of IO buffer and datapoint

The cycle time in the datapoint is the update rate compared to the data source.

- For interfaces with historical values (WinCC, OPC UA HA, OPC HDA, OLE DB, Energy Suite), the cycle time in the datapoint corresponds to the logging cycle in the data source. For example, with a 1 min WinCC log, the cycle time of the datapoint is also maximum 1 min.
- For interfaces with online values (S7, Modbus TCP, OPC UA DA, OPC DA), the cycle time in the datapoint corresponds to the sampling of the process tag.
- For the FTP, sFTP and File Import interfaces, the cycle time in the datapoint corresponds to the interval between the time stamps in the ASCII file.

The cycle time of sampling in the IO buffer (transmission interval) defines the intervals at which the measured values are requested or ASCII files are retrieved.

Relationship between the times

• For interfaces with historical values:

Cycle time in the IO buffer \leq cycle time in the datapoint. A smaller cycle time in the IO buffer can be relevant for logs with large logging cycles if these logs do not receive new values punctually (e.g. 1 hour or 1 day).

• For interfaces with online values and the ASCII interfaces:

Cycle time in the IO buffer = cycle time in the datapoint.

Time stamp of the measured values

Time stamps for interfaces with historical values and for the FTP, sFTP and File Import interfaces are taken from the data source.

Time stamps for interfaces with online values are formed via the local time of the acquisition component (Windows time of the PC on which the acquisition is installed).

The following table shows all interfaces with the respective value used and how the time stamp is formed:

Interface	Historical and online data	Only online data	Time stamp
OLE DB	1		From the database
WinCC	1		From WinCC
S7		✓	Local time of acquisition
Modbus TCP		✓	Local time of acquisition
FTP, sFTP and File Im- port	✓		From the ASCI file
OPC UA DA		✓	Local time of acquisition
OPC UA HA	1		OPC UA server
OPC DA		✓	Local time of acquisition
OPC HDA	1		OPC HDA server
EE monitor		1	Local time of acquisition
Desigo CC	1		From Desigo

Data acquisition via the "OLE-DB" interface

Overview

The "OLE DB" interface allows access to Excel tables as well as complex databases such as SQL Server or Oracle. You have to install the OLE-DB providers required for access separately, if it has not been installed with the Windows operating system.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via a unique identifier that is defined in the wizard.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- The OLE-DB data source can be accessed from the acquisition component.
- You have knowledge of OLE-DB.
- You have access rights in the SQL server.
- There is a database table or database view that consists of at least three columns:
 - Column with the time stamps
 - Column with the values
 - Column with the identifier of a datapoint

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click on the "OLE-DB" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Acq_OLE-DB".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Select the device configuration

1. Activate "Create user-defined configuration".

Configure the connection

- 1. Select the "OLE-DB Provider".
- 2. Enter the "Connection String".

Additional information on the Connection String is available on the Internet under "http://msdn.microsoft.com/de-de/library/ms254500(v=vs.110).aspx".

3. Click on "Test connection".

Server connection

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name for the IO buffer under "Interface name", for example, "IO_OLEDB".
- 2. Select the table.
- 3. Then select the columns which contain the data acquisition information:
 - Address of the datapoint that is to be acquired.
 - Acquired measured value
 - Time stamp of the measurement acquisition
 - Measurement acquisition state (optional)
- 4. If necessary, enter those values under "Status mapping" which are to be recognized as valid in connection with the status selection.

If you enter the value "0" under "Status mapping", for example, the values with status "0" are recognized as valid. Separate multiple entries with commas.

Define the datapoints

1. Click "New definition" under "New address".

The "Datapoint" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter a meaningful name for the datapoint.
- 3. Enter the name of the datapoint from the table under "Datapoint ID".
- 4. Activate the datapoint under "New address".

Define the data transmission

- 1. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values.
- 2. To change the start of the acquisition period, activate "Overwrite TSP settings".

Archive data from the defined start of the acquisition period until the interface was started are transmitted in their entirety. Current values since starting the interface will be cyclically transmitted depending on the selected interval.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "OLE-DB" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. Data acquisition starts once you have restarted the Energy Manager Kernel on the acquisition component.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

Data acquisition via the "WinCC / PCS 7" interface

Overview

You use the "WinCC / PCS 7" interface to retrieve values from a process value log or compressed log. You need a separate channel for each log.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via the logging tag in the WinCC log.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server.
- A WinCC client or WinCC single-user station is installed on the acquisition component.
- A WinCC project is activated.

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click on the "WinCC / PCS 7" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Acq_WinCC_ProcessValues".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Browse WinCC

1. Select the log whose data you want to retrieve.

Note

You acquire count values by using a process value archive.

Define the datapoints

1. Activate the logging tags whose values you want to retrieve.

Define the data transmission

- 1. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values.
- 2. To change the start of the acquisition period, activate "Overwrite TSP settings".

Archive data from the defined start of the acquisition period until the interface was started are transmitted in their entirety. Current values since starting the interface will be cyclically transmitted depending on the selected interval.

Note

To acquire data from a WinCC archive, the timestamps of the measured values must be rounded to the cycle. For 15-minute cycle values, for example, the timestamps must be rounded to 00:00:00, 00:15:00, 00:30:00 and 00:45:00 (hh:mm:ss).

Result

The acquisition structure for the "WinCC / PCS 7" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. Data acquisition starts once you have restarted the Energy Manager Kernel on the acquisition component.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

See also

Creating a WinCC channel (Page 644)

Data acquisition via the "S7" interface

Overview

You use the "S7" interface to retrieve data from an S7 controller with the help of SIMATIC NET. You address the memory areas of the S7 controller absolutely.

Note

Supported controllers

The "S7" interface supports the following controllers:

- S7-300
- S7-400
- S7-1200

For an S7-1500, use the OPC UA DA server directly. You need an OPC UA license for the S7-1500 for this purpose.

The OPC DA server of SIMATIC NET is used for the "S7" interface. The settings for this OPC DA server are already contained in the acquisition component. This means that no further settings are necessary in the acquisition component. An S7 connection is configured in the acquisition wizard. The SIMATIC NET OPC DA server accesses the data blocks in the S7 controller via the S7 connection. Additional configurations in STEP 7 are not required.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via the address of the data blocks (e.g. DB18,REAL10) that is defined in the wizard.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- SIMATIC NET is installed on the acquisition component and licensed.
- The access point "KERNEL" is configured in SIMATIC NET communication settings.
- The"OPC settings" are configured in SIMATIC NET communication settings.
- An understanding of addressing and communication with S7 controllers.

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click the "S7" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Acq_S7_ColorMixing_Consumption".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Select the device configuration

1. Activate "Create user-defined configuration".

Configure the connection

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name for the IO buffer under "Connection name", for example, "IO_S7-CleaningStation".
- 2. Enter the following data under "Acquisition":
 - Number of the CPU slot.
 - Connection Resource
- 3. Enter the connection data to the S7 controller under "Partner":
 - Used interface
 - Address of the S7 controller depends on the selected interface
 - Numbers of the rack and the slot
 - Connection Resource

Define the datapoints

1. Click "New definition" under "New address".

The "Datapoint" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter a meaningful name for the datapoint.
- 3. Under "Object" select the source from which you want to retrieve the values:
 - DB: Data block
 - I: Input
 - M: Bit memory
- 4. Enter the "Data type", "Address" and "Bit no." depending on the "Object".

The "number" is only relevant for the "DB" and identifies the data block.

5. Activate the datapoint under "New address".

Define the data transmission

1. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "S7" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. Data acquisition starts once you have restarted the Energy Manager Kernel on the acquisition component.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

Data acquisition via the "Modbus" interface

Overview

You use the "Modbus" interface to retrieve data from measuring devices with Modbus support and Ethernet interface, for example, SENTRON PAC measuring devices. The "Modbus" interface supports the following modes:

Modbus TCP

Additional information on Modbus TCP templates can be found on the Internet (https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/de/en/view/109771884).

• Modbus RTU over TCP

Modbus RTU does not support Power Monitoring.

Datapoints acquired by the following measuring devices are pre-configured in Energy Manager.

- SENTRON PAC 2200 CLP
- SENTRON PAC 3200
- SENTRON PAC 4200
- ET 200SP MF HF

Note

Devices for separate listing of third-party consumption values

The SENTRON PAC 2200 CLP device is required for separate listing of third-party consumption values.

Note

Supported modules

The ET 200SP MF HF device currently only supports AI Energy Meter modules.

You define the addresses of the parameters for all other measuring devices using the associated operating instructions.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via the Modbus register that is defined in the wizard.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- TCP/IP connection data of the measuring device are available.
- When Modbus RTU devices are connected, a Modbus TCP Gateway is connected in between.
- The Modbus device can be reached via the network.
- If a Modbus device template (Page 720) is present, the template is imported in Energy Manager.
- Operating instructions of the measuring device are available¹.
- An understanding of the Modbus protocol¹.
- ¹: Only required for manual configuration of a measuring device.

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client , select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click the "Modbus" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Acq_Modbus".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Select the device configuration

- 1. If you want to acquire data from a configured device, activate "Select device type from database".
- 2. If you want to acquire data from any measuring device, activate "Create user-defined configuration".

2.2 Configuration

Configure the connection

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name for the IO buffer under "Device name", for example, "IO_CleaningStation".
- 2. Enter the TCP/IP connection data of the measuring device.
- 3. Select the Modbus mode.

The default port is entered. You can adapt the port number for specific devices.

4. If the measuring device is connected with the acquisition component, check if it is available with "Test connection", if necessary.

The Modbus protocol is used to establish the connection.

- 5. Enter the address of the device in the "Slave address" field with a Modbus RTU over TCP.
- 6. Define additional options for an ET 200SP MF HF or PAC 2200 CLP or PAC 4200.
 - ET 200SP MF HF

Enter the offset in the "Register Offset" field.

Note

Register offset

The pre-configured datapoints correspond to the EE@Industry E3 profile. The length of the profile for the AI Energy Meter is 53 Modbus registers.

With an additional AI Energy Meter module, the register offset starts at 54.

Via the register offset, you define the module from which data is acquired.

PAC 2200 CLP and PAC 4200

To access historical data, enable the HDA option.

Note

HDA option for the devices PAC 2200 CLP and PAC 4200

The HDA option is available when you select the template for the devices PAC 2200 and PAC 4200. When you select the HDA option, the measuring points for the historical data are displayed. This is relevant for third-party consumption values.

Define the datapoints

- 1. If you acquire data from a SENTRON PAC 3200 / 4200:
 - Activate the required parameters.

The data point names are made up of the "Device name" and the "Parameter".

- 2. If you are creating a user-defined configuration:
 - Click "New definition" under "New address".
 - The "Datapoint" dialog opens.
 - Enter a meaningful name for the datapoint.
 - Enter the parameter addresses using the operating instructions of the measuring device.

Note

The word sequence for 32-bit values and the byte sequence for 16-bit values are not clearly specified in the Modbus specification. Device manufacturers often use the "Big Endian" coding for 32-bit values. This coding is therefore the default in data point configuration.

Activate the datapoint under "New address".

Define the data transmission

1. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "Modbus" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. Data acquisition starts once you have restarted the Energy Manager Kernel on the acquisition component.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

See also

Creating a Modbus TCP channel (Page 646)

Data acquisition via the "FTP, sFTP" interface

Overview

You use the "FTP, sFTP" interface to read data from ASCII files of an FTP server. Correct configuration of the process, IO buffer and datapoint is important. After successful configuration, transfer of the ASCII files from the FTP directory to the Energy Manager acquisition component is carried out automatically after the cycle time of the IO buffer.

After successful importing of the files from the FTP directory, these are initially stored in the %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\ftp\upload\%Name_of_IO-Buffer% directory.

After successful insertion of the data into the database the files are stored in the %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\ftp\upload\%Name_of_IO-Buffer%\imported directory.

If insertion of the data into the database is not successful, the files are stored in the %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\ftp\upload\%Name_of_IO-Buffer%\failed directory.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via a unique identifier that is defined in the wizard.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server.
- An FTP server is set up and accessible.
- Connection data for the FTP server are available.
- The time stamps in the ASCII file are ascending.

However, it is possible that the subsequent ASCII files have older ascending time stamps.

• The FTP server is started.

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click the "FTP, sFTP" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the communication channel, for example "Acq_FTP".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.
- 4. If the FTP server supports "sFTP", activate "Secure connection".
Configure the connection

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name for the IO buffer under "Group name", for example, "FTP_S7-CleaningStation".
- 2. Enter the connection data for the FTP server, for example "ftp:\\[Hostname[:Port]]\[FTP directory]".

The port number does not have to be specified. If you do not specify a port number, "21" is used by default.

The "FTP directory" is the directory in which the ASCII data are stored.

Note

Ensure that there are no blank spaces in the FTP directory. Data acquisition is only possible with an FTP directory without blank spaces.

- 3. For secure connections, you must enter the user name and password.
- 4. Select the format in which the data exist in the ASCII files.

Note

During the installation of Energy Manager an example file is stored in %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\ftp for each supported ASCII format. Information about the example files is available in the Reference in the chapter ASCII FTP formats (Page 839).

Define the datapoints

1. Click "New definition" under "Access via address"

The "Datapoint" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter a meaningful name for the datapoint.
- 3. The "Create datapoints" dialog opens. You can import data for several datapoints with one ASCII file. Create all the required datapoints and identify these under "Datapoint address" unambiguously with the designation of the datapoint in the ASCII file. The datapoint address is applied automatically in the datapoint.
- 4. Select all the datapoints by means of a check box or click "Select all".
- 5. Click "OK".

Define the data transmission

1. Select the data transmission interval for the IO buffer in which the acquisition component acquires the values.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "FTP, sFTP" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. The data acquisition starts automatically after the cycle time of the IO buffer.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

Configuration of process, IO buffer and datapoint

In order to ensure correct FTP or sFTP import the following configurations are set automatically and may not be changed:

• IO buffer: "Kernel" check box must be selected.

	IO Buffer - FTP_DE_Munich -
Name:	FTP_DE_Munich
Description:	^
	~
State:	ACTIVE
Cycle Time:	15 min 💌
	✓ Kernel
FTP-Configu	ration
Path:	ftp://EnMPRO/GUI/ftp/EXCELCSV/Excel_CSV.csv
Username:	admin
Password:	*****
Format:	fp_excelcsv
9	OK Cancel

• Datapoint: "Kernel" check box must be selected.

~	Ν	leasurement -
Name:	d_jtp	
Description		
Inventory N	#: NO_KKS	Ident
Process:	a_erf_FTP_Import 🔹	 Active
Unit:	k⁄∿h ∙	Log to DB
Input Unit:	kwh 👻	✓ Kernel

Note

If the data of the ASCII file are not available in time-synchronous form, select the "Direct Insertion" check box at the Process. Otherwise no data are transferred.

#	Process - a_e	erf_FTP_Import	t – 🗆 🗙
Name: a	_erf_FTP_Import		
Description:			^
			~
Hardware:	h EnMPRO	Path:	drv FTP Import
Driver Source:	trqz_FTP_Import -	Image Name:	bfs_ftp
State:	ACTIVE -		Restart
	Boss		
	Signal handler		
	Secure Connection	1	
	Direct Insertion		
9		ОК	Cancel

The setting of the "Safe connection" check box at the Process is taken from the definition of the channel name and can be changed here, if required.

Configuring data acquisition via the "File Import" interface

Overview

With the "File Import" interface you read out data from ASCII files locally from your computer. Correct configuration of the process, IO buffer and datapoint is important. After successful configuration, transfer of the ASCII files from the local directory to the Energy Manager acquisition component is carried out automatically after the cycle time of the IO buffer.

After successful importing of the files from the local directory, these are initially stored in the %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\ftp\upload\%Name_of_IO-Buffer% directory.

After successful insertion of the data into the database the files are stored in the %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\ftp\upload\%Name_of_IO-Buffer%\imported directory.

If insertion of the data into the database is not successful, the files are stored in the %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\ftp\upload\%Name_of_IO-Buffer%\failed directory.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via a unique identifier that is defined in the wizard.

Requirement

• The time stamps in the ASCII file are ascending.

However, it is possible that the subsequent ASCII files have older ascending time stamps.

• The FTP server is started.

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click the "File Import" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the communication channel, for example "Acq_FTP".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Configure the connection

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name for the IO buffer under "Group name", for example, "FTP_S7-CleaningStation".
- 2. Enter the directory in which the ASCII data are stored, for example"C:\EnMPRO\File_Import".

Note

Ensure that there are no blank spaces in the directory. Data acquisition is only possible with a directory without blank spaces.

3. Select the format in which the data exist in the ASCII files.

Note

During the installation of Energy Manager, an example file is stored in %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\ftp for each supported ASCII format. Information about the example files is available in the Reference in the chapter ASCII FTP formats (Page 839).

Define the datapoints

1. Click "New definition" under "Access via address"

The "Datapoint" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter a meaningful name for the datapoint.
- 3. The "Create datapoints" dialog opens. You can import data for several datapoints with one ASCII file. Create all the required datapoints and identify these under "Datapoint address" unambiguously with the designation of the datapoint in the ASCII file. The datapoint address is applied automatically in the datapoint.
- 4. Select all the datapoints by means of a check box or click "Select all".
- 5. Click "OK".

Define the data transmission

1. Select the data transmission interval for the IO buffer in which the acquisition component acquires the values.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "File Import" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. The data acquisition starts automatically after the cycle time of the IO buffer.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Introduction

In order to ensure correct File Import the following configurations are set automatically and may not be changed:

• IO buffer: "Kernel" check box must be selected.

₿	IO Buffer - IO_File_Import 🛛 🗕 🔍
Name:	IO_File_Import
Description:	^
State:	ACTIVE
Cycle Time:	
	✓ Kernel
File-Configu	ration
Path:	C:\EnMPRO\File_Import
Username:	
Password:	
Format:	fp_excelcsvNODST
9	OK Cancel

• Datapoint: "Kernel" check box must be selected.

-		Measurement - d_File_I
Name:	d_File_Import	
Description	:	
Inventory N	#: NO_KKS	Ident. Tok
Process:	a of File IMPODT	- Active
1100033.		
Unit:	k///h	- Eog to DB
Input Unit:	kwh	

Note

If the data of the ASCII file are not available in time-synchronous form, select the "Direct Insertion" check box at the Process. Otherwise no data are transferred.

#*	Process - a_	erf_File_IMPOR	T – 🗆 🗙
Name: a	_erf_File_IMPORT		
Description:			^
			×
Hardware:	h_EnMPRO -	Path:	drv_File_IMPORT
Driver Source:	trqz_File_IMPOR -	Image Name:	bfs_file
State:	ACTIVE		Restart
	Boss		
	Signal handler		
	Direct Insertion		
9		ОК	Cancel

Data acquisition via the "OPC-DA / OPC-HDA" interface

Overview

You use the "OPC" interface to retrieve the data provided by an OPC server. The "OPC" interface supports the OPC specifications "OPC-DA" and "OPC-HDA" as well as the following data types:

- Integer
- Float
- Boolean

The "OPC" interface converts the Boolean values "True" and "False" to "1" and "0".

Note

You can select the values for the datapoints directly under the following prerequisites:

- OPC server is installed on the acquisition component.
- OPC server supports reading of OPC items.

Note

OPC server is not installed on the acquisition component

If possible, use "OPC TCP Tunnelling" software to establish the connection to the OPC server. Accessing an external OPC server via DCOM is not supported for security reasons.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via the datapoint name in the OPC server.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- OPC server and / or OPC client are installed on the acquisition component.
- An understanding of addressing and communication with OPC.

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click the "OPC-DA" or "OPC-HDA" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Acq_OPC-DA".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Configure the connection

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name for the IO buffer under "Group name", for example, "IO_OPC-DA".
- 2. Select the OPC server under "OPC-DA datapoints" or "OPC-HDA datapoints".
- 3. If you have selected "OPC-HDA", select the "OPC-HDA aggregate type", if necessary.

The acquired values are compressed accordingly, for example, the mean of the reading interval is formed.

Define the datapoints

Activate the required datapoints.

The datapoint names are made up of the "Group name" and the "Datapoint".

Define the data transmission

- 1. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values.
- 2. Only for OPC-HDA: To change the start of the acquisition period, activate "Overwrite TSP settings".

Archive data from the defined start of the acquisition period until the interface was started are transmitted in their entirety. Current values since starting the interface will be cyclically transmitted depending on the selected interval.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "OPC" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. Data acquisition starts once you have restarted the Energy Manager kernel on the acquisition component.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

See also

Create OPC DA, OPC HDA, OPC UA channel (Page 636)

Data acquisition via the "OPC UA" interface

Overview

"OPC Unified Architecture" is a specification for the transmission of process values and archive data. Using the OPC UA interface, you read data from a server that supports the "OPC UA" interface.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via the datapoint name in the OPC server.

Security policy

The OPC UA server uses the TCP/IP protocol for data exchange. For authorization, certificates are exchanged between server and client. In addition, you can encrypt the data traffic.

Note

When configuring the OPC UA server, activate at least one "Security policy" and its associated "Security mode". Otherwise the OPC UA server and the clients will communicate insecurely.

During the first access to an encrypted OPC UA server instance a certificate for encrypting the data is created. This certificate has to be accepted individually in the respective server product.

- Siemens Simatic NET V15: By means of the "Siemens Communication Settings" software in the "OPC UA certificates" menu command.
- Siemens WinCC TIA V15: Moving of the new certificates from the path "C:\Program Files (x86)\SIEMENS\Automation\SCADA-RT_V11\WinCC\opc\UAServer\PKI\CA\rejected\certs" to "'C:\Program Files (x86)\SIEMENS\Automation\SCADA-RT_V11\WinCC\opc\UAServer\PKI\CA\certs"

To use the OPC UA server from the S7-1500 controller, activate the function "Permit access with PUT/GET communication from remote partner (PLC, HMI, OPC, ...)" in the TIA Portal under "Properties > Protection > Connection mechanisms".

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- An OPC UA server is installed on the acquisition component.
- The Discovery server for OPC UA is enabled as a windows service, and the URL is known.
- Good knowledge of addressing and communication with OPC UA, and of authorization using security certificates.
- The certificate exchange is provided for at the time that the interface is configured.

Starting the wizard

- 1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.
 - The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.
- 2. Click on the "OPC UA" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Acq_OPC-UA".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Configure the connection

- 1. Enter a meaningful group name for the IO buffer, for example, "IO_OPC-UA".
- 2. Under the "Search address", enter the URL of the OPC UA Discovery Server.
- 3. Click "Discover".

All available OPC UA servers will be listed under "Import datapoints".

4. Select the desired OPC UA server and click on "Connect".

If the OPC UA server demands authorization, the "Server configuration" dialog will be opened.

- Depending on the OPC UA server, either enter "User name / Password" or the "Token".
- 5. If you have selected "OPC UA HDA access", select the aggregation type if necessary.

The acquired values are compressed accordingly, for example, the arithmetic mean of the reading interval is formed.

Define the datapoints

The "Browse access points" dialog indicates the datapoints that are available on the OPC UA server.

• Activate the required datapoints.

The datapoint names are made up of the "Group name" and the "Datapoint".

Define the data transmission

- 1. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values.
- 2. If you have enabled "OPC UA HDA", you can change the start of the acquisition period. For this, select "Overwrite TSP settings".

Archive data from the defined start of the acquisition period until the interface was started are transmitted in their entirety. Current values since starting the interface will be cyclically transmitted depending on the selected interval.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "OPC UA" interface is created below the "Hardware" object. Data acquisition starts once you have restarted the Energy Manager kernel on the acquisition component.

You can change the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard or add additional connections.

Note

If you change the server address for an existing OPC UA server connection and you want to continue to acquire the measurement data, you have to restart the kernel.

See also

Create OPC DA, OPC HDA, OPC UA channel (Page 636)

Data acquisition via the "Machines" interface

Requirement

• The Consumer functionality is licensed separately.

Overview

With the "Machines" interface, the option exists to establish communication with consumers (e.g. CNC machines) via TCP/IP. During configuration of the interface, a communication port must be entered (specified by the respective consumers) on which the driver listens and the interface receives data.

A previously created consumer template is used to automatically create a structure consisting of consumers, associated datapoints (defined as inputs in the consumer template), Mevas (defined as outputs in the consumer template) and optional Widget Dashboards and reports.

The consumers actively send data in a report that is specified by the Energy Manager. The consumers register in Energy Manager using a frame consisting of the name and type of the consumer. During import in the acquisition wizard, the consumers are displayed grouped by consumer type. If no type is sent, the consumer is assigned to the "undefined" group.

If the TCP/IP connection is disconnected or if no data is received for more than two minutes, a consumer must register again using a specified protocol so that data will be received in Energy Manager again.

If necessary, consumers can also be created manually without the Wizard. Additional information on this is available in the section "Consumers and structured view (Page 265)"

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via a unique identifier. The identifier is created in the communication block of EE monitor.

Procedure

The interface is created in two steps:

Creation of the interface:

1. First, in the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

- 2. Click the "Machines" entry.
- 3. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Machine_Interface".
- 4. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.

- 5. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.
- 6. Enter the Listener IP port on which the data will be received. The IP Port is specified by the consumers. Click "Finish". The structure of the interface with process, driver source and driver is created below the hardware.

Import and creation of consumers:

- 1. In the project tree, click on the newly created "Process" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.
- 2. The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens again. Click on the channel name and then click "New".

۶	Acquisition Wizard
Channel overview for this unit:	
a_erf_Machine_Interface	New

3. All registered consumers are listed by type. Click the type whose consumers you want to import or assign a template to.

	^	Collapse all
MA3000		
MA3001		Expand
MA3002		
MA3003		Expand all
MA3004		
MA3005		Template

4. Click "Template".

Now, assign the following data to the consumers:

- Template. Information on creation of consumer templates is available in the section "Load templates (Page 376)".
- Location. Information on creation of a location is available in the section "Inserting the location or country (Page 331)".
- Organization unit. Information on creation of an organization unit is available in the section "Inserting an organizational unit (Page 337)".

Consumers cannot be created with assignment to a consumer template.

If no location or no organization unit is assigned, these consumers cannot be created below the respective location or organization unit during automatic creation of the structure.

Select	type of machine group			
	Gas_EL			•
Select	t location and balancing group			
	Germany	•	Product_A	•

The template is assigned to all consumers of the selected type.

Typ3 (Gas EL) (Germany) (Product A)	^	Collapse all
V MA3000		
MA3001		Expand
MA3002		
		Expand all
		Template
. MA3007		

5. In the next step, select the "Data transmission interval". The interval specifies the cycle in which data is sent by the machine and received in Energy Manager. This also automatically sets the cycle time for the datapoint. Interval values below 15 minutes are automatically compressed to 15 minute values unless the "Compression" setting of the datapoint specifies that acquisition values are also to be archived as acquisition values. Additional information on automatic compression is available in the user manual.



6. A separate IO buffer is created for each consumer and can be customized here if necessary. Using "Edit" you can change the name of the IO buffer and the status (active, not active) and cycle time. Note, however, that the data transmission interval and the cycle time of the IO buffer should be consistent. The "Kernel" option in the IO buffer must be selected during creation of the consumer structure or consumer datapoints.

Click "Finish".

Channel overview for this unit:				
a_erf_Machine_Interface	^	New	Edit	Delete
io_MA3000				
io_MA3001				
io_MA3002				
io MA3003				
▶ io MA3004				
▶ io_MA3005				

Result

The acquisition structure, together with the datapoints defined as inputs in the consumer template, is created automatically below the IO buffer.

The name of datapoints consists of the datapoint prefix "d_", and the name of the consumer and name of the input (datapoint).



In addition, the consumers are created below the defined location, including the inputs (datapoints) and outputs (Mevas) specified by the consumer template. If Widget Dashboards or reports were configured in the consumer template, these are also created in the corresponding folders.



If an organization unit was selected during assignment of the consumer template, the corresponding structure is also created below this organization unit.



Data acquisition via the "Energy Suite Import" interface

Overview

Data acquisition via the interface "Energy Suite Import" corresponds to the interface "OPC-UA". Therefore, import the values in accordance with Data acquisition via the "OPC UA" interface (Page 118). The "Energy Suite Import" interface offers the advantage that additional information from the WinCC archive of the Energy Suite is transferred to Energy Manager, so that this information no longer has to be configured manually in the datapoints. The following information is automatically applied from the field "Runtime Comment":

- Type of the datapoint:
 - Counter Value
 - Energy value
 - Power value
- Unit:
 - GW, m³, m³/h, hl/h, l/h, Nm³/h, kg, T, kg/h, t/h, Pcs, pcs/h, Wh, kWh, MWh, GWh, kW, MW.
- Cycle time in seconds
- End of counter range (overflow value)

If there are no entries in the "Runtime Comment" field, the datapoints are filled with the Energy Manager PRO Standard entries (Others, kWh, 15 min).

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via the datapoint name in the OPC server.

Procedure

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

- 2. Click the "Energy Suite Import" entry.
- 3. Enter a meaningful "Group name" for the IO buffer, for example, "IO_Energy_Suite".
- 4. Enter the URL of the WinCC Professional OPC UA server under "Discover URL".
- 5. Click "Browse".

All available OPC UA end points are listed under "Import Datapoints".

6. Select the desired OPC UA end point and click on "Connect".

If the server demands authorization, the "Server configuration" dialog is opened.

- Depending on the server, either enter "User name / Password" or the "Token".

- 7. The "Browse Address Space" dialog indicates the datapoints that are available on the WinCC server.
 - Activate the required datapoints.

The additional information is included in the string of the "Datapoint identifier" in the details for the datapoint and subsequently taken from it during the creation of the datapoint.

The string from the WinCC Runtime Comment field consists of a header "EnS:" as well as a sequence of four digits. The sequence of the four digits is separated by a semicolon. This also applies to values that do not exist, for example: "EnS: 1;1179;900;;"

The first digit specifies the type of the datapoint: 0 =Counter Value, 1 =Energy value, 2 = Power value.

The second digit specifies the corresponding unit of the datapoint, for example "1179", which corresponds to kWh.

The third digit specifies the cycle time in seconds, for example "900", which corresponds to 15 minutes.

The fourth digit specifies the end of counter range for the counter value, for example "999999.9".

8. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values. The smallest cycle time occurring in the Energy Suite project is applied automatically as the cycle time. This can be changed if necessary.

The acquisition structure for the "Energy Suite Import" interface is created below the hardware.

Updating values

If values in the Energy Suite have changed, you can update the datapoints in Energy Manager.

- 1. Open the wizard by right-clicking the IO buffer.
- 2. There is a button in the top right-hand corner of the dialog with which information can be loaded again. Information about new datapoints or ones no longer existing as well as all the additional information (datapoint type, unit, cycle time, end of counter range) are loaded.
 - Datapoints that already exist in the Energy Suite and in Energy Manager are displayed with a gray background and the check box is activated. The datapoint cannot be deactivated at this point.
 - Datapoints that no longer exist in the Energy Suite have a gray background and the check box is not selected. These data points are set automatically to not active in Energy Manager but not deleted during updating.
 - Datapoints that are added in the Energy Suite do not have a gray background, can be selected and be imported to the Energy Manager as already described above.

See also

Creating an Energy Suite channel (Page 641)

Data acquisition via the "Simulation" interface

Overview

You use the "Simulation" interface to simulate data acquisition.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.

Starting the wizard

1. In the project tree of the Client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click the "Simulation" entry.

Define the channel name

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name, for example, "Acq_Simulation".
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data are acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data are not acquired.

Select the device configuration

1. Activate "Create user-defined configuration".

Configure the connection

1. Enter a meaningful channel name for the IO buffer under "Group name", for example, "IO_Simulation".

Define the data transmission

1. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values.

Result

The acquisition structure for the "Simulation" interface is created below the "Hardware" object.

You can edit the acquisition structure at any time with the wizard.

Data acquisition via the "Desigo CC" interface

Use the interface "Desigo CC" to read out the data saved on a Desigo CC system via the Desigo CC web service. Energy Manager supports Desigo CC V3.0.

The link between the measured values of a process tag and the associated datapoint in the Energy Manager is made via the datapoint name in Desigo CC.

Requirements

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager Server.
- The Desigo web server is online and can be accessed from the acquisition component.

Start wizard

1. In the project tree of the client, select the "Hardware" object and select the "Wizard ..." command from the shortcut menu.

The "Acquisition Wizard" dialog opens.

2. Click the "Desigo CC" entry.

Define the channel name

Enter name for communication channel: Desigo				
Use default location from acquisition hardware				
◯ Select location for this specific channel				
	Cormony			
	Germany			
Initial State:	NOT ACTIVE			

- 1. Enter a meaningful channel name
- 2. Select the country whose time zone is used for the time stamp of the acquired values.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition on the acquisition component:
 - ACTIVE: Data is being acquired.
 - NOT ACTIVE: Data is not being acquired.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Defining the Desigo CC name

Group name:	Desigo	
Desigo server:	https://IP_Address:Port/EntryPoint	Ping service
Username:	Username	
Password:	•••••	

- 1. Enter an unassigned group name in the text box "Group name".
- 2. Enter the URL of the Desigo web server in the text box "Desigo Server".

You can check the connection with the "Ping Service" button.

- 3. Enter your access data in the text boxes "User name" and "Password".
- 4. Click the "System IDs" button. Select the system ID with the required data points from the "System Id" drop-down list.
- 5. Click the "Browse Series" button.

Desigo CC Trend Series Browser

1. Select at least one data point with the mouse pointer. You can use the <CTRL> or <SHIFT> keys to select several data points. Click the "OK" button.

Creating data points

Access per address	Datapoint	Edit
	d_System1:TLO_BACnetNetwork_Hardware_System1'BA_B'APIt'Ahu'SpC	Presen
	d_System1:TLO_BACnetNetwork_Hardware_System1'BA_B'APIt'Ahu'SpH	_Presen
	d_System1:GmsDevice_1_2098229_83886089	
< >		
Select all Deselect all St	tep 3 out of 5 < Back Next >	Cancel

All selected data points are listed in the left-hand area.

1. Select all data points for data acquisition.

The selected data points are displayed in the right-hand area together with an "Edit" button for each one.

2. To edit a selected data point, click the "Edit" button of the corresponding data point.

The "Data point" dialog b	ox opens.	
B.Data datapoint name		
netNetwork_Hardware_System1	BA_BAPItAhuS	pC_Present_Value
Datapoint identifier		
System1:GmsDevice_1_209822	27_8388663.Pr	esent_Value:_offlin
	ОК	Cancel

- 3. To edit the data point name, enter the desired name in the "Data point name" text box.
- 4. To edit the data point identifier, enter the desired identifier in the "Data point address" text box.
- 5. Click the "OK" button.

Select transmission interval

Data transmission interval:	15 min 💌	
Retrieve data since:	11/8/2018 10:51:25 AM	
	 Override TSP settings 	

1. Click the "Continue" button.

The dialog box "Select transfer interval" is opened.

- 2. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values from the "Define data transmission interval" drop-down list.
- 3. To import the data from a particular time, activate the check box "Overwrite TSP settings". Enter the required time in the "Retrieve data since" text box.

Overview of channels

1. To create a new group for the channel, click on the "New" button.

For this group, repeat all steps from the section Define Desigo CC name.

- 2. To edit a group, select the corresponding group and click on the "Edit" button.
- 3. To delete a group, select the corresponding group and click on the "Delete" button.

Result

The Desigo CC channel is created with all configured groups and data points.

See also

Creating a Desigo CC channel (Page 650)

2.2.3.5 Starting the kernel service

Overview

The kernel service acquires measured values cyclically and transmits them to the application server. The kernel service is automatically installed with the acquisition component of Energy Manager.

Note

If you do not configure the kernel service properly, it prevents the automatic transfer of measured values to the application server.

You must only restart the kernel service if you modify the configuration of the interface. If you add more data points or archives (WinCC), restarting the kernel service is not necessary.

Requirement

- The "Hardware" object has been created.
- Interfaces are configured.

Procedure

- Double-click the "Hardware" object in the project tree of the Client. The "Hardware" dialog opens.
- 2. Click "Kernel".

The "Energy Manager Kernel Service Cockpit" is opened. The status of the kernel service is displayed:

🏶 B.Data	Kernel Service C	ockpit – 🗖	×
Hardware:	Win81V6		
 Active 	Start/Restart	Stop	1
		Close	

5	Active
	Stopped
	Undefined status

3. Click "Start/Restart".

Result

Data acquisition is started or continued via the interfaces configured on the acquisition component.

Alternative procedure

You can also restart the kernel service for an acquisition component from the Service Cockpit.

2.2.3.6 Datapoints

Creating data points

Overview

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

Creation and configuration of data points

Data points are operating data points which receive their values directly from an interface (database interface, drivers, etc.).

Requirement

All necessary objects have been configured: hardware, driver source, process, drivers, IO area, etc.

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.2 Configuration

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the data point is going to be created.
- Click the "Insert Measurement" button in the menu bar under "Acquisition > Datapoint". The "Datapoint" dialog opens.

	d_Temperature				
escription:					
nventory N#:			Ident. Tok	en:	
Process: a	_acq_Modbus		Active	Creation Date:	6/26/2018 1:53:34 PM
Init:	c		Log to DB	Valid at:	6/26/2018 1:53:34 PM
nput Unit:	l ec		Kernel	Valid until:	1/1/2500 12:00:00 AM
unction:	leasurement		Priority High	Last changed by:	
	leasurennen		Cloud relevar	it	
ype. P	rocessvalue				
ersionizing:	No	Replacement	: NO		Replace Invalid
Cycle Time:	15 min	- Calculation W	/indow:	15 Un	it: min
Cycle Time: Country:	15 min Germany	Calculation W	/indow:	15 Un	it: min
Sycle Time: Country:	15 min Germany	Calculation W Corrected uni	/indow:	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM	it: min
iycle Time: iountry: ype:	15 min Germany	Calculation W	/indow: til: 1/1/20	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM 🔽	it min
ycle Time: :ountry: ype: Generic	15 min Germany Name	Calculation W	/indow: til:1/1/20	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM 🔽 alue	it min
ycle Time: ountry: ype: Generic Datapoint	15 min Germany Name Name	Calculation W	/indow: iii:	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM 🔽 alue	it: min
ycle Time: ountry: ype: Generic Datapoint Constant	15 min Germany Name Name Description	Calculation W	/indow: iii: ☑ 1/1/20	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM 🔹 alue -	it: min
ype: Generic Datapoint Constant	15 min Germany Name Description Address	Calculation W	/indow: iii: ☑ 1/1/20 ↓ d	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM alue	it: min
Cycle Time: Country: Generic Datapoint Constant Derived	15 min Germany Name Description Address Time Stamp	Calculation W	/indow: ili: ☑ 1/1/20 d	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM alue	it: min
Sycle Time: Country: Generic Datapoint Constant Derived	15 min Germany Name Name Description Address Time Stamp Cycle Time	Calculation W	/indow: ili: ↓ 1/1/20 ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM alue - 5 min	it: min
ype: Generic Datapoint Constant Derived	15 min Germany Name Description Address Time Stamp Cycle Time Data Type	Calculation W	Vindow: til: 1/1/20 d 1 1 d	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM ■ alue - 5 min y_float	it: min
Country: Country: Generic Datapoint Constant Derived	15 min Germany Name Description Address Time Stamp Cycle Time Data Type	Calculation W	/indow: iii: ☑ 1/1/20 d. 1 1 d	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM ■ alue - 5 min y_float	it: min
Country: Country: Generic Datapoint Constant Derived	15 min Germany Name Description Address Time Stamp Cycle Time Data Type	Calculation W	/indow: ili: ↓ 1/1/20 d 1 1 d	15 Un 16 12:00:00 AM alue 5 min y_float	it: min

- Fill out or parameterize the fields as follows:
 - Enter the "Name" of the measurement (data point type). Observe the naming conventions.
 - You can describe the measurement in more detail in the "Description" field.
 - You can enter a KKS or FIS number, or a user-specific text in the "Inventory No." field. This text will be output, for example, if the "KKS Text" mode is selected for a report.
 - Under "Ident. Token" you may enter an additional identifier. However, this ID is used only by a special import/export interface.
 - Select the "Process" from which the data is acquired.
 - Select the desired "Unit".
 - Select the "Input Unit" check box to use a unit for the manual input of matrix data.

You may define the "kW" unit and the "MW" input unit. The value 500,000 W is then stored in the database with the notation "500 kW". The value is displayed or entered in the format 0.5 MW for manual matrix input.

- Select "Measurement" at the function.
- The type of the measured values is to be defined at "Type" in order to ensure correct calculation of the statistical values Minimum, Maximum, Average or Work and Power.
- "Active" must be if the measurement is to be used (acquired) in the system.
- The "Log to DB" check box is only set if the acquired values are transferred directly to the database without having been calculated.
- "Kernel" must be activated if the acquisition component of this measurement can or is to be used.
- "Priority High": The value of a datapoint cannot be modified through a matrix.
- "Cloud relevant": If you want to export the measured values of the data point to MindSphere, select the "Cloud relevant" check box. You configure further settings for MindSphere in Energy Manager PRO Web.
- The date fields "Creation Date" and "Valid at" are filled with the current date when the datapoint is created. The "Valid until" field is set to the default date 01/01/2500.
 Further functionalities are currently not associated with these fields.
- The user who most recently modified the measurement configuration is entered automatically in the "Last changed by" field.
- Under "Versioning" you can select whether the data of this measurement are entered versioned or not versioned.
- In the "Cycle Time" field, enter the period during which the values will be available cyclically. For data points, this period is copied automatically from the cycle time entry specified the detail settings.
- Under "Country", select the country whose time zone you want to use for the acquisition.
- The replacement value is set to "NO" by default. The entries in the field "Replacement" and "Corrected until" are required for replacement value strategies.

- "Calculation Window and Unit": If "Historical value" is selected as the replacement value, you can define here how far back the calculation is to be effected.
- The "Corrected until" date field is set automatically by a job after the measurement has been revised. The default is set to 01/01/2007.
- Data point types:
 - "Generic"
 - "Datapoint"
 - "Constant"
 - "Derived"

After having selected the "Datapoint" type, click "Details" to open the dialog for detailed configuration of the datapoint:

-	Datapoint – 🗖 🗙
Name:	d_temperature
Description:	
Address:	Boiler_01.Tag_0001 Browse OPC Server
Driver Source:	trqz_OPC_Matrikon IO Buffer: io_OPC
Cycletime:	1 s Datatype: dty_float
Comment	^
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	OK Cancel

"Name" and "Description" (corresponds to the short and long texts) are copied from the main dialog and displayed but cannot be edited in this dialog.

Depending on the respective driver, the exact designation with which the values and the associated datapoint are linked must be entered as the "Address".

Select the driver that acquires the data from the "Driver Source" field.

In the "Cycle time" field, specify the interval for polling the values of this data point.

You may enter a user-specific text in the "Comment" field.

In the "IO Buffer" field, you can select all of the IO buffers that have been configured for the driver source selected (e.g. a separate IO buffer for each scan cycle).

In the "Data type" field, you can select one of the types dty_float, dty_integer, dty_boolean, or dty_string (available only for OPC).

The "Browse OPC Server..." button is activated if an OPC driver has been selected in "Driver Source". You can browse all OPC servers and their tags that are locally available on the

acquisition computer running the acquisition kernel and enter these in the "Address" field with double-click.

Note

If you select a cycle time that does not match a compression level, only the values which were acquired while this cycle time was configured are displayed.

If a cycle time is then selected which matches a compression level, a gap in the values arises. The gap corresponds to the data which was acquired with the cycle time that did not correspond to a compression level.

For this reason, configure a compression level before you select the corresponding cycle time.

You configure compression levels under "Compression".

Note

An IO buffer should always contain data points with the same cycle time. Otherwise, data points with a higher cycle time will always be included in the scan cycle.

1. Confirm your entries with "OK". The configuration dialog is closed. The object is now generated at the corresponding tree position.

⊡ Data Points d_temperature

See also

Creating data points (Page 659) Location (Page 330)

Creating generic data point

Overview

A generic data point does not receive its value directly from a particular interface, but from a different source. Such different sources could be ODBC connectors, matrices, or loops.

Requirement

- All software components are installed.
- All necessary objects have been configured, e.g. the hardware, driver source, process, drivers, or the IO area.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the data point is to be created.
- Click the "Insert Measurement" button in the menu bar under "Acquisition > Data Point". The "Data Point" dialog opens.

·		Measurement	- e_Gas_Total		– – ×
Name:	e_Gas_Total				
Description:	Gas Total				^
					×
Inventory N#:	NO_KKS		Ident. Token:		
Process: a_	_acq_simulation	•	Active	Creation Date:	28.04.2009 07:50:58
Unit: kV	٧h	•	Log to DB	Valid at:	28.04.2009 07:50:58
Input Unit: 🗌	kWh	-	Kernel	Valid until:	01.01.2500 00:00:00
Function: M	easurement	•	Priority High		
Versionizing:	No 💌	Replacement	NO		- Replace Invalids
Cycle Time:	1 month 🔹	Calculation Window	(1 Uni	t: 15 min 🔹
Country:	Germany 👻	Corrected until:	28.04.2009	00:00:00	
Type:					
Generic	Name		Value		
O Datapoint					
Derived					
	Detaile		DI		
	Detalls	Counter	Prausiplility		Expon
9				ОК	Cancel

- 3. Parameterize the fields.
 - Enter the "Name" for the measurement, taking naming conventions into account.
 - You may also enter a "description".
 - Enter the "Inventory N#".

The inventory number is a KKS or FIS number. The inventory number is output if you select the "KKS Text" mode for a report.

- Enter, if necessary, "Ident. Token" as additional identifier.

The "Ident. Token" is used only by a special import/export interface.

- You can select a "Process" that is not actively used for data acquisition, e.g. "a_erf_null", or "a_rech_PDS".
- Select the physical unit.

The unit may depend on the processing routine (loop), or on the lower-level data type.

- Select the "Input Unit" check box and select the unit.

The "Input Unit" is used for the manual input of matrix data.

Example: You selected the "kW" unit and defined the "MW" input unit. The value 500,000 W is stored in the database with the notation "500 kW". You can enter the value "0.5 MW" manually in the matrix.

- Select "Measurement" from the "Function" field.
- The type of the measured values is to be defined at "Type" in order to ensure correct calculation of the statistical values Minimum, Maximum, Average or Work and Power.
- Enable or disable versioning of the data of this measurement using the "Versioning" drop-down list box.
- Enter the "Cycle Time" for cyclic availability of the values.
- Under "Country", select the country whose time zone you want to use for the acquisition.
- Select the "Active" check box if the measurement is used in the system (e.g. loops).
- Select the "Log to DB" check box to write the values returned from a loop to a database.
- Select the "Kernel" check box to enable the use of the acquisition component of this measurement.
- Select the "Priority High" check box to enable write protection for manual matrix input.
- The substitute value" is set to "NO" by default. The entries in the field "Replacement" and "Corrected until" are required for replacement value strategies.
- "Calculation Window and Unit": If "Historical value" is selected as the substitute value, you can define here how far back the calculation is to be effected.
- Set the "Generic" radio button in the "Type" area.
- 4. Confirm your entries with "OK".

Result

The configuration dialog is closed. The server object is now generated at the corresponding tree position.

🗗 📴 Data Points 🛄 🛃 e_Gas_Total

The current date is set in "Creation Date", "Valid from", and "Valid until" date fields when you create a new measurement. Further functionalities are currently not associated with these fields.

Once the measurement has been corrected, the date and time are set automatically in the "Corrected until" field.

The user name of a user who changes the configuration of the measurement is entered in the "Last changed by" field.

You successfully configured the generic point and it is now ready for use.

See also

Location (Page 330)

Creating constants

Overview

A constant represents a special type of data point that is used as default for data acquisition or for generation of a substitute value. For example, if the averaging period of loops is set by means of a constant, a change to this constant will instantaneously change the averaging period of all loops concerned. Otherwise, you would have to parameterize each loop individually. A replacement value can be generated for each data point and may be used to substitute missing values, provided the "Substitute value" strategy has been selected.

Requirement

All software components are installed.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the constant is going to be created.
- Click the "Insert Measurement" button in the menu bar under "Acquisition > Data Point". The "Data Point" dialog opens.

		Measure	ement - k_ 60		- 🗆 ×
Name:	k_60				
Description:					^
Inventory N#:	NO KKS		Ident. Token:		×
				Our officer Distant	
Process: a_	_acq_simulation	•	Active	Creation Date:	25.02.2014 16:15:54
Unit: -		•	Log to DB	Valid at:	25.02.2014 16:15:54
Input Unit:		Ţ		Valid until:	01.01.2500 00:00:00
Function: M	easurement	•	Priority High	Last changed by:	Admin
Versionizing:	No 👻	Replacement	NO		 Replace Invalids
Cycle Time:	15 min 🔹	Calculation Wind	ow.	1 Unit	: 1h 🔹
Country:	Germany 🔹	Corrected until:	✓ 01.01.20	12 00:00:00 💽	
Type:					
Generic	Name		Value		
ODatapoint	Constant		60,00		
Constant					
Operived					
	Details	Counter	Plausibility	Compression	Export
9				ок	Cancel

- 3. Fill out or parameterize the fields as follows:
 - Enter the "Name" for the measurement (data type constant). Observe the naming conventions.
 - You can enter additional information on the measurement in the Description field.
 - In the "Inventory no." field, you can enter a KKS or FIS number or a user-specific text that is not intended for further use in constants.
 - In the "Process" field, select the process that is parameterized on the PC that has to work with this constant.
 - Select the physical unit.
 - The user who most recently modified the measurement configuration is entered automatically in the "Last changed by" field.
 - The "Corrected until" date field is irrelevant for constants.
 - The "Type" field does not have any effect at the constants.
 - The "Versioning" field is irrelevant for constants. Therefore, select "NO".
 - The cycle time, too, is irrelevant and can be set to one second.
 - Under "Country", select the country whose time zone you want to use for the acquisition.
 - Select the "Active" check box to enable the constant for use in the system.
 - Do not select the "Log to DB" check box, as the value is only read from the database but not written.
 - Select the "Kernel" check box to enable the use of this constant by the acquisition component.
 - The current date is set in "Creation Date", "Valid from", and "Valid until" date fields when you recreate the measurement. Further functionalities are currently not associated with these fields.
 - Under "Ident. Token" you may enter an additional identifier.
 - Select "Measurement" from the "Function" drop-down list box.
 - Keep the "NO" entry in the "Substitute value" field, as this function cannot be used for constants. Similarly the function "Calculation Window" and "Unit".
 - Select the "Constant" radio button in the "Type:" area.
 - After having selected the "Constant" type, click "Details..." to open the dialog for detailed configuration of the constant:



- Enter the constant value.

When using the constant as substitute value for the substitute value strategy, briefly change to the "Constant" type, enter the substitute value and then restore the previous type setting.

4. Confirm your entries with "OK". The configuration dialog is closed. The server object is now generated at the corresponding tree position.

⊡-- <mark>⊡</mark> Constants ---- ⊷ k_60

Result

You successfully configured the constant and it is now ready for use.

See also

Location (Page 330)

Creating derived data points

Overview

Derived data points represent operating data points that are used to write MEVA results to the database. This means instead of being provided by a sublevel control system, the values are calculated directly in Energy Manager. Once calculated, the values are written back to the database again as separate data stream.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the data point is to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert Measurement" button in the menu bar under "Acquisition > Data Point".

The "Data Point" dialog opens.

•••	Me	asurement - a_Pla	nt_A_proz_d	eviation	_ □	×
Name:	a_Plant_A_proz_deviation					
Description:						
Inventory N#:	NO_KKS		ldent. Token:			
Process: a_	_acq_simulation		Active	Creation Date:	21.08.2009 11:39:19	
Unit: KM	Vh	•	Log to DB	Valid at:	21.08.2009 11:39:19	-
Input Unit:	k///h	-	Kernel	Valid until:	01.01.2500 00:00:00	ī
Function: Me	easurement		Priority High			
Versionizing:	No 💌	Replacement	NO		💂 🗌 Replace Invali	ds
Cycle Time:	15 min 🔹	Calculation Window.		1 Unit:	15 min	•
Country:	Germany 🔹	Corrected until:	01.01.200	7 00:00:00		
T						
Generic	Name		Value			
	Start		21.08.1	2009 00:00:00		
Constant	Comp Level		Entry v	alues		
Derived	End		21.08.3	2009 00:00:00		_
Openwed	Computed until		21.08.3	2009 00:00:00		
	Priority		Norma	il		
	Categorization		real va	lue		
	Auto calculation		False			
	Current Model		True			
	Offset		0			
	Offset Unit		s			
	Details	Counter	Plausibility	Compression	Export	
9				ок	Cancel	

3. Enter the general information on the data point.

Do not activate the "Kernel" option.
4. Activate the "Derived" datapoint type and click "Details".

The "Derived Measurement" dialog opens.

- Derived	d Measurement	-		×
From:	21.08.2009 00:00:00	-		
To:	21.08.2009 00:00:00	-		
Calculated until:	21.08.2009 00:00:00	-		
Categorization:	real value			•
Priority:	Normal			-
	Auto Calculation			
Comp Level:	Entry values			•
Offset:	0			
Offset Unit:	[s] second			•
	ок	Ca	incel	

- 5. Configure the derived data point as follows:
 - Under "From" and "To", enter a calculation time range.

The "To" time can be in the future.

- The "Calculated until" field shows the time up to which the derived data point is already calculated.
- If you select the option "Future values" under "Categorization", the current compression interval of the data point is recalculated for every value.
- If you select "real value" under "Categorization", the current compression interval of the data point is calculated after all values are acquired.
- Activate "Automatic recalculation" to recalculate the derived data point if new or update values are available.
- Select a compression level.

The selected compression level is transferred to the configured measuring variable. This measuring variable calculates based on the values of the selected compression level.

 In the "Offset" entry field, enter the value of the duration with which the start of the daily interval deviates from midnight.

The daily values are calculated taking this deviation into consideration. If an Offset of 6 hours is configured, for example, the daily values from 6 am to 6 am are calculated.

- Click "OK".
- 6. Click "OK" again.
 - The derived data point is now generated at the corresponding project tree position.

7. Copy the required measuring variable, which includes the calculation rule for the derived data point, under the derived data point.



Note

Automatic recalculation is discarded in the following situation:

If a derived data point is recalculated manually using the "Recalculate" function, only the actual data point and its directly nested data points are calculated. Any data points at lower levels or data points above the actual data point are not recalculated. This rule is not valid for data points transferred via interfaces.

8. Specify how to calculate the derived measurement.

The following options are available:

- Calculation in a report using a module
- Automatic calculation

To automatically calculate the derived measurement, activate the "Recalculate automatically" option in the details of the data point.

Note

To reduce the system utilization, deactivate the "Recalculate automatically." option for derived data points whose automatic calculation is not required anymore.

Result

The derived data point is configured.

See also

Location (Page 330)

Configuring versioning

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

• Configuration of data point versioning

All values are saved along with their date of creation if you are using versioning. By using this function, you limit the view to data on a specific date of creation.

Requirement

The data point has been properly created and configured.

Procedure

- 1. Select the datapoint to be versioned in the Client.
- 2. Select the "Edit" command from the shortcut menu of the data point.

The Data Point dialog opens.	The	"Data	Point"	dialog	opens.
------------------------------	-----	-------	--------	--------	--------

lame:	e_Gas_consumption			
Description:				-
nventory N#	NO_KKS	Ident. Token:		
Process:		- Active	Creation Date:	6/25/2018 11:19:58 AM
Init:	k/Vh	Log to DB	Valid at:	6/25/2018 11:19:58 AM
put Unit:	kwh	✓ Kernel	Valid until:	1/1/2500 12:00:00 AM
unction:	Measurement	Priority High	Last changed by:	ADMIN
ype:	Energy / Amount	Cloud relevant		
ərsionizing: ycle Time: ountry:	No Ves Germany	Replacement: NO Calculation Window:	1 Unit 3 2:00:00 AM 🔽	Replace Invalid
ype: Generic	Name	Valu	9	
Datapoint				
Constant				
) Derived				
	Details	Counter Plausibility	Compression	Export

3. Select the required versioning type under "Versioning".

– No

No versioning. The time set entered last is saved in the system.

terval: Interval from 1/1	/2018 12:00:00 AM to 2	2/1/2018 12:00:00 AM.					Count:	31
Timestamp	Minimum	Maximum Time	Last Value	A Status	Corr.Status	Entry Time	Version A	
/2/2018 12:00:00 AM	865	1/1/2018 1:00:00 AM	865	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/3/2018 12:00:00 AM	195	1/2/2018 4:00:00 PM	195	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/4/2018 12:00:00 AM	345	1/3/2018 7:00:00 AM	345	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/5/2018 12:00:00 AM	665	1/4/2018 1:00:00 PM	665	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/6/2018 12:00:00 AM	325	1/6/2018 12:00:00 AM	325	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/7/2018 12:00:00 AM	765	1/6/2018 11:00:00 PM	765	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/8/2018 12:00:00 AM	175	1/7/2018 7:00:00 PM	175	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/9/2018 12:00:00 AM	855	1/8/2018 5:00:00 PM	655	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
1/10/2018 12:00:00 AM	625	1/9/2018 2:00:00 PM	625	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		
/11/2018 12:00:00 AM	135	1/10/2018 4:00:00 AM	135	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:25 AM		1
/12/2018 12:00:00 AM	405	1/11/2018 6:00:00 PM	405	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:26 AM		
/13/2018 12:00:00 AM	545	1/12/2018 5:00:00 AM	545	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:26 AM		
1/14/2018 12:00:00 AM	235	1/13/2018 9:00:00 AM	235	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:26 AM		
/15/2018 12:00:00 AM	695	1/14/2018 11:00:00 PM	695	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:26 AM		
/16/2018 12:00:00 AM	455	1/16/2018 12:00:00 AM	455	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:26 AM		
/17/2018 12:00:00 AM	285	1/16/2018 8:00:00 AM	285	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:26 AM		
/18/2018 12:00:00 AM	485	1/17/2018 12:00:00 PM	485	STER_OK	valid	6/26/2018 8:57:26 AM		
MA 00:00:01 0 10:00 MM	726	1/10/2010 £-00-00 PM	725	CTED OV	biles	6/26/2010 0 67-28 AM		122

– Yes

All time sets are saved to the system, including the corresponding generation dates. The date and time of the system entry is displayed as version.

iterval: Interval from	12.08.2010 00:	00:01 to 13.0	8.2010 00:00	0:01					Count	177	
Time	Timezone	Value (Interval	Duration	MinMaxTime	A.Status	Corr.Status	Comp Level	Version		R
12.08.2010 00:15:00	summertime	3103	900	900	10.03.2014 10:	STER_OK	valid	Entry values	10.03.2014 10:13:34		
12.08.2010 00:15:00	summertime	3103	900	900	10.03.2014 10:	STER_OK	valid	Entry values	10.03.2014 10:13:29		
12.08.2010 00:15:00	summertime	3103	900	900	25.01.2012 11:	STER_OK	valid	Entry values	01.01.1980 00:00:00		
12.08.2010 00:15:00	summertime	3103	900	900	10.03.2014 10:	STER_OK	valid	Entry values	10.03.2014 10:13:38		
12.08.2010 00:15:00	summertime	3103	900	900	10.03.2014 10:	STER_OK	valid	Entry values	10.03.2014 10:22:26	*	0
	0.00			Dalata	Duting	T. Hore	I Presente and		Internet	-	

Result

You successfully configured versioning for the data point and the function is now ready for use.

When starting a report you can use the actual version or a maximum creation date. It is also possible to display all versions in the measured value editor.

Parameter Query Type: From 5/1/2018 12	Month					
Query Type: From 5/1/2018 12	Month					and the second se
From 5/1/2018 12	:00:00 AM					
5/1/2018 12	:00:00 AM		Te	,		
Advanced D		-	6/	1/2018 12	:00:00 AM	-
Advanced D						
Auvanceu P	arameter					¥
Version			M	odel		
Current	6/26/2018 1:4	6:48 PM	· ·	Current	6/26/2018 1:46:4	48 PM 🔸
Batches:						<u> </u>
						T
Country:	ermany					-
			Back		Next	Start
			Back		Next	Start
internal			Back		Next	Start
interval			Back		Next	Start
interval	h		Back		Next	Start
interval ype: Mont	h	То	Back		Next	Start
interval ype: Mont 18 12:00:00	h AM	To 2/1/2018	Back	×	Next	Start
: interval ype: Mont 18 12:00:00 n	h AM	To 2/1/2018	Back 12:00:00 A	SM -	Next	Start
interval ype: Mont 18 12:00:00 n ✓ Current	h AM 6/26/2018 4:33	To 2/1/2018 3:31 PM	Back		Next	Start
interval ype: Mont 18 12:00:00 n ✓ Current	h AM • 6/26/2018 4:33	To 2/1/2018 3:31 PM	Back 12:00:00 A	s. In the second se	Next	Start
interval ype: Mont 18 12:00:00 n ✓ Current	h AM 6/26/2018 4:33	To 2/1/2018 3:31 PM	Back 12:00:00 A	S.M.	Next	Start
interval iype: Mont 18 12:00:00 n ✓ Current	h AM 6/26/2018 4:33	To 2/1/2018 3:31 PM	Back	M. •	Next	Start
interval ype: Mont 18 12:00:00 n ✓ Current	h AM • 6/26/2018 4:33	To 2/1/2018 3:31 PM	Back	M.	Next	Start
interval ype: Mont 18 12:00:00 n ✓ Current	h AM 6/26/2018 4:33 y values	To 2/1/2018 3:31 PM	Back	×	Next	Start
	Version Version Current Batches: Country: G	Version Current 6/26/2018 1:4 Batches: Country: Germany	✓ Current 6/26/2018 1:46:48 PM Batches:	Version M Current 6/26/2018 1:46:48 PM Batches: Country: Germany	Version Model Current 6/26/2018 1:46:48 PM Current Batches: Country: Germany	Model Current 6/26/2018 1:46:48 PM Batches: Country: Germany



The following example shows up to four dates/times at which data sets have been entered in the system (01/01/2003, 04/01/2003, 07/01/2003, and 10/01/2003)



Configuring replacement value strategies

Overview

The following substitute value strategies are available for closing gaps in measured values or compressed values of a data point:

- You can use the measured values of a different data point to eliminate gaps in the measured value series of a data point (AKS = Anlagen-Kennzeichnungs-System Plant Identification System).
- You can use fixed values to eliminate gaps in the measured value series of a data point (replacement value).
- You can use past measured values of the same data point to eliminate gaps in the measured value series of a data point (historical value).
- You cannot eliminate gaps in the measured value series of a data point (NO).
- You can use the most recent valid measured value to eliminate a gap in the measured value series of a data point (LRU last recently used).
- You can use interpolation of the last value to eliminate gaps in the measured value series of a data point (interpolate).

Requirements

- The data point is configured.
- The measuring journal contains at least one entry for the data point.

Procedure

1. Click "Edit" in the shortcut menu of the selected data point.

The data point configuration dialog opens.

- 2. Proceed as follows to eliminate gaps in the measured value series of a data point using the measured values of a different data point:
 - Select "AKS" under "Replacement".
 - Insert the other data point underneath the data point that contains the gap.
- 3. Proceed as follows to eliminate a gap in the measured value series of a data point using a fixed value:
 - Select "Replacement value" under "Replacement".
 - Select "Constant" under "Type".
 - Enter the selected substitute value under "Details" and confirm the configuration with "OK".
 - Change back to the original type of the data point.

- 4. Proceed as follows to eliminate a gap in the measured value series of a data point using a past measurement value of the same data point:
 - Select "Historical value" under "Replacement".
 - Enter a count value under "Calculation window".
 - Select the time interval associated with the "calculation window" under "Unit".
- 5. Proceed as follows to eliminate a gap in the measured value series of a data point using the last valid value:
 - Select "LRU" under "Replacement".
- 6. Proceed as follows to eliminate a gap in the measured value series of a data point with the last valid value using linear interpolation:
 - Select "Interpolate" under "Replacement".
- 7. Select "NO" under "Replacement" if you do not want to eliminate the gap in the measurement series of the data point.
- 8. Activate "Replace invalid" to replace invalid measured values of the data point with the selected replacement value strategy.
- 9. Select the time as of which you want to replace the gap under "Corrected until".
- 10.Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully configured the substitute value strategy for the data point.

See also

Job queue (Page 398) User jobs of the job queue (Page 827) Configuring replacement value strategies (Page 669)

Configuring counters

Overview

Counters represent operating data points that save count values instead of consumption values as measurement values to the database. Configuration information for the counter is required to ensure that differentiations in these counter states are correctly evaluated.

Requirement

The data point has been properly created and configured.

Procedure

- 1. Select the data point for which a counter is to be created and then select the "Edit" command from the shortcut menu to open the data point configuration.
- 2. The "Measurement" configuration dialog opens. Select "Counter" to open the counter configuration.
- 3. Select the counter type (e.g. active energy) and a location (e.g. consumer 117a).

<u>-</u>					Co	ounter						×
Name:	e_A_E_V_117a											
Description:												
Location:	117a						Type:	Active energy				•
Dev. Nr.	Description	Installed	StartVal	Const	StartRa	EndRa	WamRa	Planned Change	EndVal	Comm	New	
1	1	10.03.2014 10:32:01	U	1	U	2223232323	U	01.01.2500 00:00:00	U		Edit	
											Delete	
												_
4												
										-	0d	_
									0		Cancel	

Note

The "Operating value" counter type may only be used for measured values which are acquired by the scanner functionality of the SIMATIC Energy Manager V1.0 app. The counter type is used for data points that record measured values instead of real count values to provide the device number that is necessary for identification.

- Counter Device \times Counter ID e_CounterData_1 Description 1 Counter type -Only count up Installation date 8/27/2020 12:32:05 PM Value at Installation 0 Constant 1 Range start 0 Reset is triggered Range end 0 Range Warning 0 Replacement 1/1/2500 12:00:00 AM Value at replacement 0 Comment Manufacturer Filter counter values Lower limit 0 Filter counter difference Lower limit 0 Upper limit 0
- 4. Click New to create a new counting device for which the following information is required:

- 5. In the "Counter number" text box, enter a unique number for this meter. If the counters are read with the Energy Manager V1.0 app and the barcode scanner, enter the barcode of the counter as the counter number.
- 6. Enter a unique description for this counter in the "Description" text box. The suggested description is the description of the data point and the counter number.
- 7. If you select "Only count up" from the "Counter type" drop-down list, all valid counter values are in ascending order. If a negative counter difference is calculated, the situation is treated as a counter overflow.
- 8. If you select "Count up and down", valid counter values may be greater or less than the previous value. This option is suitable for level measurements, for example.
- 9. In the "Installation Date" box, use the calendar to enter the time at which the counter was installed. This date is used as a reference for when counter values are valid.

10.In the "Start Value" text box, enter the value of the counter at the time installation.

11.Enter the counter constant in the "Constant" text box.

The default setting of the counter constant is "1". The counter difference is multiplied by this constant.

- 12.Enter the start of the counting range in the "Range start" text box.
- 13.Enter the end of the counting range in the "Range end" text box.
- 14. If you enable "Cyclic reset", the counter is reset to zero if a value is less than the previous value. In this case, the difference is calculated as follows: 0 + current counter state
- 15.In the "Value at replacement" text box, enter the value of the counter at the time of replication.
- 16.If you enable "Filtering", enter the value in the "Lower limit" text box. All count values from this value onwards are filtered. All count values less than or equal to this value are treated as invalid.

The limiting value is applied to the first compression stage.

17.If you enable "Counter difference", enter the value in the "Lower limit" text box. If the most recently calculated difference is less than this value, the current counter value is treated as invalid.

The limiting value is applied to the first compression stage.

18. If you activate "Counter difference", enter a value in the "Upper limit" text box. If the most recently calculated difference is greater than this value, the current counter value is treated as invalid.

The limiting value is applied to the first compression stage.

- 19. The following fields have no function in Energy Manager and are for information purposes:
 - Range warning
 - Replacement
 - Comment
 - Manufacturer

20.To create the counter, click "OK".

Result

The counter configuration of the data point has been successfully configured.

See also

Configuring counters (Page 664) Counter value filtering (Page 921)

Configuring the plausibility

Overview

Configure the datapoint limits that you want to use to monitor the limits of a measured value.

You can configure different datapoint limits in the "Plausibility" dialog:

•	Plausibility -	□ ×
Upper Limit Upper Limit Warning Lower Limit Warning	1000 900 100	Alerts v v v
Lower Limit	0 15 [min] minute	
Compare With Another Time Pe Reference Object	riod 0 1 month 💌	J
Upper Limit Lower Limit	950 Absolute -	
	ОК Са	ncel

- ① Upper limit, upper limit warning, lower limit warning and lower limit of a measured value
- Time window after which it is checked whether the measured value series of a datapoint has gaps.¹
- ③ Selection of criteria for datapoint comparison
- ④ Entry in a message list if configured limits are exceeded

¹ Example for datapoint with "15 min" cycle time: The values are tested by the system at the full minute, for example, at 02:30:00 p.m. and not at 02:30:05 p.m. The system checks whether at least one value exists in the measured value series of the datapoint for the last cycle time + the defined period in the "Gap" field (15 min + 15 min = 30 min), for example, from 02:00:00 p.m. to 02:30:00 p.m. If no value exists, a message is generated. In addition, the affected datapoint is listed under "GAP Detection" in the Service Cockpit.

If the cycle time of a datapoint is less than 1 minute, the number of values is also checked for completeness.

Example for datapoint with "10 s" cycle time: The values are tested by the system at the full minute, for example, at 02:30:00 p.m. and not at 02:30:05 p.m. The system checks whether at least one value exists in the measured value series of the datapoint for the last cycle time + the defined period in the "Gap" field (10 s + 1 min = 1:10 min), for example, from 02:28:50 p.m. to 02:30:00 p.m. In addition, the number of values is tested for completeness for the last minute, for example, from 02:27:50 p.m. to 02:28:50 p.m. *I* 6 values per minute at "10 s" cycle time.

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.2 Configuration

Applications

The limits of the measured values are evaluated for the following applications:

- The measured values are marked in red following limit violations in the Energy Manager PRO Mobile app and in the matrix in the Energy Manager PRO Client and in the Energy Manager PRO Web.
- Message lists
- Module type for "Plaus. check deviation reference datapoint" report
- Module type for "Plausibility check of gaps" reports
- Module type for "Plausibility check of MIN/MAX" reports
- At activated messages the high and low limits as well as the warning levels can be displayed in the Chart.

Requirement

The datapoint is configured.

Procedure

Note

Subsequent modification of limits

Changes to the limit definitions only affect newly acquired data. Existing data is not updated.

1. Click "Edit" in the shortcut menu of the datapoint.

The datapoint configuration dialog opens.

2. Click "Plausibility".

The "Plausibility" dialog opens.

- 3. Enter the required limits (upper limit, upper limit warning, lower limit warning, lower limit) for the measured value.
- 4. In order to identify gaps in the measured value series of a datapoint, select the time delay after which a check is to made to determine whether a measured value has been acquired for the datapoint.
- 5. To compare the datapoint with a different period, (same datapoint but different period),
 - select the "Another Time Period" option in the "Compare With" area and
 - define the period with which the current period is to be compared. For example, enter
 "1" and "1 month" to compare the current month with the prior month.
- 6. To compare the datapoint with a different datapoint,
 - select the "Reference Object" option in the "Compare With" area and
 - select a datapoint.

- 7. Enter the lower limit and upper limit. Select the type of limits as "Absolute" or "%".
 - The entered upper limit defines the amount by which the value may be exceeded (value + upper limit) before a message is generated.
 - The entered lower limit defines the amount by which the value may be fallen below (value upper limit) before a message is generated.
- 8. Select the "Alerts" check box to generate a message in a message list at a violation of the configured limits.
- 9. Click "OK".

Plausibility check and compression functionality

The following plausibility checks are available for entry values directly on the acquisition component:

- Upper limit
- Upper limit warning
- Lower limit warning
- Lower limit
- Gap

If a plausibility check is to take place and messages are to be generated, these must be activated in the datapoint with the "Plausibility" button.

The acquisition component then checks the entry values for plausibility and sends a message via email or generates an entry in the message list, provided that the message list is configured correctly.

The following plausibility checks in the "Compare With" area

- Another Time Period
- Reference Object
- Upper Limit
- Lower Limit

can only be checked if the entry values are available on the server. For this purpose, the "Entry values" option must be additionally selected for the datapoint in "Compression".

A detailed description of the additional functionality of the acquisition component is available in the SIMATIC Energy Manager - Acquisition system manual.

See also

Module overview (Page 758) Configuring the plausibility settings (Page 666) Message lists (Page 389) Manual acquisition with Energy Manager PRO Mobile (Page 925)

Configuring compression

Overview

The acquisition component automatically compresses the acquisition values with an acquisition cycle that is smaller than or equal to one day. Acquisition values with a larger acquisition cycle are stored without compression directly at the Energy Manager Server into the database.

The compression levels 1 minute, 15 minutes, 1 hour and 1 day are selected automatically when a data point is created (cycle time below 1 day), but can be deselected again, if necessary, using the "Compression" button. Acquisition values are compressed to the selected compression levels and saved in the database. This means that incoming 1-minute values, for example, are compressed to 15-minute values, 1-hour values and 1-day values, and the compressed values are saved in the database. Other compression levels can be selected additionally.

A detailed description of the additional functionality of the acquisition component is available in the SIMATIC Energy Manager - Acquisition system manual.

Procedure

- 1. If you want to create additional compression levels or delete existing compression levels, click "Edit" in the shortcut menu of the desired datapoint.
- 2. The data point configuration dialog opens.

Note

Ensure that the correct "Type" is selected when creating the datapoint. This is necessary for correct calculation of the statistical values.

Name:	e_Electricity	
Description:		
Inventory N#	NO_KKS	
Process:		
Unit:	KWh	•
Input Unit:	□ k/vh	
Function:	Measurement	
Туре:	Energy / Amount	
Versionizinc	Power / Flow Energy / Amount	
Cycle Time:	Counter value Process value	
Country:	Others	- Ooncoled al

- Select "Power / Flow" if power values (e.g. kW) or flow rate values (e.g. m³/h) will be acquired in the data point.
- Select "Energy / Amount" if energy values (e.g. kWh) or quantity values (e.g. m³/h) will be acquired in the data point.
- Select "Count Value" if increasing count values will be acquired in the datapoint.
- Select "Process Value" if process values (e.g. temperature, pressure) will be acquired in the data point.
- Select "Others" for all other values.
- 3. Click "Compression". You will see all automatically created compression levels. In the example below, all entry values (= 15-minute value) for a datapoint with a cycle time of 15 minutes are automatically compressed to 1-hour and 1-day values.

rchive Cycle	Base Cycle	Active	New
5 minutes value	Entry values		
Daily values	15 minutes value		Edit
Monthly values	Daily values		Delete

- 4. If you want to delete a compression level, select it and click "Delete".
- 5. If you want to create an additional compression level, click "New".

If you want to edit an existing compression level, click "Edit".

Archive Cycle	Weekly values	+
Base Cycle	Daily values	-
Comp. until	1/1/2018 1:52:45 PM	
	✓ Active	

- Specify the cycle to which compression is to occur (= Archive Cycle).
- Specify the values you want to compress (=Base Cycle). In the above example, the daily values are to be additionally compressed.
- Specify the time in the past up to which the values are also to be compressed.

If you edit an existing compression level, the time up to which the compression level is calculated is displayed in the "Compr. until" field. If you select an earlier time, the compression level is recalculated from this time.

 Select "Active" for the compression. As an alternative to deleting existing compression levels, you can also deactivate them here.

Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You successfully configured compression of the measured values of the data point.

See also

Options (Page 53) Job queue (Page 398) User jobs of the job queue (Page 827) Acquisition categories in Energy Manager (Page 173)

Configuring the export function

Overview

The export functionality is used to provide measured value sets in a specified format to other system. The result may be a file that contains the measured value sets, table entries, or viewing by means of View VW_EXPORT_VIEW.

Note

To use View VW_EXPORT_VIEW, you must be using your own Oracle version.

Along with the data point configuration, you also need a corresponding database job.

Requirement

The data point has been properly created and configured.

Procedure

- 1. Select the data point for which the export function is to be created and then select the "Edit" command from the shortcut menu to open the data point configuration.
- 2. The "Measurement" configuration dialog opens. Select "Export" to open the export configuration dialog.

<u>-</u>		Export		– 🗆 ×
d_A_E_V_117a				
Function	Function Descripti Filename	Ident. Token	Comment	New
				Edit
				Delete
	_	_	OK	Cancel
			UK	Cancel

3. Click "New" to create a new export function for which the following information is required:

~
\sim
\mathbf{v}
~
\mathbf{v}

4. The name and description are transferred from the data point and cannot be edited

Export function: Energy Manager PRO Standard, EDM Forecast, SAP PM VT historical 6h, SAP PM VVT historical 6h, VIEW

Identification token: Used for identification in the partner system

File name: Name of the output file

Comment: Any descriptive text

5. Click "OK" to generate the export function.

-	Export					– 🗆 ×
	d_A_E_V_117a					
	Function	Function Descripti				New
	b.data Standard	b.data Standard	A_E_V_117a	e_A_E_V_117a	ASCII-Export	
						Edit
						Delete
					_	
					ОК	Cancel

6. Add the "Job for ASCII export Energy Manager PRO Standard" to the job queue to enable execution of the configured export function.

It is not necessary to provide an active job for the VIEW export function, because as soon as a data point has been assigned to this export function, its data can be called by means of View vw_export_view.

Result

You successfully configured the export function(s) of the data point and these are now ready for use.

Measurements editor

Opening the measured value editor

Overview

You view existing measurement values in the measurement value editor. You can also change existing measurement values or enter new measurement values. You can export data from the measurement value editor or import data from ASCII files.

Procedure

- 1. Select the data point for which you want to request the measured data.
- 2. Select the "Edit measured values" command from the shortcut menu of the data point.

The dialog for defining the query period opens.

	Select interval						
Query Type:	Month						
From	To						
8/1/2016 12:0	0:00 AM 🔹 9/1/2016 12:00:00 AM 🗨						
Version All 🗹 Cur	Version All ✓ Current 8/23/2016 12:48:37 PM ▼						
Compression:	Compression: Daily values						
Daily values							
	Monthly values						
	a.						

- 3. Enter a start time in the "FROM" field.
- 4. Do not change the default "AdHoc" setting in the "Polling type" field if you want to enter an individual end time. Enter the end time in the "TO" field. Otherwise, the end time is set automatically in the "TO" field, depending on the selected "query type". The time range is rounded at the same time, depending on the query type.
- 5. If recorded data has been versioned, you can enter corresponding settings in the "Version" field.
 - If you keep the "Current" setting, the values of the current version will be displayed.
 - If you select "All", the values of all versions of the datapoint are displayed.
 - If you do not make a selection, you can access the previous versions with the "date time picker" selection dialog.
- 6. For "Compression", select a compression level in order to display compressed values.
- 7. Save your entries with "OK".

Result

The measured value editor opens. The upper part shows the name of the datapoint and the time zone of the country of the datapoint and the selected query type.

Datapoint: e_Electricity, Daily values, (UTC+01:00) Amsterdam, Berlin, Bern, Rome, Stockholm, Vienna Interval: Interval from 8/1/2016 12:00:00 AM to 9/1/2016 12:00:00 AM.

The measurement value editor shows the values of the compression level that you selected when defining the interval in the "Compression" field. For example, you can select the compression level "Daily values" for a datapoint with a cycle time of 15 minutes for the interval query and then see the compressed daily values in the "Sum" field in the measurement value editor. The order of the columns of the measurement value editor depends on the datapoint type. This type was previously set in the configuration of the datapoint. A distinction is made between the following data point types:

- Power / Flow
- Energy / Amount
- Count Value
- Process Value
- Others

A detailed description of the compression functionality of the acquisition component is available in the SIMATIC Energy Manager - Acquisition system manual.

Timestamp	Sum	Power/Flow	Average
6/2/2016 12:00:00 AM	21972800	915533.333333333337	228883.33333333334
6/3/2016 12:00:00 AM	21793600	908066.66666666663	227016.66666666666
6/4/2016 12:00:00 AM	21208200	883675	220918.75
6/5/2016 12:00:00 AM	21648400	902016.66666666666	225504.166666666666
6/6/2016 12:00:00 AM	21248400	885350	221337.5

Minimum	Minimum Time	Maximum	Maximum Time
120200	6/1/2016 5:30:00 AM	280200	6/1/2016 2:00:00 AM
120200	6/2/2016 4:45:00 AM	280200	6/2/2016 1:15:00 AM
120200	6/3/2016 2:00:00 AM	280200	6/3/2016 2:45:00 AM
5504.16666666666	6/4/2016 5:30:00 AM	280200	6/4/2016 2:00:00 AM

All values calculated automatically using the compression functionality of the acquisition are displayed:

- Actual value in the Sum field (= entry value, daily value, monthly value, depending on selection in "Compression" field).
- Average
- Power or flow value
- Minimum value in compressed time period and associated time stamp (in this example, 15-minute values were compressed to daily values)
- · Maximum value and associated time stamp

Last Value	A.Status	Corr.Status	Entry Time	Version
0	STER_OK	valid	8/23/2016 1:57:31 PM	
0	STER_OK	valid	8/23/2016 2:01:28 PM	
0	STER_OK	valid	8/23/2016 2:05:09 PM	
0	STER_OK	valid	8/23/2016 2:09:02 PM	

The following fields are also displayed:

- Version shows one of the following values:
 - No date No date is displayed in the current version of the measurement value.
 - A date Until this date, the measurement value is valid for older versions.
- Last Value shows the last value of the counter if counts are acquired in the data point.
- Acquisition Status
- Correction Status
- Entry Time shows the time of the entry in the database.

Click "Up" or "Down" to page the monitoring interval up or down by one step.

Select "Refresh" to reload the selected time range from the database.

Select the "Insert", "Edit", "Remove", or "Manual Input" buttons to insert, edit, or delete values. Click "Close" to exit the measured value editor.

Manipulating values

Overview

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

- Inserting, editing, and deleting values
- Manual input
- Data structure for measured values
- Acquisition status
- Correction status

Procedure

- 1. To delete one or several measured values, select these accordingly and then click "Delete".
- 2. To edit a measured value, select it accordingly and then click "Edit".

Μ	leasurement Value 🛛 – 🗖 🗙
Timestamp	6/2/2016 12:00:00 AM
Sum	21972800
MinMaxTime	✓ 8/23/2016 1:57:31 PM
A.Status	STER_OK
Corr.Status	valid
Comp.Level	Daily values 👻
Details Area	
Power/Flow	915533.3333333333
Average	228883.33333333334
Minimum	120200
Maximum	280200
	OK Cancel

3. The current entry is visible in the Details Area. Edit the selected values and click "OK".

The "Corr.Status" entry is toggled automatically to "valid with manual manipulation".

This result is displayed in orange color in all evaluations using this corrected value for calculations. This functionality allows you to clearly determine whether the result was modified by means of system input or manual manipulation.

You cannot change the value of the sum of the values of data points configured as counters.

4. Click "Manual input" if you want to supplement specific values.

The "Manual data input" dialog box opens.

L		Manual	l inserting data		×
New ma	nual data				
From:	6/1/2016 12:00:00 AM	To:	7/1/2016 12:00:00 AM		
Value:	220000	Timezone:	summertime		•
Interval:	1 d 💌	Compr.:	Daily values		•
_					
			OK	Cancel	

- 5. Supplement the data of the new value as follows:
 - Enter the selected period in the "FROM / TO" fields.
 - Enter the "Value".
 - Select the "Interval".
 - Enter the "Time Zone" and compression ("Compr.").
- 6. Click "OK".

Result

All values entered, edited, or deleted in this way will be logged in the Logging Editor. Each value in Energy Manager is saved with the following data.

- Time stamp
- Time zone (daylight saving time)
- Value
- Interval (in seconds).
- Duration (in seconds).
- MinMaxTime (entered only by few functions)
- Text (a data point configured for text input is entered in this field)
- Acquisition status (entered by the data acquisition function)
- Correction status (manual manipulation, adjustment jobs,..)
- Compression level (acquisition values; other compression levels are not generated until a compression is carried out.)
- Version date

You can find the possible acquisition status with a brief description in the section "Acquisition status of a value (Page 745)".

You can find the possible correction status with a brief description in the section "Correction status of a value (Page 747)".

Filtering in the measurement value editor

Filter options

Use the filter function for fast access to information. Click "Filter" in the measurement value editor to open the "Filter" dialog.

B.DA	Filter			Filter	- □	×
	Value (KWh)	•	•	20 ANE) 💌	
	Interval	• =	•	900	۲	
	Time	-	¥	10.03.2014 10:59:10 • -	•	
	Time	-	¥	10.03.2014 10:59:10		
				OK	Cancel	

Select the column from the first list. Select the operator from the second list. Additional entries are available in the third column, depending on the entry you selected in the first column. You may also logically link the filters by setting an "AND" or "OR" operation in the fourth column.

Click "OK" to activate the filters. The result is displayed in the measurement value editor. Uncheck the "Filter" check box to cancel filtering.

Exporting and importing process data

Overview

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

- 1. Exporting data
- 2. Editing data
- 3. Importing data

Requirement

• The measurement value editor is open.

Exporting data

- 1. Select the desired data in the measured value editor.
- 2. Click "Export".
 - The Save As... dialog opens.
- 3. Select a target folder and specify a file name. Click "Save".

The selected data is saved to a text file in Energy Manager standard format.

Note

When exporting data from Energy Manager, the export is marked with the version of Energy Manager. Export with the version is not taken into account in previous Energy Manager versions. An export or import of data is therefore only possible for identical Energy Manager versions.

Data export is logged in Energy Manager. A corresponding export object is generated in the "Import/Export" folder. The data point whose values were exported is inserted under the export object.



Note

The data of the entire display period is exported instead of only the selected data.

2.2 Configuration

Editing data

1. Double-click on the export object to edit it.

The export object will be opened in the corresponding application, e.g. Notepad or Microsoft Excel.

- 2. Change the desired data.
- 3. Save the file again in *.TXT or *.CSV format.

Microsoft Excel replaces the separator ";" with a tab character.

Importing data

- Click "Import" in the measurement value editor. The "Open" dialog opens.
- 2. Select the file in Energy Manager standard format.
- 3. Click "Open".
 - The data is now imported.

If the data point is configured for saving values with versioning: All values entered are assigned a new version. If you import the data of a different data point, the following message is output:

"Caution: MeasID inconsistent. Do you want to continue?"

Confirm this prompt with "Yes", or cancel the import with "No". This message prevents you from accidentally overwriting the data of an incorrect data point.

A plausibility check of the data is discarded if you run the import using the "Edit > Import measured values" command from the Energy Manager menu bar.

The "Update type" dialog is opened if the data point is configured so that the data is saved without versioning.

- 4. Select the option:
 - "INSERT": Inserts only values that are not yet available in the database.
 - "INSERT only new values": Inserts only values that are not yet available in the database.
 Use this option whenever possible when importing large data volumes.
 - "INSERT and UPDATE": inserts new values and overwrites existing ones.

Result

A message is displayed on successful completion of the import, for example, that 24 of 24 data records were imported. The exported and imported data are recorded in the Logging Viewer depending on the configured "Verbose" level.

Data import is logged in Energy Manager . A corresponding import object is generated in the "Import/Export" folder. The corresponding datapoint is inserted under the import object.

2.2.3.7 Acquisition categories in Energy Manager

Overview



In Energy Manager select a corresponding acquisition category for the acquired measured values of a measuring point.

The following table provides an overview of the available acquisition categories:

Acquisition cate- gory	Description
Power / Flow	 Use this category for acquired power values. Energy Manager automatically calculates the consumption value from the power value. The consumption values are then compressed using the summation function.
Energy / Amount	 Use this category for acquired consumption values. The consumption value may be the energy consumption directly, media consumption or the production quantity. Energy Manager automatically calculates the power value from the consumption value. The consumption values are then compressed using the summation function.
Counter value	 Use this category for acquired count values. Energy Manager automatically calculates the consumption value from the count value. The power value follows from the consumption value. The consumption values are then compressed using the summation function.
Process value	 Use this category for acquired process values, e.g. temperature. The acquired measured values remain unchanged and are compressed with the average value function.

The acquired measurement values and the consumption values calculated from them are saved in the same data point. You therefore only need one data point.

-

Example: category Count value

Time stamp	Acquired count value	With category Count value	With category Energy
06-16-2020 14:00	1000 kWh		
06-16-2020 14:15	1020 kWh	1020 kWh – 1000 kWh = 20 kWh	1020 kWh
06-16-2020 14:30	1050 kWh	1050 kWh – 1020 kWh = 30 kWh	1050 kWh
06-16-2020 14:45	1060 kWh	1060 kWh – 1050 kWh = 10 kWh	1060 kWh
Total		60 kWh	3130 kWh

The category Count value is the correct category. An incorrect category results in wrong compressed values.

Example category Power value

Time stamp	Acquired power value	With category Power value	With category Process value
06-16-2020 14:00	988 kW	988 kWh / 4 = 247 kWh	988 kW
06-16-2020 14:15	920 kW	920 kWh / 4 = 230 kWh	920 kW
06-16-2020 14:30	940 kW	940 kWh / 4 = 235 kWh	940 kW
06-16-2020 14:45	980 kW	980 kWh / 4 = 245 kWh	980 kW
Total		935 kWh	3828 kW / 4 = 957 kW

Both the categories are possible with the acquired power value. If the Energy Manager has to convert the power value into a consumption value, the category Power value should be used. If the Energy Manager has to calculate the average power, the category Process value should be used.

2.2.3.8 Compression of the acquired measured values

Compression of energy, power and count values

In Energy Manager acquired measured values of the categories energy, power and count value are compressed on the basis of the consumption value. The sum function is used for compression of the acquired measured values. By default, the 15-minute value, the daily and monthly value are calculated using the sum function.

In addition to the sum function, the maximum, minimum and average consumption of a compression level are also automatically calculated.



Compression of process values

In Energy Manager, acquired process values are compressed to the average of the process value. By default, the 15-minute value, the daily and monthly value are calculated using the average value function. In addition to the average, the maximum and minimum are automatically calculated for each compression level. If you want to calculate average power or the maximum and minimum power for each compression level, you can also use this category for power values.



2.2.3.9 Calculation of the compression levels

Compression basis

In Energy Manager there are two levels for the compression of acquired measured values. The first level comprises the selection of the correct compression function (sum or average value function). The second level comprises the database of the compression. With the second level, the following two database methods for compression are available:

- Previous compression level as database
- Acquired measured values of the data source as database

Previous compression level as database

Overview

The values of the compression level are calculated using the values of the previous compression level. The values of the compression level "daily values" are calculated, for example, by the summation of the 15-minute consumption values within a day. Monthly values are calculated accordingly on the basis of the daily values. As fewer values are used for calculating the next compression, this method offers an efficient performance of your PC.



Acquired measured values as database

Overview

The values of each compression level are calculated on the basis of the acquired measured values of the data source. If the acquisition value is of the category power or count value, the associated consumption value is used for the compression level. Use this method if you want to determine the maximum power from the acquired measurement values, for example.



Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Selecting a database

You define the selection of the compression method in the configuration dialog of the data point of the measuring point.

Requirement

• The data point has been created.

Procedure

To specify the compression method, follow these steps:

- Right-click on the data point of the measuring point in the navigation area. The shortcut menu opens.
- 2. Click on the menu command "Edit".

The data point configuration dialog opens.

3. Click the "Compression" button at the bottom of the Configuration dialog.

The "Compression" configuration dialog opens.

- 4. To create a new compression level, click on the "New" button.
- 5. Select the required compression level from the "Archive cycle" drop-down list.
- 6. Select the required compression level as database from the "Base cycle" drop-down list. You can choose between the compression levels "15-minute values", "acquisition values", "daily values" and "monthly values".
- 7. To save the compression level, click the "OK" button.

Result

The desired compression level including the underlying database is selected and created. Select the database for each compression level from the "Basic cycle" drop-down list.

If you select the previous compression level as the basis, use the method of the previous compression level as the database.

Archive Cycle	Base Cycle	Active	New
15 minutes value	Entry values		0.0000
Daily values	15 minutes value		Edit
Monthly values	Daily values		Delete

If you select the entry "Acquisition values" as the basis for each compression level, you use the method of the acquired measured values of the data source as database.

Archive Cycle	Base Cycle	Active	New
15 minutes value	Entry values		
Daily values	Entry values		Edit
Monthly values	Entry values		Delete

2.2.3.10 Manual acquisition with the matrix

Overview

You use the "Matrix" object to manually enter data in the Energy Manager PRO Client and Energy Manager PRO Web.

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

- 1. Configuring matrix objects
- 2. Assignment of datapoints
- 3. Possible datapoint configurations
- 4. Data input

Note

Only use manual acquisition for a peak load detection because it requires more computing power.

With this configuration, the maximum value in each compression is the peak value of the acquired measured values.

Requirement

Datapoints have been created.
Configuring matrix objects

- 1. Select the folder in which the matrix object is going to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert Matrix" button in the menu bar under "Acquisition > Manual acquisition".

The configuration dialog of the matrix object opens.

U.	Matrix - Supply	- 🗆 🗙
Name: Supp	ly	
Description:		^
		v
Query Type: Mo	nth	-
From	То	
01.08.2010 00:00		
Text Type:	Name	Web Insert
Cycle Time:	15 min 💌	Plausibility
Corr. State:	valid	Transposed
Charge Values:	d_A_E_V_116a_counter	Acyclic
Comp Level Filter:	Entry values	
	EditValues	
9	ОК	Cancel

3. Enter a "Name", an optional "Description", and the "Query type".

The query type determines the time horizon that is displayed in the matrix. Example: You have entered daily values in the course of a week. In this case, the query type used is "Week", and the "Cycle time" is 1 d for the days. The system automatically calculates the "FROM / TO" time period.

- 4. Select the datapoint entry to display in the matrix header from the "Text Type:" list box.
- 5. Select the "Cycle Time" as required. Ensure that this cycle time matches the cycle time of the datapoint.
- 6. Adjust the "Corr. Status:" entry if applicable.
- 7. Select the "Web Insert" check box to enable user input of values via the Web.
- 8. Select the "Plausibility" check box if you want to enable the plausibility check function.
- 9. Select the "Transposed" check box if you want to change the time axis from vertical to horizontal mode. The same procedure applies to the datapoint name.
- 10.Select the "Acyclic" check box to enable the input of batch-related data in the matrix. Select the datapoint that contains the batch information from the "Charge Values" list box.
- 11.Click "OK" to create the matrix object in Energy Manager.

12.OK input saves the settings to the database and creates an object in the Energy Manager.

```
🖨 🛅 Manual Data Collection
```

13.Assign the datapoints to the matrix in the conclusive step. Ensure that this cycle time matches the cycle time of the datapoint.

Provided the "Plausibility" function has been enabled, the "high limit" and "low limit" are used to check the plausibility of the datapoint configuration in the matrix.

The following function types of the datapoint will affect the matrix:

• "Event Measurement T1 spontaneous", "Event Measurement T1 cyclic", and the definition of the datapoint that contains the batch information

You can find more detailed information on this in the section"Configuring "Batch analysis" reports (Page 226)".

- "Text": The values entered are saved to a text field.
- "Priority high": Although you may enter values in this datapoint, it is not possible to edit these values using the matrix.

See also

Options (Page 53) Matrix (Page 428)

2.2.3.11 Manual acquisition with the SIMATIC Energy Manager app

Information about mobile data acquisition using SIMATIC Energy Manager App can be found in the section "Setting up mobile data acquisition with the SIMATIC Energy Manager app for iOS and Android (Page 539)" and in the section "Manual acquisition with Energy Manager PRO Mobile (Page 925)".

2.2.3.12 Importing data

For more information on data import, refer to the following sections:

- via OLE DB: "Data acquisition via the "OLE-DB" interface (Page 98)"
- via Measurements editor: "Measurements editor (Page 165)"
- via matrix: "Manual acquisition with the matrix (Page 180)"
- via ODBC Connector: "ODBC connector (Page 928)"

2.2.4 "Processing" menu tab

2.2.4.1 Preprocessing

Basics for preprocessing

Overview

You can preprocess the measured values you import to Energy Manager before you save these to the database. For example, you can compress the acquisition values to daily values or calculate a conditional average value of different measurement series.

Energy Manager provides two options for real-time pre-processing of measured values:

- Compression of measured values (Page 175)during import
- Processing measured values with loops

The processing of values before entering them into the database is known as "Preprocessing".

The following diagram illustrates the preprocessing of measured values imported to Energy Manager. You can use the loop concept to individually process or link the measured values of different data points: This allows you to calculate average, minimum and maximum values, for example.



Compression of measured values during import

You can compress the acquisition values in the import phase. This "Online compression" is activated by default. You then configure the selected compression functions in the data point. It is also possible to configure a substitute value strategy.

As an alternative, you can compress acquisition values with jobs at any time, or recalculate compressed values.

Application example: You import counter values in Energy Manager. The consumption values and daily consumption values will be calculated by differentiation during the import.

See also: Compression of the acquired measured values (Page 175)

Processing measured values with loops

Loops are calculation functions that you apply to one or several data points. You can use loops, for example, to calculate or link measured value series of different recording periods. Energy Manager allows you to use preconfigured loops or to program your own calculation functions using the Measurement Compile Language (MCL) programming language. Energy Manager provides various calculation functions, for example, conditional recordings, extensive filter functions, trigonometric functions, logic operators, compare operations, or conversion operations. You can also map non-linear processes with unknown function rules or equations in the form of tables. Users with corresponding configuration authorization may always change data point assignments, calculation modules, and logic conditions by means of the user system.

Application example: Conditional calculation of minimum, maximum and average values. The interval duration for the grouping function (e.g. ½ h), the measured values with corresponding interval duration, and the trigger input are set at the loop input for conditional calculation. The calculation is only initiated if the trigger input is set to active high state (=1). Results of the calculation are output for the corresponding period on the right side based on the conditional minimum, maximum and average values.



This functionality is defined from the Client using MCL (Measurement Compile Language).

Additional information

The next chapters cover the "Preprocessing":

- Creating and configuring data points
- Creating and configuring loops
- Creating prototypes
- Functions for prototypes
- Description of the MCL language

Configuring loops

Overview

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

- Creating loops
- Configuring loops

Requirement

The necessary data points and prototypes have been successfully created in the system.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the loop is going to be created.
- Click the "Insert Loop" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Preprocessing". The "Loop" dialog opens.

₹ e		Loo	p - I_add_avg			-		×
Name: I_add_av	g							
Description:								Ŷ
Process: a_acq_OP	0	•	Inve	ntory N#:				
Prototype:		•		Date:	10.03.2014 1	0:47:41	-	
State: 🗹 Active				User:				
Parameter								
Parameter	I/O	Measurement	Ur	it			Assign	
						F	Releas	Э
							McI	
						R	ecomp	ile
			ОК		Apply	С	ancel	

3. Enter the loop name in the "Name:" input field. The "I_" prefix must be added for loop identification. You may enter additional information in the "Description:" field. If available, you may also enter a KKS or FIS number as inventory ID. The current time is set by default for the date of initial creation of the loop. The logged on user is automatically entered in the "User:" field. Select the process that is to run the loop in the "Process:" field. This selection assigns the loop to a specific hardware. A separate process is usually created for loop calculations. Set the ACTIVE state in the "State:" field and select the "Active" check box.

4. Confirm your entries with "OK".

The configuration dialog is closed. The server object is now generated at the corresponding tree position.

다. Calculation Level I Loop / Prototype 다 렇 Ladd_avg

5. Copy the necessary prototype and the data points/constants to be processed to the new loop structure.



6. Select the new loop. Select "Edit..." from the shortcut menu.

The loop configuration dialog opens.

7. Select the prototype in the next step.

Ę		Loop	o - I_add_avg		- 🗆 ×
Name: I_add_av	g				
Description.					0
Process: a_acq_OP	с	-	Invent	tory N#:	
Prototype: p_add_avg		-		Date: 11.09.2008	12:50:05 🖃
State: 🗹 Active					
Parameter					
Parameter	I/O	Measurement	Unit		Assign
output	out				Release
input1	in				
input2	in				
					Mel
					Recompile
9			ОК	Apply	Cancel

The dialog displays the parameters and their type, depending on the respective prototype.

8. The real data points and constants are assigned to the parameters in the next step. Select the parameter to be assigned a measurement and click "Assign".

10		Loop - I_add_avg	_ 🗆 🗡
Name: Description:	l_add_avg		^
Process: a	a_acq_OPC	Inventory N#:	
Prototype: p State: Parameter output input1 input2	2_ac Z Ac d_temperature d_compressed_air	Select a Measurement	Cancel
			McI Recompile
9		ок	Apply Cancel

9. The next window displays all measurements that are available. Select a measurement and confirm this with OK.

₹ c		Loop - I	_add_avg		- 🗆 🗙
Name: I_add_av Description:	g				^ ~
Process: a_acq_OP4 Prototype: p_add_avg State:	>		Inventor, [y N#: Date: 11.09.2008 1	2:50:05 💌
Parameter	I/O	Measurement	Unit		Assign
output input1 input2	out in in	e_result d_temperature d_compressed_air	. 1		Release Mcl Recompile
9			ок	Apply	Cancel

The loop configuration is completed once you have assigned all data points or constants to the respective parameters. Exit the dialog with "OK".

10.You can click "MCL..." to check the appearance of the loop in the MCL language and how it is compiled by the Energy Manager kernel.



11. The "Recompile" function can be used at runtime to modify an existing or active loop. Example: A different scaling factor needs to be assigned because it has been changed in the PLC.

Result

You have now configured a loop that is compiled during restart by the responsible kernel, saved to an mcl file, and assigned values that are calculated online.

Configuring prototypes

Overview

Prototypes represent the basis for loops. The algorithms are predefined and available for further calculations.

Requirement

Energy Manager was properly installed and the "p_test01" prototype is available.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the prototype is going to be created.
- Click the "Insert Prototype" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Preprocessing". The "Prototype Editor" dialog opens.

99 .		Prototype Editor - p_add_avg		×
Name: p_	add_avg			
Description: A	ddition prototyp	e		^
				¥
prototype p_add	_avg(out outpu	t, in input1, in input2) {		
local:				~
zw1; implementati		Edit Prototype Parameter 🛛 🗖 🗙		
zw1 := inpi output := a	Prototype: p	_add_avg		
	Name:	output		
	Description:	result of addition		~
}				
Parameter	In/Out:			
Name	Indev:		New	
output	index.		Edit	
input2		OK Cancel	Delete	
			Lin	
			Down	
			2/0/111	
9		ОК	Cancel	

3. Enter the prototype name in the "Name:" input field. The "p_" prefix must be added for prototype identification. You may enter additional information on the prototype in the "Description:" field. Specify the prototype's response by means of MCL declaration. Enter all necessary I/Os in the parameters. Click "New" and enter the "Name" and "Description". Select the output (out) or input (in) type and the order of transfer. Confirm your entries with "OK".

4. Once you have added all necessary I/O parameters, save the new prototype with "OK".

99 0		Prot	otype Editor - p_ad	d_avg	- □	×	
Name:	p_add_avg						
Description:	cription: Addition prototype						
prototype p_:	add_avg(out output, in	input1, i	in input2) {				
local: zw1; implementa zw1 := ir output :=	ation: iput1 +input2; avg(zw1,60,01:00:00);				<	
Parameter							
Name	Nr.	1/0	Description		New		
output	1	out	result of addition		Edit		
input1	2	in	1. value to add up		D-1-t-		
input2	3	in	2. value to add up		Derete		
					Up		
9				ОК	Cancel		

5. Select "Edit" to edit existing parameter names and declarations. You may select "Delete" to delete parameters, or change their order with "Up" or "Down" (use with caution for existing loops).

Result

A new prototype is available and can be used to configure new loops.

See also

Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes) (Page 784) Description of MCL (Page 794)

2.2.4.2 Calculation

Basics on calculation

A measurement variable, also known as MEVA in the system, forms the basis for calculating the various parameters in the analyses and reports.

MEVA concept

- MEVAs are used to calculate KPIs / EnPIs
- The object name MEVA stands for measurement variable
- A MEVA consists of a function type that calculates a result based on the input values
- Data points, parameters und MEVAs can be combined with one another with this object Therefore, the input values of a MEVA can originate from these three objects
- The input data for the MEVA must be stored in the SQL Server (see "Architecture and interfaces (Page 73)")
- The result of the MEVA can be stored in a derived data point or used in a report In addition, the result can also be used in a chart and a dashboard



The outstanding advantage of this concept is that the MEVAs are only calculated for the data sets that are needed for analysis within a specific evaluation period. This approach leads to a drastic reduction of database memory and archiving requirements.

The results of the MEVAs can be written to derived data points or be visualized directly in MS Excel. The quality of the values is color coded.

Measuring variable

Overview

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

- Creating a MEVA
- Configuring a MEVA

Requirement

The necessary data points and parameters have been successfully created in the system.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the MEVA is going to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert Measuring Variable" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Calculation".

The "Measurement Variable" dialog opens.

l	🔨 Measuring	Variable - m_Wastewater_Treatment_Counter_1_cdiff	x
	Name:	m_Wastewater_Treatment_Counter_1_cdiff	
	Description:		^
			~
	KKS:		
	Function Type:	Counter Difference Light incl. overflow handli 💽 🛛 🛛 Details	
	Unit:	m ³	-
	Compression Level:	Entry values	•
			_
		OK Cancel	

- 3. Enter the MEVA name in the "Name:" input field. The "m_" prefix must be added for MEVA identification. You may enter additional information on the MEVA in the "Description:" field. If available, you may also enter a KKS or FIS number as inventory ID. Select a processing routine as function type (click Details to view a short description of the function). Select the unit that is derived from the processing routine and sublevel data points or MEVAs.
- 4. Confirm your entries with "OK".

The configuration dialog is closed. The server object is now generated at the corresponding tree position.

– – – Meva's – – ™ m_Wastewater_Treatment_Counter_1_cdmf

5. Copy the data points, parameters, or MEVAs to the new measurement variable.

i → Meva's → 😰 m_Wastewater_Treatment_Counter_1_cdiff ↓ – 🕶 d_Wastewater_Treatment_Counter_1

Result

You have now configured a MEVA that you can use for further processing in reports or derived data points.

See also

Functions for measuring variables (Page 798) Creating MEVAs / KPIs (Page 684)

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Parameters

Overview

This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

- Creating parameters
- Configuring parameters
- Reading parameters by means of Meva

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the parameter is going to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert Parameter" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Calculation".

The	"Parameters"	dialog	opens
-----	--------------	--------	-------

E.	Parameter - t_pri	ice_electrical_energy	×
Name:	t_price_electrical_energy		
Description:			0
Replacement Value:	β,225	Unit: ct/k/\/h	•
Valid from Valid u	Initii Value Changed at C	hanged by New Edit Delete	
		OK Cancel	

- 3. Enter a meaningful name (t_xxx) and a description (optional). If you enter the substitute value 3.225, i.e., as long as no valid values have been defined, the value 3.225 is always returned for this parameter.
- 4. Click "New" to open the dialog for editing the parameter values.

5. Define the "Value" and the duration of validity. Save and confirm your entries with "OK".



6. The value entered is now displayed, can be edited using the "Edit" function, and be deleted again with "Delete". Moreover, you can add new values for additional time ranges.

5	23	Paran	neter - t_p	price_electrical_en	ergy	- 🗆 ×					
	Name:	t_price_electrical_ene	price_electrical_energy								
	Description:					~					
	ReplacementValue:	3,	,225		Unit: EUR/KWh	•					
	Valid from 🗳			Changed at	Changed by	New					
	10.03.2014 00:00:00	11.03.2014 00:00:00	3,225	10.03.2014 11:26:02	Admin						
	11.03.2014 00:00:00	10.03.2015 00:00:00	3,65	10.03.2014 11:25:53	Admin	Edit					
						Delete					
	9				ОК	Cancel					

Note

For the following MEVA functions, you must also link the parameter with a parameter-MEVA:

- Minus (ID: 1735)
- Percentage (ID: 1739)
- If Then (ID: 2746)
- Difference from DP (ID: 2812)
- Inventory change (ID: 2904)

See also

Measuring variable (Page 193) Parameter (Page 435) Creating parameters (Page 678) Parameter (Page 532)

2.2.4.3 Profiles

Basic information on profile

Based on the comparison day principle, you can generate media consumption forecasts at any time using a combination of master profiles, profiles, typical days, and special effects.

The next chapters cover the following components:

- Status
- Typical days
- Profiles
- Master profiles

Configuring states

Overview

States are used to set the default values for a typical day, or, for example, to distinguish between the days in the high tariff period (HT, value=1) and in the low tariff period (LT, value=0). These values are evaluated using special measuring variable functions.

Note

The HT (high tariff) and LT (low tariff) states have already been generated as domain data and cannot be deleted.

Procedure

1. Select the folder in which the status is going to be created.

🕂 🛅 Profile root	
🛱 🛅 Type Days	_
🕂 📴 Profiles Tariffs	6
🖶 🛅 Profile	
🗄 🖶 阿 Master Profile	

2. Click the "Insert Status" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Profile".

SIEM	IENS				
File	Acquisition	Processing	Analysis	Master Dat	a Administration Help
Choose	문 Datapoints to E×	port Allocation	사 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ile 😳	🍋 🔡 🍇 🏧 🔨 🖄 Plant and Material
a] System ▶			Insei 111	rt State Inserts a new State below	
Menu					selected node.

The "Status" dialog opens.

<u></u>		State - L	Т		×
Name:	ц				
Description:	Low Tariff				
Value:		1	Unit: 1		-
Color:					
\$			0K	Cancel	
—			UK	Cancer	

- 3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and optionally a "Description".
- 4. Enter the required "Value" and its "Unit".
- 5. Select a color, if necessary, and confirm with "OK".

Result

You have successfully configured the status and it is now ready for use.

See also

Configuring a shift (Page 198)

Configuring a shift

Introduction

Use the "Shift" object to subdivide a day into several shifts. In addition you can use Status, for example, to assign different tariff information to each shift. If you use a "Shift" object beneath a query type, you can query time range by shift.

Requirement

Statuses have been created.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the shift will be created
- Click the "Insert shift" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Profile". The "Shift" dialog opens.
- 3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and optionally a "Description".
- 4. Select the time that will be interpreted as the "Day transition".
- 5. To define a shift, click "New".

The "Shift status" dialog opens.

6. Enter the "Duration", and select the desired "Status".

5 Shift - 06/	M-02PM_	shift				
Name:	06AM-02	PM_shift				
Description:						<u></u>
Day I ransiti	on: 12:00	AM C	Value	1.1.4.14		
From Δ	10	HT	Value 1	1		New
					1	Edit
						Delete
						Fill
						Split
				Co	py With Headers	
					OK	Cancel

Result

The "Shift" object has been created.

See also

Configuring states (Page 196) Configuring typical day (Page 199) Configuring query types (Page 372)

Configuring typical day

Typical days describe the progression of consumption for a defined consumption unit in the course of a day. Typical days can be used to forecast a "typical" future consumption.

Alternatively, you can enter the different time periods of a day manually. Use this option to calculate a current or past actual energy consumption of a typical day.

Requirement

- The typical load distribution is known.
- The necessary status or shift data has been created in the system.

Procedure

1. Select the folder under which the typical day is going to be created.

ģ- 🚞	Configuration
. <u></u>	Profile root
	🗄 🚞 Type Days

2. Click the "Insert Day" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Profile".

SIEN	IENS					
File	Acquisition	Processing	Analysis	Master Data	Administration	Help
Choose	そう Datapoints to E)	oport Allocation	🎎 🧚 Pr	s 🖭 😳 🛛	🍋 🔡 🛤 🏧 🔌 Plant and Material	
3 System	em 🕨			Insert Typica	il Day a new Tynical Day	
Mer	าน			below	selected node.	

The "Typical Day" dialog opens.

5			Тур	ical Day -	мо		- 🗆	×
Name:	MO							
Description:	Monday							~
Day Transitio	on: 00:00 {	▲ ▼						
Active Mode	e: OShifts							
From	То	State	Value	Unit			New	
							Edit	
							Delete	
							Fill	
							Split	
					□ c	opy With Headers		
						ОК	Cancel	

- 3. Enter a descriptive "Name" and an optional "Description" and confirm your entries with "OK".
- 4. Complete the same procedure for the remaining days of the week, including the necessary special days (holidays, special shifts, bridging days, production downtimes).

5. You can now enter the values manually for each typical day. Select "Insert..." to enter the status and the respective valid FROM-TO time range.

Status corresponds with a default value that may be or has to be changed.

This option is frequently used to handle slight periodic fluctuation of status values. Examples: "value 1" from 00:00 to 12:00 h and "value 2" from 12:00 to 24:00 h.

5	Typical Day State	- 🗆 🗙
From: 00:00		To: 6:00
State: LT		•
Value:	1 Unit: 1	•
	ОК	Cancel

6. The "fill" option is used to handle a smaller pattern of values, e.g. 1 h pattern. You may also specify a cycle time.

However, in order to form a basis for a realistic forecast, the 1 h values are determined automatically by means of analysis report and written to the database.

5	Typical Day State	- 🗆 ×
From: 01:00 🛟		To: 01:00 🛟
State: HT		•
Value:	2 Unit: 1	-
	ОК	Cancel

Result

You have successfully created the typical day and it is now ready for use.

See also

Configuring a shift (Page 198)

Configuring profiles

Overview

A profile is used to configure the consumption of a typical week with the help of type days.

You can employ two modes to configure a profile:

- "Weekly": Configuration of a fixed sequence of seven days. In the "Weekly" mode, assign type days to the weekdays. The type day "Default" is assigned to a weekday by default.
- "Day sequence": Configuration of a flexible day sequence. Select the type days for the "Day sequence" mode and specify their sorting order for the profile.

Note

You must activate the calendar to enable the use of the "Day sequence" mode.

Requirement

The type day is configured.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder below which you want to configure a profile in the structure tree of the Client.
- Click the "Insert Profile" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Profile". The "Profile" dialog opens.
- 3. Enter a unique name and an optional description for the profile.

- 4. Proceed as follows to configure a profile on a weekly basis:
 - Select the "Weekly-based" mode.
 - Assign the weekday a configured type day of selecting the type day from the weekday selection list.
 - Click "Edit" click the type day.

*	Profile - Profile Factory	- 🗆 ×
Name:	Profile Factory	
Description:		^
		~
Active Mode • Week Bas	: sed Oay Sequence	
MO: Stand	ard 💌	Edit
TU: Stand	ard 💌	Edit
WE: Stand	ard 💌	Edit
TH: Stand	ard 💌	Edit
FR: Stand	ard 💌	Edit
SA: Stand	ard 💌	Edit
SU: Stand	ard 💌	Edit
Use	Calendar	
Handle holid	aysas: Standard 💽	
C	ountry: Austria	Holidays
	ОК	Cancel

- Confirm the configuration with "OK".

- 5. Proceed as follows to configure a profile on a daily basis:
 - Select the "Daily sequence" mode and then click on "New".
 - Select one or several type days.

Profile -	Profile Fa	ctory		
Name:	Profile	Factory		
Descriptior	1:			×
Active Mo	i de: Based (Day Sequence		
5 Stand	lard	(06:00 14:00)		New
5 Sa, S	u, Holiday	(00.00 - 14:00)		Edit
				Delete
				Up
				Down
Use	Caler	ndar		
Handle hol	idays as:	Sa, Su, Holiday		•
	Country:	Germany		 Holidays
			OK	Cancel

- Confirm the configuration with "OK".
- Select "Use" to activate the calendar.

Result

The profile is configured. Configure the holidays that you want to take into account for the profile. Open the calendar to edit the profile, or to display a graphic diagram of the profile.

See also

Configuring typical day (Page 199) Selecting holidays for profile (Page 204) Using a calendar for a profile (Page 206)

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Holidays and calendar

Selecting holidays for profile

Overview

Select the holidays that you want to take into account for the profile.

Requirement

- The profile is configured.
- You have configured the country and its regional holidays.

Procedure

1. Double-click the desired profile in the Client.

The "Profile" dialog opens.

- 2. If the holidays are to be treated as a type day, select the relevant type day under "Treat holidays as".
- 3. Click on "Holidays".

The "Holidays" dialog opens.

4. To select a holiday of a specific country for the profile, click "New" and then select the corresponding country and its holiday.

You can edit the selected holiday in the "Holiday profile" dialog.



5. To select all holidays of a specific country for the profile, click "import" and then select the country.

You can edit the selected holidays in the "Holidays import" dialog.



6. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

Date 🛛 🛆	Name	Active	Type Day	Apply to All Years 🦯	Year:
01.01.2012	Neujahr (D)	✓	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td>All</td></sa,>		All
06.01.2012	Heilige drei Könige (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		
06.04.2012	Karfreitag (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td>New</td></sa,>		New
06.04.2012	Karfreitag ()	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td>Edit</td></sa,>		Edit
08.04.2012	Ostern (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td>- Con</td></sa,>		- Con
09.04.2012	Ostermontag (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td>Delete</td></sa,>		Delete
01.05.2012	Tag der Arbeit (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td>Import</td></sa,>		Import
17.05.2012	Christi Himmelfahrt (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		
27.05.2012	Pfingsten (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		
28.05.2012	Pfingstmontag (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		
15.08.2012	Mariä Himmelfahrt (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		
03.10.2012	Tag der Deutschen Einheit (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		
03.10.2012	Tag der Deutschen Einheit ()	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		
31.10.2012	Reformationstag (D)	~	<sa, holid<="" su,="" td=""><td></td><td></td></sa,>		

You have selected the holidays for the profile. You can edit or delete the configured holidays.

See also

Configuring profiles (Page 201)

Using a calendar for a profile

To graphically represent or change a configured sequence, use the calendar in which shifts are rolled out. The average consumption for the same shifts is calculated in accordance with the calendar.

Application example: You define a sequence with rollout for one quarter in the calendar. You can always respond to changes such as special shifts in the calendar. This functionality always keeps your consumption data and forecasts up to date.

The calendar consists of the following components:

- Detail view: Provides a graphic view of daily and shift information. The type days and shifts configured in the profile can be modified in the detail view.
- Monthly view: Allows you to select one of several days for visualization in the detail view. You can use the <CTRL> or <SHIFT> keys to select several days.
- Type day: Shows all shifts of typical days you have configured.

Requirement

The profile is configured.

Procedure

1. Double-click the desired profile in the Client .

The "Profile" dialog opens.

- 2. Activate "Use" and then click "Calendar".
- 3. To transfer the configured day sequence to the calendar, click "Rollout" and select the time range.

The start date is set to Monday by default.

From:	Monday 11.03.2	019		-
To:	Wednesday 10.	04.2019		
	OV		Concol	

4. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

The day sequence is entered in the calendar.

- 5. To select all shifts of a typical day, click "Select day elements" in the shortcut menu of the typical day.
- 6. To delete a type day, click on "Delete day(s)" in the shortcut menu of the type day.
- 7. To add a type day, select a type day under "type day", or drag-and-drop it to the calendar.

Result

You can use the calendar for the profile. Deactivate the "Use" option in the "Profile" dialog if you no longer need the calendar. The rolled-out day sequence is retained in the calendar. Existing type days will be overwritten if you enter a new rollout for the same time range in the calendar.

March 2019	April 2019		< 3/14/2019	3/15/2019	3/16/2019	3/17/2019	3/18/2019 >
SMTWTFS	SMTWTFS 14 1 2 3 4 5 6		Week Day	Week Day	Short day	Free day	Week Day
0 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	15 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	0: 00	22:00-6:00 Shift 3	22:00-6:00 Shift 3	22:00-6:00 Shift 3	22:00-6:00 Free	22:00-6:00 Free
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	1: 00				Shift 3	Shift 3
24 25 26 27 28 29 30	18 28 29 30 1 2 3 4	2: 00					
31	19 5 6 7 8 91011	3: 00					
		4: 00					
ypical Days:		5: 00					
5 Standard		6: 00	6:00-14:00 Shift 1	6:00-14:00 Shift 1	6:00-14:00 Shift 1	6:00-14:00 Free	6:00-14:00 Shift 1
		7: 00				Shift 1	
		8: 00					
		4 9:00					
		10: 00					
		11: 00					
		12: 00					
		13: 00					
		14: 00	14:00-22:00 Shift	14:00-22:00 Shift	14:00-22:00 Free	14:00-22:00 Free	14:00-22:00 Shift
		15: 00	2	2	Shift 2	Shift 2	
		16: 00					
		17:00					
		18: 00					
		19: 00					
		20: 00					
		21: 00					
		22: 00	22:00-6:00 Shift 3	22:00-6:00 Shift 3	22:00-6:00 Free	22:00-6:00 Free	22:00-6:00 Shift 3
F	Rollout	23: 00			Shift 3	Shift 3	

See also

Configuring profiles (Page 201)

Configuring root profiles

Overview

A master profile specifies how to forecast media consumption based on different profiles in the course of the year.

Requirement

The necessary profiles have been successfully created in the system.

Procedure

1. Select the folder in which the master profile is going to be created.



2. Click the "Insert Master Profile" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Profile".

SIEM	ENS		
File	Acquisition	Processing	Analysis Master Data Administration Help
Choose	। 당동	port Allocation	👫 🏶 🗵 🖼 🧐 🐌 🔡 🍋 🏜 🏧 🏧
🌸 Syste	m 🕨 Configura	ation 🕨 Profile	1000 Insert Master Profile
Men	u		below selected node.

The "Master Profile" dialog opens.



3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description". Confirm your entries and generate the master profile with "OK".



4. Double-click reopens the editing dialog. Click "New" to select a profile for the period starting on January 1 and a time as of which a different profile is to be applied. Confirm with "OK".



5. The selected profiles and FROM-TO ranges are now generated. You can edit and remove selected settings or add a new range.

봝		Master Profile - Master Profile	- 🗆 ×
Name: Description	Maste	er Profile	
From Δ			New
01.01	01.04	Profile winter	
01.04	01.10	Profile summer	Edit
01.10	01.01	Profile winter	Delete
			Fill
			Split
9		ОК	Cancel

6. If a different period has been configured, the profile is valid as of the new FROM time. The TO time is set automatically at the previous profile.

2		Master Profile - Master Profile	- 🗆 ×
Name: Description	Maste	er Profile	
From 🔺	То	Profile	New
01.01	15.04	Profile winter	
15.04	15.10	Profile summer	Edit
15.10	01.01	Profile winter	Delete
			Fill
			Split
L			
9		ок	Cancel

7. Confirm and complete the master profile configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully created the master profile and it is now ready for use.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Special effects

Overview

In preparation for the adjustment of the basic load profile, define corresponding parameters as a correction factor that takes long-term load changes (= special effects) into account.

The correction factor adjusts the consumption value over time accordingly by a fixed value, e.g. an absolute power value in MW or kW that is added to the basic load profile. However, it is also possible to multiply the profile value by a specific factor.

One of these parameters can be adjusted for calculation of a percentage increase , e.g. multiplication of the profile value by a specific factor.

Requirement

Successful installation of all software components.

Procedure

1. Create a parameter and specify its value, including the range of validity.

E	28	Parar	neter - t_p	price_electrical_ene	ergy	- 🗆 ×
	Name:	t_price_electrical_ene	rgy			
	Description:					\$
	ReplacementValue:	(0,08		Unit: EUR/kWh	•
	Valid from 🛛 🔺	Valid until		Changed at	Changed by	New
	01.01.2008 00:00:00	01.01.2009 00:00:00	0,09	27.07.2009 14:56:08		
	01.01.2009 00:00:00	01.01.2010 00:00:00	0,095	27.07.2009 14:56:08		Edit
	01.01.2010 00:00:00	01.01.2011 00:00:00	0,1	25.01.2012 14:25:10		Doloto
	01.01.2011 00:00:00	25.01.2011 00:00:00	0,15	25.01.2012 14:25:10		Delete
	25.01.2011 00:00:00	25.01.2012 00:00:00	1,17	25.01.2012 14:25:10		
	9				ОК	Cancel

- 2. When changing values or their valid ranges, you must recalculate the reports accessing these valid ranges of values.
- 3. Create the MEVAs that fetch the parameter values and distribute these to the respective modules for calculations or output.

ľ	🖻 Measu	ring Variable - m_price_electricity_para 💦 – 🗖 🔜	ĸ
	Name:	m_price_electricity_para	
	Description:	1	
			4
	KKS:		
	Function Type:	Parameter Details	
	Unit:	EUR/kWh	•
	Compression Level:	Entry values	-
	9	OK Cancel	

4. Select the "Parameter" function type and append the "_para" (for "Parameter") suffix to the MEVA name.

⊡ 😨 m_price_electricity_para

5. Complete the MEVA configuration by connecting the parameter to the corresponding MEVA node.

Result

You have successfully created the measuring variable and the parameter for use as adjustment factors.

2.2.4.4 Plants and product definition

Basic information on plants and product definitions

Overview

Energy consumption is often decisively determined by individual large consumers or production lines at which various products or batches are produced. Moreover, individual production areas are frequently inappropriately synchronized from an energy aspect, or not at all. As a result, performance peaks and off peak times that may develop are often disadvantageous with regard to cost-efficient energy supply.

As a consequence and in order to provide a realistic forecast of energy demands, it is indispensable to create and maintain a production plan for the entire plant or specific production areas and to integrate this plan into the load forecast.

Energy Manager supports the creation and maintenance of a production and availability plan for entire plants (factory, production lines), or plant units (machinery, etc.).

The production plan logs all production phases that may have a significant impact on energy demands. With regard to large consumers, it is usually sufficient to determine whether or not the plant is going to be in operation. The logging of downtimes and restricted availabilities is usually of particular significance.

Moreover, it must be possible to plan production line throughput rates (items / time, quantity / time) that have an impact on energy demands.

In order to be able to determine the corresponding energy demand equivalent from the planned production sequence, it is necessary to create a model of the consumption parameters for the various production phases or types.

Name: Shift W1.10 Description:	Changed by New Admin Edit
Description: Parameter N# → Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by 1 Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin 2 Electricity 1 d. Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin	Changed by New Admin Edit
Parameter Definitions N# △ Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by 1 Electricity 1 k_Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin 2 Electricity 1 d_Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin	Changed by New Admin Edit
Parameter Definitions N# △ Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by 1 Electricity 1 k_Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin 2 Electricity 1 d_Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin	Changed by New Admin Edit
N# △ Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by 1 Electricity 1 k_Electricity 10.03.2014.14:17 Admin 2 Electricity 1 d_Electricity 10.03.2014.14:17 Admin	Changed by New Admin Edit
Electricity 1 K_Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin 2 Electricity 1 d_Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin	Admin Edit
2 Electricity 1 d_Electricity 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin	Admin
3 Gas 1 k_Gas 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin	Admin Delete
4 Gas 1 d_Gas 10.03.2014 14:17 Admin	Admin

Energy Manager supports you in the maintenance or modification of the model parameters (consumption parameters) in every production phase (e.g. downtime, special shift, production x). You can take the values of the model parameters, e.g. of the batch analysis.

These media-specific (electrical power, gas, heat, etc.) parameters form the basis for calculating load requirements in the respective production phase in accordance with the equation $y = k^*x+d$:



- x Quantity
- y Consumption, for example, electrical power (MW)
- d Section to y
- k Incline

Authorized end users may adjust the individual model parameters of the production phases with the aim of improving the quality of load forecasting.

The next chapters present the following contents related to production planning:

- 1. Consumer type
- 2. Material
- 3. Plant

Requirement

- The license for energy prognosis and planning exist.
- Successful installation of all software components.

See also

Forecasting based on production plan (Page 242)

Creating consumption types

You need consumption types to create models of planned production sequences. These models are used to calculate the respective energy demands. The values for d and k are saved in the consumption type. If you do not know the values for d and k, you can determine the values via the report "Batch analysis" or the widget "Multi-variable regression analysis".

Requirements

- Production planning is properly installed.
- The values for d and k are known.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the consumption type is going to be created.
 - Ġ- <mark>Configuration</mark> Ġ- <mark>Configuration</mark> Ġ- <mark>Consumption types</mark>
- 2. Click the "Insert Consumption Type" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Plant and Material".

File	Acquisition	Processing	Analysis Master Da	ata Administration	Help
Choose	そう Datapoints to Ei	oport Allocation	👫 🊸 互 🔚 🎲 Profile	le 📰 📫 ẵΣ 🤻 Plant and Material	et al a start a

The "Consumption Type" dialog opens.

Name: Gas Description: Parameter Definitions N≢ △ Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by	Changed by Edit
Parameter Definitions N# △ Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by	Changed by New Edit
arameter Definitions N# △ Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by	Changed by New Edit
N# △ Name Unit Description Changed at Changed by	Changed by New Edit
	Edit
	Delete

3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description". Confirm your entries and generate the consumption type with "OK".



4. Double-click reopens the editing dialog. Select "Insert..." to create the 1 (k) and 2 (d) parameters.

🐴 Consum	iption Type Parameter Definition 🛛 🗖 🗙
Sequence:	1
Name:	k_Gas
Description:	^
Unit:	1
	OK Cancel

5. You only need to define parameters 1 and 2.

			Consumption Typ	pe - Gas		
ame:	Gas					
scrip	tion:					
rame	eter Definitions					
I# .	م Name	Unit	Description	Changed at	Changed by	New
	k_Gas	1		10.03.2014 14:45	Admin	
	d_Gas	1		10.03.2014 14:45	Admin	Edit
						Delete
-					1000	
					OK	Cancel

Note

Consumption types for electrical power, gas, steam_HD, steam_MD, and steam_ND have already been created as domain data.

Result

The consumption type has been successfully created and can now be used as consumption parameter in the product types.

See also

Forecasting based on production plan (Page 242) Batch and material-related analysis (Page 223)

Creating a material class

Overview

When you create a new material in the course of the production planning you can assign it to a specific material class.

Procedure

- 1. Click "Insert material class" in the menu bar under "Processing > Plant and Material definition".
- 2. The "Material class" dialog opens.

Pr	ocessing	Ana	lysis	Ma	aster Da	ata	Adn	ninist	tratio	n	Help		
port	Allocation	*	<mark>∦</mark> ≹ F	5 (Profile	9 🖪	le F	Plant a	and N	ĂΣ Aater	M ial			
					Mate	rial 1	Гуре				-		×
1	Vame:	_											
C	Description:												^
Ш													~
						_	OK				Car	ncel	
								-	_	-			

- 3. Enter a name and optionally a description.
- 4. Save with OK.

Result

The new material class has been created.


Configuring material

Overview

Material (product types) in combination with consumption parameters (=consumption types) are required to calculate respective energy demands.

Requirement

The necessary consumption types have been successfully created in the system.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the material is going to be created.
- Click the "Insert Material" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Plant and Material". The "Material" dialog opens.

1.				N	laterial - Pils				×
Name:	Pils				Material Ide	ntifier: Pils			
Description:									^
Materialclass:	Beer								•
BatchList Pa	rameter								
Consumption	n Type	#	Name	Value	Unit	Changed at	Changed by	New	
								Edit	
								Delete	
9							ОК	Cancel	

3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description". Confirm your entries and generate the material with "OK".



4. Double-click reopens the editing dialog.

				Mate	erial - Pils			
lame:	Pils				Material Ide	ntifier: Pils		
escription:								
aterialclass:	Beer							
BatchList Pa	rameter							
Consumptior	n Type	#	Name	Value	Unit	Changed at	Changed by	New
								Edit
								Delete

- 5. Click "New" to open the dialog for editing the consumption parameters.
- 6. Select a consumption parameter, enter a value, and confirm your entries with "OK".

•					M	aterial	- Pils				-	×
Name:	Pils					Mat	erial Ide	ntifier:	Pils			
Description:												^
												~
Materialclass:	Beer											٠
Rotchl ict Da	ramotor											
Consumption	Type 1	#	Name	1	Value		Unit	Cha	nged at	Changed by	No	
heavy fuel oil		1	k_HFO			0	1	10.03	3.2014 14:27	Admin	ING	
heavy fuel oil		2	d_HFO			0	1	10.03	3.2014 14:27	Admin	Ed	lit
											Del	ete
_											_	
9										ок	Cai	ncel

Note

Consumption types for electrical power, gas, steam_HD, steam_MD, and steam_ND have already been created as domain data and cannot be deleted. You may create additional parameters as required.

- 7. The value entered is now displayed, can be edited using the "Edit..." function, and be deleted again with "Delete".
- 8. After values have been changed, the reports accessing these values must be recalculated.

Result

You have successfully created the material that is now ready for use in plants (production plans).

Configuring the plant

Overview

In order to calculate production-dependent forecasts, Energy Manager employs integral production plans (plants) that specify the production or the status of a factory, building, machine, etc. (= material).

The forecast value of these materials is specified at the respective "Material" definition (in operation, standstill, revision, grade XXX, etc.).

Requirement

- Cyclic (monthly) and timely allocation of the plants (production plans), as far as production has an impact on load requirements.
- The materials used (product types) have been successfully created in the system.
- The production plan is only available if the license for energy prognosis and planning is available.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the plant (production plan) is going to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert Equipment" button in the menu bar under "Processing > Plant and Material".

The "Production Plan" dialog opens.

2		Equipment - PM6			×
Name:	РМ6	EquipmentIdent	fier. PM6		
Description:	paper mill 6				^
					~
Configuratio	n Batchlist Production Plan				
Equipm	ientvariable	Object			
Equipmentvar	riable (only)	Object:		 New/Save	
				 Edit	
Drop node he	reusing Drag&Drop:			 Edit Delete	
Drop node he	reusing Drag&Drop:			 Edit Delete	

3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description". Click "OK" to confirm your entries and to generate the production plan.



4. Double-click reopens the editing dialog.

. <u>ě</u> .	Equipment - PM6 – 🗖	x
Name:	PM6 EquipmentIdentifier. PM6	
Description:	paper mill 6	¢
Configuratio	on Batchlist Production Plan	
Time Filte	ter: Day Month Time span 10.03.2014 Apply Apply Auto calc Rate/Hour	n
Lot Number	er Start time ⊥ End time Type Amount Rate per hour Correct New Edit Delete Import	
9	OK Apply Cancel	

- 5. Select "New..." in the "Production Plan" tab to open the editing dialog.
- 6. Specify the following entries for the production plan:
 - Select the required lot type, e.g., Production of XXX, Plant is in revision, etc.
 - Select the product under "Material" and enter a description of the product, if necessary.
 - Specify the time span in which the product will be produced.
 - Specify in which quantity the product will be produced.
 - Enter the correction factor and the Z factor.
 - You may enter a comment if required.
 - Click "OK" to confirm your entries.

H	<u>-</u>	Lot		×
	LotNumber:			
	Material:	80/170	Edit	
	Description:			
	Time span:	from 10.03.201414:00:00 💽 to 11.03.201414:00:00	•	
	Amount:	0		
	Rate per Hour:	0		
	Correction:	0		
	Comment			
	Z-Factor:	1		
		ОК	Cancel	

7. The value entered is now displayed, can be edited using the "Edit..." function, and be deleted again with "Delete".

			E	quipment - PM6				
lame:	PM6			EquipmentIde	ntifier. PM6			
escription:	paper mill 6							
onfiguratio	n Batchlist Production Pl r: O Day O Month •	an Timespan from 10.	03.2014 00	1:00:00 - × to 11	1.03.2014 14:00:0	0 - ×	Apply 'e off	er on intersectio
ot Number	Start time	End time	Туре	Amount	Rate per hour	Correction	Commer	Rate/Hour
	0 10.03.2014 14:00:00	11.03.2014 14:00:00	80/170	0) ()	0	Edit
							l li	Delete
							- I I	Import
							•	

Importing production plans

1. To import production plans from an Excel file to Energy Manager, click "Import..." and select the required Excel file.

During an import from the Excel file, the existing data in Energy Manager are deleted in the respective production plan and new data are entered in the respective columns. If you define the production plan using an Excel file, the Excel spreadsheet must have the following structure:

4	A	В	С	D	E	F	G
			Production	scheduling Plant	1.10		
	<u> </u>	Processes					
	1	Correction					
	Plan	t 1.10					
	From	То	Material	Description	Quantity	Correction	
01	From	To	Material	Description	Quantity	Correction	comment
01	From	To 02.03.2019:12:00 15.03.2019 04:00	Material Downtime Plant extra shift plant	Description Downtime Plant extra shift plant	Quantity 0 200	Correction	comment
01	From 1.03.2019 00:00 2.03.2019 12:00 5.03.2019 04:00	To 02.03.2019:12:00 15.03.2019 04:00 20.03.2019 00:00	Material Downtime Plant extra shift plant extra shift plant	Description Downtime Plant extra shift plant extra shift plant	Quantity 0 200 135	Correction	comment

- ① The number of worksheets that are copied to the production plan are found in cell A2.
- 2 To activate correction factors, enter the value 1 in the cell A3.
- ③ The name of the plant is found in cell A4.

6

- ④ The column headers are found in line 5.
- (5) The format of the time stamp is DD.MM.YYYY hh:mm.
- (6) The name of the worksheet is the name of the plant.

(5)

Note

Note that only the following entries are imported from the Excel file:

- Entries in which the "TO" time stamp is in the future.
- Entries in which the "FROM" time stamp is not older than five days.
 You can change the number of days under "Energy Manager Options > Database > Productplan_limit".

Before the data import, the table contents in question are deleted and reentered.

2. To automate the import process, use the predefined task "Production_Plan_Import" under "Configuration > TaskManagement".

You can use this task, for example, to import the production plans from an Excel file each day at a specific time to Energy Manager.

Result

You have successfully created the plant and its production plan and these are now ready for use.

See also

Options (Page 53) Task Management (Page 831) Forecast (Page 239) Jobs in Energy Manager PRO (Page 398)

2.2.4.5 Batch and material-related analysis

Configuring data points for batch and material ID

To carry out a batch analysis, you need a data point each for batch ID and material ID. The start and end time of a batch is calculated via the change of the batch ID. A batch ID must be saved in the data point for each time. For this reason there is a separate batch ID for the time periods between batches. The ID for this case is 0.

The material ID specifies which material is produced in the batch and in which plant the batch is produced.

Requirement

• The data point has been created.

Procedure

To configure a data point for acquiring the batch ID or material ID, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the shortcut menu using the right mouse button.
- 2. Select the "Edit..." menu command.

The "Data point" dialog box opens.

🛃 Measureme	nt - d_Batchanaysis_Batch	D					-		\times
Name:	d_Batchanaysis_Batch_I	D							
Description:									^
									~
Inventory N#:	NO_KKS		Ident.	Token:					
Process: a_	erf_wincc_PCS7	 Active 		Creation	Date:	5/10/20	019 1:40	:13 PM	
Unit: 1		 Log to 	DB	Valid at:		5/10/2	019 1:40	:13 PM	-
Input Unit:	1	- Kernel		Valid unt	il:	1/1/25	00 12:00	:00 AM	-
Function: Ev	ent measurement T1 cycli	c 🗸 Priority	Priority High Last change		nged by:	ADMIN			
Type: Ott	ners	Cloud	relevant						
Versionizing:	No 💌	Replacement:	NO				👻 🗌 F	eplace Inv	alids
Cycle Time:	15 min 🕞	Calculation Window	w:]	Unit:	h		•
Country:	Germany 👻	Corrected until:	v 1	/1/2017 1:0	0:00 AM	-			
Type:									
Generic	Name			Value					^
 Datapoint 	Name			d_Batchana	iysis_Bato	h_ID			
 Constant 	Description								
Operived	Address								_
	Time Stamp								-
	Details	Counter	Plaus	sibility	Compi	ression		Export	
9						ок		Cancel	

- 3. Configure the data point with the following settings:
 - Function: "Result measurement T1 spontaneous" or "Result measurement T1 cyclic"

For further information on the functioning of the data point, read the section "Background: Batch-related data" in the section "Configuring "Batch analysis" reports (Page 226)".

- Type: "Other"
- 4. If you have created the data point manually, you also configure the following settings:
 - Process: Select the channel to which you want to assign the values of the data point.
 - Unit: Select the unit "1".
 - Data point type: Data point
 - Address: Enter the address that the driver uses to identify the data point.

Result

The data point is configured.

See also

Creating data points (Page 133)

Creating a plant variable

Overview

In the course of the plant definition or during the batch analysis you can also create a new plant variable.

Procedure

1. Click "Insert plant variable" in the menu bar under "Processing > Plant and Material definition".

The "Plant variable" dialog opens.

Pr	ocessing	Analysis	Master Da	ita Admii	nistration H	lelp
cport	Allocation	<u>∦</u> ∦ ₽	5 🤨 🔚 rofile	le 🔡 🛛	🛱 🏪 🖄 Id Material	
ĔΣ		E	quipment	Variable	- 0	×
N	lame:					
D	escription:	1				^
						~
				ок	Cancel	

- 2. Enter a name and optionally a description.
- 3. Save with OK.

Result

The new plant variable has been created.



Configuring "Batch analysis" reports

The batch analysis helps you to evaluate the energy and media consumption for a specific batch or product per plant. The batch analysis also takes batches into account that are handled sequentially on several plants.

The "Batch analysis" report provides you with a reporting module in Energy Manager, which you can use to evaluate the energy consumption per batch or material.

The following figure shows the parameters that you need for this analysis.



① Consumption data

This example relates to the gas and electricity consumption. The CO₂ that develops during production, for example, is calculated based on the CO₂ equivalent of the consumers.

2 Production data

The quantity or number of products manufactured within the batch runtime.

③ Batch data

The "Batch ID" is used as unique identifier of the batch and defines the start and end of batch runtime.

The "Material ID", for example, denotes the product type manufactured in this batch.

The diagram in the following figure highlights the data acquisition process of a batch that is busy from 10:00 h to 12:00 h:



- 1 Consumption and production data is acquired during batch runtime at an acquisition cycle of five seconds. At a runtime of two hours, 1440 values are saved as raw data for each data point.
- 2 At the end of the batch, the batch data is generated and calculated in the mevas, e.g. the total, on the basis of the acquired raw data. Use the "Generate batch data" database job to generate the batch data.

You may delete the raw data on completion of your calculation, e.g. after one week. The pre-calculation of batch data offers you two advantages:

- You acquire the consumption data of a batch in the seconds range and profit from very precise data.
- The time it takes to generate the batch analysis report is reduced, as the values of the precalculated MEVAs are used.

Requirement

The following data points have been created and configured:

- At least one data point for the consumption values of the batch
- A data point for the production figures of the batch
- A data point for the Material ID of the batch
- A data point for the batch ID of the batch

The section "Configure data points for batches and material ID (Page 223)" describes how to configure the data points for acquiring the batch ID and material ID.

In the following example a batch analysis is configured with these data points:

Name	Description	Cycle time
d_PM1_Electricity	Acquires the power consumption of a plant.	5 s
d_PM1_Gas	Acquires the gas consumption of a plant.	5 s
d_PM1_CO2	Acquires the CO ₂ production of a plant.	5 s
d_PM1_Production	Acquires the quantity or number of products manufactured on a plant.	5 s
d_BatchID_PM1	Acquires the batch start and end times.	5 s
d_MaterialID_PM1	Acquires the material IDs of the product types produced per batch.	5 s

Copying data points

1. Copy the data points that you need for the batch analysis to the selected subfolder.

🕂 📴 Batch	n_related_analyses Igs
XXXXX	d_BatchID_PM1 d_PM1_Production d_MateriaIID_PM1 d_PM1_CO2 d_PM1_Gas d_PM1_Electricity

Creating MEVAs

1. Under the desired folder, create measuring variables with the "Sum real" database function for each data point used.

Example of the creation of the "m_PM1_Electricity_sumR" measuring variables for the "d PM1 Electricity" data point:

😰 Measu	rring Variable - m_PM1_Electricity_sumR 🛛 🗖 🗖	x
Name:	m_PM1_Electricity_sumR	
Description:	PM1 Electricity	^
		~
KKS:		
Function Type:	Sum real Details	
Function Type: Unit:	Sum real Details W/h	•
Function Type: Unit: Compression Level:	Sum real Details W/h Entry values	•

2. Copy the corresponding data points to the subfolder of the MEVA folder.



Creating plant variables

1. Create the necessary plant variables in the selected subfolder.

The section "Creating a plant variable (Page 225)" describes how to create plant variables.



The "Batch DP" and "Material DP" plant variables are predefined in Energy Manager. Copy these plant variables to the selected folder.

Creating a plant

1. Create the necessary plant variables in the selected subfolder.

The section "Configuring the plant (Page 219)" describes how to create a plant.

2. In the plant configuration dialog, drag-and-drop the plant variables, including the corresponding measuring variables *l* data points from the project tree to this folder.

<u>.</u>			Equipment - Paper Maschir	ne 1	I		-		
Name:	Paper Maschine 1	_	Equipment Identifi	ier.	Paper Masc	hine 1			
Description:								^	
								×	
Configuratio	Batchlist Production Plan								
Equipr	nentvariable		Object						
äΣ Batch D)P		d_BatchID_PM1						
💑 CO2		••Σ	m_PM1_C02_sumR						
<mark>≝</mark> Σ Electric	ity	**Σ	m_PM1_Electricity_sumR						
<mark>≝</mark> Σ Gas		••Σ	m_PM1_Gas_sumR						
🛛 🎽 🛛 Produc	tion	÷Σ	m_PM1_Production_sumR						
Equipmentva	iriable (only)		Object:				New	Save	
<mark>≝</mark> Σ Material	DP		d_MateriaIID_PM1				E	dit	
Drop node he	ere using Drag&Drop:						De	lete	
9				0	ĸ	Apply	Ca	ncel	

Intermediate result

You have successfully created all objects that you need for the "Batch analysis" report.

🛱 🛅 Batch_related_analyses
🛱 🛅 Tags
d_BatchID_PM1
d_PM1_Production
d_MaterialID_PM1
d_PM1_CO2
d_PM1_Gas
└── 🕶 d_PM1_Electricity
🖻 🛄 Mevas
🛱 🔁 m_PM1_CO2_sumR
d_PM1_CO2
🛱 😰 m_PM1_Electricity_sumR
d_PM1_Electricity
🗗 🛅 m_PM1_Gas_sumR
d_PM1_Gas
□ 12 m_PM1_Production_sumR
d_PM1_Production
En Equipment_for_batch_analyses
Er Reper Maschine 1
D_MaterialD_PM1
m 2 m_PM1_Gas_sume
Ele Equipment veriables
Erecupment_variables
Equipment_variables
E-Equipment_variables ■ Σ Production ■ Σ Batch DP ■ Σ Material DP
E-Lequipment_variables -ΔΣ Production -ΔΣ Batch DP -ΔΣ Material DP -ΔΣ Flectricity
E= → Δ_Σ Production → Δ_Σ Batch DP → Δ_Σ Material DP → Δ_Σ Electricity → Δ_Σ Gas
Equipment_variables ΔΣ Production ΔΣ Batch DP ΔΣ Material DP ΔΣ Electricity ΔΣ Gas ΔΣ CO2

Batch-related data

Take into consideration the following points with regard to the acquisition values of the batch and consumption information for batch data analysis:

• Acquisition values of the required numerical data points do not have to exist in the global database. Batch calculation recognizes when the acquisition values are not saved on the global database and automatically transfers the required data from the acquisition component.

Example:

The input data point "d_BatchID_PM1" for recording the batch start and end time is recorded in a 5-second cycle. Due to the compression configuration of the data point, only the compression levels 15 minutes, 1 day and 1 month are saved in the global database. The 5-second values remain as acquisition values on the acquisition component.

Note

The acquisition data are saved on the acquisition component for 62 days. If saved acquisition values are used on the acquisition components, batch analysis is therefore only possible for the last 62 days.

- Acquisition values of the required STRING data points must exist in the global database.
- To enable the display of batch information in a data point, select one of the following entries in the "Function" list box:
 - "Event measurement T1 spontaneous"
 - "Event measurement T1 acyclic"

4	Measurem	ient - d_	Reactor_1_Tem	np_1		>
Name:	d_Reactor_1_Temp_1					
Description						-
Inventory N#:	NO_KKS		Ident. Token:			-
Process: a	_acq_OPC		Active	Creation Date:	20.10.2008 08:36:50	
Unit:	c		Log to DB	Valid at:	20.10.2008 08:36:50	I
Input Unit: 🗌] *c		Kernel	Valid until:	01.01.2500 00:00:00	ł
Function: E	vent measurement T1 spontaneous	-	Priority High			

• You do not have to specifically mark data points for saving consumption information.

Note

If a large volume of acquisition data is used, e.g. 5-second values for several weeks, the data transmission may delay batch generation.

Background: Batch-related data

The data is stored in a data point with the configuration "Event measurement T1 spontaneous" as follows:

Time stamp	Value
01.02.2008 14:32	0
01.02.2008 15:12	1
01.02.2008 18:20	0
01.02.2008 21:10	1

Each changing value defines the end or start of a batch. In the above case it is possible to define values for the following time ranges in the matrix.

- 01.02.2008 14:32 01.02.2008 15:12
- 01.02.2008 15:12 01.02.2008 18:20
- 01.02.2008 18:20 01.02.2008 21:10

The data is stored in a data point with the configuration "Event measurement T1 cyclic" as follows:

Time stamp	Value
01.02.2008 14:32	0
1 February, 2008 14:33	0
1 February, 2008 14:34	1
1 February, 2008 14:35	1
1 February, 2008 14:36	0

In this case, it is possible to define values for the following time ranges in the matrix.

- 01.02.2008 14:32 01.02.2008 14:34
- 01.02.2008 14:34 01.02.2008 14:36

The values entered are written to the database with "TO" time stamp and are therefore available for further evaluations.

Calculating batch data

1. Copy the "Calculate_Batchdata" task to the selected subfolder to calculate the batch data.

The "Calculate_Batchdata" task is predefined in Energy Manager. It is not necessary to recreate this task.

🕂 🔁 Auton	natic_batch_data_calculation_options
📋 🗗 🔂 Ca	ilculate_Batchdata
i 🗇 🕞	Calculate_Batchdata
<u> </u>	🕛 Interval Calculate_Batchdata
	🛄 💁 Job for batchdata recalc

2. You can start the task manually by double-clicking the task and clicking "Start".

Intermediate result

The batch data is being generated. The total of the consumption values of the period contained in the meva that is assigned to the plant is calculated automatically.

You can display the batch data in the "Batch list" tab of the "Plant" or "Material" dialog with the corresponding filter entries.

i∰a		Equipmer	nt - Paper Masch	nine 1		- 🗆 🗙
Name:	Paper Maschine 1		EquipmentIder	tifier. Paper Mas	chine 1	
Description:						^
						×
Configuration	Batchlist Production F	lan				
From 10	.03.2014 00:00:00	To 12.03.2014	14:36:29			
Material (al	0	Equipment Paper Masc	hine 1 🔹	Refresh		
BatchID	Starttime	Endtime د	Source	Destination	Material	New
13456	10.03.2014 14:34:5	3 11.03.2014 14:34:53 0 11.03.2014 14:35:30		Paper Maschin	no Material no Material	Edit
67890	10.03.2014 14:35:4	9 11.03.2014 14:35:49		Paper Maschin	no Material	Delete
						Overview
						Recalc
9				ок	Apply	Cancel

Creating a report

1. Create a report with the query type "Day" and "Batch-related analyses" module in the selected subfolder.

The section "Creating a report (Page 276)" describes how to create a report.

-	Report - Product Analysis	_ □	×
Name:	ProductAnalysis		
Description			~
			\sim
🎱 Display	Туре		
Text Type:	Name Country: Germany		•
Query T	ypes		
Name	ے Comp. Level S. P. M.	New	
Tag	Entry values	Edit	
		Delete	
		Delete	
Nodule:	s [\Parameters]		
Name	Type Ti A. F.	New	
batch	Batch related analyses Of N N	Edit	
		Delete	
		Clone	
C Eveal Tr	omilato		
EACEI II			
Ope	en Generate Entry Points Import		
4	OK Apply	Cancel	
-	ON OND		

- 2. Create a report template.
- 3. Copy the plant variables, the plant, as well as the associated measuring variables and data points to the subfolder of the report module.



4. Start the report with the query type "Day" and query period for the batch analysis.

Result

The calculated batches are visualized in the report.

		Mate	rial specifi	c analysis						
From	26.04.2012									
till	27.04.2012									
								Consum	otion	
								consum	ption	
Equipment	Material	Batch ID	from	till	hh:mm:ss	CO2	Gas	Electricity	Material DP	Batch DP
Equipment Paper Machine 1	Material no Material	Batch ID 12458	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00	till 26.04.2012 10:00:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00	CO2 0	Gas 0	Electricity 0	Material DP 0	Batch DP 0
Equipment Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Material no Material no Material	Batch ID 12458 132500	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00	till 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00 03:30:00	CO2 0	Gas 0 0	Electricity 0 0	Material DP 0 0	Batch DP 0 0
Equipment Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Material no Material no Material no Material	Batch ID 12458 132500 16125	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 20:00:00	till 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 23:30:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00 03:30:00 03:30:00	CO2 0 0	Gas 0 0 0	Electricity 0 0 0	Material DP 0 0	Batch DP 0 0
Equipment Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Material no Material no Material no Material Heatset 40g/m ²	Batch ID 12458 132500 16125 132500	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 20:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00	till 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 23:30:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 03:30:00	CO2 0 0 1.344	Gas 0 0 4.438	Electricity 0 0 0 1.547	Material DP 0 0 1.680	Batch DP 0 0 7.462
Equipment Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Material no Material no Material Heatset 40g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ²	Batch ID 12458 132500 16125 132500 12458	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 20:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 06:00:00	till 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 23:30:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 10:00:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 04:00:00	CO2 0 0 1.344 2.912	Gas 0 0 4.438 5.908	Electricity 0 0 1.547 2.331	Material DP 0 0 1.680 3.640	Batch DP 0 0 7.462 9.572
Equipment Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Material no Material no Material Heatset 40g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ²	Batch ID 12458 132500 16125 132500 12458 12550	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 20:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00	til 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 23:30:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 12:00:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 04:00:00 01:30:00	CO2 0 0 1.344 2.912 2.564	Gas 0 0 4.438 5.908 4.580	Electricity 0 0 1.547 2.331 1.789	Material DP 0 0 1.680 3.640 3.245	Batch DP 0 0 7.462 9.572 8.560
Equipment Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Material no Material no Material Heatset 40g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ²	Batch ID 12458 132500 16125 132500 12458 12550 15750	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 20:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00 26.04.2012 14:00:00	til 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 23:30:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 12:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 04:00:00 01:30:00 02:30:00	CO2 0 0 1.344 2.912 2.564 2.684	Gas 0 0 4.438 5.908 4.580 5.762	Electricity 0 0 1.547 2.331 1.789 1.814	Material DP 0 0 1.680 3.640 3.245 3.365	Batch DP 0 0 7.462 9.572 8.560 10.560
Equipment Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Material no Material no Material Heatset 40g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ²	Batch ID 12458 132500 16125 132500 12458 12550 15750 16125	from 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 13:00:00 26.04.2012 20:00:00 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00 26.04.2012 14:00:00 26.04.2012 20:00:00	till 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 23:30:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 12:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00 26.04.2012 23:30:00	hh:mm:ss 04:00:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 03:30:00 04:00:00 01:30:00 02:30:00 03:30:00	CO2 0 0 1.344 2.912 2.564 2.684 3.640	Gas 0 0 4.438 5.908 4.580 5.762 5.908	Electricity 0 0 1.547 2.331 1.789 1.814 2.912	Material DP 0 0 1.680 3.640 3.245 3.365 3.140	Batch DP 0 0 7.462 9.572 8.560 10.560 12.460

Using the batch analysis result for regression analysis

Use the diagram functionality of Microsoft Excel for the regression analysis. The analysis is based on the recorded production and consumption data depending on the produced product.

- 1. Create an autofilter. In the "Materials" column, filter by the required product type.
- 2. Because consumption and produced quantity are relevant for the regression analysis, hide the columns that are not required.

	A	В	С	D			G			ĸ
12			Mate	rial specifi	c analysis					
13										
14	From	26.04.2012								
15	till	27.04.2012								
16										
17								Cons	sumption	
18	Equipment	Matorial T	Databil 🔻	from	Fill 👻	hh:mm: 🍸	CO2 🔽	Gas 🔻	Electri 🔽	Batch I
		iviateriai	Datoni	10011	NII					
23	Paper Machine 1	Newsprint 42,5g/m ²	12458	26.04.2012 06:00:00	26.04.2012 10:00:00	04:00:00	2.912	5.908	2.331	9.572
23 24	Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Newsprint 42,5g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ²	12458 12550	26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00	26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 12:00:00	04:00:00 01:30:00	2.912 2.564	5.908 4.580	2.331 1.789	9.572 8.560
23 24 25	Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1 Paper Machine 1	Newsprint 42,5g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ² Newsprint 42,5g/m ²	12458 12550 15750	26.04.2012 06:00:00 26.04.2012 10:30:00 26.04.2012 14:00:00	26.04.2012 10:00:00 26.04.2012 12:00:00 26.04.2012 16:30:00	04:00:00 01:30:00 02:30:00	2.912 2.564 2.684	5.908 4.580 5.762	2.331 1.789 1.814	9.572 8.560 10.560

3. Insert the diagram type "Point (X Y)", for example, on a new worksheet.

4. Select the required range as data range in the batch analysis.

5. To identify outliers more clearly, generate a trend line if necessary.

Based on the formula, read the factors "k" and "d" which you can use as basis for a production-planning oriented forecast:



See also

Task Manager (Page 405) Configuring reports (Page 279)

Using the batch list

Overview

The batch list shows you the batches that were produced on a plant.

The following filter options are available for displaying specific batches:

• Time frame

The batch list shows only the batches that were produced in the selected time frame.

• Plant

The batch list shows only the batches that were produced on the selected plant.

• Material

The batch list shows only the batches that were produced on the selected production lot type.

You may also edit batches in the batch list and add new batches to the list. For example, you may view and edit the figures that were used for batch calculations. You can access the batch list either via a plant or via a material.

Note

The "Batch list" tab is not available until the plant completion and renewed opening of a Material or a Plant.

Procedure

- 1. Double-click a plant or material and select the "Batch list" tab.
 - The "Batch list" tab is displayed in the "Plant" or "Material" dialog.

1		Equipment - Paper M	aschine 1		- 🗆 ×
Name:	Paper Maschine 1	Equipment	Identifier: Paper Masch	ine 1	
Description:					^
					×
Configuratio	n Batchlist Production Plan				
From 1	03.2014 00:00:00 💽 To	10.03.2014 14:34:06	Defreeh		
Material (a	ll) 두 Equi	oment Paper Maschine 1	Keiresn		
BatchID	Starttime 🔺 Endtime	Source Destination	on Material		New
					Edit
					Delete
					Overview
					Recalc
9			ок	Apply	Cancel

- 2. Specify the following data to display the selected batches in the batch list:
 - Specify the required time frame in "From ... to".
 - Select the production lot type from the "Material" dialog.
 - Select the plant from the "Equipment" dialog.
- 3. Click "Update".

The batches are displayed in the batch list.

÷		E	quipment - Pape	r Maschine 1		
Name:	Paper Maschine 1		Equipm	nent Identifier. Pa	per Maschine 1	
Description	n:					^
						~
Configura	ation Batchlist Produ	uction Plan				
From	10.03.2014 00:00:00	T 0 1	2.03.2014 14:36:29			
Material	(all)	Equipment P	aper Maschine 1	Refre	sh	
BatchID	Starttime	Endtime	Source	Destinat	ion Material	New
13456	10.03.2014 1	14:34:53 11.03.2014	14:34:53	Paper Ma	schin no Material	
45566	10.03.2014 1	14:35:30 11.03.2014	14:35:30	Paper Ma	aschin no Material	Edit
67890	10.03.2014 1	14:35:49 11.03.2014	14:35:49	Paper Ma	ischin no Material	Delete
						Overview
						Recalc
				_		
9				ок	Apply	Cancel

- 4. You may create a batch manually as follows:
 - Click "New".

The "Batch Details" dialog opens.

	Bato	:h Det	ails	_ □	×
Batch ID:					_
Equipment	Paper Maschine 1				-
Material:	no Material				•
from	10.03.2014 14:37:05	- to	11.03.2014 1	4:37:05 💽	
Equipment	Variable		Value	Unit	
			UK	Cancel	
			010	-Odified	

- Enter a Batch ID in the "Batch ID" field.
- Select the plant from the "Equipment" dialog.
- Select the production lot type from the "Material" dialog.
- Specify the required time frame in "From ... to".
- Click "OK".

The batch will be created. You can display the batch in the batch list by entering the corresponding filter criteria.

5. The batch figures can be viewed and edited by clicking on "Edit".

The "Equipment Variable" area lists the plant variables that were assigned to the respective plant.

The "Value" and "Unit" fields list the corresponding figures that were calculated based on the respective mevas.

- You can edit figures by clicking the respective entry in the "Value" field.
- 6. A batch is removed from the batch list by clicking "Delete".

7. Click "Overview" to display the overview for a batch.

4	Batchoverview		_ 🗆 🗙
Batch Nr.: 67890	Refresh	Foreward	Backward
Direction: Foreward			
⊡- ➡ 67890			
Property	Value		
BatchID	67890		
Batchname			
Starttime	10.03.2014 14:35:49	-	
Endtime	11.03.2014 14:35:49	-	
Source			
Destination	Paper Maschine 1	1	
Material	no Material	1	
BatchID Source]	
BatchID Destination]	
Nominal value			
Current value			
Name transfertype			
Recipename			
State		_	
]	
		ок	Cancel

8. Click "Update" to recalculate the batches.

2.2.4.6 Forecast

Definition

Energy Manager is used to plan and forecast the energy requirements of your company for a time period which can be freely selected.

Usage

Planning and forecasting are preconditions for sustainable energy management. This is facilitated by generating forecasts of the energy requirements and load profiles for one or several locations, individual consumers, production areas, or buildings.

Energy requirements planning for a specific time period returns procurement benefits due to the tiered tariff systems of the energy providers. Maximum financial benefits are achieved at the following conditions:

- The difference between the expected and actual consumption is kept to a minimum.
- Load peaks are shifted to tariff times during which energy generation is at a lower cost.

2.2 Configuration

Demands on an energy management system

Load peaks in industrial plants are primarily determined by production processes, as well as shift or product cycles. The forecasting methods may differ even among different plant units:

- Forecasting in pulp mills, for example, is usually based on production quantities. The shredder and waste paper units are only in operation as required, which is why forecasting is based on production plans.
- By contrast, forecasting in the automobile industry is based on shift schedules.

Implementation in Energy Manager

Energy Manager supports the following methods for planning and forecasting:

• Multi-Variable Regression Analysis based on daily consumption values

As the forecast may depend on up to five variables with the help of the multi-variable regression analysis, this method is recommended. The other methods for planning and forecasting do not offer the possibility of making the result dependent on further variables.

- Forecast based on the comparison day principle
- Forecasting based on production plan

The forecasts can be compared with the ACTUAL data in future analyses.

See also

Configuring the plant (Page 219)

Jobs in Energy Manager PRO (Page 398)

Multi-Variable Regression Analysis

Forecasting based on daily values is based on previously acquired actual values. In this case, the energy consumption is allocated to each daily production. In the forecast, you then calculate the expected energy requirements as a function of the expected production quantity.

You can analyze the daily production quantities and corresponding consumption data with the help of a regression analysis. With the result of the analysis, Energy Manager calculates future consumption data depending on up to five variables. You define these variables when configuring the regression analysis.

Forecasting based on the regression analysis is implemented in Energy Manager with the "MultiRegression" widget in the Energy Manager Web Client.

Procedure

To create a forecast with the help of multi-variable regression analysis, follow the configuration description of the MultiRegression widget.

Forecast based on the comparison day principle

The comparison day principle is based on shifts or day types which are observed over a reference period, such as a quarter. The energy demand is calculated depending on the scheduled days and associated plant operating times.

- Examples of type days: Workday (8 hours), workday (6 hours), workday (10 hours), holiday
- Examples of shifts: Morning shift, evening shift, night shift, special shift

Usually, you plan type days on a weekly basis, while flexible planning without committing to an entire week is also possible. Holidays and other non-working days are taken into account automatically.

Use the calendar to react to changes: You can change type days or shift these to other weekdays. Therefore, your forecasts are always up-to-date.

Evaluation of the forecast quality, i.e. the comparison with actual data, concludes the forecast. The result may affect the next forecast.

Procedure

Proceed as follows to create a forecast based on the comparison day principle:

- 1. Configure a profile or master profile with shifts as described in thesection "Profile" (Page 196).
- 2. Configure the report "Load profile analysis module type", as described in the section "Report" (Page 274).
- 3. Select the "Start..." menu command from the shortcut menu of the report.
- 4. Select the time period from the past on the basis of which you create the forecast from the drop-down list "From" and "To".

Make sure that the configured day sequence of the profile is rolled out for this period.

5. Under "Extended parameter", enter the term "save" in the "Batches" entry field.

Parameter			
Query Type: Month			-
From		То	
2/1/2019 12:00:00 A	M -	3/1/2019 12:00:00 AM 🚽	
Advanced Paramete	r		¥
Version		Model	
Current 3/14/2	019 3:20:22 PM 🔍	Current / / : :	-
Compression Level:	Entry values		•
Batches:	save		<u>^</u>
			v
Keep:			
Country:	Germany		•

6. Click the "Start" button.

The respective average consumption for the corresponding shifts is determined and saved.

7. To obtain a forecast, use the report module "Protocol" for a future time period.

Make sure that the configured day sequence of the profile is rolled out for this period.

Forecasting based on production plan

With forecasting based on production planning, energy consumption is calculated based on the production quantities or batches to be produced. A stable relation between power consumption and batches/quantities is a prerequisite for this. The following linear equation $y = k \cdot x + d$ is used for this.

The variables have the following meaning in the linear equation:

Tag	Meaning
у	Predicted consumption
k	Consumption per produced quantity
х	Quantity/number of pieces produced
d	Consumption that is independent of the produced quantity

To be able to carry out a production plan-related forecast, you need the values for k, d and x. If you do not know these values, determine the values using one of the following methods.

• "Batch analysis" report

The section "Batch and material-related analysis (Page 223)" describes how to configure the "Batch analysis" report.

• "Multi-Variable Regression Analysis" widget.

Provide the Energy Manager with the value for x via a production plan.

Provide Energy Manager with the values for k and d via a consumption type.

You can define the production plan directly in Energy Manager or by means of a predefined Microsoft Excel file.

Requirements

- The corresponding plant with production plan is created and configured.
- The corresponding consumption type is created and configured.

Procedure

To create a production plan-related forecast, proceed as follows:

- 1. Create an MEVA of the type "Load forecast generally relatively".
- 2. Connect the consumption type and the plant with the MEVA.
- Create a report with a protocol module.
 Define the time period for the forecast in the report.

4. Connect the MEVA to the report.

The MEVA thus receives the time period for the forecast.

5. Start the report.

Examples of forecasting

Configuring long-term forecast reports

Overview

An overall forecast is calculated for the following year at the end of each annual period (e.g. end of December). The basic load profiles that have been calculated and adjusted by the customer, including the future holidays calendar in Energy Manager, form the basis for an overall forecast. This long-term demand forecast is calculated once in Energy Manager (initiated manually). and forms the basis for calculating demands of the following year or of the next years (2-year forecast). The results of this forecast are retained without changes in the Energy Manager system for the entire year. The long-term forecast has a resolution of one hour.

Requirement

- A profile that contains the typical and special days has been created in the system.
- A measuring variable for forecast calculation and the derived data point has been created in the system.

Creating derived data points

- 1. Create a derived data point that you can use to create the long-term forecast.
- 2. Set the cycle time to 1 hour.

The data point is then ready for use.

⊡ Datenpunkte Prognose Werk AVZ

Creating measuring variables

1. To create the long-term forecast, create a measuring variable that adds up the profile values and special effects.

Profile values: Function type "Profile value

Special effects: Function type "Parameter"

2. Create the "m_Forecast_AVZ_total_add" measuring variable (function type "Addition of n MEVAs") in the same way. Copy the measuring variables in the order displayed to the "m_Forecast_AVZ_total_add" measuring variable node.

This measuring variables adds up the profile value and the adjustment values.



3. Configure this measuring variable as input of the derived data point (author's remark: that was created above).



4. Create the "m_Long-term forecast_AVZ_average" measuring variable with function type "Average". Copy the derived data point "a_longtermforecast_AVZ" to this measuring variable node.

```
Image: Image
```

Configuring "long-term forecast" reports

1. Create the report "Long-term forecast_electrical power_analysis_AVZ" with the module types "Module derived measurement" and "Log with from/to" as well as the "Ad-Hoc" and "Year" query types.

Import a configured template so that the necessary macros are available.

The Client then contains the following structure:



2. Assign the objects to be evaluated to the modules.



- 3. Copy the derived data point for the total consumption forecast (profile + adjustments) to the "Derived measurement" module structure.
- 4. Copy the measuring variable for profile calculation, the three measuring variables for the adjustment factors, as well as the measuring variable for the calculated total consumption to the "Report module" structure.
- 5. You must specify the cycle for calculation of the values. Preset this value to avoid incorrect entries.

- 6. Select the "Edit" command from the shortcut menu of the report.
- 7. Select the "AdHoc" and "Year" query types. Select interval "1" and unit "h" accordingly.

E	Report - Lastf	ristprognose _.	_Strom_	AVZ	- 🗆	x
Name: Lastfr	stprognose_Strom_AVZ					
Description:						
🍙 Display Type						
Text Type: Name		 Country: 	German	y		-
Query Types					_	
Name	7	Comp. Level	S.	P. M.	New	
Ad-Hoc	I	Entry values			Edit	
Year		Entry values			Doloto	=
SModules (\ Para Name	neters] Type		Ti	A. F.	New	
Duen Type	Protocol w	/ith from/to	Off Tevt	N N	Edit	
Ad-Hoc Year abgel	Derived m	1 h 1 h easurement	Off	ΝΝ	Clone	
Excel Template	Generate Entry Points	Import		Annal		
9		OK		Арріу	Cancel	

Starting report calculation

- 1. Start the report, e.g. for a year.
- 2. Select the "1 h" interval in the "Module Start/Stop Info" dialog if the interval is not set by default.
- 3. Click "OK to close the dialog and to start report calculation. The report is created in the "Year" query type structure.

```
È- 🔜 Langfristprognose_Strom_AVZ_Jahr
__ └─ 🔞 Analyse_AVZ - from: 2014.01.01 till: 2015.01.01 created: 2014.03.26 15:13:38
```

The report result is available in the following form:

M	icrosoft Excel - I	Mappe1								
團	Datei Bearbeiten	Ansicht	Einfügen Format	Extras Daten Fen	ster <u>?</u>	-		Frage hier einge	tben 💌 -	. 8 ×
10	🗃 🖬 🖪 🖓 I		🎔 📖 X 🖬 🖻	L • 𝒴 + 🗇 • (≌ •	😟 Σ - ½↓ ¼↓	100%	- 0			
Arial	1	10 -	F K U = 3	E 🚍 🚾 📴 % 0	0 % % 章 律	🖽 • 🙆 • 🖌	· -			
A new	N18 -	•	f.			70				
	В	Ć	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	
1					Werk XX,XX	Anpassung 1	Anpassung 2	Anpassung 3	Summe EV	U
2	Second Second				[in MW]	[in MW]	[MW]	[MW]	[MW]	
3	Wechentag	h	Zeit	m	Prognose_AVZ_pr	passung_1_AV	passung_2_AVZ	passung_3_AVZ	ristprognose	AV2
4	7	00			MW	1,000	1,000	1,000	MW	
5	3	01	01.01.08 00:00	01.01.08 01:00	16,411	0,000	0,000	0,000	16,411	
6	3	02	01.01.08 01:00	01.01.08 02:00	15,332	0,000	0,000	0,000	15,332	
7	3	03	01.01.09 02:00	01.01.09 03:00	14,925	0,000	0,000	0,000	14,925	1 2
8	3	04	01.01.08 03:00	01.01.08 04:00	14,939	0,000	0,000	0,000	14,939	
9	3	05	01.01.08 04:00	01.01.08 05:00	15,662	0,000	0,000	0,000	15,662	
10	3	06	01.01.08 05:00	01.01.08 06:00	17,109	0,000	0,000	0,000	17,109	
11	3	07	01.01.08 06:00	01.01.08 07:00	18,459	0,000	0,000	0,000	18,459	
12	3	08	01.01.08 07:00	01.01.08 08:00	18,866	0,000	0,000	0,000	18,866	~
н ч	► H \ Jahrespro	ignose /	, · · ·				<	101		>
Bereit	1								NF	

Column F displays the forecast values, while columns G, H, and I display the adjustments. Column J displays the sum of the profile value + adjustments. Columns D and E display the time range of the values.

Enter the <CTRL+D> keystroke to start generation of the diagrams for all 12 months of the calculated year.

The profile value and sum trends are identical if no adjustments were made. The data in the following screenshot was manipulated to visualize an adjustment.

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.2 Configuration



Result

You have successfully configured the long-term forecast and it is now ready for use.

Configuring schedule reports

Overview

Every month a schedule is calculated for the next month and the result is reported to the energy supplier. The schedule is created in Energy Manager in the last working week of the month. The Excel file is communicated manually to the energy supplier by a team member of the customer. A resolution of 1 h is specified for the load data of the schedule registration.

Layout of the report template

This report template consists of two worksheets:

- "INFO" worksheet: General information on the reporting instance.
- "Internal" worksheet: Actual values.

	Aicrosoft Exce	el - Mappe1					<
:B	Datei Bearbe	eiten Ansicht Einfügen Format Extras Daten (Eenster 2		Frage hier einge	ben 🔹 🚽 🤊	×
10	🐸 🖬 🖪 👌	9 4 Q 17 X X 🖻 🖻 - 🛷 17 - 14	- 🧙 Σ - 2↓ 👬 🛄 🖓 100% -				
Ari	al	• 10 • F K U = 5 = 3 9 %	001 %				
	E20	← f&					
	С	D	E	F	G	н	7
1	Info	Datum	Von				
2						2.08	
3		Rücksende E-Mail	Vomame_Nachname@Kunde.com				
4		Bearbeiter	Hr. Nachname				
5		Tel	+43-5-1707-61426				
6							
7		Absender	Kunde Werk 1				
8	1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	/ Televen /		-			~
14 4	I F FILINFU,	Kinten /	JSI	-		2	
Bere	R					NF SCRL	

With the exception of dates, the contents of INFO are constants and defined in the template.

×	Aicrosoft Excel -	Mappe1						
:2	<u>D</u> atei <u>B</u> earbeiter	n <u>A</u> nsicht <u>E</u> infügen Fo	rma <u>t</u> E <u>x</u> tras Date <u>n</u> <u>F</u>	<u>Eenster ?</u>	Frage hier eingeben	8×		
: 🗅] 🚰 📕 🖹 🗐 🥞 🐧 💞 🖏 μ 🗈 🛍 - 🍼 🔊 - 🔍 - 🧶 Σ - ϟ↓ ϟ↓ 🛄 🦓 100% - @ 💂							
Ari	al	• 10 • F <i>K</i> <u>U</u> ≣	e 😑 🗏 💀 👷 %	000 % % 💷 💷	• 🖄 • <u>A</u> • 📮			
	B22	▼ fx						
	A	В	С	D	E			
1		Intern	Datum	Von	Von	=		
2			aus Regelzone					
3			an Regelzone					
4			Seller	EVU	Kunde XX.XX			
5			Buyer	Kunde XX.XX	EVU			
6								
4			Absender	Kunde	Kunde			
		Kannandarikan laik	Version					
10		Kommentarbereich						
11								
12								
13								
14								
15	Datum	Kontrollsumme	MWh	0,00	0,00			
17		von	bis	MW	MW			
18								
19								
20		atorn /						
		item/						
Bere	IC				NF SCRL			

The "Internal" sheet in schedule format consists of the following columns and rows:

- Columns A, B, and C contain the schedule structure and may not be modified.
- Date row 1 and header rows 2 to 17 can be applied without changes. Exception: Name of the balancing group member; to be supplemented accordingly.
- Columns D and E contain hourly performance values, with column D containing the figures of ENERGIE_LF consumption and column E containing the figures of possible energy returns to the ENERGY supplier. Only one of the figures, i.e. supply or return, may be unequal to zero in any hour. Performance figures are always entered as positive numbers.

Requirement

- A profile that contains the typical and special days has been created in the system.
- A measuring variable for forecast calculation and the derived data point has been created in the system.
- The "m_Forecast_AVZ_total_add" measuring variable for calculating the forecast value has been created in the system.

```
    m_Prognose_AVZ_gesamLadd
    m_Prognose_AVZ_profil
    m_Prognose_AVZ_profil
    m_Anpassung_1_AVZ_para
    m_Anpassung_2_AVZ_para
    m_Anpassung_3_AVZ_para
```

Configuring "Schedule" reports

1. Create a derived data point "a_Monthly schedule_AVZ" for monthly forecasting (= schedule). Copy the "m_Forecast_AVZ_total_add" measuring variable to this data point structure.



 Create the "m_Monthly forecast_AVZ_total_average" measuring variable for reading the monthly forecast data. Copy the "a_Monthly schedule_AVZ" to this measuring variable structure.



3. Create the "Monthly schedule_electricity_AVZ" report. Instead of the "Report with FROM/TO" module, select the "Schedule B/L KISS-A month" module. Assign the corresponding data points and measuring variables to the modules.

Report result

1. Start the report.

As a result, the schedule is displayed in Excel. After having checked the values, forward the schedule by e-mail.

N	licrosoft Excel -	Mappe2				X
:8	<u>D</u> atei <u>B</u> earbeiter	n <u>A</u> nsicht <u>E</u> infügen For	rma <u>t Ex</u> tras Date <u>n</u> (Eenster <u>?</u> Fr	rage hier eingeben 🛛 🚽 🖉	γ×
: 🗅	📬 🖬 🖪 🖨	🖪 🖪 🗇 🖏 🕹 🗉	a 🗈 - 🖋 🤊 - 🕲	- 🧟 Σ - Ă↓ Ă↓ 🛄	🦚 100% 📼 🕢 💂	
Aria	al	- 10 - F K U	E = = 🖬 🛒 %		· () · A ·	
-	G12					
	A	B	С	D	F	T
1		Intern	Datum	01.02.08	01.02.08	T ^
2			aus Regelzone			
3			an Regelzone			-
4			Seller	EVU	Kunde XX.XX	
5			Buyer	Kunde XX.XX	EVU	
6						-
7			Absender	Kunde	Kunde	-
8		Kanada katal	Version	1		-
9		Nommentarbereich				-
11						-
12						-
13						-
14						-
15	Datum	Kontrollsumme	MWh	22.274,73	0,00	
17		von	bis	MW	MW	
18	01.02.2008	00:00	01:00	27,48	0,00	
19	01.02.2008	01:00	02:00	25,06	0,00	-
20	01.02.2008	02:00	03:00	24,09	0,00	-
21	01.02.2008	03:00	04:00	25,84	0,00	+
22	01.02.2008	04:00	05:00	31,00	0,00	-
23	01.02.2008	05:00	06:00	37,87	0,00	-
24	01.02.2008	05:00	07:00	41,74	0,00	F
25		07.00	00.00	42,49	0,00	~
H 4	► ► \ INFO \ Ir	ntern /		<	>	
Berei	it				NF	1.3

Once calculation has been completed in Energy Manager, the responsible instances of the controlling department must validate the tabular analyses that were generated and specify the corresponding version number in line 8 "Version".

The principal is under the obligation to maintain the version number for the various analyses that were generated to identify late registrations of the schedules.

Result

You have successfully created the schedule report for further use.

Configuring daily load course reports

Overview

Every day, a report that contains the actual consumption figures is calculated for the previous day. The result is written to a derived data point with hourly resolution for comparison purposes (controlling report).

The values for this report are calculated on a "rolling" basis using the figures of the last 14 days to avoid non-contiguous data. Such data gaps may develop, for example, in the course of necessary maintenance on the acquisition PC.
Layout of the report template

This report template consists of two worksheets:

• "Sheet1" contains the calculated progression of the load profile.

	Aicrosoft Excel - A	Mappe1											-	
:2	<u>D</u> atei <u>B</u> earbeiten	<u>A</u> nsicht <u>E</u> i	infügen	Forma <u>t</u>	E <u>x</u> tras	; Date <u>n</u>	<u>F</u> enster	2			Frage hier e	ingeben	-	_ 8 ×
: 0	🖻 🔒 🖪 🔒 🖌	a 🛯 💞		h 🔒	- 🛷	9 - 0	- 😣	Σ -	A↓ Z↓		46 100%	- 🕜 📘		
Ari	al -	10 - F	KU				/6 000 🐔	0,00	<		- 🗞 - <u>A</u>			
<u> </u>	Q28 •	f _x		1			,.	,. ,		-				
	A		В		CD	E	1		F	G	Н		1	
1	Datum	Datum												
2	Von	Von												
3	Bis	Bis												
4	User	User												
5	Abfrageart	Abfrageart												
6	KText	KText												
7	LText	LText												
8	Behalten	Behalten												
9	Status	Status												
10	Versionsdatum	Versionsda	tum											
11														
14														
15						Minimum			0,00					
16						Maximun	า		0,00					
17					-	Mittelwer	t	/ #DI	V/01					
19						Gecomty	- orbrouch		0.00					
10						Oesanity	erbrauen		0,00					
19														×
	▶ M \ Sheet1 /	Lastgang /						 <						
Bere	it											NF		

• "Load profile" represents the corresponding diagram that is filled automatically.

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.2 Configuration

Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Einfügen Format Extras Diagramm Eenster ? Frage hier eingeben	-8×
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	
	~
Minimum [MW] 0,00 Maximum [MW] 0,00 Mittelwert [MW]#DIV/0! Maximum [MW] 0,00 Lastgang W01.50 AVZ	
0,80	
0,60	
0,40	
0,20	
0,00	
H ← → H \ Sheet1 \Lastgang /	

Note

When using templates with a user-specific graphic worksheet, the templates always have to be saved and closed in the data worksheet (entry point of the modules). Closing the template in graphic worksheet prevents you from loading reports using this template.

Requirement

All data points and mevas needed to calculate the daily load profile have been created in the system.

Configuring "Daily load profile" reports

 Create the ""m_Sum_supply_AVZ_add"" meva (function type "Addition of n MEVAs") for calculating the actual value of consumption. Copy the "m_Supply_1_AVZ" and "m Supply 2 AVZ" mevas to the structure of this measuring variable.

Hessvariable Prognose Werk AVZ Messvariable Prognose Werk AVZ Multiple Summe_Einspeisung_AVZ_add Hesspeisung_1_AVZ Hesspeisung_2_AVZ

Note

Calculations depend on the respective plant concerned. The number of feed cables, necessary scaling, count value differences, etc.

2. Create a derived data point "a_Total load_ACTUAL_AVZ" for calculating daily consumption.

You may use the ODBC connector, for example, for the initial import of the chronological load profile.

3. Copy the "m_Sum__supply_AVZ_add" meva to the structure of this data point.



Note

If load profile history data has already been written to this data point, the ODBC data source is also connected below this data point. However, this has no influence on the calculation of values.

4. Create the "Daily load profile_electricity_AVZ" report, similar to the "Long-term forecast" report. Instead of the "Report with FROM/TO" module, select the "Query with 1 time stamp" module. Activate the "start automatically" option for the "Day" query type and set the deletion period to one week.

Note

Strictly observe the order of the modules: The module first needs to calculate (fill) the derived data point to prepare it for reading by the query module.

5. Assign the data point to the modules.



6. Create a parameter with value "14". Implement the parameter in the structure of the "Day" query type.

This factor extends the daily queries accordingly to the last 14 days instead of the last day.



Report result

The report is started automatically in accordance with the configuration.

The result shows the supply figures of the last 14 days in Excel, including minimum, maximum, average, and total consumption figures.

	Aicrosoft Excel - A	Aappe1								_	
:2	<u>D</u> atei <u>B</u> earbeiten	<u>A</u> nsicht <u>E</u> i	nfügen Forma <u>t</u>	E <u>x</u> tras	Date <u>n E</u> enste	r <u>2</u>		Frage	e hier eingeber	າ 🔻	-8×
: 🗅	💕 🖬 🖪 🔒 I	🖪 🖪 🗳	🚉 👗 🖻 🛍	- 🏈	🖌 🗸 (* 🗉 🖉	δ Σ -	A↓ Z↓	1 🌆 🖓 1	00% 🝷 🕜	Ţ	
Ari	al 🚽	10 - F	ĸ <u>u</u> ∣≣≣		🔤 🕎 % 000	€,0 ,00, ,00 →,0	< >	🖂 🗕 🖄	- <u>A</u>		
	L16 🗣	• fx									
	A		В	CD	E		F	G	H		
1	Datum		13.02.08 05:07								
2	Von		30.01.08								
3	Bis		13.02.08								
4	User	_bdata_sys									
5	Abfrageart	Tag							//-		
6	Klext	lagestahrpl	an_VV1_60 - von:	2008	.01.30 bis: 2008.	.U2.13 e	rstellt 20	108.02.13 L	15:03:27 (10 1	J2)	
4	Liext										
	Benaiten	nein Eastia									
10	Varaianadatum	renig	12 02 09 05:02								
11	versionsuatum		13.02.00 03.03								
14	Zeit	a_Gesan	ntlast_IST_AVZ								
15	30.01.08 01:00		1,98		Minimum		1,56				
16	30.01.08 02:00		1,94		Maximum		5,62				
17	30.01.08 03:00		1,89		Mittelwert		2,69				
18	30.01.08 04:00		1,95		Gesamtverbraud	:h	902,27				
19	30.01.08 05:00		1,95								
20	30.01.08 06:00		2,15								
21	30.01.08 07:00		3,12								
22	30.01.08 08:00		4,33								~
H •	► ► Sheet1 /	Lastgang /				<					>
Bere	it								N	F SCRL	

Result

You have successfully created the daily load profile report that can now be put into use or be calculated automatically on a daily basis.

Configuring controlling reports

Overview

On expiration of the period (year), a retrospective report is generated; it contains the comparison of the measured load profile with forecast data (long-term forecast values) and the schedule with schedule adjustments. The offset derived from the TARGET/ACTUAL comparison is visualized in absolute (MW) and relative (%) figures. The result is provided as annual analysis (starting at the beginning of the year) in a defined format. A resolution of one hour (1h) is specified for the load data derived from the TARGET/ACTUAL comparison.

Layout of the report template

This report template consists of an "empty" worksheet, as the module has not yet calculated and generated all values and headings.

Microsoft	Excel - Mappe1								
🛃 Datei	Bearbeiten Ansicht B	jinfügen Forma <u>t</u> E <u>x</u> t	ras Daten Eenster	2			Frage	hier eingeben	8×
i 🗅 💕 🖬	□ 營 届 급 금 [④ 改] 学 説 み 恥 弐 / ッ・ ♡・ 象 Σ・ ☆ 秋 編 尋 100%								
Arial	anal - 10 - F K U = 書 書 函 1 9 % 00 ½ 42 译 德 回 - △ - ▲								
C25	≁ f≈					11.			
B	C	D	E	F	G	Н		J	-
4	1				12				- 12
5 00									
6 00 7 00	-			2					-
8 00							8		
9 00	_				-				-
11 00									
12 00									_
14 00		1		100	1		2	8	-
15 00									~
14 4 P H/1	Sheet1/				<		- 21		N N
Berek								NF SCR	L de la de

Requirement

The following data points must be created and continuously calculated:

Total energy input (total performance/unit charge figures) of the factory, the derived DP for long-term forecasting, derived DP for the schedules.

Configuring "Controlling" reports

The analysis consists of general header data of the report and of the tabular view of performance figures. These performance figures are derived from the long-term forecast, the registered schedule, and total energy consumption of the respective plant.

In addition to performance figures, the list shows the deviations between the schedule and actual values measured. Deviations are calculated and listed both as absolute [MW] and relative [%] values.

These deviations are to be visualized in a separate diagram for every month of the year. You have already set up the "m_Long-term forecast_AVZ_average", "m_Monthly forecast_AVZ_total_average", and "m_Total load_AVZ_average" mevas in the system:



- 1. Set up the "m_Deviation_year_month_AVZ" meva (function type "MEVA minus MEVA") for calculating the difference between the monthly and long-term forecasts.
- 2. Copy the "m_Monthly forecast_AVZ_total_average" and "m_Long-term forecast_AVZ_average" mevas to the structure of this meva in the correct order.

國 v	orlage	eSOLL IST-Vergleich	.xls							×
	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н	I.	J	٠
1	-	-	-	Werk 01.50 👻	Anpassuni 🗸	Fahrplan 🔫	IST-Werte -	SOLL / IST 👻	SOLL / IST	-
2	- 26	Datum	8	Bedarfsprognose	Anpassung	Fahrplan EVU	IST-Werte	Abweichung abs	Abweichung rel	
З		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		langfristig	1. No.	et.			a second second	
4	h	VON	BIS	[in MW]	[in MW]	[MW]	[MVV]	[MW]	[%]	
5	1	01.01.2005 00:00	01.01.2005 01:00	9,068		9,068	8,263	0,806	8,883	
6	2	01.01.2005 01:00	01.01.2005 02:00	9,050		9,050	8,225	0,825	9,116	
7	3	01.01.2005 02:00	01.01.2005 03:00	9,050		9,050	8,213	0,838	9,254	
8	4	01.01.2005 03:00	01.01.2005 04:00	9,035		9,035	8,238	0,797	8,827	
9	5	01.01.2005 04:00	01.01.2005 05:00	9,050	1.	9,050	8,213	0,838	9,254	
10	6	01.01.2005 05:00	01.01.2005 06:00	9,071		9,071	8,250	0,821	9,051	
11	7	01.01.2005 06:00	01.01.2005 07:00	9,230		9,230	8,450	0,780	8,451	
12	8	01.01.2005 07:00	01.01.2005 08:00	9,104		9,104	8,450	0,654	7,184	
13	9	01.01.2005 08:00	01.01.2005 09:00	9,128	1	9,128	8,388	0,741	8,112	
14	10	01.01.2005 09:00	01.01.2005 10:00	9,035		9,035	8,288	0,748	8,273	
15	11	01.01.2005 10:00	01.01.2005 11:00	9,077		9,077	8,325	0,752	8,285	
16	12	01.01.2005 11:00	01.01.2005 12:00	9,128		9,128	8,350	0,778	8,523	
17	13	01.01.2005 12:00	01.01.2005 13:00	9,125		9,125	8,350	0,775	8,493	
18	14	01.01.2005 13:00	01.01.2005 14:00	9,155		9,155	8,363	0,792	8,656	
19	15	01.01.2005 14:00	01.01.2005 15:00	9,155		9,155	8,375	0,780	8,520	
20	16	01.01.2005 15:00	01.01.2005 16:00	9,143	15	9,143	8,400	0,743	8,126	
21	17	01.01.2005 16:00	01.01.2005 17:00	9,104		9,104	8,488	0,617	6,772	
22	18	01.01.2005 17:00	01.01.2005 18:00	9,071		9,071	8,338	0,733	8,086	
23	19	01.01.2005 18:00	01.01.2005 19:00	9,077		9,077	8,325	0,752	8,285	
24	20	01.01.2005 19:00	01.01.2005 20:00	9,062		9,062	8,338	0,725	7,995	
25	21	01.01.2005 20:00	01.01.2005 21:00	9,110	0,234	9,344	8,313	1,032	11,039	
26	22	01.01.2005 21:00	01.01.2005 22:00	9,065	0,2 Annass	ung Fahrolan	8,288	1,012	10,878	
27	23	01.01.2005 22:00	01.01.2005 23:00	9,065	0.2 Eingabe	der	8,313	0,986	10,609	
28	24	01.01.2005 23:00	02.01.2005 00:00	8,966	Leistung	sanpassung je	8,463	0,504	5,616	
29	1	02.01.2005 00:00	02.01.2005 01:00	9,068	Stunde	n MW I	830,8	0,980	10,813	
30	2	02.01.2005 01:00	02.01.2005 02:00	9,050			8,088	0,963	10,635	-
21	2	02.04 2005 02-00	02.04.2006.02.00	0.050		0.050	0.075	0.075	10 772	Ě
		CODEL TOT Vergiele	TA Diagrammy							11.

- 3. Create the "Controlling_target_actual_electricity_AVZ", similar to the "Long-term forecast" report. This report only needs a module of the type "ACTUAL/TARGET schedule".
- 4. Assign the measuring variables to the module, observing the correct order.
 - Controlling_Soll_ist_Strom_AVZ_sollist
 D=
 m_Langtristprognose_AVZ_mittel
 D=
 m Abweichung_Jahr_Monat_AVZ
 TS m_Monatsprognose_AVZ_gesamt_mittel
 D=
 m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel

Report result

- 1. Start the report, e.g. for a year.
- In addition to the FROM and TO times, the configured report outputs the values for long-term forecasting, possible adjustments, the schedule value, as well as the actual value.

These values are used to calculate absolute and relative deviation figures.

囤 v	orlage	SOLL IST-Vergleich	.xls						
1	В	C	D	E	F	G	н		J
1	-	*	•	Werk 01.50 👻	Anpassun: -	Fahrplan 👻	IST-Werte -	SOLL/IST -	SOLL / IST
2		Datum	0000.0	Bedarfsprognose langfristig	Anpassung	Fahrplan EVU	IST-Werte	Abweichung abs	Abweichung rel
4	h	VON	BIS	[in MW]	[in MW]	[MW]	[MW]	[MW]	26
5	1	01.01.2005 00:00	01.01.2005 01:00	9,068	1	9,068	8,263	0,806	8,883
6	2	01.01.2005 01:00	01.01.2005 02:00	9,050		9,050	8,225	0,825	9,116
7	3	01.01.2005 02:00	01.01.2005 03:00	9,050	N	9,050	8,213	0,838	9,254
8	4	01.01.2005 03:00	01.01.2005 04:00	9,035	2	9,035	8,238	0,797	8,827
9	5	01.01.2005 04:00	01.01.2005 05:00	9,050	8	9,050	8,213	0,838	9,254
10	6	01.01.2005 05:00	01.01.2005 06:00	9,071	, <u> </u>	9,071	8,250	0,821	9,051
11	7	01.01.2005 06:00	01.01.2005 07:00	9,230		9,230	8,450	0,780	8,451
12	8	01.01.2005 07:00	01.01.2005 08:00	9,104	() () () () () () () () () () () () () (9,104	8,450	0,654	7,184
13	9	01.01.2005 08:00	01.01.2005 09:00	9,128	÷	9,128	8,388	0,741	8,112
14	10	01.01.2005 09:00	01.01.2005 10:00	9,035		9,035	8,288	0,748	8,273
15	11	01.01.2005 10:00	01.01.2005 11:00	9,077		9,077	8,325	0,752	8,285
16	12	01.01.2005 11:00	01.01.2005 12:00	9,128		9,128	8,350	0,778	8,523
17	13	01.01.2005 12:00	01.01.2005 13:00	9,125		9,125	8,350	0,775	8,493
18	14	01.01.2005 13:00	01.01.2005 14:00	9,155		9,155	8,363	0,792	8,656
19	15	01.01.2005 14:00	01.01.2005 15:00	9,155		9,155	8,375	0,780	8,520
20	16	01.01.2005 15:00	01.01.2005 16:00	9,143		9,143	8,400	0,743	8,126
21	17	01.01.2005 16:00	01.01.2005 17:00	9,104	5	9,104	8,488	0,617	6,772
22	18	01.01.2005 17:00	01.01.2005 18:00	9,071	£	9,071	8,338	0,733	8,086
23	19	01.01.2005 18:00	01.01.2005 19:00	9,077	2 3	9,077	8,325	0,752	8,285
24	20	01.01.2005 19:00	01.01.2005 20:00	9,062		9,052	8,338	0,725	7,995
25	21	01.01.2005 20:00	01.01.2005 21:00	9,110	0,234	9,344	8,313	1,032	11,039
26	22	01.01.2005 21:00	01.01.2005 22:00	9,065	0,2 Annas	sung Fahrolan	8,288	1,012	10,878
27	23	01.01.2005 22:00	01.01.2005 23:00	9,065	0,2 Eingabe	e der	8,313	0,986	10,609
28	24	01.01.2005 23:00	02.01.2005 00:00	8,966	Leistun	gsanpassung je	8,463	0,504	5,616
29	1	02.01.2005 00:00	02.01.2005 01:00	9,068	Stunde	IN PWW !	8,088	0,980	10,813
30	2	02.01.2005 01:00	02.01.2005 02:00	9,050			8,068	0.963	10,635
21	F H	SOLL-IST Vergleich	h / Diagramm /	0.050		9.050	• 07E	0.075	• • • • • •

Enter the <CTRL+D> keystroke to start generation of the diagrams for all 12 months of the calculated year.

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.2 Configuration



Result

You have successfully created the controlling report that can now be used to determine forecasting quality.

Configuring analysis reports

Overview

Analysis reports are used to examine the load progression with regard to a profile. Load distribution is determined for all existing typical days and special days across the evaluation period. The result returns the load profile, for example, of a typical Monday or Tuesday.

If an analysis is performed, for example, for each typical "Monday" in the year, all Mondays will be used for the calculation, except for any holidays or special days that coincide with a Monday. In a year with 48 Mondays, for example, the mean value is calculated for the time

window from 00:00 to 01:00 for all Mondays and output as result. The same rule is applied to all other intervals.

Note

Special days that are not created and output as such will corrupt the result, as these would be treated as standard days.

Corrupted values are ignored in the analysis. However, you can force the inclusion of corrupted values with an entry in Energy Manager options (BDATA_LASTPRF_QS = 0).

After the results have been reviewed and a plausibility check has been completed, the calculated values are written directly to the typical days and special days by starting the report and activating the "save" parameter.

Requirement

- The module with the type "Load profile analysis module type" and a profile with the typical days and special days to be analyzed have been created.
- The measuring variable for calculating the total load average has been created.

Creating and configuring analysis reports

1. Create the "Analysis_AVZ" report with the "Load profile analysis module type" as well as the "AdHoc" and "Year" query types.

The Client then contains the following structure:



2. Assign the objects to be analyzed to the module: In this case, this is a measuring variable that calculates a total load average and a profile that is to be filled with the typical days and special days.

You must specify the cycle for calculation of the values. Preset the value in order to simplify the procedure and to avoid incorrect entries.



- 3. Select the "Edit" command from the shortcut menu of the report.
- 4. Select the "AdHoc" and "Year" query types. Enter interval "1" and unit "h" accordingly.

	Rep	ort - Analyse_	4VZ		- 🗆	×
Name: A	nalyse_AVZ					
Description:						^
						~
🎱 Display Typ	e					
Text Type: Na	me	Country:	Germany	·		•
Query Type	s					
Name	۷	Comp. Level	S.	P. M.	New	
Ad-Hoc		Entry values			Edit	
Year		Entry values			Doloto	
					Denete	_
Solution (VI	^p arameters]					
Name	Туре		Ti	A. F.	New	
□- ProfilAnaly	rse Load for	ecastanalysis	Off	N N	Edit	
Ad-Hoo	liype Interval	Unit 1 h	Text		- Delete	-11
Year		1 h			Delete	-11
					Clone	_
Excel Tem	late				J	
Onon	Concrete Entry Bainte	Import				
Open	Generate Entry Points	import				
\$		OK		Apply	Cancel	

Starting analysis reports

- 1. Start the report, e.g. for a year.
- 2. Select the "1 h" interval in the "Module Start/Stop Info" dialog if the interval is not set by default.
- 3. Click "OK to close the dialog and to start report calculation. The report is created in the "Year" query type structure.

```
⊡- Analyse_AVZ_Jahr
└─ 😽 Analyse_AVZ - from: 2014.01.01 till: 2015.01.01 created: 2014.03.26 15:13:38
```

Filling typical days

Status Date: Program End and another Program Program </th <th></th> <th>hicrosoft Excel - M</th> <th>lappe1</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>		hicrosoft Excel - M	lappe1									
Image: State Image: State<	:2)	Datei Bearbeiten	Ansicht Einfügen For	nat Extras	Daten I	Fenster ?				Frage hier e	eingeben 👻	- 8 ×
Image Image <t< td=""><th>In</th><td></td><td></td><td>1 🕅 - 🥩</td><td>1 - (-</td><td>- <u>Θ</u>. Σ</td><td>- 41 Z1</td><td>10</td><td>0% 🔹 🕜</td><td></td><td></td><td>T (T) (1)</td></t<>	In			1 🕅 - 🥩	1 - (-	- <u>Θ</u> . Σ	- 41 Z1	10	0% 🔹 🕜			T (T) (1)
L21 A B C D E F O H I J 2 Von 0101.08 00.00 1 1 J Von 0101.08 00.00 1 1 J Von 0101.08 00.00 1 1 J Von 0101.07 00.00 1 J Von D J J Von D J J Von D J<	Aria	al -	11 - F K U		a 🦉 %	000 *** **		1 = - 3	• A •			
A B C D E F G H I J 1 Datum 08.02.08 10.10 0	-	L21	fx			,00 9	,0					
1 Datum 08 02 08 10 10 0		A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	
2 Yon 01 01 08 00 00 0 0 3 Bis 01 01 0.70 00 00 0 0 0 4 User BLATA, SYS 0 0 0 0 5 Abfrageart Jahr 0 <	1	Datum	08.02.08 10:10			1.000			1020			
3 Bis 01 01 0.70 00:00 Image: and the set of	2	Von	01.01.06 00:00									
4 User BChATA_SYS Abfrageart Jahr Jahr <thjahr< th=""> <thjahr< th=""> <thjahr< th="" th<=""><th>3</th><th>Bis</th><th>01.01.07 00:00</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></thjahr<></thjahr<></thjahr<>	3	Bis	01.01.07 00:00									
5 Abfrageart Jahr Jahr <thjahr< th=""> Jahr Jahr</thjahr<>	4	User	BDATA SYS									
E KText Analyse_AVZ_von: 2006.01.01 bits: 2007.01.01 erstellt: 2008.02.08.09:56:02 7 LText Bericht für Analyse des Lastganges zum Befüllen der TypTage 8 Behalten nein 9 Status Fertig Image: Comparing the status of the statu	5	Abfrageart	Jahr _									
7 LText Bericht für Analyse des Lastganges zum Befüllen der TypTage Image: Comparison of the comp	6	KText	Analyse AVZ - von: 2	2006.01.0	, 1 bis: 200	7.01.01 er	stellt: 200	8.02.08 09	3:55:02			
B Behalten nein 08.02.08 09:49 11 Modelldatum 08.02.08 09:49	7	LText	Bericht für Analyse o	les Lastga	anges zun	n Befüllen	der TypTa	age				
9 Status Fertig 08 02.08 09.49 0 0 11 Modelldatum 08 02.08 09.49 0	8	Behalten	nein	-								
10 Versionsdatum 08.02.08.09:49 Image: Construction of the constructi	9	Status	Fertig									
11 Modelldatum aktuelles Modell Image: Comparison of the comp	10	Versionsdatum	08.02.08 09:49									
12 13 14 15 Analyse_AVZ_ProfilAnalyse m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel Grundlas	11	Modelldatum	aktuelles Modell									
13 14 15 Analyse_AVZ_ProfilAnalyse m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel Grundlas	12											
14 n	13											
15 Analyse_AVZ_ProfilAnalyse m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel 18 Anzahl Werte 48 48 60 49 49 52 48 21 19 Zeit MO AVZ DI AVZ MI AVZ DO AVZ FR AVZ SA AVZ SO AVZ Feiertag AVZ 20 00:00 01:00 02:00 24,40 25,73 25,25 25,06 22,76 14,12 16,41 21 01:00 02:00 24,40 25,73 25,25 25,06 22,76 14,12 14,34 23 03:00 04:00 27,46 26,45 26,15 25,68 20,52 14,12 14,34 24 04:00 05:00 36,91 39,46 38,93 38,22 37,87 20,21 14,16 17,11 26 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,46 42,49 20,75 14,37 18,87 27 07:00 08:00 42,87 44,86 <t< td=""><th>14</th><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	14											
18 Referenzobjekt Grundlastprofil AVZ m_Gesamtlast_AVZ_mittel m_Gesamtlast_Grundlas Grundlas Grundla	15	Analyse AVZ P	rofilAnalyse									
17 Profile Grundlas Grund	16	Referenzobjekt	Grundlastprofil AVZ	m Gesar	mtlast AV	Z mittel			1			
18 Anzahi Werte 48 48 50 49 49 52 48 21 19 Zeit MO AVZ DI AVZ MI AVZ DO AVZ FR AVZ SO AVZ SO AVZ Feiertag AVZ 20 00:00 01:00 23,12 28,25 27,77 27,72 27,48 25,64 14,22 16,41 21 01:00 02:00 24,40 25,73 25,25 25,08 25,06 27,67 14,14 15,33 22 02:00 03:00 25,71 24,61 24,34 24,01 24,09 21,28 14,08 14,93 23 03:00 04:00 05:00 30,87 31,79 31,49 30,77 31,00 20,08 14,06 15,66 25 05:00 08:00 38,91 38,46 38,93 38,22 37,87 20,21 14,16 17,11 26 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,99 43,44 42,98 20,61 14,48 18,94 29 09:00 10:00 43,46 45,	17	Profile		Grundlas	Grundlas	Grundlas	Grundlas	Grundlas	Grundlas	Grundlas	Grundlastprofi	I AVZ
19 Zeit MO AVZ DI AVZ MI AVZ DO AVZ FR AVZ SA AVZ SO AVZ Feiertag AVZ 20 00:00 01:00 23,12 28,25 27,77 27,72 27,48 25,64 14,22 16,41 21 01:00 02:00 24,40 25,73 25,25 25,68 25,66 22,76 14,14 15,33 23 03:00 04:00 27,46 26,45 26,61 25,63 25,84 20,52 14,12 14,94 24 04:00 05:00 30,87 31,79 31,49 30,77 31,00 20,08 14,06 15,66 25 05:00 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,44 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 06:00 09:00 42,66 44,80 43,80 43,44 42,39 20,61 14,48 18,94 29 09:00 10:00 43,76 45,34 44,01 42,39 20,61 14,48 18,94 30 10:00 11:00 43,76 </td <th>18</th> <td>Anzahl Werte</td> <td></td> <td>48</td> <td>48</td> <td>50</td> <td>49</td> <td>49</td> <td>52</td> <td>48</td> <td>21</td> <td></td>	18	Anzahl Werte		48	48	50	49	49	52	48	21	
20 00:00 01:00 23,12 28,25 27,77 27,72 27,48 25,64 14,22 16,41 21 01:00 02:00 24,40 25,73 25,25 25,08 25,06 22,76 14,14 15,33 22 02:00 03:00 25,71 24,61 24,34 24,01 24,09 21,28 14,08 14,93 23 03:00 04:00 27,46 26,45 26,15 25,63 25,84 20,52 14,11 14,94 24 04:00 05:00 30,87 31,79 31,49 30,77 31,00 20,08 14,06 15,66 25 05:00 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,64 41,74 20,59 14,28 18,46 27 07:00 08:00 42,66 44,80 43,99 43,46 42,49 20,75 14,38 18,46 28 08:00 09:00 42,66 44,80 43,80 42,71 20,32 14,66 19,14 30 10:00 <td< td=""><th>19</th><td>Zeit</td><td></td><td>MO AVZ</td><td>DIAVZ</td><td>MI AVZ</td><td>DO AVZ</td><td>FR AVZ</td><td>SA AVZ</td><td>SO AVZ</td><td>Feiertag AVZ</td><td></td></td<>	19	Zeit		MO AVZ	DIAVZ	MI AVZ	DO AVZ	FR AVZ	SA AVZ	SO AVZ	Feiertag AVZ	
21 01:00 02:00 24,40 25,73 25,26 25,08 25,06 22,76 14,14 15,33 22 02:00 03:00 25,71 24,61 24,34 24,01 24,09 21,28 14,08 14,93 23 03:00 04:00 27,46 26,45 26,16 25,63 25,84 20,52 14,12 14,94 24 04:00 05:00 30,87 31,79 31,49 30,77 31,00 20,08 14,06 15,66 25 05:00 06:00 36,91 39,46 38,93 38,22 37,87 20,21 14,16 17,11 26 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,64 41,74 20,59 14,28 18,46 27 07:00 08:00 42,86 44,80 43,80 43,44 42,39 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 08:00 01:00 43,46 45,34 44,10 44,21 42,86 20,42 14,58 19,01 30 10:00 <td< td=""><th>20</th><td>00:00</td><td>01:00</td><td>23,12</td><td>28,25</td><td>27,77</td><td>27,72</td><td>27,48</td><td>25,64</td><td>14,22</td><td>16,41</td><td>1</td></td<>	20	00:00	01:00	23,12	28,25	27,77	27,72	27,48	25,64	14,22	16,41	1
22 02:00 03:00 25,71 24,61 24,34 24,01 24,09 21,28 14,08 14,93 23 03:00 04:00 27,46 26,45 26,15 25,63 25,84 20,52 14,12 14,94 24 04:00 05:00 30,87 31,79 31,49 30,77 31,00 20,08 14,06 15,66 25 05:00 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,64 41,74 20,59 14,28 19,46 27 07:00 08:00 42,66 44,80 43,99 43,46 42,49 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 08:00 09:00 10:00 43,46 45,34 44,10 44,21 42,86 20,42 14,59 19,01 30 10:00 11:00 43,75 45,39 44,30 43,29 42,71 20,32 14,86 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,75 45,39 44,37 44,26 14,27 19,84 14,66 19,02	21	01:00	02:00	24,40	25,73	25,25	25,08	25,06	22,76	14,14	15,33	
23 03:00 04:00 27,46 26,45 26,15 25,63 25,84 20,52 14,12 14,94 24 04:00 05:00 30,87 31,79 31,49 30,77 31,00 20,08 14,06 15,66 25 05:00 06:00 36,91 39,46 38,93 38,22 37,87 20,21 14,16 17,11 26 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,64 41,74 20,59 14,28 18,46 27 07:00 08:00 42,66 44,80 43,99 43,46 42,49 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 08:00 09:00 42,87 44,86 43,80 43,44 42,39 20,61 14,48 18,94 29 09:00 10:00 43,75 45,58 44,03 43,80 42,71 20,32 14,66 19,14 31 11:00 12:00 43,75 44,37 44,20 42,72 19,84 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 <td< th=""><th>22</th><th>02:00</th><th>03:00</th><th>25,71</th><th>24,61</th><th>24,34</th><th>24,01</th><th>24,09</th><th>21,28</th><th>14,08</th><th>14,93</th><th></th></td<>	22	02:00	03:00	25,71	24,61	24,34	24,01	24,09	21,28	14,08	14,93	
24 04:00 05:00 30,87 31,79 31,49 30,77 31,00 20,08 14,06 15,66 25 05:00 06:00 36,91 39,46 38,93 38,22 37,87 20,21 14,16 17,11 26 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,64 41,74 20,59 14,28 18,46 27 07:00 08:00 42,66 44,80 43,99 43,46 42,49 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 08:00 09:00 42,87 44,86 43,80 43,44 42,39 20,61 14,48 18,94 29 09:00 10:00 43,55 45,28 44,03 43,80 42,71 20,32 14,66 19,01 30 10:00 11:00 43,55 45,28 44,37 44,20 42,72 19,84 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,54 44,37 42,26 19,54 14,56 19,14 34 14:00 <td< th=""><th>23</th><th>03:00</th><th>04:00</th><th>27,46</th><th>26,45</th><th>26,15</th><th>25,63</th><th>25,84</th><th>20,52</th><th>14,12</th><th>14,94</th><th></th></td<>	23	03:00	04:00	27,46	26,45	26,15	25,63	25,84	20,52	14,12	14,94	
25 05:00 06:00 36,91 39,46 38,93 38,22 37,87 20,21 14,16 17,11 26 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,64 41,74 20,59 14,28 18,46 27 07:00 08:00 42,66 44,80 43,99 43,46 42,49 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 08:00 09:00 42,87 44,86 43,89 43,44 42,39 20,61 14,48 18,94 29 09:00 10:00 43,46 45,34 44,10 44,21 42,68 20,42 14,58 19,01 30 10:00 11:00 43,55 45,28 44,03 43,80 42,71 20,10 14,66 18,96 32 12:00 13:00 43,75 45,39 44,37 44,20 42,72 19,84 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,437 42,26 19,54 14,66 19,14 34 14:00 15:00 <t< td=""><th>24</th><td>04:00</td><td>05:00</td><td>30,87</td><td>31,79</td><td>31,49</td><td>30,77</td><td>31,00</td><td>20,08</td><td>14,06</td><td>15,66</td><td></td></t<>	24	04:00	05:00	30,87	31,79	31,49	30,77	31,00	20,08	14,06	15,66	
26 06:00 07:00 41,40 43,97 43,12 42,64 41,74 20,59 14,28 18,46 27 07:00 08:00 42,66 44,80 43,99 43,46 42,49 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 08:00 09:00 42,87 44,86 43,80 43,44 42,39 20,61 14,48 18,94 29 09:00 10:00 43,46 45,34 44,10 44,21 42,86 20,42 14,59 19,01 30 10:00 11:00 43,55 45,28 44,03 43,80 42,71 20,32 14,66 19,14 31 11:00 12:00 43,17 44,76 44,20 43,29 42,14 20,10 14,66 19,96 32 12:00 13:00 43,75 45,33 44,37 44,20 42,26 19,54 14,66 19,14 34 14:00 15:00 42,53 44,05 43,08 42,88 40,76 18,23 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 <td< td=""><th>25</th><td>05:00</td><td>06:00</td><td>36,91</td><td>39,46</td><td>38,93</td><td>38,22</td><td>37,87</td><td>20,21</td><td>14,16</td><td>17,11</td><td></td></td<>	25	05:00	06:00	36,91	39,46	38,93	38,22	37,87	20,21	14,16	17,11	
27 07:00 08:00 42,66 44,80 43,99 43,46 42,49 20,75 14,37 18,87 28 08:00 09:00 42,87 44,86 43,80 43,44 42,39 20,61 14,48 18,94 29 09:00 10:00 43,46 45,34 44,10 44,21 42,86 20,42 14,59 19,01 30 10:00 11:00 43,55 45,28 44,03 43,80 42,71 20,32 14,66 19,14 31 11:00 12:00 43,17 44,76 44,20 43,29 42,14 20,10 14,66 18,96 32 12:00 13:00 43,75 45,39 44,37 42,26 19,54 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,437 42,26 19,54 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 16:00 41,18 42,67 41,72 41,41 39,50 16,64 14,11 18,16 36 16:00 17:00 39,97 <t< td=""><th>26</th><td>06:00</td><td>07:00</td><td>41,40</td><td>43,97</td><td>43,12</td><td>42,64</td><td>41,74</td><td>20,59</td><td>14,28</td><td>18,46</td><td></td></t<>	26	06:00	07:00	41,40	43,97	43,12	42,64	41,74	20,59	14,28	18,46	
28 08:00 09:00 42.87 44.86 43.80 43.44 42.39 20.61 14.48 18.94 29 09:00 10:00 43.46 45.34 44.10 44.21 42.86 20.42 14.59 19.01 30 10:00 11:00 43.55 45.28 44.03 43.80 42.71 20.32 14.66 19.14 31 11:00 12:00 43.17 44.76 44.20 43.29 42.14 20.10 14.66 18.96 32 12:00 13:00 43.75 45.39 44.37 44.20 42.72 19.84 14.66 19.02 33 13:00 14:00 43.89 45.51 44.54 44.37 42.26 19.54 14.56 19.14 34 14:00 15:00 42.53 44.05 43.08 42.88 40.76 18.23 14.34 18.82 35 15:00 16:00 11:18 42.67 41.72 41.41 39.50 16.64 14.11 18.18 36 16:00 <td< td=""><th>27</th><td>07:00</td><td>08:00</td><td>42,66</td><td>44,80</td><td>43,99</td><td>43,46</td><td>42,49</td><td>20,75</td><td>14,37</td><td>18,87</td><td></td></td<>	27	07:00	08:00	42,66	44,80	43,99	43,46	42,49	20,75	14,37	18,87	
29 09:00 10:00 43,46 45,34 44,10 44,21 42,86 20,42 14,59 19,01 30 10:00 11:00 43,55 45,28 44,03 43,80 42,71 20,32 14,66 19,14 31 11:00 12:00 43,17 44,76 44,20 43,29 42,14 20,10 14,66 18,96 32 12:00 13:00 43,75 45,39 44,37 44,20 42,72 19,84 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,54 44,37 42,26 19,54 14,56 19,14 34 14:00 15:00 42,53 44,05 43,08 42,88 40,76 18,23 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 39,42 15,81 14,09 17,92 37 17:00 18:00 38,42 39,92 38,93 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,55 38 18:00 <td< td=""><th>28</th><td>08:00</td><td>09:00</td><td>42,87</td><td>44,86</td><td>43,80</td><td>43,44</td><td>42,39</td><td>20,61</td><td>14,48</td><td>18,94</td><td></td></td<>	28	08:00	09:00	42,87	44,86	43,80	43,44	42,39	20,61	14,48	18,94	
30 10:00 11:00 43,55 45,28 44,03 43,80 42,71 20,32 14,66 19,14 31 11:00 12:00 43,17 44,76 44,20 43,29 42,14 20,10 14,66 18,96 32 12:00 13:00 43,75 45,39 44,37 44,20 42,72 19,84 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,54 44,37 42,26 19,54 14,56 19,14 34 14:00 15:00 42,53 44,05 43,08 42,88 40,76 18,23 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 16:00 41,18 42,67 41,72 41,41 39,50 16,64 14,11 18,16 36 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 38,42 15,81 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 <td< td=""><th>29</th><td>09:00</td><td>10:00</td><td>43,46</td><td>45,34</td><td>44,10</td><td>44,21</td><td>42,86</td><td>20,42</td><td>14,59</td><td>19,01</td><td></td></td<>	29	09:00	10:00	43,46	45,34	44,10	44,21	42,86	20,42	14,59	19,01	
31 11:00 12:00 43,17 44,76 44,20 43,29 42,14 20,10 14,66 18,96 32 12:00 13:00 43,75 45,39 44,37 44,20 42,72 19,84 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,54 44,37 42,26 19,54 14,56 19,14 34 14:00 15:00 42,53 44,05 43,08 42,88 40,76 18,23 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 16:00 41,18 42,67 41,72 41,41 39,50 16,64 14,11 18,16 36 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 38,42 15,81 14,09 17,92 37 17:00 18:00 38,07 39,92 38,99 38,72 36,96 15,34 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 <td< td=""><th>30</th><td>10:00</td><td>11:00</td><td>43,55</td><td>45,28</td><td>44,03</td><td>43,80</td><td>42,71</td><td>20,32</td><td>14,66</td><td>19,14</td><td></td></td<>	30	10:00	11:00	43,55	45,28	44,03	43,80	42,71	20,32	14,66	19,14	
32 12:00 13:00 43,75 45,39 44,37 44,20 42,72 19,84 14,66 19,02 33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,54 44,37 42,26 19,54 14,56 19,14 34 14:00 15:00 42,53 44,05 43,08 42,88 40,76 18,23 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 16:00 41,18 42,67 41,72 41,41 39,50 16,64 14,11 18,16 36 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 38,42 15,81 14,09 17,92 37 17:00 18:00 38,42 39,92 38,99 38,72 36,96 15,34 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,47 41 21:00 <td< td=""><th>31</th><td>11:00</td><td>12:00</td><td>43,17</td><td>44,76</td><td>44,20</td><td>43,29</td><td>42,14</td><td>20,10</td><td>14,66</td><td>18,96</td><td></td></td<>	31	11:00	12:00	43,17	44,76	44,20	43,29	42,14	20,10	14,66	18,96	
33 13:00 14:00 43,89 45,51 44,54 44,37 42,28 19,54 14,56 19,14 34 14:00 15:00 42,53 44,05 43,08 42,88 40,76 18,23 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 16:00 41,18 42,67 41,72 41,41 39,50 16,64 14,11 18,16 36 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 38,42 15,81 14,09 17,92 37 17:00 18:00 38,42 39,92 38,99 38,72 36,96 15,34 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,49 40 20:00 21:00 38,02 39,76 38,88 38,26 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 <td< td=""><th>32</th><td>12:00</td><td>13:00</td><td>43,75</td><td>45,39</td><td>44,37</td><td>44,20</td><td>42,72</td><td>19,84</td><td>14,66</td><td>19,02</td><td></td></td<>	32	12:00	13:00	43,75	45,39	44,37	44,20	42,72	19,84	14,66	19,02	
34 14:00 15:00 42,53 44,05 43,08 42,88 40,76 18,23 14,34 18,82 35 15:00 16:00 41,18 42,67 41,72 41,41 39,50 16,64 14,11 18,16 36 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 38,42 15,81 14,09 17,92 37 17:00 18:00 38,42 39,92 38,99 38,72 36,96 15,34 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,49 40 20:00 21:00 38,02 39,76 38,88 38,65 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 <td< td=""><th>33</th><td>13:00</td><td>14:00</td><td>43,89</td><td>45,51</td><td>44,54</td><td>44,37</td><td>42,26</td><td>19,54</td><td>14,56</td><td>19,14</td><td></td></td<>	33	13:00	14:00	43,89	45,51	44,54	44,37	42,26	19,54	14,56	19,14	
35 15:00 16:00 41,18 42,67 41,72 41,41 39,50 16,64 14,11 18,16 36 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 38,42 15,81 14,09 17,92 37 17:00 18:00 38,42 39,92 38,99 38,72 36,96 15,34 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,49 40 20:00 21:00 38,20 39,76 38,88 38,36 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 44 44 44	34	14:00	15:00	42,53	44,05	43,08	42,88	40,76	18,23	14,34	18,82	
36 16:00 17:00 39,97 41,43 40,60 40,28 38,42 15,81 14,09 17,92 37 17:00 18:00 38,42 39,92 38,99 38,72 36,96 15,34 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,49 40 20:00 21:00 38,20 39,76 38,88 38,36 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 44 4 4 </td <th>35</th> <td>15:00</td> <td>16:00</td> <td>41,18</td> <td>42,67</td> <td>41,72</td> <td>41,41</td> <td>39,50</td> <td>16,64</td> <td>14,11</td> <td>18,16</td> <td></td>	35	15:00	16:00	41,18	42,67	41,72	41,41	39,50	16,64	14,11	18,16	
37 17:00 18:00 39,42 39,92 38,99 38,72 36,96 15,34 14,06 17,56 38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,49 40 20:00 21:00 38,20 39,76 38,88 38,36 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 44 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	36	16:00	17:00	39,97	41,43	40,60	40,28	38,42	15,81	14,09	17,92	
38 18:00 19:00 38,07 39,70 38,81 38,33 36,74 15,09 14,06 17,35 39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,49 40 20:00 21:00 38,20 39,76 38,88 38,36 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 ¥ <th>37</th> <td>17:00</td> <td>18:00</td> <td>38,42</td> <td>39,92</td> <td>38,99</td> <td>38,72</td> <td>36,96</td> <td>15,34</td> <td>14,06</td> <td>17,56</td> <td></td>	37	17:00	18:00	38,42	39,92	38,99	38,72	36,96	15,34	14,06	17,56	
39 19:00 20:00 38,46 40,13 39,20 38,73 36,94 15,01 15,04 17,49 40 20:00 21:00 38,20 39,76 38,88 38,36 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 K Image: Colspan="4">Image: Colspan="4"/image: Colspan="4"/image: Colspan="4"/image: Colspan="4"/image: Co	38	18:00	19:00	38,07	39,70	38,81	38,33	36,74	15,09	14,06	17,35	
40 20:00 21:00 38,20 39,76 38,88 38,36 36,54 14,85 16,91 17,47 41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 44 + + H Tabelle1/ <th>39</th> <td>19:00</td> <td>20:00</td> <td>38,46</td> <td>40,13</td> <td>39,20</td> <td>38,73</td> <td>36,94</td> <td>15,01</td> <td>15,04</td> <td>17,49</td> <td></td>	39	19:00	20:00	38,46	40,13	39,20	38,73	36,94	15,01	15,04	17,49	
41 21:00 22:00 38,08 39,52 38,78 38,22 36,42 14,73 18,59 17,75 42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 K → N Bereit	40	20:00	21:00	38,20	39,76	38,88	38,36	36,54	14,85	16,91	17,47	
42 22:00 23:00 37,44 38,90 38,02 37,44 35,36 14,58 19,66 18,10 43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 Image: Main and Main an	41	21:00	22:00	38,08	39,52	38,78	38,22	36,42	14,73	18,59	17,75	
43 23:00 00:00 32,83 34,03 32,73 32,70 30,70 14,25 21,24 18,61 I I I I I I IIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	42	22:00	23:00	37,44	38,90	38,02	37,44	35,36	14,58	19,66	18,10	
Image: Arrow of the second	43	23:00	00:00	32,83	34,03	32,73	32,70	30,70	14,25	21,24	18,61	
Bereit	14 4	► ► Tabelle1 /					<					>
	Berei	t					1				NF	

1. The report result is available in the following form:

The typical day is output in line 19. The "Number of values" above that specifies the number of days used to calculate the typical day. The result is marked in blue color if this value is less than three.

Line 16 displays the measuring variable and the profiles used as the basis for calculation of the typical days.

2. If the current load profile has caused implausible calculation results, find and eliminate these "outliers" until your calculation seems plausible.

Note

As an alternative, you can fill in the typical days and manually correct the outliers in the typical days.

Initiate the filling of typical days by entering the "save" command in the text batches field when starting the report.

6	Start Report	- - ×
Module	Parameter Query Type: Year From To 01.01.2014 00:00:00	01.01.2015 00:00:00
	Advanced Parameter Version Mo Current 27.03.2014.10:58:58 •	del Current
	Compression Level Entry values Batches:	
	Keep: . Country: Germany	н
		v
Cancel	Back	Next Start

The calculated values were written to the typical days or special days. This status can be checked by editing the typical days.

5			Турі	cal Day - M	o AVZ	- 🗆 ×
Name:	Mo AVZ					
Descriptio	in:					^
						~
Day Trans	ition: 00:0	0 🕻				
Active M	ode:					
Profile	Shifts					
From -	∆ To	State	Value	Unit		New
00:00	01:00	LT	23,12	1	-	Edit
01:00	02:00		24,39	1	-	
02:00	03:00		25,71	1	-	Delete
03:00	04:00		27,45	1	-	Fill
04:00	05:00		30,87	1	_	
05:00	05:00		30,9	1	-	Split
05.00	07.00		41,39	1	-	
07.00	08:00	LI	42,00	1		
					Copy With Hea	ders
	_	_		_		Annual I
9					OK	Cancel

Result

You have completed the configuration of the profile, including its assigned typical and special days, so that the profile can now be used in forecasting.

Note

Adjust the typical day setting annually, i.e. recalculate the values on the basis of the load profile of the previous year.

2.2.4.7 Consumers

Consumers and structured view

Requirement

• The Consumer functionality is licensed separately.

Overview

In Energy Manger you can map consumers such as CNC machines or establish communication using TCP/IP and map its data in Energy Manager.

A previously created consumer template is used to automatically create a structure consisting of consumers, associated datapoints (defined as inputs in the consumer template), Mevas (defined as outputs in the consumer template) and optional Widget Dashboards and reports.

Information about the consumer template is available in the section "Load templates (Page 376)".

The consumers actively send data in a report that is specified by the Energy Manager. The consumers register in Energy Manager using a frame consisting of the name and type of the consumer. During import in the acquisition wizard, the consumers are displayed grouped by consumer type. If no type is sent, the consumer is assigned to the "undefined" group.

If the TCP/IP connection is disconnected or if no data is received for more than two minutes, a consumer must register again using a specified protocol so that data will be received in Energy Manager again.

If necessary, consumers can also be created automatically using the wizard of the "Machines" interface. More detailed information about this is available in the section "Data acquisition via the "Machines" interface (Page 121)".

Procedure

- 1. In the project tree, click on the location or organizational unit below which you want to create the new consumer.
- 2. On the "Master Data > Configuration" tab, click "Consumer".
- 3. Enter a name and optionally a description, as well as a producer of the consumer.

	Machine - MA3000	×
General Map	sing	
Name:	MA3000	
Description:	MA 0, grid 3000, type3	
Producer:		
Mapped Templ	ate: Gas_EL	•
Organizational	unit	
Location:	Germany	
Balancing grou	p:	
	OK Cancel	

Select the previously defined consumer template that is used for automatic creation of datapoints, Mevas, Widget Dashboards, and reports.

The "Location" and "Organizational Unit" fields are filled automatically. If you create the consumer below a location, the "Location" field is automatically filled with this location. If the consumer is also to be assigned to an organizational unit, you must copy the consumer below the desired organizational unit. The field for the organizational unit is then automatically filled in the consumer.

4. The "Mapping" tab shows the inputs, outputs, Widget Dashboards, and reports defined according to the consumer template as they will then be created automatically.

	Machine - MA3000	×				
General Mapping						
Key	Mapping					
Gas	e_MA3000_Gas					
Electricity	e_MA3000_Electricity					
Steam_Output	m_MA3000_Steam_Output					
Steam_production	Steam_production					
Steam_production_report	MA3000_Steam_production_report					
		=1				
	OK Cancel					

5. Click "OK".

Result

The structure made up of consumer, associated datapoints (inputs), Mevas (outputs) as well as Widget Dashboards and reports is created. You can copy the entire structure below an organization structure.



Structured view

Structured view in Energy Manager PRO Client

You can display the consumers now by location or organizational unit by clicking on the "Structured" tab in the project tree.

The tree is structured by location and organizational unit, thus geographically and organizationally. Only consumer objects are structured, i.e. all other objects are not displayed.

The view structured by location is shown at the top.



The view structured by organizational unit is shown at the bottom.



Structured view in Energy Manager PRO Web

The structured view is also available in Energy Manager PRO Web. For this, it is necessary to correctly define the entry points for the user group. There is a dedicated entry point for the location and another for the organizational unit. Define these entry points for the user group in the "Location" and "Organization" fields by moving the respective location and organizational unit into the fields using drag-and-drop.

Energy Manager PRO Web:	Drop Nodes he	ere using Drag & Drop:	
	Basic:	🛅 Energy Manager - Web	
	Location:	R Europe	
	Organization:	Production	

The definition of these entry points "Location" and "Organization" is optional. For use of Energy Manager PRO Web, the "Basis" entry point must always be defined. Details on the definition are available in the section "Defining an entry point (Page 355)".

All locations and organizational units below the object defined as the entry point are shown including their associated consumers. The view corresponds to a view of the Energy Manager PRO Client, i.e. only consumers are displayed. A click on "Geographical" displays all consumers structured by location.



A click on "Organization" displays all consumers structured by organizational unit.



A click on a consumer displays the standard Widget Dashboard defined in the consumer template in the right area, which can then be edited.

Note

Only consumers are displayed in the structured view under "Geographical" or "Organization", the same as in the Energy Manager PRO Client. The structured view serves as an overview of consumers according to location or organizational unit. For this reason, all other objects such as datapoints and Mevas that are configured during creation of a consumer are hidden. Only the standard Widget Dashboard is displayed. If you would also like to see the entire consumer structure in the Energy Manager PRO Web as it is created in the Energy Manager PRO Client, proceed as for all other objects that you want to make available on the web. Copy the consumer to the folder defined for Energy Manager PRO Web (e.g. Intranet_Viewer). You can then, for example, create other Widget Dashboards for a consumer from there. You also have the option of creating a Widget Dashboard in addition to a location or organizational unit.



Creating a filter object

Overview

In Energy Manager you can configure consumer templates with aggregated KPIs. These KPIs are already used in some widgets in Energy Manager PRO Web, in which charts display the calculated KPI values. The "filter object" is available if you want to also use the aggregated KPIs in reports. You use the filter object to narrow specific KPIs of consumers, which you then calculate and display in a report with the module type "Protocol - KPI aggregation".

Procedure

To create a filter object for a created consumer, follow these steps:

- 1. From the navigation area select a consumer under which you want to create the filter object.
- 2. Click the "Insert filter object" object in the menu bar under "Processing > Consumer".

The "Filter object" configuration dialog opens.

Filter object	:			
Name:				
	Drop Nodes here us	sing Drag & Drop:		
Substructure:				
	Machine variables:			
filter:	Available		Select	ed
	, trainable			
		⇒		
		¢		

- 3. Enter a meaningful name for the filter object in the "Name" text box. The input of a name is required.
- Move a cost center or a plant to the "Substructure" text field with drag and drop. The KPIs contained in the inserted object are displayed in the "Available" list.
- 5. To filter a list, enter the corresponding text in the "Free text" text box. The listing in the "Available" list is filtered accordingly.
- 6. Select the KPIs you want to use in the report and click on the upper arrow.

The selected KPIs are moved to the "Selected" list. You can remove no longer required KPIs from the list using the lower arrow.

7. To save the configurations, click the "Save" button.

Result

The filter object has been created. To calculate the KPIs in the report, you must insert the filter object below the module type "Protocol - KPI aggregation" of a report.



Consumer report

Overview

To ensure an overview of the use and number of consumers the "Machine Protocol" report module is available. Unlike other modules, objects do not have to be attached as input below the module for the machine protocol. All configured consumers are automatically included in the report.

For each time instance of the queried interval at which the number of utilized machines changes, the report contains the following:

- Date
- Number of consumers
- Consumer name
- Vendor
- Creation Date

Procedure

- 1. Create a new report including desired query type and select the "Machine Protocol" type for the module.
- 2. Define the Interval and the Unit for the module.
- 3. Click "Generate Entry Points" to generate the master data of the report.
- 4. Place the Entry point of the module below the master data, e.g. in line 15, using "Cut" and "Paste".
- 5. Design the layout for the report and save it. After closing, you can start the report.
- 6. Start the report by right-clicking it The report result opens.

Details on creating reports are available in the section "Report (Page 274)".

Result

The master data of the report is output at the top of the report:

Datum	22.08.2016.09.23.06				
Datum	22.00.2010 03.23.00				
Von	01.08.2016 00:00:00				
Bis	01.09.2016 00:00:00				
Benutzer	ADMIN				
Abfrageart	Monat				
Name	Consumer_report - vo	n: 2016.08.01 k	ois: 2016	.09.01 erstellt: 2016.0	8.22 09:23:02
Beschreibung					
Behalten	Nein				
Status	Fertig				
Versionsdatum	22.08.2016 09:23:02				
Modelldatum	Aktuelles Modell				
Land	Germany				

The actual report content is output below the entry point for the "Machine Protocol":

Consumer Prot				
Zeit	Max	Machinename	Vendor	Creation Date
02.08.2016 00:00:00	0			
03.08.2016 00:00:00	0			
04.08.2016 00:00:00	0			
05.08.2016 00:00:00	5	MA3000	0	04.08.2016 13:26:46
		MA3000	0	04.08.2016 14:10:52
		MA3001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:05
		MA4000	0	04.08.2016 14:36:37
		MA4001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:17
06.08.2016 00:00:00	4	MA3000	0	04.08.2016 14:10:52
		MA3001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:05
		MA4000	0	04.08.2016 14:36:37
		MA4001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:17
07.08.2016 00:00:00	4	MA3000	0	04.08.2016 14:10:52
		MA3001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:05
		MA4000	0	04.08.2016 14:36:37
		MA4001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:17

2.2.5 "Analysis" menu tab

2.2.5.1 Reporting

Report

Basics on reports

Overview

You can visualize or process the measured values that have been acquired in Energy Manager. Energy Manager generates the reports in files in the Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Word format. The visualization of the values as a table of diagram is always based on the functionality of Microsoft Excel. Reports in Microsoft Word use embedded Excel object to visualize the values.

In both applications, all formatting and elements can be used to design the reports.

Reports can be generated manually or automatically, dispatched by email, printed, saved to a file server, and viewed in Energy Manager PRO Web.

Report results are stored in the structure tree of the Client. The name of report results consists of the name, calculation period and the creation date.

You can use the predefined reports provided in Energy Manager as the basis for your project. The default reports are available in "Customer > Reports".



You can use data points, MEVAs and parameters in the report. In the case of the data points, the acquired values in the files cannot be used, only those stored on the SQL Server.

See also: "Architecture and interfaces (Page 73)"

Components for creating reports

You need a query type and a module to create a report.

Use a query type specify the time range of report and to configure automatic reporting.

Use a module to specify how the acquired measured values will be calculated and visualized. The following module types are available:

- Query module: Returns values without calculation, e.g. the measured values of a month on a daily basis.
- Balancing module: Returns a value for a time period, e.g. the monthly energy costs.
- Protocol module: Returns values for all intervals of a time period, e.g. the monthly energy costs on a daily basis.

Certain modules need additional parameters when you start a report. A protocol module, for example, needs interval as start parameter.

Note

Maximum number of modules

The maximum number of modules is 100.

Procedure for creating reports

Proceed as follows to create a report:

- 1. Create a report.
- 2. Configure a query type and a module for the report.
- 3. Configure a template for the report.
- 4. Enter the reported values.
- 5. Generate the report.

Result

Each module is provided with values from its assigned measuring variables. Once the template has been generated, the final report result is stored in the project tree under the selected query type, and can be called with a double-click.



- ① The report employs the module "Comparative accounting" ② and query type "Month" ③ for the analysis.
- 2 The module is supplied with data from two measuring variables that calculate the measured values using the "Multiplication" database function.
- ③ Results of the report that was generated twice are stored at the query type.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

See also

Creating a report (Page 276) Configuring query types (Page 279) Configuring modules (Page 284) Configuring the layout for an Excel report (Page 289) Entering values in reports (Page 300) Opening report results (Page 443) Display modes (Page 774)

Creating a report

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the report is going to be created.
- 2. In the menu bar under "Analysis > Reporting", click the "Insert Excel report" button or the "Insert Word report" button.

The "Report" dialog opens.

3. Enter a unique name and an optional description for the report.

Note

Do not use Excel-specific expressions such as A1 or =FG14 during the report creation.

The report name cannot contain any special characters. The following characters are permitted:

- A to Z
- a to z
- 0 to 9
- _
- Space
- 4. Select a display type.

The display type specifies the heading for the datapoint'S value column.

- 5. Under "Country", select the country whose time zone you want to use for the calculation.
- 6. Configure one or more query types (Page 279).

7. Configure one or more modules (Page 284).

Note

The report module names are used as Excel "cell names".

To ensure conformant module configuration, observe the standard designations for the country-specific Microsoft EXCEL documentation.

Do not use Excel-specific expressions, e.g. C1 or R1, or Z1 or S1 in German systems, at the beginning of the report module name.

8. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

The report has been created.

Ē		Bericht -	KPI Batch Pro	duction				-		×
Name: Description:	KPI Batch Production									~ ~
Display T	Гуре									10.024
Text Type:	Name	-	Country:	Germany				-		
📃 Query Ty	pes									
Name		د	Comp. Level	S.	P. N	A	D.	N	ew	
Ad-Hoc			Entry values						dit	
Week			Entry values						loto	-
Modules Name Balance balance	[\ Parameters] Type e_week Balano e_month Balano e_year Balano	e e	Timesp Off By Quer By Quer	an Correct y Type Sin y Type Sin	ion ce begi ce new	A.F NNYN YN		N E De	ew dit elete one	
From Temp	e Generate Entry Points	Imp	ort	ок		Apply		Ca	ncel	

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

See also

Configuring the layout for an Excel report (Page 289) Entering values in reports (Page 300) Query types (Page 749) Module overview (Page 758) Display modes (Page 774) Assign time zone for acquisition or calculation (Page 334) Creating reports (Page 598)

Configuring reports

Configuring query types

Overview

Use a query type to configure the time frame that is queried in a report. You may configure several query types in the report. An object is created in the project tree of the Client for each query type of a report.

Requirement

You have generated a report (Page 276).

Procedure

- 1. Double-click the desired report in the project tree of the Client.
- 2. Click "New" in the "Query types" field.

The "Query type" dialog opens.

- 3. Select a query type and enter a description if necessary.
- 4. Select a compression level.

Usually, you select "Entry values".

5. Under "Holding time", define the interval after which the results of a report are to be automatically deleted from the project tree of the Client.

If you want to automatically delete the report results, you also need to start the "Job for deleting analyses".

- 6. Enable the respective options.
- 7. Click "OK".

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Result

The query type is configured for the report.

You can edit or delete the query type, or add a new one for the report.

		Bericht - I	Plant Perfor	mance					×
Name: Pl	ant Performance								
Description:									~
									~
Display Type									
Text Type: Des	cription		Country:	German	ıy				•
Query Types					_	_			
Name		→ Comp. Le	vel S.	P.	M.	D.		New	
Month		Entry value	es 🗸	•			-	Edit	
								Delete	
							_	Delete	
Modules [\ P	arameters]								
Modules () P Name	arameters]	Туре	_	Ti	A.	F.		New	
Modules [\ P Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New	
Modules [\ P Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit	
Modules [\ P Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete	
wodules [\ P Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete Clone	
€ <mark>u Modules [) P</mark> Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete Clone	
€ <mark>u Modules [\ P</mark> Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from <i>i</i> to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete Clone	
€ <mark>u Modules [\ P</mark> Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from <i>i</i> to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete Clone	
tul Modules [) P Name ⊡- Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete Clone	
Modules () P Name - Protocol	arameters]	Type Protocol with	n from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete Clone	
Modules [, P Name ⊡- Protocol Template Open	arameters] Generate E	Type Protocol with	1 from/to	Ti Off	A. N	F. N		New Edit Delete Clone	

See also

Configuring modules (Page 284) Query types (Page 749) Time unit abbreviations (Page 756) Creating a printer (Page 361) Creating a folder (Page 364) User jobs of the job queue (Page 827) Setting up users (Page 343) Automating a report (Page 281) Jobs in Energy Manager PRO (Page 398)

Automating a report

Requirement

- The report is configured.
- For the "Print" and "Save in directory" options:
 - The printer has been created.
 - The directory has been created.
- For the "Send by Mail" option:
 - The connection to an SMTP server is configured in the Energy Manager options.
 - User has been created with an email address.
- For the "Send Link to Recipient by Mail" option:

The URL for Energy Manager PRO Web has been entered under "Energy Manager Options" in the "Appl." tab in the "WEBSERVER" field, for example, "http://localhost/EnMPROWeb".

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Procedure

In order to automate a report open the query type and activate the respective options.

🔣 Report Query Type - Mo	onth			—		×
Query Type:	Month					•
Description:						^
						~
Compression Level:	Entry values					•
Report delete after:	1	Unit: [Y] year			•
Report Automation Start Print Send per Mail Excel Mail Link to Save to Directory Excel Excel	PDF Recipient / PDF					
Report start after:		Unit:	[min] minute			•
Repeat calculation every:	0	Unit:	[d] day			•
	Create each with	a new r	esult			
			ОК		Cancel	

- 1. In order to start a report automatically, activate the "Start" option. The following options are displayed at the bottom of the dialog:
 - Start report after

Specify the starting point of the automatic generation. The default value is 0:00.

- Repeat calculation every

Specifies the interval at which all existing report results are being recalculated. You can use this feature, for example, to update a generated report result daily and overwrite the old report result.

To keep the old report result, and create a copy with the current values, enable the option "Create each with a new result".

- 2. To automatically print a report, follow these steps:
 - Activate the option "Print".
 - After finishing the configuration, create a "Printer" folder below the hardware object.
 - After finishing the configuration, copy the "Printer" object under the "Printer" folder.

- 3. Proceed as follows to automatically email the report:
 - Activate the "Send by Mail" option.
 - Activate the report format for mailing, e.g. "PDF".
 - Activate the "Send Link to Recipient by Mail" check box if you only want to email the link to the stored report.

The recipient will receive an email with the link instead of the file.

The recipient accesses this report by clicking this link, logging in to Energy Manager PRO Web , and opening the report.

- After finishing the configuration, create an "E-mail" folder under the hardware object.
- After finishing the configuration, copy the "User" object under the "E-mail" folder.
- After finishing the configuration, copy the "User" object under the query type.



- 4. Proceed as follows to automatically save the report to a directory:
 - Activate the "Save in directory" option.
 - Activate the report format for saving.
 - After finishing the configuration, create a "Directory" folder under the hardware object.
 - After finishing the configuration, copy the "Directory" object under the "Directory" folder.
 - After finishing the configuration, copy the "Directory" object under the query type.



5. Click "OK".

Result

The selected options are executed after the start of a report, irrespective of whether a report is started automatically or manually.

See also

Configuring query types (Page 279) User jobs of the job queue (Page 827) Job queue (Page 398)

Configuring modules

Overview

Use a module to configure the visualization of a report in Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Word. You can configure several modules for a report.

Requirement

The report is configured.

Procedure

1. Double-click the desired report in the structure tree of the Client.

The "Report" dialog opens.

2. Click "New" in the "Module" area.

The module configuration dialog opens.

3. Enter a unique name and an optional description for the module.

Note

The report module names are used as Excel "cell names".

To ensure conformant module configuration, observe the standard designations for the country-specific Microsoft EXCEL documentation.

Do not use Excel-specific expressions, e.g. C1 or R1, or Z1 or S1 in German systems, at the beginning of the report module name.

Note

Do not use Excel-specific expressions such as A1 or =FG14 during the creation and configuration of modules.

The module name cannot contain any special characters. The following characters are permitted:

- A to Z
- a to z
- 0 to 9
- •
- 4. Select a module type.
 - You need a datapoint to configure a query module.
 - You need a data point, a parameter or a measuring variable to configure a balancing module or a protocol module.

More information on the module types is available in the chapter "Module overview (Page 758)".

- 5. Activate "Query interval at start" to enter the interval at the start of the report.
- 6. Activate "Insert rows before the values" in order to insert rows for the new values. Corresponding rows will be inserted prior to the wiring of values. Activate this option, for example, when using graphic objects in the template.

Existing rows will be overwritten by default. Activate this option, for example, when using row operations in Microsoft Excel .

- 7. Click "time window correction" and select a time under "With query type" for starting report evaluation .
- 8. In order to shift the time range for the evaluation of a report, click "Time period correction" and select a value and a time unit under "Align by".

۳.	Report Module - Balance - 🗆 🗙
Name:	Balance
Description:	
Module Type:	Balance
	Insert rows before inserting values.
	Timespan Correction ¥
	Off
	O By Query Type
	Alian By
	0 d 💌
	OK Cancel

9. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

The module is configured for the report. You can edit, delete, or clone the module, or insert a new one for the report.

Ē	Bericht - Plant Performance	- 🗆 🗙
Name: Description:	Plant Performance	^
Display T Text Type: D Query Typ Name Month	ype Description Country: Germany Des Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Entry values C	 New Edit Delete
Modules	\Parameters]	
Name Balance Protocol Quei	Type Ti A. F. Balance Off N N Protocol with from/to Off N N y Type Interval Unit Text	New Edit Delete Cione
Template Open	Generate Entry Points Import	
9	OK Apply	Cancel

If the module needs start parameters for the report, enter the start parameters in the "Module" area of the "Report" dialog, for example, 1 h for the "Protocol" module. Missing start parameters for a module are marked in red color.

Type	Ti	A.	F.		
Delener					
Balance		N	Ν		=
Protocol with from/to	Off	N	Ν		EO
Interval Unit	Text				Dele
0 d					2,010
					Clor
	Protocol with from/to Interval Unit 0 d	Protocol with from/to Off Interval Unit Text	Protocol with from/to Off N Interval Unit Text	Protocol with from/to Off N N Interval Unit Text 0 d	Protocol with from/to Off N N Interval Unit Text

See also

Basics for designing the report layout (Page 287)

Creating a report (Page 276)

Time unit abbreviations (Page 756)

Design of the report layout

Basics for designing the report layout

Overview

Energy Manager uses Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Word to visualize reports. Specify the layout and representation individually in the relevant program. In this way, for example, you can visualize consumption values in a diagram.

Principle of name generation

Note

Report templates based on Microsoft Word

In Microsoft Word, you use embedded Excel objects, into which Energy Manager imports values as in the figure shown below.



When you click "Generate name" in the report configuration, a new report template is created or an existing one is updated. The module names ① are entered in column "A" ②. A name with the relevant module name is created for each cell ③. In addition, the master data of the report is entered in column "B". A name with the relevant master data is created for each cell ④.

For report templates in Microsoft Word , the data are imported into the embedded Excel objects that contain the module names.

Note

If you define the module name as a valid cell address or a sheet name on which the module is placed, you will not be able to load the report.

If you define the module name with "A51", for example, an error will occur. The module name "A51" is a valid jump label for MS Excel.

If you define the module name with "AVZ", for example, and the sheet name is also "AVZ", an error will occur. The module name "AVZ" is a valid sheet name for MS Excel.

Entering values

Values are entered as follows when you generate a report:

Modules: The values are entered as of the cell below the corresponding name. For this
reason, you need to shift each cell with a module name from column "A" to a position
where contents will not be overwritten (cut & paste).

Example: The daily listing of consumption values of a month usually needs between 29 and 32 rows: One row for the header and, depending on the months, between 28 and 31 rows for the days.

You can use the naming manager in Microsoft Excel to view and edit the names and their cell ranges.

You may also distribute the cells to several sheets.

Note

If you distribute cells that contain module names to several sheets, activate the sheet that contains the original definition of names before closing.

• Master data: The values are entered as of the cell with the corresponding name.

Modifying or adding module names

If you change a module name in Energy Manager, or if you add an additional module to a report in Energy Manager, carry out the "Generate name" function again. Move the name fields of the newly inserted module to the desired position.

Alternatively, you can also use the name manager.

See also

Configuring the layout for an Excel report (Page 289) Configuring modules (Page 284)
Configuring the layout for an Excel report

Overview

You can configure a template for an Excel report. In this template, you specify how the measured values are displayed.

Requirement

- The report is configured.
- The query type is configured for the report.
- The module is configured for the report.

Procedure

1. Double-click the desired Excel report in the structure tree of the Client.

The "Report" dialog opens.

2. To create a report template in Microsoft Excel, click "Generate name".

Microsoft Excel opens and the module name is entered in column "A".

- 3. Move the cell containing the module name to a position at which the module has sufficient space for its measured values.
- 4. Structure the template. You can find additional information in the Microsoft Excel online help.

Note

Special characters and spaces are not allowed in the table name.

5. Configure the print area of the report. It is used for printing and PDF generation of the report result.

Note

Print areas that are not customized may result in excessive report results and have the following effects:

- Multi-page print results and high paper consumption
- Very large PDF documents and high memory usage in the Energy Manager database

- 6. If you want to run a macro in Microsoft Excel after you have generated the report, follow these steps:
 - Open the macro editor in Microsoft Excel.
 - Insert the Sub OnBDataLoadDone procedure in the spreadsheet that contains the original name definitions. Note that this entry is case-sensitive.
 - Write the program code and close the macro editor.
 - Set the security level to "low" in the Microsoft Excel security settings. Activate the "Trust access to Visual Basic projects" option under "Trusted Publishers".

Note

You cannot run a macro without having made the aforementioned security settings.

7. Save the template to an Microsoft Excel file.

Result

E A В C D F G Н 12 13 From 14 To 15 16 Entry point for Balance Module 17 Consumption Gas GJ 18 Consumption Electricity GJ 19 Costs Gas EUR 20 Costs Electricity EUR 21 Total costs EUR 22 Unit consumption GJ/mcig 23 24 Protocol Total consumption consumption Costs Electricity Total production Costs Gas time Ξ 25 26 27 28

The template is configured for the report.

Alternative procedure

Alternatively, you can import an existing template for the report. To do this, click "Import" in the "Report" dialog and select the required file. If required, you can adapt the module names in the report template using the name manager.

See also

Basics for designing the report layout (Page 287) Creating a report (Page 276) Configuring query types (Page 279) Configuring modules (Page 284)

Configuring the layout for an Word report

Overview

You can configure a template for a Word report. In this template, you specify how the measured values are displayed.

Use the following objects to visualize the measured values:

- Tabular representation: Embedded Excel table
- Graphical representation: Trend chart

Requirement

- The report is configured.
- The query type is configured for the report.
- The module is configured for the report.

Procedure

- Double-click the desired Word report in the structure tree of the Client. The "Report" dialog opens.
- In order to prepare a template for the report in Microsoft Word, click "Open". Microsoft Word opens.
- 3. Insert the desired objects, for example an embedded Excel table.

	5 - ()	Ŧ	B	3Data207216656	[Compa	tibility Mo	ode] - Re	port - öffnen	- MonthlyR	eport		?	Ť	- [×
FILE	HOME	INSERT	DESIGN	PAGE LAY	TUC	REFEREN	CES	MAILINGS	REVIEW	VIEW				Sigr	in 🔍
Pages	Table Pictu	res Online Pictures	Shapes] SmartArt Chart Screenshot ≁	Apps	Online Video	Cinks	K Comment	 Heade Footer Page N 	r * * lumber *	A Text Box ▼	■ - [] 4 - [] A - []	s -	Ω ymbols	
	Insert Table					Media		Comments	Header 8	k Footer		Text			-14
	Insert Tal Insert Tal Draw Tat Excel Spr Quick Ia	Carlor Control													
PAGE 1	OF 1 0 WORI	os D2	ENGLISH (UN	NITED STATES)					Ø		R -		I	-+	100%

4. Save and close the template.

5. Click "Generate name".

Microsoft Word opens. A "Energy Manager PRO" worksheet is inserted into each chart or each embedded table. The module name is entered in column "A" on this worksheet.

		BDat	ta2081233	421 [Com	patibility	Mode] - F	Report - öff	fnen - Mor	nthlyRepo	ort			
File Wind	File Window												
🗄 🕤 T													
	HOME INSERT PAGELAYOUT FORMULAS DATA REVIEW VIEW												
Protocol	Protocol \mathbf{v} : $\mathbf{X} \mathbf{v} \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{r}}$ Protocol												
			↓ J ^π										
	1	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Η				
	1	Request	Date										
	2	Protocol	From										
	3		То										
	4		User										
	5		Query_Ty	pe									
	6		Name										
	7		Descriptio	on							1		
	8		Кеер										
	9		State										
	10		Version D	ate									
	11		Model Da	te									
	12		Land										
	13										-		
	1	${} \rightarrow $	Sheet1	B.Dat	a sheet	+				•			
		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			
		ionos D3	THEFT						68 =				4000/
PAGE 1 OF 1	0 W	ORDS LIS	ENGLISH	UNITED STA	IES)					EQ -		+	100%

6. Move the cell containing the module name to a different worksheet, to a position where the module has sufficient space for its measured values.

Note

During generation of the report, only those module names will be populated, which are contained on a different "Energy Manager PRO sheet" worksheet.

- 7. To design the template, use Microsoft Word.
- 8. Save the template to a Microsoft Word file.

Result

The template is configured for the report.

Working with report templates

Report templates

Overview

In Energy Manager you can use an existing report to create a template that is the basis for new reports. If you create a new report and assign a template to it, the following configurations from the template are applied:

- Display modes
- Query types
- Modules
- Report layout

Using templates for reports makes sense for similarly structured plants or sites, for example when separate reports are required for nearly identical production lines. Changes to the template affect all reports that are generated in the future, which are based on this template.

Requirement

• In order to create, configure and delete a report template, you need corresponding rights, which are defined in the functional group under "Template Manager".

Creating a report template

You can create a new template using the "Report as Template" option in the shortcut menu of the report (right-click).

Overview of existing report templates

Click the "Templates" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Configuration". The existing report templates are displayed on the "Reports" tab.

More details on creating and using report templates are available in sections "Creating a template (Page 294)" and "Using a template (Page 295)".

See also

Edit template (Page 297) Disconnecting a report from a template (Page 299)

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.2 Configuration

Create a template

Requirement

A report has been created.

Procedure

1. Select the "Report as template" command from the shortcut menu of the report. The "Report" dialog opens.

Note

A report can only serve as a template if a template has not yet been assigned to the report itself.

- 2. Enter a new name for the template.
- 3. As needed, change query types, modules or the report layout.

	Template	- 🗆 ×
Name: Template_Consum	nption	
Description:		~
		~
Display Type		
Text Type: Name	Country: Germany	•
Query Types		
Name	스 Comp. Level S. P. M. D). New
Monat	Entry values	Edit
		Delete
🛍 Modules [\ Parameters]		
Name	Type Ti A. F.	New
Comsumption_Gas	Protocol Off Y N	Edit
Query Type	Interval Unit Lext	
⊞- Comsumtion_Electricity	Protocol Off Y N	Delete
Costs_Electricity	Balance Off N N	Clone
Costs_Gas	Balance Off N N	
Open Generate	Entry Points Import	
	OK Apply	Cancel

4. Save the template.

Result

The template is created and is shown in the menu under "Master Data > Configuration > Templates". All templates are also visible in the Templates folder in the shortcut menu.

See also

Edit template (Page 297)

Using a template

Requirement

A template has been created.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the report is going to be created.
- 2. In the menu bar under "Analysis > Reporting", click the "Insert Excel report" button or the "Insert Word report" button.

The "Report" dialog opens.

Name: Validation_plant2 Description: Display Type Text Type: Name Country: Germany Query Types Name A Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Month Entry values Image: Country: Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Month Entry values Image: Country: Country	
Description: Display Type Text Type: Name Country: Germany Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Month Entry values Mame Values Provide the second	
Display Type ext Type: Name Country: Germany Country: G	1
ext Type: Name Country: Germany Query Types Name Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Entry values Month Entry values Modules [\ Parameters] Hame Type Timespan Correction Q. I. ref_DP Validation deviation refer Off N N min_max Validation frefer Off N N State_not_ok Validation gap N N	
Ouery Types Name △ Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Ionth Entry values □ □ □ □ Modules [\Parameters] Image: Second sec	-
Name A Comp. Level S. P. M. D. Ionth Entry values Image: Complex of the second seco	
Introduction Entry values Image: Control of the second secon	New
Modules [\Parameters] lame Type Timespan Correction Q. I. ref_DP Validation deviation refer Off N N min_max Validation Min Max Off N N State_not_ok Validation status not ok Off N N gaps Validation gap N N Image: Correction Image: Correction <td< td=""><td>Edit</td></td<>	Edit
Image: Second state and s	
Modules [\Parameters] Iame Type Timespan Correction Q. I. ref_DP Validation deviation refer Off N N min_max Validation Min Max Off N N State_not_ok Validation status not ok Off N N gaps Validation gap N N Image: Construction of the status o	Delete
ref_DP Validation deviation refer Off N N min_max Validation Min Max Off N N State_not_ok Validation status not ok Off N N gaps Validation gap N N	New
min_max Validation Min Max Off N N State_not_ok Validation status not ok Off N N gaps Validation gap N N	Edit
gaps Validation gap N N	Lun
	Delete
	Clone
"Template	
Open Generate Entry Points Import	
OK Apply	Cancel

- 3. Enter a meaningful name and an optional description for the report.
- Select a template from the list under "From template", and click "Apply". The "Report" dialog is filled out with the template's specifications.
- 5. Save the report.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Result

A new report based on a template has been created.

See also

Entering values in reports (Page 300)

Edit template

Introduction

Templates for reports are centrally managed under "Master data > Configuration > Templates". You can create, edit or delete templates:

- "Edit": The changes affect all reports that are generated in the future, which are based on the edited template.
- "Delete": The template is disconnected from all templates that are based on the template that is to be deleted. Then the template including the configured query types and modules is deleted.

Note

If a template has been disconnected from a report, you can never again assign a template to this report.

Requirement

A template has been created.

Procedure

 Click the "Templates" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Configuration". The "Templates dialog" opens, and displays the list of templates.

	File	Acquisition Processing	Analysis	Master Data A	dministration	Help
		- 🖻 🖻 🔝 🖻	N	ц		
			Tem	plates		_ 🗆 🗙
P	List of T	Templates				
	Туре	Reportname		Save date	Saved by	Edit
	Ē.	Template_Degree Days		29/10/2014 10:49:2	7 Admin	0.1.1
	Ē.	Template_Validation		29/10/2014 10:49:4	8 Admin	Delete
		Power_ComsumptionKK		17/10/2014 12:35:1	9 Admin	
		Power_ComsumptionSIK		17/10/2014 12:34:0	0 Admin	
						Close

- 2. In order to edit a template:
 - Select a template, and click "Edit".

The "Template" dialog opens.

- Perform the changes.
- Save the template.
- 3. In order to delete a template:
 - Select a template, and click "Delete".

Result

The changes are applied automatically to all the reports that are based on this template.

See also

Create a template (Page 294) Disconnecting a report from a template (Page 299)

Disconnecting a report from a template

Requirement

A report was created using a template.

Procedure

1. Click "Edit..." in the shortcut menu of the report.

The "Report" dialog opens.

2. Click "Disconnect".

Note

If you disconnect a template from a report, you can never again assign a template to this report. However, you can create a template for other reports from this report.

- 3. As needed, change the configured query types, modules or the report layout.
- 4. Save the report.

Result

The template is disconnected from the report.

See also

Edit template (Page 297)

Entering values in reports

Requirement

- The report is configured.
- The data point, parameter and measuring variable have been created.
- You have created the printer, the directory, and the user.
- The module and request type are configured for the report.

Procedure

1. Assign the module the corresponding data points, parameters or measuring variables to visualize the selected values in the report.

Note

Object descriptions of Data points, Measuring variables and Parameters must not contain Excel-specific expressions such as A1 or =FG14.

If you output the properties of objects in reports, do not use Excel-specific expressions in the output properties.

- Assign the module a data point if you have configured a query module.
- If you have configured a balancing module or a protocol module, assign a data point, a
 parameter or a measuring variable to the module.

Note

If you have assigned a parameter to a protocol module, configure the replacement value and, if required, the associated validity period in the input dialog.

2. To print, save, or e-mail the report automatically, assign the corresponding printer, e-mail address and/or directory to the query type.

Result

The values are entered in the report.



See also

Configuring query types (Page 279) Configuring modules (Page 284) Fundamentals of creating printer and directory (Page 361) Setting up users (Page 343)

Charts

Creating a Chart

Overview

With the Chart object it is possible to make a predefined Chart available to several users. This means that the configuration via the Chart object is not user-specific in contrast to the configuration of a Chart directly at the datapoint, at the matrix or at a measuring variable. Configurations such as colors or the number of the displayed datapoints thus apply for all the users and not only for the current user.

Procedure

- 1. Click the object or the folder under which you want to create the Chart object.
- 2. Click the Chart icon in the area "Analyze > Reporting".

The "Chart" dialog opens.

⊵c	Chart	- 🗆 🗙
Name:		
Description:		^
		~
	ОК	Cancel

- 3. Enter a name and optionally a description.
- 4. Save with OK.
- 5. The Chart object is created under the desired object.
- 6. Assign the datapoints to be displayed to the Chart object.

Result

The Chart object has been created and the desired datapoints assigned.

🗅 📄 Char	ts
D Ec Pl	ant_overview
	e_CC_3232_Hall1
	e_CC_5554_Hall2
····••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	e_CC_3232_Hall2

You can configure the Chart object with a double-click.

See also

Displaying the Standard Chart (Page 450) Show details (Page 451) Comparing values of different time ranges (Page 452) Exporting the Chart (Page 453) Creating charts (Page 607)

Dashboards

Dashboard basics

Definition of "Dashboard"

Note

In addition to the freely configurable dashboard in the Energy Manager PRO Client, there is also the Widget Dashboard. Configure the Widget Dashboard in Energy Manager PRO Web. In the Widget Dashboard you can insert multiple widgets which provide a clear overview of the various measurement and plant data.

You can use the Dashboard and default objects to obtain a clear overview of historical data from the Energy Manager database.



Using the Dashboard

The Dashboard provides you with an overview of your production and consumption data. You may distribute the data to be visualized to several dashboards for a clearer overview. Add a navigation button to each Dashboard to facilitate navigation between the dashboards.

Use the Energy Manager "Dashboard" object in the following situations, for example:

- To visualize consumption or cost parameters
- To visualize consumption or cost states
- To obtain a detailed overview of a production site, or of the combination of several production sites

You may also use Energy Manager PRO Web to call the stored Dashboards.



- (1), (2), (3) Large selection of display object templates, for example, pointer instruments, diagrams, or status displays.
- ④ Process visualization using dynamic Sankey objects
- (5) Buttons for navigation between multiple dashboards

2.2 Configuration

Dashboard notes

Observe the following information:

Value input

A Dashboard visualizes only values of the following data points:

- "Generic" data point type
- "Derived" data point type
- "Datapoint" data point type

You can visualize values that are calculated based on measurement functions by assigning each measurement function a derived data point.

• Time range

Make sure that you set the time range to be visualized to a sufficient length. Moreover, the data points must contain measurement data for the specified time range.

Rules for creating dashboards

Observe the following rules before you start to create a Dashboard:

- Plan the data quantity to be visualized and the corresponding distribution of this data.
- You can distribute large data quantities to several dashboards to improve the overview and performance.

Use a navigation button to switch between the dashboards; create this button in each Dashboard by means of dashboard object "Panel Switch".

• Recommendation: When configuring the refresh cycle for Dashboard, enter the time in seconds e.g. 900 seconds for a refresh cycle of 15 minutes.

Configuring dashboards

Create a graphic overview as follow:

- 1. Create one or several dashboards in the project tree of the Client.
- 2. Copy the data points to be visualized as nested entry to the Dashboard you created.
- 3. Create the Dashboard layout by compiling the selected dashboard objects in the "Dashboard" editor.
- 4. Assign the selected data points to the dashboard objects used and customize the layout of the dashboard objects.
- 5. If you have created several dashboards for a graphic overview, add one or several buttons to the Dashboard using dashboard object "Panel Switch" and assign the respective Dashboard to each button.

Use these buttons to switch between the dashboards.

6. Open the selected Dashboard in full-screen mode.

The Dashboard displays the values of the data points used for a defined period.

See also

Create dashboard (Page 306) Configuring the time range (Page 860) Dashboard objects (Page 859) Example of configuring a dashboard (Page 317)

Create dashboard

Overview

To create a Dashboard in Energy Manager , create a Dashboard in the project tree of the Client.

Procedure

1. In the project tree of the client, select the folder below which you want to create a Dashboard.

⊡ <mark>::}</mark> System
🛱 🛅 Customer
🖶 🛅 Data collection
🖶 🛅 Calculation Level I Loop / Prototype
🖶 🛅 Calculation Level II MEVA's
👜 🛅 Reports
🖶 🛅 Trends
🖶 🛅 Visualization
🞰 🎦 Dashboard

2. Click the "Dashboard " button in the menu bar under "Analysis > Reporting".

The dialog for creating the Dashboard opens.

Į	ш ²	Name – 🗖	×
	Name:	CU Group Overview	
	Description:		^
			~
			_
	9	OK Cancel	

- 3. Enter a name such as "CU Group Overview" and an optional description for the Dashboard.
- 4. Click "OK".

Result

The Dashboard is created in the project tree of the Client.

🗅 🔁 Dashboard 🥼 🔤 CU Group Overview

You can edit the name and description of the Dashboard by clicking "Edit" in the shortcut menu of the Dashboard.

Create the layout for the new Dashboard.

See also

Dashboard basics (Page 302) Creating the dashboard layout (Page 310) Setting up dashboards (Page 550) Example of configuring a dashboard (Page 317)

Structure of the Dashboard editor

Function

Use the "Dashboard" editor to create the layout for your Dashboard.

Structure of the editor

The "Dashboard" editor has the following structure:



① Menu bar and toolbar

The menu bar and toolbar provide default commands and icons, for example, for saving files or aligning objects.

2 Workspace

You visualize, compile and configure the dashboard objects for your Dashboard on the workspace.

③ Symbol palette

The symbol palette provides all dashboard objects that you can use. You can change between the Dashboard and Sankey palettes.

Menu bar of the editor

The menu bar of the "Dashboard" editor has the following structure:

File

The "File" menu is used to save, close or export/import the current Dashboard.

Use the "Export"/"Import" function to make the Dashboard available to other Energy Manager users.

Note Exporting a Dashboard

The exported Dashboard can only be opened in an Energy Manager System.

• Edit

The "Edit" menu commands are used to perform standard document editor actions such as copying or deleting objects.

• View

The "View" menu lets you hide or unhide the pallets.

Editor toolbar

The toolbar of the "Dashboard" editor has the following structure:

• Position

▝▙▙▙@@\$₽@

These icons are used to position dashboard objects on the workspace. These can be used, for example, to place a dashboard object into the background of a different dashboard.

• Align

▝▙▝▙ ▙ ▆▁ ▆ ▆ ▆

These icons are used to align dashboard objects on the workspace. You can use them, for example, to align objects to the center.

• Size

▝▙▝▙ ▙ ▙ 흔 ႌ 릭 ू (ॻ क़ =)

These icons are used to resize dashboard objects on the workspace. You can use them, for example, to resize the width of a dashboard object to fit the width of a different dashboard object.

Note

Using the toolbar

The toolbar icons are only available if you select several dashboard objects on the workspace.

Press the <CTRL> key for multiple selection of dashboard objects.

Instead of the toolbar icons, you may use the shortcut menu commands of the dashboard objects:

Align	
Order	
Resize	
Configuration	

See also

Exporting/importing dashboards (Page 316) Creating the dashboard layout (Page 310)

Creating the dashboard layout

Overview

Create a layout for the Dashboard you created. This layout defines the appearance of the Dashboard.

You are provided two pallets, each containing different dashboard objects for creating the layout:

• Dashboard palette: Contains objects such as "Gauge" or "Pie Chart" for creating graphic overviews.

Dashboard pale	tte
T	0
RoundRectangle	Ellipse
	/
Polyline	Line
	8
Image	Traffic light
	V
Value Diff	Value
State	Bar Chart
	1 million
Pie Chart	Line Chart
\odot	
Gauge	DataTable
C	${}^{}$
Panel Switch	Picker

• Sankey palette: Contains objects such as "Process" for creating Sankey charts.



Requirement

The Dashboard is created.

Procedure

1. Click "Layout" in the shortcut menu of the Dashboard.

🔖 🔐 CU Group Overv	iow	
	2	Properties
		Domains
	Ж	Cut
	ŧ.	Сору
	Ē	Paste
	2	Clone
		<u>L</u> ock
	۶x	Disconnect
	×	Delete
	b	<u>Ö</u> ffnen
	/	<u>B</u> earbeiten
	2	Layout

The "Dashboard" editor opens.

- 2. Click "Configuration" in the shortcut menu of the workspace to configure the Dashboard.
- 3. In the editor, select the symbol palette that contains the dashboard objects to be used in the layout: Dashboard Palette or Sankey Palette.
- 4. Drag-and-drop the selected dashboard objects from the symbol pallet to the workspace.



The objects are placed into the workspace.

	The "Dashboard" editor lets you set up different alignments for multiple dashboard objects. You need a reference object to which you can align other objects. Start by selecting an object in the "Dashboard" editor and define it as reference object.
	 On the workspace, select the reference object to which you are going to align other dashboard objects.
	 Select the dashboard objects by means of multiple selection.
	 Select the command from the toolbar, or from the shortcut menu of the dashboard objects.
	The selected objects are aligned.
	5. Save the layout.
Result	
	You have created the Dashboard layout.
	Configure the dashboard objects used in order to customize them, or to link them with the selected data points.
See also	
	Create dashboard (Page 306)
	Structure of the Dashboard editor (Page 307)
	Configuring dashboard objects (Page 313)
	Configuring the dashboard (Page 859)
	Dashboard objects (Page 859)
	Example of configuring a dashboard (Page 317)

Configuring dashboard objects

Overview

After having created the Dashboard layout, configure the dashboard objects to be used as follows:

- Link the dashboard objects with the data points containing the values to be visualized on the Dashboard.
- Customize the appearance of the dashboard objects, for example, the background color or text layout.

Note

Configuration of the dashboard objects

The following figures show the configuration of the "Pie Chart" dashboard object.

For information about the configuration of other dashboard objects, refer to chapter "Dashboard objects".

Requirement

- You have created the Dashboard layout and opened it in the "Dashboard" editor.
- The desired datapoints are created in the project tree of the Client.

Procedure

1. Copy the data points that contain the measured values to be visualized to the nested folder of the Dashboard.



2. You configure a selected dashboard object by double-clicking it on the workspace.

Alternatively, you can select the "Configuration" command from the shortcut menu of the dashboard object.



The dashboard configuration dialog opens.

3. Configure the dashboard object to suit your requirements.

You can customize the "Pie Chart" dashboard object as follows, for example:

- Select "New" to set the number of bars to display in the pie chart.
- Select "Data point" to assign each bar the data point containing the values to be displayed in the pie chart.
- Select "Caption" to specify the text that describes the respective bar in the pie chart.
- Select "Layout" to define the bar colors for the pie chart and activate the selected option for displaying the measured values in the pie chart.

Ť	Pie Chart 🗙			
Datapoints Time Frame Parameter				
Point1 Point2 Point3 Point4	Data source information Datapoint d_consumption_plant_Hams_Hall Datapoint Datapoint ID : 167743			
Point5	Legend Text Use Hams Hall Description Name			
	Layout Point color Show value 🗹 absolut 🔽 percentage			
	Border color Border width			
New Delete				
	OK Cancel			

- Select "Time range" to define the period from which the measured values are to be displayed in the pie chart.
- Select "Parameters" to define additional settings for the pie chart, for example, the background color or title.
- 4. Click "OK".

Result



You have configured the selected dashboard object.

You may also configure the background on which the dashboard objects are positioned. Right-click in an empty area of the workspace and select the "Configuration" command from the shortcut menu.

Configure all other objects that are used in your Dashboard, save the layout, and open the Dashboard in full-screen mode.

See also

Creating the dashboard layout (Page 310)

Dashboards (Page 461)

Configuring the time range (Page 860)

Dashboard objects (Page 859)

Example of configuring a dashboard (Page 317)

Exporting/importing dashboards

Overview

You can make a Dashboard available to external Energy Managerusers by exporting the Dashboard to a file. Distribute this file, for example, by E-Mail.

The Energy Manager users can now import and use the exported Dashboard file on their Energy Manager System.

Requirement

You have created the Dashboard and opened it in the "Dashboard" editor.

Exporting dashboards

- 1. Select "File" > "Export" from the menu bar.
 - The dialog for saving the file opens.
- 2. Select the directory and enter the file name.
- 3. Save the file in EDD format, for example, "CU_Group_Overview.edd".
- 4. You can send the stored file by E-Mail.

Importing dashboards

- Select "File" > "Import" from the menu bar. The dialog for opening the file opens.
- Select the file in EDD format and click "Open".
 The Dashboard is displayed in the "Dashboard" editor on the workspace.

See also

Structure of the Dashboard editor (Page 307)

Example of configuring a dashboard

Creating datapoints for the Dashboard

Overview

This example shows how you can visualize daily consumption in a week as bar chart in a dashboard. High limit overshoot is also to be visualized graphically.

Preparations

You need the following objects for this example:

- 2 data points
- 1 derived data point
- 1 matrix
- 1 measuring variable

Name	Туре	Cycle	Valid from	Query type
d_Water1_Compressor	Data point	1 d	05.11.2012	-
d_Water2_Compressor	Data point	1 d	05.11.2012	-
a_Sum_CompressedWater ¹⁾	Derived	1 d	05.11.2012	-
Matrix_WaterConsumption_DailyValues	-	1 d	-	Month (starting on 01.11.2012)
m_Sum_CompressedWater	Addition with check- sum	-	-	-

1) When configuring the data point, select "Plausibility" to set the "High limit" to "200".

Creating objects

1. Create a "Dashboard Example" folder and set up the aforementioned objects as follows:



2. Enter the following values in a matrix:

Time stamp	e_Water1_Compressor	e_Water2_Compressor
05.11.2012	50	60
06.11.2012	40	100
07.11.2012	20	60
08.11.2012	30	70
09.11.2012	60	100

3. Conclude your setup by calculating the derived data point for the time period "November 2012".

See also

Creating a Dashboard (Page 319)

Creating a Dashboard

Setting up the dashboard

- 1. Set up a new "Dashboard" object and enter the object name "Water Consumption Chart".
- 2. Copy the data points to the structure below the dashboard:

```
    Dashboard_Example
    Dashboard_Data
    Dashboard_Data
    dwaterConsumptionChart
    dwater1_Compressor
    dwater2_Compressor
    a_Sum_CompressedWater
```

3. Select the "Layout" command from the shortcut menu of the dashboard to configure the dashboard.

The dashboard configuration dialog opens. The left pane displays the "Dashboard palette" by default. Drag-and-drop the dashboard objects from this palette to the workspace.

Creating bar charts with three bars

Use a bar chart to provide a clear overview of data point values.

1. Insert the "Bar chart" dashboard object to visualize consumption values:



<u></u>	Configuration - [Water Consumption Chart] – 🗖 🗙	
File Edit View	×	
특별 및 및 전 및 환 및 환 및 환 및 환 및 환 및 환 및 환 및 환 및 환 및		
Dashboard palette		
RoundRectangle Ellipse	Bar chart example	
Polyline Line	1000 Series1	
N Y	Bar Chart	×
Image		
Datapoints Time Fra	Parameter	
Volue Diff	Datapoint d_Water2_Compressor	
Value Dili	Datacycle: 900 Unit: °C Datapoint ID 144348	To
	Legend Text	0
State	Use O d_Water2_Compressor ODescription In Name	
	Color	
Pie Chart		
\odot		
Sankey palette		
New	Delete	
	OK Cancel	
Real Property lies and the second sec		ani -

2. Select the data point to use for the input of bar values and set the caption text:

The default bar chart consists of one bar. You need three bars to visualize the three data points. Set different bar colors to highlight the difference.

File Edit View	Configuration - [Water Consumption Chart]	- □ ×
Image: Second	Bar Chart	Series1
Value Diff Value Diff State Series2 Series3 Pie Chart Sankey palett New	Data source information Datapoint [a_Sum_CompressedWater Datarycle: 900 Unit KWh Datapoint ID 12986 Legend Text Use [a_Sum_CompressedWater Color Color Delete	Description Name

3. Add two bars and assign these to the other two data points:

Interim result

You have set up three bars with the following data point assignments:

- Series 1: e_Water1_Compressor
- Series 2: e_Water2_Compressor
- Series 3: a_Sum_CompressedWater

Set time range

Use the time range to define the data point values to be displayed. In this example you display the consumption volumes of the week in November from 05.11.2012 to 09.11.2012.

1. Enter the time range to visualize in this bar chart:

L.		Configuration - [Water Consumption Chart]	- 🗆 ×
File Edit View			×
°2 °2 🖵 🖬 8	\$ ╞ ┅ 릐 ╦ ฿ ๏	3	
Dashboard palet	te	0	^^
T	0	Bar chart example	
RoundRectangle	Ellipse		
		1000-	Series1
Polyline	Line		
	t	Bar Chart	×
Image	Datapoints Time Frame Pa	rameter	
	Timeframe		
Value Diff	O dynamic date:		
	Offset: 0		
State	Example: Data selection	from 12.03.2014 00:00:00 to 13.03.2014 00:00:00	
	fixed date (Ad hoc):		
	From: 05.11.201	2 00:00:00 To: 2.11.2012 00:00:00	
Pie Chart		- 02	
Sankey palette	Comp Level Filter: Entry value	Jes •	
	Object refresh		
	Refresh cycle 5 [s	ec]	
			OK Cancel
			in the second se

Insert warning when values are exceeded

For example, any limits that you defined for a data point in the "Plausibility" settings can be visualized with color coding in the dashboard. Rule of thumb: Always evaluate only one limit violation in a dashboard object. Use multiple dashboard objects if you have defined multiple limits.

1. Insert the "Status" dashboard object and select the data point:



2			Configuration - [W	ater Consumption	Chart]		
File Edit View							
1. ¹ 2. ¹	字后 40 司山	1 🕀 🖽					
Dashboard pale	tte						
	0						
RoundRectangle	Ellipse						
	/			Water Co	onsumption		
Polyline	Line			05.11.2012 00:00:00	- 07.11.2012 00:00:00	•	
	8	1	60 - 40 -		a d	Sum_CompressedWater	
Image	Traffic light	1	20-			_waterz_compressor	
	V	1	80 - *		State	×	
Value Diff	Value		60 -		State		
			40 - Datapoint Time	Frame Plausibility	Layout		
State	Bar Chart		20 -			Active	
	Inch.		0- 05.11 0 LowerLimit			T	
Pie Chart	Line Chart		Max Change:	1	0]
				L			
0		_	Max diff to DP:		÷		
Gauge	DataTable			Oabsolute	0 [1]		
Sankey palette		<		(e) relative	10 [%]		
			Max diff.	O absolute	10 [1]		
			month	relative	100 [%]		
			Max diff.	Oabsolute	10 [1]		
			to previous year:	(e) relative	100 [%]		
			Warninglevel:		25 [%]		
					0	K V3 Cancel	

2. Define the limit to be evaluated.

3. Exit the configuration dialog and save the dashboard.

Result

The dashboard is configured.

See also

Displaying a Dashboard (Page 325)
Displaying a Dashboard

Procedure

1. Double-click the dashboard in the Client.

The dashboard opens. The consumption values of the specified period are visualized graphically:



- 2. Change one of the values of time stamp "08.11.2012" in the matrix to "200".
- 3. Recalculate the derived data point.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Result

The high limit of the consumption total is exceeded. The status indicator changes to "red":



2.2.5.2 Energy efficiency

Generating a filtered overview object

Overview

A filtered overview object provides you with an overview of all energy efficiency measures that are important to you.

If you want to generate a report that contains all data of an energy efficiency measure in Microsoft Excel , insert the filtered overview object under the module of the report.

Requirement

You created the energy efficiency measure.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder under which you wish to create the filtered overview object.
- 2. Click "EE Overview" under "Master Data" in the Client . The "Energy Efficiency Measures View" dialog opens.
- 3. Click "Create Node".
- 4. Enter a unique name and an optional description for the filtered overview object.
- 5. Click "Filter" to filter the relevant energy efficiency measures.

The "Energy Efficiency Measurements View Filter" dialog opens.

6. Enter the filter data.

7	Energy Efficiency Measurents View Filter 🛛 – 🗖 🔜	ĸ
Name		
Region:		
Business Unit		
Sav. Cap. [€/Y]:	Min O Max O	
Sav. Cap. Pl. [\$\$/Y]:	Min O Max O	
Status:	Initial	-
CO2 Red. PI. [T/Y]:	Min O Max O	
CO2 Red. Af. [T/Y]:	Min O Max O	
Pay Back [Y]:	Min O Max O	
Category:	A-Project	-
Equipment		
Investment [€]:	Min 0 Max 0	
Currency:	EUR (€)	•
_		
	OK Cancel	

7. Confirm your entries with "OK".

The relevant energy efficiency measure is displayed in the "Measures" area.

			Energy Efficie	ency Measures \	fiew - All Measu	ures			
lame: All Measu	ures								
escription:									
asures									
Filter	ay Back [Y]: 0-2;	Currency: EUR						Refresh	
Vame	Region	Bus. Unit	PI. Sav. (€Y)	Act. Sav. (@Y)	Pl. CO2 Red. [Act. CO2 Red	Pay Back [Y]	Status	New
educe water consum	np Linz	IA	15000,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	1,43	Initial	
ptimization of the cor	m Munich	BT	12000,00	0,00	97,20	0,00	0,87	Evaluate	Edit
									Delete
ummary					*****		*****		
	2	Total CO2 Red. PI:	97,20 Tons/Year	Total CO2 Red. A	. 0,00 Tons/Yea	r ROLAverage:	10,38		
Project Count:	-								
Project Count: Total Investment:	30000,00 €	Total Savings PI.: 27	7000,00 €Year	Total Savings Af.:	0,00 €Year				

8. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have created the filtered overview object.



Double-click the filtered overview object to view the filtered energy efficiency measure.

To generate a report for the filtered energy efficiency measure, insert the filtered overview object under the report. Use the "Energy Efficiency Measure" module for this report. You can find more information on this topic in the "Module Overview" chapter, keyword "Energy Efficiency Measure".

See also

Module overview (Page 758) Configuring reports (Page 279)

2.2.6 "Master Data" menu tab

2.2.6.1 Folder

Overview

Folders in Energy Manager serve to structure the project tree. You have the possibility of building up the pressure in accordance with the requirements of a user. Through the copying functionality you can make desired objects such as datapoints available in several folders for different users. In the process, for example, a structure based on the layout of the technical plants and equipment and additionally a structure based on the accounting can be created. The following figure shows an example of this:



Procedure

- 1. Click the Master data tab.
- 2. Click Folder and enter a name for it



See also

Object management basics (Page 44)

2.2.6.2 Localization

Location

Basics on location and country

With the "Country" object, you can map a country, a region a federal state or a location, for example. You can structure objects of the type "Country" hierarchically and in this way also map the geographical structure of the company for example:

Countries Cermany Germany Bavaria Construction Berlin Construction Con

This option is required if, for example, the individual federal states of a country have different public holidays or different time zones. Accordingly, you can store the following country-specific information in the "Country" object:

- Holiday settings
- Country code
- Time zone
- Report language

"Holidays" application

The information about holidays is required when working with objects of the "Profile" type. Here you can define the use of a typical holiday.

You can enter the holidays manually in the "Country" object or import them from a "*.HOL" type file, e.g. from Microsoft Outlook. More details about this file type and the storage location of the file are available in the corresponding Microsoft documentation.

"Time zone" application

The information about time zones is required if, for example, a company has its locations in various countries with different time zones.

The data is acquired in the local time of the time zone. The information of the acquisition time zone is not used until evaluation for correct calculation of the data.

Recommendation for the structure in the Client

You can also use the "Country" object to create a meaningful structure in the project tree of the Client. If, for example, you have created a report for a specific country, attach the report below the country. This provides you with an overview of the existing reports and the corresponding countries.



See also

Inserting the location or country (Page 331)

Assign time zone for acquisition or calculation (Page 334)

Inserting the location or country

The following countries are already predefined in Energy Manager:

Germany

Creating a country or location

1. Click the "Insert location" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Localize".

The "Countries" dialog opens.

۲	Country – 🗆 🗙
Name:	Austria, Linz
Location:	Location Linz
Description:	
Country Code:	de-AT
Time Zone:	(UTC+01:00) Amsterdam, Berlin, Bern, Rome, Stockholm, Vienna 📃
Report-Language:	en, English 📃
Datetime Format:	dd.MM.yyyy HH:mm:ss
Separator:	1 234,56 Default Country
Currency:	€
	Holiday Settings
	OK Apply Cancel

- 2. Enter a name and an optional description for the country or the location.
- 3. Select the corresponding country code. The country code determines the date format, the separator as well as the currency identifier, that are taken automatically from the Windows settings underControl Panel > Region.
- 4. Select the corresponding time zone.
- 5. Select the desired report language. This defines the language of the automatically inserted master data of the report (date, from to, user, etc.).

English and German are supported.

6. To edit holidays for the country created, click the "Holiday settings" button.

The dialog for editing holidays opens.

2.2 Configuration

Editing holidays

1. Click "New" to create a new holiday.

The "Holiday" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter a name and an optional description for the holiday.
- 3. Select the corresponding date.

Click "Every year" if the holiday is at the same date every year.

4. Confirm your entries.

The holiday is created.

۲			Cou	ntry			×
Name	:	Austria, Linz					
Descr	iption:						~
							~
Allo	lidave						
	iluays						
	Name	e		Date		New	
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2014		Edit	
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2015		Euit	
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2016		Delete	
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2017			_
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2018		Import	
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2019			
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2020			
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2021			
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2022			
	Christ	tmas Eve		12/24/2023	_		
_							
\$			ОК	Apply		Cancel	
							_

5. To import holidays from a HOL file, click "Import" and select the desired file, e.g. "Outlook.hol".

Note

More details about the "Outlook.hol" file and the storage location of the file are available in the corresponding Microsoft documentation. Alternatively, you can use the search function in your Explorer to find the file. The storage location depends on the operating system and language, e.g. "C:\Program Files (x86)\Microsoft Office\Office12\1031". Open the file with a text editor, delete all entries from the file that are not relevant for the country to be created, and save this in a different location. Then import this file from this storage location using the Energy Manager import functionality for holidays.



See also

Assign time zone for acquisition or calculation (Page 334) Regional settings (Page 718)

Assign time zone for acquisition or calculation

Overview

You can specify the time zone of a country for the following objects:

- Report
- Hardware
- Data point

Requirement

A country is configured with its time zone.

Assigning time zones for reports

1. To assign the configured time zone of a country for a report, select the required country in the "Report" dialog.

The local time of the country is used in the calculation of a report.

	Bei	icht - Validation			×
Name: Valida	ition				
Description:					Ô
🍙 Display Type					~
Text Type: Name		- Country: Ukrair	1e		-
Query Types					
Name	Δ	Comp. Level S.	P. M.	New	i
Month		Entry values			
				Edit	_
				Delete	
hadulaa () Dara	motoral				
Same (\Para) Name	meters] Type	Timespan	A. F.	New	
Solutions (\ Para Name qaps	meters] Type Validation gap	Timespan	A.F. N.N	New	
Modules (\ Para Name gaps State_not_ok	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok	Timespan Off Off	A.F. NNN NN	New Edit	
Modules [\Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max	Timespan Off Off Off	A.F. NNN NNN	New Edit Delete	
Modules (\Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation max, increase	Timespan Off Off Off Off	A.F. NNN NNN NNN	New Edit Delete	
Modules [\Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise ref_DP	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation max, increase Validation deviation refere	Timespan Off Off Off Off off ence dp	A. F. N N N N N N N N N N	New Edit Delete Clone	
Modules [\ Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise ref_DP	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation Min Max Validation max, increase Validation deviation refere	Timespan Off Off Off Off ence dp Off	A F. N N N N N N N N N N	New Edit Delete Clone	
Modules [\ Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise ref_DP	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation Min Max Validation max, increase Validation deviation refere	Timespan Off Off Off Off ence dp Off	A F. N N N N N N N N N N	New Edit Delete Cione	
Modules [\ Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise ref_DP	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation Min Max Validation max, increase Validation deviation refere	Timespan Off Off Off Off ence dp Off	A F. N N N N N N N N N N	New Edit Delete Clone	
Modules (\ Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise ref_DP	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation Min Max Validation max. increase Validation deviation refere	Timespan Off Off Off Off ence dp Off	A F. N N N N N N N N N N	New Edit Delete Clone	
Modules (\ Para Name gaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise ref_DP	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation Min Max Validation max. increase Validation deviation refere	Timespan Off Off Off ence dp Off	A F. N N N N N N N N N N	New Edit Delete Clone	
Modules (\ Para yaps State_not_ok min_max max_rise ref_DP	meters] Type Validation gap Validation status not ok Validation Min Max Validation max. increase Validation deviation refere Generate Entry Points	Timespan Off Off Off ence dp Off	A F. N N N N N N N N N N	New Edit Delete Clone	

2. Alternatively, you can change the set time zone in the "Start Report" dialog.

3		Start Report			-		×
Module Common gaps max_rise min_max re_DP State_not_ok	Parameter Query Type: Month From 01.03.201 Advanced Parameter Version ☑ Current 10.0 Compression Level: Batches: Keep: Country:	1 3.2014 16:50:22 • Entry values	To OI. Model Curren	04.2014 00:00:00 ♥		×	
Cancel		_	Back	Next	Sta	art	

Assigning time zones for hardware configuration

1. To assign the configured time zone for an acquisition, activate the "Select location for this specific channel" option in the wizard in the "Define Channel Name" dialog, and select the required country.

annet sition hardware					
sition hardware					
sition hardware					
channel					
•					
_	_		_		
	Step 1 out of 6	< Bai	k N	iext >	Cancel
		T Step 1 out of 6	Step 1 out of 6	▼ Step 1 out of 6 < Back N	Step 1 out of 6



Assigning time zones for data points

1. To assign the configured time zone for data points, select the required country in the "Data Point" dialog.

		Datenpunkt - e_0	Gas_consump	ition	- 🗆 ×
Name: Description:	e_Gas_consumption				^
Inventory N#:	NO_KKS		ldent. Token:		×
Process: a_	_acq_simulation		Active	Creation Date:	02.09.2008 13:14:46
Unit: k/	Vh	•	Log to DB	Valid at:	02.09.2008 13:14:46 💽
Input Unit: 🗌	k/Vh	•	Kernel	Valid until:	02.09.2008 13:14:46
Function: Me	easurement	•	Priority High	Last changed by:	ADMIN
Versionizing:	No 💌	Replacement	NO		- Replace Invalids
Cycle Time:	1 month 🔹	Calculation Window		1 Unit:	15 min 🔹
Country:	Ukraine 🔹	Corrected until:	2 02.09.200	08 13:14:46 💽	
Туре:					
Generic	Name		Value		
 Datapoint 					
O Constant					
Openied					
	Details	Counter	Plausibility	Compression	Export
9				OK	Cancel

See also

Creating a report (Page 276) Generating a report result manually (Page 437) Creating generic data point (Page 138) Creating data points (Page 133) Creating constants (Page 141) Creating derived data points (Page 144) Acquisition wizard for interface configuration (Page 91)

Inserting an organizational unit

Requirement

• The Consumer functionality is licensed separately.

Overview

It is possible to set up a structure made up of organizational units in which each organizational unit can be assigned to exactly one higher-level organizational unit. Each organization unit can have multiple lower-level organizational units. Multiple consumers can be assigned to each organizational unit.

Creating an organizational unit

1. Click the "Insert organizational unit" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Localization".

The "Organizational Units" dialog opens. Enter a name and optionally a description for the new organizational unit.



2. Create the necessary structure of organizational units.



2.2.6.3 Authorizations

Basic information on authorizations

Overview

The Energy Manager authorization concept is basically split into two parts. First you can restrict the viewing of objects based on the authority level and domain membership settings.

Second you can restrict functions such as the calculation of reports.

Each user is assigned to one or several user groups, which are assigned to one or several user groups.

Functional rights

Through the functional group determine the user receives their authority level and also their functional rights, e.g. for starting reports or editing measured values.

<u>2</u> 1	Functional Grou	up - Configurator	- 🗆 🗙
Name:	Configurator		
Description:	Licore which are alle	word to configure and	linany objects
Description.	Users which are and	wea to conligure ora	anary objects
			~
Authority Level:	500 🗘		
Auto Log Off:	Enable Idle Dura	tion: 15	Minutes
, alo Log on.		15	
Assigned Rights	5		
Admini:	stration		
🖽 🗹 🛛 Alarmin	Ig		
🕀 🗉 🛛 BData 🖊	Account		
🖽 🗉 🖪 BData D	Domain		
BData J	dop		
🕀 🗹 Chart O	bject		
⊡ I Client C	Control		
Energy	Efficiency		
ERP CO	nnector		
Ender			
Import :	and Export		
⊡- Z Licensi	na		
⊡- Z Links			
E- Locking	1		
🕀 🗹 🛛 Loop, P	rototype		
	Data		
⊞- 🗹 Matrix			
B Measur	red Value		
🕀 🗹 Measur	ement		
Heasur	ing Variable		
	Jonnector		
Br Bermier	sion		
Printer	31011		*
	-	00707500000	
9	OK	Apply	Cancel

The most important functional groups are stored in the system. The following example demonstrates this setup for the functional group of administrators.



Visibility of objects

Authority level

The user also receives an authority level by means of the functional group. All the objects in Energy Manager, for example also folders, have an authority level.

The authority level, for example of a report, can be entered directly when creating the object, or by right-clicking on the object in the project tree under "Properties".

🛱 🦳 Reports	
D S Valid	Properties
🗗 🔜 KPI 📶	Domains

In order for an object to be visible for a user the authority level of the user must be at least equal to or higher than the authority level of the object.

😚 Propertie	es of Functional Group - Administrator	😚 Prope	erties of Bericht - Costcenter Report
Name:	Administrator	Name:	Costcenter Report
Description:	Administrator group whith all rights	Description:	
Authority Level:	1000 Inherit Authority	Authority Level:	500 Inherit Auth

Example: An object has the authority level 750. Through his functional rights the user has the authority level 500. Since the user's authority level is lower than that of the object, the object and its nested objects are hidden to this user.

Domains

Each user group may be assigned to one or several domains. A domain in this context represents an organization unit. Likewise, all objects are assigned to one or several domains. If the assigned domains of the user group corresponds to the assigned object domain, the object is visible to the user.

The configuration is again possible by right-clicking the object or after opening the user group under "Domains".

Exchange folders are provided that can be used to exchange objects such as reports or datapoints between the domains.

You configure the authorization concept in the project tree. The corresponding objects are available in the project tree structure under "Configuration > Rights administration":



See also

Setting up users (Page 343) Creating user groups (Page 354) Navigation (Page 488)

Domains

Assigning domains to a user group

- 1. To assign domains to the user group, double-click the corresponding user group in the plant tree.
- 2. Click "Domains" in the user group configuration dialog.

The available domains are displayed under "Available" in the domain selection dialog.

0	Domains	- 🗆 ×
Available		Assigned
Guest		Admin Mandant
	ок	Cancel

3. Using the arrow key, assign the selected domain to the user group.

Note

The view may be restricted for the administrator as well. Another administrator who, for example, is assigned only two of four domains may pass only these two domains to user groups.

4. Save the configuration with "OK".

Specifying the view of different domains

1. To specify the view of different domains, click the icon in the menu bar

.

2. Select the required domain and click "OK".

Use the filter function to speed up the search for the required domain.

Domain Selection
Select the location its objects should be displayed.
Domain (Location):
<ali>Admin Mandant</ali>
Guest
FilterDomain
OK Cancel

The entry "<all>" makes all objects in the domains that are assigned to the user visible. If the user selects only one domain from this list, only the objects that are assigned to this domain will be visible.

Configuring the domain membership of objects

- 1. Select the object and then select the "Domains" command from the shortcut menu.
- The available domains are displayed under "Available" in the domain selection dialog.

0	Domair	ns of Folder - Config	guration	- • ×
	Available		Se	elected
Gues	st		Admin Ma	andant
		⇒		
		\$		
Add a	dditional Domainto Ch	ildren 🗌 Insert into do	main exchan	ge folder
Remo	ove Domains from Chil	dren		
9		0	к	Cancel

- 2. Using the arrow key, assign the selected domain to the object.
- 3. If the authority level that has been assigned prevents the object from being visible to all users, activate the "Insert into a domain exchange folder" function.

In this case, a link to the object concerned is created in the exchange folder.

- 4. Select the "Assign domains to children" check box if you want to assign the nested objects of an object to the new domain.
- 5. Select the "Remove domains from children" check box if you want to remove the nested objects of an object from the domain.
- 6. Save the configuration with "OK".

Users

Setting up users

Introduction

A user is required in Energy Manager for a user to be able to login to Energy Manager, Energy Manager Web or Energy Manager PRO Mobile. Even if a user only receives emails from Energy Manager, he/she requires user access.

Energy Manager supports automatic logout of users after a lengthy period of inactivity. The duration of inactivity is configurable via the functional group.

If a user has entered the wrong password several times during login to Energy Manager, this user is locked out by the system. Only an administrator can remove this lock.

Requirement

- Authorization to create users exists.
- Access to an email server is set up in Energy Manager.

Setting up users

- 1. Select the folder in which you want you create the user.
- 2. Click the "Insert User" button in the Client in the menu bar under "Master data > Authorization".

The "Users" dialog opens. The "General" tab is displayed.

- 3. Enter the selected Energy Manager user name for the user, for example, the last name of the user and the first letter of the first name. Alternatively you can specify an account ID as the user name.
- 4. Enter the email address of the user.

Notifications about password changes and temporary passwords will be sent to this email address. This email address can also be used to log in to Energy Manager.

- 5. You can also enter a user description.
- 6. As needed, enter additional contact information for the user.

_ogin Name	MUS	TERMANNM Identification					6803
Description	Ene	rgy Manager Pf	ay Manager PRO User				
Information	detail	s / Contact dat	a				
Firstna	me	Max			Lastname	Mustermann	
Email		max.musterm	ann@siem	nens.com			
Depart	tment	Paper United					
Addres	ss	Paper United	Street 1				
Zip Co	de	D-91052	City	Erlangen	k,		
Countr	y	Germany					
Phone		+49 (0)9131 1	2345678-9)			
Thone		+49 (0)91311	2340078-5	,			

Locking and unlocking a user

A locked user can no longer log into Energy Manager :

- Energy Manager PRO Client
- Energy Manager Acquisition configuration
- Energy Manager Web
- Energy Manager PRO Mobile

A locked user continues to receive email notifications that are configured for him/her, for example, emails with Energy Manager reports.

- 1. To deactivate the user, activate the "User disabled" option.
- 2. You can unlock user access again by clicking "Unlock".

User access has now been deactivated or reactivated.

Set password

- 1. Select the "Administration" tab in the "User" dialog.
- 2. Click "Set password".

The "Change Password" dialog opens.

- 3. Enter the selected password and confirm the password.
- 4. The authority level of the user is displayed for information purposes. The authority level of the user is taken from the functional group.

Enabling Single Sign On

When a user starts the Energy Manager PRO Client, the system checks whether his/her Windows user name is entered in Energy Manager . If Energy Manager can identify the name, the user does not have to reenter his/her access data.

1. Double-click the user's entry in the project tree in the Client.

The "Users" dialog opens.

2. Select the "Administration" tab.

	User - MUSTERMANNM	- 🗆 ×
Common Administration Q	uicklinks for Web Quicklinks for Client	
Administration		
		Unlock
		Set Password
Authority Level		0
Single eign en		
Single sign on		
Enable single sign on		
Enable single sign on Please choose user of operative	ating system for login.	
Enable single sign on Please choose user of opera mustermannm	ating system for login.	Select OS User
 Enable single sign on Please choose user of operative mustermannm 	ating system for login.	Select OS User
 Enable single sign on Please choose user of operative sign on mustermannm 	ating system for login.	Select OS User
✓ Enable single sign on Please choose user of opera mustermannm	ating system for login.	Select OS User
✓ Enable single sign on Please choose user of opera mustermannm	ating system for login.	Select OS User
Enable single sign on Please choose user of opera mustermannm	ating system for login.	Select OS User

3. Activate the "Enable single sign on" option.

4. Click "Select System User".

The "Select User" dialog opens.

	elect User
Select this object type:	
User	Object Types
From this location:	
WIN81V6	Locations
Enter the object name to select (<u>exam</u> mustermannm	25): Check Names
J	

Alternatively, you can enter the Windows user name directly in the "Select System User" field.

- 5. Select the user's Windows user name and click "OK".
- 6. The Windows user name of the user is applied in the "Select System User" field.

Creating Quicklinks for Web and Client

You can create Quicklinks for the user, for Energy Manager PRO Web and Energy Manager PRO Client . To do so, select the corresponding tab and create the required Quicklinks. You can find additional information on this topic in the "Quicklinks" section.

Result

The Energy Manager user is created in the project tree of the Client.



See also

Basic information on authorizations (Page 338) Configuring query types (Page 279) Fundamentals of creating printer and directory (Page 361) Object naming conventions (Page 52) Creating user groups (Page 354) Options (Page 53) Creating users (Page 704) Editing users (Page 706)

Quicklinks

Quicklinks for client

Overview

Quicklinks are references to objects in Energy Manager that are used frequently, for example, reports. Quicklinks are available to the user for which you have created the Quicklinks.

You can create Quicklinks for the Energy Manager PRO Client as well as the Energy Manager PRO Web.

Requirement

You have the "Create Quicklinks" authorization.

Procedure

- 1. Open the configuration dialog for the required user.
- 2. Select either the "Quicklinks for Web" or the "Quicklinks for Client" tab.
- 3. Use drag-and-drop to move the object from the project tree of the Client to the "Add Quicklink by using Drag & Drop" field.

🕯 Us	er - MUSTERMANNM	- 🗆 🗙
Common Administration Quicklinks for W	eb Quicklinks for Client	
Object		Edit Delete Up Down
Add Quicklink by using Drag & Drop:		Add
9	OK	Cancel

4. Then click "Add".

The Quicklink is displayed in the "Quicklinks" area.

5. If you have created several Quicklinks, specify the sequence with the "Up" and "Down" buttons.

Result

The Quicklink is displayed in the "Quicklinks" area:

- The object name to which the Quicklink points becomes the title.
- The default icon and background color for this object type is used.

Depending on the used tab, the Quicklink is displayed in Energy Manager PRO Web or in the Client.



Note

You can change the order of the Quicklinks in the "Quicklinks" area with drag&drop.

Editing Quicklinks

You can change the following properties of a Quicklink with the "Edit Quicklinks" function:

- Name
- Symbol
- Color

Requirement

- You have the "Edit Quicklinks" authorization.
- The Quicklink is created.

Procedure

1. Right-click the Quicklink in the "Quicklinks" area in the Client.

The "Edit Quicklink" dialog box opens.



2. Edit the Quicklink as required.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Alternative procedure

You can also edit the Quicklinks in the configuration dialog of the respective user.

See also

Client as navigation tool (Page 20) Quicklinks for Web (Page 351) Create Quicklinks (Page 29) Editing Quicklinks (Page 31)

Quicklinks for Web

Overview

You have the option of creating and editing the required Quicklinks in Energy Manager PRO Client. You can create up to 50 Quicklinks for each user.

Procedure

1. In the Client, double-click the desired user, for example "SIEMENS".



2. Select the "Quicklinks for Web" tab.

	Benu	itzer - SIEMENS		- • ×
Common Administration	Quicklinks for Web	Quicklinks for Client		
Quicklinks				
Object				Edit Delete
				Up Down
Add Quicklink by using D	rag & Drop:			
				Add
9			ŌK	Cancel

3. To create a new Quicklink for the user, drag the required object ("Dashboard" in the example) from the project tree and drop it onto the "Add Quicklink by using Drag & Drop" field. Then click "Add".

Note

The only objects you can create as Quicklinks are those listed under the entry point for Energy Manager PRO Web, for example under "System > Intranet Viewer".

The Quicklink is displayed in the overview.

🕴 🛛 🛛 🕯 Benutzer - SIEMI	ENS – 🗆 🗙
Common Administration Quicklinks for Web Quicklinks for	Client
Quicklinks	
Object	Edit
Dashboard	
	Delete
	and the second s
	qU
	Down
Add Quicklink by using Drag & Drop:	
	Add
	OK Cancel

4. Click "Edit" to edit the Quicklink.

The following editing options are available:

- Change the name of the Quicklink
- Specify Quicklink as homepage
- Set the icon for the Quicklink
- Set the background color for the Quicklink
- 5. To delete the Quicklink, click "Delete".
- 6. To change the order of the Quicklinks in the overview, click "Up" or "Down".

Result

When you log on with your user access information in Energy Manager PRO Web , the created Quicklink is displayed as the homepage.

Help About	
Menu	Items (7)
Quicklinks	Brewery>Electricity>Sankey
	Brewery>Electricity>PieChart
Dashboard 🧪	Brewery>Electricity>Overview_MONTH
	Brewery>Electricity>Overview_WEEK
	Brewery>Electricity>Overview_DAY
	Green Production Monitor
	Green Production Monitor II

See also

Quicklinks for client (Page 347) Editing Quicklinks in the Web (Page 496) Creating Quicklinks in the Web (Page 494) Authorizations (Page 338)

User group

Creating user groups

Creating user groups

1. To create a user group, click the "Insert User Group" button in the Energy Manager PRO Client in the menu bar under "Master Data > Authorization".

The "User Group" dialog opens.

2. Enter the "Name" for the user and an optional "Description".

Assigning user authorizations

- 1. To actually assign authorizations to the user:
- 2. Assign the user to a user group in the plant tree.

Guest

- 3. Assign the user group to one of several functional groups in the plant tree.
 - È-∰ Guest È-∰ Guest È ENERGYMANAGERPRO_GUEST

See also

Basic information on authorizations (Page 338) Setting up users (Page 343)

Defining an entry point

You configure Energy Manager PRO Web using the Energy Manager PRO Client. This is where you define an entry point for Energy Manager PRO Web..

Procedure

- 1. Create a folder in the client, for example, "Intranet Viewer".
- 2. Copy the objects that are to be seen and edited in Energy Manager PRO Web below this folder.

ት 🛅 Intranet Viewer
Benort Web
Plant Performance
Energy Overview
B Sustainability Elements
The Validation
F KPI Batch Production
Accounting
E Contract Analysis
Carbon Emission
Degree Days
Costcenter Report
III- Trend
Usualization
Data Collection
🗄 - 🛅 Document Management
Energy Efficiency
🖽 📄 Dashboard
·

3. Assign the user group the defined entry point by moving the target folder from the plant structure to the "Basic" field using drag-and-drop.

	ser Group - S	uper Admin		×
Name:	Super Admin			
Description:				^
				~
Energy Manager PRO Web:	Drop Nodes he	re using Drag & Dro	p:	
	Basic:	Intranet_Viewe	r	
	Location:			
	Organization:			
	Clear			
	Domains			
9		ок	Cancel	

The "Location" and "Organization" fields serve the display of the structured view in Energy Manager PRO Web. If a location or organization is moved to the respective field using drag-and-drop, all consumers are displayed in Energy Manger PRO Web structured by location or organizational unit. More details about the structure view are available in the section "Consumers and structured view (Page 265)".

Authorizations in Energy Manager PRO Web

Provided the authority level of the functional group and the domain membership of the user group of the respective Energy Manager PRO Web user were configured correctly, the object and all lower-level objects are visible in Energy Manager PRO Web . Same as on the fullyfledged client, Energy Manager PRO Web checks if the necessary authorizations, corresponding to the functional group to which the user belongs, exist for the actions to be executed.

Note

Before you can assign the domain, you first have to create the user group.

See also

Creating user groups (Page 354)

Functional group

Creating functional groups

Creating functional groups

 To create a functional group, select the "Functional Groups" folder in the project tree and click the "Insert functional group" button in the menu bar under "Master data > Authorization".

The "Functional Group" dialog opens.

<u>2</u> 0	Fun	ctional Grou	ıp - Administrat	or	- 🗆	×
Name:	Administra	tor				
Description:	Administra	ator group with	all rights			
			-			
Authority Level:	1000	÷				
Auto Log Off:	Enable	Idle Duration:	15	-	Minutes	
Single Sign on	Enable				Select	
Assigned Rights						
⊡ Z Account	t 					
H Z Adminis	tration					
H. Z Alarming	g					
Bur Chart O	hiert					
Er Z Client C	ontrol					
⊡ ⊡ Dashboa	ard					
⊡ ✓ Domain						
⊡⊷ Z Energy 8	Efficiency					
⊞ I ERP Co	nnector					
⊞⊷ Z File						
⊞⊷ ✓ Folder						
⊡⊷ ∠ Import a	ind Export					
⊡⊷ ✓ Job						
Elicensin	ig					
	rototype					
⊡ I Master [Data					
⊞- I Matrix						
⊞- 🖃 Measure	ed Value					
🖽 🗹 Measure	ement					
🖽 🗹 Measuri	ng Variable					-
		ОК	Apply		Cancel	

- 2. Enter the "Name" for the user and an optional "Description".
- 3. Select the "Authority level".

If the user group is assigned several functional groups, the respective highest value is transferred to the user.

4. If required, activate "Auto Log Off" and enter the number of minutes until the automatic logout.

30 seconds before the automatic log-off, a dialog is opened, in which the seconds until the automatic log-off are counted down.

5. Save the configuration with "OK".

Enabling Single Sign On

With the Single Sign On in the functional group you allow a group from the Windows Active Directory to log into the Energy Manager PRO Client as well as Energy Manager PRO Web without having to enter the login data again. As soon as a user of this group has logged into the Windows operating system, he also has access to Energy Manager.

1. Click "Select" in order to open the Windows dialog for selecting the group.

The "Select Group" dialog opens.

Select Group	o 📕	×
Select this object type:		
Group	Object Types	
From this location:		
BDATA-W81P6-01	Locations	
Enter the object name to select (<u>examples</u>):		
	Check Names	
Advanced	OK Cancel]

2. Create a new group in the Windows Active Directory or select an existing user group directly from the Active Directory. With "Advanced..." you have the possibility of displaying all the existing user groups and of selecting one.

		Select Group	×			
Select this object ty Group	/pe:	Оь	ject Types			
From this location: BDATA-W81P6-0	1		ocations			
Common Queries						
Name: S	Starts with \vee		Columns			
Description:	Starts with 🖂		Find Now			
Disabled acc	counts		Stop			
Non expiring Days since last	password logon:		9 9			
Search results:		ОК	Cancel			
Name	In Folder		^			
Access Contr	BDATA-W81P6 BDATA-W81P6					
Backup Oper	BDATA-W81P6					
Distributed C	BDATA-W81P6					
Kent Log Re	BDATA-W81P6		¥			

The Windows users from this group can now log in by double-clicking the Energy Manager icon on the desktop without having to enter a user name or a password. In the Energy Manager PRO Web, the user clicks the "Windows Login" button and the Windows user name as well as the associated password are applied.

If a user of the Active Directory group opens the Energy Manager and if an Energy Manager user does not yet exist with this login name, a new user with the same name automatically is created. Since this Energy Manager user was activated using the Single Sign On option, no password is assigned in this case. If this user is no longer a member of the group of the Active Directory, this user can no longer log into Energy Manager.

If a user with the same name already exists in Energy Manager, this user retains their Energy Manager password and can then still log into the Energy Manager, even if they are no longer a member of the Active Directory.

If the name of a user changes in the Active Directory, the user name is also updated in the Energy Manager.

Note

If a group of a domain is enabled for the Single Sign On, the "Energy Manager Portal" service must also run as a domain user.

Specifying authority levels

Each object in Energy Manager has an authority level. In the functional group define authority levels for all the users who belong to this functional group. The authority level of the user is taken from the functional group. An object is only visible for the users of a functional group if the authority level of the functional group or of the user respectively is higher or at least equal to the authority level of the object.

Specifying the authority level of the functional group:

1. Enter the authority level for the functional group.

Specifying the authority level for an object:

- 1. To specify the authority level of an object, select the "Properties" command from the shortcut menu of the object in the properties dialog.
- 2. Specify the "Authority level".

Note

Always assign authority level values that are greater than or equal to your authority level.

Select the "Inherit Authority Level to children" check box to enable the transfer of the authority level to all child objects.

Usually, an inheritance is not required: If the parent object is not visible, the nested objects are also not visible. However, this inheritance is necessary if you make the child objects available to other domains by means of the exchange folder.

	Folder - Configu	uration	- 🗆 ×
Name: Description:	Configuration		^
Authority Level:	750	Inherit Authori	ty Level to children.
Properties			
Name	Value		New Edit Delete
-		ОК	Cancel
2.2.6.4 Output

Fundamentals of creating printer and directory

Basics

- The setting up of a printer and a directory is the prerequisite for the automatic printing and storing of reports in Energy Manager.
- Create a printer or a directory in the respective hardware.
- If you wish to use the automatic sending of reports via email, create a user including email address.

See also

Creating a printer (Page 361) Creating a folder (Page 364) Configuring query types (Page 279) Setting up users (Page 343)

Creating a printer

Overview

The creation of a printer in Energy Manager is the requirement for the automatic printing of reports.

Requirement

- The printer is connected to the application server.
- The hardware is configured in Energy Manager .

Procedure

1. In the Configuration mark the Printer folder.



 Click the "Insert Printer" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Output". The "Printer" dialog opens.

3. Enter a unique name and an optional description for the printer.

- 4. Enter the printer name in the "Printer name" field, including the port.
- 5. To determine the printer port, open the Excel file "Printers V2.0.xls" under "Options\Features\Tools" on the Energy Manager product DVD.

Separate the printer name with the "#" separator to enable automatic printing of reports. The separator is inserted automatically.

x] 🔒 Š∗ ♂* ∓	Printers V2.0.xlsx - Excel	
F	ILE HOME INSERT	PAGE LAYOUT FORMULAS	DATA
A	20	$$: $\times \checkmark f_x$	
	Α	В	с
1	printer Name for b.data	\\vies1ga\ADDR8TVC# auf Ne07:	
2	name of the printer	\\vies1ga\ADDR8TVC	
3	port:	Ne07:	
4			
5			i
6	press button t	o display current printer	
7		1	_
8			i
9	press buttor	n to display all printers	
10			_
11			
12			
13		ш	
14	separator	Ħ	
1 12			

6. Enter the date and time as of which the printer will be valid.

<u>-</u>	Printer - Printer 🛛 🗕 🔍 🗙
Name:	Printer
Description:	^
Printer Name:	\\Server\Printer
Valid since:	01.01.2012 00:00:00
	OK Cancel

7. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully created the printer. To automatically print a report on this printer, create a "Printer" folder below the hardware object. Copy and paste the printer under the query type of the report, and below the "Printer" folder. Then automate the report.

See also

Creating hardware (Page 76) Fundamentals of creating printer and directory (Page 361) Configuring query types (Page 279) Object naming conventions (Page 52)

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Creating a folder

Overview

The creation of a directory in Energy Manager is the requirement for the automatic saving and creating of reports.

Requirement

- The folder is available on the PC.
- The "Hardware" object has been created in Energy Manager .

Procedure

- 1. In the Configuration mark the Directory folder.
- Click the "Insert Directory" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Output". The "Directory" dialog opens.
- 3. Enter a unique name and an optional description for the directory.
- Enter the selected directory in the "Path" field.
 Use the UNL notation to specify the directory to prevent the network drives from being mapped on the application server.
- 5. Enter the date and time as of which the directory will be valid.

Direct	tory - local archive directory 🛛 🗕 🔍 🗙
Name:	local archive directory
Description:	^
	×
Path:	C:\Temp Browse
Valid since:	01.01.2012 00:00:00
9	OK Cancel

6. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully created the directory. To save the results of the report in this directory, create a "Directory" folder below the hardware object. Copy and paste the directory to the query type of the report and below the "Directory" folder.

See also

Fundamentals of creating printer and directory (Page 361) Creating hardware (Page 76) Configuring query types (Page 279) Object naming conventions (Page 52)

2.2.6.5 Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)

Basics on objects for Enterprise Resource Planning

Additional information is needed when booking services in ERP. In Energy Manager , this information is mapped in the form of the following objects:

- 1. ERP domain
- 2. Service type
- 3. Cost center
- 4. Cost center relation

Creating ERP domains

Overview

ERP domains are necessary for accounting by means of cost center relations and serve as criterion for selection of the respective cost centers.

Requirement

The ERP objects have been properly installed.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the ERP domain is going to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert ERP Business Unit" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > ERP".

The "ERP Domain" dialog opens.

La	ERP Business	: Unit - Siemens (001	- 🗆	×
Name:	Siemens 001				
Description:					~
					~
Extern Label:	Siemens 001				
		OK		Cance	
				Cante	

3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description" as well as the "external label". Click "OK" to confirm your entries and to generate the ERP domain.



Result

You have successfully created the ERP domain and it is now ready for use by the cost centers.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Creating service types

Overview

Service types are required for settlement details in the cost center relations.

Requirement

The ERP objects have been properly installed.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the service type is going to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert ERP Cost Element" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > ERP".

W	ERP C	ost Eler	ment - Pl	H1	-		x
Name:	PH1						
Description:							^
							~
Extern Label:	PH1						
			ОК		Ca	ncel	

3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description" as well as the "external label". Click "OK" to confirm your entries and to generate the service type.



Result

You have successfully created the service type and it is now ready for use in the settlement details for cost center relations.

Creating cost centers

Overview

Cost centers are necessary for accounting by means of cost center relations and are assigned to exactly one domain.

Requirement

The ERP objects have been properly installed.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the cost center is to be created.
- Click the "Insert ERP Cost Center" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > ERP". The "ERP Cost Center" dialog opens.

¢	20)	ERP Cost Centre - CC 1239099 - 🗖 🗙	
	Name:	CC 1239099	
	Description:		
	Extern Label:	CC 1239099	
	Business Unit	Siemens 001	
		OK Cancel	ļ.

3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description" as well as the "external label". After having assigned the cost center to a domain, click "OK" to confirm your entries and to generate the cost center.

中 🔁 Cost Center --- 🙀 CC 1239099

Result

You have successfully created the cost center and it is now ready for use with the cost center relations.

Creating cost center relations

Overview

Cost center relations are necessary for the settlement of values computed in Energy Manager in an external ERP system.

Requirement

The ERP objects have been properly installed.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which the cost center relation is going to be created.
- Click the "Insert ERP Cost Center Relation" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > ERP".
 The "ERP Cost Center Relation" dialog opens.

夷 ERP Cost C	entre R	elation - CC 12:	39099 - CC	1239100	_		^
Name: C	C 12390	99 - CC 1239100					
Description:							
Extern Label:	C 12390	99 - CC 1239100					
	0 12000	33 00 1233100					
Accounting Fro	m/To						
Business Unit		Siemens 001					•
Source Cost Cer	ntre:	CC1239099					•
Destination Cos	tCentre:	CC1239100					
Accounting Det	ails						
CostElement	PH1						Ŀ
Personnel Numi	ber: 666						
Accounting Day:			30				
		tivo					
		,uvc ;					
			OK		Са	ancel	

3. Enter a meaningful "Name" and an optional "Description" as well as the "external label". Select the domain and set the source and destination cost centers in the "Settlement From/To" area. Set up the service type in the settlement details. The specified personnel number is used to launch the transaction on the ERP system on the specified accounting day, provided the "Active" state has been set.

⊡ Cost Relation ⊡ 🔄 😪 CC 1239099 - CC 1239100

Result

You have successfully configured the cost center relation and it is now ready for use in accounting.

2.2.6.6 Configuration

Configuring units

Overview

A unit may be assigned to any physical variable such as power or work, as well as to nonphysical variables such as costs. You may define and generate new units if the ones that are available are inappropriate.

All available units are located in the "Constant and definitions > Unit" section of the configuration folder.

Inserting the unit

- 1. Select the folder in which the unit is going to be created.
- 2. Click the "Insert Unit" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Configuration".

The "Unit" dialog opens.

Į	cW	Unit - mA 🛛 🗕 🗖	×
	Name:	mA	
	Description:	Milliampere	^
			~
	Unit Type:	el. amperage	•
		OK Cance	el

- 3. Enter the unit name in the "Name" field.
- 4. You may also enter a "description".
- Then select the suitable "Unit type" for the unit. The unit type is used to group similar units.
- 6. Click "OK" to save the configuration.

See also

Creating units (Page 710) Editing units (Page 711)

Unit conversions

Opening the unit conversion

1. Click the "Open Unit Conversion" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Configuration" to open the unit conversion.

File	Acquisition	n Processing	Analysis	Master Data	Administration	Help
Dider	📶 📀 Localization	a] (해 화 Authorisation	a 📮 📃 Output	🕼 🔩 🧟 🚧 ERP	Configuratio	n
Svs	tem 🕨 Excha	nge Folder 🕨			Open	Unit Conversions

2. Edit the factors for conversion between the source and target units or generate new conversion factors.

These conversion factors are used only in a few MEVA functions for unit conversion for output, as well as in the matrix for input to storage unit conversion.

tt i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Unit	Conversions	- 🗆 ×
From Unit	스 To Unit	Conversion Factor	New
d	S	86400	
h	s	3600	Edit
kg	t	0,001	Delete
K/V	MVV	0,001	
k///h	MWh	0,001	
k///h	Ws	3600000	
l/h	m³/h	0,001	
m³/h	l/h	1000	
min	s	60	
MVV	KVV	1000	
s	s	1	
s	min	0,016666666666666	
s	h	0,000277777777777778	
s	d	1,15740740740741E-05	
s	W	1,65343915343915E-06	
t	kg	1000	
W	S	604800	
Ws	ki∿h	2,7777777777778E-07	
		ОК	Cancel

Configuring cycle times

Overview

You define data acquisition intervals in Energy Manager by setting the cycle time, for example, 1 day. Data is acquired at daily intervals in this case. The value is generated at 00:00:00 h.

Energy Manager provides predefined cycle times, e.g. "1 hour", or "1 second". You may set up a custom cycle time if the list of predefined cycle times does not contain a suitable entry.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which you want to set up the cycle time.
- Click the "Insert Cycle Time" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Configuration". The "Cycle time" dialog opens.
- 3. Type in a name for the cycle time.
- 4. You may also enter a description for the cycle time.
- 5. Enter a value in "Value" and select the unit, e.g. "5" and "[d] days".

¢,	Cycle Time - 5 d	×
Name:	5 d	
Description:	5 days	^
		~
Value:	5 Unit [d] day	-
_		5
	OK Cancel	

6. Click "OK".

Result

The cycle time is configured and created in the project tree of the Client.

🕂 🎦 Cycle Times

You can edit, clone, or delete the configured cycle time.

Configuring query types

Overview

You use a query type in Energy Manager to specify a time range, which is queried for example in a report.

Energy Manager provides predefined query types, e.g. "week", or "year". If the list of predefined query types does not contain a suitable entry, first check under "File > Options" on the "Query types" tab to determine whether the desired query types exists and is also active. If the desired query type does not exist yet, create an own one.

Procedure

- 1. Select the folder in which you want to create the query type.
- Click the "Insert Query Type" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Configuration". The "Query type" dialog opens.
- 3. Type in a name for the query type.
- 4. You may also enter a description for the query type.
- 5. If you would like to define a query type based on a time range:
 - First enter a value in "Duration" and select the desired unit.

With the duration you define the time range that you then use in reports for queries, for example 1 month.

The time range defined by you under "Duration" always begins depending in the settings in the "Interval back".

- Enter a value under "Interval back" and select the desired unit.

With "Interval back" you have the possibility to define the beginning of the time range defined under "Duration". The beginning of a query type can therefore also lie in the past.

Staying with our example from above with a "Duration" of 1 month, a setting of, for example 0 months at the "Interval back" means that the query begins on the first day of the current month.

A setting of 1 month at the "Interval back" would mean that the time range begins on the 1st day of the previous month.

A setting of 0 days at the "Interval back" would mean that the time range begins at the beginning of the current day.

- Enter a value in "Offset" and select the desired unit.

With the offset you define a time offset that begins with the start time of the query type. You can, for example, shift the beginning of the query by 1 hour. If, for example, you have defined a "Duration" of 1 month, and an "Interval back" of 0 months, this means that the query begins on the first day of the current month at 00:00:00. With an "Offset" of, for example, 3 hours you can shift the beginning of the query to 03:00:00.

It is also possible to enter a negative offset.

- If needed, active a "One-time offset".

You require the one-time offset, for example, if you have defined a "Duration" of 8 hours (one shift) and an offset of 04:00:00 hours. The query thus begins at 04:00:00. In order to ensure that an offset of 04:00:00 hours is not added at each new query you can activate the "One-time offset". This ensures that you realize a periodic continuation of the query from 04:00:00 to 12:00:00 and from 12:00:00 to 20:00:00. Otherwise the next period would start at 12:00:00 plus offset, meaning at 16:00:00.

	Query Type - 1month+1day	×
Name: Description:	1month+1day x: 1 month and one day	
Interval back Duration: Offset: Default Repo Default Repo	ck: 0 Unit: [M] month • 1 Unit: [M] month • 1 Unit: [M] month • 1 Unit: [d] day • + coort delete after: 1 Unit: [M] month port start after: 0 Unit: [min] minute Singular Offset Shift Picker	0 Unit: [min] minute
Calculation e	example: 4/28/2016 1:07:36 PM -> 4/2/2016 12:00	:00 AM - 5/2/2016 12:00:00 AM
-		OK Cancel

6. Under "Default Report delete after", you define the interval after which the results of a report are to be automatically deleted from the project tree of the Client .

These specifications are applied in the query type in the report in the "Delete report after" field. You can overwrite the applied specifications.

7. Under "Default start report after" specify the interval after which a report is to be started with this query type. These specifications are applied in the query type in the report in the "Start report after" field. You can overwrite this activated data. The automatic mode itself has to be defined at the query type of the report.

- 8. If you would like to define a query type based on a shift:
 - Select "Shift selection".

The settings under "Duration" and "Offset" will be ignored.

16		Query Type - 3ShiftDay	×
Name:	3ShiftDay		1
Description:	Day with 3 shifts	^	
		×	
Interval back:	0 Unit:	[M] month	
Duration:	1 Unit:	[M] month	
Offset:	1 Unit:	[d] day 🔹 + 0 Unit: [min] minute 💌	
DefaultRepo	rt delete after:	1 Unit: [Y] year	
Default Repo	rt start after:	0 Unit: [min] minute	
		Singular Offset	
		Shift Picker	
Calculation e	xample:	4/28/2016 1:26:42 PM -> 4/2/2016 12:00:00 AM - 5/2/2016 12:00:00 AM	
9		OK Cancel	1
		·	

 You require a "Shift" or a "Typical day" from which the definition of the time range to be queried can be taken. Copy the "shift" or "typical day" object in the project tree under the query type.

The sequence of the "shift" or "typical day" objects under query type has no effect. In the query, the shifts or typical days will be sorted according to the times that are actually configured.

Note

The new query type is made up of all the configurations made in "Interval back", "Duration" and "Offset". You have the possibility to cover all the query types. To ensure that the new query type is correct, you should check all the settings. Even if you do not require an "Interval back", you must nevertheless check the existing setting there. The lower section of the configuration window shows a calculation example that corresponds to the respective current settings.

Result

The query type is configured and created in the project tree of the Client. The query type is available in each object, in which time periods are queried, for example in dashboards or reports.

See also

Configuring a shift (Page 198)

Templates

Report templates

Overview

In Energy Manager you can use an existing report to create a template that is the basis for new reports. If you create a new report and assign a template to it, the following configurations from the template are applied:

- Display modes
- Query types
- Modules
- Report layout

Using templates for reports makes sense for similarly structured plants or sites, for example when separate reports are required for nearly identical production lines. Changes to the template affect all reports that are generated in the future, which are based on this template.

Requirement

• In order to create, configure and delete a report template, you need corresponding rights, which are defined in the functional group under "Template Manager".

Creating a report template

You can create a new template using the "Report as Template" option in the shortcut menu of the report (right-click).

Overview of existing report templates

Click the "Templates" button in the menu bar under "Master Data > Configuration". The existing report templates are displayed on the "Reports" tab.

More details on creating and using report templates are available in sections "Creating a template" and "Using a template".

See also

Create a template (Page 294) Using a template (Page 295) Edit template (Page 297) Disconnecting a report from a template (Page 299) Working with report templates (Page 293)

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Load templates

Requirement

- The Consumer functionality is licensed separately.
- In order to create, configure and delete a consumer template, you need corresponding rights, which are defined in the functional group under "Template Manager".

Overview

Consumer templates allow you to define several categories of consumers (such as machines). In this way, a large number of consumers can be managed and configurations can be reused for new consumers without having to create them again.

In the template, you define which Input and which Output the associated consumers have.

If you use a predefined consumer template when creating a specific consumer, the consumer and its associated structure is created as a result. In so doing, each input is created as a datapoint and output as a Meva below the consumer. Datapoints are also created below the IO buffer. For the input of a consumer template you define the input datapoint, and for the output you define the calculation procedure based on a Meva.

In addition you can have a predefined Dashboard and a report template created automatically, which are also created below a consumer as a result.

In the Widget Dashboard in Energy Manager PRO Web you then have the option of having the outputs (Mevas) and inputs (datapoints) of all machines of a template displayed by location or organizational unit.

Procedure

1. On the "Master Data > Configuration" tab, click "Templates" and then the "Consumer" tab. Create a new consumer with "New".

=	Templates		- 🗆 🗙
Reports Consumer			
List of Consumer templates			_
Name	Last change	Saved by	New
			Edit
			Edit
			Delete

As result under each machine

Input tab

1. First, define the inputs of the consumer template. Assign a Name and define the Category as either Power / Flow, Energy / Amount, Count Value, Process Value Others or Text. At least one input must be defined. Define the Unit and save. The created inputs correspond to the input datapoints of a consumer.

	Consumer template		×
Name: Gas_EL			
Input Output Dashboard Report			
Input	Category	Unit	New
Gas	Energy	m³	
Electricity	Energy	k///h	Ealt
	· · · ·		Delete

Output tab

Define the output of the consumer template on the Output tab. You can assemble the formula for the output from the predefined inputs and mathematical operands. At least one input must be defined.

- 1. Enter a name and optionally a description for the output.
- 2. Select the calculation type if required. Two calculation types are available:
 - Calculation before aggregation
 - Calculation after aggregation

The calculation types define when results of an individual consumer are aggregated.

With this functionality, it is possible to correctly calculate all inputs and all outputs of consumers of a location or all inputs and all outputs of consumers of an organizational unit and to display them in the Widget Dashboard (in Energy Manager PRO Web).

	Formula editor	-	
Name:	Steam_Output		
Description:	Steam output in kg		
Calc. type:	Calculation before addregation	1	
Function:	(Gas*36.2*70)/234.000	•	
Linit:	1		
Filter:		1	
Electricity			
Gas Steam Outpu	t)+	
	-	- *	
		1	
Multiply with	n profile value		
	ОК	С	ancel

An example should illustrate the two functions: You define a consumer template with Inputs and outputs.

In the "Function" (Output tab) of the consumer template, you define the calculation procedure (formula) for the Meva, which will be created as the result under each of the eight machines. Then, you create eight consumers (e.g. machines) that use this template. This means that the datapoints (inputs) and Mevas (outputs) defined according to the template are created for each of the eight consumers. Four of the eight consumers are assigned to Location A and the other four to Location B. Three of the eight consumers are assigned to Organizational Unit A. The other five consumers are assigned to Organizational Unit C.

As the result you want the Widget Dashboard to display all inputs (e.g. corresponding to the energy consumption of the machines) and all outputs (e.g. corresponding to the produced quantity of the machines) of Location A and Organizational Unit C.

- "Calculation before aggregation":

The "Calculation before aggregation" function specifies that each consumer must be calculated individually using the formula before all results are aggregated into an overall result.

– "Calculation after aggregation":

The "Calculation after aggregation" function specifies that all consumers must first be aggregated and then the overall result is calculated using the formula.

For example, it the formula includes a division by a variable, the overall result would be false if all individual results of the consumers were summed, since according to mathematical calculation rule, the adding of individual fractions with different denominators is not permitted. On the other hand, if the denominator contains a constant, it is permissible to add all individual results.

The "Calculation after aggregation" function is thus only relevant when you are using a division for a formula in which the denominator contains a variable (e.g. an input). If, on the other hand, the denominator contains a constant number (as in the figure above), you can also select "Calculation before aggregation". The same overall result would be returned in both cases.

- 3. In the "Function" field, you assemble the formula that specifies the calculation rule for the result of the output. The formula is calculated by the Meva that is created below the consumer. Assemble the formula by double-clicking inputs and mathematical operands to select them, or type the formula directly in the field.
- 4. Define the unit of the output in the "Field" unit.
- 5. You can filter existing inputs in the "Filter" field. Enter the designation of the searched-for input.
- 6. The output can be assigned to a profile that is then multiplied by the profile value. In this way, for example, different energy tariffs can be correctly accounted. Details on creating a profile are available in section "Configuring profiles (Page 201)".

Dashboard tab

You can define a "Widget Dashboard " on the "Dashboard" tab.

- 1. Enter a "Name" and optionally a "Description" for the Widget Dashboard .
- 2. Specify whether you want to use the Widget Dashboard by default ("Set as default"). This results in this Widget Dashboard being displayed first as soon as you click on the associated machine in Energy Manager PRO Web. As a result, only one Widget Dashboard can be set as default per machine.

	Consumer Dashboar	rd ×
Name:	Steam_production	
Description:	Produced steam amount	
	Set as Default	
	ОК	Cancel

In the Energy Manager PRO Client, the Widget Dashboard is created under a consumer that uses this template.

In Energy Manager PRO Web , the Widget Dashboard can also be displayed and edited for the respective consumer.

Report tab

You can create a report in the "Report" tab.

- 1. You can create a new report with "New". The details for creating a report are available in the section "Creating a report (Page 276)".
- 2. You can edit the report with "Edit".
- 3. You can delete the report with "Delete".

Input Output Dashboard Report		
Report	Description	New
Steam_production_report		Edit
		Delete
		Edit Modules

4. With "Edit Modules", you can assign the datapoints and Mevas defined as inputs and outputs to this report. The "Configure Modules" dialog opens.

Click on the module and then on "Add Tag/MEVA". Choose the inputs and outputs you want to output in the report and save the inputs.

	Confi	gure Modules	-		×
🗆 📄 Steam_pro	duction_repo	rt	Add Ta	ad/ME	VA
🛍 Steam_ 📆 Steam_	production_re production_re	port_Neues_Modul port_Monat	Delete	Tag/I	MEVA
		Select module va	riable		×
	Variable:	Electricity (Input) Electricity (Input)			•
		Gas (Input) Steam_Output (Out	tput)		

After saving, a report template is created for this report under "Templates > Report templates". This report template will be used when a consumer is created to create a specific report that is created below the consumer. If the report template is deleted, it is no longer possible to create a report when a consumer is created. For this reason, do not delete the report templates as long as you have created consumer templates including reports.

Result

The consumer template is created and is shown in the menu under "Master Data > Configuration > Templates".

—	Templates		- 🗆 🗙
Reports Consumer			
List of Consumer templates			
Name	Last change	Saved by	New
Gas_EL	8/17/2016 12:27:54	PM ADMIN	
			Edit
			Delete

Details on the creation of a template or on the automatically created structure can be found in section "Consumers and structured view (Page 265)".

If you modify a template that is in use for a specific consumer, you will be notified that all changes will affect the relevant consumers and you will be prompted to indicate whether you want to save the changes.

Templates that are being used by consumers cannot be deleted.

All templates are also visible in the Templates folder in the shortcut menu. If a dashboard is defined in the consumer template, this is also shown in the Templates folder in the shortcut menu.

2.2.7 "Administration" menu tab

2.2.7.1 Management and monitoring

Logging Viewer

Overview

The Logging Editor displays the most important system messages and error messages. This section provides instructions related to the following actions:

- 1. Opening the Logging Editor
- 2. Fields in the Logging Editor
- 3. Filter options
- 4. Archiving messages

Requirement

Successful installation of all software components.

Opening the Logging Editor

1. Click the "Open Logging Viewer " button in the menu bar under "Administration > Management and Monitoring".

The Logging Viewer is opened.

			Lo	gging Viewer			- 0	
O Hour 🔘	Day OMonth	From: 10.03.	2014 00:00:00		> F	Refresh	Filter Filter	
Source	Message Class	Event time	Object	Timestamp	Short Text	Long Text	User	
Rights-Logging	User login	10.03.2014 14:	ADMIN		BAN:2014.03.1	User ADMIN Io		
Rights-Logging	User logout	10.03.2014 14:	ADMIN		BAB:2014.03.1	User ADMIN Io		
Rights-Logging	User login	10.03.2014 14:	ADMIN		BAN:2014.03.1	UserADMIN Io		
Rights-Logging	User logout	10.03.2014 14:	ADMIN		BAB:2014.03.1	User ADMIN Io		
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 12:	Energy_Consu		report created!	Energy_Consu	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 12:	Energy_Consu		report created!	Energy_Consu	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 12:	Utilization - fro		report created!	Utilization - fro	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 11:	B.Data Options		B.Data Options	B.Data Options	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 10:	d_temperature		Node moved!	Node moved!	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 10:	d_compresse		Node moved!	Node moved!	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 10:	e_result		Node moved!	Node moved!	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 10:	e_result		Node moved!	Node moved!	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 10:	d_temperature		Node moved!	Node moved!	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 10:	e_result		Node moved!	Node moved!	ADMIN	
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 10:	d_temperature		Node moved!	Node moved!	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 00:	Value-3103128	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 00:	Value-3103128	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 00:	Value-3103154	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 01:	Value-3103179	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 01:	Value-3103209	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 00:	Value-3103128	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 00:	Value-3103128	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 00:	Value-3103154	summertime/E	ADMIN	
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 01:	Value-3103179	summertime/E	ADMIN	-
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d_A_E_V_117	12.08.2010 01:	Value-3103209	summertime/E	ADMIN	_
Matrix	Created	10.03.2014 10:	d A E V 117	12.08.2010 00:	Value-3103128	summertime/E	ADMIN	

User ADMIN logged in to Docliber from machine WIN81V6 with os user Win81V6\admin.

The LoggingViewer always displays the messages of the current day; the most recent message is displayed on top. In the case of a message surge, the time filter automatically sets the "hour" mode to reduce the waiting time.

You may select the monitoring period. Select "Refresh" to view the messages of the selected monitoring period, e.g. of the selected day:

Ξ						L	.og	ging	, Vie	wer		
⊖Hour ⊙I	Day OMonth	From: 10.0	3.201	14 01	D: 00	:00			•		<	>
			•	M	ärz	•	• •	201	4 ·			
Source	Message Class	Event time	Mo	Di	Mi	Do	Fr	Sa	So	р		Short Te>
Rights-Logging	User login	10.03.2014 14	24	25	20	-27	28	1	- 2 - 9			BAN:2014
Rights-Logging	User logout	10.03.2014 14	10	11	12	13	14	15	16			BAB:2014
Rights-Logging	User login	10.03.2014 14	17	18	19	20	21	22	23			BAN:2014
Rights-Logging	User logout	10.03.2014 14	24	25	26	27	28	29	30			BAB:2014
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 12	51		2	3	4	9	0			report cre
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 12		-	Toda	iy C	Clea	r				report cre
Confirmation o	Confirmation o	10.03.2014 12	U	tiliza	tion	- fro.				1		report cre

Use the "<" and ">" buttons to page the scroll the selected time interval towards the past or future.

All columns can be sorted in ascending or descending order. Click in the header of the respective column to sort it.

Event time	Δ
10.03.2014 10:04:19	
10.03.2014 10:08:26	
10.03.2014 10:10:19	
10.03.2014 10:10:22	
10.03.2014 10:13:28	
10.03.2014 10:13:34	
10.03.2014 10:13:38	

Fields of the LoggingViewer

The following columns functions are available in the LoggingViewer:

• Source

The error source is the first sorting criterion. Three error sources are currently implemented in the system: Kernel, database, and measurements editor.

Error class

The error class can be used to refine message filtering, e.g. evaluation error, job management error, deleted, or modified.

• Event time

The event time is used to record the time of error or event occurrence.

• Object

Certain messages include details on the object in this area. For example, the measurements editor logs the data point with name and the MESS_ID that has been processed.

Time stamp

The specific time stamp affected by changes, deletion of creation of new measured values is logged in this area.

• Stext

The short text, for example, logs the way in which a value has been changed: Value 12.88 -> 13.54

• Ltext

The measurements editor logs the daylight saving and winter time as well as the compression level in this column. The remaining sources log the error message in plain text in this column.

The LoggingViewer stores all the information pertaining to security settings.

The following example shows some actions that are logged in the system:

- Each successful login or log-off, e.g. "User Admin logged in to DocLiber from atw11565@ATPCOBAD".
- Each failed login attempt, e.g. "Unknown user TEST attempted to login to DocLiber from atw11565@ATPCOBAD" or "User Admin failed to log in to DocLiber from atw11565@ATPCOBAD".
- An unauthorized user carrying out an action.
- Authorization changes, e.g. "User FLORIAN was added to group Administrators".

Filter functions of the LoggingViewer

Use the filter function for fast access to the correct information. Click "Filter" in the Logging Viewer to open the "Filter" dialog.

		Filter ×				
Source		Measurement configuration	AND			
Message Class		Created				
Timestamp	•	10.03.2014 15:22:13	•			
Timestamp	• = •	10.03.2014 15:22:13	•			
		01	K Cancel			

Select the column from the first list. Select the operator from the second list. Additional entries are available in the third column, depending on the entry you selected in the first column. You may also logically link the filters by setting an "AND" or "OR" operation in the fourth column.

Click "OK" to activate the filters. The result is displayed in the Logging Viewer. Uncheck the "Filter" check box to cancel filtering.

The system provides several database jobs for archiving messages. The jobs and the settings are listed in the Job queue (Page 398).

2.2.7.2 Service Cockpit

Overview

The Service Cockpit provides you with an overview of the status of the acquisition components that are configured in the system.

You use the Service Cockpit to manage the available acquisition components and the drivers installed on them.

Use

You can also use the Service Cockpit for the following purposes:

- To obtain an overview of all configured acquisition components.
- To view the log files that log all actions of an acquisition component.
- To determine the status of an acquisition component. To show whether the acquisition component is acquiring data, or whether an error has occurred.
- To control an acquisition component: You can restart the acquisition component if its fails to run.

Requirement

For the software update of the acquisition component:

- The acquisition component is installed on the PC.
- The PC is connected to the Energy Manager Server.
- You have the functional right "Service Cockpit > view".
- You have the functional right "Master Data > view".

Layout

Service Cockpit

The Service Cockpit has the following layout:

- ① The left window pane lists the acquisition components that are configured in the system.
- 2 The right window pane displays information about the acquisition component or interface selected in ①:
 - Name and version of the acquisition component
 - Time of last communication between the acquisition component and the Energy Manager PRO Client
 - Configuration files
 - Log files
 - Gap detection during data acquisition

You can also perform a software update of the acquisition component here.

1. Click the "Open Service Cockpit" button in the menu bar under "Administration > Management and Monitoring" to open the Service Cockpit .

The "Service Cockpit" dialog opens.

2. Select the acquisition component.

All information about the acquisition component is displayed. If the time information of "Acq/Local Time" deviates by more than five seconds from each other, the time is shown in red.

k	Service Cockpit			- • ×
- - - - - - - - - - - - -	Name: h_Siemens_PC La Version: 600.0.703.2 Acq/L Config Files Log Files Installed Software Upd	Refresh Restart		
 a_acq_ASCIL_FTP a_acq_ASCIL_FTP a_acq_SAT_drv a_acq_SAT_drv a_acq_SAT_drv a_acq_SAT_drv a_acq_OPC_HDA a_acq_S7 a_acq_S7 a_acq_S7 	Path bfsNT.ini process.cfg modbustioarea.bt drv_WinCC_Driver\dblog1.mcl drv_WinCC_Driver\dblog2.mcl drv_WinCC_Driver\dblog2.mcl drv_WinCC_Driver\dblog8.mcl drv_WinC_Drv_WinCC_Driver\dblog8.mcl drv_WinC_Drv_WinC	Size [KB] 4 1 1 0 1 4 1 1 2 0 4 4 4 1 1 2 0 4	ChangedAt 7 10.03.2014 17:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 07.03.2014 15:01 24.02.2014 20:06	Open
			[Close

3. Click the "Update" button to manually update the information about the acquisition component.

The information in the Service Cockpit is refreshed automatically at intervals of ten seconds.

- 4. To restart the acquisition component, click the "Restart" button.
- 5. To deactivate the acquisition component, activate the "Disabled" option.

Status color code

The following status color code is valid in the Service Cockpit:

- Green: The acquisition component is acquiring data.
- Red: The acquisition component is interconnected with the system, but is not acquiring data.
- Gray: The acquisition component is not interconnected with the system.

Managing log files

- 1. Select the "Log Files" tab to view the log files.
 - All log files of the selected acquisition component are displayed.

System A. Siemens_PC A. a.acq_OPC A.acq_simulation A.acq_simulation	Name: h_Siemens_PC Version: 600.0.703.2 Act Config Files Log Files Installed Software Up	Last Contact: q/Local Time: odate	10.03.201417:10:22 17:10:22/17:10:22	Refresh Restart
- D a_acq_ASCI_FTP	Path	Size (KB)	Changed At 🛛 🗖 🦰	Open
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:30	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:29	Delete
a erf ModBus	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:28	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:28	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:26	
a erf WinCC Driver	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:25	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:24	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:23	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:22	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:21	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:20	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:19	
	trace\Kernel\tr0001.log	10	01.03.2014 09:19	
	trace\ReportServer\ReportServer_2014.03.0	1	01.03.2014 09:18	
	trace\FTP\ftp0002.log	1	01.03.2014 09:18	
	trace\FTP\ftp0001.log	1	01.03.2014 09:18 👻	

2. You can open a log file with double-click.

Alternatively, you can click the "Open" button to open a log file.

The log file is opened in an editor.

	ReportServer_2014.03.05_141508.0.log - Notepad - 🗆 🗙					
File Edit Format View Help [2014-03-05 14:15:08,557 [11] INFO []						
4	• २ व					

3. You can select a log file and then delete it by clicking the "Delete" button.

Display installed software

1. Click the "Software" tab to display the software installed on the acquisition component.

Managing interfaces

1. Select the required interface in the right-hand window area.

The information about the interface is displayed, for example, gaps in the data acquisition or configuration files of the acquisition component.

□- \$} System □- \$ h_Siemens_PC - \$ a arg_OPC	ime: a_erf_ModBus	Last Contact		Refrech
			i	Restart
- a_acq_ASCII_FTP	ion Jame	Description		Event Time 7
	Configuration Files			Acknowledge
Path	Coningui autori rites	Size (VB)	Changed At 7	0
bfsNT	Cini .	4	10.03 2014 17:01	Open
proce	iss.cfa	1	07.03.2014 15:01	
mode	uslioarea.bd	1	07.03.2014 15:01	
mode	ius\tags.txt	0	07.03.2014 15:01	

- 2. If there are gaps in the data acquisition, you can acknowledge these if required.
- 3. To open a configuration file of the acquisition component, select the required file and click the "Open" button.

The file is displayed in an editor.



2.2.7.3 Message lists

Basic information on message lists

Overview

A message list informs you of defined deviations of the measured values of a data point. You can view this information as follows:

- by means of a message list view
- by means of e-mail

Configure the deviation criteria for the measured values of a datapoint for a datapoint, see section "Configuring the plausibility (Page 157)".

Message lists contain three categories:

- "Predefined": contains predefined message lists. The following predefined message lists are available:
 - All: contains all messages and warnings.
 - All Warnings: Contains all warnings generated when a measured value approaches a configured limit.
 - All Violations: contains all messages generated when a measured value violates a limit.
 - GAP detection not acknowledged: Contains unacknowledged messages which relate to gaps in the data acquisition.
 - All not Acknowledged: Contains all unacknowledged messages.

The predefined message lists cannot be edited or deleted.

- "Public": contains published message lists that can be used by all users.
- "My": contains message lists that you have configured.

Notes on message lists

NOTICE

Messages in Energy Manager do not replace the message configuration in the process control system

The message is not linked to the process control system. If you want to react to the message, you have to configure limit monitoring in the process control system.

To view the messages in a message list, you need to configure the limits for the required data point and activate their message.

Messages are disabled in the project by default. Contact your administrator if you want to enable the message for the project.

Procedure for configuring a message list

To configure a message list, follow these steps:

- 1. Configure a message list.
- 2. Define the message list contents by means of a filter.
- 3. You can also configure a message notification, if necessary.

See also

Overview (Page 713) Editing alarm lists (Page 715)

Configuring custom message list

Overview

You may configure a custom alarm list. In this alarm list you use filters to define which messages are displayed.

Requirement

- The data point is configured.
- The data point limit is configured.
- The message is activated for the limit.

Procedure

- 1. Click the "Open KPI Message Lists" button in the menu bar under "Administration > Management and Monitoring".
- 2. Then click "New".

The alarm list configuration dialog opens.

3. Enter a unique name and an optional description for the alarm list.

The "Owner" field displays the name of the user who configures the alarm list.

- 4. Activate "Publish" to make the alarm list available to all users.
- 5. Confirm the configuration with "Save".

Result

The custom alarm list is configured.

5		KF	9 Alert Lists			×	
Predefined All All All Violations All Violations All Violations All Violations All Notacknowledged	Name: Description: Owner: ADM	MyNewFilter x DMIN public					
General My General All Alarms MyNewFilter	nowledged Filter:] Column	Condition	Value	D] AND/OR	Add Delete Up Down	
New Clone	Default Query	Type: Day			Preview	Notification(s)	
	_		_	-	OK	Cancel	

Configure one or more filters to specify the contents of the alarm list. You can use the "Clone" function to copy the custom alarm list for configuring a different alarm list. You may delete the custom alarm list.

You can open a alarm list that you have made available to all users by selecting "Configuration > KPI Alert Lists" in the project tree of the Client.



See also

Configuring filter for a message list (Page 393) Configuring message notification (Page 395) Configuring the view for a message list (Page 397) Overview (Page 713)

Configuring filter for a message list

Overview

A alarm list filter allows you to exclude messages that you do not need.

The following rules are valid for filters:

- For a alarm list configuration containing multiple filters, you need to logically link the filters by means of "AND" or "OR" operator.
- In a configuration with multiple filters, the filters in the list are evaluated from the top down.

Requirement

The alarm list is configured.

Procedure

- 1. Select the desired alarm list under "Administration > Alarm lists" in the Client .
- 2. Click "Add" in the "Configuration" tab.
- 3. You may enter filter expressions in a parenthesis.
- 4. Select a filter criterion and a condition, e.g. "Value" and ">".
- 5. Enter a value, e.g. 1000.
- 6. Select an operator / additional operators to interconnect multiple filters.
- 7. Click "Up" or "Down" to specify the sorting order by which multiple filters are to be evaluated.
- 8. Confirm the configuration with "Save".

Result

The filter for the alarm list is configured. With this filter, messages are included in the alarm list if their data point value is greater than 1000. You can check the result of the filter configuration in the "View" tab. You can delete the filter, or add a new one.



See also

Configuring custom message list (Page 391) Filter criteria for a message list (Page 756)

Configuring message notification

Overview

A message notification informs you by e-mail of unacknowledged messages from a alarm list.

Requirement

- The alarm list is configured.
- The user with the e-mail address is created.

Procedure

- 1. Select the desired alarm list under "Administration > Alarm lists" in the Client .
- 2. Click "Notification(s)" in the "Configuration" tab.

The "Message notifications" dialog opens.

3. Select a time interval and a time unit for the notification cycle.

The "Last run" and "Next scheduled run" fields show the time stamp for the last and next verification.

- 4. To ignore old messages, activate "Set". Select a time for the activation of the notifications.
- 5. To activate the notifications, select the "Active" option.
- 6. Use the arrow keys to assign the e-mail address.

:		Notifications		- 🗆	×
Notification Cycle: LastRun: Next Run: Processed Untit: ☑ Active	1 h :.▼ :.▼				
ANNE HOFMAN HELMUT SCHM MUSTERMANN	Known Adresses: IN (anne.hofmann@siemens.com) IDT (helmut.schmidt@siemens.com) M (max.mustermann@siemens.com)	¢	Assigned Reciever(s): ADMIN (bdata@siemens.com) FRANZ MEIER (franz.meier@siemens	.com)	
			ок	Cancel	

7. Click "OK".

Note

A maximum of 10 alarm messages are sent in one e-mail. If more than 10 alarm messages are present, Energy Manager send 10 alarm messages in one e-mail. The number of pending alarms is specified in this e-mail. Energy Manager does not send any further e-mail for the other alarm messages.

Result

Message notification is configured. Open the view of the corresponding alarm list to acknowledge a message.

See also

Configuring custom message list (Page 391) Time unit abbreviations (Page 756) Setting up users (Page 343) Editing alarm lists (Page 715) Overview (Page 713)
Configuring the view for a message list

Overview

Using the view for a alarm list you specify the period of evaluation.

Requirement

The alarm list is configured.

Procedure

1. Double-click the desired alarm list under "Configuration > KPI Alert Lists" in the project tree of the Client.

The "Alarm List View" dialog opens.

- 2. Select a query type.
- 3. Select a start and end time.
- 4. To refresh the alarm list view in manual mode, disable "Automatic update" and then click "Refresh".

"Automatic update" is activated by default for a alarm list view.

5. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

The alarm list view is configured. Click "Acknowledge" to prevent a message from being sent by e-mail.

Alert List View - MyNewFilter						
Name: MyNewFilter						
✓ Auto Refresh Query Type: Day	✔ from 11.03.20	014 00:00:00 💌 to 12.03.2014 00:00:00 💌	Refresh			
Variable Cause Timestamp	Generation Timestamp 🛆 Alarm	Class Message S	State Ack. User (B			
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 17.02.2014 06:15:00	11.03.2014 10:01:44 Violatio	on Value of 600 violates Upper Limit of 550. K	:			
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 17.02.2014 04:15:00	11.03.2014 10:01:44 Violatio	on Value of 560 violates Upper Limit of 550. K	:			
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 20.02.2014 03:45:00	11.03.2014 10:01:45 Violatio	on Value of 600 violates Upper Limit of 550. K				
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 17.02.2014 03:15:00	11.03.2014 15:36:23 Violatio	on Value of 600 violates Upper Limit of 550. K	:			
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 17.02.2014 03:15:00	11.03.2014 15:36:23 Violatio	on Value change by 258 violates Max Chan K				
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 16.03.2014 14:15:00	11.03.2014 15:38:15 Violatio	on Value of 900 violates Upper Limit of 550. K				
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 16.03.2014 14:00:00	11.03.2014 15:38:15 Violatio	on Value of 800 violates Upper Limit of 550. K				
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 16.03.2014 14:15:00	11.03.2014 15:38:15 Violatio	on Value change by 100 violates Max Chan K				
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 11.03.2014 00:30:00	11.03.2014 15:38:15 Violatio	on Value of 700 violates Upper Limit of 550. K				
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 11.03.2014 00:15:00	11.03.2014 15:38:15 Violatio	on Value of 600 violates Upper Limit of 550. K				
d_EL_Consumption_Incomer 11.03.2014 00:30:00	11.03.2014 15:38:15 Violatio	on Value change by 100 violates Max Chan K				
			I			
			Acknowledge			
			Close			

See also

Configuring custom message list (Page 391) Configuring message notification (Page 395) Query types (Page 749)

2.2.7.4 Jobs in Energy Manager PRO

Job queue

Overview

Energy Manager Job Queue can be used to run database jobs once or at cyclic intervals.

In general, three types of jobs are available in Energy Manager.

1. User jobs of the job queue:

These jobs are created in the job queue solely by the user. The repetition interval is specified by the user.

2. System jobs of the job queue:

System jobs are created in the course of the configuration of objects in Energy Manager. These jobs run automatically once a day. If necessary, system jobs can be started manually in the job queue if a cycle time of less than one day is required. System jobs are not visible in the job queue.

3. Background jobs (outside the job queue):

Background jobs are internal jobs necessary for optimal system functionality (e.g. synchronization jobs). Background jobs are not visible in the job queue.

Note

All the jobs currently running become visible in the detailed view of the Logging Viewer. The detailed view of the Logging Viewer can be set in the Energy Manager options on the "Database" tab using the entry "3" in the "VERBOSE" line.

User jobs of the job queue

- Job "Generate batch data"
- Job "Export prognosis EDM"
- Job "Export SAP R/3 PM historical PD 6h"
- Job "Export SAP R/3 PM historical PPD 6h"
- Job "Export PD as ASCII"
- Job "Export all configured formats"

Detailed information about the respective user jobs of the job queue is available in the Reference in Chapter User jobs of the job queue (Page 827).

	Job Queue	- 🗆 🗙
Active Jobs:		
Function	Δ Last Run Repeat Interva	I Next Run
Batchdata producing	1 d	6/23/2016 11:00 AM
Close	Delete Job New	Refresh

Procedure

1. Click the "Open job queue" button in the menu bar under "Administration > Task Management".

The Energy Manager Job Queue is opened.

TheJob Queue contains jobs to be executed at cyclic intervals or in the future. You can always "refresh" the view.

- 2. Create a new job as follows:
 - Click "New".
 - Select the "Type" (of job).
 - Select the "Start time".
 - Select the "Cycle time". Select "None" if the job is executed only once.
 - Save the configuration with "OK".
- 3. Delete a new job as follows:
 - Select the job in the Job Queue.
 - Click "Delete job".

Note

All exported files correspond to the format of the current Energy Manager version. If you require the files to be exported in the format of the preceding version V6.X, this can be realized in the Energy Manager options in the "Database" tab by using the entry "1" in the row "EXPORT_OLDV&STYLE".

System jobs

The following job is configured during configuration of a new query type. System jobs are already preconfigured and run automatically once per day. Only the duration of the job still has to be defined in the query type.

• Job "Delete old analyses":

If a new query type is configured using "Master Data > Configuration", "Insert Query Type" button, this can then be used in any report. This means that the settings for the above job are valid in all reports in which this query type is used.

Specify the time after which a report with this query type is to be deleted in Energy Manager.

Ro Query Type	×
Name: Description:	
	~
Interval back: 0 Unit: [d] day	
Duration: 1 Unit: [d] day	
Offset: 0 Unit: [h] hour • + 0 Unit: [min] minute •	
Default Report delete after: 1 Unit: [M] month	
Default Report start after: 0 Unit: [min] minute	
Singular Offset	
Calculation example: 6/23/2016 10:28:50 AM > 6/23/2016 12:00:00 AM - 6/24/2016 12:00:00 AM Next Interval -> 6/24/2016 12:00:00 AM - 6/25/2016 12:00:00 AM	
OK Cancel	

However, this configuration can be overwritten if necessary during creation of a new report without having to create a new query type in the master data. The figure below shows the use of the "Month" query type during creation of a report. In this case, it is possible to overwrite the setting for deleting the report. The change is then only valid for this report. The configuration of the query type created in the master data remains unchanged.

20	Report Query Type - Month 🛛 🗕 🗖 🗙
Query Type:	Month
Description:	^
	×
Compression Level:	Entry values
Report delete after:	1 Unit: [d] day
Report Automation Start Print Send per Mail Excel Mail Link to Save to Directory Excel	PDF) Recipient / PDF
Report start after:	0 Unit: [min] minute
Repeat calculation every:	0 Unit: [d] day
	Create each with a new result
	OK Cancel

The following job is configured in "File > Account Settings > Data Storage".

- Job "Delete old measured values": Specify:
 - After which period data are to be deleted from the database.
 - After which period data are to be deleted from the database and archived.
 - Whether no action is to be set.

In the Energy Manager options ("File" tab), you can use an entry in "DELETE_MSJO_COMMIT" to change the value after how many records a COMMIT is to be set.

Please define archive timeframe of cyclic acquisition data. Data with Cycle Time J St. D. Value St. D. Unit Action after storage duration 1 s 99 Y No Action 5 s 99 Y No Action 10 s 99 Y No Action 15 s 99 Y No Action 16 s 99 Y No Action 17 s 99 Y No Action 10 s 99 Y No Action 15 s 99 Y No Action 1 min 99 Y No Action 10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 17 h 99 Y No Action 1/2 h 99 Y No Action	eneral Password Setting	s Data Storage	Delete options		
Data with Cycle Time ASt. D. ValueSt. D. UnitAction after storage duration1 s99YNo Action5 s99YNo Action10 s99YNo Action15 s99YNo Action1 min99YNo Action5 min99YNo Action10 min99YNo Action15 min99YNo Action15 min99YNo Action15 min99YNo Action15 min99YNo Action17 h99YNo Action1/2 h99YNo Action	lease define archive timefr	ame of cyclic acqu	isition data.		
1 s 99 Y No Action 5 s 99 Y No Action 10 s 99 Y No Action 15 s 99 Y No Action 1 min 99 Y No Action 5 min 99 Y No Action 10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 17 h 99 Y No Action	Data with Cycle Time $ \Delta $	St. D. Value	St. D. Unit	Action after storage duration	
5 s 99 Y No Action 10 s 99 Y No Action 15 s 99 Y No Action 1 min 99 Y No Action 5 min 99 Y No Action 10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 17 h 99 Y No Action	s	99	Y	No Action	
10 s 99 Y No Action 15 s 99 Y No Action 1 min 99 Y No Action 5 min 99 Y No Action 10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 172 h 99 Y No Action	5 s	99	Y	No Action	
15 s 99 Y No Action 1 min 99 Y No Action 5 min 99 Y No Action 10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 172 h 99 Y No Action 1/2 h 99 Y No Action	10 s	99	Y	No Action	
1 min 99 Y No Action 5 min 99 Y No Action 10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 172 h 99 Y No Action	15 s	99	Y	No Action	
5 min 99 Y No Action 10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 1/2 h 99 Y No Action	l min	99	Y	No Action	
10 min 99 Y No Action 15 min 99 Y No Action 1/2 h 99 Y No Action	5 min	99	Y	No Action	
15 min 99 Y No Action 1/2 h 99 Y No Action	10 min	99	Y	No Action	
1/2 h 99 Y No Action	15 min	99	Y	No Action	
	l/2 h	99	Y	No Action	
	(b		se.	hle dealers	

Configuration or activation of the following system job is effected in "File > Account settings > Delete options".

• Job "Delete old log entries":

Activate the check box and specify the period after which general messages are to be deleted from the Logging Viewer. In the Energy Manager options in the "Database" tab you can use the entry "1" in "FEJO_EXPORT_FLAG" to specify that the entries to be deleted are to be exported to a file (*.csv) beforehand.

• Job "Delete old log entries of the IT security":

Activate the check box and specify the period after which specific messages of the IT security are to be deleted from the Logging Viewer. In the Energy Manager options in the "Database" tab you can use the entry "1" in "ITSEC_EXPORT_FLAG" to specify that the entries to be deleted are to be exported to a file (*.csv) beforehand.

• Job "Delete old log entries of measured values":

Activate the check box and specify the period after which messages about measured values are to be deleted from the Logging Viewer. In the Energy Manager options in the "Database" tab you can use the entry "1" in "FEJO_EXPORT_MESS_FLAG" to specify that the entries to be deleted are to be exported to a file (*.csv) beforehand.

• Job "Delete old alarms":

Activate the check box and specify the period after which alarms are to be deleted from the alarm lists. Messages of the alarm list are automatically exported to a file (csv.) before being deleted.

ogging viewer				
Messages System	older than	100	d	System\General
Messages IT-Security	older than	100	d	System\ITMessages
Messages Measurement	older than	100	d	System\ChangedValues
lerts				
Messages	older than	372	d	System\Alerts
rchived files hold for		3650	d	

Note

If archiving is activated for files to be deleted, these are archived to corresponding subdirectories of the archive basic directory before being deleted. The Archive basic directory can be viewed in the "Account settings > General" and be modified if required. The default retention time for archived data amounts to 10 years.

The following job automatically calculates derived data points.

• Job "Recalculation of derived data points":

By enabling the respective options in the derived data point, the derived data point is automatically recalculated according to the cycle time.

The following job is executed automatically by the system.

• Job "Optimize database":

The job served to optimize tables of the database. Since the optimization of large tables can take a longtime, so that the system efficiency may be impaired as a result, the user has the option to exclude large tables from the optimization. The entry "OPTIMIZE_BIG_TABLES" in the Energy Manager options under "Database" is available to this purpose. The entry "O" means that the optimization of large tables is excluded.

Background jobs

Other background jobs that the user cannot change are:

- Job "Remove abandoned measured values and alarms": Deletes values that cannot be deleted immediately.
- Job "Synchronization": Synchronizes SQL server database with acquisition components.

You must make additional settings for the following jobs:

• Job "Automatic analysis":

Specify after which period a report with this query type is to be started in Energy Manager. If necessary, the configuration can be overwritten during the creation of a report of the query time.

• Job "Database backup":

Specify at which times a database backup is to be carried out.

Backup									
Status Config									
Backup Directory									
C:\EnMPRO\DB\EnMPRO\Ad	C:\EnMPRO\DB\EnMPRO\Admin\backup Browse								
Scheduling									
Daily start time	3:00 AM	8							
Weekday	None	Incremental	Full						
Monday	0	0	•						
Tuesday	0	۲	0						
Wednesday	0	۲	0						
Thursday	0	۲	0						
Friday	0	۲	0						
Saturday	0	۲	0						
Sunday	0	۲	0						
	ок	Apply	Cancel						

See also

Logging Viewer (Page 381) Configuring query types (Page 372) Automating a report (Page 281) Account settings (Page 694)

2.2.7.5 Task Management

Task Manager

Overview

Energy Manager Task Management Is used to perform different actions, e.g. starting reports, importing / exporting data, or initiating calculations.

You configure the Task Management in the Client. The task also has to be set up on the application server, as tasks are executed by means of the Microsoft Scheduler. You may start a configured task manually from any client.

The system provides a number of predefined tasks. The following section describes the general structure of Task Management.



- 1 Task Manager serves as grouping object and to define the hardware that is to run a task.
- 2 The task object contains information on the function to be executed and the schedule.
- ③ The interval definition becomes necessary as soon as a time frame that is relative to the current time has to be defined.

A Task Manager is created automatically during the installation. In addition, a new Task Manager is created for each new acquisition component.

Note

The task is used to execute a *.cmd file that is stored in the "CMD" section of the Energy Manager installation folder on the application server. For this reason, the task schedule needs to be created on the application server. The user running the task must have corresponding Administrator privileges.

Note

An XML file is generated by default for tasks involving logging and export. You can view the structure of this XML file in the section "SAP interface (Page 854)". The generated XML file can be converted into a CSV file using the XML style sheets. For available XML style sheets, see section "XML stylesheets (Page 848)".

By installing the Energy Manager application server, you are automatically generating the tasks as well as the associated interval definitions.

These automatically generated tasks include a separate task each for logging of values, alarms or system alarms (see section "Account settings (Page 68)") as well as for export as an XML file. For the logging task, you can export these values and delete them as well.

See also

Task Management (Page 831) Task (Page 835) Interval definition (Page 837)

2.2.7.6 Import and export

Basic principles of export and import

Overview

You can export your configuration data in XML format in Energy Manager and import them again. Use the "Import / Export" option, for example, to back up your configuration data.

When exporting data from Energy Manager, the export is marked with the version of Energy Manager. Export with the version is not taken into account in previous Energy Manager versions. An export or import of data is therefore only possible for identical Energy Manager versions.

Conflict test during import

The objects to be imported are compared with the objects in Energy Manager based on name and type during import. If an object already exists, the same object is created additionally with a sequential number .

Note

You cannot undo the data import!

Therefore prepare the import process carefully. Check if there are conflicts with existing data prior to the import. Note the following recommendations:

- If you want to import exported data again, divide the preceding export of the data into several steps.
- If possible, export only data you have created yourself.
- It is not advisable to carry out an import of the entire Energy Manager structure.

Export configuration

Export options

You can export the following structures from Energy Manager:

• Complete folder structure

The selected object is exported with all child objects.

• Single object

Only the selected object is exported. Child objects are not exported.

Note

Objects with an ID of less than 5000 are master data of Energy Manager. If these data is included in the export, the existing master data are updated during the import.

Energy Manager PRO Client 2.2 Configuration

Procedure

- Click the "Export" button in the menu bar under "Administration > Import and Export". The "Export Wizard" dialog opens.
- 2. Select the object you want to export.

b	Export Wizard			×
SIEMENS	Select an object, which should be exported:			
	Step 1 out of 5	< Back	Next >	Cancel

- 3. Select the required export option.
- 4. Select the directory in which the export files are to be stored.

The data are exported from Energy Manager. Two files are created during the export:

- "Nodes.xml" with the exported data
- logdoc.txt" with detailed information on the export
- 5. Click "Finish".

Result

The data export is complete.

Importing data

Import options

You can import the following structures from Energy Manager:

- Complete folder structure that is saved in the XML file.
- Complete folder structure of the selected object
- Single object

Requirement

The export data is stored in the file system.

Procedure

- Click the "Import" button in the menu bar under "Administration > Import and Export". The "Import Wizard" dialog opens.
- 2. Enter the folder in which the XML file you wish to import is located.
- 3. Select the required import option.
- 4. Select the folder in which the import data is to be stored.

4	Impo	ort Wizard			×
SIEMENS	System Data collection Configuration Exchange Folder			Select the target node.	
		< Back	Next >	Cancel	

The import process is started. The objects to be imported are compared with the existing objects in Energy Manager. If objects with identical names and types already exist in Energy Manager, you are prompted to make a selection for each object:

- Select for each object if the existing object is to be overwritten or kept.

The import is executed once this conflict check is complete.

5. To close the wizard, click "Exit".

Note

Reimporting of data is only possible in the same version from which the data were also exported.

Result

The import data is stored in the specified folder in the Client.



2.2.7.7 Backup and Restore

Backup

Overview

The backup functionality offers you the possibility to restore the system in the case of a hardware failure. A backup can be started manually or be automated. For each day of the week it is possible to select an incremental backup, a full backup or no backup. The storage location of the backup can be defined.

Procedure

1. Click the "Adminstration" tab and then the "Backup" icon.

File Acquisition Pr	ocessing A	nalysis	Master Data	Administration	Help
间 🕵 过 Management and Monitoring	Task Manage	🕐 ment Imp	ort and Export	Backup	

2. Click the "Status" tab. Three functions are available here:

Status of the active backup:

- It is possible to carry out a backup immediately manually. If the database is not in archive mode yet, first switch to this mode by clicking the button.
- Otherwise a full backup is started by clicking the "Backup" button and is stored under the preset path. The status of a running backup is indicated by the bar.

Status of the last backup:

- The date and time when the last backup was carried out are displayed. You can check here when the last correct backup was carried out.
- If a backup was aborted due to an error, this is indicated by an error message. More
 detailed information on this topic is available on the "Administration > Management
 and Monitoring" tab in the Log Viewer.

Status of drive:

- Here you see how much storage space is still available for carrying out the backup. You see the designation of the database host as well as the associated backup path. The storage capacity can only be displayed if the application and database are installed on the same computer.
- 3. Click the "Configuration" tab. Here you can select the storage site of the backup as well as configure the execution of the backup.

Browse backup directory:

With the "Browse" button you can search for the directory in which the backup is to be stored. The browse functionality is only available if you are at the database server. A directory on the database server or a directory linked to the database server via UNC Notation has to be selected as the backup directory. A directory mapped with the database server is not recognized in the system. Additional information on the required user permissions can be found in the database documentation.

Configure automatic backup:

- Specify for each weekday when an incremental or a full backup is to be carried out. In as far as you carry out backups you must carry out at least one full backup per week. It is not possible to carry out solely incremental backups. The very first backup to be performed must be a full backup.
- With a full backup, the entire database is backed up, which is why it requires more memory space and more time than an incremental backup. With an incremental backup, the portions that are not yet backed up since the last back up are backed up.
- If you have selected "None" for the backup for each weekday, the archiving mode is deactivated. In case of a defect it is then not possible to restore the database.

Note

Never save backups on the same physical hard disk that also contains the database. In the case of a defective disk, the database as well as the backup would be lost.

Result

Correctly executed backups are stored in the selected or preset directory:

▶ DB ▶ EnMPRO ▶ Admin ▶ backup	× ¢	Search ba	ckup	,p
Name	Date mod	ified Ty	pe Size	
EnMPRO_AutoBackup_DIFF_310316_140000.ba	k 3/31/2016	2:00 PM BA	K File 1,11	1 KB
EnMPRO_ManualBackup_FULL_310316_135607	.bak 3/31/2016	1:56 PM BA	K File 14,42	3 KB

To learn how to restore the database, refer to the section "Restore (Page 413)".

See also

Backup (Page 716)

Restore

Overview

The Restore function is a separate application which helps you to restore the complete database should the necessity arise.

Note

Restoring older versions

Version V7.2 does not support restoring a backup that was created with Version 7.1.

Procedure

- 1. Contact Support in the event of a restore.
- Restoration can only be carried out on a database that already exists. Re-install the failed components, but at least the database. Carry out the installation from the DVD and using the installation manual included on it. To connect the newly installed components to the system again, use the same passwords.
- 3. The "DbRestore.exe" application is located in the installation directory of the Energy Manager in the folder "DB" > "EnMPRO" > "Admin" > "restore". The file can only be executed at the database server. Run the file.

a 퉬 DB	^	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
A B EnMPRO		🔰 de	3/31/2016 9:32 AM	File folder	
Admin		B. B DbRestore.exe	3/31/2016 8:58 AM	Application	682 KB
Ja backup	-	DbRestore.exe.config	3/31/2016 8:48 AM	CONFIG File	4 KB
DbLogArchive	-				

The operating system user who carries out the restoration must have corresponding local rights, for example, belong to a database administrator user group.

- 4. Select a language and click "Next".
- 5. Browse the directory in which the backups are located and click "Next".

Backup Directory

C:\EnergyManagerPRO\DB\EnMPRO\Admin\backup	Browse

- 6. In this context the name of the database, the selected backup directory and the date of the backup file are displayed once more.
- 7. Select the time at which the database is to be restored. You can select either the last available backup or a backup from a specific moment. In as far as no backup file is available on this date, a corresponding information is displayed.
- 8. Click "Start" to start the restoration. Restoration is carried out automatically with the full backup and the incremental backup belonging the selected moment of restoration.

9. After restoration has been completed successfully, you can terminate the wizard with "Finish".

10.Restart the computer.

Note

You can only use the Restore and Backup function if you used the same Admin passwords when installing the systems in question.

Result

The progress of the restoration process is indicated by a bar.

Restore				_
Status:	Finished successfully			
Start				
View Log		< Back	Next >	Cancel

By clicking the "View Log" button you obtain detailed information about the restoration process.

If you want to save the log, click "Save to File". The log is then stored as a text file in the Restore directory.

Туре	Time	Message	^
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:20.323	Switch Database offline and rollback uncommitted	
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:21.255	Status Database Restore process - "Database Re	
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:21.256	Start restore Database with "Full" backup file "C:\	
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:21.807	No "Differential" backup file found - only "Full" rest	
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:21.807	Recover the restored Database.	
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:22.185	Check logical and physical integrity.	
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:23.019	Switch Database online.	
Default	4/5/2016 09:23:23.020	Status Database Restore process - "Completing A	

See also

Backup (Page 716)

2.2.8 Historizing calculation logic

2.2.8.1 History management basics

Definition

The history management in Energy Manager saves every change to the configuration of a calculation. This enables the tracing and reconstruction of the configuration of a calculation at any given instant.

Example

One year ago, you configured a report for the calculation of the power costs of two loads.



In the course of the year, you have added the calculation of a third load.



Now you are required to reconstruct the report for the calculation of the power costs of two loads at a specific time. To do this you use the history management of the report:

- 1. In the history management with monitoring time stamp, look for the configuration that you want to reconstruct.
- 2. When generating the report under "Model", enter the required monitoring time stamp.

The report is generated using the configuration data saved under the specified monitoring time stamp.

Note

Versioning measured values

In order to correctly reconstruct the report, when generating the report, enter the version of the measured values valid at the time of the specified monitoring time stamp.

Objects for history management

You can display configuration changes for the following Energy Manager objects:

- Data point of type "Derived"
- Measuring variable
- Report

The following configuration data are displayed during the history management of objects:

Configuration	Meaning
Calculation tree	Shows objects of the calculation and their order in the calculation tree.
Туре	Shows the type of the object, e.g. "Module".
	"Type" is only used in the history management of the reports.
Name	Displays the name of the object.
Function	Displays the function of a data point or of a measuring variable, e.g. "Measure- ment" or "Addition of MEVAs".
Operation	Displays the type of change to the object, e.g. "Delete".
Unit	Displays the unit of a data point or measuring variable, e.g. "kWh".
Changed on	Displays the date when the change was made to the object.
Changed by	Displays the user who made the change to the object.
Description	Displays the description of the changed object.

The following restrictions apply to the history management of reports:

- No history is kept of report templates.
- No history is kept of start values.
- Automatically generated reports are only calculated with the current configuration data.
- Reports that are generated in Energy Manager PRO Web are only calculated with the current configuration data.
- Specific modules, e.g. plausibility modules, are only calculated with the current configuration data.

Display types for history management

During object history management you can select the following display type:

• Only state

With this display type, the current calculation tree and the configuration data are displayed for the required monitoring time stamp.



2.2.8.2 Historization of data points

Procedure

- 1. Select the data point for which you want to view the historization.
- 2. Select the "History management" command from the shortcut menu.
- 3. You first have to select a date to call the corresponding configuration.
- 4. Clicking "Calculate" displays the tree that is currently available for the selected time. The configuration status that is valid at the selected time is displayed in the list. The log for data points includes changes to units and functions. The log for derived data points also includes changes to the assigned measuring variable.

🛃 History manag	jement						-		×
Measurement variable: a_HistoryDP Observing timestamp: 8/14/2020 11:06:17 AM Start Recalculate derived Measurement Excel Define validity period									
□ a_HistoryDP □ m_Addhest2 □ m_1dforweek □ m_1dforweek □ m_1dforweek2 □ m_1dforweek									
Туре	Name	Functi	U	D.	valid from	valid till			
Measurement	a_HistoryDP		kWh		08/13/2020 20:23:53	12/31/999923:59:59			
Meva	m_Addhest2	Addition	1		08/13/2020 20:28:04	12/31/999923:59:59			
Meva	m_Addhest2	insert			08/13/2020 20:28:04	12/31/999923:59:59			
Meva	m_1dforweek	Sum real	1		08/13/2020 13:05:16	12/31/999923:59:59			
Meva	m_1dforweek	insert			08/13/2020 20:28:17	12/31/999923:59:59			
Measurement	e_1dforweek		kWh		08/13/2020 13:04:45	12/31/999923:59:59			
Measurement	e_1dforweek	insert			08/13/2020 13:05:19	12/31/999923:59:59			
Meva	m_1dforweek2	Sum real	1		08/13/2020 17:44:05	12/31/999923:59:59			
Meva	m_1dforweek2	insert			08/13/2020 20:28:15	12/31/9999 23:59:59			
Measurement	e_1dforweek		kWh		08/13/2020 13:04:45	12/31/9999 23:59:59			
Measurement	e_1dforweek	insert			08/13/2020 17:44:08	12/31/9999 23:59:59			
<u></u>					Cancel				

 \times

5. Click the "Recalculate derived Measurement ..." button to enter a time period. If the calculation rule of the derived data point has changed, enter the time period for which the derived data point is recalculated.

🛃 Cal	culate	\times
From:	8/16/2020 12:00:00 AM	
To:	8/17/2020 12:00:00 AM	
	ок	Cancel

However, this requires that the check box "Actual model" was not selected in the definition of the derived data point. If the check box is selected, the defined models are not activated and the calculation is always based on the current model.

- 6. Clicking "Excel" opens an Excel spreadsheet and the displayed data is inserted for further use.
- 7. To get to the definition of the models for derived data points, click on the "Define validity period" button.
- 8. Click "Add", "Edit", or "Delete" buttons to specify or edit the various validities of the models.

Modeldate	Startdate	Stopdate	New
8/17/2020 4:33:00 PM	8/1/2020 12:00:00 AM	1/1/2040 12:00:00 AM	Edit
			Delete
			Calculate
		ок	Cancel

Note

Model

A model may not end within an interval of the derived data point. If a derived data point has been assigned the "Month" interval, the model may only change on the first day of each month (01.xx. 00:00).

A recalculation of the derived data point is not automatically initiated when models are changed. To recalculate the derived data point according to a changed calculation rule, click "Calculate".

🛃 Cal	culate	\times
From:	8/16/2020 12:00:00 AM	
To:	8/17/2020 12:00:00 AM	
	OK Cancel	

In the dialog, enter the time period for which the derived data point is recalculated. The last model is always assigned the stop date of 01.01.2040.

However, this requires that the check box "Actual model" was not selected in the definition of the derived data point. If the check box is selected, the defined models are not activated and the calculation is always based on the current model.

2.2.8.3 Historization of measurement variables

Procedure

- 1. Select the measuring variable for which you want to view the historization.
- 2. Select the "History management" command from the shortcut menu.
- 3. You first have to select a date to call the corresponding configuration.
- 4. Click "Calculate" to display the tree that is currently available for the selected time.

The entry always contains the currently valid function. The description field contains entries for both the old and new functions. The old unit or the new unit is listed in the description field "Unit".

Usseuromentu	nemene	at a l				
neasurement va	anable: m_vvater_consumption_sum	real				
Observing times	stamp: 6/26/2018 1:59:18 PM					
	Start	Excel				
mWater_cc	onsumption_sumreal					
Type	Name	Functi	U	Description	valid from	valid till
lype Neva	Name m_Water_consumption_sumreal	Functi	U	Description m_Water_consumption_sumreal (MEW4)	valid from 06/26/201811:28:33	valid till 12/31/9999 23:59:59
lype feva feasurement	Name m_Water_consumption_sumreal e_Water_consumption	Functi Sum real	U 1 kWh	Description m_Water_consumption_sumreal (MEW4) e_Water_consumption (Messung)	valid from 06/26/2018 11:28:33 06/26/2018 11:28:50	valid till 12/31/9999 23:59:59 12/31/9999 23:59:59
ype leva leasurement	Name m_Water_consumption_sumreal e_Water_consumption	Functi Sum real	U 1 kWh	Description m_Water_consumption_sumreal (MEW4) e_Water_consumption (Messung)	valid from 06/26/2018 11:28:33 06/26/2018 11:28:50	valid till 12/31/9999 23:59:59 12/31/9999 23:59:59
ype leva leasurement	Name m_Water_consumption_sumreal e_Water_consumption	Functi Sum real	U 1 ki/Vih	Description m_Water_consumption_sumreal (MEW4) e_Water_consumption (Messung)	valid from 06/26/2018 11:28:33 06/26/2018 11:28:50	valid till 12/31/9999 23:59:59 12/31/9999 23:59:59
lype feva feasurement	Name m_Water_consumption_sumeal e_Water_consumption	Functi Sum real	U 1 K//h	Description m_Water_consumption_sumreal (MEW4) e_Water_consumption (Messung)	valid from 06/26/2018 11:28:33 06/26/2018 11:28:50	valid till 12/31/9999 23:59:59 12/31/9999 23:59:59

5. Click "Excel" to open an Excel spreadsheet in order to insert the data that is displayed for further use. Click "Close" to exit the dialog.

The history of objects is retained for their entire life time in the system.

2.2.8.4 Historization of reports.

Overview

The following report attributes are included in the log:

- Objects in the calculation tree and their order. Example: Which data points or parameters were connected at a specific time to a module or Meva node and their order.
- MEVA: function and unit
- Measurement: Unit
- Parameter: Substitute value
- Module: Module type

Procedure

- 1. Select the report for which you want to view the historization.
- 2. Select the "History management" command from the shortcut menu.
- 3. You first have to select a date to call the corresponding configuration.

4. Click "Calculate" to display the tree that is currently available for the selected time.

All changes with regard to "Insert", "Update" and "Delete" operations of modules, connected data points and Mevas are included in the log.

Report:	Plant overview			
listory period:	6/26/2018 2:00:56 PM			
	Start			
⊡- Plant over	view			
Plant ov	verview_Balance osts_Electric			
⊡-m_C	_Electric_consumption osts_Water			
е	_Water_consumption			
Diante	antique Drotonal			
Plant ov	verview_Protocol verview Hour distribution			
- Plant ov Plant ov	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution			
- Plant ov Plant ov	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution			
Plant ov Plant ov	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution			
Plant or Plant of Type	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution Name	Function	Unit	Description
Plant of Plant of Type Report	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution Name Plant overview	Function	Unit	Description
Type Report Module	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution Name Plant overview Plant overview_Balance	Function	Unit	Description
Type Report Module Meva	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution Name Plant overview Plant overview_Balance m_Costs_Electric	Function Sum real	Unit 1	Description
Type Report Module Meva Measurement	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution Name Plant overview Plant overview_Balance m_Costs_Electric e_Electric_consumption	Function Sum real	Unit 1 KWh	Description
Type Report Module Meva Measurement Meva	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution Name Plant overview Plant overview_Balance m_Costs_Electric e_Electric_consumption m_Costs_Water	Sum real	Unit 1 KWh	Description
Type Report Module Meva Measurement Meva Measurement	verview_Protocol verview_Hour_distribution Name Plant overview Plant overview_Balance m_Costs_Electric e_Electric_consumption m_Costs_Water e_Water_consumption	Sum real	Unit 1 KWh 1 KWh	Description
Plant ov Plant ov Plant ov Plant ov Measurement Meva Measurement Measurement Module	rerview_Protocol rerview_Hour_distribution Plant overview Plant overview_Balance m_Costs_Electric e_Electric_consumption m_Costs_Water e_Water_consumption Plant overview_Protocol	Function Sum real Sum real	Unit 1 KWh 1 KWh	Description e_Water_consumption (Messung)
Type Report Module Meva Measurement Measurement Module Module	Proview_Protocol Verview_Hour_distribution Name Plant overview Plant overview_Balance m_Costs_Electric e_Electric_consumption m_Costs_Water e_Water_consumption Plant overview_Protocol Plant overview_Hour_distribut	Function Sum real Sum real	Unit 1 KWh 1 KWh	Description e_Water_consumption (Messung)

5. At the start of reporting, you can select the model (date) that is to be used to calculate the report. The measured values that are valid at this point in time (version) should be used accordingly for calculations.

Module	Parameter				
Common	Query Type:	Month			-
Balance compa	From		То		
B Hour_distribution	5/1/2018 12:0	0:00 AM	6/1/2018 12	• 00:00 AM	
n Protocol	Advanced Para	ameter			¥
	Version		Model		
	Current	6/26/2018 1:46:48 PM	Current	6/26/2018 1:46:48 PM	
	Batches:			-	
				_	
				*	
	Country: Ger	many			
					-
					L
					_
					_
					_
					_

6. To disable the display of the model date in the header data of the report, assign the value 0 to the name "Show Model" in "Administration > Energy Manager Options > Appl.".

The model date is displayed in the header data of the report by default: Show Model = 1.

	A	В
1	Date	03.05.2009 12:07
2	From	01.04.2009
3	То	01.05.2009
4	User	
5	Query Type	Ad-Hoc
6	Name	Seabird_Report - f
7	Description	
8	Кеер	no
9	State	Finished
10	Version Date	26.04.2009 12:07
11	Model Date	26.04.2009 12:07

See also

Options (Page 53)

2.2.9 Defining the properties of an object

When exporting cost centers, in addition to the values, you can also export the properties of the data point as an XML or CSV file. The corresponding cost centers, service type and Business Unit are defined directly as properties of the derived data point and assigned. These properties are exported along with the values of the derived data point.

Creating a property

- 1. Open the property dialog of the derived data point with a right click on the derived data point.
 - Properties of Measurement a_CC01_costs_Gas

 Name:

 a_CC01_costs_Gas

 Description:

 Authority Level:

 0

 Inherit Authority Level to children.

 Properties

 Name

 Authority Level:

 0

 Inherit Authority Level to children.

 Pioperties

 Name

 Authority Level:

 0

 Name

 Authority Level:

 OK

 Cancel
- 2. Select the properties with the "New" button.

3. If the required property is not available, create it using the second "New" button.

Value Type: Date/Time	Edit
	Delete
Value	
13.03.2018 00:00:00	

- 4. Create the following properties:
 - Business Unit
 - One property each for the source cost center and the target cost center

Property 1	Type - Business Unit	-		×
Name:	Business Unit			
Value Type:	Text			ł
	01/		Cancal	_

Value of a property

Each property has a value. This value depends on the selected data type. The cost center properties require the "Text" data type. A text can be entered directly for this data type. This way you can apply the name of the cost centers, Business Unit and service type.

Name: a_CC01_ Description:	costs_Gas		^
Authority Level:	0 In	herit Authority Lev	vel to children.
Properties			
Name	∆ Value		New
Business unit	DF FA	_	
Cost element	PH1		Edit
Destination cost center	CC01		Delete
Source cost center	CC Source		

Property type

A property object is created in the tree topology of the Energy Manager PRO for each property. This property object can be used in a report to show the cost center information in an Excel report in addition to the XML export.



2.3 Manual acquisition of data

2.3.1 Matrix

Overview

With the matrix you can enter values manually in Energy Manager.

Data input via matrix

1. Double-click the matrix object to enter the data in the matrix.

The configuration dialog of the matrix object opens.

2. Click "Input Values" to create the matrix based on the time stamps and connected datapoints.

A separate column is gener	ated for each datapoint co	onnected to the matrix node.
----------------------------	----------------------------	------------------------------

2	Input Val	ues - Supply _ 🗖
FROM 01.08.2010 TO 0	1.09.2010	<< Previous Page Next Page >>
Date	d_OPC_xxxDatapointName15s_1xxxx [.]	d_OPC_xxxDatapointName15s_2xxxx [kW]
01.08.2010 00:15:00	275	250
01.08.2010 00:30:00	280	255
01.08.2010 00:45:00	260	253
01.08.2010 01:00:00	100	254
01.08.2010 01:15:00	244	251
01.08.2010 01:30:00	240	251
01.08.2010 01:45:00	243	252
01.08.2010 02:00:00	251	248
01.08.2010 02:15:00	250	246
01.08.2010 02:30:00	1 000	245
01.08.2010 02:45:00	242	2 000
01.08.2010 03:00:00	241	246
01.08.2010 03:15:00	240	243
01.08.2010 03:30:00	243	800
01.08.2010 03:45:00	239	241
01.08.2010 04:00:00	244	239
01.08.2010 04:15:00	254	246
04 00 2040 04-20-00	252	207
01.08.2010 00:15:00 / d_	OPC_xxxDatapointName15s_1xxxx [.]	🗌 Mark Changes 📃 Copy With Header
		OK Apply Cancel

3. Enter the values in the fields provided for this purpose.

Provided the "Plausibility" option has been set in the matrix configuration dialog, the bottom area of the input dialog for the active field displays the valid scope along with the datapoint name. Value entries outside the valid range are marked in red color (see above). A corresponding message notifies you of this situation: "Value 8 must be >= 20!"

4. Click "Apply" to save your changes to the database.

The result is displayed below the "Apply" button. Example: "5 values inserted, 0 values updated, 0 values removed."

- 5. Use the "Page up" and "Page down" keys to modify the monitoring period. The corresponding values are loaded from the database.
- 6. Assign the value 1 to the name "TimestampsAlignLeft" in "Energy Manager Options > Appl." in order to switch the representation in the matrix to the valid range "from-to".

FROM 01.08.2010 TO 01.09.2010		
Date	d_OPC_xxxDatapointName15s_1xxxx [.]	
01.08.2010 00:15:00	275	
01.08.2010 00:30:00	280	
01.08.2010 00:45:00	260	
01.08.2010 01:00:00	100	
01.08.2010 01:15:00	244	

The time stamp representation is setup by default: TimestampsAlignLeft = 0.

FROM 01.08.2010 TO 01.09.2010		
Date	d_OPC_xxxDatapointName15s_1xxxx [.]	
01.08.2010 00:00:00 - 01.08.2010 00:	15:00 275	
01.08.2010 00:15:00 - 01.08.2010 00:	30:00 280	
01.08.2010 00:30:00 - 01.08.2010 00:	45:00 260	
01.08.2010 00:45:00 - 01.08.2010 01:	00:00 100	
01.08.2010 01:00:00 - 01.08.2010 01:	15:00 244	

These settings are valid for Energy Manager and Energy Manager PRO Web.

See also

Manual acquisition with the matrix (Page 180)

2.3.2 Energy Manager PRO Mobile

2.3.2.1 Basics of Energy Manager PRO Mobile

Definition

Energy Manager supports in situ manual acquisition of operational or counter values by means of a mobile device such as a PDA.

Energy Manager PRO Mobile is a software interface that enables the acquisition of values on a mobile device and their automatic import to Energy Manager.

Usage

Use Energy Manager PRO Mobile in the following cases:

- If automatic measured value acquisition is not possible, e.g. using a counter.
- If a link or a sensor fails during automatic measured value acquisition.

Data acquisition on mobile devices

Set up each mobile device as a separate hardware object in Energy Manager. Copy the data points to be acquired by means of the hardware object to the tree below the hardware object. Once the mobile device is interconnected with a Energy Manager PRO Client, the data point values are synchronized automatically with the Energy Manager PRO Database.



You have the following options of acquiring values on the mobile device:

• Separate identification of the counters

Identify a counter from which you only take a manual reading in exceptional situations or on rare occasions on the mobile device. You can use a mobile device that features a scanner to take an unambiguous reading of the counter's barcode ID. You can access the values stored in the data point after you have identified the counter.

• Defining routes

If you read off multiple counters at regular intervals, define a route in Energy Manager. A route lets you define the order in which the devices are read locally. The mobile device guides you through the route and provides you with additional information such as the last value, as well as high and low limits.

See also

Synchronizing data (Page 434)

2.3.2.2 Navigation structure of Energy Manager PRO Mobile

The following diagram highlights the navigation structure of the "Energy Manager PRO Mobile" application on the mobile device:



Synchronizing data (Page 434)

2.3 Manual acquisition of data

2.3.2.3 Entering measured values

Requirement

- You are logged on to the "Energy Manager PRO Mobile" application on the mobile device.
- The "Main" picture is displayed on the mobile device.
- The synchronization process is concluded.

Procedure

- 1. Identify the meter.
- 2. Enter the measured value reading on the mobile device.
- 3. Enter the time stamp, if necessary.

The following figure shows how to enter measured values on the mobile device, based on the "Main" picture:



① Only available if one or several routes were defined in Energy Manager. Acquiring measured values based on the selected route:

- 1. Select the route and range and launch routing with "Start".
- 2. Enter the measured value reading and confirm your entry with "Next".
- ② Separate acquisition of measured values:
 - 1. Identify the meter using the "List" or the "Scanner" of the mobile device.
 - The meter must be equipped with a barcode for identification by the scanner.
 - 2. Enter the measured value reading and confirm your entry with "OK".

Result

The measured value readings are stored on the mobile device.

If you now connect the mobile device with the Energy Manager PRO Client, the measured values are transferred automatically to the Energy Manager PRO Database and stored in the data points.

See also

Generating barcode (Page 927)

2.3 Manual acquisition of data

2.3.2.4 Synchronizing data

Overview

The following occurs when you synchronize data on the mobile device:

- The routes and data points that you have configured in Energy Manager are mapped to the mobile device.
- The values you have entered on the mobile device are saved to the corresponding data points in Energy Manager.

You can synchronize data on the mobile device as follows:

Manually

Synchronize the data manually when you use Energy Manager PRO Mobile for the first time.

Automatically

When you connect the mobile device after the first synchronization to the Energy Manager PRO Client, the measurement values are synchronized automatically.

Requirements

• Energy Manager PRO Mobile is installed and configured in Energy Manager and on the mobile device.

You will find more detailed information on this topic in the manual "SIMATIC Energy Manager - Installation", keyword "Installing Energy Manager PRO Mobile".

- You are logged on to the mobile device with the Energy Manager access data.
- The mobile device displays the "Main" screen.

Synchronizing data manually

1. Select the "Synchronization" command.

The data is synchronized. The synchronization status is indicated in the "Synchronization" screen.

Result

The data on the mobile device and in Energy Manager are synchronized.

Note

Ignoring the values

The current value will be ignored if the Energy Manager database already contains a data point value with the same time stamp.

See also

Navigation structure of Energy Manager PRO Mobile (Page 431) Configuring a mobile device in Energy Manager (Page 925)

2.3.3 Parameter

Overview

With a Parameter you can acquire a fixed value that is either generally valid, or is limited by the entry of a time range in its validity duration. You can, for example, define electricity or gas prices for specific periods or specify conversion factors such as a CO₂ conversion factor.

The entry of a parameter value in the Energy Manager PRO Client corresponds to that in the Energy Manager PRO Web.

Procedure

- 1. Click the Parameter at which you wish to enter a value. The input dialog is opened.
- 2. Enter a value and, if necessary, a period of validity.

🕂 🣴 Parameter	12	Paran	neter - t_prid	ce_gas	- • ×
型 t_price_electr 也 t_price_gas	Name:	t_price_gas			
🖑 t_price_water 🖑 t_costs_electr	Description:				0
t_costs_electr	Replacement Value:		10	Unit: EUR/kWh	
t_costs_electr	Valid from ム Valid	i until 🛛 Value	Changed at	Changed by	New
t_costs_electr					Edit
t_costs_RH_e				_	Delete
t_costs_TH_e	•				
t_costs_DL_c	0			ОК	Cancel

3. Confirm with OK.

See also

Parameters (Page 194) Parameter (Page 532)

2.4 Analysis

2.4.1 Basic information on analysis

Definition

"Analysis" denotes the time-independent processing and visualization of measured values in reports, charts and dashboards. You can use Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Word to visualize the report results.

You can process the data exported from Energy Manager using the entire functionality of Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Word, for example, statistical functions such as correlation or regression analysis from Microsoft Excel. You can also process the result data using graphics or diagrams.

Application

"Analysis" supports you in the following activities:

- Creation of company-specific report results for all departments and information demands.
- IT-related, system-wide analysis of different business units for holistic assessments of your company.
- The workflow system of Energy Manager reduces your staff's workload:
 - Automatic and cyclical calculation of performance indicators and accounting results (task management).
 - Automatic generation of standard analyses for predefined periods, e.g. day, month, shift, year.
 - Automatic sending of evaluations to printers in the company-wide printer network.
 - Automatic dispatch of analyses and accounting bases by means of email attachment to internal and external recipients of the business unit.

When generating reports, you can always access previous configurations (historicization), or different measured value versions (versioning).

2.4.2 Report results

- 2.4.2.1 Generating a report result manually
- Overview

You can generate a report result at any time.

Requirement

- The report is configured.
- The module and request type are configured for the report.
- The template is configured for the report.
- The values for the report have been set.

Generating a report result

- 1. Click "Start" in the shortcut menu of the selected report.
 - The "Start report" dialog opens.
 - The "General" tab is activated in the "Module" area.

Start Report			_ 🗆 ×
Module	Parameter		
📅 Common	Query Type: Month		•
🚾 Balance_comparing	From	То	
🛅 Hour_distribution	5/1/2018 12:00:00 AM	6/1/2018 12:00:00 AM	
🚾 Protocol			
	Advanced Parameter		*
Cancel		Back Next	Start

- 2. Select the query type for the report result.
- 3. Specify the time range for the report result.
- 4. Click "Advanced parameters" to specify additional parameters for generation of the report result.

5. You can edit module start parameters by selecting and editing the selected module in the "Module" area.

You may also click "Next" to select the module.

6. Click "Start".

Note

If you start a report result via a Remote Desktop connection and the process is not executed, set the "Energy Manager PRO Report Server" service to the "Local System" user and restart the service.

Specifying additional parameters for the report result (optional)

1. Click "Advanced parameters".

The advanced parameters are displayed.

lodule 1 oomaan	Parameter	
© Common	Query Type: Month	×
Balance compa	From	То
B Hour_distribution	5/1/2018 12:00:00 AM	6/1/2018 12:00:00 AM
B Protocol		
	Advanced Parameter	¥
	Version	Model
	Current 6/26/2018 1:46:48	PM - Current 6/26/2018 1:46:48 PM -
	Batches:	
	Datoles.	
	Country: Germany	
Oursel 1		
0210001		Back Next Start

2. Disable "Current" and select a date to define the measured value version for evaluation. All measured values generated prior to this data are evaluated.

The current date is activated by default.

3. Deactivate "Current" and enter a model date to define a calculation model for evaluation of the report result.

The report result is evaluated by default based on the current calculation model.

- 4. To select a batch, click "..." and select the batch ID from the batch list.
- 5. Under "Country", select the country whose time zone you want to use for the calculation.

2.4 Analysis

Editing module start parameters (optional)

- 1. Select the module from the "Module" area.
- 2. Specify the query type and time range if you have activated the "Query interval at start" option in the module configuration.
- 3. You can always edit the interval, as well as the high and low limit of configured module start parameters.

The start parameters are derived from the module configuration.

lodule	Parameter	
© Common	Query Type: Month	
🛚 Balance_comparing	From	То
Hour distribu	5/1/2018 12:00:00 AM	6/1/2018 12:00:00 AM -
n Protocol	Lower Bound: 50	
	Upper Bound: 100	
	Interval: 10	
	Advanced Parameter	

4. Edit the corresponding parameters if you have configured modules that need an interval and unit as start parameters.

The start parameters are derived from the module configuration.

iouuic	Parameter		
Common	Query Type: Month		
Balance_comparing	From	То	
B Hour_distribution	5/1/2018 12:00:00 AM	6/1/2018 12:00:00 AM 🚽	
<u>Proto</u>	Interval: 1 d		
	Advanced Parameter		*

Result

The report result is generated and opened automatically.

alculating report information. 🚽		
enerating report.)	
pening report.		
Progress		

Click "Close" to prevent the report result from being opened automatically.

Alternative procedure

You can also start the report result from the shortcut menu of the respective query type.

See also

Assign time zone for acquisition or calculation (Page 334) Reports (Page 511)

2.4.2.2 Opening report results

Overview

Report results are stored in the folder for the configured query type in the structure tree of the client.



You can open the report results as follows:

- In Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Word
- As PDF

Requirement

- The report results are being generated.
- Microsoft Excel or Microsoft Word is installed.
- PDF-Reader is installed.

Procedure

- 1. To open the report result, click "Open" in the shortcut menu of the selected report result.
- 2. Open the report in PDF format by clicking "Open as PDF" in the shortcut menu of the report result.

Result

The report result is displayed.

	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н
12								
13	From	01.03.2012						
14	То	01.04.2012						
15								
16	Entry point for Balance Mo	dule						
17	Consumption Gas	GJ	4.936,00					
18	Consumption Electricity	GJ	6.856,00					
19	Costs Gas	EUR	20.731,20					
20	Costs Electricity	EUR	21.253,60					
21	Total costs	EUR	41.984,80					
22	Unit consumption	GJ/mcig	38,71269					
23		_						
24	Protocol							
25	e Ħ		Costs Gas	Costs Electricity	Total production	Unit consumption	Total consumption	
26	01.03.2012	02.03.2012	504,00	564,2	12000	39,7351	302,00	
27	02.03.2012	03.03.2012	588,00	626,2	14000	40,9357	342,00	
28	03.03.2012	04.03.2012	672,00	688,2	15000	39,267	382,00	
29	04.03.2012	05.03.2012	630,00	657,2	14000	38,674	362,00	
30	05.03.2012	06.03.2012	609,00	641,7	12500	35,5114	352,00	
31	06.03.2012	07.03.2012	596,40	632,4	13000	37,5723	346,00	
32	07.03.2012	08.03.2012	625,80	654,1	14500	40,2778	360,00	
33	08.03.2012	09.03.2012	693,00	703,7	15000	38,2653	392,00	
34	09.03.2012	10.03.2012	756,00	750,2	16000	37,9147	422,00	
35	10.03.2012	11.03.2012	924,00	874,2	19500	38,8446	502,00	
36	11.03.2012	12.03.2012	840,00	812,2	18000	38,961	462,00	

Color code of the measured values in the report

The measured values are color-coded as follows for the following status:

Status	Color code
Result OK	Black
No data available for measuring variable	Magenta
Result of manual correction	Orange
Result from substitute value	Light blue
Result not OK	Red
Missing measured values	Light green

2.4.3 Charts

2.4.3.1 Fundamentals

Overview

You use the Chart to display historical as well as current values. Use the chart for the visualization of measurement series.

The Diagram or Chart functionality is available as a separate tab at the bottom in the display area at the following objects:

- Data point
- Matrix
- Measuring variable (MEVA)
- Chart object

The following visualization types are available for the visualization of values:

- Standard chart with line graphs
- Histogram
- Bell-shaped curve
- Box Plot
- Correlation and regression

Chart with Chart tab

In this case the Chart option is available immediately by means of the Chart tab after a click on the respective object. Configurations set in the chart, such as the number of displayed data points and the query type, are stored automatically for the active user. The configuration is saved with the object in the database. The selected time range is not stored. On a renewed display of the chart the current time range is always displayed.

Own chart object

In addition, an own chart object is available with which you can visualize up to ten data points simultaneously. The configuration via the chart object is not referenced to a user. Thus it is possible to make a preconfigured chart available to several users. Open an already predefined chart object by double clicking on it.

⊡ Charts ⊡ ≌c Plant_overview ■ • • e_CC_3232_Hall1 ■ • • e_CC_5554_Hall2 ■ • • e_CC_3232_Hall2

You can also export the displayed chart in the following form:

- Chart values as a file in "*.csv" format
- Chart as a graphic in "*.bmp", "*.jpg" or "*.png" format

Structure of the chart



The following figure shows the display of the chart in Energy Manager PRO Client:

- ① Object that is visualized in the chart.
- Display of the time range
 - Use the arrow keys to scroll back or forth by one period.
- ③ Configuration area
- Visualization of the data points as line graph
 Current values are read gradually and displayed. The following update cycles apply to the displayed values:
 - 10 seconds in the Energy Manager PRO Client
- (5) Inserting an additional data point.
- 6 Legend with the data points represented in the chart. If you click a data point, the configuration dialog (9) opens.
- ⑦ "Alarms and comments" tab with the alarms and comments that are contained in the selected time range.
- (8) "Chart" tab with the visualization of data points in the display area.
- 9 Configuration dialog for the visualization of a data point in 4.

Structure of configuration area

The following figure shows the display of the configuration area in the Energy Manager PRO Client:



- ① Selection of time range, query type, and compression level
- ② Selection of the visualization type
- 3 Configuration of the x and y axes
- ④ Exporting the content that is displayed in the chart
- 5 Display of the track ball and warning and alarm limits
- 6 Reset chart settings
- ⑦ Full-screen display of the chart in a separate window

Display of details in the chart

The figure below shows which details are displayed for the measured values of a measurement series in the chart:



- Click the measured value to open the "Details" dialog.
- Measured value with display of time stamp and value
 Move the mouse pointer across the line graph to display a measured value.

Note

The view is compressed when the chart includes more than 6,000 measured values in the displayed time range. Not all details are displayed in the compressed view.

In this case, either select a smaller time range or zoom in on the display area in the chart.

Missing values

The line of the corresponding data point is interrupted when the values are missing in the measured value series of a data point.



2.4.3.2 Standard Chart

Displaying the Standard Chart

Requirement

Datapoint, matrix or report has been created.

Procedure

- 1. Select the required Energy Manager object whose values you want to analyze in the Chart.
- 2. Click on the "Diagrams" tab in the display area.

The Chart is displayed as the Standard Chart.

- 3. The settings of the selected object are generally applied as query type and compression level. You can change the query type and the compression level in the configuration area under "Period".
- 4. Define the axis assignment and the display for each data point under "Axis" in the configuration area. The options for the axis assignment apply solely to the Standard Chart.

Result

The values of the object are displayed in the Standard Chart in the form of a line graph.



See also

Configuring query types (Page 372)

Show details

Requirement

Measured values are displayed in the Chart.

Procedure

- 1. To enter a comment for a measured value:
 - Click on the measured value.

The "Details" dialog opens.

- Go to the "Comments" tab and click "Add".
- Enter the comment text.
- 2. To enlarge the display area:
 - Holding down the mouse button, enlarge the required area in the display area.



The selected area is enlarged.

- To return to the original view, click "Original size".

Comparing values of different time ranges

Introduction

You can compare the values of one or more datapoints that are displayed in the Chart with the values from a different time range. The other time range is displayed as a secondary X axis on the upper border of the Chart. Query type and compression were taken from the primary X axis.

The time range of the secondary X axis is either static or dynamic:

- Static: Fixed starting time in the past or future. Use the calendar to select the time range.
- Dynamic: Offset in periods relative to the time range of the primary X axis. A negative value means an offset in the direction of the past.

Requirement

Datapoint is displayed in the Chart.

Procedure

- 1. In the configuration area, under "Axes", select either "Static" or "Dynamic":
- 2. If you have selected "Static", select the desired starting time in the calendar.
- 3. If you have selected "Dynamic", enter the desired value for the period offset under "Offset".
- 4. In the legend, click the datapoint, whose values should additionally be displayed in the secondary X axis.

The configuration dialog is opened.

- 5. If you only want to display the comparison values, select "Secondary axis".
- 6. If you want to display the initial and comparison values, select "Both".

Result



The datapoint's values are displayed in addition to the time range of the secondary axis.

Exporting the Chart

Introduction

You can export the values from a Chart that is displayed on the screen:

- as a file: Values are exported in the "*.csv" format as a comma-separated file, which you can edit for example in MS Excel.
- as an image: The graphics formats "*.bmp", "*.jpg" and "*.png" are supported.

If you enlarge a section of the Chart, only the measured values that are contained in that section are exported.

Requirements

- The Chart is displayed.
- The configuration area is displayed.

Exporting the Chart's values to a file

To export a Chart's measured values to a file, follow these steps:

1. In the configuration area, under "Extras", click "Export values as CSV...".

The "Save as" Windows dialog is displayed.

2. Enter a name for the file.

Result

The Chart's measured values are saved in a file in "*csv" format. You can open the file, for example in MS Excel. Each datapoint contained in the Chart is displayed as a separate column. The first column contains the timestamp.

Note

The values are exported in UTC time format including a local time stamp.

📗 e_Gas_consumption.txt - Notepad	_ 🗆 🗙
File Edit Format View Help	
LOCAL_DATUM; MSJO_DATUM; e_Gas_consumption 1/2/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM;365 1/3/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/2/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/4/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/3/2018 11:00:00 PM;765 1/6/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/5/2018 11:00:00 PM;565 1/8/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/6/2018 11:00:00 PM;565 1/8/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/6/2018 11:00:00 PM;255 1/10/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/10/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/10/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/10/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/10/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/10/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/11/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/10/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/12/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/12/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/12/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/12/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/12/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/12/2018 11:00:00 PM;255 1/15/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/12/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/15/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/14/2018 11:00:00 PM;255 1/15/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/16/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/17/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/16/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/17/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/16/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/19/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/12/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/19/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/20/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/19/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/20/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/19/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/21/2018 11:00:00 PM;355 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/24/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/24/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/24/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/27/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/27/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/28/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/29/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;855 1/29/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/21/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/21/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/28/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/21/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/29/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/21/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/21/2018 11:00:00 PM;455 1/21/2018 12:00:00 AM;1/21/2018 11:00:00 PM;655 1/21/	
र	

Exporting a Chart as an image

To export a Chart as an image, follow these steps:

- In the configuration area, under "Extras", click "Export chart as image...". The "Save as" Windows dialog is displayed.
- 2. Enter a name for the image, and select the desired graphics format.

Result

The displayed Chart is saved as a graphic.

Period: 1/1/2018 12:00 AM - 2/1/2018 12:00 AM (Period: 4/1/2018 12:00 AM - 5/2/2018 12:00 AM)



2.4.3.3 Histogram

Overview

The histogram offers you the possibility of visualizing the occurrence of values. In the process all the values of the selected time range is divided into 20 intervals and the number of values in each interval is displayed.

Procedure

- 1. Select the required Energy Manager object whose values you want to evaluate in the Chart.
- 2. Click the "Chart" tab at the bottom in the display area. The Standard Chart is always displayed initially.

Click the "Charts" tab on the right in the configuration area. Click "Histogram" to display the values as a histogram.

3. The settings of the selected object are generally applied as query type and compression level. You can change the query type and the compression level in the configuration area under "Period".

Result

The values of the selected object are distributed to 20 intervals. An interval corresponds to a bar. In the bar itself the number of values occurring in this interval is displayed. The interval limits are applied on the X axis. The first interval in the figure below includes, for example, the values from 119760 to 123772, in which one value violates the plausibility limits. The last interval contains all the values that exceed 195,988.

In as far as values exist that violate the plausibility limits, these are displayed as red stacked bars.



2.4.3.4 Bell-shaped curve

Overview

The bell-shaped curve offers you the possibility of displaying values in a normal distribution. So, for instance, you can display the distribution of measuring errors.

The mean value and the standard deviation are specified for the values of the selected time range.

Procedure

- 1. Select the required Energy Manager object whose values you want to evaluate in the Chart.
- 2. Click the "Chart" tab at the bottom in the display area. The Standard Chart is always displayed initially.

Click the "Charts" tab on the right in the configuration area. Click "Bell-shaped curve" to display the values as a normal distribution.

3. The settings of the selected object are generally applied as query type and compression level. You can change the query type and the compression level in the configuration area under "Period".

Result

The deviation from the mean value is displayed graphically as a result.

The mean value as well as the standard deviation σ are displayed at the top on the bellshaped curve. The interval of the standard deviation $\pm \sigma$ around the mean value acquires 68.27% of all measured values.



2.4.3.5 Boxplot

Overview

The boxplot offers you the option to rapidly display the area in which values lie and how these values are distributed. In addition to the graphical display the maximum, the minimum, the median and the mean value are displayed for the values of the selected time range.

Procedure

- 1. Select the required Energy Manager object whose values you want to evaluate in the Chart.
- 2. Click the "Chart" tab at the bottom in the display area. The Standard Chart is always displayed initially.

Click the "Charts" tab on the right in the configuration area. Click the "Boxplot".

3. The settings of the selected object are generally applied as query type and compression level. You can change the query type and the compression level in the configuration area under "Period".

Result

The values are displayed as a boxplot.



2.4.3.6 Correlation and regression

Overview

The correlation chart or the scatter chart shows a correlation between two datapoints graphically on the basis of value pairs A correlation occurring often between two variables is the linear regression.

The regression analysis offers you the possibility of displaying the relation between a dependent and an independent variable. This means that at least two datapoints are required for this analysis. The regression analysis can support you, for example, in the prognosis of values.

Procedure

- 1. The correlation chart and the regression analysis require at least two datapoints. You can create an own chart object under which you can then copy the datapoints. However a matrix can also be used. Then click the object under which the data points are located.
- 2. Click the "Chart" tab at the bottom in the display area. The Standard Chart is always displayed initially.

Click the "Charts" tab on the right in the configuration area. Click "Correlation and regression".

- 3. The settings of the selected object are generally applied as query type and compression level. You can change the query type and the compression level in the configuration area under "Period".
- 4. By default the first two datapoints are used and are displayed underlined in the legend. If several datapoints are located under the Chart object, a desired datapoint can be selected or deselected with a simple click.

Result

The correlation chart shows the relation between the values graphically on the basis of a points cloud from value pairs. You can display a value pair when you move the cursor over it.

The regression analysis shows the linear correlation between the dependent variable x and the independent variable y using a red line. The linear relation is displayed as a formula at the top in the graphic, just like the coefficient of determination R² that shows whether and to what an extent a linear relationship exists. R² lies at 0, if a linear relation does not exist. R² lies at 1, if a linear relation does not exist.



2.4.4 Dashboards

Overview

Once you have created the Dashboard layout and configured the dashboard objects used, you can display the Dashboard in full-screen mode. In full-screen mode, the dashboard is updated with corresponding data at cyclic intervals.

	Note
	Specifying the Dashboard update cycle
	Specify the update cycle when configuring the Dashboard background.
	The update cycle is set to 5 seconds by default.
Requirement	
	You have created the Dashboard layout.
	You have configured the dashboard objects used.
Procedure	
	1. Select the desired Dashboard in the project tree of the Client and click "Open" in the shortcut menu.
Result	
	The Dashboard is displayed in full-screen mode.
<u>1</u>	CU Group Overview - Letztes Update: 12.03.2014 14:54:57 – 🗖 🗙



Alternative procedure

You can also display the Dashboard in full-screen mode by means of double-click.

See also

Creating the dashboard layout (Page 310) Configuring dashboard objects (Page 313) Example of configuring a dashboard (Page 317)

2.4.5 Widget Dashboards in the client

Overview

Widget Dashboards are conceived for the display in the web or on mobile devices. For this reason, only configure Widget Dashboards in Energy Manager Web. Further details on the configuration of Widget Dashboards can be found in the section Configuring a Widget Dashboard. Deleting and creating Widget Dashboards is also possible in the Energy Manager PRO Client.

Procedure

1. Click the "Insert Widget Dashboard" icon in the menu bar under "Analysis > Reporting ".

File	A	cquis	sition	Processing	Analysis
	₽c	ш ^е	-	1	41
Re	port	ing		Energy Efficiency	File

2. Enter a name and an optional description for the new Widget Dashboard.

Overview_hall_A_hourly	
Hourly overview of all types of energy production hall A.	of ^
OK Cano	el
	Overview_hall_A_hourly Hourly overview of all types of energy production hall A.

- 3. Save your entries. The Widget Dashboard is created.
 - EnMPRO_Web
 Web_Dashboards
 Web_Overview_hall_A_hourly
- 4. In order to delete a Widget Dashboard right-click the Widget Dashboard in the project tree and select "Delete".

See also

Creating Widgets (Page 554) Creating Quicklinks in the Web (Page 494)

2.5 Energy efficiency measures

2.5.1 Basics on energy efficiency

The Energy Manager "Energy Efficiency" module provides company-wide transparency in the management of energy efficiency measures. The Energy Manager "Energy Efficiency" module was developed in accordance with DIN EN ISO 50001.

The Energy Manager "Energy Efficiency" module provides the following options for management of the energy efficiency measures:

- You can enter all energy efficiency measures for all locations of your company.
- You can enter the saving potential and cost of the energy efficiency measure and calculate its cost efficiency.
- You can assign a status that indicates the degree to which the energy efficiency measure has been implemented.

Procedure for managing energy efficiency measures

- 1. Create an energy efficiency measure.
- 2. Enter the plant and location for which you defined the energy efficiency measure.
- 3. Enter the financial saving potential for the plant.
- 4. Enter the running costs for the plant and calculate the cost effectiveness of your energy efficiency measure.
- 5. Define a user responsible for the energy efficiency measure.
- 6. Create one or several domains that are permitted to view and edit an energy efficiency measure.
- 7. Select a status for the energy efficiency measure.

See also

Creating energy efficiency measures (Page 465)

Specifying the financial savings potential (Page 467)

Calculating cost effectiveness (Page 469)

Specifying responsibilities (Page 471)

Specifying domains (Page 472)

Displaying information (Page 474)

2.5.2 Creating energy efficiency measures

Procedure

 Click the "Insert Energy Efficiency Measures View" button in the menu bar under "Analysis > Energy Efficiency".

The "Energy Efficiency Measures View" dialog opens.

2. Click "New".

The "Energy Efficiency Measure" dialog opens.

- 3. Select a name for the energy efficiency measure under "Project Name" on the "General" tab.
- 4. If required, also enter a description of the actual state and target state of the consumption situation.
- 5. Select the priority of the energy efficiency measure under "Category", for example, "A-Project" for the top priority.
- 6. Enter a region, a plant and a business unit for efficient filtering of the energy efficiency measure.

	Energy Efficiency Measure - Reduce water consumption	
Overview C	ommon 🕴 Responsibility Saving Capabilities Cost Effectiveness 📶 Domains Attachments	
ProjectName	8: Reduce water consumption	
Description o	f Current Situation:	
The water co Amount and	onsumption of the production is very high. I time of rinsing water are also too high.	
	fOntimal Cituation:	
Description o	i opunar ordauon.	
Description o Optimizatior	n of the control system to reduce the amount and time of rinsing water.	
Description o Optimizatior Equipment	n of the control system to reduce the amount and time of rinsing water. Production plant	
Description o Optimization Equipment [Category: [n of the control system to reduce the amount and time of rinsing water. Production plant C-Project	
Description o Optimization Equipment [Category: [Region:	Production plant C-Project Linz	
Description o Optimization Equipment [Category: [Region: Business Un	Production plant C-Project Linz It JA	
Description o Optimization Equipment [Category: [Region: Business Un Currency for t	Production plant C-Project Linz It [A this project is: EUR [6]	

7. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Energy Manager PRO Client

2.5 Energy efficiency measures

Result

You created the energy efficiency measure.

			energ	,					-
easures									
Filter C	reate Node	Currency: EUR						Refresh	
lame	Region	Bus, Unit	PL Sav. (@Y)	Act. Sav. (GY)	PI. CO2 Red. [Act. CO2 Red	Pay Back (Y)	Status	New
educe water consump	Linz	IA	15000,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	1,43	Initial	
ptimization of the com	Munich	BT	12000,00	0,00	97,20	0,00	0,87	Evaluate	Eun
xchange boiler	Linz	IA	10600,00	11130,00	86,80	91,14	4,70	Realized	Delete
ptimization of lighting	Munich	BT	10400,00	0,00	84,24	0,00	3,50	Initial	-
								•	
nmary								•	
mmary Project Count:	4 7	Fotal CO2 Red. PI:	268,24 Tons/Year	Total CO2 Red. /	Af.: 91,14 Tor	Is/Year ROI Aver	age: 6,97	Þ	
mmary Project Count Total Investment: 11	4 1 16000,00 € 1	Total CO2 Red. PI: Total Savings PI.: 4	268,24 Tons/Year 18000,00 €Year	Total CO2 Red. / Total Savings Af.	¥£: 91,14 Tor : 11130,00 €Y	ns/Year ROI Aver ear		4	

You can edit or delete the energy efficiency measure, or create a new one.

See also

Configuring the plant (Page 219)

2.5.3 Specifying the financial savings potential

Overview

Enter the financial saving potential of an energy efficiency measure in the "Saving Capabilities" tab separately for each consumption medium. The saving potentials comprise:

- Costs incurred prior to the introduction of the energy efficiency measure
- Scheduled costs following the introduction of the energy efficiency measure
- Costs incurred after introduction of the energy efficiency measure

Requirement

You created the energy efficiency measure.

Procedure

1. Double-click the relevant energy efficiency measure in the overview of energy efficiency measures.

The "Energy Efficiency Measure" dialog opens.

- 2. Select the "Saving Capabilities" tab.
- 3. Enter a consumption medium.
- 4. Select a unit for the consumption medium.
- 5. Select a parameter, or enter a constant value for the costs and the CO₂ production per unit.
- 6. Enter your values for the post measure state and the planned state of consumption.
- 7. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

2.5 Energy efficiency measures

Result

You have successfully entered the financial saving potentials for the energy efficiency measure. The total of all savings and the CO₂ reduction is calculated in the "Summary" area. The difference between the planned and the actual state of consumption is calculated under "Diff. Pl." and "Act. Diff.".

		_				
verview Common 🕴 Responsibility 💈	Saving Capabilities	CostEffe	ctiveness 📶 Dor	nains Attachment	s	
ossible Savings:						
fedium	PI. Sav.	[0]	Pl. CO2 Red. [Act. Sav. [6]	Act. CO2 Red	New
Vater	1	5000,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	Edit
						the second se
						Delete
ummary						
ummary Savinge Plannart	15000	e	Savinge Bealize	di		E
ummary Savings Planned:	15000	€	Savings Realize	ıd:	0,00]€
Savings Planned:	15000	€ Tons/Year	Savings Realize	rd:	 0,00)€ Tons/Year
ummary Savings Planned: CO2 Reduction Planned:	15000	€ Tons/Year	Savings Realize CO2 Reduction	rd:	0,00	j€ Tons/Year
Savings Planned:	15000	€ Tons/Year	Savings Realize	rd:	0,00	o]€ D Tons/Year
ummary Savings Planned: CO2 Reduction Planned:	15000 · 0 ·	€ Tons/Year	Savings Realize	rd:	0,00) € Tons/Year

You can edit, delete, or enter new financial energy-saving potentials.

See also

Creating energy efficiency measures (Page 465)
2.5.4 Calculating cost effectiveness

Overview

Implementation of an energy efficiency measure is initially subject to costs, e.g. purchase of a generator with lower consumption figures. On the "Cost Effectiveness" tab, enter the investment costs, the running costs, and the time period for the costs of the energy efficiency measure. Continue by calculating the cost efficiency of the energy efficiency measure.

Requirement

You created the energy efficiency measure.

Procedure

1. Double-click the relevant energy efficiency measure in the overview of energy efficiency measures.

The "Energy Efficiency Measure" dialog opens.

- 2. Select the "Cost Effectiveness" tab.
- 3. Select a period for which you want to calculate the cost efficiency of an energy efficiency measure.
- 4. Enter a name and a value for the annual active costs.
- 5. Enter the values for the investment costs and for the internal interest rate.
- 6. Click "Calculate" to calculate the cost effectiveness of the energy efficiency measure.

The result is displayed in the "Calculations" area of the following fields.

- ROI (return on investment): Displays the ID for returns on investments.

The ROI indicator is calculated using the following formula:

ROI = <u>years (savings - costs)</u> investment

- NPV (net present value): Displays the net present value of capital.

If the interest rate has a constant value, the capital value is calculated using the following formula:

 $NPV = -investment + savings \cdot \frac{(1 + interest rate)^{years} - 1}{(1 - interest rate)^{years} \cdot interest rate}$

If the interest rate is a parameter, the capital value is calculated using the following formula:

$$NPV = -investment + \sum_{d=1}^{days} \frac{savings - \frac{costs}{365}}{(1 + interest rate)^{d}}$$

2.5 Energy efficiency measures

- Amortization time: Displays the amortization period.

The payback time (amortization) is calculated using the following formula:

		Energy E	Efficiency	M	easure - Reduce	e water con	sumption			
Overview Common 🕴 Re	aspo	onsibility Saving C	apabilities	Co	ost Effectiveness	📶 Domains	Attachments	5		
Observation Period: from	2013	3 -	to 2018		•					
Costs per Year:										
Name								Costs		New
Maintenance									1000	Edit
										Delete
										Delete
Sum: 1000.00 €										Delete
Sum: 1000,00 €		nternal Interact]	Delete
Sum: 1000,00 € Invest:	1	nternal Interest:]	Delete
Sum: 1000,00 € Invest: 20000	li € [-	nternal Interest: «ConstValue»	×							Delete
Sum: 1000,00 € Invest: 20000	li € [nternal Interest: «ConstValue»	•	%]	Delete
Sum: 1000,00 € Invest: 20000	 € [-	nternal Interest: <constvalue></constvalue>	•	%					1	Delete
Sum: 1000,00 € Invest: 20000 Calculations	 € [-	nternal Interest: <constvalue></constvalue>	•	%	David				1	Delete
Sum: 1000,00 € Invest: 20000 Calculations ROI	€ [nternal Interest: <constvalue> NPV</constvalue>	•	%	Pay Back				1	Delete

7. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully calculated the cost efficiency of the energy efficiency measure. You can edit the entries and recalculate the cost efficiency of the energy efficiency measure.

See also

Creating energy efficiency measures (Page 465)

2.5.5 Specifying responsibilities

Overview

On the "Responsibility" tab, you define the responsible person for an energy efficiency measure for information purposes.

Requirement

- You created the energy efficiency measure.
- The user has been created.

Procedure

1. Double-click the relevant energy efficiency measure in the overview of energy efficiency measures.

The "Energy Efficiency Measure" dialog opens.

- 2. Select the "Responsibility" tab.
- 3. Select the responsible person.

The user details are displayed.

Firstname Ma	ах			Lastuana		
				Lastname	Mustermann	
Email	ax.mustermann(@siem	ens.com			
Department Pa	aper United					
Address Pa	aper United Stree	et 1				
Zip Code D-	91052	City	Erlangen			
Country Ge	ermany					
Phone + 4	49 (0)9131 1234	5678-9)			

4. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully specified responsibilities for the energy efficiency measure.

See also

Creating energy efficiency measures (Page 465) Setting up users (Page 343) 2.5 Energy efficiency measures

2.5.6 Specifying domains

Overview

Use the "Domains" tab to specify domains that are permitted to view and edit an energy efficiency measure.

By assigning a domain to an energy efficiency measure, you ensure that company employees will only be able to view and edit the energy efficiency measures that are implemented at their location.

Requirement

- You created the energy efficiency measure.
- The client has been created.

Procedure

1. Double-click the relevant energy efficiency measure in the overview of energy efficiency measures.

The "Energy Efficiency Measure" dialog opens.

- 2. Select the "Domains" tab.
- 3. Select the required client under "Available" and assign this client to the "Assigned" group.

				te moter cor	isampaon			-
Overview Common	Responsibility	Saving Capabilities	CostEffectiveness	Domains	Attachments			
	Available					Assigned		
			¢	Admir	ı Mandant			
						Annels	0	

4. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have specified the client for use of the energy efficiency measure. You can remove the client from the "Assigned" group, or assign a new client to this group.

See also

Creating energy efficiency measures (Page 465) Authorizations (Page 338)

2.5.7 Adding documents

Overview

On the "Attachments" tab, insert documents that contain additional information for an energy efficiency measure, e.g. charts or sketches. These documents are not managed in the Energy Manager document management.

Requirement

You created the energy efficiency measure.

Procedure

1. Double-click the relevant energy efficiency measure in the overview of energy efficiency measures.

The "Energy Efficiency Measure" dialog opens.

2. Select the "Attachments" tab.

	Energy Efficiency Measure - Reduce water consur	nption	
Overview	Common 🕴 Responsibility Saving Capabilities Cost Effectiveness 📶 Domains Atta	achments	
ttached F	iles:		
lcon	File Name	Size	Add
	Detailed Description Plant A.bt	76 B	Onen
			Coup to
			Save AS
			Delete
		Annly	Canad

- 3. Click "Add" and select the document that you want to insert for the energy efficiency measure.
- 4. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully inserted the document for the energy efficiency measure. You can edit or delete the document, or add a new one.

See also

Creating energy efficiency measures (Page 465)

2.5 Energy efficiency measures

2.5.8 Displaying information

Overview

The "Overview" tab shows you information on an energy efficiency measure, including:

- Name
- Investment costs
- Saving potentials
- Responsible person
- Location

You can also assign a status for the energy efficiency measure in the "Overview" tab and export the information on the energy efficiency measure to Microsoft Excel.

Requirement

You created the energy efficiency measure.

Procedure

1. Double-click the relevant energy efficiency measure in the overview of energy efficiency measures.

The "Overview" tab opens in the "Energy Efficiency Measure" dialog.

- 2. Under "Status", select the required status to assign it to the energy efficiency measure.
- 3. Click "Export" to visualize the information provided on the "Overview" tab in Microsoft Excel.

Energy Efficiency Me	easure - Reduce water consumption
Overview Common 🕴 Responsibility Saving Capabilities C	ost Effectiveness 📶 Domains Attachments
Project Name: Reduce water consumption Responibility: MUSTERMANNM Region: Linz	State: Initial Category: C-Project Business Unit IA
Savings Planned Savings: 15000 €/Year Planned C02 Red.: 0 Tons/Year Cost and Efficiency	Realized Savings: 0,00 €/Year Realized CO2 Red.: 0 Tons/Year
Investment: 20000,00 € Annual Costs: 1000,00 €	PayBack: 1,43 Years NPV: 56861,80 €
Export	
	OK Apply Cancel

4. Confirm the configuration with "OK".

See also

Creating energy efficiency measures (Page 465)

2.6 File management

2.6.1 Document management basics

Definition

With the document management you manage external documents in Energy Manager, for example documents in the format PDF, Excel or Word.

Note

Applications for external documents

If you want to open and edit an external document in Energy Manager, the correct application must be installed on your PC.

Usage

You use document management if you require additional application for energy management in Energy Manager .

Using document management, you can manage external documents in Energy Manager as follows:

• Link documents

This option lets you insert a link for the document that is saved on your PC. Once inserted, you can use this link to call up the document in Energy Manager with the respective application. Please note that the document is only available to you. Other users do not have access to the document.

Note

General access to linked documents

To allow other users access to the linked document, save the document in a folder with general access.

• Loading a document into the Energy Manager database

This option lets you save the document to the Energy Manager database. This means that you and all authorized users can access the document.

Example

You want to use Energy Manager to provide an energy requirement forecast for your organization for the coming year. To do this, you require the energy tariffs of the current year. In order to access the relevant information during configuration, you need to create a link in Energy Manager to the document containing the energy tariffs or to save the document in the Energy Manager database:



You can open the document from the project tree of the PRO Client with the respective application and edit it if required.

2.6.2 Inserting documents

Procedure

- 1. Change to Windows Explorer and select the corresponding document.
- 2. Copy the document to the clipboard.
- 3. Return to Energy Manager and select the object at which you want to save the link.

⊡ 🛃 System
🕂 🛅 Customer
👜 🛅 Data collection
👜 🛅 Calculation Level I Loop / Prototype
👜 🛅 Calculation Level II MEVA's
👜 🛅 Reports
👜 🛅 Trends
👜 🛅 Visualization
🕂 🛅 Document Management

4. Paste the object from the clipboard.

Note

Documents to be shared with other clients must be stored in a public directory.

Result



2.6 File management

2.6.3 Saving documents

Overview

You can save files in all standard formats, e.g. image or document files, to the database. In this way you enable access of other users to these files.

Requirement

- Successful installation of all software components.
- The user has been assigned the following rights:
 - "viewing existing files" to open files.
 - "editing existing files": to save files to the database.

The following error messages are output if these rights are missing:

No permissions	Error message	Remedy
"viewing existing files"	<date><time></time></date>	Assign the corresponding authorization.
	You are not authorized to open this file.	
"editing existing files"	<date><time></time></date>	Assign the corresponding authorization.
("File \ Data \ fetch")	You are not authorized to add this file.	
File size limit exceeded	The file may not exceed the size of <value>.</value>	Ask your system administrator to adjust the "FILE_MAX_SIZE_KB" in Energy Manager options.

Procedure

1. Select the folder in which the object is going to be created.



2. Click the "Insert File" button in the menu bar under "Analysis > File".



The file object configuration dialog opens.

Ħ	File - Plant Overview 🛛 🗕 🔍 🗙
Name:	Plant Overview
Description:	^
	×
Filename:	Brewery.bmp
Path:	
	Export
9	OK Cancel

- 3. Enter a "Name" and an optional "Description".
- 4. Enter the path and file name in the "Path" field.
- 5. Save the configuration with "OK".

Result

You have successfully created a data object and saved a file to the database.

ት 🛅 Document Management

2.6.4 Editing documents

Requirement

- At least one link and one file have been saved to the database.
- The user is authenticated accordingly.

Procedure

1. Double-click the link or the file object.

Result

The file opens in the corresponding application on the client.

Energy Manager Web

3.1 Basics

3.1.1 Introduction

Overview

Energy Manager Web is a browser-based user interface for the Energy Manager energy management system. Energy Manager PRO Web is used to access Energy Manager PRO via the Internet/Intranet.

The administrator configures the data you may access in Energy Manager.

Note

Installation of Energy Manager Web

You can find information on the installation of Energy Manager Web in the installation manual "Energy Manager - Installation", section "Setting up Energy Manager Web".

NOTICE

Secure connection between web client and web server

If you configure the connection between web client and web server, use only secure Cipher Suites.

A list of secure Cipher Suites can be found in the reference under "Cipher Suites (Page 919)".

Login and logout

In order to work with Energy Manager Web, you need a user name, a password associated with it, and rights to the data that you want to view.

For security reasons, a user is automatically logged out after a period of inactivity. The duration of inactivity is configurable globally in the Web.config file or in Microsoft Internet Information Services (IIS).

User interface of Energy Manager Web



The following figure shows the user interface of Energy Manager Web:

① Navigation area

In the navigation area, select the objects you want to view or edit. Use the structure tree or the Quicklinks of the toolbar for navigation. The navigation options available depend on your user rights.

2 Detail area

Widget Dashboards and objects such as reports or charts are displayed in the detail area. The selection in the navigation area and the selected query type and observation period determine which objects are displayed.

Tasks in Energy Manager Web

Use Energy Manager Web to handle the following tasks:

- Viewing, configuring and creating:
 - Reports
 - Charts
 - Matrices
 - Widget Dashboards
 - Folder
- · Opening documents and uploading new documents in Energy Manager
- Viewing and editing energy efficiency measures
- Manual measurement data value acquisition
- Creation and configuration of data sources, data points, parameters and key performance indicators
- Configuring the system settings

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

The configuration of energy efficiency measures and file management is not available in Energy Manager Basic.

Energy Manager Web

3.1 Basics

See also

Login (Page 483) Navigation (Page 488) Definition of home page (Page 486) Configuration of the analysis objects (Page 545) Project configuration (Page 618) Settings (Page 689) Manual acquisition of data in the Web (Page 530) File management in the Web (Page 527) Energy efficiency measures in the Web (Page 528)

3.1.2 Login

Overview

You can open the Energy Manager Web home page at the following URL:

http://<Energy Manager Webserver>/EnMPROWeb

Contact your administrator to obtain the address or name of the Energy Manager Web Server.

Energy Manager Web supports secure communication with the Energy Manager Web Server via https. Your administrator can provide you with all information needed to use https communication.

If you log into Energy Manager Web with Active Directory, check the following settings of the web browser, if necessary:

- Microsoft Internet Explorer:
 - "Internet options > Advanced > Security > Enable Integrated Windows Authentication".
- Mozilla Firefox:
 - Enable the URL of Energy Manager Web in "about:config" of the web browser.
 - Open Energy Manager Web via "Fully-Qualified Host Name".

You can find additional information in the section "Setting up Energy Manager Web" in the installation manual "Energy Manager - Installation".

Procedure

1. Start an Internet browser and enter the appropriate URL.

The login page of Energy Manager Web opens.

SIEM	IENS	Login		
		Sign in v Usernar	vith your username or your	E-mail address.
		Passwo	rd	
		Reme Wind	ember me ows Login	Login
SIM	IATIC	Energy	Manager PR	0
0.00	20.00	Login	Change Password	Password Lost

2. If the "Single Sign On" option is activated for your user account or your user group, the user name and password do not have to be entered. Click the "Windows logon" button instead.

You are then logged into Energy Manager PRO Web with your Windows user name and your Windows password.

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

The ""Single Sign On" option is not available in Energy Manager Basic.

3. If the option "Single Sign On" is not activated for your user account, enter the user name and password.

To do this, use your login information for Energy Manager.

- 4. Activate the "Remember user name" check box to save the login data for the next authentication.
- 5. Select the language in the "Languages" drop-down list, if necessary. The following languages are available:
 - German
 - English
 - Spanish
 - French
 - Italian
 - Chinese
- 6. If you want to change your password, click "Change Password".
- 7. If you want to generate a temporary password, click "Password Lost".

The "Password Lost" page is opened.



8. Click "Login".

Result

You are now logged in to Energy Manager Web .

Change password

You can change your Energy Manager password in the login dialog. To change it, you need your current password or a temporary password.

Note

You will be separately notified via email regarding a password change. If you have received such an email, without having changed your password, your user account may have been hacked. Always contact your administrator in this case.

Note

Unsupported punctuation

Quotation marks are not supported for passwords.

Forgot password

If you have forgotten your password, you can have a temporary password generated. The temporary password will be sent by email to the email address that is stored in your Energy Manager user account.

If you have received the email with the temporary password, click "Change password" in the login dialog.

See also

Introduction (Page 480)

Creating functional groups (Page 357)

Setting up users (Page 343)

Definition of home page (Page 486)

3.1.3 Definition of home page

Home page of Energy Manager Web

After logging into Energy Manager Web you automatically go to the home page of Energy Manager Web. Use the Quicklinks or tree topology for navigation. Quicklinks are links to frequently used objects. An overview of existing Quicklinks is available under the "Quicklinks" toolbar option. With the help of the tree topology you can navigate through the object and folder structures within your system. Open the tree topology by clicking on the "Tree" in the navigation area.

The following figure shows the home page of Energy Manager Web:

SI	② ③ EMENS	(4) (5) Energy Manager PRO	© 7 2	89 14
ła	Energy Manager - Web	All V Search		
© ≣ ⊅	Energy Manager - Web > Web configuration > Dashboards > Reports > Charts > Manual data collection	Items (5) Web configuration Dashboards Reports Charts Manual data collection		

① Menu bar

The menu bar consists of the following three menus:

- Tree Select the tree variant to be displayed. You can choose between the following views:
- Standard view
- Organization view
- Location view
- Quicklinks: An overview of all saved Quicklinks is displayed. You can navigate directly to the corresponding object via these Quicklinks.
- Service-Cockpit: An overview of the status of the different services as well as log files is displayed. You can start or stop the services directly in the Service Cockpit.
- For more information on the Service Cockpit, refer to the section "Service Cockpit (Page 732)".
- Notification Center: You obtain an overview of the generated alarms and can configure the alarm lists. For more information on the Service Cockpit, refer to the section "Notification Center (Page 726)".
- Batch analysis: With the batch analysis, you determine the energy consumption of a product per batch. The batch analysis is not available in the "SIMATIC Energy Manager Basic" version.
- Configuration: You can choose between 2 area options:
 - Configure data sources, data points, parameters and MEVAs / KPIs as well as the system settings. You can find more information on the configuration in the section "Project configuration (Page 618)".
 - Data import: Import measured values of data points from a csv file. For more information on importing measured values, refer to the section "Importing measured values (Page 541)".

2 Logo

The Siemens logo is set by default. You can select your own company-specific logo in the "Web Client settings (Page 700)".

③ Navigation area

In the navigation area, select the objects you want to view or edit. Use the menu items or Quicklinks for navigation. The folder contents and objects that are available to you in the navigation area depend on your user rights and the entry point of the respective user group in the Energy Manager Web.

You can find more information on navigation in the section "Navigation (Page 488)".

④ Product name

The product name "Energy Manager Basic" or "Energy Manager PRO" is set by default. You can enter your individual product name in the "Web Client settings".

⑤ Object search

You can search for objects using an object type filter and an entry field.

You can find more information on the search in the section "Search for object (Page 490)".

6 Detail area

Folder contents and objects are displayed in the detail area. The selection in the navigation area determines which objects are displayed.

⑦ User information

The following information and functions are available:

- Display of the logged-in user name
- Option for switching the Web Client view
- Option for the Energy Manager Web log off

8 Product Information

- Displays the installed system version.
- Documentation: Forwards you to the Energy Manager online help.
- Support Forwards you to the Siemens AG Support site.

9 Feedback

You can offer comments on SIMATIC Energy Manager here.

See also

Defining an entry point (Page 355)

Login (Page 483)

Introduction (Page 480)

Quicklinks (Page 494)

3.1.4 Navigation

Navigation via the menu

All objects enabled for Energy Manager Web are arranged according to the breadcrumb trail method in the navigation area.

The following figure shows the navigation principle in the navigation area:



- Clicking on the menu item itself displays its structure in the navigation area, as well as its content in the detail area ("Dashboard A" in the example). All remaining menu commands on the same level are hidden.
 Clicking on the arrow of a menu item opens and closes its structure again in the navigation area, without updating or reloading the content of the detail area. When you click on the icon of an object in the navigation area, its structure (e.g. data points used) is also opened and closed again in the navigation area, without updating the detail area.
- 2 You go back to the previous display by clicking on the parent menu command (in the example "Reports").

Navigation via Quicklinks

Quicklinks work like bookmarks in Internet browsers. Quicklinks gives you access to frequently used objects. They are stored as tiles in the "Quicklinks" menu bar item.

You can specify a Quicklink as a home page in Energy Manager Web. The content of the object to which the Quicklink refers is then displayed upon the next login.

Your personal Quicklink settings are stored and linked to your user account. This means that your Quicklink settings are available on other PCs.



- ① Icons and name are copied by default from the object to which the Quicklink refers. You can edit the Quicklink via the shortcut menu.
- Change Quicklink order
 You can drag-and-drop the Quicklinks after activating the Move mode.
- Add Quicklink
 Create a new Quicklink for the object displayed in the detail area.

For longer Quicklink lists, use the scroll bar to view all entries.

See also

Creating Quicklinks in the Web (Page 494) Editing Quicklinks in the Web (Page 496) Introduction (Page 480)

3.1.5 Search for object

Overview

The Energy Manager search function evaluates the following information:

- Object name
- Description of the object
- Object ID
 - For measuring points
- Inventory number (KKS number) For data points

Requirement

You have opened the home page and no object is selected in the navigation tree.

Procedure



1. To limit the search to specific objects, activate one or more object types in the drop-down menu """ of the search.

You can choose the following objects:

- Report
- Dashboard
- Data point
- Chart
- EEM
- MEVA/KPI
- Matrix
- Folder
- Parameter

2. Enter your search term in the search field and press Enter.

A preview shows the search results.

If you have selected the "Dashboard" object type and you click in the search field, all dashboards are displayed even if you input nothing.

3. To open an object, click on the search result in the preview.

Note

If an object is available multiple times in the tree, the first occurrence is opened.

3.1.6 Consumers and structured view on the web

Requirement

• The Consumer functionality is licensed separately.

Overview

In Energy Manager Web, you have the option of having all consumers defined in the Energy Manager PRO Client displayed by their location or their organization unit.

Procedure

- 1. If you want to display all consumers of a location, click the "Geographical" tree option in the menu bar.
- 2. If you want to display all consumers of an organizational unit, click the "Organisation" tree option in the menu bar.

Result

1. All consumers of a location are displayed.



2. All consumers of an organization unit are displayed.



When you click on the icon of a location or organizational unit, the structure of the object opens and closes in the navigation area. When you click on the writing of the object, the related Widget Dashboard is displayed in the detail area. The administrator sets the definition and configuration of this Widget Dashboard in the consumer templates.

See also

Widget Dashboards for consumers (Page 505) Consumers and structured view (Page 265) Load templates (Page 376) Navigation (Page 488) 3.1 Basics

3.1.7 Quicklinks

3.1.7.1 Creating Quicklinks in the Web

Overview

In Energy Manager Web you create Quicklinks to frequently used objects.

Requirement

• You have the functional authorizations "Quicklinks create" and "Quicklinks configure".

Procedure

- 1. Place the cursor over the object in the tree topology of the navigation area for which you want to create a Quicklink.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

3. Click on the menu command "Add Quicklink".

Energy Manager	- Wel	b
> Web config	urati	on
> Dashboard	s	
✓ Reports		
🐵 Dokuf	0	Edit
🛞 Samp	Û	Delete Object
Beispi Bei	Û	Delete shortcut
Beispi	×	Cut object
Adua	1	Copy shortcut
C Adhor	\odot	Add Quicklink
AdHor	۲	Add Dashboard
MyWc	۲	Add Report
> Charts	\odot	Add Chart
> Manual d	۲	Add Matrix
	۲	Add Folder

The "Edit Quicklink" configuration dialog opens.

4. The name of the object for which the Quicklink is created is applied by default.

Alternatively, you can rename the Quicklink.

- 5. To specify the Quicklink as the start page, select the "Use as Startpage" check box.
- 6. To create the Quicklink, click on the "Save" button.

Alternatively, you can add a Quicklink using the Add option of the Quicklink dialog.

6	Energy Manager - Web / Dashboards		
P	Quicklink	≣t⊕	
% 4	Energy Manager - Web		
:=	Energy Efficiency object		
ŝ	Dashboard object		
	Dashboard object 2		
	C Reports folder		

A Quicklink is then created for the object opened in the detail area.

Result

The Quicklink is created as follows:

- The object name is adopted.
- The corresponding object icon is applied.

See also

Navigation (Page 488) Editing Quicklinks in the Web (Page 496) Create Quicklinks (Page 29) Quicklinks for Web (Page 351) Definition of home page (Page 486) Widget Dashboards in the client (Page 463) Authorizations (Page 338) Reports (Page 598) Quicklinks (Page 29)

3.1.7.2 Editing Quicklinks in the Web

Overview

You can change the order of the Quicklinks in the "Quicklinks" area. If you no longer require Quicklinks, you can delete the Quicklinks again. You can also customize the Quicklinks, for example, by changing the name.

Requirement

• You have the functional authorizations "Quicklinks configure" and "Quicklinks delete".

Changing the order of the Quicklinks

1. Click on the menu item "Quicklinks".



2. Enable Move mode "==== " of the Quicklink dialog option, located at the top right.



3. To move a Quicklink, use drag-and-drop to place it at the required position.



The Quicklink is placed at the respective location.

4. Click on "OK".

Customize Quicklink

- 1. Place the cursor over the Quicklink that you want to edit. The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right side of the Quicklink.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon. The context menu opens.



3. Click on the menu command "Edit".

The "Edit Quicklink" dialog box opens.

4. To rename the Quicklink, enter the desired name in the "Name" entry field.

3.1 Basics

5. To specify the Quicklink as the start page, select the "Use as Startpage" check box.

Note

If you do not specify any Quicklink as homepage, the first Quicklink in the "Quicklinks" area is used as homepage page.

6. Click on the "Save" button.

Delete Quicklink

- Place the cursor over the Quicklink that you want to edit. The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right side of the Quicklink.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon. The context menu opens.
- 3. Click on the menu command "Delete".

The Quicklink is deleted.

See also

Navigation (Page 488)

Creating Quicklinks in the Web (Page 494)

Editing Quicklinks (Page 31)

Quicklinks for Web (Page 351)

Authorizations (Page 338)

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

3.2.1 Folder

Overview

In Energy Manager Web you can see all folders and their contents which were defined by the administrator as an entry point for you. The available options depend on the user rights of the respective user group to which you are assigned. The administrator configures the user rights of the user groups in the Energy Manager PRO Client.

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

In Energy Manager Basic the following entry point is always used for the user: "Energy Manager - Web".

View folder contents

- 1. Click on the entry point ("Energy Manager Web") in the navigation area.
- 2. Click the folder whose contents you want to see.

ergy Manager - Web	Items (5)
> Web configuration	Web configuration
> Dashboards	Dashboards
> Reports	Reports
> Charts	Charts
> Manual data collection	Manual data collection

Result

The content of the desired folder is displayed in the detail area. You can learn how to create, edit and delete new folders in the section "Configuration of analysis objects" in the section "Folder".

See also

Defining an entry point (Page 355) Creating folders (Page 614) Editing folders (Page 616) Creating users (Page 704)

3.2.2 Widget Dashboards

3.2.2.1 Overview of Widget Dashboards

Widget Dashboards allow rapid visualization of a wide variety of plant data on a single page. Widget Dashboards are designed for display in the Web or on mobile devices. For this reason, only configure Widget Dashboards in Energy Manager Web. In the Energy Manager PRO Client you can only create and delete Widget Dashboards.

Note

The functional authorization "Widgets/Dashboards - create, remove, configure" is required to create, delete and configure a Widget Dashboard. In addition, the "view" authorization is available for displaying and "configure" solely for the configuration.

Requirements

- The Widget Dashboard is created in Energy Manager.
- The Widget Dashboard is enabled for the user.

Display of Widget Dashboards

To open a Widget Dashboard in Energy Manager Web, click in the navigation area on the corresponding Widget Dashboard. The Widget Dashboard is displayed in the detail area.



- 1 Name of the dashboard
- 2 Changing the observation period
- ③ Shortcut menu of the dashboard

When you click on (3), the shortcut menu of the dashboard is displayed.



- ③ Add widget

Click on the "Edit dashboard" button ② to configure generally applicable settings of the Widget Dashboard. You can find more information on configuring widgets in the section "Editing Dashboards".

To create new widgets in the Widget Dashboard, click on the "Add Widget" button ③ in the shortcut menu of the dashboard. For more information on creating widgets, refer to the section "Creating widgets".

Displaying widgets in the Widget Dashboard

The following figure shows a created and already configured Chart widget in the layout Adjust mode of the Widget Dashboard ①:



- You move the widget using drag and drop.
- You resize the widget with the blue frame.

When you close Adjust mode of the Widget Dashboard by pressing the "Finish" button, the widget is displayed in the selected size and position in the Widget Dashboard. The following figure shows the same Widget Dashboard after closing the Adjust mode:



- ① Detail view of the widget
- ② Shortcut menu of the widget
- ③ Zoom buttons

In the detail view (1), you can alternatively define the display information about the widgets, depending on the widget.

Widget D Histogram	$\langle \begin{array}{c} 11/1/2022 \ 12:00 \ AM \end{array} ightarrow rac{12/1/2022}{12:00 \ AM} ightarrow \left[ight.$	
--------------------	---	--

The following additional display information is available:

• Widget:

Displays the main information of the widget.

• History:

Displays the values of the data points as a chart in the defined observation period.

• Histogram:

Displays the values as a histogram with equal intervals. The display corresponds to the histogram in the Energy Manager PRO Client. In addition, the statistical values minimum, maximum, median, average and standard deviation are displayed. Values outside the plausibility limits are not marked in the histogram.

• Regression:

Shows the correlation and regression analysis as well as the linear correlation as a formula.

For information on how to configure the individual widgets using the respective sections, refer to section "Widget configuration".

The left Zoom button ③ activates Zoom-in mode. In this mode, you zoom in on the area you select in the widget history. The right Zoom button ③ resets the widget history to the preceding view.

When you click on the button 2 of the widget, the shortcut menu of the dashboard is displayed.



- ① Edit widget settings
- Delete widget
- ③ Export data

With the CSV Export icon ③, you can export the measured values for a widget as a CSV file to the download directory of your Internet browser. The export file is saved with the name "EnMPRO_dashboardname_widgetname.csv".

Changing the observation period

To change the observation period of the dashboard and the widgets contained therein, follow these steps:

1. Click on the field of the date or query type of the dashboard at the top of the dashboard.

Dashboard1

- 2. Select the (start) date and time.
- 3. Select the query type associated with the start time.
- 4. Click on the "OK" button.

The observation period of the Dashboard adapts to your settings. If you have selected the check box "Use dashboard settings" in the configuration settings of the widgets as the query type, the observation period of the widgets changes accordingly.

Note

If you have selected a particular date including query type in the configuration settings of a widget, the observation period of the widget in question does not change.

Energy Manager Web

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

See also

Creating Widgets (Page 554) Editing dashboards (Page 551) Widget Dashboards for consumers (Page 505) Editing widgets (Page 556) Setting up dashboards (Page 550) Widget Configuration (Page 574) Dashboards (Page 550) Available Widgets (Page 557)
3.2.2.2 Widget Dashboards for consumers

Requirement

• The license for the Consumer functionality is available.

Overview

You have the option of creating Widget Dashboards for individual consumers as well as for entire locations or organization units. The functionality of selecting associated datapoints and MEVAs for consumers is available. When you assign a consumer to a consumer template in the Energy Manager PRO Client and define a default Widget Dashboard, this Widget Dashboard is displayed when you click on the consumer. You can then configure this Widget Dashboard. More information about creating a consumer and a consumer template can be found in the sections "Consumers and structured view "and "Consumer templates" in the complete operating manual of Energy Manager PRO.

If you want to view the entire consumer structure in Energy Manager Web, copy the consumer to the entry point defined for the user group.

Opening the Widget Dashboard for consumers

To open the Widget Dashboard for consumers, follow these steps:

1. In the navigation area, click under the menu item "Geographical" or "Organisation" on the consumer whose Widget Dashboard you wish to display.

V ៥ឱ Europe V ៥ឱ Austria	MyConsumerTemplate	<	<	12/19/202 12:00 AM	2	÷	12	/20/ :00	2023 AM	2	>	ŀ	••
A MA4000				(0, 1, 2, 2, 3)									
L MA4001					9 9				1	Ś			
🕼 Germany													

The default Widget Dashboard in the Energy Manager PRO Client is opened.

- 2. To open the configuration mode, click on the gear icon.
- 3. In the "Data source" tab, select the check box "Consumer variable".

Only data points and MEVAs of the consumer are listed.

Note

If you create the Widget Dashboard at the geographical or organization unit level, the data points and MEVAS of all consumers located below are available for selection. You thus have the option of designing a Widget Dashboard as an overview of all consumers of a location or an organization unit.

- 4. Select the data points and MEVAS you want to display in the widget.
- 5. Complete the configuration of the widget in accordance with section "Widget configuration (Page 574)".

If you have created multiple Widget Dashboards for a consumer, they are displayed in the tree topology of the navigation area below the consumer.

Energy Manager Web

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

Use of placeholders for designations

When configuring the Widget Dashboard you have the option of using placeholders. These placeholders are replaced with specific names or descriptions. You can use the placeholders in the title of the dashboard, in the title of a widget and in the widget "text" as well as in the text itself.

You can use the following placeholders:

- {MACHINE_NAME} corresponds to the name of the consumer
- {MACHINE_DESCRIPTION} corresponds to the description of the consumer
- {MACHINE_PRODUCER} corresponds to the producer of the consumer
- {MACHINE_TEMPLATE} corresponds to the name of the consumer template
- {MACHINE_LOCATION} corresponds to the location of the consumer
- {MACHINE_BALANCING_GROUP} corresponds to the organization unit of the consumer
- {ORG_NAME} corresponds to the name of the organization unit
- {ORG_DESCRIPTION} corresponds to the description of the organization unit
- {LOCATION NAME} corresponds to the name of the location
- {LOCATION_DESCRIPTION} corresponds to the description of the location
- {LOCATION_LOCATION} corresponds to the "Location" entry field in Location Use the expressions including the curly brackets.

See also

Consumers and structured view (Page 265)

Load templates (Page 376)

Consumers and structured view on the web (Page 492)

Overview of Widget Dashboards (Page 500)

Setting up dashboards (Page 550)

Configuring the Parameter section (Page 578)

3.2.3 Online Monitoring

Online Monitoring enables you to display data points of Modbus devices and OPC channels in real time. The sections Creating a Modbus TCP channel (Page 646) and Creating OPC DA, OPC HDA, OPCUA channels (Page 636) describe how to configure the Online Monitoring for Modbus devices and OPC channels.

You can find all data points with Online Monitoring in the navigation field under the structure "Web Konfiguration > Monitoring".

Energy Manager - Web
Energy Manager - Web
✓ Web configuration
> Data points
> Parameters
> Data sources
> MEVAs / KPIs
> Monitoring
> Dashboards
> Reports
> Charts
> Manual data collection

This folder structure is also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client. However, in Energy Manager PRO Client you cannot make any changes to the objects in the folder "Monitoring".

To open Online Monitoring, click on the corresponding entry.

Energy Manager Web

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

Configuration

Under "Configuration", configure the Online Monitoring. You can activate the following functions for each data point:

• Display in chart: The corresponding data point is displayed in the Online Monitoring chart.

You can activate this function for a maximum of 10 data points at the same time.

• Archive data: The values of the data point are saved for Online Monitoring for 62 days. Historical values are displayed in the chart only for these data points. When you deactivate this function, already archived data are not deleted.

Note

A maximum of 1000 data points per acquisition component and a maximum of 25 data points per device can be simultaneously archived.

The data points are displayed in tabular form:

			Q	Filter
Name \$	Unit \$	Value \$	Show in chart \$	Archive data 🗢
d_pac3200_pmon_V_L1N	V	239.58		
d_pac3200_pmon_V_L2N	V	240.79	- k	
d_pac3200_pmon_V_L3N	V	241.36	-	
d_pac3200_pmon_V_L1L2	V	415.98		
d_pac3200_pmon_V_L2L3	V	417.54		
d_pac3200_pmon_V_L3L1	V	416.50		
	H 4 1	5 N		

The table contains the following six columns:

Column	Function
Name	Name of the data point
Unit	Unit of the value of the data point
Value	Current value of the data point This value is updated in the acquisition cycle of Online Monitoring.
Show in chart:	If this option is selected, the corresponding data point is shown in the Online Moni- toring chart:
Archive data	If this option is activated, the values of the corresponding data point is saved for 62 days.



The data points selected under "Configuration" are graphically displayed under "Chart".

① Visualizing the data points

Chart

To observe a specific area, keeping the mouse pointer pressed draw a frame around the desired area. To reset the display, click on the "Reset zoom" button at the top right-hand corner of the chart.

Selection of the displayed time period
 If you select a time period while the online mode is activated, the online mode is deactivated.

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

③ Online mode

While the online mode is activated, the current minute and the past 14 minutes are always displayed in the chart.

④ Legend

To hide a data point, click on the corresponding data point in the legend. Click on the data point again to display it again.

Note

If you select a time period with a large number of measured values, loading the chart make take a considerable amount of time.

3.2.4 Reports

Overview

Energy Manager PRO Web shows you the reports you configured in Energy Manager PRO Client. You can also generate new reports in Energy Manager Web .

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

In Energy Manager Basic you can create reports only with the help of five predefined templates. All the settings are predefined in these report templates.

The structure of a report result in Energy Manager Web consists of the following objects:

1	2		3 4 5
Energy Manager - Web / Report / Sample	Report 2 All	∽ Csearch	
 Energy Manager - Web Web configuration 	Sample Report 2		
> Dashboards -> Reports	▼ Month Period	Creation Date Pdf XI	s Preview Delete
 Documentation Report 1 Dokumentationsbereicht 1 Beispiel_Bericht 1 	01.06.2022 00:00:00 → 01.07.2022 00:00:00	6/12/2022 8:55:34 PM	
Beispiel_Bericht 2 Sample Report 1 Sample Report 2			

1 Report

When you select the report object, the following lower-level object types are displayed in a drop-down menu:

- Data point
- MEVA / KPI
- Parameter
- 2 Report results
- ③ Output format of the report result with preview
- ④ Delete option for the report result
- (5) Create new report for this period

The figure below shows an example of the periodically categorized report results in the detail view.

/ear						Ð
Period	Creation Date	Pdf	XIs	Preview	v Delete	1
1/1/2021 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 1/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	11/21/2022 4:45:28 AM	$\underline{+}$	$\underline{\Psi}$	•	Û	
Aonth						(
Period	Creation Date	Pdf	XIs	Preview	v Delete	
10/1/2022 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 11/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	11/21/2022 4:45:28 AM	$\underline{+}$	$\underline{\Psi}$	Ð	Û	
9/1/2022 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 10/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	11/7/2022 5:20:20 AM	1	$\underline{\star}$	0	Û	
8/1/2022 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 9/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	9/26/2022 5:42:05 AM	$\underline{\mathbf{v}}$	$\underline{\Psi}$	0	Û	
7/1/2022 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 8/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	8/19/2022 2:48:00 AM	$\underline{+}$	$\underline{\vee}$	0	Û	
6/1/2022 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 7/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	7/22/2022 10:33:29 AM	$\overline{\mathbf{A}}$	$\underline{\vee}$	0	Û	
5/1/2022 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 6/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	6/29/2022 9:28:51 PM	$\overline{\mathbf{A}}$	$\underline{\vee}$	D	Û	
4/1/2022 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 5/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	5/31/2022 9:09:35 AM	$\overline{\mathbf{A}}$	$\underline{\mathbf{v}}$	0	Û	
12/1/2021 12:00:00 AM \rightarrow 1/1/2022 12:00:00 AM	4/26/2022 11:50:19 AM	4	\downarrow	Ð	Û	

Report creation is based on the configuration for automatic reporting.

Requirement

- The report has been created in Energy Manager .
- The report has been released for the current Web application.
- Microsoft Excel and PDF-Reader are installed on the PC.
- You have the necessary rights.
 - "start" to generate report results.
 - "open *" to display / open report results in the respective format.
 - "delete" to delete report results.

Generating a report in the Energy Manager Web

1. To generate the report in Energy Manager Web , select the desired report and then click the "Options" tab in the right window pane.

The "Create new report" dialog opens.

- 2. Under "General", specify the time range for the report.
- 3. Click on "Advanced Options" to define the additional parameters for report generation. Define the desired parameters.
- 4. Click "Start".

The report is generated.

Create new report

14.12.2022 12:57	
Date Range P Calculated from tir 14.12.2022 11:57	review ne: :30
↑ Previous	00000 \rightarrow 00000 Thursday, 1. November 2022
Current	$\begin{array}{c} \textbf{OO}^{00} \\ \text{Thursday, 1. December 2022} \end{array} \rightarrow \begin{array}{c} \textbf{OO}^{00} \\ \text{Sunday, 1. January 2023} \end{array}$
Next	OO ⁰⁰ → OO ⁰⁰ Wednesday, 1. February 2023

- ① Configure the time range of the report in this area.
- 2 Configure the advanced options of the report in this area.

Specifying additional parameters for the report (optional)

1. Click "Advanced Options" in the " Create new report" dialog.

The advanced options are displayed.

- 2. Under "Country", select the desired country.
- 3. To define the compression level of the report, disable "Dynamic compression level" and select the desired compression level.
- 4. To define the version of the measured values for evaluation, disable "Current version" and select a date.

All measured values generated prior to the selected date are evaluated.

The current date is activated by default.

5. To define a calculation model for evaluation of the report, disable "Current model" and select a model date.

The report is evaluated with the current calculation model by default.

6. To exclude the report from a cyclic deletion action, disable "Auto delete".

Advanced Options

German	ny	~
dditiona	al settings	
	Dynamic compression level Use the largest available level automatically depending on the configuration	
Daily va	lues	~
	Current version Use the latest available data (only relevant if data has been modified)	
	Current model Use the latest available data (only relevant if data has been modified)	
	Auto delete	

Downloading or displaying the report result in Energy Manager Web

1. To download the report result in PDF format, click on the "PDF-Download" icon in the row of the report result.

The report result is downloaded.

2. To download the report result in Excel format, click on the "EXCEL-Download" icon in the row of the report result.

The report result is downloaded.

Note

If you change the result of the downloaded report, these changes are **not** saved in Energy Manager.

3. To display the report result as a preview in PDF format in Energy Manager Web , click on the "Preview" icon.

The report result is displayed.

Deleting a report result

1. To delete a report result, click on the "¹ button in the "Delete" column in the table with the report results.

A confirmation prompt appears.

2. Confirm the deletion.

The report result is deleted.

See also

Creating user groups (Page 354) Creating reports (Page 598) Configuring reports (Page 279) Report results (Page 437) Report (Page 274)

3.2.5 Charts

3.2.5.1 Overview

You use the Chart to display historical as well as current values. Use the chart for the visualization of measurement series.

The Diagram or Chart functionality is available as a separate tab for the following objects:

- Data point
- Matrix
- Chart object

Chart tab for matrices and data points

With matrices and data points, the Chart tab is available immediately after a click on the respective object. Configurations set in the chart, such as the number of displayed data points and the query type, are stored automatically for the active user. The configuration is saved with the object in the database. The selected time range is not stored. On a renewed display of the chart the current time range is always displayed.

Own chart object

There is also a separate chart object that you can use to visualize up to ten data points simultaneously. The configuration via the chart object is not referenced to a user. Thus it is possible to make a preconfigured chart available to several users. Open the chart by clicking on the corresponding chart in the navigation area.

(6)1 (8)< 03/1/2019 - 04/1/2019 # Entry v Consumption -. ---21 ŝ 10 AurE e_co motion (13) (12)

Structure of the Chart tab

The following figure shows the display of the chart in Energy Manager Web:

- ① Selection of the "Chart" tab
- ② Selection of the "Alarms" tab
- ③ Selection of the "Comments" tab
- ④ Selection of the "Values" tab
- 5 Data point with a warning
- 6 Name of the chart and displayed time period
- $\ensuremath{\overline{\bigcirc}}$ $\ensuremath{\overline{\bigcirc}}$ Selection of the displayed time period

To change the time period, click on the arrow keys or 🛗 . When you click 🛗 , you open the time and date selection. You can find more information about time and date selection below.

When the page is reloaded, the chart once again displays the time period specified by the configuration.

- (8) Selection of the displayed compression level
- 9 Exporting the chart

You can export the displayed chart in the following form:

• The values of the chart that are displayed at this time are saved as a file in "*.csv" format

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

(10) Configuration of the chart

To open the "Data sources" tab of the configuration, click on + .

To open the "General" tab of the configuration, click on 🥒 .

(1) Visualizing the data points

To observe a specific area, keeping the mouse pointer pressed draw a frame around the desired area. To reset the display, click on the "Reset zoom" button at the top right-hand corner of the chart.

- 12 Data points with legend
- (13) Data points outside of limits

Date and time selection



The following figure shows the date and time selection.

① Selection of the displayed month

To display another month in the calendar, proceed as follows:

- 1. Click on the text with the month and year displayed.
- 2. Select a year.
- 3. Select a month.
- To display the previous or next month, click the arrow buttons.
- To select the current time period, click on 🛗 .
- Selection of the displayed time period.
 To display a time period on the chart, click a day in the calendar. The corresponding time period is selected automatically.

If you selected the Ad-Hoc query type, select the start and end of the custom time period.

③ Selection of the query type

To display a time period with a user-defined start and end on the chart, select the "Ad-Hoc" option.

④ Selection of the time

This function is only supported with the "Ad-Hoc" query type.

Energy Manager Web

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

Adding comments

If you double-click a value in the diagram, the following dialog box opens:



Display of details in the chart

The figure below shows which details are displayed for the measured values of a measurement series in the chart:



1 Details

Move the mouse pointer over the corresponding measured value to display the details of a measured value. The following information is included:

- Data point name
- Time stamp
- Value
- Comments

2 Measured value with comment

Measured value with comments are marked with a hash character.

③ Measured value outside warning levels

Measured values which have exceeded the warning levels defined in the chart configuration are marked with a yellow dot.

④ Data point outside limits Measured values which have exceeded the limits defined in the chart configuration are marked with a purple dot.

Note

If a value displayed as a column exceeds or falls below a limit or warning value, the entire column is colored accordingly.

Note

If a series is displayed as a bar chart, the diamonds that show comments are not visible for that series.

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

Structure of the Alarms tab

A list with all the alarms for the shown period is displayed using the "Alarm" tab.

The display table consists of the following five columns:

Column	Function
Name of the series	Name of the data point relating to the message
Time stamp of measuring point	The time of measurement
Time stamp of cre- ation	The time of creation of the message
Level	Message type
Comment	Comment on the message This comment is created automatically

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

When you enter a text in the "Filter" text box, all columns are searched and the corresponding entries are displayed in the display table. Delimitation of messages is recommended when there is a large number of messages.

(4)

Structure of the Comments tab

A list with all the comments for the displayed period is displayed using the "Comments" tab.

ų.	🖊 Edit	٩	Filter	
	Name of series 🌲	Timestamp of point 🔺	Comment \$	Author 🗢
	e_energy_15min	15.08.2019 07:45:00	maximum	ADMIN
	e_energy_15min	11.08.2019 13:15:00	minimum	ADMIN
		N ≪ 1 ≥ N		

1 Edit

To edit the selected comment, click on this button.

If you selected several comments, this button is disabled.

- 2 Table with comments of the selected time period.
- ③ Filter function

When you enter a text in the "Filter" text box, all columns are searched and the corresponding entries are displayed in the display table. Delimitation of comments is recommended when there is a large number of comments.

④ Delete

To delete a comment, select the comment and double-click this button. Multiple selection is possible.

The table contains the following four columns:

Column	Function
Name of the series	Name of the data point relating to the comment
Time stamp of measuring point	Time stamp of the measurement
Comment	Content of comment
Author	Author of comment

Values tab

You can find more information on the Values tab in the Matrices (Page 535) section.

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

3.2.5.2 Configuring charts

Follow these steps to configure a chart:

- 1. Click on the chart in the navigation field.
- 2. To open the configuration dialog, click on 🥒
- 3. Configure the tabs of the configuration dialog as described below.
- 4. Click the "Save" button.

Configuring the "General" tab

To configure the "General" tab, follow these steps:

- 1. Enter the name of the chart in the "Name" text box.
- 2. Enter the number of decimal places to be displayed in the detail field of a measuring point in the "Decimal format" text box.
- 3. If you enable "Current date", the current time is always used as the basis for the query type.

If you disable "Current date", a defined time is used as the basis for the query type.

In this case, select the time in the text box "From".

- 4. From the "Query type" drop-down list, select the type of the displayed time period.
- 5. From the "Compression" drop-down list, select the compression level to be displayed in the chart.
- 6. If you enter a number other than zero in the "Offset" text box, the chart will not display the selected time period. The displayed time period is shifted by offset times the cycle of the query type. For example, if you have selected Month as the query type and an offset of -2, the chart will display March instead of May.
- 7. If you enable "Use initial time stamp", the values at the beginning of your cycle are displayed in the chart.

Background: The end time stamp is always used in the Energy Manager. End time stamping means that all values get the time stamp at the end time of their cycle. This means, for example, that the first daily value of a month is stamped at midnight on the second day of the month. Accordingly, the last daily value of a month has a time stamp of midnight of the first day of the following month. These values are also displayed in the chart if you have not activated "Use initial time stamp".

8. To compare the time period displayed in the chart with another time period, enable "Comparison", "Static" or "Dynamic".

If you have enabled "Static", select the start of the period to be compared from the calendar under "From". This time period does not change.

If you have enabled "Dynamic", enter a number in the "Offset" text box. The period to be compared is offset from the displayed period by a multiple of the cycle of the query type. The function is the same as in step 6.

Configuring the "Data sources" tab

To configure the "Data sources" tab, follow these steps:

1. To add a data point or MEVA/KPI, select the object from the "Select" drop-down list. When you enter a term in the drop-down list, the displayed objects are filtered by that term.

The only objects displayed in the drop-down list are of a type enabled under "Filter".

Alternatively, you can use the structure browser. To open the Structure Browser, click on >.

Note

You can display values in the chart that are stored locally on the acquisition component. This data is deleted from the acquisition component 62 days after it is created and can then no longer be displayed in the chart.

To configure a selected object for the chart, click on the object in the "Currently selected" list.

You can enter an alternative name. If you enabled the option button in the corresponding row, the alternative name or description of the object is displayed as the name of the data series in the chart.

Under "Category", select the category of values to be displayed in the chart. The conversion between energy/consumption and power/flow is made automatically.

From the "Function" drop-down list, select the type of values of the object are to be displayed in the chart

3. To delete an object from the chart, click on \hat{m} .

Configuring the "Display" tab

To configure the "Display" tab, proceed as follows:

- 1. To configure the display of an object in the chart, click on the corresponding object.
- 2. From the "Color" drop-down list, select the color with which the values of the object are to be displayed in the chart.
- 3. From the "Type" drop-down list, select the way in which the values of the object are to be displayed in the chart.
- 4. From the "Y-axis" drop-down list, select the y-axis to which the object is assigned in the chart.
- 5. If you disable "Visible", the object is not displayed in the chart.
- 6. If you enable "Stacked", all objects where this option is enabled and assigned to the same axis are displayed stacked on top of each other.

3.2 Data analysis in the Web

Configuring the "Limits" tab

To configure the "Limits" tab, follow these steps:

- 1. To configure the limits of an object's values on the chart, click on the object.
- 2. In the "Upper warning" text box, enter the numeric value of the upper limit.
- 3. In the "Upper warning" text box, enter the numeric value of the upper warning limit.
- 4. In the "Lower warning" text box, enter the numerical value of the lower warning limit.
- 5. In the "Lower limit" text box, enter the numerical value of the lower limit.

To successfully configure the limits, adhere to the following nonequivalence: Upper limit \geq Upper limit warning \geq Lower limit warning \geq Lower limit

Configuring the "Axes" tab

To configure the "Axes" tab, proceed as follows:

- 1. To add a new y-axis, click on 🚭.
- 2. To configure an axis, click on the corresponding axis.

In the "Name" text box, enter the name of the axis. The name of the axis is displayed in the chart.

In the "Lower limit" text box, enter the lowest numerical value on the axis that is displayed in the chart. If you leave this box empty, the axis is automatically scaled.

With the "Area" display type, the chart is always displayed in the zero-point display.

In the "Upper limit" text box, enter the highest numerical value on the axis that is displayed in the chart. This numerical value must be greater than the lowest numerical value on the axis. If you leave this box empty, the axis is automatically scaled.

3. To delete an axis, click on 💼 .

3.2.6 File management in the Web

Overview

In Energy Manager PRO Web , call the documents stored in Energy Manager PRO or upload new documents to the Energy Manager PRO Database.



① Document

Requirement

- The document is available in Energy Manager PRO .
- The document has been released for the current Web application.

Downloading a document

1. To load the document from the Energy Manager PRO Database to the Energy Manager PRO Web , select the required document in the structure tree.

tergy manager - web		
> Web configuration	EnMPRO_ToDo_afterSetup.txt	J.
> Dashboards		<u>×</u>
> Reports		
> Charts	-	
> Manual data collection		
> Energy efficiency	Drop file here or click to browse	
Document management		
the second s		

2. Click the download icon to download the document.

The document is opened in Energy Manager PRO Web .

3. To upload a document to the Energy Manager PRO database, drag-and-drop the desired file into the field provided or click on the field to upload the desired file via a file browser.

The document was uploaded to the Energy Manager PRO Web from the Energy Manager PRO Database or downloaded into the Energy Manager PRO Database.

See also

Creating user groups (Page 354)

File management (Page 475)

3.3 Energy efficiency measures in the Web

Overview

Energy Manager PRO Web shows you the energy efficiency measures configured in Energy Manager PRO Client . You can edit the configured energy efficiency measures in Energy Manager PRO Web or create new energy efficiency measures.

	Energy Manager - Web	
	> Web configuration	
	> Dashboards	
	> Reports	
	> Charts	
	> Manual data collection	
	✓ Energy efficiency	
1—	EEEProjektNode	

① Energy efficiency measure

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

Energy efficiency measures are not included in Energy Manager Basic.

Requirement

- The filtered overview object for the energy efficiency measures is generated in Energy Manager .
- The filtered overview object for the energy efficiency measure is enabled for the current web application.

Editing energy efficiency measures

1. To display the energy efficiency measure in the Energy Manager Web, select the required energy efficiency measure in the structure tree.

The energy efficiency measure is displayed in the right pane .

Name	Region	Business Unit	Savings / Year planned	Savings / Year realized	CO ₂ Reduction / Year planned	CO ₂ Reduction / Year realized	Payback Period	Status Equipment Category Investment			
All measures	EEERegio	n EEEBU	0	0	0 TONS	0 TONS	Years	0	ł	0	Û
Project Coun	tt 1		Pi	anned Savings: 0		Planned CO ₂ Reduction: 0 t/Y	'ear				
Investment:	0		ø	Payback period: 0 Years		Realized Savings: 0		Realized CO ₂ Reduction: 0 t/Year			

 \oplus

2. To create a new energy efficiency measure, click "(+)" and enter the required data.

	Name	Status	
	New measures		~
	Region	Category	
			~
	Business Unit	Currency	
			~
	Equipment	Observation Period from	to
		1/1/22 1:00 AM	1/1/23 1:00 AM
	Description of current situation	Description of optimal situ	ation
	Description of current situation	Description of optimal situ	ation
2 R	Description of current situation Next Responsibility	Description of optimal situ	ation
2 R 8 S	Description of current situation Next Responsibility Saving Capabilities	Description of optimal situ	ation
2 R 3 S	Description of current situation Next Responsibility Saving Capabilities Cost Effectiveness	Description of optimal situ	ation
2 R 3 S 4 C 5 D	Next Responsibility Saving Capabilities Cost Effectiveness Domains	Description of optimal situ	ation

See also

Creating user groups (Page 354) Generating a filtered overview object (Page 327) Energy efficiency measures (Page 464)

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

3.4.1 Datapoints

Overview

A datapoint serves to store measured values. In Energy Manager PRO Web you can see all the data points that were defined in the client under the entry point. Restrictions can exist with regard to the user rights.

Procedure

1. Click on the data point whose value you want to display.

Energy Manager - Web	
💛 Energy Manager - Web	
\lor Web configuration	
$\scriptstyle{lash}$ Data points	
 d_firstdevice_E 	_Vah

The detail area opens.

2. You can adapt the settings in the detail area. The datapoint values for the selected settings are shown in the detail area.

With datapoints, the Chart tab is available immediately after a click on the respective object.

() (P) (P) (P) (P) (P) (P) (P) (P) (P) (4	§ 6	
Chart Alarms Comments	Values	Query type: Day curr. Compression < 30.11.2020 - 01.12.2020 曲	•
Timestamp		e_ManualDataPoint [kWh]	
30.11.2020 00:00:00 - 30.11.2020 00:15:00			80 🥒
30.11.2020 00:15:00 - 30.11.2020 00:30:00			84 🥒
30.11.2020 00:30:00 - 30.11.2020 00:45:00			83 🥒
30.11.2020 00:45:00 - 30.11.2020 01:00:00			85 🥒
30.11.2020 01:00:00 - 30.11.2020 01:15:00			82 🥒
30.11.2020 01:15:00 - 30.11.2020 01:30:00			87 👰
30.11.2020 01:30:00 - 30.11.2020 01:45:00			79
		(8)	\overline{O}

- ① Selection of the "Chart" tab
- ② Selection of the "Alarms" tab
- ③ Selection of the "Comments" tab
- ④ Selection of the "Values" tab

(5) Selection of the displayed time period

To change the time period, click on the arrow keys or 🛗 . By clicking on 🛗 , you open the time and date selection. You can find more information on the time and date selection in the Charts (Page 516) section.

- 6 Selection of the displayed compression level
- ⑦ Table with the values of the datapoint and the time stamps of the values.
- 8 Edit a value.

Click this button to open the dialog in which you can change the value. You cannot change the entry of the "Sum" field in the dialog of a counter value.

Values tab

Value changes made in the table are automatically saved in the datapoint. The selected time range is not saved.

On a renewed display of the dialog, the current time range is always displayed.

Chart, Alarms and Comments tabs

You can find more information on the Chart, Alarms and Comments tabs in the Charts (Page 516) section.

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

3.4.2 Parameter

Overview

With a parameter you can acquire a fixed value that is generally valid or whose validity period is limited by the entry of a time range. You can, for example, define electricity or gas prices for specific periods or specify conversion factors such as a CO₂ conversion factor.

The entry of a parameter value in the Energy Manager PRO Client corresponds to the entry in Energy Manager Web.

Parameter value overview

Click on the parameter in the navigation area, for which you want to view, enter or edit a value.

In the detail area you can see an overview of the configured validity periods, including the parameter and default values.

1 2 t_Parameter]		3	(4)
Details 🧷	Time range value	25		Add new value
Default value	Start date	End date	Value	
80 h	06.11.2022 00:00:00	08.11.2022 00:00:00	12.7 h	ØŪ
	09.11.2022 00:00:00	29.12.2023 00:00:00	34 h	ØŪ

- ① Name of the parameter
- 2 Default value of the parameter
- ③ Validity periods and parameter values
- ④ Add new value

Editing the default value

1. To change the default value of the parameter, click the " " button in the parameter detail area.

The "Edit default" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter the default value.
- 3. Select the desired unit.
- 4. Click the "Save" button.

Default value *	
sd	
Unit *	
h	~

Adding a validity period and parameter value

1. To define a new validity period including a parameter value, click on the "Add new value" button.

The "New parameter value" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter a value.
- 3. Select the desired validity period.
- 4. Click on the "Save" button.

Value *		
	Value *	
0	0	



Energy Manager Web

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

Editing the validity period and parameter value

- To change an existing validity period including a parameter value, click on the "2" button. The "Edit parameter value" dialog box opens.
- 2. Enter a value.
- 3. Select the desired validity period.
- 4. Click on the "Save" button.

meter value new		
Value *		_
d		



Deleting the validity period and parameter value

To delete an existing validity period including a parameter value, click on the " \hat{U} " button. The entry is deleted.

See also

Parameters (Page 194) Creating parameters (Page 678) Parameter (Page 676)

3.4.3 Matrices

3.4.3.1 Overview

The matrix allows you to display both historical and current values as numbers in a table. Besides that,

you change the values via the Matrix.

The matrix or value functionality is available as a separate tab for the following objects:

- Data point
- Matrix
- Chart object

Configuring the Values tab for data points and chart objects

In contrast to datapoints and chart objects, the Values tab page in the matrix is available immediately after you click on the relevant object. Value changes made in the matrix are automatically saved in the data point. The selected time range is not saved. When the matrix is displayed again, the current time range is always displayed. You cannot configure the matrix of these objects.

Layout of the Values tab

The following figure shows a representation of the matrix in the Energy Manager Web:

1 2 3	4	5		
Values Chart Alarms (Query type: Month Comments Query type: Month Query type: Month	.2018	≐ >	Compression
				/
Timestamp	a_energy [kWb]		e_gas (kWh)	
01.05.2018 00:15:00		30 🥒		12 🥒
01.05.2018 00:30:00	1	34 🥒		11 /
01.05.2018 00:45:00		33 🥒		13 🥒
01.05.2018 01:00:00	1	35 🥒		12 🥒
01.05.2018 01:15:00	8	32 /		13 🥒
01.05.2018 01:30:00	8	37 🕜		10 🥒
01.05.2018.01-45-00		70		14

- ① Selection of the "Values" tab
- ② Selection of the "Chart" tab
- ③ Selection of the "Alarms" tab
- ④ Selection of the "Comments" tab
- (5) Selection of the displayed time period

To change the time period, click on the arrow keys or 🗰 . By clicking on 🛗 , you open the time and date selection. You can find more information on time and date selection in the Charts (Page 516) section.

Energy Manager Web

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

- 6 Selection of the displayed compression level
- ⑦ Configuration of the matrix

To open the matrix configuration, click on 🖉 .

- (8) Table with the values of the data points and the time stamps of the values.
- 9 Edit a value.

If you click on this button, the dialog opens where you can change the value. You cannot change the entry of the "Sum" field in the dialog of a counter value. You cannot change values of MEVAs/KPIs.

Chart, Alarms and Comments tabs

You can find more information on the Chart, Alarms and Comments tabs in the Charts (Page 516) section.

3.4.3.2 Configuring matrices

To configure a matrix, proceed as follows:

- 1. Click on the matrix in the navigation field.
- 2. To open the configuration dialog, click on 🥒
- 3. Configure the tabs of the configuration dialog as described below.
- 4. Click on the "Save" button.

Common	Data sources		
Common		Extended settings	
Name ObjectName		Current date	
Description		Day	
Default correction state	aninulation	Entry values	
Decimal places		Offset 0	
2		Acyclic	
Allow only da	ata view heck	Cycle 1 h	
Transposed	data presentation	Tag name with batch information d_Batch_batchid1min	

Figure 3-1 Configuration dialog

Configuring the "General" tab

To configure the "General" tab, follow these steps:

- 1. In the "Name" text box, enter the name of the matrix.
- 2. Enter the description of the matrix in the "Description" text box.
- 3. Adjust the "Correction Status" if necessary.

Possible correction status with the respective explanation can be found in the section "Correction status of a value (Page 747)".

- 4. In the "Decimal places" text box, enter the number of decimal places displayed in the matrix.
- 5. If you enable "Allow only data view", you cannot change any values in the matrix.
- 6. If you enable "Plausibility check", the values in the matrix that violate the plausibility limits configured in the data point are highlighted accordingly.

Edit - Matrix

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

- 7. If you enable "Transposed data presentation", the time stamps are displayed above the columns and the data points above the rows.
- 8. If you enable "Current date", the current values are always displayed in the matrix.
- 9. If the "Current date" is not enabled, enter the time from which values are displayed in the matrix in the "From" box.
- 10. From the "Query type" drop-down list, select the period to be displayed.
- 11. From the "Compression" drop-down list, select the compression level to be displayed.
- 12.If you enter a number other than zero in the "Offset" text box, the matrix will not display the selected time period. The displayed time period is shifted by offset times the cycle of the query type. For example, if you have selected the Month query type and an offset of -2, the matrix displays March instead of May.
- 13.If you enable "Acyclic", the values are not assigned to a cycle. This option is useful for matrices with data points without an acquisition cycle.
- 14.If "Acyclic" is disabled, select the cycle in which the values of the data points are displayed from the "Cycle" drop-down list.

Configuring the "Data Source" tab

To configure the "Data source" tab, follow these steps:

1. To add a data point, select the object from the "Select" drop-down list. When you enter a term in the drop-down list, the displayed objects are filtered by that term.

The only objects displayed in the drop-down list are of a type enabled under "Filter".

Alternatively, you can use the structure browser. To open the Structure Browser, click on

Note

You can display values in the matrix that are stored locally on the acquisition component. This data is deleted by the acquisition component 62 days after its creation and can then no longer be displayed in the matrix.

 To configure a selected object for the matrix, click on the object in the "Currently selected" list.

You can enter an alternative name. If you enable the option button in the corresponding row, the alternative name or description of the object is displayed as the name of the data series in the matrix.

3. To delete an object from the chart, click on 📺 .

3.4.4 Setting up mobile data acquisition with the SIMATIC Energy Manager app for iOS and Android

Overview

In addition to manual data acquisition in Energy Manager and Energy Manager Web, you can acquire data manually using the SIMATIC Energy Manager App. With the Energy Manager App you manually acquire measured values (e g. energy data), which are then transferred to Energy Manager for further analyses. The measured values are synchronized via encrypted communication (https) with Energy Manager. To acquire count values in the Energy Manager App, you need a configured reading route. You configure this reading route in Energy Manager. After logging into the Energy Manager App, the app downloads the approved reading routes from Energy Manager and displays these reading routes. In addition to the reading route, the app also applies the appropriately configured data points as well as their main plausibility settings.

Requirements

- The user has the functional right "Matrix".
- The user has the functional right "Measurement".

Procedure

To configure a reading route for manual acquisition with the Energy Manager App, follow these steps:

1. Create a Matrix object with a meaningful name.

You can find more information in the section "Manual acquisition with the matrix".

2. Create a data point of the "Counter" category below the matrix object:

You can find more information in the section "Creating a data point".

3. Create a valid counter for the data point.

You can find more information in the section "Configuring counters".

- 4. Define your limits below the plausibility settings of the data point. You can find more information in the section "Configuring the plausibility".
- 5. Add the matrix object as a Quicklink. You can find more information in the section "Quicklinks".

Energy Manager Web

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

Result

The reading route for manually entering the counter values in the Energy Manager App is configured. Quick links of the "Route" data type are available in the "Mobile acquisition" interface of the app. If no Quicklinks have been created in Energy Manager yet, a message appears in the app.

The following figure shows four Quicklinks from the Energy Manager App:

You can find more information on the Energy Manager App including data acquisition using the app in the "SIMATIC Energy Manager" manual.

See also

Manual acquisition with the matrix (Page 180)

Creating data points (Page 133)

Configuring counters (Page 154)

Configuring the plausibility (Page 157)

Creating Quicklinks in the Web (Page 494)

Creating data points (Page 659)

Configuring counters (Page 664)

Configuring the plausibility settings (Page 666)

Creating matrices (Page 611)

Quicklinks (Page 494)
3.4.5 Importing measured values

Overview

In Energy Manager Web you have the option of importing measured values for one or more data points in CSV format. A wizard guides you through the import procedure.

Note

If a timestamp is already present in a datapoint, the time stamp and its value are overwritten during the import.

Note

- The decimal delimiter between the individual numbers in the import file depends on the language with which you logged in to Energy Manager Web:
 - German: The decimal places are separated from the integer with ","; "." is ignored.
 - English: The decimal places are separated from the integer with "."; "," is ignored.

Login to Energy Manager Web in the language in which the import file was generated.

- The time stamp in the import file depends on the language with which you logged in to Energy Manager Web:
 - German: dd.MM.yyyy hh:mm:ss 24-hour format
 - English: MM/dd/yyyy hh:mm:ss 12-hour format

The columns in the import file are separated by ";" in German and in English.

Requirements

- The data points are set up in Energy Manager .
- The measured values are available in a CSV file.
- The measured values are available in UTC time format.
- The interval between timestamps corresponds to the configured acquisition cycle of the data point.

Energy Manager Web

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

Procedure

To import measured values for one or more data point(s) in Energy Manager Web, follow these steps:

1. Click on the settings icon in the menu bar.

暍
S
X
¢
i
ŝ

Note

The icon for data import is only available in the home area.

2. Click on the "Import" button in the opened settings menu bar.



3. Click the "Select file to upload" button in the detail area.

	E 11000
Choose a file to upload	EnMPRO e energy1day.csv

4. Select the required file.

The following figure shows the content of a valid import file.

📗 e_Gas_consumption.txt - Notepad	
File Edit Format View Help	
LOCAL_DATUM; MSJO_DATUM; e_Gas_consumption 1/2/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 365 1/3/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/2/2018 11:00:00 PM; 545 1/5/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/4/2018 11:00:00 PM; 545 1/6/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/4/2018 11:00:00 PM; 565 1/6/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/6/2018 11:00:00 PM; 565 1/8/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/6/2018 11:00:00 PM; 565 1/8/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/7/2018 11:00:00 PM; 565 1/10/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/9/2018 11:00:00 PM; 835 1/12/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 835 1/15/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 835 1/15/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/16/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/16/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/16/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/16/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/18/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/19/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/1/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/22/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/22/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/26/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/29/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/26/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/29/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/28/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/29/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/28/2018 11:00:00 PM; 855 1/29/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/28/2018 11:00:00 PM; 655 1/21/2018 12:00:00 AM; 1/28/2018 11:00:00 PM; 655	X
र	▼ /

Note

Make sure that the name of the data point in the CSV file and the name of the data point in Energy Manager match.

The content of the selected file is automatically checked. The result of the check is displayed.

5. To start the data import, click on the "Import data" button.

Import Data

The result of the data import is summarized.

3.4 Manual acquisition of data in the Web

- If you want to view the imported data, click on the "Show imported data" button. The values are displayed graphically on a separate web page.
- 7. If you want to save the summary as a file, click the "Save Logfile" button.



Result

The measured values for the corresponding data point are imported.

See also

Login (Page 483) Creating data points (Page 659)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.1 Shortcut menu

Overview

You use the shortcut menu of Edit mode to manage the system structure in Energy Manager Web by creating new objects and configuring existing objects.

Note

Newly created objects and object configurations in Energy Manager PRO Web are also applied in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

The shortcut menu of the editing mode consists of the following menu commands:

- Edit
- Delete
- Cut
- Copy
- Add dashboard
- Add report
- Add chart
- Add matrix
- Add folder
- Add Quicklink

Note

When you place the cursor over a dashboard, report, chart or matrix in edit mode, an edit icon is displayed on the right side of the menu item instead of the shortcut menu icon. When you click on the edit icon, the corresponding configuration dialog opens where you configure the selected object.

Energy Manager Web

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Shortcut menu of folders

To open the shortcut menu of edit mode, follow these steps:

1. Place the cursor over an object in the navigation area.

The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right side of the menu item.

Energy	Managor	Moh
LIICIUY	manager	- 1100

- > Web configuration
- > Dashboards
- > Reports
- > Charts
- > Manual data collection
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu of edit mode opens.

0	Edit
Û	Delete Object
Û	Delete shortcut
×	Cut object
A	Copy shortcut
۲	Add Quicklink
\odot	Add Dashboard
\oplus	Add Report
۲	Add Chart
\oplus	Add Matrix
\oplus	Add Folder

Note

Objects that are not folders have only the following options in the shortcut menu of the navigation area: Edit, Delete, Cut, Copy, Add Quicklink.

See also

Setting up dashboards (Page 550)

Creating reports (Page 598)

Creating charts (Page 607)

Creating matrices (Page 611)

Creating folders (Page 614)

Editing folders (Page 616)

Tree configuration (Page 548)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.2 Tree configuration

Overview

You manage the system structure in Energy Manager Web using the structure tree in the navigation area.

You can use the shortcut menu functions "Copy", "Cut" and "Delete" to restructure objects in the tree within a folder or move objects to other folders.

Note

Structure changes in Energy Manager PRO Web are also applied in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

Opening configuration options

To use the configuration options of the navigation area, follow these steps:

- Place the cursor over the object in the navigation area that you want to rearrange or delete. The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right side of the menu item.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu of the object is displayed.

- Delete Object
- Delete shortcut
- 💥 🛛 Cut object
- 🖄 Copy shortcut
- 3. Click on the relevant configuration option.

Edit mode of the tree is enabled.

The following table shows an overview of the existing configuration tools of objects and their function:

Configuration tool	Function
Delete object	Deletes the selected object from the system.
	Caution: Deletion cannot be undone.
Delete shortcut	Deletes the selected object shortcut from the system.
Cut	Cuts the selected object from the current folder. You then paste the cut object at a different position in the navigation area.
Сору	Copies the selected object to the clipboard. You then paste the selected object at a different position in the navigation area.

Positioning options for the Copy and Cut functions

When you use the "Copy" and "Cut" configuration options, the following position functionalities are enabled in the tree.

> F	Reports	$\vee \sqcup$	

Configuration tool	Function
\checkmark	Positioning of the selected object on the same level below this object.
L.	Positioning of the selected object as a child object below this object.

Disabling positioning mode

Click on "X" to disable positioning mode.



Energy Manager Web

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.3 Dashboards

3.5.3.1 Overview

To visualize various measurement and plant data in a clear manner in Energy Manager Web, you can create Widget Dashboards with the help of the shortcut menu. The data is visualized in the dashboards via widgets. Widget Dashboards are designed for display in Energy Manager Web or on mobile devices. For this reason, only configure Widget Dashboards in Energy Manager Web.

3.5.3.2 Setting up dashboards

Requirements

- The folder has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To create a new Widget Dashboard, follow these steps:

1. Place the mouse pointer over the folder in the navigation area in which you would like to set up the Widget Dashboard.

The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right of the menu item.

2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

3. Click on the menu command "Add dashboard".

Result

The new Widget Dashboard is set up in the selected folder of the navigation area.



See also

Creating Widgets (Page 554) Widget Dashboards in the client (Page 463) Shortcut menu (Page 545) Editing dashboards (Page 551) Overview of Widget Dashboards (Page 500) Create dashboard (Page 306)

3.5.3.3 Editing dashboards

Requirements

- The Widget Dashboard has been set up.
- The user has the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards create, remove, configure" or the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards configure".

Procedure

To edit Widget Dashboards, follow these steps:

1. Place the mouse pointer over the Widget Dashboard in the navigation area that you would like to edit.

The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right of the menu item.

2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

3. Click on the menu command "Edit".

The configuration dialog for editing the dashboard opens.

< Zurück zur Übersicht Dashboard A

Dashboard A	
busicould A	
Beschreibung	
Beschreibung	
Optionale Beschreibung neben dem Namen	
lintergrundbild	

- 4. Enter the name of the Widget Dashboard in the "Name" entry field.
- 5. If required, enter an additional title of the Widget Dashboard in the "Description" entry field.
- 6. In order to use a custom background image, if required, click on the "Select file" button and select the corresponding image.

The background image is positioned centrally and displayed unscaled. The maximum size of the image is 2 MB.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

7. To display the current date of the widgets in the dashboard, turn on the "Current Date" toggle switch.

Query type	×		
These fields must be I	illed out		
Date Range Calculated from t 22.08.2022 09:1	Preview ime: 4:16		
Previous	05 ³⁰ 2121, 21. August 2022	\rightarrow	05 ³⁰ 2222, 22. August 2022
Current	05 ³⁰ 2222, 22. August 2022	\rightarrow	05 ³⁰ 2323, 23. August 2022
Next	05 ³⁰	\rightarrow	05 ³⁰

- 8. If you want to display a specific time range of the widgets in the dashboard, turn off the "Current Date" toggle switch. Select the required date and time from the selection boxes.
- 9. Select the observation period of the data in the Widget Dashboard from the drop-down list "Query type".
- 10.To save the configuration, click on the "Save" button.

Result

The configured settings generally apply for the entire dashboard. You can subsequently add different widgets to the dashboard. More information on adding widgets to a dashboard can be found in the section "Creating widgets". Settings which you configure in the configuration dialog of the individual widgets are only valid for the widget in question.

See also

Overview of Widget Dashboards (Page 500) Setting up dashboards (Page 550) Creating Widgets (Page 554) Deleting dashboards (Page 553)

3.5.3.4 Deleting dashboards

Requirements

- The Widget Dashboard has been set up.
- The user has the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards create, remove, configure".

Procedure

- To delete Widget Dashboards, follow these steps:
- 1. Place the mouse pointer over the Widget Dashboard in the navigation area that you would like to delete.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon. The shortcut menu opens.
- 3. Click the "Delete object" button.

Result

The Widget Dashboard is deleted from the system.

See also

Editing dashboards (Page 551)

Energy Manager Web

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.3.5 Widgets

Creating Widgets

Overview

With the help of widgets you display your plant and measurement data in a different way depending on the widget. You can freely position the widgets within the Widget Dashboard and adjust their size. The displayed values are updated in accordance with their cycle time and the query type of the Widget Dashboard.

Requirement

• The user has the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards - configure" or "Widgets/Dashboards - create, remove, configure".

Basic procedure

To create a widget in the Widget Dashboard, follow these steps:

1. Click in the navigation area on the Widget Dashboard in which you want to add a new widget.

The Widget Dashboard is displayed in the detail area.

2. Click in the detail area of the Widget Dashboard on the shortcut menu icon to the right of the observation period.

The shortcut menu opens.

3. Click on the menu command "Add widget".



The "Available Widgets" dialog window opens.

4. Click on the widget you wish to create.

The widget is added on a free area on the Widget Dashboard.

Result

The corresponding widget is created in the selected Dashboard.

Energy Manager Web 3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

See also

Overview (Page 557) Setting up dashboards (Page 550) Editing dashboards (Page 551) Editing widgets (Page 556) Overview of Widget Dashboards (Page 500) Configuring the General section (Page 575) Configuring the Parameter section (Page 578) Widget Configuration (Page 574) Available Widgets (Page 557) 3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Editing widgets

Requirements

- The Widget Dashboard including widget has been set up.
- The user has the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards create, remove, configure" or the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards configure".

Procedure

To edit widgets in a Widget Dashboard, follow these steps:

- 1. Click in the navigation area on the Widget Dashboard which contains the widget to be edited.
- 2. Then click on the shortcut menu icon in the upper right corner of the widget to be edited. The shortcut menu of the widget opens.
- 3. Click on the menu command "Edit".

	<u>kā</u>
Ø	Edit
Û	Delete
$\underline{\vee}$	Export data

The configuration dialog for editing the widget opens in the detail area.

4. Configure the widget using the individual listed sections.

You can find out how to configure the individual sections in section "Widget Configuration (Page 574)".

5. Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The widget is saved after the corresponding configurations.

See also

Overview of Widget Dashboards (Page 500) Creating Widgets (Page 554) Widget Configuration (Page 574)

Available Widgets

Overview

In the dialog window "Available widgets" you can create 15 different widgets. You can find out how to open the dialog window "Available widgets" and add individual widgets to a Widget Dashboard in the section "Creating Widgets".

The following image shows you the available widgets:



Depending on the widget, you can use one or more data points. The following table provides an overview of the available widgets and the number of data points that you can use in the respective widget.

Widget	Individual data point	Multiple data points		
Gauge	x	-		
Chart	-	х		
Traffic Light	x	-		
Value	-	X		
Pie	-	X		
Matrix	-	X		
Image	-	-		
Report	x	-		
Text	-	-		
Heat Map	x	-		
Мар	-	X		
Sankey	-	Х		
MultiRegression	-	Х		
Duration curve	x	-		

The "Image" and "Text" widgets are special cases and do not require any data points.

Energy Manager Web

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

See also

Creating Widgets (Page 554) Available sections (Page 574) Widget Configuration (Page 574)

Gauge

The "Gauge" widget shows the value of the data point in a speedometer and displays the configured warning limits and upper and lower limits in color.

Chart

The "Chart" widget displays the data points in different graphs during the observation period. If you are in the configuration mode of the dashboard, you can change the display (bar, line, etc.) by clicking on a data point in the legend. You can change the color of the graph to be displayed if a second X-axis exists. When you have configured the y-axes, you can adapt the axis assignment of the y-axes.



Energy Manager Web 3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

The second field shows different performance indicators and a histogram with the distribution of values.



If you are not in configuration mode, you can highlight the data point by clicking on a data point in the legend. If you have configured plausibility limits in the widget, these limits are displayed in the graph. Warning levels are displayed as yellow lines, high and low limits are displayed as red lines. Plausibility limits are not displayed in the histogram.

Traffic Light

The "Traffic Light" widget shows the values of the data points in one of the three traffic light colors, depending on the defined limits. If you do not define any limits in the widget, the traffic light always displays green or red.



Value

The "Value" widget shows the name of the data points, their total value and the associated unit over the selected observation period.

27.09.2022 - Day curr. Power consumption	
Parameter	Value
d_Energy_Consumption	11.808 kWh
d_Energy_Consumption2	12.768 kWh
m_energy_puchase	24.576 kWh

Pie

The "Pie" widget shows the total value of all data points in the observation period inside the semicircle. The individual sections of the pie chart show the percentage of the respective data points. Clicking an individual section of the pie chart shows the value of the individual data point within the semicircle. When you click on a data point in the legend, you can change the display color of the corresponding data point.



Energy Manager Web

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Matrix

The "Matrix" widget shows the values of the data points as a matrix with the corresponding cycle time or timestamp. If you configure plausibility limits in the data point, violations of warning levels are displayed in yellow, while violations of high and low limits are displayed in red.

Timestamp	¢	d_Energy_Consumption	d_Energy_Consumption2 kWh
27.09.2022 00:15:00		121	9
27 09 2022 00 30 00		120	3 13
27.09.2022.00.45.00		130	13
27.09.2022.01.00.00		13	3 13
27.09.2022 01 15:00		12	14
27.09.2022 01.30.00		12	3 13
27.09.2022.01.45.00		124	4 14
27.09.2022 02:00:00		130	9 14
27.09.2022.02.15.00		120	3 14
27.09.2022 02:30:00		12	7 13
27.09.2022 02:45:00		12	1
27.09.2022 03:00:00		124	13
27.09.2022 03:15:00		123	3 13
27.09.2022 03.30.00		12	3 13
27.09.2022 03:45:00		12	3 13
27.09.2022 04.00.00		12	3 13
27.09.2022 04 15:00		12	3 13:
27 09 2022 04 30 00		123	3 133

Image

Depending on the configuration, the "Image" widget shows the selected image either centered in the original size or stretched across the entire length of the widget.

Report

The "Report" widget shows the selected report. You can scroll forwards or backwards in defined intervals in order to also have past periods or future periods displayed.

If there is no report available for the displayed period, the displayed image is grayed out. Click on the image to create the report.

Two icons are available for downloading the report as an EXEL or PDF file.

Report Energy



Text

The "Text" widget shows the entered text in the widget. When you click on a link in the widget, either the URL opens in the Internet browser or the e-mail program opens depending on the link.

Power consumption



Heat Map

The "Heat Map" widget shows a graphical overview of the acquired measured values at specific times of the day. You can individually configure the lower and upper limits. In this way, you can track the time at which your defined limits were exceeded or undershot. When displaying data, you can choose between display over 24 hours or over a week.

The figure below shows an example of a "Heat Map" widget. The measurement data between noon and 6 p.m. lie for the most part in the lower value range.



See also

Configuring the Heatmap section (Page 589)

Мар

Note Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

The "Map" widget is not available in Energy Manager Basic.

The "Map" widget is useful if you are managing several locations in one system. With the "Map" widget you can see the geographical position of the locations on a map and view the main, location-specific KPIs. You can also open two created, location-specific Widget Dashboards. The focus of the map is always selected in such a way that all locations are available. When you click on the Plus or Minus icon, you zoom into or out of the map.

Note

Open Street Map is used as the map. You therefore require an appropriate Internet connection.

The figure below shows a "Map" widget of a Energy Manager system with several locations in Germany:



To display your created locations in the widget, you have to enter the geographical coordinates of the location in the location object in the Energy Manager PRO Client. Only locations with valid coordinates are available for selection in the widget. You can determine the coordinates using Google Maps, for example, and copy them to the location object. Enter the coordinates in the "Location" entry field. You must separate the two coordinates with a blank space.

R Länder		
Name:	Berlin	
Location:	13.413215 52.521918	

Move your location objects (e.g. Berlin and Munich) under a higher-level location object which represents your country.



You then have to assign the location object to the corresponding user group in the "Location" text field using drag and drop.

🚻 User Group - Administrato	ors		x
Name:	Administrators	5	
Description:	Administrator	's user group	*
Energy Manager PRO Web:	Drop Nodes he Basic: Location: Organization: Clear Domains	ere using Drag & Drop:	Veb
9		ОК	Cancel

See also

Configuring the Locations section (Page 590) Inserting the location or country (Page 331) Defining an entry point (Page 355)

Sankey

The Sankey diagram can be used to show an energy flow diagram for a quick overview of the overall energy situation. You define nodes in the Sankey diagram. You connect these nodes with links (data points). You configure the color of the nodes in the settings. When you click on a link, a tooltip shows you the consumption value of the corresponding link. If you display different types of energy (media) in an energy flow diagram, you have to recalculate the energy consumption of the medium to the primary energy which is needed for generation of the medium. If a plant consumes, for example, electrical energy and compressed air, you have to calculate the consumption of compressed air to the electrical energy required for generating consumption. This correlation is defined via the scaling factor.

The figure below shows a Sankey diagram in which the total consumption of an example hall is shown:



In addition to the graphical overall display, you see an overview of all the links in the 2nd tab (Links). The values and the primary energy and the interconnection of the links are shown in this view.

Link Name 🔶	From Node	To Node 🔶	Value 🔶	Primary Energy 🔶
e_Electric_consumption	Electric	Total	14,653.00 kWh	43,959.00 kWh
e_Gas_consumption	Gas	Total	14,899.00 kWh	59,596.00 kWh
e_Water_consumption	Water	Total	15,428.00 kWh	15,428.00 kWh

You see an overview of all the nodes in the 3rd tab (Nodes). The corresponding balance sums of input, output, difference and the relative deviation are displayed in this view.

Consumption hall 1 Jun 13, 2018 - Day

Node Name 🔶	Input 🔶	Output 🔶	Difference 🔶	Relative 🔶
Water	0.00 kWh	15,428.00 kWh 🚯	15,428.00 kWh	100.00 %
Gas	0.00 kWh	59,596.00 kWh 🚯	59,596.00 kWh	100.00 %
Electric	0.00 kWh	43,959.00 kWh 🕚	43,959.00 kWh	100.00 %

When you click on the Info icon next to the numerical value, details of the scaling factor, for example, are displayed. If several links go into or out of a node, the calculation of the value is displayed.

See also

Configuring the Sankey section (Page 592)

MultiRegression

Note Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

The "MultiRegression" widget is not available in Energy Manager Basic.

With the "MultiRegression" widget, you determine the Baseline (theoretically calculated value) of a specific value, for example, the theoretical energy consumption of a plant. If the energy consumption is dependent on known variables, you can determine the theoretical energy consumption. The correlation is determined via a linear regression analysis . In addition to the pure calculation of the theoretical energy consumption, you can also display the deviation of the actual energy consumption from the theoretical energy consumption. This means you can evaluate the current energy situation taking into account the ambient conditions and take appropriate measures in case of deviations. You can also forecast future energy consumption with the model by integrating the influencing factors into the system in the future. If the energy consumption strongly depends on the outdoor temperature, for example, you have to integrate the outdoor temperature into the system in the future.

The "MultiRegression" widget is basically an extension of the Chart widget. The first three tabs correspond to the Chart widget. The actual and theoretical consumption is shown in the 4th tab (Baseline vs. Actual). When you enable the Forecast function, the Forecast is also displayed based on the forecasted data of the influencing factors.



The deviation between the theoretical and the actual energy consumption is shown in the 5th tab (Deviation). When you enable the Forecast function, the deviation of the Forecast from the actual consumption is displayed.



In the 6th tab (Cumulative deviation), the deviation of the Baseline and the Forecast is shown cumulatively.



If the Forecast function is enabled and the data points are assigned, the calculated model is saved twice. Once for the Baseline Management and again for the Forecast. When the first model is saved, data points derived in the Energy Manager PRO Client are created with a measuring variable below the dashboard. The derived data points contain the following data:

- Measurement data for the Baseline
- Deviation from actual consumption
- Forecast and deviation of the Forecast from the actual consumption

In the following example, the Y data point is called "e_MVRA_y". The MEVAs used and derived data points are automatically derived from the name.



For Baseline and Forecast, a separate derived data point is created with the ending "baseline_deviation" and "forecast_deviation". This data point represents the deviation of the actual values from the Baseline or the Forecast. When you subsequently change the name of the Y data point, the names of the derived data points or measuring variables do not change. You can also use the derived data points in other widgets, for example, in the "Traffic Light" widget. If the deviation from the Baseline exceeds a particular value, the traffic light changes to red.

See also

Configuring the Model parameters section (Page 594) Model overview section (Page 597)

Energy Manager Web

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Duration curve

The "Duration Curve" widget shows measurements for a particular time period in a duration curve. The widget shows three types:

- Value-sorted duration curve
- Value-sorted duration curve of the n-highest values
- Hour-based representation of the n-highest values

The 1st tab (Widget) displays the duration curve from the highest to the lowest values in the observation period. The values are shown via the Usage hours. The statistics are displayed at the top of the tab. In addition to the standardized statistics, Consumption and Usage hours are also calculated. The Consumption includes the entire consumption in the observation period. The Usage hours describe the relationship of the total consumption to the maximum measured value.



The 2nd tab (Section) displays the duration curve of the n highest values in the observation period. The number of measured values which you set in the "Display options" tab determines the number n. The measured values are displayed via the number of measured values n.



The 3rd tab (Scatter Plot) displays the n highest values based on hours on a day cycle. The time stamp of the measured values correlates with the hour-based x-axis. The measured values are shown over 24 hours. The number of measured values which you set in the "Display options" tab determines the number n.

Editing D	reduction ci	ito						45'
Duration	curve	🖳 Widge	et 🔼 Section	n 🖳 Scatter Plot	<	02.10.2022 00:00:00 03.10.2022 00:00:00	Range Day curr. Offset -3	>
Minimum: 3	Average: 9,73	Standard deviation	on: 3,42					
Maximum: 23	Median: 10	Consumption: 934	kWh Wo	orkload: 10,15 h				ΦQ
۰								
20								٠
15								
kwh							******	000
10								
			0000000					
5		••						
0	08:00	12:00	•	16:00 d_Consumption_Current	20:00	0	2	04:00

See also

Configuring the Display options section (Page 597)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Widget Configuration

Available sections

You configure your created widgets using the available sections.

Note

To configure the sections, you need either the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards - Configure" or the functional right "Widgets/Dashboards - Create, remove, configure".

Overview

The following table provides an overview of the configurable sections for each widget:

Widget	Gen- eral	Data source	Lim- its	Y- Axis	l m a g e	Te xt	Heat map	Loca- tions	San- key	Alar ms	Model Def- inition	Model Overview	Display op- tions
Gauge	х	х	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Chart	х	х	х	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Traffic Light	х	х	x	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Value	х	x	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Pie	х	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Matrix	х	x	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Image	х	-	-	-	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Report	х	x	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Text	х	-	-	-	-	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Heat Map	х	х	-	-	-	-	х	-	-	-	-	-	-
Мар	х	x	-	-	-	-	-	x	-	-	-	-	-
Sankey	х	x	-	-	-	-	-	-	х	-	-	-	-
MultiRe- gression	х	х	х	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	x	x	-
Duration	х	х	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	х

See also

Overview (Page 557)

Configuring the General section

The "General" section is available to a similar extent for all widgets. In this section you configure the basic information of the widget as well as the date and query type of the display range. The "Date & Query type" area is not needed for the "Text", "Image" and "Report" widgets. Instead, these widgets have corresponding sections for entering a text or for selecting an image or a report.

Procedure

To configure the "General" section, proceed as follows:

1. Enter the name of the widget in the "Title" entry field.

The input of a name is required.

- 2. If you have created several Widget Dashboards, you can select a dashboard from the dropdown list "Dashboard Link".
- 3. When you close the configuration mode of the dashboard, the following icon is displayed in the top right-hand corner:



When you click on the icon, you change to the selected Widget Dashboard.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

4. Enter the number of decimal places for the display of data point values in the "Decimal places" entry field.

Entry of the number of decimal places is required.

eneral	
Title *	
Energy overview	
Dashboard Link	
Dashboard B	~
Optionally set up a dashboard shortcut to appea	ir on the widget.
Decimal places	
2	
Number of decimal places	
Default view	
Widget	~

5. To apply the date and the query type of the configured Widget Dashboard, turn on the "Use dashboard settings" toggle switch.

The selection of a particular timespan and the selection of a query type are deactivated.

- 6. To use a specific date and a specific query type, turn off the "Use dashboard settings" toggle switch.
- 7. If you want to use the current date, turn on the "Current Date" toggle switch.
- 8. If you want to display a specific time, select the desired start date with the associated time.
- 9. Select the required observation period linked to the date from the drop-down list "Query type".
10.If required, shift the start time of the measured value series, e.g. from 00:00 to 08:00, using the "Offset" entry field.

Date & Querytype	
Use dashboard settings: 01.11.2022 00:00:00 - 01.12.2	022 00:00:00 (Month)
Current Date	
26.07.2022 02:00:00]
Query type	
Day curr. 🗸	
Offset	
0	
Optionally specify an offset to the selected date by the selected overy type	6 5

- 11.Select the compression level of the measured values from the drop-down list "Compression". By selecting the compression level you can compress, for example, the cyclically recorded 15-minute values to hourly values.
- 12.If you enter a numerical value in the "Offset [s]" entry field, the measured values are only updated after the duration entered has expired.
- 13. If you turn on the "Timestamps left aligned" toggle switch, the start time (timestamp) of the measured values is displayed.

Compression	
Erfassungswerte	\sim
Timeshift [s]	
60	
Timestamps left aligned	

14.The "Comparison" area is only available for the "Chart" widget; you use it to display a time comparison of the selected data point graphically. If you select the "Static" option, you set a fixed time range using the entry field. If you select the "Dynamic" option, you enter the time offset relative to the query type that is used for the comparison in the "Offset" entry field. A negative value jumps back to the past by one time offset, a positive value jumps to the future.

Data Comparison





O Dynamic

Compare with selected date/time

09.12.2022 00:00:00

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Configuring the Parameter section

You configure the "Parameter" section for almost all the available widgets. In this section, you select the data sources you want to visualize in the corresponding widget.

Requirement

• The data sources have been created.

Procedure

To configure the "Parameter" section, proceed as follows:

1. Select the data sources that you want to use in the widget in the "Parameter" section. You can enter the data sources in the entry field. The drop-down list to the left of the search field allows the search to be limited to the object types "All", "Data point", "Measuring variable", "Parameter".

0		[la mare		
(+) Select parameter	or	All	~	e_en		
1 e energy15min					17 Remove	/ Edi

Selected data sources are displayed below the search field in numerical order.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

2. To configure further information of the selected data source, click on the "Edit" button of the corresponding data source.

This opens the additional setting options of the data source.

e_energy15min	🖞 Remove 🛛	🗸 ОК
Label to use		
Name () Custom () Description Name		
e_energy15min		
Custom		
Enter custom label		
Alternative label used only for this dashboard		
Description		
Category		
Energy/Consumption		~
Function		
]

3. To use the name of the data point in the display, select the "Name" option.

A change to the name in the entry field underneath is not possible.

- 4. To use an alternative name of the data point in the display, select the "Custom" option. Enter the name in the "Custom" entry field underneath.
- 5. Select the "Description" check box if you want to use the description of a data point in the display.

It is not possible to enter a description. You enter the description text when creating the data source.

6. Select the display type of the values in the widget from the drop-down list "Category". The drop-down list is only available for data point types of the category "Energy", "Power" or "Count value".

You can choose between the following display types:

- Energy / consumption
- Power / Flow
- Counter (only available for acquisition category "Count value")

If you use a data point of the acquisition category "Energy / Consumption", for example, and set the display type in the widget to "Power / Flow" the original energy values change to the corresponding power values. The unit in the display of the widget also changes accordingly, for example, from kWh to kW.

Note

If you change the display type, the unit of the y-axis does not change. The unit of the y-axis is initialized with the first data point added. You set the unit of the y-axis under "Y-Axis" in the "Axes" section.

The conversion of the unit is always hour-related, for example, from J to J/h or from W to Wh.

- 7. Select the information type which you would like to display from the drop-down list "Function". You can choose from the following information types:
 - sum: Shows the values from the "Sum" column of the measured value editor in the defined observation period.
 - min: Shows the values from the "Minimum" column of the measured value editor in the defined observation period.
 - max: Shows the values from the "Maximum" column of the measured value editor in the defined observation period.
 - avg: Shows the values from the "Average" column of the measured value editor in the defined observation period.
 - last value: Shows the values from the "Last value" column of the measured value editor in the defined observation period.

The information type "avg" is automatically and unalterably enabled for the category "Power / Flow" selected in step 6. The default setting for the "Energy/Consumption" category is the information type "sum"; the default setting for the "Counter" category is the information type "last value". You can change both information types later.

See also

Creating data points (Page 659)

Configuring the Limits section

The "Limits" section is available for the following widgets:

- Gauge
- Chart
- Traffic Light
- Matrix
- MultiRegression

In this section, you define a validity range for the measured data by setting limits.

Procedure

To configure the "Limits" section, proceed as follows:

- Click on the data source that you want to configure. The possible limit settings are opened.
- 2. Enter the lower and upper limits for the alarm range in the left and right entry fields below "Alarm".
- 3. Enter the lower and upper limits for the warning range in the left and right entry fields below "Warning".

Note

If you have already configured a plausibility for a data point and have defined the limits for the alarm and warning range, these entries are automatically applied in the section.

Note

For a Gauge or Traffic Light widget, you can also define the color display of the ranges.

4. In the case of a Gauge widget, enter the start of display or end of display in the "Min-Range" and "Max-Range" entry field, respectively.

3 Limits



Note

The entries configured in the widget only apply to this widget and are not updated in the data source. A change to the limits in the widget does not change the plausibility settings in the data source.

See also

Configuring the plausibility (Page 157)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Configuring the Axes section

The "Axes" section is available for the "Chart" and "MultiRegression" widgets. In this section, you configure the graphs and Y-axes of the chart. You can add up to five additional Y-axes. If you have added more than one y-axis, you can delete y-axes that are no longer required by clicking on the "Delete" button.

Procedure for configuring graphs

To configure the graphs, proceed as follows:

1. To configure the curve display of the desired graph, click on the "Edit" button of the respective data point.

The possible settings for the graph are opened.

e_energy15min	↓ OK
Visible Step Stacked	
ýpe	
Line 🗸	
-Axis	
kWh 🗸	
abel	
e_energy15min	
Color	
Comparison Period Color	

2. Select the desired display options of the graph using the check boxes.

You can choose from the following display options:

- Visible: The curve is display visibly.
- Step: The curve is displayed in the shape of steps.
- Stacked: The curve is displayed in stacked bars.

3. Select the display type of the curve from the "Type" drop-down list.

You can choose between the following types:

- Area
- Bar
- Line
- Points
- Spline
- 4. Select the y-axis to be displayed for the graph in the "Y-Axis" drop-down list.
- 5. Enter the label of the graph in "Label" entry field.
- 6. Under "Color", select the display color of the graph.
- 7. Under "Comparison Period Color", select the color of the comparison graph.

The option of the displayed comparison graph is enabled in the "General (Page 575)" section.

8. Click the "OK" button to confirm the configuration.

Procedure for configuring the y-axis

To configure the y-axis, follow these steps:

1. To configure the desired y-axis, click on the "Edit" button.

The possible settings for the y-axis are opened.

	,		1	2	-	1
1	-	Ρ	υ	C	е	S

kWh		V Remove V OK
Title		
kWh		
Color		
Axis on right	side	
6		
Lower limit	Upper limit	

- 2. Enter the name for the y-axis in the "Title" entry field. The unit of the data point measured values is usually entered.
- 3. Under "Color", select the display color of the y-axis.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

4. If you want to display the y-axis on the right side of the graph, select the "Axis on right side" check box.

The y-axis is displayed on the left by default.

- 5. Enter the limits of the y-axis in the "Lower Limit" and "Upper Limit" entry fields.
- 6. Click the "OK" button to confirm the configuration.
- 7. If you want to add another y-axis, click on the "Add new Y-Axis" button.

A new Y-axis is created in the list.

8. Repeat steps 1-6 for the new y-axis.

Note

In the widget, the title or the unit of the y-axis is initialized with the first added data point.

Note

When you do not enter any limits in the "Lower Limit" and "Upper Limit" entry fields, the y axis is automatically adapted.

See also

MultiRegression (Page 569)

Configuring the Image section

The "Image" section is available for the "Image" widget. With this section, you display a custom image in the Widget Dashboard.

Procedure

To configure the "Image" section, proceed as follows:

- 1. Under "Dashboard Link", select the Dashboard in the drop-drop list to which the image is to be added.
- 2. Under "Display mode", select whether you want to display the image "Top left" in the same size, "Centered" in the same size or "Stretched".
- 3. If you want to add an image from the Internet, insert the link of the image under "Image URL".
- 4. If you want to add a locally saved image, click on the "Select file" button to upload your desired image.

Display mode			
Top left O Centered C	Stretched O Repeated		
mage Source			
indge bounce			
Image URL			Image File
			Participation and Participation
	L	Jpload or	Select image file

Configuring the Text section

1

The "Text" section is available for the "Text" widget. With this section, you compose a custom text that is displayed in the widget. You can also insert a URL link or an e-mail address with a particular message text as text. When you click on the URL link after configuration, the page is opened in your Internet browser. When you click on the e-mail link, your default e-mail program opens to which the entered texts are copied.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Procedure

To configure the "Text" section, proceed as follows:

- 1. Enter the required text in the text field. When entering the text you can choose from the following functions for editing the text:
 - Bold
 - Italic
 - Underline
 - Strikethrough
 - Numbered list
 - List
 - Subscript
 - Superscript
 - Decrease indent
 - Increase indent
 - Show formatting symbols
 - Font size
 - Text color
 - Background color
 - Font type
 - Text alignment
 - Insert/edit link
 - Insert image



- 2. When you click on the "Insert link" icon, the dialog window "Link" opens.
- 3. Select the type of link from the "Link type" drop-down list.

You can choose between the following types:

- Open in new tab
- E-mail
- 4. Select one of the available transfer protocols from the drop-down list "Protocol".

5. Enter a valid URL in the "URL" entry field.

Setup link Link type	
Open in new tab	×1
Protocol	ų
https://	~
URL	
www.	
ок	Cancel

- 6. To send a text via e-mail, select the menu command "E-mail" from the drop-down list "Link type".
- 7. Enter the recipient's-mail address in the "E-mail address" entry field.
- 8. Enter the subject in the "Subject line" entry field.
- 9. Enter the text message in the "Message text" entry field.

Setup link	
Link type	
E-mail	~
E-mail address	
laura.mustermann@siemens.com	1
Message subject	
EnMPRO	
Message body	
Dear Mrs. Mustermann,	
	1.
ок	Cancel

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Configuring the Data source report section

A special view of the "Data source" section with the "Reports" area is available for the "Report" widget. In this section, you select the report that is generated in the widget.

Requirement

• The report has been created.

Procedure

To configure the "Data source" section of the "Report" widget, proceed as follows:

1. Select the desired report you want to use in the widget.



Configuring the Heatmap section

The "Heatmap" section is available for the "Heat Map" widget. With this section, you set the limits and the display of the measured values.

Procedure

To configure the "Heatmap" section, proceed as follows:

- 1. Enter your individual limits for the measurement data in the "Lower limit" and "Upper limit" entry fields. In this way you define a valid range for your measurement data. If you do not enter any values in the entry fields, the maximum and minimum measured value is used as the limit.
- 2. Select the display color of the measured values for the settings "Normal", "Warning" and "Violation".
- 3. If you want to display the measurement data for a day, select the "Day view" option. If you want to display the measured data for a week, select the "Week view" option.

Display values as		
O Day view		
O Week view		
Limit for minimum values	Middle values	Limit for maximum values
Avito		Auto

See also

Heat Map (Page 564)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Configuring the Locations section

The "Locations" section is available for the "Map" widget. With this section, you configure the location-specific KPIs and dashboards that you view from your system.

Requirements

- The location object with valid GPS coordinates has been created.
- The location object is assigned to the corresponding user group.
- The dashboards have been created.
- The KPIs have been created.

Procedure

To configure the "Locations" section, proceed as follows:

1. Select the locations for which you want to display the location-specific dashboards and KPIs from the drop-down list "Select location".

•	Locations
•	Locations

Munich	~
1 Berlin	T Remove Fedit

Note

To display your created locations in the widget, you have to enter the geographical coordinates of the location in the location object in the Energy Manager PRO Client. Only locations with valid coordinates are available for selection in the widget. You can determine the coordinates using Google Maps, for example, and copy them to the location object. You must separate the two coordinates with a blank space.

In addition, you have to assign the location object to the corresponding user group.

You can find more detailed information on location selection in the "Map" paragraph of the "Extended widgets" section.

The selected locations are displayed in the "Currently selected" list.

- 2. To select the location-specific dashboards and KPIs, click the corresponding location.
- 3. Select up to two dashboards to which you want to jump directly from the location tooltip for each location in the drop-down list "Add dashboard".
- 4. Enter the name of the dashboard in the adjacent entry field.

5. Select up to five KPIs you want to display for each location from the "Add a parameter" dropdown list.

to a Location:	×
1 Berlin	T Remove VO
Add a Dashboard:	
Dashboard A	🗍 Remove 🧷 Edit
Add a parameter:	
e_other15min	~
e_other15min	🗍 Remov

Note

You can configure up to 50 data points or KPIs in the "Map" widget.

6. When you click on the Delete icon, you remove KPIs which are no longer required.

See also

Map (Page 565)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Configuring the Sankey section

The "Sankey" section is available for the "Sankey" widget. With this section, you configure the nodes and data points that you use in the Sankey diagram.

Requirement

• The data points have been created.

Procedure

To configure the "Sankey" section, proceed as follows:

1. Enter the name of the node (media) you want to show in the Sankey diagram in the "Add a node" entry field.

Use meaningful names for the corresponding nodes.

2. Click on the "Add node" button.

odes	
d a Node:	
Gas	
rrent Nodes:	
:: 1 Water	🛱 Remove 🧷 Edit
:: 1 Water	🖞 Remove

The node is added to the list "Current nodes".

- 3. Click on the name of a node and select a color.
- 4. From the drop-down list "Add a link" select the data points that you want to use in the Sankey diagram.
- 5. To incorporate the data points in the Sankey diagram, click on the "Add link" button.

Note

You can configure up to 50 nodes and data points in the Sankey diagram.

The data points are displayed in the list "Current links".

6. To link the data points with the corresponding nodes, click on the data points.

elect a datapoint	\sim
rent Links:	
1 <mark>e_energy15min</mark> _{Water → Total}	T Remove VK
Source	
Water	~
Target	
Total	~
Scaling	
1	

7. Select the incoming quantity flow of the respective data points from the drop-down list "Source", and the outgoing quantity flow of the respective data points from the drop-down list "Target".

Note

When linking the data points with the nodes you have to assign the "source" and "target" of a data point to different nodes.

- 8. Enter a scaling factor in the "Scaling" entry field. The scaling factor is required for recalculation to the primary energy in an energy flow diagram with different media.
- 9. You can remove nodes or data points which are no longer required from the Sankey diagram with the help of the delete icon.

See also

Sankey (Page 567)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Configuring the Model parameters section

The "Model parameters" section is available for the "MultiRegression" widget. With the "Model parameters" section, you configure the data points for determining the Baseline and Forecast.

Requirement

• The data points have been created.

Procedure

To configure the "Model parameters" section, proceed as follows:

- 1. Select the data point whose Baseline you want to determine, for example, energy consumption of a plant, from the drop-down list "Output parameter/Y-values".
- 2. Select the data points that influence the Y-data point from the drop-down lists "Baseline input parameters". You can select up to five data points.
- 3. If you want to use the Forecast function, enable the "Use forecast" option.
- 4. Then select the corresponding x-values from the drop-down lists under "Forecast input parameters".

The same number of parameters is required for the Baseline and the Forecast.

5. With the help of the corresponding selection boxes, select the analysis time window in which you want to analyze the selected data.

Mod	el parameters			
Outpu	ut parameter			
Ø	e MVRA y \sim]	Use forecast	
Basel	ine input parameters		Forecast input parameters	
0	e_MVRA_Production_x1 v	Û	e_MVRA_Production_x2	~
2	Select parameter 🗸 🗸]		
Analy	ysis time frame 17/2022 11:00:00 PM > 12/18/2022	11:00	:00 PM	
0	correction [%]			
Deviat the en	ions between the calculated and actual y value grea tered value are not included in the model calculatio	ter thar n	1	
ŕ	Calculate formula			
No	te			

No one-time special effects should exist in this time window, because they would influence the result.

6. To exclude spikes in the values from the calculation, enter a spike correction value greater than 0%.

A value of 100% means that a deviation greater than 100% between the calculated and actual y value is not included in the calculation.

7. Click on the "Calculate formula" to start the analysis.

The result is output with the "coefficient of determination" and the "F-Ratio". The coefficient of determination specifies the correlation between the values. The coefficient of determination lies between the value 0 and the value 1. In addition, the color adjusts to the coefficient of determination:

- 0 0.3 No or little correlation (red)
- 0.3 0.6 Medium correlation (yellow)
- 0.6 1: Good or full correlation (green)
- 8. If the result shows a corresponding correlation, you can set the validity time of this model.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

- 9. Click on the "Save event" button.
- 10.If the result shows a corresponding correlation, you can load a previously calculated analysis by clicking on the "Load result" button.

Result	
y = 1.00 x1 - 9.00	
Coefficient of determination	F-Ratio
1 [●] _{≥0.70}	9,007,199,254,740,991
Model validity	
12/19/2022 12:00:00 AM	
Save result Load res	ult

See also

MultiRegression (Page 569)

Model overview section

The "Model Overview" section is available for the "MultiRegression" widget. With this section, you see an overview of the models defined in the "Model parameters" section.

Procedure

In the "Model Overview" section, you cannot configure any parameters, but only delete models. You delete models by clicking on the delete icon. Only the defined models are displayed in the model overview. The date specifies the validity time of the model.

12/19/2022 12:00:00 AM	A
y = (1.0x1) - 9.00	Remove Remove
🕥 e MVRA y	
Baseline	
e MVRA Production x1	

See also

MultiRegression (Page 569)

Configuring the Display options section

The "Display options" section is available for the "Duration Curve" widget. With this section, you enter the number of measured values that you use for display of the duration curves.

Procedure

To configure the "Display options" section, proceed as follows:

1. Enter the number of measured values you want to use for displaying the duration curves in the "Amount of data for detail view" entry field.

The number of measured values is used for the display of the 2nd and 3rd tab in the "Duration Curve" widget.

See also

Duration curve (Page 572)

3.5.4 Reports

3.5.4.1 Overview

To evaluate measurement data in Energy Manager Web, you can create and configure reports with the help of the shortcut menu. The creation of reports in Energy Manager Web is based on report templates. You cannot configure these report templates in Energy Manager Web, but only in the Energy Manager PRO Client. Newly created reports and configurations on already existing reports in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

3.5.4.2 Creating reports

Requirements

- The folder has been created.
- The data points, measuring variables and parameters have been created.
- Users have been created.
- The user has the functional right "Report create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To create reports, follow these steps:

1. Place the mouse pointer over the folder in the navigation area in which you would like to create the report.

The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right of the menu item.

2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

3. Click on the "Add report" menu command.

The configuration dialog "New - Report" is opened.

Configuring the "General" section

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the report in the "Name" text box.
 - The input of a name is required.

Note

Do not use Excel-specific expressions such as A1 or =FG14 during the report creation.

The report name cannot contain any special characters. The following characters are permitted:

- A to Z
- a to z
- 0 to 9
- _
- Space
- 2. If required, enter a description of the report in the "Description" text box.
- 3. Select the display type of the name in the report from the drop-down list "Text type".
- 4. Select the appropriate country from the drop-down list "Country".
- 5. To use a desired report template, enable the "Use template" option. The following report templates are available:
 - Balance Calculates the total value of the selected data points, measuring variables and parameters over the entire observation period of the report.
 - Balance comparing In addition to the "Balance" template, it calculates the total value of the previous observation period and that of the previous year.
 - Protocol Returns the values of the selected objects in the selected interval within the observation period.
 - Protocol with from/to In addition to the "Protocol" template, it specifies the timestamp with the start and end of the interval.
 - Duration curve Sorts the values (from the largest to the smallest) of the selected objects in the selected interval within the observation period.

The query types which you configured in the report template are automatically adopted as query types.

Name *	
EEnPI_overview	
Description	
Text type	Country
Name ~	englischUSA V
Use template	Construction in
Use template	
Continue Periods (Query Types)	
Continue Periods (Query Types) Sections (Modules)	

Configuring the "Periods (Query types)" section

- 1. You have the option of selecting further query types from the drop-down list "Select query type". The selected query types are displayed in the overview list.
- 2. You can select a compression level for each query type.

Note

If you set the compression level "Dynamic values" in this area, the calculation logic uses the best possible compression level for the calculation automatically.

- 3. To delete existing report results, enter an interval in the "Report delete after" entry field Select the associated unit from the drop-down list.
- 4. To enable automatic report creation, enable the "Start" option.
- 5. To delay the report creation, enter the desired delay in the "Start report after" entry field. Select the associated unit from the drop-down list.
- 6. To calculate existing report results again, enter an interval in the "Repeat calculation every" entry field. Select the associated unit from the drop-down list.

You can use this option, for example, to update a created report result daily and overwrite the existing report result.

To create a new report result with the current values each time, select the "Create each with a new result" check box.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

- 7. To send the generated report to selected users via e-mail automatically, enable the "Send per mail" option.
- 8. Select the format of the report. You can choose between PDF and Excel format.
- 9. To additionally receive a link to the report, select the "Mail link to recipient in addition to the file" check box.
- 10.Select the users who will receive the report under "Select users". Only users with assigned email address are displayed. The recipients of the report are displayed in an overview list.
- 11.Click on the "OK" button.
- 12. Repeat steps 1 to 11 for each selected query type.
- 13.To remove query types that are no longer required, click on the Delete icon.

uery type	
Select query type to add 🤍	
1 Month	🖞 Remove 🗸
Compression Level	Report delete after
Dynamic Values 🗸	1 M ~
Automation	
Start	
Start report after	Report calculation every
5 ~	0 d ~
	Create each with a new result
Mailing	
Send per mail	
O Excel O Pdf	
Mail link to recipient in addition to the file	
Select users	
	2

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Configuring the "Sections (Modules)" section

- 1. To add a module, click on "Add new module".
- 2. You can change the order of the modules via Drag and Drop.
- 3. To remove modules that are no longer required, click on the Remove icon to the right of the module name.
- 4. To edit a module, press the Edit button.
- 5. Enter a name for the module in the "Module name" text box.

Note

The report module names are used as Excel "cell names".

To ensure conformant module configuration, observe the standard designations for the country-specific Microsoft EXCEL documentation.

Do not use Excel-specific expressions, e.g. C1 or R1, or Z1 or S1 in German systems, at the beginning of the report module name.

- 6. Under "Type", select the module type.
 - You need a data point to configure a query module.
 - You need a data point, a parameter or a measuring variable to configure a balancing module or a protocol module.

More information on the module types is available in the section "Module overview (Page 758)".

- 7. Select the "Insert rows before inserting values" check box if required.
- 8. In the event of an interval configuration, select the corresponding time interval for each existing query type. Using the time interval you divide the observation period into equally sized intervals.
- 9. Select the data points, parameters and MEVAs that you want to use in the module. You can enter the data points in the text box. You can use the drop-down list to limit the search to the object types "All", "Data point", "Measuring variable" and "Parameter".

Selected data points are displayed below the search bar.

Note

Object descriptions of Data points, Measuring variables and Parameters must not contain Excel-specific expressions such as A1 or =FG14.

If you output the properties of objects in reports, do not use Excel-specific expressions in the output properties.

Note

Pay attention to the order of the data points in the module types.

10.Click on "OK".

11.Repeat steps 1 to 10 for each module.

- 12. You can change the order of the data points via Drag and Drop.
- 13.To remove data points that are no longer required, click on the Remove icon to the right of the desired data point name.

1 New_Module1		T Remove VOK
Module name		Туре
New_Module1		Protocol
Month Assign objects	1 d ~	Gelect parameter
1 d_firstdevice_E_Wh		🗍 Remove
:: 2 New_Module		🗍 Remove 🧷 Edit

Configuring the "Template" section

3

- 1. To apply newly created modules to the report template, click on "Generate names". A new report template is created, or an existing report template is updated.
- 2. To edit report templates, click on the "Export existing template" button.

The report templates are exported to the default download directory of your browser as an .xlsm file.

3. To import edited report templates, click the "Import new template file" button. Select the edited report template.

000		•
ર્ટ્ટ્રેટ્રે		
Generate names	Export existing template	Import new template file
Add new sections to template	Save template to file system	Load from file system

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Result

The report has been created.

See also

Shortcut menu (Page 545) Creating users (Page 704) Editing reports (Page 605) Deleting reports (Page 606) Reports (Page 511) Creating MEVAs / KPIs (Page 684) Creating parameters (Page 678) Creating data points (Page 659) Creating a report (Page 276)

3.5.4.3 Editing reports

Instead of selecting a report template when editing a report, you can export and import report templates. You can edit and then reimport report templates which you export. You can also import other saved report templates. The imported report template is used for the next report generation.

Requirements

- The report has been created.
- The data points, measuring variables and parameters have been created.
- The report templates have been configured.
- Users have been created.
- The user has the functional right "Report configure" or the functional right "Report create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To edit reports, follow these steps:

- 1. Place the mouse pointer over the report in the navigation area which you want to edit. The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right of the menu item.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

3. Click on the menu command "Edit".

The configuration dialog for editing the settings of the report opens.

- 4. You can configure all the settings again which you defined on creation of a report. The input of a name is required.
- 5. To export report templates, click the "Export" button. You can open the report templates directly or save the report templates. Saved report templates are exported to the standard download directory of your browser as an .xlsm file.
- 6. To import report templates, click the "Import" button.
- 7. Select the report template you want to import.

The settings in the report template are adopted for the selected report.

Note

When you import a new report template for an existing report, you must enable the current report configurations in the report template again with "Generate names" under "Template".

8. Click on the "Save" button.

See also

Creating reports (Page 598) Deleting reports (Page 606) Configuring reports (Page 279)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.4.4 Deleting reports

Requirements

- The report has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Report create, remove, configure".

Deleting a report

To delete reports, follow these steps:

- 1. Place the mouse pointer over the report in the navigation area which you want to delete. The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right of the menu item.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.
- 3. Click on the "Delete object" button.
- Confirm the deletion in the confirmation window to delete the object.
 You have the option of canceling the deletion in the confirmation window.

Result

The report is deleted from the system.

See also

Editing reports (Page 605)

3.5.5 Charts

To graphically display measurement data in Energy Manager Web, you can create new charts and configure existing charts with the help of the shortcut menu. Newly created charts and configurations on already existing charts in EnergyManagerPROWeb are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

3.5.5.1 Creating charts

Requirements

- The folder has been created.
- The data points have been created.
- The user has the functional right "Chart Object create".

Procedure

To create charts, follow these steps:

- 1. Enable the editing mode.
- 2. Place the mouse pointer over the folder in the navigation area in which you want to create the chart.

The shortcut menu icon is displayed in the right-hand area of the menu item.

3. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

4. Click on the menu command "Add chart".

The configuration dialog "New - Chart" opens.

5. Enter a meaningful name for the chart in the "Name" entry field.

The input of a name is required.

6. If required, enter a description of the chart in the "Description" entry field.

escription		

7. Click the "Save" button.

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

Result

The chart has been created.

See also

Shortcut menu (Page 545) Creating data points (Page 659) Editing charts (Page 609) Deleting charts (Page 610) Creating a Chart (Page 301)

3.5.5.2 Editing charts

Requirements

- The chart has been created.
- The data points have been created.
- The user has the functional right "Chart Object configure".

Procedure

To edit charts, follow these steps:

- 1. Enable the editing mode.
- Place the mouse pointer over the chart in the navigation area which you want to edit.
 The Edit icon is displayed in the right-hand area of the menu item.
- 3. Click on the editing icon.

The configuration dialog "Edit - Chart" opens.

- 4. As with creating a chart, you can configure the name and description again. The input of a name is required.
- 5. Click on the "Save" button.

See also

Creating charts (Page 607)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.5.3 Deleting charts

Requirements

- The chart has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Chart Object delete".

Procedure

To delete charts, follow these steps:

- 1. In the navigation area, place the mouse pointer over the chart you would like to delete. The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right of the menu item.
- 2. Click the shortcut menu icon.
- 3. Click the "Delete object" button.
- Confirm the deletion in the confirmation window to delete the object.
 You have the option of canceling the deletion in the confirmation window.

Result

The chart is deleted from the system.

See also

Editing charts (Page 609)

3.5.6 Matrices

3.5.6.1 Overview

To manually acquire measurement data in Energy Manager Web or define a reading route for mobile data acquisition using the Energy Manager App, you need matrices. You create matrices and configure them in Energy Manager Web. Newly created matrices and configurations on already existing matrices in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

3.5.6.2 Creating matrices

Requirements

- The folder has been created.
- The data points have been created.
- The user has the functional right "Matrix create, remove, modify".

Procedure

To create matrices, follow these steps:

- 1. Enable the editing mode.
- 2. Place the mouse pointer over the folder in the navigation area in which you would like to create the matrix.

The shortcut menu icon is displayed in the right-hand area of the menu item.

3. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

4. Click on the menu command "Add matrix".

The configuration dialog "New - Matrix" opens.

- 5. In the "Name" text box, enter the name of the matrix.
- 6. Enter a description of the matrix in the "Description" text box. This entry is optional.
- 7. Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The matrix has been created.

See also

- Shortcut menu (Page 545)
- Editing matrices (Page 612)
- Deleting matrices (Page 613)
- Creating data points (Page 659)

Setting up mobile data acquisition with the SIMATIC Energy Manager app for iOS and Android (Page 539)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.6.3 Editing matrices

Requirements

- The matrix has been created.
- The data points have been created.
- The user has either the functional right "Matrix create, remove, modify" or the functional right "Matrix modify".

Procedure

To edit matrices, follow these steps:

- 1. Enable the editing mode.
- 2. Place the mouse pointer over the matrix in the navigation area which you want to edit. The Edit icon is displayed in the right-hand area of the menu item.
- Click on the editing icon.
 The configuration dialog "Edit Matrix" opens.
- You can configure all the settings again which you defined on creation of a matrix. The input of a name is required.
- 5. Click on the "Save" button.

See also

Creating matrices (Page 611)
3.5.6.4 Deleting matrices

Requirements

- The matrix has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Matrix create, remove, modify".

Procedure

To delete matrices, follow these steps:

- 1. In the navigation area, place the mouse pointer over the matrix which you want to delete. The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right of the menu item.
- 2. Click the shortcut menu icon.
- 3. Click the "Delete object" button.
- Confirm the deletion in the confirmation window to delete the object.
 You have the option of canceling the deletion in the confirmation window.

Result

The matrix is deleted from the system.

See also

Editing matrices (Page 612)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.7 Folder

3.5.7.1 Overview

To create a custom navigation structure in Energy Manager Web, create new folders and configure existing folders with the help of the shortcut menu. Newly created folders and configurations on already existing folders in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

3.5.7.2 Creating folders

Requirement

• The user has the functional right "Folder - create, delete"

Procedure

To create folders, follow these steps:

- 1. Enable the editing mode.
- 2. Place the mouse pointer over the folder in the navigation area in which you want to create a new folder.

The shortcut menu icon is displayed in the right-hand area of the menu item.

3. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu opens.

4. Click on the "Add folder" menu command.

The configuration dialog "New - Folder" opens.

5. Enter a meaningful name for the folder in the "Name" entry field.

Add Folder

Description	
S-	
Authority	
0	

The input of a name is required.

6. If required, enter a description of the folder in the "Description" entry field.
 7. Enter the authority level for the folder in the "Authority level" entry field.
 8. Click on the "Save" button.

Result
The folder has been created.
See also
Shortcut menu (Page 545)
Folder (Page 499)
Editing folders (Page 616)
Deleting folders (Page 617)

3.5 Configuration of the analysis objects

3.5.7.3 Editing folders

Requirements

- The folder has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Folder configure".

Procedure

To edit folders, follow these steps:

- 1. Enable the editing mode.
- 2. Place the mouse pointer over the folder in the navigation area which you want to edit. The shortcut menu icon is displayed in the right-hand area of the menu item.
- 3. Click on the shortcut menu icon. The shortcut menu opens.
- Click on the menu command "Edit". The configuration dialog "Edit - Folder" opens.
- 5. Configure the name, the description, if required, and the authorization level of the folder. The input of a name is required.
- 6. Click on the "Save" button.

See also

Shortcut menu (Page 545) Folder (Page 499) Creating folders (Page 614)

3.5.7.4 Deleting folders

Requirements

- The folder has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Folder create, delete".

Procedure

To delete folders, follow these steps:

- 1. In the navigation area, place the mouse pointer over the folder which you want to delete. The shortcut menu icon is displayed in the right-hand area of the menu item.
- 2. Click on the shortcut menu icon.
- 3. Click the "Delete object" button.
- Confirm the deletion in the confirmation window to delete the object.
 You have the option of canceling the deletion in the confirmation window.

Result

The folder is deleted from the system.

See also

Editing folders (Page 616)

3.6 Project configuration

3.6.1 Overview

In the "Project configuration" folder you create new data sources and data channels as well as their processing calculations in Energy Manager Web. You can also configure already existing objects.

You can configure the following acquisition and processing objects:

- Data sources
- Data points
- Parameter
- MEVAs / KPIs

Opening the project configuration

To open the "Project configuration" folder, follow these steps:

1. Click in the menu bar on "Configuration".



2. Click the menu item "Project configuration" in the navigation area.

۵ ۵
Project configuration
Data source
Data point
Parameter
Meva / Kpi
Settings

In the detail area you see an overview of the configurable objects in tile form.

DATA SOURCE	DATA POINT
Create and maintain your channels to your data souces	Create and maintain your data points
Available 7 Data sources: 7	Available 7 Data points: 7
PARAMETER	MEVA / KPI
Create and maintain your parameters for prices, factors or constants	Create and maintain your key performance indicators
Available 2 Parameters:	Available 1 MEVA / KPIs:

The number of available objects is displayed in the bottom part of the tiles.

Note

Data points, Parameter and MEVAs / KPIs are only available in the configuration area in Energy Manager Web if the following criteria are met:

- The object is linked at least once in the entry point of the user in the Web.
- The authority level of the object is lower than or the same as the authority level of the user.
- The object and the user are assigned to the same domain.

3. To configure the respective object, click on the corresponding tile in the detail area. As an alternative, you can click on the corresponding menu item in the navigation area.

Note

The folder structures are automatically created after the installation of Energy Manager and cannot be deleted by the user. The structure of the configuration area is created in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "System > Configuration > Web Configuration".

See also

Data source (Page 623) Data point (Page 657) Parameter (Page 676) MEVA / KPI (Page 682)

3.6.2 Creating subfolders

In Energy Manager Web you can create new subfolders in the "Data point", "Parameter" and "MEVA / KPI" folders. When you create a new data point, parameter or KPI, you can select the folder in which you want to create the object from the "Structure" drop-down list.

Requirement

• The user has the functional right "Folder - create, delete"

Procedure

To create a new subfolder, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the "Configuration" icon in the menu bar.
- 2. Click the menu item "Project configuration" in the navigation area.
- 3. Place the mouse pointer in the navigation area either over the menu item "Data point", "Parameter" or "MEVA / KPI".

The shortcut menu icon is displayed on the right-hand side of the corresponding menu item.

4. Click on the shortcut menu icon.

The shortcut menu is opened with the menu commands "Edit" and "New".

Data point	Edit
Parameter	
Meva / Kpi	Create
Settings	

5. Click on the menu command "New".

The configuration dialog "New - Folder" opens.

Create - Folder

Common

Name Hall 1

Description Data points hall 1

- Enter a meaningful name for the folder in the "Name" entry field. The input of a name is required.
- 7. If required, enter a description of the folder in the "Description" entry field.
- 8. Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The new folder is created under the selected folder. You can create an additional folder in the new folder using the same procedure. You can therefore create a structure of up to five levels. Click on the menu command "Edit" in the shortcut menu to edit already created folders.

Note

You cannot edit the automatically created "Data points", "Parameter" and "MEVAs / KPIs" folders in this way.

See also

Creating MEVAs / KPIs (Page 684) Creating parameters (Page 678) Creating data points (Page 659)

3.6.3 Data source

3.6.3.1 Overview

When configuring data sources you create new acquisition objects and data channels in Energy Manager PRO Web. From these data channels you can create new data points per data channel. Newly created data sources and changes to already existing objects in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

The creation of new data sources is not available in Energy Manager Basic. Only the automatically installed data source is available.

When you click on the menu item "Data source" in the navigation area in the "Project configuration" folder, the detail area "Acquisition - Administration" opens. The following figure shows the detail area "Acquisition - Administration":



- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new data sources.
- Display table of existing data sources.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of the data sources is recommended when a large number of data sources exist in the system.
- ④ "Delete" button: Deleting created data sources from the system.

Newly created data sources and already existing data sources in the system are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. The display table consists of the following seven columns:

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual data sources and any number of data sources with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all data sources. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all data sources again.
Name	Shows the name of the data source.
Description	Shows the description of the data source.
Status	Shows the status of the data source. If the status of the data source shows "Active", data acquisition is enabled. If the status of the data source shows "Inactive", data acquisition is not enabled.
Host name	Shows the host name of the data source.
IP address	Shows the IP address of the data source. Is assigned by the system itself.
GUID	Shows the acquisition ID of the data source. Is assigned by the system itself.

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Creating data sources (Page 625)

Editing data sources (Page 627)

Deleting data sources (Page 628)

Overview (Page 618)

Overview (Page 630)

Data channels (Page 630)

3.6.3.2 Creating data sources

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

The creation of new data sources is not available in Energy Manager Basic.

Procedure

To create a new data source, follow these steps:

1. Click on the "New" button in the detail area "Acquisition - Administration" .

Neu - Erfassung

The configuration dialog "New - Acquisition" opens.

Allgemein		
Generell	Hostname	
Name h WP1P6-05	 Hostname h WP1P8-05	
Beschreibung	 IP Adresse	
	GUID	
	Aktiv	C Kernel neustarten

2. Enter a meaningful name for the data source in the "Name" entry field.

The input of a name with the prefix "h_" is required.

- 3. If required, enter a description of the new data source in the "Description" entry field.
- 4. Enter a meaningful host name in the "Hostname" entry field.

The input of a host name is required.

- 5. To acquire measurement data from the data source, enable the option "Active". The status of the data source is therefore set to "Active" in the display table.
- 6. Click on the "Restart Kernel" button to restart the kernel.
- 7. Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The data source is created under the "Data source" folder in the navigation area. The corresponding object can be found in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the following path: "System > Configuration > Web Configuration > Data sources". However, to acquire measurement data from this data source and create data points, you must create data channels for every data source afterwards. How to create data channels is described in the section "Creating data channels".

Note

As soon as you create an additional data source or the data source runs on a different computer than the Energy Manager Server, you have to connect the data source with the server. You set up the connection via the 'Acquisition' user interface.

See also

Editing data sources (Page 627) Creating hardware (Page 76)

3.6.3.3 Editing data sources

Requirement

• The data source has been created.

Procedure

To edit an already created data source, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the data source to be edited in the display table.
- 2. Click the "Edit" button. As an alternative, place the mouse pointer in the navigation area over the data source to be edited and click on the Edit icon.

The configuration dialog "Edit - Acquisition" opens.

3. Edit names, description and host names.

The input of a name with the prefix "h_" and the input of a host name is required.

- 4. Data acquisition is enabled when you enable the option "Active".
- 5. Click on the "Save" button.

Note

You can only edit single selected data sources.

See also

Creating data sources (Page 625) Deleting data sources (Page 628) Overview (Page 623)

3.6.3.4 Deleting data sources

Requirement

• The data source has been created.

Procedure

To delete one or more data sources from the system, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the data source to be deleted in the display table. You can also select one or more data sources to be deleted with the help of the check boxes.
- 2. Click the "Delete" button.
- 3. Click the "Delete" button again to confirm the deletion process. As an alternative, you can delete individual data sources from the system in the configuration dialog "Edit Acquisition" by clicking the "Delete" button twice.

Result

The data source is deleted from the system.

Note

When you delete a data source, all the lower-level object links are deleted from the system.

See also

Editing data sources (Page 627) Overview (Page 623)

3.6.3.5 Manual acquisition

When installing Energy Manager, the "Manual acquisition" folder is automatically created in the project folder "Data source", in which you can create, edit and delete manual data points. The folder is not an acquisition object as such, but rather contains only an overview of all manual data points. In the Energy Manager PRO Client you can find the folder under the following path: "System > Configuration > Web Configuration> Data sources".

To open the "Manual acquisition" folder, click on the menu item "Manual acquisition" in the navigation area under the "Data source" project folder. The following figure shows the detail area "Data point - Administration" with an overview of all manual data points in the "Manual acquisition" folder:

¢	New 🖋 Edit	Q	Filter			
	Name \$ Description \$	Structure 🗢	Unit 🌲	Category 🗢	Cycle 🌲	Active \$
	e_Production	Data point	Pce	Others	15 min	Inactive
	e_ProductionComment	Data point	Pce	Others	15 min	Inactive
	e_Gas_consumption	Data point	kWh	Energy	15 min	Active
	e_Electric_consumption	Data point	kWh	Energy	15 min	Active
	e_Water_consumption	Data point	kWh	Energy	15 min	Active
	М	≪ 1 ≫	M			
C) Clone				Û	Delete

Data point - Administration

The display table with the columns contained there corresponds to the display table of the other data sources.

3.6.3.6 Derived data points

When installing Energy Manager, the "Derived data points" folder is automatically created in the project folder "Data source". You can create, edit and delete derived data points in this folder. The folder is not an acquisition object as such, but rather contains only an overview of all derived data points. In the Energy Manager PRO Client you can find the folder under the following path: "System > Configuration > Web Configuration > Data sources".

To open the "Derived data points" folder, click on the menu item "Derived data points" in the navigation area under the "Data source" project folder.

The display table with the columns contained there corresponds to the display table of the other data sources.

3.6.3.7 Data channels

Overview

To create data points in Energy Manager Web, and hence acquire measurement data, you need data channels. You can create different data channels for each data source created. Newly created data channels and changes to already existing channels in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa. You can only create the following channel types for data acquisition in Energy Manager PRO Web:

- OPC UA, DA, HDA
- WinCC
- Energy Suite
- Modbus / TCP

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

Only the automatically installed data channels are available in Energy Manager Basic.

When you click on a data source in the navigation area, the associated data channels are displayed in the detail area in tabular form and in the navigation area under the data source. The following figure shows the detail area "Channel management" with an overview of the existing data channels of a data source:

New Edit	٩	Filter
Name 🔺	Туре 🗢	Status 🗢
a_acq_Energy_Suite	OPC UA	Active
a_acq_Modbus	Modbus / TCP	Active
a_acq_OpcUA	OPC UA	Inactive
a_acq_wincc_PCS7	WINCC	Inactive
	K ≪ 1 ≫ N	

- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new data channels.
- ② Display table of existing data channels per data source.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of the data channels is recommended when a large number of data channels exist per data source.
- ④ "Delete" button: Deleting created data channels from the system.

Newly created channels and channels available per data source are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. The display table consists of the following three columns:

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual data channels and any number of data channels with the help of the check boxes. By clicking on the check box in the column header you select all data channels. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all data channels again.
Name	Shows the name of the data channel
Туре	Shows the channel type.
Status	Shows the status of the data acquisition.

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Overview (Page 623)

Creating data channels (Page 632)

Editing data channels (Page 652)

Deleting data channels (Page 653)

Data point - Administration (Page 654)

3.6 Project configuration

Creating data channels

Requirement

• The data source has been created.

Procedure

To create a new data channel, follow these steps:

1. Click on the data source in which you want to create a new data channel in the navigation area under the "Data source" folder.

The detail area "Channel management" is displayed.

2. Click the "New" button.

The configuration dialog "New - Channel" opens.

	Create - Channel	
Common		
Name		
Source	•	Active

- 3. Select the channel type from the "Source" drop-down list. You can choose from the following channel types:
 - Energy Suite
 - Modbus / TCP
 - OPC DA
 - OPC HDA
 - OPC UA
 - WINCC
 - ASCII
 - Desigo CC
- 4. Specify the status of the data acquisition:
 - Active: Data is being acquired.
 - Inactive: Data is not being acquired.

Depending on the channel type, you have to configure different settings.

See also

Overview (Page 630) Configuring interfaces (Page 661) Editing data channels (Page 652) Data point - Administration (Page 654) Create OPC DA, OPC HDA, OPC UA channel (Page 636) Creating an Energy Suite channel (Page 641) Creating a WinCC channel (Page 644) Creating a Modbus TCP channel (Page 646)

Creating an ASCII channel

With an ASCII channel you read data from ASCII file of a local system or an FTP server. After successful configuration, transfer of the ASCII files from the directory to the Energy Manager acquisition component is carried out automatically.

Requirements

If you obtain ASCII data from an FTP server, the following requirements apply:

- The acquisition component is logged in to the Energy Manager.
- The FTP server can be accessed.
- You have the access data for the FTP server.

Procedure

To create an ASCII channel, proceed as follows:

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the new channel in the "Name" entry field. The input of a name is required.
- 2. Select the entry "Ascii" from the "Source" drop-down list.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition:
 - Active: Data is being acquired.
 - Inactive: Data is not being acquired.

- 4. Select one of the following entries from the "Type" drop-down list:
 - FTP
 - SFTP (secure FTP)
 - File (direct entry)

Name	
Ascii	
Source	
Ascii	 Active
Туре	
FTP	-
Dath	
fain	
Format	
fp_excelcsv	-
Username	
Password	
Data transmitian interval	
15 min	_
13 IIIII	•

5. Enter the directory of the file in the "Path" entry field.

The source directory has to be specified.

Note

Ensure that there are no blank spaces in the source directory. Data acquisition is only possible with a source directory without blank spaces.

- 6. Select the format of the file from the "Format" drop-down list.
- If you have selected the type "FTP" or "SFTP", enter your access data in the entry fields "User name" and "Password". The access data is required.
- 8. Select the time interval in which the data is transmitted from the "Data transmission interval" drop-down list. This selection corresponds to the cycle time of the IO buffer in the Energy Manager PRO Client.

9. Select the required data points in the navigation field.

10.Click on the "Save" button.

To add a data point to the navigation field, proceed as follows:

Measurement		
Address		
Value		
Datatype		
dty_integer	•	U Add

- 3. In the "Data type" drop-down list, select the data type.
- 4. Click the "Add" button.

Result

The ASCII channel with the selected data points is created under the data source.

See also

ASCII FTP formats (Page 839)

Create OPC DA, OPC HDA, OPC UA channel

You use the channel type "OPC" to retrieve the data provided by an OPC server. The data channel "OPC UA" ("OPC Unified Architecture") is a specification for the transmission of process values and archive data.

Security concept

The OPC UA server uses the TCP/IP protocol for data exchange. For authorization, certificates are exchanged between server and client. In addition, you can encrypt the data traffic.

Requirements

- The data source is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- An OPC Server and/or an OPC Client is installed on the data source.
- An understanding of addressing and communication with OPC.
- The certificate exchange is provided for at the time that the interface is configured.

Procedure

To create an OPC channel, follow these steps:

- Enter a meaningful name for the new channel in the "Name" text box. The input of a name is required.
- 2. Select one of the following entries from the "Source" drop-down list:
 - OPC DA
 - OPC HDA
 - OPC UA
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition:
 - Active: Data is being acquired.
 - Inactive: Data is not being acquired.

4. Enter the address of the OPC Server in the "OPC server name" text box.

Name		
Source		-
OPC UA	•	Active
OPC server name		de Connoct
localhost:4840		Connect
Acquire historical data (HDA)		
Aggregation		
Average		*

5. Click the "Connect" button.

The system checks whether there is a server connection. If a server connection exists, the available servers are loaded to the "Data source" drop-down list. If there is no connection, check your entries.

- 6. Depending on the selected OPC type, a distinction is made between the following three cases for the option "Acquire historical data (HDA)":
 - OPC DA: The option is not available.
 - OPC HDA: The option is automatically enabled.
 - OPC UA: You can enable the option. When you enable the option, you use the functionality of an HDA channel. When you disable the option, you use the functionality of a DA channel.
- 7. Select the aggregation function for an HDA channel or a UA channel with HDA functionality from the "Aggregation" drop-down list.

The acquired values are aggregated depending on the selection. For example, if "Average" is selected, the arithmetic mean of the reading interval is formed.

8. Select the time interval with which the data is cyclically transmitted from the "Data transmission interval" drop-down list. This selection corresponds to the cycle time of the IO buffer in the Energy Manager PRO Client.

9. If you want to use Online Monitoring, activate the option "Enable power monitoring". The Online Monitoring is only available for OPC UA servers.

Data transmition interval	
15 min	•
Enable power monitoring Data transmition interval for Power monitoring	-
25	•
Structure	
Monitoring	•

If you use Online Monitoring, you can create data points of the OPC server in a separate folder structure for real-time monitoring.

Select the time interval in which the data is cyclically transmitted from the "Data transmission interval" drop-down list.

Select the folder structure in which the data points are saved from the "Structure" dropdown list. The folders must already exist and be part of the "Monitoring" structure.

For more information, refer to Online Monitoring in section "Online Monitoring (Page 507)".

10.If the "Acquire historical data (HDA)" option is enabled, you can reload measurement data as of a specific date. Enable the option "Override TSP settings" and select the date in the "Retrieve data since" text field.

Data transmition interval	
15 min	•
Override TSP settings	
Retrieve data since	Ħ

11.Select the server with the required data points from the "Data source" drop-down list You have to select a "Siemens OPC UA" server.

12.Click the "Browse" button.

Data source 👻	Q Browse

Note

When configuring the OPC UA server, activate at least one "Security policy" and its associated "Security mode". Otherwise, the OPC UA server and the clients will communicate insecurely.

During the first access to an encrypted OPC UA server instance a certificate for encrypting the data is created. You have to accept this certificate individually in the respective server product. You may have to perform this operation twice.

- Siemens SIMATIC NET V15: With the help of the "Siemens Communication Settings" software in the "OPC UA certificates" menu command.
- Siemens WinCC TIA V15: Moving of the new certificates from the path "C:\Program Files (x86)\SIEMENS\Automation\SCADA-RT_V11\WinCC\opc\UAServer\PKI\CA\rejected\certs'" to "'C:\Program Files (x86)\SIEMENS\Automation\SCADA-RT_V11\WinCC\opc\UAServer\PKI\CA\certs"

The available data points are loaded to the overview list.

- 13.Select the required data points from the available data points.
- 14.If you have activated Online Monitoring, click the "Online Monitoring" tab. Select the data points for Online Monitoring.

You can use these data points only for Online Monitoring. To be able to use the other functions of Energy Manager with the data points of this server, create separate data points in the usual folder structure.

15.Click on the "Save" button.

Energy Manager Web

3.6 Project configuration

Result

The OPC channel with the selected data points is created under the data source.

Note

If you change the server address for an existing OPC UA server connection, restart the KERNEL service via the Service Cockpit.

See also

Creating data channels (Page 632) Data acquisition via the "OPC-DA / OPC-HDA" interface (Page 116) Data acquisition via the "OPC UA" interface (Page 118)

Creating an Energy Suite channel

Data acquisition over the "Energy Suite" interface corresponds to the "OPC UA" interface. The channel type "Energy Suite" also offers the advantage that information from the WinCC archive of the Energy Suite is copied to Energy Manager. You therefore no longer have to configure this information in the data points.

Security concept

The OPC UA server uses the TCP/IP protocol for data exchange. For authorization, certificates are exchanged between server and client. In addition, you can encrypt the data traffic.

Requirements

- The data source is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- An OPC Server and/or an OPC Client is installed on the data source.

Procedure

Follow these steps to create an Energy Suite channel:

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the new channel in the "Name" entry field. The input of a name is required.
- 2. Select the entry "Energy Suite" from the "Source" drop-down list.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition:
 - Active: Data is being acquired.
 - Inactive: Data is not being acquired.
- 4. Enter the URL of the WinCC Professional OPC UA Server in the "Discover URL" entry field.

Name	
Source	_
Energy Suite	 Active
Discover URL	• =:
localhost:4840	Q Discover

5. Click the "Browse" button.

The system checks whether there is a server connection. If a connection to the server exists, the existing archives are loaded to the "Data points" drop-down list. If there is no connection, check your entries.

6. Select the time interval with which the data is cyclically transmitted from the "Data transmission interval" drop-down list. This selection corresponds to the cycle time of the IO buffer in the Energy Manager PRO Client.

7. When you select the option "Override TSP settings", you can transmit the measurement data again as of a specific date. Select the date in the "Retrieve data since" text field.

Data transmition interval 15 min	•
Override TSP settings	
Retrieve data since	#

8. Select the required archive from the "Data points" drop-down list. You have to select a "Siemens OPC UA" server.



9. Click "Connect".

Note

When configuring the OPC UA server, activate at least one "Security policy" and its associated "Security mode". Otherwise, the OPC UA server and the clients will communicate insecurely.

During the first access to an encrypted OPC UA server instance a certificate for encrypting the data is created. You have to accept this certificate individually in the respective server product. You may have to perform this operation twice.

- Siemens SIMATIC NET V15: With the help of the "Siemens Communication Settings" software in the "OPC UA certificates" menu command.
- Siemens WinCC TIA V15: Moving of the new certificates from the path "C:\Program Files (x86)\SIEMENS\Automation\SCADA-RT_V11\WinCC\opc\UAServer\PKI\CA\rejected\certs" to "C:\Program Files (x86)\SIEMENS\Automation\SCADA-RT_V11\WinCC\opc\UAServer\PKI\CA\certs"

All available data points are loaded from the archive to the overview list.

10.Select the required data points.

11.Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The Energy Suite channel with the selected data points is created under the data source.

See also

Creating data channels (Page 632) Data acquisition via the "Energy Suite Import" interface (Page 126)

Creating a WinCC channel

You use the "WinCC" interface to retrieve values from a process value log or compressed log. You need a separate data channel for each log.

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

In Energy Manager Basic you can click the automatically installed WinCC channel directly in the navigation area under the data source that was also automatically installed. To add a new WinCC archive including the data points contained therein, click on the "Add archive" button in the detail area. The configuration dialog "New - Channel" opens in which you define the archive settings. For more information on creating a WinCC archive, refer to the sections "Creating a WinCC channel" and "Data point - Administration".

Requirements

- The data source is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- An WinCC Server and/or a WinCC Client is installed on the data source.
- WinCC projects are activated.

Procedure

To create a WinCC channel, follow these steps:

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the new channel in the "Name" text box. The input of a name is required.
- 2. Select the entry "WINCC" from the "Source" drop-down list.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition:
 - Active: Data is being acquired.
 - Inactive: Data is not being acquired.
- 4. Click the "Connect" button.

The system checks whether there is a server connection. If a connection to the WinCC server exists, the WinCC archives are loaded to the "Select archive" drop-down list.

🗲 Connect

a_acq_WinCC_PCS7		
Source WINCC	*	Active

- 5. Select the time interval with which the data is cyclically transmitted from the "Data transmission interval" drop-down list. This selection corresponds to the cycle time of the IO buffer in the Energy Manager PRO Client.
- 6. When you select the option "Override TSP settings", you can transmit the measurement data again as of a specific date. Select the date in the "Retrieve data since" text field.



- 7. Select the WinCC archive from which you want to create the data points from the "Select archive" drop-down list.
- 8. Click the "Browse" button.

Select archive SimulatedData	*	Q Browse
 SimulatedData 		
Random_From0To1000		
✓ Decreasing		
✓ Increasing		
✓ Sine		

All available data points are loaded from the archive to the overview list.

9. Select the required data points.

10.Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The WinCC channel with the selected data points is created under the data source.

See also

Creating data channels (Page 632) Data point - Administration (Page 654) Data acquisition via the "WinCC / PCS 7" interface (Page 100)

Creating a Modbus TCP channel

You use the "Modbus" interface to retrieve data from measuring devices with Modbus support and Ethernet interface, for example, SENTRON PAC measuring devices. The "Modbus" interface supports the following two types:

- Modbus TCP
- Modbus RTU

Datapoints acquired by the following measuring devices are pre-configured in Energy Manager.

- SENTRON PAC 2200 CLP
- SENTRON PAC 3200
- SENTRON PAC 4200
- ET 200SP MF HF

Note

Devices for separate listing of third-party consumption values

The SENTRON PAC 2200 CLP and Janitza UMG64 devices are required for separate listing of third-party consumption values.

Note

Supported modules

Only the AI Energy Meter on the ET 200SP MF HF device are supported.

Note

Functionality of Energy Manager Basic

In Energy Manager Basic you can click the automatically installed Modbus TCP channel directly in the navigation area under the also automatically installed data source. To add a new device including the data points contained therein, click on the "Add device" button in the detail area. The configuration dialog "New - Channel" opens in which you define the device settings. For more information on creating a device, refer to the sections "Creating a Modbus TCP channel" and "Data point - Administration".

Requirements

- The data source is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- The TCP/IP connection data of the measuring device is known.
- The operating instructions of the measuring device are available.

Procedure

Follow these steps to create a Modbus TCP channel:

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the new channel in the "Name" entry field. The input of a name is required.
- 2. Select the entry "Modbus/TCP" from the "Source" drop-down list.
- 3. Specify the status of the data acquisition:
 - Active: Data is being acquired.
 - Inactive: Data is not being acquired.
- Enter a meaningful device name in the "Device name" entry field. The input of a device name is required. The device name is used on creation of the channel for the IO buffer.
- 5. Enter the IP address and the associated port of the device in the in "IP address" and "Port" entry fields.
- Click the "Test connection" button. The system checks whether there is a connection to the IP address entered. If there is no connection, check your entries.
- 7. If this is a device with Modbus TCP interface, select the "TCP" check box. If the device is of the Modbus RTU type, select the "RTU device" check box.
- 8. In the case of an RTU device, you have to enter the address of the RTU device in the "Slave address" entry field.

Name a_acq_ModbusTCP		
Source		
Modbus / TCP		 Active
Device name		
PAC3220_023		
P address	Port	4-
192.168.0.1	502	✗ Test connection
TCP		
PTI device connect	vewaten of be	

9. If you want to use data points from a device template, select the "Template" check box. If the template does not contain your measuring device, select the "User defined" check box.

Tamplata	
ET 200SP MF HF	Â
PAC2200 CLP	
PAC3100	
PAC3120/320gH3220	
PAC3120/3200/3220 //3200T (counter only)	
PAC3200T	
PAC4200	
	ET 200SP MF HF PAC2200 CLP PAC3100 PAC3120/3200K2220 PAC3120/3200/3220 //3200T (counter only) PAC3200T PAC4200

- 10.Define additional options for an ET 200SP MF HF or PAC 2200 CLP or PAC 4200.
 - ET 200SP MF HF

Enter the offset in the "Register Offset" field.

Note

Register offset

The pre-configured datapoints correspond to the EE@Industry E3 profile. The length of the profile for the AI Energy Meter is 53 Modbus registers.

With an additional AI Energy Meter module, the register offset starts at 54.

Via the register offset, you define the module from which data is acquired.

PAC 2200 CLP and PAC 4200

To access historical data, enable the HDA option.

Note

HDA option for the devices PAC 2200 CLP and PAC 4200

The HDA option is available when you select the template for the devices PAC 2200 and PAC 4200. When you select the HDA option, the measuring points for the historical data are displayed. This is relevant for third-party consumption values.

11.Select the time interval with which the data is cyclically transmitted from the "Data transmission interval" drop-down list. This selection corresponds to the cycle time of the IO buffer in the Energy Manager PRO Client.
12.Select the data points you want to create.

G	Seneral	Online monitoring	
Data transmiss 15 min	sion interval		•
5	PAC3120/3200/3220		
) — B	Energy		
5	Active power		
	W_L1		
	W_L2		
	W_L3		
~	W		
	W_L1_max		
	W_L2_max		
	W_L3_max		
	W_max		
	W_L1_min		
	W_L2_min		
	W_L3_min		
	W_min		
	 Harmonics 		
	Period		-

- 13.You have to configure the following settings for the user-defined case ("Template" check box not selected):
 - Select the type of data point from the "Data type" drop-down list.
 - Enter the address of the data point using the operating instructions of the measuring device in the "Register", "Count" and "Subregister" entry fields.
 - If you want to acquire only positive measured values, enable the option "unsigned ".
 - If the device uses big endian encoding, enable the option "Big Endian".
 - To create the data points, click the "Add" button.
 - The data points are displayed in the overview list.
- 14.To enable Online Monitoring, click the "Online Monitoring" tab. Select the data points and the data transmission interval for Online Monitoring.

You can use these data points only for Online Monitoring. To be able to use the other functions of Energy Manager with the data points of this server, create separate data points in the usual folder structure.

For more information on Online Monitoring, refer to the section "Online Monitoring (Page 507)".

15.Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The Modbus TCP channel with the selected data points is created under the data source.

3.6 Project configuration

See also

Creating data channels (Page 632) Data point - Administration (Page 654) Data acquisition via the "Modbus" interface (Page 104)

Creating a Desigo CC channel

Use the interface "Desigo CC" to read out the data saved on a Desigo CC system via the Desigo CC web service. Energy Manager supports Desigo CC V3.0.

Requirement

- The data source is logged in to the Energy Manager Server and activated.
- The Desigo CC web server is online and can be accessed.

Procedure

To create a Desigo CC channel, follow these steps:

- 1. Enter a meaningful name for the new channel in the "Name" text box.
- 2. Select the entry "Desigo CC" from the "Source" drop-down list.

	Name Desigo					
	Source Desigo	Active				
	Specify the status of the data acquisition:	_				
	 Active: Data is being acquired. 					
	 Inactive: Data is not being acquired. 					
•	Enter the URL of the Desigo system in the "Desigo Server" entry fiel					
	Desigo server	Connect				
	Username					
	Password					

5. Enter your access data in the entry fields "User name" and "Password".

- 6. Select the interval in which the acquisition component acquires the values from the dropdown list "Data transmission interval". This selection corresponds to the cycle time of the IO buffer in the Energy Manager PRO Client.
- 7. In the entry field "Retrieve data since" you can define the time from which historical data is retrieved.
- 8. Click "Connect".

Svetom Ide

The system attempts to establish a connection. If a connection to the Desigo server exists, the possible data sources of the server are loaded to the "System IDs" drop-down list.

If a connection exists, the color of the plug on the "Connect" button is green.

9. Select the desired system ID from the "System IDs" drop-down list.

10.Click the "Browse" button.

All available data points from the data source are loaded to the navigation field.

System1	*	Q Browse
🔹 📄 🗲 Desigo Server		A.
System1:GmsDevice	_1_2098229_83886095	
System1:GmsDevice	1_2098229_83886092	
System1:GmsDevice	_1_2098229_83886081	
System1:GmsDevice	_1_2098229_83886084	
System1:GmsDevice	_1_2098229_83886093	
System1:GmsDevice	_1_2098229_83886090	
Svetom1·TLO RACov	atNatwork Hardwara Sveta	m1'R∆ R'∆Plt'∆hu'TSu Pr ▼

11.Select the desired data points for the data acquisition.

12.Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The Desigo CC channel with the selected data points is created under the data source.

See also

Data acquisition via the "Desigo CC" interface (Page 129)

3.6 Project configuration

Editing data channels

Requirements

- The data source has been created.
- The data channel has been created.

Procedure

To edit an already created data channel, follow these steps:

1. In the navigation area under the "Data source" folder, click on the data source in which you want to edit the created data channel.

The detail area "Channel management" is displayed.

- 2. Click on the data channel to be edited.
- 3. Click the "Edit" button.

The configuration dialog "Edit - Channel" opens.

4. Edit all configurations which you selected on creation of a data channel.

Note

When editing a data channel you can no longer change the channel type.

Note

When adding new data points of already existing data channels, the data points which are already used in Energy Manager are grayed out. You can only create data points which do not yet exist in the system.

5. Click on the "Save" button.

See also

Creating data channels (Page 632) Overview (Page 630)

Deleting data channels

Requirements

- The data source has been created.
- The data channel has been created.

Procedure

To delete a data channel of a data source, follow these steps:

1. Click on the acquisition component from which you want to delete the created data channel in the navigation area under the "Data source" folder.

The detail area "Channel management" is displayed.

- 2. Click on the data channel to be deleted. You can select several data channels with the help of the check boxes.
- 3. Click the "Delete" button.
- 4. Click the "Delete" button again to confirm the deletion process. As an alternative, you can delete individual data channels from the system in the configuration dialog "Edit - Channel" by clicking the "Delete button twice".

Result

The data channel including the substructures (process, driver source, driver, IO buffer, data points) is deleted from the system.

Note

If the data points are linked to other objects in the system. you cannot delete the data channel. To delete the data channel, you must first disconnect all data point links with other objects in the system.

See also

Overview (Page 630)

Data point - Administration

Introduction

Channel-specific data points are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. You can create channel-specific data points from this overview table and configure existing data points. Newly created data points and configurations on already existing data points in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

Overview of data point - Administration

To display the data points of a data channel, click on the corresponding data channel in the navigation area under the data source. The following figure shows the detail area "Data point - Administration" over the data points created in an OPC channel:

Data	point - Ad	dministration		(2)		(3)	
0	New ø	🖻 Edit 🔫			Q Filter		
	Name 🗢	Description 🗢	Structure 🗢	Unit 🗢	Category \$	Cycle 🗢 A	ctive 🗢
	d_l_L1	Instantaneous value	Data point	mA	Process Value	15 min A	Active
	d_I_L2	Instantaneous value	Data point	mA	Process Value	15 min A	Active
	d_l_L3	Instantaneous value	Data point	mA	Process Value	15 min A	Active
	d_V_L1N	Instantaneous value	Data point	V	Process Value	15 min A	Active
	d_V_L2N	Instantaneous value	Data point	V	Process Value	15 min A	Active
	d_V_L3N	Instantaneous value	Data point	V	Process Value	15 min A	Active
			H 44 1	$ \rangle \rangle \rangle \rangle \rangle \rangle \rangle $	M		
C	Clone					Ê	Delete
	5					-	4

- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new data points.
- 2 Display table of existing data points per data channel.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all the columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of the data points is recommended when a large number of data points exist per channel.
- ④ "Delete" button: Deleting created data points from the system.
- (5) "Clone" button: When you clone a data point, an exact copy of the data point with the name ending in "Copy_0" is created. If you create several copies of a data point, the number at the end of the name is incremented by one, for example, from "Copy_0" to "Copy_1". You can also clone several data points at the same time with the help of the check boxes.

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual data points and any number of data points with the help of the check boxes. Click- ing on the check box in the column header selects all data points. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all data points again.
Name	Shows the name of the data point.
Description	Shows the description of the data point.
Structure	Shows the folder in which the data point is created.
Unit	Shows the unit of the data point.
Category	Shows the acquisition category of the data point.
Cycle	Shows the cycle time of the data point.
Status	Shows the status of the data point. If the status is set to "Active", the measurement data of the data point is acquired. If the status is set to "Inactive", no measurement data is acquired.

The display table consists of the following eight columns:

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

To create a new channel-specific data point, click on the "New" button. You can find out how to create a new data point in the section "Creating data points".

To edit a data point, click on the corresponding data point and then click the "Edit" button. You can find out how to edit a data point in the section "Editing data points".

To delete one or more data points, select the data points and then click the "Delete" button. Confirm the deletion process by clicking on the "Delete" button again.

Special feature of Modbus TCP

There are two display tables for Modbus TCP channels. The display table "Device view" shows a list of all Modbus devices of the channel.

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual devices and any number of devices with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all devices. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all devices again.
Name	Shows the name of the device.
Cycle	Displays the cycle time of the device.
Monitoring structure	Displays the folder structure of the device in the Monitoring area of the navigation area.

The table "Device view" consists of the following columns:

You can also add a new device. A separate IO buffer is used for each device. Click the "New" button to create a new device.

O New Caller	Device view	Catagoont view	C. Film
Tomas I	-	Center #	Manhary Muthes 4
ModbusDevice_YXZ		15 min	Monitoring
		54 44	1.10 M

You can find out how to create a new device with the corresponding data points in the section "Creating a Modbus TCP channel".

If you want to edit an existing device in the display table, select the appropriate device and click the "Edit" button.

The display table "Data point view" has the same functionality as the view table of the other channels. The table "Datapoint view" is only extended by the column "Device". The "Device" column shows the device name in which the data point is saved.

Special feature of WinCC

In a similar way to the Modbus data channel, there are two display tables in the display table of WinCC channels. The table "Archive view" shows a list of the WinCC archives.

You can also add a new archive including data points. To add a new archive, click on the "New" button. You can find out how to select a new archive with the corresponding data points in the section "Creating a WinCC channel".

If you want to edit an existing archive in the display table, select the appropriate archive and click the "Edit archive" button.

The display table "Data point view" has the same functionality as the view table of the other channels. The display table "Data point view" is only extended by the column "Archive". The "Archive" column shows the name of the WinCC archive in which the data point is archived.

See also

Overview (Page 630) Creating data channels (Page 632) Creating a WinCC channel (Page 644) Creating a Modbus TCP channel (Page 646) Creating data points (Page 659) Manual acquisition (Page 629) Configuration of the data points (Page 660)

3.6.4 Data point

3.6.4.1 Overview

In the configuration of data points, create new data points in the Energy Manager Web client and configure existing data points. The creation of new data points in the Energy Manager Web client is only possible for manual and external data points. Newly created data points and changes to already existing data points in the Energy Manager PRO Web client are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

When you click on the menu item "Data point" in the navigation area under the "Project configuration" folder, the detail area "Data point - Administration" opens. The following figure shows the detail area "Data point - Administration":

		1			(2		3		
Dat	a po No	oint - Adn	ninistration					Q Filt	er	
	Ъ	Name \$	Description ¢	Structure \$	Unit ¢	Category \$	Cycle ¢	Source ¢	Active 4	Device/Archive C
•	~	d_I_L1	Instantaneous value	Data point	mA	Process Value	15 min	a_erf_a_acq_Modbu	Active	PAC3200_023
	2	d_1_L2	Instantaneous value	Data point	mA	Process Value	15 min	a_erf_a_acq_Modbu	Active	PAC3200_023
	~	d_1_L3	Instantaneous value	Data point	mA	Process Value	15 min	a_erf_a_acq_Modbu	Active	PAC3200_023
	M	d_V_L1N	Instantaneous value	Data point	V	Process Value	15 min	a_erf_a_acq_Modbu	Active	PAC3200_023
	M	d_V_L2N	Instantaneous value	Data point	V	Process Value	15 min	a_erf_a_acq_Modbu	Active	PAC3200_023
	M	d_V_L3N	Instantaneous value	Data point	V	Process Value	15 min	a_erf_a_acq_Modbu	Active	PAC3200_023
						1	F N			
q) CI	lone								🛍 Delete
-	5									4

- () "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new data points.
- Display table of existing data points.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all the columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of the data points is recommended when a large number of data points exist in the system.
- ④ "Delete" button: Deleting created data points from the system.
- (5) "Clone" button: When you clone a data point, an exact copy of the data point with the name ending in "Copy_0" is created. If you create several copies of a data point, the number at the end of the name is incremented by one, for example, from "Copy_0" to "Copy_1". You can also clone several data points at the same time with the help of the check boxes.

Note

In the "Data point" folder not all the data points in the system are displayed, but only the data points contained in the folder.

The data points are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web: The display table consists of the following ten columns:

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual data points and any number of data points with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all data points. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all data points again.
Chart	Opens the diagram of the data point in a new window.
Name	Shows the name of the data point.
Description	Shows the description of the data point.
Structure	Shows the folder in which the data point is created.
Unit	Shows the unit of the data point.
Category	Shows the acquisition category of the data point.
Cycle	Shows the cycle time of the data point.
Source	Shows the data channel of the data point. Data points of the type "Generic", "Con- stant" and "Derived" are marked with the entry "-".
Active	Shows the status of the data point. If the status is set to "Active", the measurement data of the data point is acquired. If the status is set to "Inactive", no measurement data is acquired.
Device/Archive	Shows the device name or the archive from which the data point originates.

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Creating data points (Page 659) Editing data points (Page 672) Deleting data points (Page 675)

3.6.4.2 Creating data points

Requirements

- The data source has been created.
- The data channel has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Measurement create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To create a new data point, follow these steps:

- Click on the "New" button in the detail area "Data point Administration". The configuration dialog "New - Data point" opens.
- 2. Configure the data point using the following tabs:
 - General
 - Interface
 - Counter
 - Plausibility
 - Compression
 - Replacement
 - MindSphere

You can find out how to configure the individual tabs in the section "Configuration of data points".

3. When you have configured the tabs, click the "Save" button.

Result

The data point has been created in the selected folder. In the Energy Manager PRO Client the data point is created under the IO buffer of the corresponding data channel.

See also

Creating subfolders (Page 621) Overview (Page 657) Editing data points (Page 672) Data point - Administration (Page 654) Creating data points (Page 133) Configuration of the data points (Page 660)

3.6.4.3 Configuration of the data points

Configuring general settings

Enter the basic information of the data point under "General".

Procedure

To configure the basic information, follow these steps:

- 1. Enter a meaningful data point name in the "Name" entry field.
- 2. If required, enter a description of the data point in the "Description" entry field.
- 3. If required, enter a KKS/AKS number or free text in the "Inventory number" check box.

General

Name	
d_Consumption_Electric_MA3012	
Description	

Electric consumption machine 3012 hall 2

Inventory nr.

If you select "KKSText" as a text type in a report, for example, the text from the entry field is output in the report result.

- 4. Select the unit of the data point from the "Unit" drop-down list.
- 5. Select the cycle time with which the measured values are acquired from the "Cycle" dropdown list.

Note

If you select a cycle time that does not match a compression level, only the values which were acquired while this cycle time was configured are displayed.

If a cycle time is then selected which matches a compression level, a gap in the values arises. The gap corresponds to the data which was acquired with the cycle time that did not correspond to a compression level.

Configure a compression level before you select the corresponding cycle time.

Configure compression levels in the "Compression" tab.

Select the category of the data point from the "Acquisition category" drop-down list.

The input of an acquisition category is required.

6. Select the folder in which you want to create the data point from the "Structure" drop-down list.

Unit	
kWh	-
Cycle	
15 min	
Acquisition category	
Energy	-
Structure	
Data point	-

- 7. Select the country in which the data point is valid from the "Country" drop-down list.
- 8. When you select the option "Activate data collection", the measurement data of the data source is acquired.
- 9. When you select the option "Use data point only for pre-processing", the measurement data is only taken into account during pre-processing of the data.
- 10. When you enable the option "Priority high", you cannot change the values of the data point in a matrix.
- 11. When you enable the option "Activate versioned data collection" the measurement data is entered versioned in the data point.

Activate data collection

- Use data point only for pre-processing
 - Data in matrix can be entered but not modified
 - Activate versioned data collection

Configuring interfaces

Under "Interface" select the data channel from which the measured values of the data point are acquired. Also create manual data points via the tab. More information on the data channels is available in the section "Creating data channels".

Procedure

To configure a data channel, proceed as follows:

1. Select the data channel from which you want to create the data point from the "Channel" drop-down list.

Only the data channels created in the system are available for selection for creating external data points. The entry "manual" is available for creating manual data points. The settings of the tab are adapted accordingly to the selected data channel.

2. Configure the remaining settings in accordance with the selected channel type.

Configuring a Modbus or WinCC channel

To create a Modbus or WinCC channel, configure the settings as follows:

1. Select the device/archive in which the data point is archived from the "Device" or "Archive" drop-down list.

Only already created devices/archives are available for selection in the drop-down list.

- 2. Browse the corresponding device/archive.
- 3. Select the desired data point from the overview list.

The address of the data point in the device/archive is automatically copied to the text field "Address".

4. Select the type of data point from the "Data type" drop-down list.

Common	Interface	Counter
Channel a aco winco PCS7		
<u></u>		
Archive		•
Address		
Datatype		
dty_float		*

Configuring an OPC, Energy Suite, or Desigo CC channel

To create an OPC, Energy Suite or Desigo CC channel, configure the settings as follows:

- 1. Click the "Browse" button.
- Select the desired data point from the overview list.
 The address of the data point on the server is copied to the entry field "Address".
- 3. Select the type of data point from the "Data type" drop-down list.

Configuring an ASCII channel

To create an ASCII channel, configure the settings as follows:

- 1. In the "address" entry field, enter the address of the data point.
- 2. Select the type of data point from the "Data type" drop-down list.

Creating a manual data point

To create a manual data point, configure the settings as follows:

- 1. Select the entry "Manual" from the "Channel" drop-down list.
- 2. Select the type of data point from the "Data type" drop-down list.

Only the data types "Number" and "String" are available in the drop-down list. These data types correspond to the data types "Measurement" and "Text" from the Energy Manager PRO Client.

Note

If a different data type is selected in the Energy Manager PRO Client, no entry is shown in the "Data type" drop-down list.

Creating derived data point

To create a derived data point, proceed as follows:

- 1. Select the entry "Derived" from the "Channel" drop-down list.
- 2. Select the time from which the data point is automatically recalculated from the calendar "Calculated until".

If you have not edited this field, the time up to which the data point is calculated is displayed here.

This field is automatically updated whenever the data point is calculated.

3. Select the category of the data point from the "Category" drop-down list.

If you select "Future values", the current compression interval of the data point is recalculated for every value.

If you select "real value", the current compression interval of the data point is calculated after all values are available.

- 4. Select the compression level of the MEVA/KIP used from the drop-down list "Compression".
- 5. In the entry field "Offset", enter the numerical value of the duration with which the start of the daily interval deviates from midnight.

The daily values are calculated taking this deviation into consideration. If an Offset of 6 hours is configured, for example, the daily values from 6 am to 6 am are calculated.

- 6. Select the time unit of the offset from the "Offset unit" drop-down list.
- 7. To automatically recalculate the data point for new or updated values, activate the option "Calculate automatically".
- 8. Select the value MEVA/KPI whose values are saved in the data point from the "KPI element" drop-down list.

Alternatively, you can use the structure browser.

See also

Creating data channels (Page 632)

3.6 Project configuration

Configuring counters

If you select "Count value" as the acquisition category, you must additionally create a counter. The created counters are displayed in the list with their validity.

Click on the "Expand all" to display the detailed information of all counters, select the "Hide all" icon to hide the detail information again. To create a new counter, click on the "Add new" icon. To delete a counter, click the "Delete" icon and confirm the deletion process by clicking on the icon again.

Procedure

To configure a counter, follow these steps:

1. Click on the "Add new" icon.

0

A new counter with the current date or with current validity is created.

- 2. Enter a counter number for the counter in the text box under validity.
- 3. From the "Installation date" drop-down list select the date of the commissioning of the counter.

Installation date 01.03.2018 00:00:00 🗰

The validity range of the counter changes accordingly. If the installation date of a newly created counter is reached, the current counter is replaced by the new counter. The installation date of the new counter must be prior to the acquisition of the last measured value of the current counter. Otherwise, the result could be an overflow error.

4. Enter the counter constant in the "Constant" text box.

The default setting of the counter constant is "1". The counter difference is multiplied by this constant.

- 5. Enter the start of the counting range in the "Range start" text box.
- 6. Enter the end of the counting range in the "Range end" text box.
- 7. If you enable "Cyclic reset", the counter is reset to zero if a value is less than the previous value. In this case, the difference is calculated as follows: 0 + current counter state
- 8. Enter the start value of the counter on installation in the "Value at installation" text box.

The start value and end value are of importance for the proper calculation of differences upon overflow.

- 9. Enter the end value of the counter on replacement in the "Value at replacement" text box.
- 10.If you select "Only count up" from the "Counter type" drop-down list, all valid counter values are in ascending order. If a negative counter difference is calculated, the situation is treated as a counter overflow.
- 11.If you select "Count up and down", valid counter values may be greater or less than the previous value. This option is suitable for level measurements, for example.

- 12.If you enable "Filtering criteria", enter the value in the "Lower limit" text box. Any counter values below this value are treated as invalid.
- 13.If you enable "Counter difference", enter the value in the "Lower limit" text box. If the most recently calculated difference is less than this value, the current counter value is treated as invalid.
- 14.If you activate "Counter difference", enter a value in the "Upper limit" text box. If the most recently calculated difference is greater than this value, the current counter value is treated as invalid.

See also

Configuring counters (Page 154)

Energy Manager Web

3.6 Project configuration

Configuring the plausibility settings

Under "Plausibility" you configure, for example, the setting of limits, the monitoring of the data point.

Procedure

To configure plausibility settings, proceed as follows:

- 1. Enter the limits for the alarm range in the "Upper limit" and "Lower limit" text boxes.
- 2. Enter the limits for the warning range in the "Upper limit warning" and "Lower limit warning" text boxes.
- 3. If you select the respective option "Notification", you will be informed of any violations of limits.



4. To determine gaps in measured value series of the data point, enter a numerical value in the "Gap" text box. Select the associated time from the "Unit" drop-down list. The system checks whether there are gaps in the measured value series after the entered time has elapsed. If you select the adjacent option "Notification", you will be informed of any existing gaps.



5. To compare the data point with itself in a different time period, select the "Another time period" check box in the "Compare with" area. Enter the numerical value in the text box and select the associated time period from the "Unit" drop-down list. If you select the value "1" and the unit "1 month", for example, the current month is compared with the previous month.

Compare with



6. To compare the data point with a different data point, select the "Reference object" check box. Select the data point to be compared from the text box.



- 7. Enter the upper or lower limits for the comparison in the "Upper limit" and "Lower limit" text boxes. The limits can be exceeded or undershot by the values entered (acquisition value + limit) before a message is generated.
- 8. Select the type of limit comparison from the "Compare type" drop-down list. You can choose between "Absolute" and "Relative". "Absolute" means a numerical comparison, "Relative" means a percentage comparison of the limits.
- 9. Select the "Notification" option to receive a violation message on comparison of the limits.

		Upper limit	
		2200	
Compare type			
Absolute	*		
		Lower limit	
		500	
			Alert

See also

Configuring the plausibility (Page 157) Mail settings (Page 692) 3.6 Project configuration

Configuring the compression settings

Configure the compression levels of the measured values under "Compression". The defined compression levels are displayed in an overview list.

Click on the "Expand all" to display the detailed information of all compression levels, select the "Hide all" icon to hide the detail information again. To create a new compression level, click the "Add new" icon. To delete a compression level, click on the "Delete" icon and confirm the delete process by clicking on the icon again.

Procedure

To configure compression levels, proceed as follows:

1. To create a new compression level, click the "Add new" icon.

0

A new compression level is created.

- 2. From the "From" drop-down list select the cycle whose values you want to compress.
- 3. From the "To" drop-down list select the cycle to which the values are compressed.
- 4. From the "Compressed until" drop-down list select the time in the past from when the values are compressed.

The "Compressed until" field shows the time up to which the compression level is calculated. To update this field, reload the page.

To recalculate the compression level, from the "Compressed until" drop-down list select the time in the past from when the compression value is recalculated.

Entry values - 15 minutes value						圃
From Entry values	*	To 15 minutes value	*	Compressed until 01.02.2018 00:00:00	#	
15 minutes value - Daily values						団
Daily values - Monthly values						匬

Configuring replacement value strategies

Define the substitute value strategies for measured value gaps under "Replacement".

Procedure

To configure substitute value strategies, proceed as follows:

- 1. Select the replacement value strategy from the "Replacement" drop-down list. You can choose between the following replacement value strategies:
 - NONE
 - LRU (last recently used)
 - FIS
 - Replacement value
 - Historical value
 - Interpolation
- 2. If you select the replacement value strategy "NONE", gaps in the measured value series of the data point are not replaced.
- 3. If you select the replacement value strategy "LRU", gaps are replaced in the measured values series of the data point by the last valid value.
- 4. If you select the replacement value strategy "AKS", gaps in the measured values series of the data point are replaced by the measured values of a different data point. In the "Source datapoint" text box enter the data point whose values replace the gaps.
- 5. If you select the replacement value strategy "Replacement value", gaps in the measured values series of the data point are replaced by a constant value. Enter the replacement value used to close the gap in the "Value" text box.

General				
Replacement strategy Replacement value		-	Corrected until 01.02.2018 00:00:00	#
Replacement value	Value 2000		Replace invalids	

6. If you select the replacement value strategy "Historical value", gaps in the measured values series of the data point are replaced by a comparison value in the past. Enter the numerical value in the "Value" text box and select the associated time period from the "Unit" dropdown list. The system jumps back to the past by the period entered and adopts the value from the past. This strategy can be used if the data point has a recurring pattern.

General				Corrected until	
Replacement strategy Historical Value			-	01.02.2018 00:00:00	#
Calculation window	Value 1	Unit week	~	Replace invalids	

- 7. The "Interpolation" replacement value strategy is also available for counter data points. If you select the "Interpolation" replacement value strategy, gaps in the counter data series are filled by interpolation.
- 8. From the "Corrected until" list you select the time in the past up to which the gaps are replaced by the selected replacement value strategy.
- 9. To enable the selected replacement value strategy, select the option "Replace invalids".

See also

í

Configuring replacement value strategies (Page 152)

Configuring MindSphere settings

Under "MindSphere" you manage the transfer of the data point to MindSphere.

Procedure

To configure MindSphere settings, proceed as follows:

- 1. As soon as the data point is created in MindSphere, the "Data point ID" text box is automatically filled with the associated ID of the data point in MindSphere.
- 2. To select the synchronization time of the data point measured values with MindSphere, click on the upload icon. Confirm the process by clicking on the upload icon again.

Mindsphere
Data point id
Do you really want to add a synchronization date.
Press again to confirm.

Mark as cloud relevant

3. In the "Next upload" text box select the start time of the export to MindSphere. You can also place the start time in the past. The synchronization date only applies to the selected data point.

From the selected date, the values of the data point are exported with the corresponding timestamps to MindSphere. You can thus also start export of historical values again. During a new export, the data overwrites already existing data.

4. To enable the export of the data points measured values to MindSphere, select the option "Mark as cloud relevant".

Mindsphere

Data point id	
Next upload 01.02.2018 00:00:00	Ê
Mark as cloud relevant	

See also

Account settings (Page 694)

3.6.4.4 Editing data points

Requirements

- The data point has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Measurement create, remove, configure" or the functional right "Measurement configure".

Procedure

To edit an already existing data point, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the data point to be edited in the display table.
- Click the "Edit" button. As an alternative, you can double-click the data point to be edited. The configuration dialog "Edit - Data point" opens.
- 3. You can configure all the settings again in the tabs which you defined on creation of a data point.
- 4. Click on the "Save" button.

Note

Open the configuration dialog via the tree view "Tree"

If you have activated the edit mode, you can open the configuration dialog "Edit - Data Point" directly from the tree view using the "" button for the data point.

Editing multiple data points

You can edit multiple data points at one time. If you select multiple data points from the display table with the help of the check box, the "Edit" button is extended. If you then click on the "Edit" button, a drop-down list opens from which you can edit the following properties:

- Status
- Unit
- Category
- Cycle time
- Compression
- Structure

The following figure shows the drop-down list with the configurable properties.

Data point - Administration

€	New	🖋 Edit 🝷	
	Name 4	Change Status	¢
	e_Prod	onango otatao	
	e_Prod	Change Unit	
	e_Gas_		
	e_Elect	Change Category	
	e_Wate	Change Cycle time	
	d_l_L1	0 ,	bu
	d_l_L2	Change Compression	bu
	d_l_L3	Change Structure	bu
	d_V_L1	Change Structure	bu
	d_V_L2N	I Instantar	neou

If you click on one of the entries, a new dialog window opens. In this dialog window you can change the corresponding property for the selected data points. The following figure shows the window in which the unit is changed for multiple data points.

a			
a	Chang	ge Unit to	
а	Value		
a	ma		<u> </u>
а			
		× Cancel	🖺 Save

When you click on the "Save" button, the changes are applied.

3.6 Project configuration

Changing the data source

You can change the data source of existing data points. To change the data source, select the new data source under "Interface" from the "Channel" drop-down list. When you select a new data source, the settings are adapted to the new data source. In the event of a change to the data source, the following settings are automatically adopted:

- The data point is deleted from the list of the last data source and created in the list of the new data source.
- The prefix of the data point name is adapted to the new data channel ("e_" to "d_") and vice versa when changing from a manual to an external data point.
- The historical data point values are retained in the new data source.

When you change the data source, check the settings in the other tabs and adapt the settings to the new data source.

Note

Change to the data source

Changing a data source to a different data source is only possible from the "Data point" project folder.

See also

Creating data points (Page 659) Overview (Page 657) Deleting data points (Page 675)

3.6.4.5 Deleting data points

Requirements

- The data point has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Measurement create, remove, configure".

Procedure

- To delete one or more data points from the system, follow these steps:
- 1. Click on the data point to be deleted in the display table. You can also select one or more data points to be deleted with the help of the check boxes.
- 2. Click the "Delete" button.
- 3. Click the "Delete" button again to confirm the deletion process. As an alternative, you can delete a data point from the system in the "Edit Data point" configuration dialog by clicking the "Delete" button twice.

Result

The data point is deleted from the system.

See also

Overview (Page 657)

3.6.4.6 Recalculating derived data point

To recalculate the values of a derived data point, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the "Interface" tab of the configuration dialog of the derived data point.
- 2. Select the beginning of the time period to be calculated from the calendar "From".
- 3. Select the beginning of the time period to be calculated from the calendar "From".
- 4. To recalculate the values of the selected period, click on the "Start" button and confirm your entry.

Note

When you have confirmed the entry, the values are recalculated in the background without delay. The existing values are thus lost. The "Save" button has no effect on the recalculation of the derived data point.

3.6.5 Parameter

3.6.5.1 Overview

In the configuration of parameters you create new parameters and configure already existing parameters in Energy Manager Web. Newly created parameters and changes to already existing parameters in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

When you click on the menu item "Parameters" in the navigation area under the "Project configuration" folder, the detail area "Parameter - Administration" opens. The following figure shows the detail area "Parameter - Administration":



- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new parameters.
- 2 Display table of existing parameters.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of parameters is recommended when a large number of parameters exist in the system.
- ④ "Delete" button: Delete created parameters from the system.
- (5) "Clone" button: When you clone a parameter, an exact copy of the parameter with the name ending in "Copy_0" is created. If you create several copies of a parameter, the number at the end of the name is incremented by one, for example, from "Copy_0" to "Copy_1". You can clone several parameters at the same time with the help of the check boxes.

Note

In the "Parameters" folder not all the parameters in the system are displayed, but only the parameters contained in the folder.

The parameters are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. The display table consists of the following six columns:

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual parameters and any number of parameters with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all parameters. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all parameters again.
Name	Shows the name of the parameter.
Description	Shows the description of the parameter.
Structure	Shows the folder in which the parameter is created.
Unit	Shows the unit of the parameter.
Constant	Shows the replacement value of the parameter.

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Creating parameters (Page 678)

Editing parameters (Page 680)

Deleting parameters (Page 681)

3.6.5.2 Creating parameters

Requirement

- The user has the functional right "Parameter Common create, remove, configure".
- The user has the functional right "Parameter Values create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To create a new parameter, follow these steps:

- Click on the "New" button in the detail area "Parameter Administration". The configuration dialog "New - Parameter" opens.
- 2. Enter a meaningful name for the chart in the "Name" text box. The input of a name with the prefix "t " is required.
- 3. If required, enter a description of the parameter in the "Description" text box.
- 4. Select the unit of the parameter from the "Unit" drop-down list.
- 5. Enter the constant replacement value in the "Replacement value" text box.
- 6. From the "Structure" drop-down list select the folder in which you want to create the parameter.

Name	
t_Price_gas	
Deseriation	
Description	
Gas price	
Unit	Replacement value
EUR/kWh 👻	0.75
Structure	
Parameter	T

7. If you want to define a constant value for the parameter from a specific time period, click the "Add new" icon.

A new validity is created.

8. Select the validity date.

9. Enter the constant parameter value in the "Value" text box.

	× ²	×	0
valid from - 01.07.2018 00:00:00			圃
valid from	Va	lue	
01.07.2018 00:00:00	Ο.	85	
valid from - 01.10.2018 00:00:00			圃
	Va	lue	
valid from			

The value entered is valid from the selected validity time. When you define a further validity, the parameter value applies from the current validity until the start of the new validity. If the date of the new validity is reached, the parameter value applies from this validity. If you do not define a validity period, the parameter adopts the value at any time from the "Replacement value" text box.

10.Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The parameter is created in the selected folder. If you have defined a validity period including the value, the validity period is activated. You can only deactivate the validity period by deleting the corresponding validity period. You can delete validity periods that are no longer required by clicking the "Delete" icon twice. If you click on the "Expand all" icon, the information of all validity periods is displayed. If you click on the "Collapse all" icon, the information is hidden again.

See also

Creating subfolders (Page 621) Overview (Page 676) Editing parameters (Page 680) Parameters (Page 194) Parameter (Page 532)

3.6.5.3 Editing parameters

Requirements

- The parameter has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Parameter Common create, remove, configure" or the functional right "Parameter Common configure".
- The user has the functional right "Parameter Values create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To edit an already existing parameter, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the parameter to be edited in the display table.
- 2. Click the "Edit" button. As an alternative, you can double-click the parameter to be edited. The configuration dialog "Edit - Parameter" opens.
- 3. You can configure all the settings again which you defined on creation of a parameter. The input of a name with the prefix "t " is required.
- 4. Click on the "Save" button.

Editing multiple parameters

You can select multiple parameters at one time. If you select multiple parameters from the display table with the help of the check box, the "Edit" button is extended. If you then click on the "Edit" button, a drop-down list opens from which you can edit the following properties:

- Unit
- Structure

If you click on one of the entries, a new dialog window opens. In this dialog window you can change the corresponding property of the selected parameters. When you click on the "Save" button, the changes are applied.

See also

Overview (Page 676) Creating parameters (Page 678) Deleting parameters (Page 681)

3.6.5.4 Deleting parameters

Requirements

- The parameter has been created.
- The user has the functional right "Parameter Common create, remove, configure".

Procedure

- To delete one or more parameters from the system, follow these steps:
- 1. Click on the parameter to be deleted in the display table. You can also select one or more parameters to be deleted with the help of the check boxes.
- 2. Click the "Delete" button.
- 3. Click the "Delete" button again to confirm the deletion process. As an alternative, you can delete a parameter from the system in the "Edit Parameter" configuration dialog by clicking the "Delete" button twice.

Result

The parameter is deleted from the system.

See also

Overview (Page 676) Creating parameters (Page 678) Editing parameters (Page 680)

3.6.6 MEVA / KPI

3.6.6.1 Overview

In the configuration of KPIs (MEVAs / KPIs) you create new KPIs and configure already existing KPIs in Energy Manager Web. Newly created KPIs and changes to already existing KPIs in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

Note

A KPI object in Energy Manager Web corresponds to a MEVA from the Energy Manager PRO Client. In the following the term "KPI" is used for the expression "MEVA / KPI".

When you click on the menu item "MEVA / KPI" in the navigation area under the "Project configuration" folder, the detail area "MEVA / KPI - Administration" opens. The following figure shows the detail area "MEVA / KPI - Administration":



- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new KPIs.
- ② Display table of existing KPIs.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of KPIs is recommended when a large number of KPIs exist in the system.
- ④ "Delete" button: Deleting created KPIs from the system.
- (5) "Clone" button: When you clone a KPI, an exact copy of the KPI with the name ending in "Copy_0" is created. If you create several copies of a KPI, the number at the end of the name is incremented by one, for example, from "Copy_0" to "Copy_1". You can clone several KPIs at the same time with the help of the check boxes.

Note

In the "MEVA / KPI" folder not all the KPIs in the system are displayed, but only the KPIs contained in the folder.

The KPIs are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. The display table consists of the following six columns:

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual KPIs and any number of KPIs with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all KPIs. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all KPIs again.
Chart	Opens the chart of the KPI in a new window.
Name	Shows the name of the KPI.
Description	Shows the description of the KPI.
Structure	Shows the folder in which the KPI is created.
Unit	Shows the unit of the KPI.
Function	Shows the function type of the KPI.

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Creating MEVAs / KPIs (Page 684) Editing MEVAs / KPIs (Page 687) Deleting MEVAs / KPIs (Page 688)

3.6.6.2 Creating MEVAs / KPIs

Requirement

• The user has the functional right "Measuring Variable - create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To create a new KPI, follow these steps:

 Click on the "New" button in the detail area "MEVA / KPI - Administration". The configuration dialog "New - MEVA / KPI" opens.

Configuring the "General" tab

To configure the "General" tab, follow these steps:

- Enter a meaningful name for the KPI in the "Name" text box.
 The input of a name with the prefix "m " is required.
- 2. If required, enter a description of the KPI in the "Description" text box.
- 3. Select the unit of the KPI from the "Unit" drop-down list.
- 4. From the "Structure" drop-down list select the folder in which you want to create the KPI.

Common	Formula
m Costs Gas	
Description	
Costs gas	
Unit	
kWh	
Structure	
Meva / Kpi	
- 5. Select the compression level for the calculation of the KPI. You can choose between two calculation types:
 - Inherit from the higher level
 - Always use a particular type of compression

If you select the "Inherited from the higher level" check box, the compression level is taken from the higher level.

If you select the "Always use compression" check box, you can select the desired compression level from the drop-down list. The selected compression level is used for all further calculations.

Calculatio	on shall be based on the following compression level preference
۲	Inherited from the higher level
0	Always use compression Level Entry values

Configuring the "Formula" tab

To configure the "Formula" tab, follow these steps:

- 1. Select the function type of the KPI from the "Function" drop-down list.
- 2. Selecting the "Configurable Meva" function activates the formula editor. In the formula editor you can enter a custom formula for calculating the KPI with the help of the adjacent buttons. The syntax of the formula is automatically checked. In the formula editor, placeholders are used for the selected objects. If you select the option "Show name", the names of the selected objects are displayed in the formula editor instead of the placeholders.
- From the drop-down list "Select object" select the objects that you want to use for calculating the KPI. You can use data points, parameters and other KPIs when creating a new KPI. By selecting or clearing the "Datapoint", "MEVA / KPI" and "Parameter" check boxes you can refine the search accordingly.

Alternatively, you can use the structure browser. To open the Structure Browser, click on .

Selected objects are displayed with the corresponding position number in the "Currently selected" list.

4. You can change the sequence of the objects in the list using drag and drop. You can also delete objects that are no longer required by clicking the Delete icon.

Note

Observe the sequence of the objects. The correct sequence of the objects is required when calculating the KPIs.

5. If you have selected the function "Configurable Meva", you can insert the corresponding object in the formula editor by double-clicking an object. The position number of the object is copied to the formula editor with the corresponding placeholder.



Figure 3-2 KPI formula editor

6. Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The KPI is created in the selected folder.

See also

Creating subfolders (Page 621) Overview (Page 682) Editing MEVAs / KPIs (Page 687) Measuring variable (Page 193)

3.6.6.3 Editing MEVAs / KPIs

Requirements

- The KPI is created.
- The user has the functional right "Measuring Variable create, remove, configure" or the functional right "Measuring Variable configure".

Procedure

To edit an already existing KPI, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the KPI to be edited in the display table.
- Click the "Edit" button. As an alternative, you can double-click the KPI to be edited. The configuration dialog "Edit - MEVA / KPI" opens.
- You can configure all the settings again which you defined on creation of a KPI. The input of a name with the prefix "m_" is required.
- 4. Click on the "Save" button.

Editing multiple KPIs

You can select multiple KPIs at one time. If you select multiple KPIs from the display table with the help of the check box, the "Edit" button is extended. If you then click on the "Edit" button, a drop-down list opens from which you can edit the following properties:

- Unit
- Structure

If you click on one of the entries, a new dialog window opens. In this dialog window you can change the corresponding property of the selected KPIs. When you click on the "Save" button, the changes are applied.

See also

Overview (Page 682) Creating MEVAs / KPIs (Page 684) Deleting MEVAs / KPIs (Page 688)

3.6.6.4 Deleting MEVAs / KPIs

Requirements

- The KPI is created.
- The user has the functional right "Measuring Variable create, remove, configure".

Procedure

To delete one or more KPIs from the system, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the KPI to be deleted in the display table. You can also select one or more KPIs to be deleted with the help of check boxes.
- 2. Click the "Delete" button.
- 3. Click the "Delete" button again to confirm the deletion process. As an alternative, you can delete a KPI from the system in the "Edit MEVA / KPI" configuration dialog by clicking the "Delete" button twice.

See also

Overview (Page 682) Editing MEVAs / KPIs (Page 687)

3.7 Settings

3.7.1 Overview of settings

In the "Settings" folder you configure the key settings of your Energy Manager system in Energy Manager Web. Only the administrator can define the settings. Configurations of the settings in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

You can configure the following settings:

- Mail settings
- Account settings
- Web Client settings
- User management
- Units
- Alarm lists
- Backup
- Regional settings
- Modbus device templates
- Data provider

Opening settings

To open the "Settings" folder, follow these steps:

1. Click in the menu bar on "Settings".

暍
P
×
¢
\equiv
ŝ

2. Click the menu item "Settings" in the navigation area. As an alternative, you can click the "Settings" tile in the detail area.





In the detail area you see an overview of the configurable settings in tile form.

3. To configure the respective settings, click on the corresponding tile in the detail area. As an alternative, you can click on the corresponding menu item in the navigation area.

Note

The folder structures are automatically created after the installation of Energy Manager and cannot be deleted by the user.

See also

Mail settings (Page 692) Account settings (Page 694) Web Client settings (Page 700) Backup (Page 716) Regional settings (Page 718) User Management (Page 702) Units (Page 708) Alarm lists (Page 713)

3.7.2 Mail settings

Overview

In the "Mail settings" you manage the notifications in Energy Manager Web which inform the user by e-mail about different situations. You can find the corresponding settings in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "File > Options > Appl.". Changes to the settings in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

Configuring mail settings

To configure the setting "Mail settings", follow these steps:

1. In the "Sender e-mail address" text box, enter the sender address which is used by Energy Manager for sending e-mails automatically.

The specified sender e-mail address is checked for correctness.

2. In the "STMP server" text box enter the address of the STMP server that is used for sending emails automatically.

Mail settings

Email address EnMPRO@siemens.com
SMTP server
smtp.Austria.EU.net

3. If you select the option "Use server login credentials", you have to enter the user name, password and the port number of the SMTP server in the corresponding text boxes. If you select the "SSL" check box, the data is transmitted in encrypted form.

Use server login cred	entials
Port 25	ssi
User EnMPRO@siemens.com	
Password	

- 4. Enter the URL of the Energy Manager Web Server in the "Web server" text box.
- 5. In the "Mail text" text box enter the sample text for automatic sending of e-mails.
- 6. In the "Mail text link" text box enter the sample text for automatic sending of e-mails with URL link.

7. In the "Mail text alarm" text box enter the sample text of alarm messages for automatic sending of e-mails.

```
Web server
http://localhost/EnMPROWeb
Mail text
Lieber %RECEIVER%!
 Dieser Bericht wurde automatisch von %COMPUTERNAME% generiert
und per Email an %RECEIVER% versendet.
mfG %SENDER%
Mail text link
Lieber %RECEIVER%!
Dieser Bericht unter: %LINK%
wurde automatisch von %COMPUTERNAME% generiert und per Email an
%RECEIVER% versendet.
mfG %SENDER%
Mail text alarm
Lieber %RECEIVER%!
 Dieser Bericht wurde automatisch von %COMPUTERNAME% generiert
und per Email an %RECEIVER% versendet.
mfG %SENDER%
```

```
8. Click on a different entry in the navigation area to save the settings.
```

Note

A maximum of 10 alarm messages are sent in one e-mail. If more than 10 alarm messages are present, Energy Manager send 10 alarm messages in one e-mail. The number of pending alarms is specified in this e-mail. Energy Manager does not send any further e-mail for the other alarm messages.

See also

Overview of settings (Page 689) Options (Page 53)

3.7.3 Account settings

Overview

In the "Account settings" you configure account settings in Energy Manager Web. You can find the corresponding settings in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "File > Account settings". Configurations of the settings in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

Configure the account settings using the following tabs:

- General
- Password settings
- Data storage
- Delete options
- MindSphere

Note

If you change the text boxes of the respective tab and change the tab, for example, from "General" to "Delete options", the changed text boxes are automatically saved. If you change to a different object in the navigation area, the changed text boxes are also saved.

"General" tab

Enter the path in which the Account settings are stored in the "Archive base directory" text box.

Archive base directory C:\EnMPRO\DB

"Password settings" tab

Manage your password requirements in the "Password settings" tab. For the text boxes "Admin password expires after (days)"" and Password expires after (days)", you can enter a one to five-digit number. For all other numeric text boxes you can enter a one to two-digit number.

Note

Unsupported punctuation

Quotation marks are not supported for passwords.

Password for admin expires after (days) 1000	Password expires after (days) 365
Min. length	Password history 3
Lower case characters	Upper case characters 0
Min. digits	Forbidden characters
Min. specific characters	Specific characters äöüÄÖÜß
Min. punctuation marks	Punctuation marks !#\$%^&*()<>+-=':]{}/ \`~

"Data storage" tab

In the "Data storage" tab you manage the duration with which you save the measured values of the corresponding cycle times in the system. You also set the archiving behavior on expiry of the entered time. The archive directory displays the path under which the measured values of the cycle times are saved. You can only change the archive directory in the "General" tab. To remove the cycle times from the list, click the "Delete" icon. Click on the icon again to confirm the deletion process. If you click on the "Expand all" icon, the details of all cycle times are displayed. If you click on the "Collapse all" icon, the details are hidden again.

To save measured values of a new cycle time, follow these steps:

1. Click on the "Add new" button.

0

A new cycle time is added to the list.

2. From the "Cycle time" drop-down list select the cycle time you want to save.

3. Enter a one to six-digit number in the "Keep values" text box.

The input of a value is required.

- 4. Select the associated desired duration from the "Unit" drop-down list.
- 5. In order to archive the measured values of the cycle time after expiry of the entered duration and then delete them, select the option "Archive after deletion".

				~	,1 ⁴²	0
Cycle time - 15 s						▣
Cycle time		Keep values for:	Unit	Archive	e after o	leletior
15 0	_	2	м	 -		

- 6. In order to not archive the measured values of the cycle time after expiry of the entered duration, but only to delete them, deselect the option.
- 7. Click on a different entry in the navigation area or a different tab to save the settings.

"Delete options" tab

In the "Deletion options" tab you manage the duration after the expiry of which messages and alarms are deleted from the system. To enable the deletion process, select the respective option. In the "Older than [days]" text box enter the time in days for the respective message type after the expiry of which the messages are deleted. You can enter a one to six-digit number in the respective text box. The adjacent archive paths show you where the corresponding messages are stored before the messages are deleted.



"MindSphere" tab

You manage your MindSphere connection in the "MindSphere" tab. You can configure the following settings:

• Uuid

In the "Uuid" text box enter your personal MindSphere login data which you receive on activation of your MindSphere access. To receive your MindSphere login data you have to create a "Mindconnect Lib Asset" with your MindSphere access data on the MindSphere website. You then manually generate a connection key on the Internet for the "Mindconnect Lib Asset". The connection key is used as a replacement for your user name and your password. Enter the generated connection key in the "Uuid" text box.

• Upload configuration

Use the "Upload configuration" icon to export your MindSphere configuration to MindSphere. Click on the icon to start the export. Confirm the process by clicking the icon again. Existing configurations are overwritten by a new export.

• Server certificate

In the "Server certificate" text field only the certificate for MindSphere is displayed.

U	uid	
**	*	1
Se	erver certificate	
	BEGIN CERTIFICATE	
B	AYTAkREMQ8wDQYDVQQIDAZCYXIIcm4xETAPBqNVBAcMCE11ZW5iaGVuMRAwDqYD	
V	QQKDAdTaWVtZW5zMREwDwYDVQQFEwhaWlpaWlpCOTEdMBsGA1UECwwUU2llbWVu	
C)	yBUcnVzdCBDZW50ZXIxMDAuBgNVBAMMJ1NpZW1lbnMgSXNzdWluZyBDQSBJbnRl	
01	m5ldCBTZXJ2ZXIgMjAxNzAeFw0xODAxMDkxMTE0MzdaFw0xOTAxMDkxMTE0Mzda	
N V	IIGAMQ\$WGQYDVQQGEWJERTEMAUGATUECAWGQMF52AJUMREWDWYDVQQHDANNQWVU 2bbiEGMA4GA1HECgwHH2lbWA/uczEdMBsGA1HECgwHH2lbWA/ucyBHcgVzdCBD	
Z	W50ZXIxHDAaBqNVBAMMEvouZXUxLm1pbmRzcGhlcmUuaW8wqqEiMA0GCSqGSlb3	
D	QEBAQUAA4IBDwAwggEKAoIBAQDWobeNX/41JaW/qef3kAXvrzHJISaQ+YQJ/lxT	~

Proxy settings

If you select the option "Use proxy", you can configure certain proxy server settings. You have the choice between a manual proxy configuration and a configuration with specific user login information.

To use a manual proxy configuration, select the option "Manual proxy configuration". Enter the host name and the port of your proxy server in the corresponding text boxes.

To use specific user login information, select the option "Use specific user credentials". In the "User name" text box enter the user name you want to use. Enter the password of the user name in the adjacent text box "Password".

• Activate export

To enable the export of the data points to MindSphere, select the option "Export active". The data points marked for MindSphere are only exported to MindSphere if this option is set to active.

• Set synchronization date

Select the "Globally set synchronization date" button to set the date for the synchronization of all data points with MindSphere. If you select your own synchronization data when configuring a data point in the "MindSphere" tab, the synchronization data only applies for the corresponding data point. If you click on the "Globally set synchronization date" button, a dialog opens in which you set the synchronization date. If the option "Mark as cloud relevant" is selected, the measured values including timestamps of all data points are exported to MindSphere from this time onwards. If you start a new export of historical data, already existing values are overwritten by new values with the same timestamps.

• Export start time

From the "Minimum cycle" drop-down list select the measured values of the cycle time you want to export. Only measured values with the selected cycle time are exported. If there are no measured values with appropriately selected cycle time, the values of the next higher cycle time are exported. If you want to export 15-minute values, for example, but the data point is a daily cycle, the daily values are exported.

Select the cycle time with which the measured values are exported to MindSphere from the "Export cycle" drop-down list.

Export active		Globally set synchronization date		
Export start time Minimum cycle		Export cycle		
15 min	*	1 min 👻		

See also

Overview of settings (Page 689) Data storage (Page 70) General (Page 68) Delete options (Page 71) Password settings (Page 69) Job queue (Page 398) Configuring MindSphere settings (Page 671) Account settings (Page 68)

3.7.4 Web Client settings

Overview

In the "Web Client settings" you set the display of the Energy Manager Web user interface for specific companies and products. You can configure the following objects:

- Product name: Title of product
- Logo: Custom logo
- Login: Custom background image of the login page of Energy Manager Web

The image for "Logo" and "Login" is adjusted automatically to the size of the user interface during upload.

The following figure shows the detail area "Web client settings":

Web Client Configuration



Configuring Web Client settings

To configure the setting "Web client settings", follow these steps:

1. To use an alternative name for the product, enter the desired title of the product in the "Product Name" text box. The name "Energy Manager PRO" or "Energy Manager Basic" is defined by default.

The changed product name is adopted throughout the entire Web area and is displayed in the title bar.

2. To use a company-specific logo, click the "Browse..." button under the "Logo" text field.

A dialog for selection of an image opens.

3. Select a suitable image as the logo.

The changed logo is adopted throughout the entire Web area and is displayed in the title bar. The SIEMENS logo is set by default and by clicking the "Use default logo" button.

4. To use an alternative background image, click on the "Browse..." button under the "Login" text field.

A dialog for selection of an image opens.

5. Select a suitable image as the background image on the login page.

The changed image is adopted as the background image on login. The SIEMENS login screen is set by default and by clicking the "Use default login" button.

6. Click on a different entry in the navigation area to save the settings.

See also

Overview of settings (Page 689) Definition of home page (Page 486)

3.7.5 User Management

3.7.5.1 Overview

In the setting "User Management" you create new users in Energy Manager Web and configure already existing users. An overview of the existing users in Energy Manager PRO Client can be found under the path "System > Configuration > User, group, rights management > User". The creation of new users can be found in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "Master data > Authorization > Insert user". Newly created users and user configurations in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

The following figure shows the detail area "User management":

	0 2	3	
User management			
New Edit		Q Filter	
Username 🔺	First name 🗢	: Last name 🗢	Email 🜲
ADMIN			
CONFIGURATOR			
GUEST			
JSMITH	John	Smith	john.smith@siemens.com
KATYOUNG	Kathy	Young	kathy.young@siemens.com
OPERATOR			
	14 44	1 ା≫ 🕅	
			💼 Delete

- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new users.
- 2 Display table of existing users.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of users is recommended when a large number of users exist in the system.
- ④ "Delete" button: Delete user from the system.

Newly created and already existing users in the system are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. The display table consists of the following five columns:

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual users and any number of users with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all users. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all users again.
User name	Displays the user name in Energy Manager.
First name	Shows the first name of the user.
Last name	Shows the last name of the user.
Email	Shows the e-mail address of the user.

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Creating users (Page 704) Editing users (Page 706) Deleting users (Page 707)

3.7.5.2 Creating users

Procedure

To create a new user, follow these steps:

 Click on the "New" button in the detail area "User management". The configuration dialog "New - User" opens.

Common Administrati	on	
Personal information	Location informat	ion
Name	Department	
JSMITH	FA	
First name	Address	
John	Siemensstr.	
Last name	Zip code	City
Smith	90554	Nuremberg
Email	Country	
john.smith@siemens.com	Germany	
	Phone	

2. Enter the personal information and location information in the "General" tab.

The input of a user name is required.

3. Click on the "Administration" tab.

Common	Administration		
Password settings		Usergroup management - Member of	
Password		Select group	*
Confirm password		Currently selected	
		Configurators	

- 4. Enter the password of the new user in the "Password" text box.
- 5. Confirm the password in the "Confirm Password" text box.

6. From the "Select group" drop-down list select the user groups to which the user is added.

The following user groups are available:

	 Administrator: This user group includes comprehensive functional rights for Energy Manager. The user group has the right to delete, add or configure all objects.
	 Configurator: This user group has the right to configure Energy Manager objects but not to delete these objects.
	 Operator: This user group has the right to open and view Energy Manager objects but not to configure or delete these objects.
	 Guest: This user group does not have the right to delete, add or configure objects. The user group also does not have the right to create new reports and to calculate analyses. This grouping is intended to apply simple, temporary restrictions on significant operator actions in the system.
	7. The selected user groups are displayed in the "Currently selected" list.
	8. To remove the user from a user group again, click the Delete icon.
	9. Click on the "Save" button.
Result	The user has been created.
See also	
	Overview (Page 702)
	Editing users (Page 706)
	Deleting users (Page 707)
	Setting up users (Page 343)
	Creating user groups (Page 354)

3.7.5.3 Editing users

Requirement

• The user has been created.

Procedure

To edit a user, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the user to be edited in the detail area "User management".
- 2. Click the "Edit" button. As an alternative, you can double-click the user to be edited. The configuration dialog "Edit - User" opens.
- 3. Configure the personal information and location information.

The input of a user name is required.

- 4. You can assign a new password in the password settings.
- 5. Under user group management you can assign the user to a new user group or remove the user from a user group again.
- 6. Click on the "Save" button.

Note

You can only edit individually selected users.

See also

Overview (Page 702) Creating users (Page 704) Deleting users (Page 707) Creating user groups (Page 354) Setting up users (Page 343)

3.7.5.4 Deleting users

Requirement

• The user has been created.

Procedure

- 1. Click on the user to be deleted in the detail area "User management". As an alternative, you can also select one or more users to be deleted with the help of the check boxes.
- 2. Click the "Delete" button.
- 3. Click the "Delete" button again to confirm the deletion process. As an alternative, you can delete a user from the system in the "Edit User" configuration dialog by clicking the "Delete" button twice.

Result

The user is deleted from the system.

See also

Overview (Page 702) Creating users (Page 704) Editing users (Page 706)

3.7.6 Units

3.7.6.1 Overview

In the setting "Units" you create new units in Energy Manager Web and configure already existing units. An overview of the existing units can be found in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "System > Configuration > Extended configuration > Unit". The creation of new units can be found in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "Master data > Configuration > Insert unit". New units and configurations of existing units in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

The following figure shows the detail area "Unit - Management":

o	New 🥖	Edit Q Filter		
	Name 🔺	Description 🗢	Unit type 🌲	
	d	day	time	~
	EN	error number	no unit type	
	EUR	Euro	currency	
	EUR/hl	euro per hectoliter	costs per unit	
	EUR/kWh	EUR per kWh	costs per unit	
	EUR/m ^a	euro per cubic meter	costs per unit	
	EUR/MWh	EUR per MWh	costs per unit	
	EUR/Nm ^s	EUR per standard cubic meter	costs per unit	
~	EUR/Pce	euro apiece	costs per unit	
	EUR/t	euro per ton	costs per unit	
		H ≪I ≫ H		

- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new units.
- Display table of existing units.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of units is recommended when a large number of units exist in the system.
- ④ "Delete" button: Delete units from the system.

Newly created and already existing units in the system are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. The display table consists of the following four columns:

Column	Function
Selection	You can select individual units and any number of units with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all units. Clicking on the check box again in the column header deselects all units again.
Name	Shows the name of the unit.
Description	Shows the description of the unit.
Unit type	Shows the type of unit.

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Creating units (Page 710) Editing units (Page 711) Deleting units (Page 712)

3.7.6.2 Creating units

Procedure

To create a new unit, follow these steps:

1. Click on the "New" button in the detail area "Unit - Management".

The configuration dialog "New - Unit" opens.

Common

Name	
USD/kWh	
Description	
US Dollar per kWh	
Unit type	
costs per unit	

2. Enter a meaningful name in the "Name" text box.

The input of a name is required.

- 3. If required, enter a description of the unit in the "Description" text box.
- Select the type of unit from the "Unit group" drop-down list. The selection of a unit type is required.
- 5. Click on the "Save" button.

Result

The unit is created. The created unit can be found in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the respective unit group.

See also

Overview (Page 708) Editing units (Page 711) Deleting units (Page 712) Configuring units (Page 369)

3.7.6.3 Editing units

Requirement

• The unit is created.

Procedure

To edit a unit, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the unit to be edited.
- Click the "Edit" button. As an alternative, you can double-click the unit to be edited. The configuration dialog "Edit - Unit" opens.
- Edit the name, the description, if required, and the unit type.
 The input of a name and selection of a unit type are required.
- 4. Click on the "Save" button.

Note

You can only edit individually selected units.

See also

Overview (Page 708) Creating units (Page 710) Deleting units (Page 712) Configuring units (Page 369)

3.7.6.4 Deleting units

Requirement

• The unit is created.

Procedure

To delete one or more units from the system, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the unit to be deleted. As an alternative, you can also select one or more units to be deleted with the help of the check boxes.
- 2. Click the "Delete" button.
- 3. Click the "Delete" button again to confirm the deletion process. As an alternative, you can delete a unit from the system in the "Edit Unit" configuration dialog by clicking the "Delete" button twice.

Result

The unit is deleted from the system.

See also

Overview (Page 708) Creating units (Page 710) Editing units (Page 711)

3.7.7 Alarm lists

3.7.7.1 Overview

In the setting "Alarm lists" you configure existing alarm and message lists in Energy Manager Web. The creation of new alarm lists is only possible in the Energy Manager PRO Client. You also add one or more users to the corresponding alarm lists. The assigned users receive alarm messages of the corresponding alarm lists. An overview of the existing alarm lists in Energy Manager PRO Client can be found under the path "System > Configuration > KPI alert lists". Configurations of alarm lists in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

The following figure shows the detail area "Alarm - Management":

) @	3	
Alert Administration		
e Edit	Q Filter	
Name 🌲		Notification \$
All		Active
All Warnings		Inactive
All Violations		Active
GAP detection not acknowled	lged	Inactive
All not Acknowledged		Inactive
H 44	1 🕪 🕅	

- ① "Edit" button Editing alarm lists.
- Display table of existing alarm lists.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation of alarm lists is recommended when a large number of alarm lists exist in the system.

Existing alarm lists in the system are displayed in tabular form in Energy Manager Web. The display table consists of the following two columns:

Column	Function
Name	Shows the name of the alarm list.
Notification	Shows the status of the alarm list. If no user is assigned to the corresponding alarm list, the status "Inactive" is shown. If the user is assigned to the alarm list and the option "Activate alert" is selected, alarm notification is activated. The status changes to "Active".

When you click on the column header of one of the columns, the corresponding column is sorted in alphabetical order. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.

See also

Editing alarm lists (Page 715)

Basic information on message lists (Page 389)

Configuring custom message list (Page 391)

Configuring message notification (Page 395)

3.7.7.2 Editing alarm lists

Requirement

• The alarm list is created.

Procedure

To edit an alarm list, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the message list to be edited.
- 2. Click the "Edit" button. As an alternative, you can double-click the alarm list to be edited. The configuration dialog "Alert list" opens.

Common

otification	cycle		Subs	cribe users to alerts
Value 1	Unit h	*	Selec	t user
— A	ctivate ale	rt	Curre	ently assigned users
			Ŵ	JSMITH (john.smith@siemens.com)
			Ô	KATYOUNG (kathy young@siemens.com

- 3. Enter a numerical value in the "Value" text box.
- 4. Select the associated time from the adjacent "Unit" drop-down list. The user will be informed about any existing messages in the time period entered.
- 5. If you select the option "Activate alert", the assigned user is informed about alarms of the corresponding alarm list.

The status changes to "Active".

- 6. From the "Select user" drop-down list select the users who will receive the messages of the corresponding alarm list. Only users with an assigned e-mail address are displayed. The selected users are displayed in the "Currently selected users" list.
- 7. You can remove the assigned users again by clicking the "Delete" icon.
- 8. Click on the "Save" button.

Note

You can only edit individually selected alarm lists.

See also

Overview (Page 713) Configuring message notification (Page 395) Basic information on message lists (Page 389)

3.7.8 Backup

Overview

In the setting "Backup" you configure the automatic creation of database backups in Energy Manager Web. You can find the corresponding settings in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "Administration > Backup". Configurations of backups in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

With the help of the individual setting of the weekdays you can create a weekly backup plan. The "Last backup status" text field shows when the last full and incremental backup was created. In addition, a message is displayed as soon as no backup is found. The "Drive status" text field shows the host name and the storage space of the archive drive.

Note

Restoring older versions

Version V7.4 does not support restoring a backup that was created with a previous version (e.g. V7.3 or V7.2).

Configuring a backup

To configure the setting "Backup", follow these steps:

- 1. Enter the storage location of the backup on your PC in the "Backup directory" text box.
- 2. If you want to manually create a backup, click on the "Change recovery model" button. To start the manual backup process, click on the "Backup" button.

Backup

Backup directory	
C:\EnMPRO\DB\EnMPRO\Admin\backup	
Initiate manual backup	🖨 Backup

3. Select the daily start time of the backup from the "Daily start time" text field.

4. Select a backup type for each weekday from the "Backup mode" drop-down list. You can choose an incremental, full or no backup for each weekday.

Scheduling		
	Daily start time	
Daily start time	03:00:1/1/19 🕑	
	Backup mode	
Monday	Incremental	•
	Backup mode	
Tuesday	Incremental	•
	Backup mode	
Wednesday	Incremental	•
	Backup mode	
Thursday	Incremental	•
	Backup mode	
Friday	Incremental	•
	Backup mode	
Saturday	Full	-
	Backup mode	
Sunday	None	-

5. Click on a different entry in the navigation area to save the settings.

See also

Overview of settings (Page 689) Backup (Page 411) Restore (Page 413)

3.7.9 Regional settings

Overview

In the setting "Regional settings" you manage location-specific settings in Energy Manager Web. You can create new countries or delete already created countries from the system. Already created countries with the corresponding configurations can be found in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "System > Configuration > Countries". The creation of new locations can be found in the Energy Manager PRO Client under the path "Master data > Localization > Insert location". Changes to the regional settings in Energy Manager PRO Web are also adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client and vice versa.

The formats for date, decimal separation and currency are automatically taken from your PC Windows settings.

Configuring regional settings

To configure the setting "Regional settings", follow these steps:

1. Select a location from the "Country" drop-down list.

The corresponding entries of the selected location are displayed in the "Name" and "Location" text fields.

2. If you want to create a new country, click the "Add new country" icon.

many	*	0
Name		
Germany		
Location		
Berlin		

3. Enter the name of the country in the "Name" text box and the associated location in the "Location" text box. You can also edit the name and location of already created locations.

Ø

4. To create the new country, click the "Confirm" icon. To cancel the action, click on the "Cancel" icon.

τrγ 💌		6
		-
		Con
Name		
USA		
Location		
Seattle		
Country code		
en-US	•	
Time zone		
(UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US and Canada)	*	
Report language		
	100000	

- 5. Select the corresponding country code from the "Country code" drop-down list.
- 6. Select the corresponding time zone from the "Time zone" drop-down list.
- 7. Select the language for the report evaluation from the "Report language" drop-down list.
- 8. To define the selected location as the default country, select the option "Default country".
- 9. If you want to delete a country from the system, click the "Delete country" icon. Click on the icon again to confirm the process.
- 10.Click on a different entry in the navigation area to save the settings.

See also

Overview of settings (Page 689) Inserting the location or country (Page 331)

3.7.10 Modbus device templates

3.7.10.1 Overview

In the setting "Modbus device templates" you create new Modbus templates in Energy Manager Web and configure already existing Modbus templates. You can create, edit, delete and export Modbus templates only in Energy Manager Web Client. New Modbus templates and configurations of existing Modbus templates in the Energy Manager Web Client are adopted in the Energy Manager PRO Client.

When you create or configure a Modbus channel, you can use the Modbus templates. The Modbus templates are displayed in tabular form:

G	New 🖋 Edit		Q Fil	ter	
	Name 🗢				
	PAC3200				
	PAC4200				
	PAC3200 (counter only)				
	PAC4200 (counter only)				
	k	140	1)>	Н	
					fft Delet

- ① "New" and "Edit" buttons: Creating and editing new Modbus templates.
- ② Display table of existing Modbus templates.
- ③ Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, the column Name" is searched and corresponding templates are displayed in the display table. Delimitation of Modbus templates is recommended when a large number of Modbus templates exist in the system.
- ④ "Delete" button: Delete selected Modbus templates from the system.

The display table consists of the following two columns:

Column	Function	
Selection	You can select individual Modbus templates and any number of Modbus templates with the help of the check boxes. Clicking on the check box in the column header selects all Modbus templates. Clicking on the check box in the column header again deselects all Modbus templates again.	
Name	Shows the name of the Modbus template.	
	When you click on the column header of the "Name" column, it is sorted in alphabetical or- der. When you click on the same column header again, the column is sorted in the reverse order.	

See also

Modbus TCP templates (https://support.industry.siemens.com/cs/de/en/view/109771884)
3.7.10.2 Exporting Modbus device templates

Requirement

• The Modbus device template has been created.

Procedure

Follow these steps to export a Modbus device template:

- 1. Select the desired Modbus device template from the table of the detail area "Modbus templates Administration".
- 2. Click the "Edit" button.
- 3. Click the "Download" button.

Result

The selected Modbus device template has been saved in the storage location for your browser downloads. The saved template has the name in Energy Manager Web as the file name and the data type ".ini".

3.7.10.3 Creating a Modbus device template

Requirements

- Do you have the functional right "Master Data > create, remove, configure"?
- An exported Modbus device template is saved in its local system.

Procedure

To create a new Modbus device template, follow these steps:

1. Edit the exported template according to your needs.

At the beginning of the automatically created templates you can find a short description of all configurable contents for editing.

Note

The description of the contents of a template is only available in English.

- 2. Save the edited template in the "*.ini" file format in its local system.
- 3. Click on the "New" button in the detail area "Modbus device templates Administration".

The configuration dialog "New - Modbus template" opens.

4. Enter a meaningful name in the "Name" entry field. If you create a Modbus channel with a template, the name is displayed in the "Template" drop-down list.

General

1 Upload	🕹 Download

5. Click the "Upload" button.

A dialog window in which you can search the local data system is displayed.

- Select the desired template from the local data system and click on the "Open" button.
 The folders saved in the template with all data points are displayed in the "Template" field.
- 7. Click the "Save" button.

Result

The Modbus device template has been created.

3.7.10.4 Editing a Modbus device template

Requirements

- You have the functional right "Master Data > Configure".
- The Modbus template has been created.

Procedure

To edit a Modbus template, follow these steps:

- 1. Select the desired Modbus template from the table of the detail area "Modbus device templates Administration".
- Click the "Edit" button.
 The dialog window "Edit Modbus template" opens.
- 3. Configure the Modbus template as for creating a Modbus template.
- 4. Click the "Save" button.

3.7.10.5 Deleting a Modbus device template

Requirements

- You have the functional right "Master Data > create, remove, configure"
- The Modbus template has been created.

Procedure

To delete a Modbus template, follow these steps:

- 1. Select one or more Modbus templates from the table of the detail area "Modbus device templates Administration".
- 2. Click the "Delete" button.

Result

The selected Modbus templates are deleted.

3.7.11 Data provider

You can make the data in your Energy Manager system accessible to programs and systems via an OPC UA HDA Server. You configure the access in the "Data provider" setting.

OPC UA Server

To configure "OPC UA Server" access, proceed as follows:

1. Under "Start folder", use the structure browser to select the folders whose data is transferred with the OPC server.

If you select a folder, the data of all nested folders will also be made accessible.

2. Specify the address of the server on which the Energy Manager is installed. Enter the address in the following form:

opc.tcp://[IP address]:[Port]

3. Enable the security profiles used by the OPC UA HDA server.

If you have activated a security profile, a certificate exchange is performed. To access the data via the OPC server, move the created certificate from the /Siemens/EnMPro/OpcUaServr/pkiserver/rejected/certs folder to the [...]/pkiserver/trusted/certs folder.

4. If you enable "Anonymous user identity", you do not need login data to access the data via the OPC server.

If you enable "Use name identity", you can specify a user name with password to access the data via the OPC server. The user name and the password must correspond to a user name and the corresponding password of a user of your Energy Manager system.

If you specify the login data of an Energy Manager user, you can only access the data points that the user can also access in the Energy Manager.

If you only enable "User name identity", you need to enter a user name with password to access the data via the OPC server.

Note

If you configure the data provider while the server is running, the System service must be restarted via the Service Cockpit. Changes at the OPC server are only applied after the restart of the System service.

Additional information

The following entries are available for each data point that is made accessible by the OPC UA server:

- Unit
- Acquisition category
- Measured values If several compression levels are configured for the data point, the lowest compression level is made available.

The entry on the measured values has the following label: [Data point name]_[Compression level]

If a data point is configured as a counter, additional measured values are provided that are compiled as counters. This entry has the following label: [Data point name]_CNT_[Compression level]

3.8 Notification Center

The "Notification Center" provides an overview of all generated alarms, warnings and comments for each asset.

To open the "Notification Center", click on the "Notification Center" icon in the menu bar.



Structure

When you open the Notification Center, you will see an overview of all alarms for each asset.

rerview		Select a Asset to analyse the a	larms and commen	ts of the designated datapoints.	
Assets with alarms or comments	4	Q. Search		< 01.09.2021 00:00:00 @ Range 01.10.2021 00:00:00 @ Offset	Month >
Assets with alarms	3	Accete 141			
Assets with comments	2	Water purification	42	Production area EnPIs	(1()
		Boilers	0	Compressors	0

① The overview shows you how many assets have data points with alarms, warning or comments.

2 The asset overview shows you how many alarms, warnings or comments are occurring in an asset.

2 1 < Asset Overvi Data points **Production area EnPls** d_PR_production_hl 01 09 2021 00 00 00 01 10 2021 00 00 00 Range Month 0 All Alarms All Acknowledged d_PR_cons_E_total Number of elements: 13 Acknowledge all Comments Not Acknowledged Warnings 00 d PAC3200 E Wh Standort ges 23.09.2021 19:15:00 Gap detected. A 0 Data point name: d_PAC3200_E_Wh_Standort_ges a_PAC3200_E_kWh_Standort_ges Created at: 23.09.2021 19:30:00 Acknowledge 0 16.09.2021 04:30:00 Value of 326 violates Upper Limit of 325. A Data point name: d_PR_cons_E_total Created at: 16.09.2021 17.30:36 Acknowledge

To open the detail view of an asset, click on it.

- ① This area shows all data points with alarms, warning or comments.
- 2 The detail view of the asset shows all alarms.

You have the following options to filter for specific alarms:

• Filter for alarms during a specific period in the detail view of the asset.



- Filter for type of alarm
 - All

Shows all types of alarms.

– Alarms

Shows only alarms.

Warnings

Shows only warnings.

– Comments

Shows only comments.

- Filter for alarm status
 - All

Shows all alarms.

Confirmed

Shows all confirmed alarms.

- Not confirmed

Shows all not confirmed alarms.

• Filter for alarms at specific data points in the "Data points" area.

When you select a data point, you will see the chart icon in the detail view. To open the chart of the data point in a new window, click on the icon.

Batch analysis 3.9

With the batch analysis, you determine the resource consumption of a product per batch. To open the batch analysis, click on the "Batch analysis" icon.



Overview structure

When you open the batch analysis, you will see an overview with the batches as well as their KPIs.

Overview	Chart	Select equipme	mt filter 🔻 🔤 Select m	aterial liter 💌 🔤	ct batch ID	• <	24.01.2022 00:0 25.01.2022 00:0	0:00 Range Diry curr. 0:00 Offset 0	>		=
quipment	Material	Batch ID	Start time	End time	Duration	Electricity	Production	Unit consumption			
illing line 01	No material	0	24.01.2022 02:30:00	24.01.2022 03:30:00	01:00:00	231 kWh	0 Stk	0 kWhipes	Ð	0	Û
Filling line 01	Soft drink3	300048	24.01.2022 03:50:00	24.01.2022 07:00:00	03:30:00	115.747 kWh	21.063 Stk	5,50 kWh/pcs	0	0	0
Filling line 01	No material	0	24.01.2022 07:00:00	24.01.2022 08:00:00	01:00:00	247 kWh	0 Stk	0 kWh/pcs	0	0	Û
Filling line 01	Soft drink1	100049	24.01.2022 08:00:00	24.01.2022 10:15:00	02:15:00	111,827 kWh	22.505 5tk	4,95 kWh/pcs	0	0	Û
Filling line O1	No material	0	24.01.2022 10:15:00	24.01.2022 11:15:00	01:00:00	226 kWh	0 Stk	0 kWh/pcs	O	0	0
Filling line 01	Soft drink2	200049	24.01.2022 11:15:00	24.01.2022 14:15:00	03:00:00	127.314 kWh	23.965 5tk	5,31 kWhipes	0	0	Û
Filling line 01	No material	0	24.01.2022 14:15:00	24.01.2022 15:15:00	01:00:00	205 kWh	0 5tk	0.kWh/pcs	0	0	Û
Filling line O1	Soft drink3	300049	24.01.2022 15:15:00	24.01.2022 18:45:00	03:30:00	117.634 kWh	21.150 Stk	5,56 kWh/pcs	0	0	D
Filling line 01	No material	0	24.01.2022 18:45:00	24.01.2022 19:45:00	01:00:00	241 kWh	0 Stk	0 kWh/pcs	0	0	Û
illing line 01	Soft drink1	100050	24.01.2022 19:45:00	24.01.2022 22:00:00	02:15:00	112.437 kWh	22.264 Stk	5,05 kWh/pcs	0	0	0
Filling line 01	No material	0	24.01.2022 22:00:00	24.01.2022 23:00:00	01:00:00	248 kWh	0 Stk	0 kWh/pcs	0	1	17

Patch analysis

3.9 Batch analysis

- ① Filter options
- ② Table of batches and KPI values assigned to the asset You can display up to five KPI values.
- 3 You can recalculate O, edit p or delete each batch.

You have the following options to filter the table for displayed batches:

• Filter for batches within a specific period.



- Filter for asset
- Filter for material
- Filter for batch ID

Chart structure

Click on "Chart" to open the chart view.

The chart shows the KPIs of all batches in the selected period. Each calculated KPI value is shown as a line between the start time and end time of the batch. The chart can show up to 10 KPI trends.



- Disable the option to show the charts with the KPI values calculated for the specific batch period.
 Enable the option to show the charts with the shortest possible KPI calculation cycle.
- 2 Filter options
- ③ Select which KPI charts are displayed.

UC	Filter settings	Description
1	All assets, materials and batches	You obtain an overview of all batches and can export them as a CSV file. You can analyze the CSV file further in other tools.
2	All assets, materials and batches	You gain an overview of the energetic irregularities in selected batches. Sort the table by unit consumption, select the respective batches in the filter and switch to chart.
3	One asset, all materials and batches	You obtain an overview whether energy consumption depends on the pro- duced material. To hide individual effects, view all batches during the interval. Use unit consumption as KPI.
4	One asset, one material and all batches	You obtain an overview as to whether the different batches of a material are produced with equal efficiency in an asset. Use unit consumption as KPI.
5	Individual assets, one material and all batches	You obtain an overview of the unit consumption of a product that was pro- duced in multiple assets at the same time.

Service Cockpit 3.10

To open the Service Cockpit, click on the icon 🔑.

To open the Service Cockpit in Energy Manager Web, you require the functional rights "Service Cockpit > view" and "Master Data > view".

Setup

The following figure shows the Service Cockpit:



- 1 Navigation area
- 2 Selection of detailed information
- 3 **Display of services**
- (4) Detailed information

3.10.1 Navigation area

The navigation area displays all available acquisition components and the application server. The following figure shows the navigation area:



To display the function dialog of the acquisition component in the detail area, click on the entry of the acquisition component in the navigation area.

To display all acquisition channels of an acquisition component in the navigation area, click on the item of the acquisition component and then on the "Available channels" item.

The status of the acquisition components and channels is displayed via the color of the corresponding icon:

Color	Acquisition component status	Channel status
Green	At least one acquisition component is ac- tive. There is no gap in any channel of the ac- quisition component.	Data acquisition of the channel is active. There is no gap.
Red	At least one acquisition component is ac- tive. There is no gap in at least one channel of the acquisition component.	The channel is connected to the system. There is a gap.
Gray	All channels of the acquisition compo- nents are not connected or are inactive.	The channel is not connected to the sys- tem or is inactive.

The entry "Available channels" has the same status display as the corresponding acquisition component.

If you hold the mouse pointer over the entry of a channel, the ID of the process is displayed via a tooltip.

3.10.2 Services

Depending on the use of the selected system component, the corresponding services are displayed:

System com- ponent	Energy Manager Service
Application server	Database service (Database)
	Report service (Reporting)
	Portal service (Portal)
	Calculation service (Calculation)
	System service (System)
Acquisition	Portal service (Portal)
component	Acquisition service (Acquisition)
	Kernel service (Kernel)

If a server is used as the acquisition server and application server, all listed services are displayed.

Status display

The status of the services is indicated by the color of the icon:

Color	Status
	Service is running
•••	Service is stopped
40 40 40	Service is stopped

Start, restart and stop of services

To control services, click on the icons in the following table:

Symbol	Function
۲	Start service
C	Restart service
	Stop service

3.10.3 System

To call up this field, click on system component in the navigation area and the "System" tab in the selection of the detailed information.

Information

This field shows the following general information for the corresponding servers:

Application server	Acquisition component
The Energy Manager version used by the sys- tem	 The Energy Manager version used by the system The time of the last contact with the acquisition system The system time

The system field shows the following hardware information for all servers:

- A list of the hard disks and their usage
- The CPU load
- The currently used work memory

3.10.4 Installed software

To call up this field, click on system component in the navigation area and the "Installed software" tab in the selection of the detailed information.

Setup

This field shows a table with the following information:

- The programs installed on the server
- The version of these installed programs

Sort the list via the column headers.

3.10.5 Log files

To call up this field, click on system component in the navigation area and the "Logs" tab in the detailed information selection.

The following figure shows an overview of the "Logs" field:

			Q. Filter		
Service #	Component ©	File ©	Size	Last change 👻	ר ר
All services +	All components 📼				
Calculation	MachineCalculation	MachineCalculation.log	111kb	26.07.2019 13:41:20	C Refrest
Acquisition	Synchronisation	Synchronisation.log	57kb	26.07.2019 13:41:20	
Calculation	CounterCalculation	CounterCalculation log	14kb	26.07.2019 13:41:19	III Open-
] Calculation	Recalculation	Recalculation.log	90kb	26.07.2019 13:41:18	A Description
] Acquisition	SinkDataImporter	SinkDataImporter.log	72kb	26.07.2019 13:41:15	
Reporting	ReportServer	ReportServer.log	91kb	26.07.2019 13:40:55	B Delete
] Calculation	CounterCalculation	CounterCalculation.1.log	150kb	26.07.2019 13:40:28	
Acquisition	DataDeletion	DataDeletion.log	136kb	26.07.2019 13:40:27	
Mind upload	*No component*	trace\MindUpload\PW20190726.log	18kb	26.07.2019 13:40:19	
] Calculation	CounterCalculation	CounterCalculation 2.log	150kb	26.07.2019 13:31:00	
Calculation	Recalculation	Recalculation. 1.log	150kb	26.07.2019 13.30.49	
Acquisition	Synchronisation	Synchronisation 1.log	150kb	26.07.2019 13.27.33	
Calculation	CounterCalculation	CounterCalculation 3.log	150kb	26.07.2019 13:21:36	0

① Table with log files

2 Filter

When you enter a text in the "Filter" text box, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the table. Delimitation is recommended when a large number of log files exist in the system. Click on a column header to sort the corresponding column alphabetically.

③ Update

Updates the table with the log files.

④ Open

Opens the log file in the Energy Manager Web Client.

5 Download

Downloads the selected log file to your local system via your browser download. If several log files are selected, this button is disabled.

6 Delete

Deletes all selected log files.

The table with the log files contains the following information:

Name of the column	Content of the column
Service	Name of the corresponding Energy Manager service
Component	Name of the associated subcomponent of the service
File	Name of the log file
Size	Size of the log file in kilobytes
Date changed	Time of last change

View of the log file

3 0 Filter Log level Process Id & Components Date \$ Log info ¢ All All process id: All components INFO 19.08.2019 17:27:07 46 SYN d78fdcacaa004e33a167708383721cbf-1-1 dequeues 0 pending Wait 5s to synchronize TB_MESZJOURNAL_STRINGDataTable INFO 19.08.2019 17:27:06 22 SYN 19.08.2019 17:27:05 18 SYN INFO Wait 5s to synchronize TB_ALARMS2DataTable 19.08.2019 17:26:45 SYN INFO Wait 5s to synchronize TB_MESZJOURNALDataTable 46 Wait 5s to synchronize TB_MESZJOURNAL_STRINGDataTable INFO 19.08.2019 17:26:41 14 SYN 1 14 15 5 10.11 0 0 Export to csv × Cancel (5) (4)6 (1)Table with the messages

The following figure shows a log file in the Energy Manager Web Client:

2 Column filter

To filter a column, click on the corresponding filter. Then select the entries by which the column is to be filtered.

③ Filter

When you enter a text in the "Filter" text box, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the table. Delimitation is recommended when a large number of log files exist in the system. Click on a column header to sort the corresponding column alphabetically.

④ Export as CSV

Downloads the selected log file in CSV format to your local system via your browser download.

5 Cancel

Closes the view of the log file.

6 Update

Updates the log file

Next log file

If the latest log file with this name is not open, this button shows an arrow.

To open the next log file, click on this button.

⑦ Previous log file

Opens the log file with the same name that was created before this log file.

Name of the column	Content of the column
Date	Time stamp of the message
Process ID	ID of the channel to which the message provides information
Components	Component from which the message originates
Log level	Message type:
	INFO = Information
	• WARNING = Warning
	• ERROR = error
Log information	Contents of the message

The log file messages table contains the following information:

3.10.6 Gap recognition

To open a list of acquisition gaps of a channel, click on the channel in the navigation area of the service cockpit. When you click on "Available channels" in the navigation area, the list for the top channel is displayed in the navigation area. You can check the functionality of data acquisition with the help of gap recognition.

		Φ	2	3
	Nama a	Detendor 2	Q Filter	
	d_pac3200_E_Wh_T1_imp	Active energy imported at tariff 1	16.08.2019 15:43:00	✓ Acknowledge
~	d_pac3200_V_L2N	Instantaneous value of the voltage between phase conductor L2 and the neutral conductor	16.08.2019 15:43:00	C Refresh
1	d_pac3200_V_L3N	Instantaneous value of the voltage between phase conductor L3 and the neutral conductor	16.08.2019 15:43:00	

1	Table with all gaps of the channel
2	Filter function: When you enter a text in the "Filter" entry field, all columns are searched and displayed accordingly in the display table. Delimitation is recommended when there is a large number of gaps.
3	"Acknowledge":
	To acknowledge a gap, select the corresponding gap from the table and click twice on this button. The gap is deleted from the list. When all gaps are acknowledged, the status of the
	channel is set to green.
(4)	"Refresh"
	Click on this button to update the table with the gaps.

The display table contains three columns:

Column	Function
Data point	Data point of the gap
Description	Description of the data point
Time stamp	Time stamp of the gap

3.10.7 Troubleshooting with log files

3.10.7.1 Kernel fault

You can find more information on the log file in the reference under "Kernel (Page 903)".

Requirements

- You have the functional right "Administration > Logging Viewer > View"
- You have the functional right "Administration > Service Cockpit > View"
- The Service Cockpit in the web client is open.

Raw values are missing in the chart with compression level acquisition values

If the acquired measured values of the data source are not visible in the chart, proceed as follows to locate the problem:

- 1. Check whether the following services are running:
 - Kernel service (Kernel)
 - Acquisition service (Acquisition)
 - Portal service (Portal)

If the icon of the service is green, the service is running.

- Open the latest log file of the Kernel Service via the detail information "Log files".
 To facilitate the search, use the "Filter" function and sort the column "Last change"
- 3. Search the log file for errors.

Messages of category 3000 are error messages.

Identify the interface at which the error is present using the process ID.

- 4. With the help of the log file check whether values arrive in the kernel and are passed on.
- 5. Check whether the acquired measured values are written to the raw files.

The raw files can be found in the directory "Installation directory\GUI\mcl\RawFiles".

You can find additional information on raw files in the following section.

Raw files

Values acquired from the data sources are stored in raw files by default. A folder is created at midnight local time for each day. As soon as the first value is acquired, a raw file is created in this folder for each data point.

The name of the raw file consists of the ID of the data point. You can read the ID of the data point in the configuration dialog of the data point.

3.10.7.2 Acquisition service error

You can find more information on the "Compression" log file in the reference under "Compression (Page 908)".

Requirements

- You have the functional right "Administration > Logging Viewer > View"
- You have the functional right "Administration > Service Cockpit > View"
- The Service Cockpit in the web client is open.

The acquired measured values are visible, the 15-minute values are not.

If the acquired measured values are visible and values of the "15 minutes" compression level are not visible, proceed as follows to locate the problem:

- 1. Open the latest log file "Compression".
- 2. Check whether values were compressed for the corresponding time stamp. Filter the log file by the identifier "CMPR".
- 3. Filter in the log file by the identifier "RCAL" to display the compressed interval and the number of compressed values.
- 4. To check whether the compressed values were uploaded to the SQL server, open the log file "Synchronisation" of the acquisition service.

The local database of the acquisition component does not work.

If the local database of the acquisition component does not work, error messages are displayed in the log files "Compression", "Kernel" and "Synchronisation".

Open the log file "SQL Provider". This log file should be empty. If there are error messages in this log file, the local database is corrupt.

Alarms for acquisition values are not generated

If no alarms are generated in the event of limit violations in the values with the compression level "Acquisition values", proceed as follows:

- 1. Open the latest log file "Compression".
- 2. Filter the log file by the identifier "PLSI".
- 3. Check whether limit violations have been detected.

Gaps are not detected

If no gaps are detected in the acquired values, carry out troubleshooting as follows:

- 1. Open the latest log file "Compression".
- 2. Filter the log file by the identifier "Gap".
- 3. Check whether gaps have been detected.

3.10.7.3 Reporting service error

For more information on the "Recalculation" log file, see the reference under "Recalculation (Page 913)".

For more information on the "MEVA calculation" log file, see the reference under "MEVA calculation (Page 916)".

Requirements

- You have the functional right "Administration > Logging Viewer > View"
- You have the functional right "Administration > Service Cockpit > View"
- The Service Cockpit in the web client is open.

Daily values in matrix but no monthly values calculated

If you entered the daily values in a matrix, yet no monthly values were calculated, carry out troubleshooting as follows:

- 1. Open the latest log file "Recalculation".
- 2. Filter the log file by the identifier "ACOP".
- 3. Check to see whether compression is still pending.
- 4. Filter the log file by the identifier "RCAL".

Derived data points are not calculated automatically

If derived data points are not calculated automatically even though the data point is configured accordingly, carry out troubleshooting as follows:

- 1. Open the latest log file "Recalculation".
- 2. Filter the log file by the identifier "DCAL".
- 3. Check to see whether recalculation is still pending.
- 4. Filter the log file by the identifier "RCAL".

MEVA/KPI is not calculated

If a MEVA/KPI is not calculated, carry out troubleshooting as follows:

- Open the Logging Viewer in the Energy Manager Pro Client.
 For more information on the Logging Viewer, refer to the section "Logging Viewer"
- 2. Search for error messages of the MEVA/KPI in Logging Viewer.
- 3. Open the log file "MEVA calculation".

Substitute values are not calculated for manually acquired daily values

If the substitute values are not calculated for gaps of manually acquired daily values, carry out troubleshooting as follows:

- 1. Open the latest log file "Recalculation".
- 2. Filter the log file by the identifier "REPV".
- 3. Check whether gaps have been detected.
- 4. Filter the log file by the identifier "RCAL".
- 5. Check whether substitute values were generated.

Interpolation of monthly values does not work

If the interpolation of monthly values does not work, carry out troubleshooting as follows:

- 1. Open the latest log file "Recalculation".
- 2. Filter the log file by the identifier "EXPA".
- 3. Check whether interpolation or extrapolation was performed.
- 4. Filter the log file by the identifier "RCAL".
- 5. Check whether an interpolated or extrapolated value was created.

3.10.7.4 Reporting service error

You can find more information on the "Report Server" log file in the reference under "Report Server (Page 917)".

Requirements

- You have the functional right "Administration > Logging Viewer > View"
- You have the functional right "Administration > Service Cockpit > View"
- The Service Cockpit in the web client is open.

Reports are not generated

If only the first green check mark is displayed after starting a report, or an automatically calculated report is not displayed, carry out troubleshooting as follows:

- 1. Open the log file "Report Server".
- 2. Filter the log file by the ID of the report.
- 3. Search for error messages.

If macros and Visual Basic were not activated in the EXCEL settings, this error occurs.

4. Check whether a default printer is defined in the operating system.

Reference

4.1 Acquisition status of a value

The acquisition status of a value shows whether this value was acquired properly. Values are displayed independently of the acquisition status in the chart and reused in MEVAs.

The following list contains all relevant acquisition statuses with a short explanation:

• STER_OK

A value with this acquisition status was acquired properly.

Effect: In the report, this value is displayed in black.

• STER_GAP

A value with this acquisition status is requested more often than defined in the data point.

Example: A data point has a cycle duration of 15 minutes. This means that the value of the data point is requested every 15 minutes at the interface. If - because of a misconfiguration - the value in Energy Manager is requested every 5 minutes, 3 values are passed to the acquisition component after each 15 minute cycle. Since only one value is saved in the 15 minute interval, the first two values are discarded and the third value with the STER_GAP acquisition status is saved.

Effect: In the report, this value is displayed in light green.

STER_INVALID

This acquisition status is only relevant for values of an OPC or OLE DB interface. In addition to the measured value, a status can be acquired as well with these interfaces. If the acquired status of a value is "Invalid", this value receives the acquisition status STER_INVALID in the Energy Manager.

Effect: In the report, this value is displayed in red.

• STER_FIRST

The first captured measured value after the restart of the kernel of the acquisition component receives the STER_FIRST status.

Effect: In the report, this value is displayed in black.

• STER_FIRST_INVALID

This status is a combination of the acquisition statuses STER_INVALID and STER_FIRST.

If the first captured measured value after the restart of the kernel of the acquisition component is invalid, the value receives this status.

Effect: In the report, this value is displayed in red.

4.1 Acquisition status of a value

• STER_LAST

If the kernel of the acquisition component is stopped or restarted, the last captured measured value before the stop of the acquisition component receives the STER_LAST status.

Effect: In the report, this value is displayed in black.

• STER_LAST_INVALID

This status is a combination of the acquisition statuses STER_INVALID and STER_LAST.

If the last captured measured value after the restart of the kernel of the acquisition component is invalid, the value receives this status.

Effect: In the report, this value is displayed in red.

4.2 Correction status of a value

Each acquired value in Energy Manager has a correction status. The correction status indicates whether and how a measured value was corrected. You can see and change the correction status of a value in the matrix or the measured value editor.

Values with a different correction status than "Valid" are displayed in orange in the report. Values are displayed independently of the capture status in the chart and reused in MEVAs.

The following value correction states are possible:

• Valid

If a value was not corrected, the value has this correction status.

• Valid with manual manipulation

If a value in the matrix or the measured value editor is overwritten, the value receives this correction status.

• Corrected

If a value is automatically corrected by the system, the value receives this correction status.

Example: If the counter value difference (consumption) does not correspond to the filter criteria, this value is automatically corrected.

• Corrected with LRU

If a missing value is inserted via the substitute value strategy "LRU", the value receives this correction status.

• Corrected with substitute measurement

If a missing value is inserted via the substitute value strategy "AKS", the value receives this correction status.

• Corrected with substitute value

If a missing value is inserted via the substitute value strategy "Substitute value", the value receives this correction status.

• Invalid

You can give values this correction status. Values with this correction status are not processed further in the MEVAs.

• Valid corr. with LRU and manual manipulation

This correction status is not assigned automatically.

If a value with the "Corrected with LRU" status is overwritten in the matrix or measured value editor, the value keeps this status. To mark such values accordingly, you can give these values the correction status "Valid corr. with LRU and manual manipulation".

• Valid corr. with substitute value measurement and manual manipulation

This correction status is not assigned automatically.

If a value with the "Corrected with substitute measurement" status is overwritten in the matrix or measured value editor, the value keeps this status. To mark such values accordingly, you can give these values the correction status "Valid corr. with substitute value measurement and manual manipulation".

• Valid corr. with substitute value and manual manipulation

This correction status is not assigned automatically.

If a value with the "Corrected with substitute value" status is overwritten in the matrix or measured value editor, the value keeps this status. To mark such values accordingly, you can give these values the correction status "Valid corr. with LRU and manual manipulation".

4.3 Query types

The following query periods are available:

Query type	Description
Derived-E2	Derived measurement E2
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 26.05.2035 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 26.05.2035 00:00
Ad-Hoc	This query type represents a user-specific query period. You must enter both the start and end time.
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	Query type cannot be used in automatic reporting.
Current quarter	Current quarter
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 01.04.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 01.04.2008 00:00
Analysis shift 1	Shift 1 queries
or	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
shift 1	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 05:30 - 08.01.2008 13:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 05:30 - 08.01.2008 13:30
Analysis shift 2	Shift 2 queries
or	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
shift 2	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 13:30 - 08.01.2008 21:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 13:30 - 08.01.2008 21:30
Analysis shift 3	Shift 3 queries
or	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
shift 3	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 21:30 - 09.01.2008 05:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 21:30 - 09.01.2008 05:30
Energy supplier - Year	Energy supplier queries - Years
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	31.08.2006 22:00 - 31.08.2007 22:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	31.08.2006 22:00 - 31.08.2007 22:00

Reference

4.3 Query types

Query type	Description
Energy supplier - Month	Energy supplier queries - Months
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	30.11.2007 22:00 - 31.12.2007 22:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	30.11.2007 22:00 - 31.12.2007 22:00
Energy supplier - Day	Energy supplier queries - Days
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	06.01.2008 22:00 - 07.01.2008 22:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	06.01.2008 22:00 - 07.01.2008 22:00
Energy supplier - Week	Energy supplier queries - Weeks
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	Sun. 30.12.2007 22:00 - Sun. 06.01.2008 22:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	Sun. 30.12.2007 22:00 - Sun. 06.01.2008 22:00
Next year	Forecast next year
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2009 00:00 - 01.01.2010 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.01.2009 00:00 - 01.01.2010 00:00
Next month	Forecast next month
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 09.02.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 09.02.2008 00:00
Next day	Forecast next day
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 10.01.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 10.01.2008 00:00
Next week	Forecast next week
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 09.02.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	09.01.2008 00:00 - 09.02.2008 00:00

Reference 4.3 Query types

Query type	Description
Financial year + 6h	Financial year + 6h queries
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.10.2007 06:00 - 01.10.2008 06:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.10.2006 06:00 - 01.10.2007 06:00
GAS - Month	GAS month queries
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.12.2007 06:00 - 01.01.2008 06:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.12.2007 06:00 - 01.01.2008 06:00
GAS day	Query GAS days
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	06.01.2008 06:00 - 07.01.2008 06:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	06.01.2008 06:00 - 07.01.2008 06:00
Financial year	Financial year gueries
5	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.10.2007 00:00 - 01.10.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.10.2006 00:00 - 01.10.2007 00:00
Year	Query year
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 01.01.2009 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.01.2007 00:00 - 01.01.2008 00:00
KR-14-vear	Query KR-14 year
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01 12 2007 00.00 - 01 12 2008 00.00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01 12 2006 00.00 - 01 12 2007 00.00
Month	Ouery month
Morren	Time of observation: 08 01 2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	Interval for automatic start of reporting.
	of the second of the start of reporting:
	01.12.2007 00:00 - 01.01.2008 00:00

Reference

4.3 Query types

Query type	Description
Month + 6h	Monthly queries + 6h
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 06:00 - 01.02.2008 06:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.12.2007 06:00 - 01.01.2008 06:00
Cur. month	Current month
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 01.02.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 01.02.2008 00:00
Current month + 6h	Queries current month + 6h
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 06:00 - 01.02.2008 06:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 06:00 - 01.02.2008 06:00
Month (current + M)	Month super (2 months) queries
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 01.03.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 01.03.2008 00:00
Production day	Query production days
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 05:30 - 09.01.2008 05:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 05:30 - 08.01.2008 05:30
Production day T7	Query production day Converter 7
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 05:30 - 09.01.2008 05:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 05:30 - 08.01.2008 05:30
Production day T8	Query production day Converter 8
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 05:30 - 09.01.2008 05:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 05:30 - 08.01.2008 05:30

Reference 4.3 Query types

Query type	Description
Production day T9	Query production day Converter 9
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 05:30 - 09.01.2008 05:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 05:30 - 08.01.2008 05:30
Shift	Shift queries
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
Query type corresponds to day	07.01.2008 06:00 - 08.01.2008 06:00
+61	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 06:00 - 08.01.2008 06:00
Shift 06:00-14:00	Shift 06:00-14:00
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 06:00 - 08.01.2008 14:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 06:00 - 07.01.2008 14:00
Shift 06:00 - 14:30	Shift 06:00-14:30
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 06:00 - 08.01.2008 14:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 06:00 - 07.01.2008 14:30
Shift 14:00-23:00	Shift 14:00-23:00
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 14:00 - 08.01.2008 23:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 14:00 - 07.01.2008 23:00
Shift 14:30-23:00	Shift 14:30-23:00
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 14:30 - 08.01.2008 23:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 14:30 - 07.01.2008 23:00
Shift 23:00-06:00	Shift 23:00-06:00
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 23:00 - 08.01.2008 06:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 23:00 - 07.01.2008 06:00

Reference

4.3 Query types

Query type	Description
Since new year	Queries since beginning of the year
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 08.01.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	Query type cannot be used in automatic reporting.
Since the beginning of the previ-	Queries since the beginning of the previous year
ous year	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2007 00:00 - 08.01.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	Query type cannot be used in automatic reporting.
Since beginning of month	Queries since the beginning of the month
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	01.01.2008 00:00 - 08.01.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	Query type cannot be used in automatic reporting.
Hour	Hourly queries
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 09:00 - 08.01.2008 10:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 08:00 - 08.01.2008 09:00
Hour with half-hour offset	Queries of hours with half-hour offset
Discontinued, no longer availa-	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
ble in the new version.	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 09:30 - 08.01.2008 10:30
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 08:30 - 08.01.2008 09:30
Day	Daily queries
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 00:00 - 09.01.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 00:00 - 08.01.2008 00:00
Day + 6h	Daily queries + 6h
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 06:00 - 09.01.2008 06:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 06:00 - 08.01.2008 06:00

Reference 4.3 Query types

Query type	Description
Day curr.	Current day
	Time of observation: 08.01.2008 09:15:12
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 00:00 - 09.01.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	08.01.2008 00:00 - 09.01.2008 00:00
Day/shift	Daily query - 1h 45min
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	06.01.2008 22:15 - 07.01.2008 22:15
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	06.01.2008 22:15 - 07.01.2008 22:15
Comparison (internal)	Internal function for comparison queries
Week	Weekly queries
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	07.01.2008 00:00 - 14.01.2008 00:00
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	31.12.2007 00:00 - 07.01.2008 00:00
Week/shift	Weekly queries - 1h 45min
	Interval for manual start of reporting:
	30.12.2007 22:15 - 06.01.2008 22:15
	Interval for automatic start of reporting:
	30.12.2007 22:15 - 06.01.2008 22:15

4.4 Filter criteria for a message list

Column	Description
Value	Value of the message
Batch	Batch ID of the message
Message	Number of the message
Class	Type of the message: Warning or violation
Status key	Status key of the message
Status description	Status description of the message
Ackn. User name (Energy Manager)	Name of the user on Energy Manager level who acknowledged the message.
Ackn. user name (field)	Name of the user on field level who acknowledged the message.
Writing user (field)	Name of the user on field level who configured the message.
Tag name	Tag name of the message
Tag ID	Tag ID of the message
Time stamp	Time as of which activated messages are displayed.

4.5 Time unit abbreviations

Abbreviation	Time unit
d	Day
h	Hour
Υ	Year
Μ	Month
min	Minute
s	Second
W	Week
4.6 Unit conversion Energy/Power

Energy	Power
J	J/h
kJ	kJ/h
MJ	MJ/h
GJ	GJ/h
Ws	Ws/h
Wh	W
kWh	kW
	GWs/h
GWh	GW
TWh	TW
VArh	VAr
kVArh	KVAr
MVArh	MVAr
GArh	GVAr
VAh	VA
kVAh	kVA
MVAh	MVA
GVAh	GVA
Nm ³	Nm³/h
m ³	m³/h
1	l/h
hl	hl/h
kg	kg/h
t	t/h
tCO ₂	tCO2/h
pce	pce/h
pce	pce/h

4.7 Module overview

Specific modules must be assigned different objects. The following table lists all available modules, highlights all objects to be connected, or provides examples of the layout of result presentations.

Query	Inputs:					
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)					
	Start parameters:					
	None					
	Result:					
	The connected opera database to Excel.	ating data poir	nts transfer all m	neasured values o	of the query period from the	
Batch query	Inputs:					
	1 n equipment var	riables or data	points			
	Equipment variables	link equipmer	nt with a data p	oint that contains	the measured values.	
	Start parameters:					
	If required, batch sel	ection				
Query with 1 timestamp	Inputs:					
	1n data points (d ,	e,a)				
	Start parameters:					
	None					
	Result:					
	The connected operating data points transfer all measured values of the query period from the database to Excel. The time stamp is displayed only once. A gap will develop if a value is missing for a time stamp.					
		la Za	g			
			<u> </u>			
		>	>'			
	0	ш [.]	ш'			
	l Ĕ		al B			
	18.04.2005 00:15	5 170	159			
	18.04.2005 00:30) 167	158			
	18.04.2005 00:45	5 168	158			
	18.04.2005 01:00	167	158			
Ouery with 1 timestamp	Inputs:					
transposed	1 n data points (d	ea)				
	Start parameters:	e_, u_,				
	None					
	Result					
	The connected opera	ating data poir	nts transfer all m	heasured values o	of the query period from the	
	database to Excel. Th	ne time stamp	is displayed onl	y once. A gap wil	I develop if a value is missing	
	for a time stamp.		. ,		. 3	
	time 18	8.04.2005 00:15	18.04.2005 00:30	18.04.2005 00:45		
	d A E V 117a	170	167	168		
	Id A E V 116a	159	158	158		

Quany with 2 timestamos	Innuts				
(from/till)	Inputs:				
	Start parameters:				
	Start parameters.				
	None				
	Result:				
	The connected operating data points transfer all measured values of the query period from the database to Excel. The time stamp is displayed only once. A gap will develop if a value is missing for a time stamp.				
	E117a				
	18.04.2005.00:10 18.04.2005.00:30 167 159				
	18.04.2005 00:45 18.04.2005 01:00 167 158				
	In the Energy Manager options you can use the MODULE_EINHEIT parameter to define whether you want to also output the unit (0 = unit output disabled, 1 = unit output enabled).				
Conditional calculation of	Inputs:				
derived measurements	1 measuring variable of function type "Gap check" (m_)				
	1n derived data points (a)				
	Start parameters:				
	None				
	Result:				
	The module evaluates the result of the measuring variable of function type "gap check". If the result = 1, the module deletes the measured value series for the specified query period. If the result = 0, the module calculates the derived data point for the specified query period.				
Derived measurement	Inputs:				
only level 1	1n derived data points (a_)				
	Start parameters:				
	None				
	Result:				
	The derived data points are only calculated in one level in the evaluation period. No data is re- turned to MS Excel. In contrast to the module "derived measurement", only the directly con- nected derived measurements are calculated, without taking into account any possible cascading of derived measurements. This module is therefore faster.				

Batch related analyses	Inputs:					
	Plant variable batch ID					
	Plant variable material ID These two plant variables are created during the installation of Energy Manager. 1 n plant variables					
	Plant variables link an item of equipment with a MEVA that contains the measured values.					
	Start parameters:					
	If required, batch selection					
	Result:					
	In addition to the information about the selected batches, the function outputs the correspond- ing measured values of the connected data points, or of the MEVAs that are linked by means of an equipment variable. The batches can be selected explicitly in a dialog at the start of evalua- tion. If this specification is missing, the batches are selected based on the evaluation query pe- riod.					
	More information on the batch- and material-related analysis can be found in the section Batch- and material-related analysis (Page 226).					
Batch related analyses +	Inputs:					
	Plant variable batch ID					
	Plant variable material ID These two plant variables are created during the installation of Energy Manager. 1 n plant variables					
	Plant variables link an item of equipment with a MEVA that contains the measured values.					
	Start parameters:					
	If required, batch selection					
	Result:					
	In addition to the information about the selected batches, the function outputs the correspond- ing measured values of the connected data points, or of the MEVAs that are linked by means of an equipment variable. The batches can be selected explicitly in a dialog at the start of evalua- tion. If this specification is missing, the batches are selected based on the evaluation query pe- riod.					
	The calculation of the data is not based on the previously calculated measurement values but the data is calculated separately by the module.					
	More information on the batch- and material-related analysis can be found in the section Batch- and material-related analysis (Page 226).					
Balance	Inputs:					
	1 n measuring variables (m_)					
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)					
	Start parameters:					
	None					
	Result:					
The measuring variable or the data point is calculated across the entire observation per report.						
	m Supply 1 sumR KWh 42715					
	m_Supply_2_sumR KWh 42102					
	In the Energy Manager options you can use the RILA. HEADER parameter to define whether you					
	want to insert a header (1 = header is displayed, $0 =$ header is not displayed).					

1 n measuring variables (m_) Note: Only the minimum or maximum function type Start parameters: None Result: The measuring variable is calculated across the entire observation period of the report. The minimum or maximum values are returned with time stamp. In the Energy Manager options you can use the BILA_TS_HEADER parameter to define whether you want to also insert a header (1 = header is displayed, 0 = header is not displayed). Balance since new year
Note: Only the minimum or maximum function type Start parameters: None Result: The measuring variable is calculated across the entire observation period of the report. The minimum or maximum values are returned with time stamp. In the Energy Manager options you can use the BILA_TS_HEADER parameter to define whether you want to also insert a header (1 = header is displayed, 0 = header is not displayed). Balance since new year
Start parameters: None Result: The measuring variable is calculated across the entire observation period of the report. The minimum or maximum values are returned with time stamp. In the Energy Manager options you can use the BILA_TS_HEADER parameter to define whether you want to also insert a header (1 = header is displayed, 0 = header is not displayed). Balance since new year
None Result: The measuring variable is calculated across the entire observation period of the report. The minimum or maximum values are returned with time stamp. In the Energy Manager options you can use the BILA_TS_HEADER parameter to define whether you want to also insert a header (1 = header is displayed, 0 = header is not displayed). Balance since new year
Result: The measuring variable is calculated across the entire observation period of the report. The minimum or maximum values are returned with time stamp. In the Energy Manager options you can use the BILA_TS_HEADER parameter to define whether you want to also insert a header (1 = header is displayed, 0 = header is not displayed). Balance since new year Inputs:
The measuring variable is calculated across the entire observation period of the report. The minimum or maximum values are returned with time stamp. In the Energy Manager options you can use the BILA_TS_HEADER parameter to define whether you want to also insert a header (1 = header is displayed, 0 = header is not displayed). Balance since new year Inputs:
In the Energy Manager options you can use the BILA_TS_HEADER parameter to define whether you want to also insert a header (1 = header is displayed, 0 = header is not displayed). Balance since new year Inputs: 1 1
Balance since new year Inputs:
1 n measuring variables (m_)
Start parameters:
None
Result:
The measuring variable is calculated starting at the "Since new year" and ends with the end of the query period.
For example for the monthly report April 2008; calculates the period from Jan. 01, 2008 to May 01, 2008.
Balance comparing Inputs:
1 n measuring variables (m_)
1n data points (d_, e_, a_)
Start parameters:
None
Result:
The measuring variable or the data point is calculated across the entire observation period of the report. Moreover, the last period or the same period of the previous year is calculated and re-
For example for the monthly report April 2008; March 2008 and April 2007 are shown.
MEVA Unit act. Period last period comp. last year
m_Supply_1_sumR kWh 42.715 13.123 25.255 m_Supply_2_sumR kWh 42.102 12.143 23.545
Only the query types month, month+6h, day and day+6h are supported.
3alance comparing SNY Inputs:
1 n measuring variables (m_)
Start parameters:
None
Result:
The measuring variable is calculated starting at "Since new year" and ends with the end of the query period as well as the same time period of the previous year.
For example for the monthly report April 2008; calculates the period from Jan. 01, 2008 to May 01, 2008 as well as the time period from January 1, 2007 to May 1, 2007.
Recalculate batch data Inputs:
1 plant
Start parameters:
None
Result:
The batch data of the plant is recalculated when the report is started.

Duration curve	Inputs:					
	1 n measuring variables (m)					
	Start parameters:					
	Interval, e.g. 3					
	Unit. e.a. h					
	Besult:					
	With a guery period of one day and three hour interval, the duration curve module returns eight					
	values (in a 3 hour pattern) (sorted protocol). The MEVA is calculated during the interval and					
	3 h 6,867 6,681					
	6 h 6,761 6,519					
	9 h 6,442 6,256					
	12 h 6,244 6,253					
	15 h 6,084 6,199					
	18 N 4,623 4,704 01 b 2,671 2,596					
	24 h 2 023 1 904					
	you want to also output the unit (0 = unit output disabled, 1 = unit output enabled).					
Duration curve sorted	Inputs:					
	2 n measuring variables (m_)					
	Start parameters:					
	Interval, e.g. 3					
	Unit, e.g. h					
	Result:					
	With a query period of one day and three hour interval, the duration curve module returns eight					
	values (in a 3 hour pattern). The values of the first MEVA are output sorted in descending order and the remaining MEVAs are sorted following the first MEVA.					
Documentation of all op-	Inputs:					
erating data points	1 n hardware objects					
	1 n measurements (including derived measurements)					
	1 n measuring variables					
	If you do not connect anything, you only receive an empty report with headers.					
	Start parameters:					
	None					
	Result:					
	All operating data points and MEVAs created in the system are listed, including their attributes.					

	· .				
Properties	Inputs:				
	1 n property types				
	1 n objects to be evaluated				
	Masterdata properties Masterdata_properties Masterdata_pr				
	Start parameters:				
	None				
	Result:				
	A matrix consisting of the property types and objects is set up. The objects are listed vertically from top to bottom, the property types from left to right.				
	ENERGY PURCHASEREEG / VMI-ARE OWNER				
	a_SI_WED_h_WA1_total EST Edersee 7 EWK				
	a SR WED I WAT EST Edersee 7 EWK				
Energy apportionment	Inputs:				
VZ	Data point that represents the loss factor.				
	MEVA, which represents the total infeed of the hall.				
	Parameters with sublevel data point that represent the cost centers.				
	 30_Cons_Building_08_Apportionment 30_Cons_Building_08_Apportionment_Apportionment a_ENE30_factor_correction m_30_H08_total_add m_4 LHB_ENE30_1150 a_HB_ENE30_205730 d_HB_ENE30_205730 d_HB_ENE30_1357 a_HB_ENE30_1357 				
	Start parameters:				
	None				
	Result:				
	The consumption calculated based on the MEVA is multiplied by the data point value (loss fac- tor). The product of this calculation is allocated in accordance with cost center factors (parame- ters). The result is written directly to the data point that is connected to the parameter node.				
	correction factor 1.2				
	Counter sum 2,497,128.0				
	countersom conected 2,890,000.0				
	30 898,966.1 t_H8_ENE30_1150 Costcenter 03				
	60 1,797,932.2 t_H8_ENE30_205730 Costcenter 11 10 299,655.4 t_H8_ENE30_1357 CostCenter 14				

Energy Efficiency	Inputs:
Measures	1 n filtered overview objects
	Energy Efficiency T Description Energy Efficiency Reports Energy Savings Energy Savings Energy Savings_EfficiencyMeasures Energy Savings_Ad-Hoc
	Start parameters:
	None
	Result:
	The module outputs all data of the energy efficiency measures that is filtered in an overview object.
Schedule B/L KISS-A	Inputs:
Month	1 measuring variable (m_)
	Start parameters:
	Interval, e.g. 15
	Unit, e.g. min
	Result:
	Works like a protocol module. You can, however, only connect one measuring variable. The output is assigned a special format - Day, from, to - as shown in the Excel table.
Schedule Target/Actual	Inputs:
	1 measuring variable (m_)
	Start parameters:
	Interval, e.g. 15
	Unit, e.g. min
	Result:
	The measuring variable is calculated in a 15-minute pattern. As hourly values are output in MS- Excel, the 15-minute values are added up to form hourly values. If the value is positive, the re- sult is entered in the 3rd column. If the value is negative, the result is entered in the 4th col- umn.
Daily temperature figure	Inputs:
	1 data point (d_, e_, a_) that represents the outdoor temperature.
	Start parameters:
	None
	Result:
	The connected data point is used to calculate the daily average. The daily temperature figure is calculated as follows.
	Daily average of the outdoor temperature TA:
	DTf = (20° - TA) if TA < 15° DTf = 0 if TA \ge 15°
	Monthly value: Total of all daily values
	Query period: 1 month
	Interval: 1 day
	Query period: 1 year
	Interval: 1 month

Comments	Innuts						
connicitis	1 n data points						
	Start parameters:						
	None						
	Result:						
	All comments are	All comments are listed whose time stamp is within the query period.					
	From	01.05.2021				1	
	То	01.06.2021					
	afine Delint "Commente"						
	Name of series	Timestamp	Comment	created at	created by		
	d DP1	14.05.2021 14:30	This is my comment	01.06.2021 14:32	Markus Bachl		
	d_DP1	14.05.2021 14:45	This is my comment	01.06.2021 14:47	Christoph Aglas		
	d_DP1	14.05.2021 15:00	This is my comment	01.06.2021 15:02	Markus Bachl		
	d_DP2333	14.05.2021 14:30	This is my comment	01.06.2021 15:17	Christoph Aglas		
	d_DP2333	14.05.2021 14:45	This is my comment	01.06.2021 15:32	Markus Bachl		
	[d_DP2333	14.05.2021 15:00	This is my comment	01.06.2021 15:48	Christoph Aglas	j	
Load forecast analysis	Inputs:						
	1 measuring variable (m_)						
	1 profile or master profile						
	Start parameters:						
	Interval, e.g. 15						
	Unit, e.g. min						
	Result:						
	The forecast load profile is considerably dependent on the typical days. This module is provided						
	to enable calculation of the time set of a past period. You can use the load profile analysis mod- ule to analyze any time frame. As a result, the power value per period (15-minute or hour) is output for all typical days in the evaluation period. If the analysis covers a yearly range (for ex-						
	not holidays or special days. In a year with 48 Mondays, for example, the mean value is calcu- lated for the time window from 00:00 h to 01:00 h for all Mondays and output as result. The same rule is applied to all other intervals.						
	A corresponding measuring variable must be connected directly below the module node. The measuring variable prepares the data point that you want to analyze.						
	You must also cor file.	nnect the pro	file that define	s the typical c	lays. You car	n also use a master pro-	
	Corrupted values you have to define BDATA_LASTPRF_	are ignored ir e the parame QS = 1 means	n the analysis. ter BDATA_LAS s corrupted val	If you also wa STPRF_QS = 0 ues are not ta	nt to make (in the Energ ken into acc	use of corrupted values, gy Manager PRO options. count.	

Load forecast analysis	The module provides the corresponding result in the following form:				
	Calculation	Profile	From	То	
		ProfWinter	01.04.2006	01.10.2006	
		ProfSummer	01.10.2006	01.04.2007	
	Reference object	MasterProfile	m_OverallProfile		
	Profiles		ProfSummer	ProfWinter	ProfSummer, ProfWinter
	No. of values		169	173	23
	Time		TDSummer	TDWinter	TDHoliday
	00:00	01:00	8.36	8.80875	9.36
	01:00	02:00	8.425	8.7625	9.425
	02:00	03:00	8.25875	8.72	9.25875
	03:00	04:00	8.225	8.94125	9.225
	04:00	05:00	8.1975	9.041875	9.1975
	05:00	06:00	8.21625	9.34625	8.21625
	06:00	07:00	8.31625	11.44188	8.31625
	07:00	08:00	8.38375	13.48125	8.38375
	08:00	09:00	8.4525	14.445	8.4525
	09:00	10:00	8.45375	14.6775	8.45375
	10:00	11:00	8.45	14.78813	8.45
	11:00	12:00	8.49	14.87188	8.49
	12:00	13:00	8.4975	14.84125	8.4975
	13:00	14:00	8.5525	14.78938	8.5525
	14:00	15:00	8.53625	14.59313	8.53625
	15:00	16:00	8.57875	14.09438	8.57875
	16:00	17:00	8.58125	13.23375	8.58125
	17:00	18:00	8.51875	12.5325	8.51875
	18:00	19:00	8.50125	11.57625	8.50125
	19:00	20:00	8.445	10.60125	8.445
	20:00	21:00	8.40125	9.760625	8.40125
	21:00	22:00	8.34875	9.286875	8.34875
	22:00	23:00	8.32375	8.953125	8.32375
	23:00	00:00	8.31375	8.77125	8.31375
	The time period in The names of the played in line 4 ne	which the profile connected master ext to the reference	was calculated is disp profile or profile and object.	blayed for master pro of the measuring va	ofiles (lines 1 to 3). ariable are dis-
	The typical day is on next to the "Numb	output in line 7. Th per of values" entry	e number of days use . The result is marked	ed to calculate the ty I in blue if this value	ypical day is shown is less than three.
	Line 4 displays the never contain mor	e profiles used as th re than one profile.	e basis for calculatio If it contains several	n of the typical days profiles, the text is	s. This line should output in red font.
	The typical days ca text "save" in the t starting the report	an be written back ext field below (he 	to the database. For ader Text:) in the sec	this purpose, the us cond dialog "Module	er must enter the Start/Stop" when

LTEXT for current version Inputs: 1 data points (d_, e, a,) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of the current version are read for the connected data points and displayed with time stamp. Imme 0. StringDatapoint 1/16/2008 10:00 Turbinerevision LTEXT for all versions Inputs: 1 n data points (d_, e, a) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Imme (d_StringDatapoint) Value Version-date 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 4 falsen out 0 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 4 falsen out 0 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 4 falsen out 0 1/16/2008 9.00 Turbinererision 0 1/16/2008 9.10 Turbinererision 0 1/16/2008 9.00 Turbinererision 0 Machine Protocol Inputs: All configured consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer anew, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocol out of the 2005 9:13 Machine Protocol Mac Machine and Vendor Creation Date		ú					
1n data points (d_, e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of the current version are read for the connected data points and displayed with time stamp. Itext objects of the current version LTEXT for all versions Imput: 1 n data points (d_, e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Immediate Info2008 9:00 Machine 2 fails out 0 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 fails out 0 0 None Start parameters: None None Start parameters: None Start parameters: None	LTEXT for current version	Inputs:					
Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of the current version are read for the connected data points and displayed with time istamp. time id_StringDatapoint 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 failen out 1/16/2008 9:10 Machine 4 failen out 1/16/2008 9:11 1/16/2008 9:10 Machine 4 failen out 1/16/2008 9:11 1/16/2008 9:10 Machine 4 failen out 1/16/2008 9:11 1/16/2008 9:11 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Start parameters: Non		1n data points (d_,	e_, a_))			
None Result: All text objects of the current version are read for the connected data points and displayed with time stamp. time d_StringDatapoint 1/16/2008 10.0 Machine 4 failen out All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 4 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 4 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 4 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 2 failen out 0		Start parameters:					
Result: All text objects of the current version are read for the connected data points and displayed with time stamp. time		None					
All text objects of the current version are read for the connected data points and displayed with time stamp. Itrme d_StringDatapoint 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 failen out 1/16/2008 16:00 Turbinerevision LTEXT for all versions Inputs: 1.n data points (d_e_a_a) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Imme d_StringDatapoint 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 halen out 0 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 halen out 0 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 balen out 0 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 balen out 0 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 balen out 0 1/16/2008 9:01 Machine 4 bal		Pocult					
All text objects of the current version are read for the connected data points and displayed with time stamp. Itime stamp.		Nesult.					
Ime d_StringDatapoint 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 failen out 1/16/2008 10:00 Turbinerevision LTEXT for all versions Inputs: I. data points (d_e_e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Imme d_StringDatapoint Value / version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Start parameters: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Cesting Maximum Vendor Creation Date 102.08.2016 00:00:00 0 0 0 30.8.2016 00:00:00 0 0 0 102.08.2016 00:00:00 0 0 0 0 </td <td></td> <td>All text objects of th</td> <td>e curre</td> <td>nt version are</td> <td>read for</td> <td>the connected data</td> <td>points and displayed with</td>		All text objects of th	e curre	nt version are	read for	the connected data	points and displayed with
Unre 0_stingUstapoint 1/16/2008 16:00 Turbinerevision LTEXT for all versions Inputs: 1.n data points (d_, e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. time d_StringDatapoint 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:00 Turbinerevision 0 Machine Protocol Inputs: None None Start parameters: None None Start parameters: None Creation Date 03.08 2016 00:00 00 0 03.08 2016 00:00 00 0 04.08 2016 00:00 00 0 05.08 2016 00:00 00 0 <td></td> <td>time stamp.</td> <td>d Ohio</td> <td> Data int</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		time stamp.	d Ohio	Data int			
Important of the interval of the interval LTEXT for all versions Inputs: 1n data points (d_, e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date.			a_stri				
LTEXT for all versions Inputs: 1. n data points (d_, e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. time d_StringDatapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 folen out 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 folen out 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 folen out 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 folen out 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Machine Protocol Inputs: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumer, consumer name, vendor and crea- tion date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the con- sumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot 2 ext Max Max3000 0 0 40.8 2016 00:000 0 0 40.8 2016 00:000 0 0 40.8 2016 10:0000 0 0 40.8 2016 10:0000 0 0 40.8 2016 10:0000 0 0 40.8 2016 10:2000 0 0 40.8 2016 10:2000 0 0 40.8 2016 10:2000 0 0 40.8 2016 10:2000 0 0 40.8 2016 14:3:37 0 0 40.8 2016 14:3:37 0 0 40.8 2016 14:3:37		1/16/2006 9.00	Turbin	ne 4 fallen out			
LTEXT for all versions Inputs: 1n data points (d_, e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Imme d_StringDatapoint Value version date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9:11 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Image: 0		1/10/2000 10.00	Turbin	ELEVISION			
1 data points (d_, e_, a_) Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Imme d_StringDatapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Max Machinename Vendor Creation Date 02 08:2016 00:00:00 <	LTEXT for all versions	Inputs:					
Start parameters: None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. itme d_StringDatapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer family and the number of consumers (on a number of creation Date 12.08.2016 00:00:00 0 0 0 0 0 208 2016 00:00:00 0 <td></td> <td>1n data points (d_,</td> <td>e_, a_)</td> <td>)</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		1n data points (d_,	e_, a_))			
None Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Imme d_StringDatapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Max Zeit Max Machinename Vendor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		Start parameters:					
Result: All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. time d_StringD atappoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9.00 Machine 4 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9.13 Machine Protocol Inputs: 0 1/16/2008 9.13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Max Machinename 0 0 0 03 08 2016 00:00:00 0 03 08 2016 00:00:00 0 04 08 2016 10:00:00 0 05 08 2016 00:00:00 0 06 08 2016 00:00:00 0 07 08 2016 00:00:00 0 08 00:00 0 09 00:00 0 09 00:00 0 09 00:00 0 09 00:00 0		None					
All text objects of all versions are read for the connected data points and are displayed with time stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. Imme Id_StringDatapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 fallen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 16:00 Turbinerevision 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: 0 1/16/2008 9:13 None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Max Machinename Vendor Creation Date 02.08.2016 00:00:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 03.08.2016 00:00:00 0		Result:					
stamp. The latest version is always listed on top. The version date represents the value creation date. time d_StringDatapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 falen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers changed), number of consumer, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Zeit Zeit Max Ma3000 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.0 0 0.0.0.0.0.		All text objects of all	version	ns are read for	the con	nected data points a	and are displayed with time
date. imme d_StringD atapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 fallen out 0 1/16/2008 9:11 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 fallen out 0 1/16/2008 9:11 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 2 fallen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot 10 2016 00:00:00 0 03 08 2016 00:00:00 0 04 00:00:00 0 05 08 2016 00:00:00 0 04 00:00:00 0 05 08 2016 00:00:00 0 06 08 2016 00:00:00 0 06 08 2016 00:00:00 4 07 08 2016 00:00:00 4 08 2016 00:00:00 4 07 08 2016 00:00:00 4 08 2016 00:00:00 4 08 2016 00:00:00 4 08 2016 00:00:00 4 07		stamp. The latest ve	rsion is	always listed of	on top. T	he version date rep	resents the value creation
Imme d_StringDatapoint Value version-date 1/16/2008 9:00 Machine 4 failen out 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None 0 1/16/2008 9:13 Machine Protocol Inputs: None None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and crea- tion date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the con- sumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Zeit Max Machinename Vendor Creation Date 02.08.2016 00:00:00 0 0 04.08.2016 13:26:46 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3000 0 0.08.2016 10:00:00 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 04.08.2016 00:00:00 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 06.08.2016 00:00:00 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 06.08.2016 00:00:00 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 MA3000 0 0.08.2		date.		2			
Image: Construct of the second seco		time d	StringD	latanoint	Value v	ersion-date	
Interview Interview Interview Machine Protocol Inputs: None Inputs: Start parameters: None Inputs: None All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Inputs: All configured consumers changed), number of creation Date postors (can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Inputs: Maximum function 0 20:08.2016 00:00:00 Inputs: Maximum function 0 03:08.2016 00:00:00 Inputs: Maximum function 0 04:08.2016 00:00:00 Inputs: Maximum functionality Maximum function Maximum function Maximum function Inputs: Maximum function Maximum function Inputs: Maximum function 00:08.2016 00:00:00 Inputs: Maximum function Maximum function Inputs: Maximum functi		1/16/2008 9:00 M	achine 4	1 fallen out	0	1/16/2008 9:13	
Intervision Intervision Intervision Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Imputs: Zeit Imputs: Max 00 0 Imputs: None Value 2016 00:00:00 0 Imputs: None Zeit Max Machinename Vendor Zeit Max Machinename Vendor 03 08.2016 00:00:00 0 Imputs: NA3000 0 04 08.2016 00:00:00 MA3000 0 4.08.2016 13:26:46 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA3001 0 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4001 0 4.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 4.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 <		1/16/2008 9:00 M	lachine 2	2 fallen out	0	1/16/2008 9:11	
Machine Protocol Inputs: None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and crea- tion date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the con- sumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Zeit Zeit Max 02.08.2016 00:00:00 0 03.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:37:17 0 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 04.000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37		1/16/2008 16:00 T	urbinere	vision	0	1/16/2008 9:13	
None Start parameters: None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot All Zeit Max Machinename Vendor Oreation 0 0 03.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 05.08.2016 00:00:00 0 MA4000 0 4.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 4.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 4.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 4.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4000 0 4.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4000 0 4.08.2016 14:37:17	Machine Protocol	Inputs:					
None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumer changed), number of consumer, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot		None					
Start parameters. None Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot		Start parameters:					
Note Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumer, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Image: Consumer State (Consumer State (Constate (Constate (Consumer State (Consumer State (Consu		Mono					
Result: All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot		None					
All configured consumers are automatically output in the report, including the date (on which the number of consumers changed), number of consumers, consumer name, vendor and creation date. The machines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot Zeit Max Machinename Vendor Ocreation Date 03.08.2016 00:00:00 0 03.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 13:26:46 05.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 04.08.2016 14:37:05 04.08.2016 14:37:05 04.08.2016 14:37:05 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4000 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17 04.08.2016 14:37:17		Result:					
The matchines and machine protocols can only be selected if the license for the consumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot		All configured consu	imers a	re automatical	ly outpu	t in the report, inclu	iding the date (on which
Total colspan="2">Sumer functionality exists. Consumer Prot		tion date. The mach	umers c ines an	nanged), num d machine pro	tocols ca	onsumers, consume an only be selected i	if the license for the con-
Consumer Prot Max Machinename Vendor Creation Date 2eit Max Machinename Vendor Creation Date 02.08.2016 00:00:00 0 0 0 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 0 0 0 05.08.2016 00:00:00 5 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 13:26:46 05.08.2016 00:00:00 5 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 06.08.2016 00:00:00 5 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001<		sumer functionality	exists.			an only be selected	
Zeit Max Machinename Vendor Creation Date 02.08.2016 00:00:00 0 <td< th=""><th></th><th>Consumer Prot</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>1</th></td<>		Consumer Prot					1
02.08.2016 00:00:00 0 03.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 05.08.2016 00:00:00 5 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 13:26:46 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 13:26:46 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 MA4001 0 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 0 4.0400 0 0.4.08.2016 14:36:37 0 MA4001 0 0 4.04.020 0 0 4.04.020 0 0		Zeit	Max	Machinename	Vendor	Creation Date	
03.08.2016 00:00:00 0 04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 05.08.2016 00:00:00 5 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3001 0 MA3001 0 MA4000 0 MA4000 0 MA4001 0 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4001 0 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:15 MA4000 0 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 0 04.08.2016 14:37:15 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:15 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:15 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000		02.08.2016 00:00:00	0				
04.08.2016 00:00:00 0 05.08.2016 00:00:00 5 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 13:26:46 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37		03.08.2016 00:00:00	0				
05.08.2016 00:00:00 5 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 13:26:46 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:15 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37		04.08.2016 00:00:00	0				
MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:15 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 14:36:37 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37		05.08.2016 00:00:00	5	MA3000	0	04.08.2016 13:26:46	
MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:37:15 0 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 0 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17				MA3000	0	04.08.2016 14:10:52	
MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:37:17 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 MA4001				MA3001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:05	
06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA4001 0 04.00.2016 14.37.17 06.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17				MA4000	0	04.08.2016 14:36:37	
00.00.2010 00.000 0 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14.10.32 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14.37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14.36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17		06.08.2016.00.00.00	Λ	MA3000	0	04.00.2010 14:37:17	
IMAGON 0 0.101.010 1.101.030 MA4000 0 0.4.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 0.4.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 0.4.08.2016 14:37:15 MA3001 0 0.4.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 0.4.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 0.4.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 0.4.08.2016 14:37:17		00.00.2010 00.00.00	-4	MA3001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:05	
MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17 07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17				MA4000	0	04.08.2016 14:36:37	
07.08.2016 00:00:00 4 MA3000 0 04.08.2016 14:10:52 MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17				MA4001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:17	
MA3001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:05 MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17		07.08.2016 00:00:00	4	MA3000	0	04.08.2016 14:10:52	
MA4000 0 04.08.2016 14:36:37 MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17				MA3001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:05	
MA4001 0 04.08.2016 14:37:17				MA4000	0	04.08.2016 14:36:37	
				MA4001	0	04.08.2016 14:37:17	

Derived measurement	Innutc				
Denved medsurement	1 n derived data points (a)				
	Start parameters:				
	None				
	Decult				
	Result:				
	data is returned to Excel.				
n Maxima	Inputs:				
	1 parameter (t_). This parameter is optional. Use this parameter to specify the number of maxi- mum values of a data point that are calculated. If you do not specify this parameter, the five maximum values of a data point are calculated.				
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)				
	Start parameters:				
	None				
	Result:				
	The module calculates the required number of maximum values of a data point for the specified query period. The module also outputs the following measured values:				
	• II12 measured values that are available before a maximum measured value				
	In the sured values that are available after a maximum measured value				
	If the additional measured values lie within the query period, the module outputs the additional values. The module will not output any additional measured values if the last value in the query period is a maximum measured value.				
Validation deviation ref-	Inputs:				
erence DP	1n data points (d , e , a)				
	Start parameters:				
	None				
	Recult				
	name of data point reference data pointimestamp allowed actual-aberration				
	d_A_E_V_116a d_A_E_V_117a 4/30/2005 23:30 100 -219 4/30/2005 23:45 100 Lück e				
	5/1/2005 0:00 100 649879				
Validation gap	Inputs				
Valiaation gap	0n data points (d., e., a.)				
	When you connect data points, the data points must be active				
	If you do not connect any data points, all data points in the system are checked				
Start parameters:					
	None				
	Result				
	number of reference number of actual				
	672 0				
	672 0				

Validation Min Max	Inputs: 0 n data points (d_, e_, a_) When you connect data points, the data points must be active. If you do not connect any data points, all data points in the system are checked. Start parameters: None Result: name of data point ime itamp d_A_E_V_116a 4.30/2005 23:30 0 -100 sono 650000
Validation status not ok	Inputs: 0 n data points (d_, e_, a_) When you connect data points, the data points must be active. If you do not connect any data points, all data points in the system are checked. Start parameters: None Result: name of data point timestamp wi/su status not OK
	d_A_E_V_116a 4/30/2005 23:30 Wi invalid
	 1 n measuring variables (m_) 1 n data points (d_, e_, a_) 1 n parameters (t_) Start parameters: Interval, e.g. 1 Unit, e.g. h Result: At a query period of one day and three hour interval, the protocol module returns eight values (in a 3-h pattern). The connected measuring variables, data points and parameters are calculated at the specified intervals.
	Aug Aug Built C Aug Aug Aug A

Protocol - KPI aggrega-	Inputs:
tion	1 n measuring variables (m_)
	Start parameter:
	Interval, e.g. 1
	Unit, e.g. h
	Result:
	The "Protocol - KPI aggregation" module is based on the Protocol module. With a query period of one day and a one hour interval, the module returns 24 values (in a 1 hour pattern). The module aggregates the output of all machines.
Protocol 10 min 10 max	Inputs:
	1 n measuring variables (m_)
	Start parameters:
	Interval, e.g. 1
	Unit, e.g. h
	Result:
	The query period of the report is divided into predefined intervals which are set by the user. The connected measuring variables are used within the intervals. The 10 lowest and 10 highest results are output for each interval, together with the time stamp and status (color).
Protocol cumulated	Inputs:
	1 n measuring variables (m_)
	Start parameters:
	Interval, e.g. 1
	Unit, e.g. h
	Result:
	Similar to a protocol module, the difference being the results of a measuring variable will be cu- mulated (added to the previous).

Protocol with from/to	Inputs:				
	1 n measuring variables (m_)				
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)				
	1n parameters (t)				
	Start parameters:				
	Interval e.g. 1				
	Interval, e.g. i				
	Unit, e.g. n				
	Result:				
	At a query period of one day and three hour interval, the protocol module returns eight values (in a 3-h pattern). The connected measuring variables, data points and parameters are calculated at the specified intervals. The time stamp is displayed along with the start and end of the period.				
			sumR	sumR	
			-!	N	
				2	
			ᆆ	볔	
	E E		ص ا	تم ا	
	<u> </u>	3	E	E	
	4/18/2005 0:00	4/18/2005 3:00	2,023	1,904	
	4/18/2005 3:00	4/18/2005 6:00	3,671	3,586	
	4/18/2005 6:00	4/18/2005 9:00	6,442	6,253	
	4/18/2005 9:00	4/18/2005 12:00	6,761	6,519	
	4/18/2005 12:00	4/18/2005 15:00	6,867	6,681 c.05c	
	4/18/2005 15:00	4/18/2005 18:00	6,244	6,206 C 100	
	4/18/2005 18:00	4/18/2005 21:00	6,084	6,199	
	4/18/2000 21.00	4/19/2000 0.00	4,623	4,704	
	In the Energy Mana you want to also ou	iger options you ca utput the unit (0 = ι	n use the M unit output c	ODULE_EIN disabled, 1	IHEIT parameter to define whether = unit output enabled).
Protocol transposed	Inputs:				
	1 n measuring va	ariables (m)			
	1 n data points (d	e a)			
	1 n parameters (t)				
	Start parameters	/			
	Start parameters:				
	Interval, e.g. 1				
	Unit, e.g. h				
	Result:				
	At a query period of one day and three hour interval, the protocol module returns eight values (in a 3-h pattern). The connected measuring variables, data points and parameters are calculated at the specified intervals.				
	time 4/18/2005 3:00 4/18/2005 6:00 4/18/2005 9:00				9:00
	m Supply 1 sumR	2,023	3,671	6,	442
	m Supply 2 sumR	1,904	3,586	6,	253

Reference	Inputs:
	Data point A (d_, e_, a_)
	Data point B (d_, e_, a_)
	Start parameters:
	Interval, e.g. 15
	Unit, e.g. min
	Result:
	The module outputs the measured values including timestamps of data point A and of data point B for the specified query period.
Repair module	Inputs:
	1 n parameters (t_)
	Start parameters:
	None
	Result:
	The parameter entries for the query period are output in list form. The system calculates and dis- plays the duration along with the start, end, and value data.
Snapshot module	Inputs:
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)
	Start parameters:
	Interval, e.g. 5
	Result:
	The module returns the value of an exact time that was defined as start parameter. It also outputs the value of the same time from the previous day.
	Value 462 has the time stamp 04/19/2005 05:00. (05:00 because 5 was selected as start parameter). The value 383 has the time stamp 04/18/2005 05:00 (05:00 because 5 was selected as start parameter)
Statistics	Inputs:
	1 n measuring variables (m_)
	Start parameters:
	Interval, e.g. 15
	Unit, e.g. min
	Result:
	Returns the maximum, minimum, and average of the connected measuring variables. The time frame is defined by the "From" and "To" entries. The results of the connected measuring varia- bles are calculated for every interval in this time frame. Based on these values, the maximum, minimum, and average values are calculated and output for each measuring variable. The maxi- mum and minimum values are also output with time stamp.
Statistics for operating data points	Inputs:
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)
	Start parameters:
	None
	Result:
	The unit, sum value, minimum time stamp, minimum value, average, maximum time stamp, and maximum value data is calculated and output across the query period, based on the connected operating data points.

Hour distribution	Inputs:			
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)			
	Start parameters:			
	Interval, e.g. 10			
	Lower limit, e.g. 50			
	Upper limit, e.g. 100			
	Result:			
	The hour distribution module returns seven values for a query period of one day, with a lower			
	limit of 50, a upper limit of 100, and an interval of 10 between the upper and lower limit.			
	Range d_NULL01			
	<= 50 12			
	60 3			
	70 2			
	90 3			
	> 100 0			
Text protocol	Inputs:			
	1n data points (d_, e_, a_)			
	Start parameters:			
	Interval, e.g. 1			
	Time unit, e.g. h			
	Result:			
	The module outputs all texts of a data point for the query period.			
User rights	Inputs:			
	None			
	Start parameters:			
	None			
	Result:			
	All users created in the system are listed. The user groups and functional groups assigned to this user are also displayed.			

4.8 Display modes

Display mode	Description
KKS text	KKS ID
Short text	Name of the data point
Short text + long text	Name and description of the data point
Long text	Description of the data point

4.9 Existing functional groups

Overview of functional groups

The following table shows the functional groups available after the installation of Energy Manager. In Energy Manager Basic no functional groups can be created or modified. Which group has which functional rights is described in the following chapter Available functional rights (Page 775).

Functional group	Function	
ADMINISTRATOR	This group includes comprehensive functional rights for Energy Manager.	
	This group has the right to delete, add or configure all objects.	
CONFIGURATOR	This group has the right to configure Energy Manager objects.	
GUEST	This group is permitted to view all objects in the tree.	
	This group does not have the right to delete, add or configure objects. The group also does not have the right to create new reports and to calculate analyses.	
	This grouping is intended to apply simple, temporary restrictions on significant operator actions in the system.	
	To set up explicit, long-term restrictions on functional rights, you should use a combination of the following functional groups.	
OPERATOR	This group has the right to operate Energy Manager objects.	

See also

Navigation (Page 488)

4.10 Available functional rights

In Energy Manager you can restrict functions for unauthorized users. For example, you can assign a user the right to start a report and view the result. You can, however, disallow the user from configuring the report. You can also merge several users to form several user groups. The user Admin or Superadmin sets the user rights for the corresponding users and user groups as well as the functional restrictions in the functional user group. Most functional restrictions in Energy Manager are based on the following basic principle:

- 1. Configuration
- 2. Creation, deletion and configuration
- 3. View

Configuration

The user is authorized to configure objects using the configuration dialog. The user is not authorized to delete objects or create new objects.

Creation, deletion and configuration

The user is authorized to configure and delete objects and create new objects.

View

The user is authorized to open objects and view the contents. The user is not authorized to configure or delete objects or create new objects. Some objects such as a MEVA can only be viewed by the user in the navigation area without opening a dialog. In the corresponding object properties you can find out whether you can open the object and view the contents or only see the object in the navigation area.

The user is also not authorized for the following functions:

- Сору
- Clone
- Delete
- Cut
- Disconnect

4.10 Available functional rights

Overview

The following table provides an overview of the available functional rights:

The letters in brackets indicate which functional groups have this right after installation of the Energy Manager .

The letters stand for the following functional groups:

- A: Administrator
- C: Configurator
- O: Operator
- G: Guest

Rights area	Assigned rights
Account	Configuration:
	• Create, remove, configure: The user has the right to create, delete and configure
	accounts.
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view accounts.
Administration	Logging Viewer:
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view the Logging Viewer.
	Service Cockpit:
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view the Service Cockpit.
Alarming	Configuration:
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure KPI message lists.
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure KPI message lists.
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view KPI message lists.
	Values:
	• Acknowledge (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and confirm messages.
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view messages.
Backup	Configuration:
	• Configure (A): The user has the right to open and configure the storage location of the backup and the schedule for automatic creation of a backup.
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view the storage location of the backup and the schedule for the automatic creation of a backup.
	Usage (A):
	• Start: The user has the right to create a backup.
Chart Object	Configuration:
	• Configure (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and configure charts.
	• Create (A, C, G): The user has the right to open and create charts.
	• Delete (A, C, G): The user has the right to open and delete charts.

Rights area	Assigned rights		
Client Control	To log onto a component, the "Client Control" right is the minimum right for the user. Acquisition:		
	• Configure(A): The user has the right to configure acquisition components. Client:		
	 Configure (A, C,G, O): The user has the right to configure the Energy Manager PRO Client. Web: 		
	 Configure (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to configure Energy Manager PRO Web. 		
Domain	Configuration:		
	• Create, remove, configure: The user has the right to create, delete and configure domains.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view domains.		
	Object Assignment:		
	• Modify (A): The user has the right to configure assignments of domains.		
	• Share (A): The user has the right to assign domains.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view assignments of do- mains.		
Energy Efficiency	Configuration:		
	• Configure (A, C, G): The user has the right to open and configure energy effi- ciency measures.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C, G): The user has the right to create, delete and configure energy efficiency measures.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view energy efficiency measures.		

4.10 Available functional rights

Rights area	Assigned rights		
ERP Connector	Business Unit:		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure Business Units.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure Business Units.		
	• View (A, O): The user has the right to open and view Business Units.		
	Cost Center:		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure cost centers.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure cost centers.		
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view cost centers. Cost center relation:		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure the cost center re- lation.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure the cost center relation.		
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view the cost center relation. Cost element:		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure cost elements.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure cost elements.		
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view cost elements.		
File	Common:		
	• Configure (A, C, G): The user has the right to open and configure files.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to create, delete and configure files.		
	Data:		
	• Fetch (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open documents from a file.		
	 Modify (A, C, G): The user has the right to upload documents or overwrite exist- ing documents. 		
Folder	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure folders.		
	• Create, delete (A, C): The user has the right to create and delete folders.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view folders.		
Import and export	Export:		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to export subprojects to an XML file. Import:		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to import subprojects.		
Job	Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure job queues.		
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view job queues.		

Reference 4.10 Available functional rights

Rights area	Assigned rights		
Licensing	 Config: Configure (A): Not relevant for Energy Manager PRO V7.4. Create, remove, configure (A): Not relevant for Energy Manager PRO V7.4. View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view the license dialog. 		
Left	• Modify (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to delete links from data points and documents.		
Locking	Configuration:		
	Configure (A, C): The user has the right to lock objects.		
Loop, Prototype	 Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure loops and proto-types. Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure loops and prototypes. 		
	 View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view loops and prototypes. 		
Master Data	 Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure cycle times and query types. 		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure cycle times and query types.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view cycle times and query types.		
Matrix	• Create, remove, modify (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and con- figure matrices.		
	• Modify (A, C, O): The user has the right to configure matrices.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view matrices.		
Measured Value	• Insert, remove, modify (A, C): The user has the right to enter measured values of a data source in the matrix or measured value editor and delete and configure them.		
	• Modify (A, C): The user has the right to open measured values of a data source and enter them in the matrix or measured value editor.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view measured values of a data source.		
Measurement	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure data points.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure data points.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view data points.		
Measuring Variable	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure MEVAs.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure MEVAs .		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view MEVAs.		

4.10 Available functional rights

Rights area	Assigned rights		
ODBC Connector	Configuration:		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure ODBC data sources.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure ODBC data sources.		
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view ODBC data sources. Import values (A, C):		
	The user has the right to import values from an ODBC data source.		
Parameter	Common:		
	 Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure parameters. Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure parameters. 		
	 View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view parameters. Values: 		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C, G): The user has the right to create, delete and configure parameter values.		
Permission	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure functional groups.		
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view functional groups.		
Printer	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure printers.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure printers.		
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view printers.		
Production Plan	This rights group is only relevant if the license "Forecast and planning" exists in the ALM.		
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure production plans.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and import production plans.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view production plans.		
Profiles	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure profiles.		
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure profiles.		
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view profiles.		
Quick Chart Comments	Configuration:		
	• Configure (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and configure comments in charts.		
	• Create (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and create comments in charts.		
	• Delete (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and delete comments in charts.		

Rights area	Assigned rights
Report	Configuration:
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure reports.
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure reports.
	• View (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view reports. Report:
	• Open pdf only (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view created reports only in PDF format.
	• Open xls/doc/pdf (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to open and view created reports in Excel, Word and PDF format.
	• Restart, start (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to manually start reports and re- start already created reports via task management.
	• Start, delete (A, C, G, O): The user has the right to manually start reports and de- lete already created reports.
Task management	Configuration:
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure tasks.
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure tasks.
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view tasks. Task management:
	• Start (A, C): The user has the right to start tasks.
Template Manager	You configure reports and machine specifications in the Template Manager. Configuration (A, C):
	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure templates.
	• Create (A, C): The user has the right to create new templates.
	• Delete (A, C): The user has the right to delete templates.
Trend	Not relevant for Energy Manager PRO V7.4.
Unique Objects	Not relevant for Energy Manager PRO V7.4.
Unit	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure units.
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure units.
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view units.
User	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to open and configure other users.
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure other users.
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view other users.

4.10 Available functional rights

Rights area	Assigned rights
Visualization	Not relevant for Energy Manager PRO V7.4.
Web interface	Administration:
	 Configure (A, C): The user has the right to configure the Siemens logo and start screen in the Energy Manager PRO Web administration area. Menu:
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to view the Energy Manager PRO Web menu and toggle between the tree structure and the administration area. Quicklinks:
	• Configure (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and configure Quicklinks in Energy Manager PRO Web.
	• Create (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and create Quicklinks in Energy Manager PRO Web .
	• Delete (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and delete Quicklinks in Energy Manager PRO Web.
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view Quicklinks in Energy Manager PRO Web.
Widgets/Dashboards	• Configure (A, C): The user has the right to configure dashboards and create, de- lete and configure widgets in Energy Manager PRO Web.
	• Create, remove, configure (A, C): The user has the right to create, delete and configure dashboards and widgets in Energy Manager PRO Web .
	• View (A, C, O): The user has the right to open and view dashboards and widgets in Energy Manager PRO Web.

Name:	Operator				
Beschreibung:	Operate the Chart Comm	project - Get Inf ients,	ormation of the s	system, Insert Ma	trix values, Quick
Autoritätsebene:	500	A			
Auto Log Off:	Aktivieren	Idle Duration:	15	🔶 Mi	nuten
Single Sign on	Aktivieren			S	elect
/ugowiocono Do	chto				
⊕- ■ Account					
Here Adminis	tration				
⊡- ⊇ Alarming	3				
Backup					
⊡- E Confi	guration				
CO	intigure				
	ew .				
Usag	e				
En Client C	optrol				
	ontroi				
Energy I	Efficiency				
	nnector				
	Indetor				
	mon				
	nfigure				
	eate, remove, d	configure			
Data		a de la dela de la dela dela dela dela d			
⊞- I Folder					
⊡-⊡ Import a	nd Export				
Job					
creat	e, remove, con	figure			
view		-			
⊡- E Licensin	g				
🗗 🗹 🛛 Links	1.101				
l 🗹 🛛 modil	fy				
⊡- 🔄 Locking					
🖽 🗹 🛛 Loop, Pr	rototype				
🖻 🗹 Master 🛛	Data				
🗹 🛛 config	gure				
creat	e remove con	figure			
	of roundrol oon	inguio			

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Overview

This section lists all functions that are available for creating prototypes.

Requirement

none

Mathematical operations

Function	Description
Addition (add)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= input1+input2;
Subtraction (sub)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= input1-input2;
Multiplication (mul)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= input1*input2;
Division (div)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= input1/input2;
Power (pow)	Inputs:
	input1 (base)
	input2 (power)
	The function returns:
	output:= pow (input1,input2);
Square root (sqrt)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output := sqrt(input);

Table 4-1 Mathematical functions

4.11 Operations for generating	g calculation blocks (prototypes)
--------------------------------	-----------------------------------

Function	Description
Minus (minus)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= minus(input);
Exponential function (exp)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= exp(input);
Natural logarithm (ln)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= ln(input);
Base 10 logarithm (log10)	Inputs:
	Input
	The function returns:
	output:= log10(input);
Sine (sin)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= sin(input);
Cosine (cos)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= cos(input);
Tangent (tan)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= tan(input);
Arc sine (arcsin)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= arcsin(input);
Arc cosine (arccos)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= arccos(input);
Arc tangent (arctan)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= arctan(input);

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Logical operations

Table 4- 2	Logical	functions
------------	---------	-----------

Function	Description
Logical AND (and)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= and(input1,input2);
Logical OR (or)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= or(input1,input2);
Logical Exclusive OR (xor)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= xor(input1,input2);
Logical inversion (not)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= not(input);

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Compare operations

Function	Description
Greater than comparison (gt)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= gt(input1,input2);
	output:= 1 as long as input1 > input2;
Less than comparison (lt)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= lt(input1,input2);
	output:= 1 as long as input1 < input2;
Equal comparison (eq)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= eq(input1,input2);
	output = 1 as long as input1 = input2
Greater than or equal to compari-	Inputs:
son (gteq)	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= gteq(input1,input2);
	output = 1 as long as input1 ≥ input2
Less than or equal to comparison	Inputs:
(lteq)	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output = lteq(input1,input2);
	output = 1 as long as input1 ≤ input2
Not equal comparison (noteq)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	The function returns:
	output:= noteq(input1,input2);
	output = 1 as long as input1 <> input2;

Table 4- 3 Compare functions

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Switch operations

Function	Description
Switch (switch)	Inputs:
	input1
	input2
	switch
	The function returns:
	output:= switch(input1,input2,switch);
	output = input1 if switch = 0
	output = input2 if switch = 1
Switch (interrupter)	Inputs:
	input
	switch
	The function returns:
	output = interrupter(input, switch);
	output = input if switch = 1
Switching delay (sdelay,	Inputs:
sdelay_up, sdelay_down)	input
	delay time in [s]
	The function returns:
	output:= sdelay(input,delaytime);
	output:= sdelay_up(input,delaytime);
	(rising edge)
	output:= sdelay_down(input,delaytime);
	(falling edge)
	output = input on expiration of the delay time
Value change filter (f_valchng)	Inputs:
	input
	The function returns:
	output:= f_valchng(input);
	output = input as soon as the measured input
	no longer matches the last input measured

Table 4- 4 Switch functions

(1):(1)	
Status memory (fliflo)	Inputs:
	input
	res
	The function returns:
	output:= fliflo(input,res);
	input == 0 and res == 0
	ð no new result
	input == 1 and res == 0
	ð if result is not 1, result is set to 1
	input == 0 and res == 1
	ð if result is not 0, result is set to 0
	input == 1 and res == 1
	ð Result is assigned the last result value ('invalid' status)
Edge memory (fliflo_chng, fli-	Inputs:
flo_up, fliflo_down)	input
	res
	The function returns:
	output:= fliflo_chng(input, res);
	output:= fliflo_up(input,res);
	output:= fliflo_down(input, res);
	On change to the value at input, it is determined whether or not to trigger a set operation.
	SET and RES == 0 > if result is not 1, result is set to 1.
	RES == 1 > if result is not 0, result is reset to 0.

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Table operations

Function	Description
2 dimensions (spline2)	Inputs:
	table (table with definition of the full path, i.e. Subdirectory of the
	mcl directory)
	The function returns:
	$r_{\rm rel}$
	The table must be available as ASCII file with the following format:
	10.00 2519.98
	20.00 2538.58
	30.00 2557.21
	40.00 2575.88
	50.00 2594.57
	60.00 2613.31
	Note:
	numbers.
	Explanations:
	ò 1. column input
	ó 2. column input, associated value
	Note: The subic coline internelation is a mathematical method that is
	used to construct points within the boundaries of a set of known
	points. The known points show a minimal overall curvature and
	are the result of a polynomial calculation of the third degree.
3 dimensions (spline3)	Inputs:
	table (table with definition of the full path, i.e. Subdirectory of the
	input 1 (first column value in the table)
	input2 (second column value in the table)
	The function returns:
	output:= spline3(c:\mcl\tables\energy.tab,input1,input2);
	The table must be available as ASCII file with the following format:
	3/6 0.01 0.03 0.05
	20.00 2538.58 83.80 83.80
	40 00 2575 88 2575 40 2574 93
	50 00 2594 57 2594 15 2593 73
	60.00 2613.31 2612.93 2612.55
	Note:
	An empty row (=CR+LF) may not exist after the last row containing
	numbers.
	Explanations:
	o input i
	3 number of result columns
	6 number of result rows
	Note:
	The bicubic spline interpolation is a generalization of the simple,
	cubic spline on two dimensions.

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Interval operations

Function	Description
Difference (diff)	Inputs:
	measured value
	averaging time in [s]
	offset
	The function returns:
	output:= diff(measured value, averaging time, offset);
	(difference or value at the end and start of the mean value calcula- tion time)
	Note:
	offset 01:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full hour
	offset 00:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full mi- nute
Mean value (avg)	Inputs:
	measured value
	averaging time in [s]
	offset
	The function returns:
	output:= avg(measured value, averaging time, offset);
	Note:
	offset 01:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full hour
	offset 00:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full mi- nute
Mean value with status rating (avgST)	Inputs:
	measured value
	status
	percentage
	averaging time in [s]
	offset
	The function returns:
	output:= avgST(measuredvalue,status,percentage,averaging- time,offset);
	(output is only valid on the condition that at least n% {percent} of the corresponding status values {status} are also valid)
	Note:
	offset 01:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full hour
	offset 00:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full mi- nute

Table 4- 6 Interval function:

4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Minimum (min)	Inputs:
	measured value
	averaging time in [s]
	offset
	The function returns:
	output:= min(measured value, averaging time, offset);
	Note:
	offset 01:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full hour
	offset 00:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full mi- nute
Maximum (max)	Inputs:
	measured value
	averaging time in [s]
	offset
	The function returns:
	output:= max(measured value, averaging time, offset);
	Note:
	offset 01:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full hour
	offset 00:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full mi- nute
Total (sum)	Inputs:
	measured value
	averaging time in [s]
	offset
	The function returns:
	output:= sum(measured value, averaging time, offset);
	Note:
	offset 01:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full hour
	offset 00:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full mi-
	nute
Sum with status rating (sumST)	Inputs:
	measured value
	status
	percentage
	averaging time in [s]
	offset
	The function returns:
	output:= sumST(measuredvalue,status,percentage,averaging- time,offset);
	(output is only valid on the condition that at least n% {percent} of the corresponding status values {status} are also valid)
	Note:
	offset 01:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full hour
	offset 00:00:00 the value is generated at the start of the full mi- nute
4.11 Operations for generating calculation blocks (prototypes)

Quantity operations

Function	Description	
Collector (collector)	Inputs:	
	measured value	
	averaging time in [s]	
	offset	
	The function returns:	
	measured value array:= collector(measured value, averaging time, offset);	
	Note:	
	offset 01:00:00 the values are in the array at the start of the full hour	
	offset 00:00:00 the values are in the array at the start of the full minute	
Quantity sorting (c_sort)	Inputs:	
	measured value array	
	The function returns values in ascending order:	
	output array:= collector(measured value array);	
Quantity percentage filter	Inputs:	
(c_perc_filt_first, c_perc_filt_last)	measured value array	
	x	
	The function returns the first x percent of the measured value ar- ray:	
	output array:= c_perc_filt_first(measured value array, x);	
	The function returns the last x percent of the measured value ar- ray:	
	output array:= c_perc_filt_last(measured value array, x);	
Quantity mean value (c_avg)	Inputs:	
	measured value array	
	The function returns the mean value of the measured value array:	
	output:= c_avg(measured value array);	
Quantity minimum (c_min)	Inputs:	
	measured value array	
	The function returns the minimum value of the measured value array:	
	output:= c_min(measured value array);	
Quantity maximum (c_max)	Inputs:	
_	measured value array	
	The function returns the maximum value of the measured value array:	
	output:= c_max(measured value array);	

Table 4- 7 Quantity functions

4.12 Description of MCL

New prototypes for processing data sets are defined using the special programming language MCL (Measurement Configuration Language).

Note

As the MCL compiler is case-sensitive, it is necessary to enter all prototype data in lowercase letters.

For logical and comparison operations, the value "1" corresponds to logical "TRUE" state and the value "0" to logical "FALSE" state.

The prototype is entered and declared between parentheses "{" and "}"; a simple addition is defined as example:

Prototype Editor - p_80_percent_rule	_ = X
Name: p_80_percent_rule Description:	
prototype p_80_percent_rule() { implementation: output := input1 +input2;	•
	•
}	
Name Nr. I/O Description	New Edit Delete
	t Up Down
✓ OK X Cancel	

Local variable may be defined in the header of the input window. This section is defined by entering the "local:" identifier.

It is necessary to define this "local:" section to declare local variables for interim results; note that it is not permitted to include calculations in the declaration line.

PERMITTED:

local:

a;

Implementation:

a:=b+c;

PROHIBITED:

local:

a:=b+c;

The actual mathematical rule is then entered in the "implementation" section. It is permitted to use all I/O variables, as well as local variables and implemented functions.

The "local" and "implementation" sections must be concluded with a colon ":". All other lines are concluded with a semicolon (';'). Variables are declared by means of ':='. Start all comments with '//'.

Use "Enter" to insert line breaks.

4.12 Description of MCL

prototype Editor - p_80_percent_rule	_ = ×		
Name: p_80_percent_rule Description:			
<pre>prototype p_80_percent_rule(out output, in input, in interval) { local: 1_collector; // array with measured data 1_sort; // sorted array 1_80; // array with 80% of the greatest measured values implementation: 1_collector:=collector(input,interval,01:00:00); 1_sort=c_sort(1_collector); 1_80:=c_perc_filt_first(1_sort,80); output=c_max(1_80); }</pre>			
Parameter			
Name Nr. I/O Description output 1 out greatest value of 80% better input 2 in measured values interval 3 in interval for collecting data for the array	 New Edit Delete 		
	1 Up I Down		
✓ OK X Cancel			

For more complex calculations, it is possible to use the "call" command in a prototype to call other prototypes.

Always observe the order of arguments for calling the prototype.

Example of a p bsp prototype in which the p add prototype is used:

```
p_add(out output, in input1, in input2)
p_bsp(out out1, out out2, out out_bsp, in mw1, in mw2, in mw3, in
mw4, in condition)
{
Implementation:
   call p_add(out1,mv1,mv2);
   call p_add(out2,mv3,mv4);
   out_bsp:=switch(out1,out2,condition);
}
```

Syntax check:

After having entered the mathematical rule and defined the various I/Os (parameters) in the lower area of the dialog, you can generate the prototype by pressing the "OK" button. The syntax is checked during this generation. Syntax errors that were found are reported with specification of the relevant line.

Mcl Compiler Error 🛛
(5): syntax error

Caution: Line 3 is the first line of the text body. Lines not concluded with semicolon are not counted.

A warning is also output if the I/O variables used in the text body were not defined in the "Parameters" area.

Mcl Compiler Error 🔀
: intervaldauer undefined

4.13 Functions for measuring variables

4.13 Functions for measuring variables

General information

Energy Manager has implemented a set of standard functions for MEVA processing. Siemens AG reserves the right to create any new evaluation algorithms that may be needed, including their implementation in the system. As a general rule:

- The query type determines the observation period.
- The calculation results relate to the respective observation period that is transferred at the start of an evaluation (From, To).
- The cycle time and the compression level determine the initial interval.
- The calculation interval determines the interval of the result.
- Multiple results can be displayed within the observation period for protocol MEVAs.
- The observation period and the calculation interval are identical for balance MEVAs and derived data points.
- For derived data points, the observation period or the calculation interval is determined by the cycle time of the derived data point.

The following must be observed for the units of the results:

- If the result of a MEVA function is returned in a specific unit, the result is displayed with [unit].
- If the result of a MEVA function always returns the value 1, the result is displayed with [1].
- If there is no further monitoring regarding the unit of a MEVA function result, the result is displayed with [x].

Note

The order of the data points, MEVAs and parameters in the listing under "*Inputs*:" and in the Client (see figures) is mandatory because the functions expect the input values in this order.

Requirement

Successful installation of all software components.

MEVA functions

Function	Description		
Addition with cross sum	Addition with cross sum (ID: 2694)		
	Forms the sum of the n data point values for each time stamp. Re- turns the sum of the sums contained therein for each calculation in- terval.		
	Inputs:		
	d_Data_point_1		
	d_Data_point_2		
	d_Data_point_n		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[x] = SUM (d_Data_point_1 + d_Data_point_2 + + d_Data_point_n)		
	Additional info:		
	If MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN in Energy Manager Options is set to 0, no check for gaps in the time series (15 min) is performed. 1 means that the check is performed. Only active if MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD is disabled (= 0).		
	Image: Second		
Addition	Addition (ID: 1795)		
	Adds the results of the n MEVA/datapoint/parameter inputs.		
	Inputs:		
	m_MEVA_1		
	m_MEVA_2		
	m_MEVA_n		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[x] =m_MEVA_1 + m_MEVA_2 + + m_MEVA_n		
	E→ B Report A Report_Module E→ B m_Addition E→ B m_MEVA_1 E→ B m_MEVA_2 E→ B m_MEVA_n		

The following table shows all the available MEVA functions:

Number of records	Number of data records (ID: 1740) Calculates the number of measured values within the calculation in- terval. Inputs: d_Data_point The function returns: RESULT[1] = Number of measured values within the calculation in- terval.		
Number of starts	Number of starts (ID: 1771) Calculates the number of changes from 0 to 1 within the calculation interval. Inputs: d_Data_point (contains only 0 and 1) The function returns: RESULT[1] = Number of changes from 0 to 1 within the calculation interval. Report Report Report Module Data_point		
Energy rate	Energy rate (ID:1775) Every value within the calculation interval is multiplied by the profile value. All value profile pairs within the calculation interval are added together. Inputs: d_Data_point Profile OR MasterProfile The function returns: RESULT[x] = SUM (value * profile) Report Beport Data_point Profile Report Profile Profile		

Energy rate with limit	Energy rate with limit (ID: 2691)		
	Every value within the calculation interval is multiplied by the value from Profile 1 or Profile 2 depending on the limit. All value profile pairs within the calculation interval are added together.		
	Inputs:		
	d_Data_point		
	Profile_1 OR MasterProfile_1		
	Profile_2 OR MasterProfile_2		
	t_Parameter		
	The function returns:		
	$\label{eq:RESULT[x] = {IF value>limit SUM(value * profile_2)} + {IF value\leq limit SUM(value * profile_1)}$		
	The replacement value configured in t_Parameter determines the limit.		
	Report Report Module Deta_point d_Data_point Profile_1 Profile_2 L_Parameter		
Energy rate with availableness	Energy rate with availableness (ID: 2689)		
	Every value within the calculation interval is multiplied by the profile value, depending on the value of d_Data_point_2. All value profile pairs within the calculation interval are added together.		
	Inputs:		
	d_Data_point_1		
	d_Data_point_2 (contains only 0 and 1)		
	Profile OR MasterProfile		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[x] = IF d_Data_point_2 = 1 = SUM(value* profile)		
	☐ Teport_Module ☐ 1 m Energy_rate_availableness ☐ 1 m of d_Data_point_1 ☐ 1 m of d_Data_point_2 		
Observation period in hours	Observation period in hours (ID: 1741)		
	Calculates the duration of the calculation interval.		
	Inputs:		
	not necessary.		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[h] = Duration of the calculation interval.		
	Report Report_Module m 2 m_Observation_hours		

Inventory change	Inventory change (ID: 2904) Adds the result of the Meva to the value of the previous period of the derived data point and writes the result in the current period of the derived data point. The result is also returned as a Meva result and can thus be output to a protocol module, for example. Inputs: a_Data_point m_MEVA Provide Report_Module Provide Method Report_Module Provide Method Report_Module Provide Method Report_Module		
Operating hours conditionally	Operating hours conditionally (ID: 2688) Conditional operating hours Inputs: d_Data_point t_Parameter The function returns: RESULT[s] = Sum of valid periods of the specified data point within the observation period minus the valid periods with data point value not exceeding 0 ± parameter value.		
Difference from DP	Difference from DP (ID: 2812) If the value in m_MEVA_1 is not m_MEVA_2, the value in m_MEVA_1 is returned. Zero is returned if both MEVAs do not pro- vide a value. Inputs: m_MEVA_1 m_MEVA_2 The function returns: If the value in m_MEVA_1 is not m_MEVA_2, the value in m_MEVA_1 is returned. Zero is returned if both MEVAs do not pro- vide a value. $P = \frac{1}{2}$ Report $P = \frac{1}{2}$ m_Difference_DP $P = \frac{1}{2}$ m_MEVA_1 $P = \frac{1}{2}$ m_MEVA_2		

-			
Difference snapshot	Difference snapshot (ID: 2875)		
	Difference from two measured values of the connected data point The first time is specified by the parameter in decimal notation ($1.5 = 01:30$ h). The second measured value is derived from the same time of the previous day. An interval shorter than one day turns the same result as an interval duration of one day.		
	Inputs:		
	d_Data_point		
	t_Parameter		
	E→ I Report Report_Module T→ I m_Difference_Snapshot d_Data_point L_Parameter		
Division	Division (ID: 2853)		
	Divides the results of the n MEVA/datapoint/parameter inputs.		
	Inputs:		
	m_MEVA_1		
	m_MEVA_2		
	m_MEVA_n		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[x] = m_MEVA_1 / m_MEVA_2 / / m_MEVA_n		
	En Report En Seport En Seport_Module En Seport_Module En Seport En Sepo		
Energy input	Energy input (ID: 1731)		
	Energy input without inclusion of parameter changes		
	Inputs:		
	m_MEVA (quantity, e.g. coal supplied [t])		
	t_Parameter (calorific value, for example, calorific value of coal [MWh/t])		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[MWh] = Energy input[MWh] = m_MEVA[t] * t_Parame- ter[MWh/t]		
	E Report E Report_Module E m_Energy_supply E m_MEVA t_Parameter		

Energy input oil	Energy input oil (ID: 1773)		
	Calculation of energy input from oil, temperature compensated with		
	Inclusion of parameter changes		
	t_Parameter_1 (reference density [t/m ³])		
	t_Parameter_2 (reference temperature [°C])		
	t_Parameter_3 (correction factor [1/°C])		
	d_Data_point_1 (operating temperature [°C])		
	d_Data_point_2 (flow [m ³ /h])		
	t_Parameter_4 (calorific value [MWh/t])		
	The function returns:		
	RESULI[t] = Energy input[t] = SUM(d_Data_point_2 * validity pe- riod *(t_Parameter_1 + ((t_Parameter_2 - d_Data_point_1) * t_Pa-		
	rameter_3)) * t_Parameter_4) / 3600		
	E B Report		
	□ 📩 m_Energy_supply_oil		
	Tarameter_2		
	d_Data_point_1		
	d_Data_point_2		
	t_Parameter_4		
First value	First value (ID: 2764)		
	Calculates the first measured value in the calculation interval.		
	Inputs:		
	d_Data_point		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[x] = First value in the calculation interval.		
	🕂 🗒 Report		
	E Seport_Module		
	□- 😰 m_First_value		
GTZ	DTF (daily temperature figures ID: 2912)		
	Calculates the DTF.		
	Inputs:		
	d_Data_point (temperature)		
	t_Parameter_1 (room temperature)		
	t_Parameter_2 (heating limit)		
	The function returns:		
	RESULT[x] = SUM(t_Parameter_1 - daily averages)		
	If daily average > t_Parameter_2, then difference = 0.		
	🕂 🔜 Report		
	E The Report_Module		
	d Data point		
	t_Parameter_2		

GTZ 20/15	GTZ 20/15 (ID: 2862)			
	Calculates the GTZ 20/15 (heating limit 20°C).			
	Inputs:			
	d Data point (outdoor temperature)			
	The function returns:			
	If daily me	an value > 15 d	degrees, then difference $= 0$.	
	☐- Report ☐- Report_Module ☐- ☜ m_GTZ_20/15 ☐- ☞ d_Data_point			
	Additional info:			
	The daily average of the outdoor temperature (TA) is calculated. The daily temperature figure is calculated as follows:			
	Daily avera	age of the outd	loor temperature TA	
	DTf = (20°	- TA) if TA < 15	5°	
	$DTf = 0 \text{ if } TA > 15^{\circ}$			
	Monthly value: Total of daily values Query period 1 month			
		uuy	7	
	Day	d_temp	-	
	1/1/1998	13.1	-	
	1/2/1990	11 9		
	1/4/1998	13.7		
	1/5/1998	13.1	-	
	1/6/1998	12.7		
	Query peri	od 1 vear		
	Interval: 1 month			
	month	d_temp		
	January	503		
	March	390		
	Anril	298		
	Mav	115		
	June	36		

Degree days	Degree days (ID: 2797)
	Calculation of the heating degree days (GTZ 15/15) (heating limit 15 $^{\circ}$ C).
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point (outdoor temperature)
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = SUM (difference of the daily averages to 15 degrees)
	If daily mean value > 15 degrees, then difference = 0.
	The daily mean is calculated as standard arithmetic mean value.
	E Report_Module
	⊡ [™] 2 m_Degree_days
Heating degree days AT	Heating degree days AT (t9+t14+2x t21)/4 (ID: 2819)
(t9+t14+2x t21)/4	Calculation of degree days AT.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point (temperature [°C])
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = SUM(difference of daily averages to 15 degrees)
	If daily mean value > 15 degrees, then difference = 0.
	If daily average < 15 degrees, then:
	RESULT[x] = (temperature(9:00) + temperature(14:00) + 2 x tem-perature(21:00)) / 4
	Report Report_Module Module Module

Configurable Meva	Configurable Meva (ID: 2883)
	Carries out a user-defined operation of the n
	MEVA/datapoint/parameter inputs.
	Inputs:
	m_MEVA_1
	m_MEVA_2
	m_MEVA_n
	🕂 🗒 Report
	🛱 🛍 Report_Module
	🖻 😰 m_Configurable_MEVA
	m_mEVA_1
	The following operators can be used: $L = * / ()$ IF THEN ELSE
	function
	Placeholders for the n MEVA inputs based on their position are de-
	fined as follows: 1, 2, n
	Example: $(1 + 2 - n) * n / 1$
	The IE THEN ELSE function is executed according to the following
	svntax:
	IF Condition THEN
	Instruction
	ELSE
	Instruction
	END
	If the condition is satisfied (1), the instruction after THEN is exe-
	cuted.
	If the condition is not satisfied (0), the instruction after ELSE is exe-
	cuted.
	The syntax of the IF-THEN-ELSE function ends with END.
	The following comparison operators are permissible for the IF-THEN-
	ELSE condition definition:
	< less than
	> greater than
	<= less than or equal to
	>= greater than or equal to
	= equal to
	!= not equal
	If the syntax is not adhered to, an error message is displayed and
	the MEVA operation cannot be saved.
	Only (other) MEVAs, data points and parameter objects are permit-
	ted as input object type.
	A MEVA returns a numeric variable as the value.
	The return value is supplemented by a status (OK, INVALID,).

Configurable Meva	Examples:
	IF :1<:2 THEN
	:3 - :4
	ELSE
	:5 + :6
	END
	The IF-THEN-ELSE construct can also be nested inside one another
	multiple times.
	IF :1 >= :2 THEN
	IF :1 = :2 THEN
	:3 + :4
	ELSE
	:5 + :6
	END
	ELSE
	:5 - :6
	END
Load profile	Load profile (ID: 2873)
· · · F · · ·	Corrects a load profile using a correction value. A load profile is re-
	calculated based on a monthly correction value.
	Inputs:
	d Data point 1 (load profile)
	d_Data_point_1 (load profile correction)
	The function returns:
	The function first calculates the Real value of the sum (SumRealTo-
	tal) as a function of the load profile (d_Data_point_1). It also calcu-
	lates the last value for the entire analysis period and applies this as
	The following calculation is then performed for each interval:
	Value = SUM REAL as a function of the current query period / Sum- RealTotal * LastCorrValue
	E Beport Module
	⊡ 12 m_Load_profile
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2
Load forecast generally	Load forecast generally (ID: 2709)
	General calculation of the load forecast
	Consumer type
	Anlage_1
	Anlage_2
	Anlage n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Sum (v[E,t1] = k[E] * Ouantitv[t1] + d[F])
	E Banat Madula
	Teport_would Find the contract The term of
	🎼 Equipment_1
	Equipment_2
	i i i Equipment_n

Load forecast general relatively	Load forecast general relatively (ID: 2800)
	General calculation of the relative load forecast.
	Inputs:
	Consumer type
	Anlage_1
	Anlage_2
	Anlage_n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Sum (y[E,t1] = k[E] * Quantity per time[t1] + d[E])
	Report Report_Module Definition Consumer_type Equipment_1 Equipment_n
Last value	Last value (ID: 2765)
	Calculates the last measured value in the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Last value in the calculation interval.
	□ ■ Report □ □ Report_Module □ □ 10 m_Last_value □ □ □ 10 ata_point
Gap check	Gap check (ID: 2868)
	Returns 1 if one of the connected data points contains gaps or val-
	ues <= filter value; otherwise 0 is returned.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2
	d_Data_point_n
	[t_Parameter is not used then filter value _ 0
	$\frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2}$
	Report Report Gap_check Gata_point_1 Gata_point_2 GData_point_n GData_point_n GData_point_n GData_point_n GData_point_n

Max n Average	Max n Average (ID: 2804)
5	Calculates the average of the n highest values since the beginning of the year.
	Inputs:
	d Data point
	t Parameter
	– The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Average of the n highest values since the beginning of
	the year.
	The replacement value configured in t_Parameter determines n.
	□ Image:
Maximum	Maximum (ID: 1720)
	Calculates the largest value within the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Largest value within the calculation interval.
	Additional info:
	If MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN in Energy Manager Options is set to 0, no check for gaps in the time series (15 min) is performed. 1 means that the check is performed. Only active if MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD is disabled (= 0).
	MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD can be used to set a percentage limit of corrupted values as of which the corrupted result is also rejected. It is also permitted to use decimal point values (e.g. 50.5); the function is disabled with "0". Only active if MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN is disabled (= 0).
	E Eport E Max E Max C Max Max Max C Max
Maximum (profile)	Maximum (profile) (ID: 2860)
	Calculates the greatest value within the calculation interval depend- ing on the profile value.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	Profile OR MasterProfile
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Greatest value within the calculation interval if the pro-file value is not 0. Otherwise 0.
	E Report Report_Module E Max_profile Mata_point Max_Profile

Maximum cumulated	Maximum cumulated (ID: 2865)
	Returns the cumulative maximum of all measured values within the 'From' time of the observation period until the 'T'o time of the calcu- lation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Cumulative maximum of all measured values.
	☐- Report ☐- Report_Module ☐- m_Cumulative_max ☐- ☞ d_Data_point
Maximum of n data points	Maximum of n data points (ID: 2835)
	Calculates the greatest measured value of n data points that lie within the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2
	d_Data_point_n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Greatest measured value of n data points that lie within the calculation interval.
	Report Report Module The m_Max_n_data_points d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 d_Data_point_n
Minimum	Minimum (ID: 1718)
	Calculates the smallest value within the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Smallest value within the calculation interval.
	Additional info:
	If MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN in Energy Manager Options is set to 0, no check for gaps in the time series (15 min) is performed. 1 means that the check is performed. Only active if MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD is disabled (= 0).
	MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD can be used to set a percentage limit of corrupted values as of which the corrupted result is also rejected. It is also permitted to use decimal point values (e.g. 50.5); the function is disabled with "0" value. Only active if MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN is disabled (= 0).
	Ereport Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport Min Ereport d_Data_point

Minimum (profile)	Minimum (profile) (ID: 2787) Calculates the smallest value within the calculation interval depend-
	Ing on the prome value.
	d Data point
	Profile OR MasterProfile
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Smallest value within the calculation interval if the pro- file value is not 0. Otherwise 0.
	Report Beport_Module D- m_Min_profile d_Data_point Profile
Minimum over actual year	Minimum over actual year (ID: 2786)
	Calculates the smallest value of all measured values within the fol- lowing interval.
	[Start of current year, To timestamp of the calculation interval]
	Inputs:
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Smallest value of all measured values within the interval above.
	Report Report_Module m_mMin_act_year d_Data_point
Minimum of n data points	Minimum of n data points (ID: 2834)
	Calculates the smallest measured value of n data points that lie within the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2
	a_Data_point_n
	RES[I] T[x] = Smallest measured value of n data points that lie within
	the calculation interval.
	Report Report Module Deta_points d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_n

Minus	Minus (ID: 1735)
	Calculates the difference of two MEVAs.
	Inputs:
	m_MEVA_1
	m_MEVA_2
	The function returns:
	$RESULT[x] = m_MEVA_1 - m_MEVA_2$
	Ereport Ereport_Module Ereport_Ereport_Module Ereport_Erep
Average	Average (ID: 1719)
	Calculates the average of all measured values within the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	I ne function returns:
	interval.
	Additional info:
	If MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN in Energy Manager Options is set to 0, no check for gaps in the time series (15 min) is performed. 1 means that the check is performed. Only active if MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD is disabled (= 0).
	MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD can be used to set a percentage limit of corrupted values as of which the corrupted result is also rejected. It is also permitted to use decimal point values (e.g. 50.5); the function is disabled with "0". Only active if MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN is disabled (= 0).
	É- ₩ Report
	☐
Average (profile)	Average (profile) (ID: 2762)
	Calculates the average of all measured values within the calculation interval depending on the profile value.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	Profile OR MasterProfile
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Average of all measured values within the calculation interval if the profile value is not 0. Otherwise 0.
	⊡ · Report ⊡ · ™ Report_Module ⊡ · * ™ m_Average_profile □ · * ↑ d_Data_point ↓ · * Profile

Floating average x days for Meva	Floating average x days for Meva (ID: 2838) Calculation of the floating average of a MEVA. Inputs: m_MEVA t_Parameter (number of days) The function returns: RESULT[x] = Average of the MEVA over the last n days. The replacement value configured in t_Parameter determines the number of days.
Average cumulated	Average cumulated (ID: 2864)
	Returns the cumulative average of all measured values within the 'From' time of the observation period until the 'To' time of the calcu- lation interval. Inputs: d_Data_point The function returns: RESULT[x] = Cumulative average of all measured values.
	d_Data_point
Average with filter	Average with filter (ID: 2861)
5	Returns the average of all measured values greater than the filter value.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	[t_Parameter (filter value)]
	If t_Parameter is not used, the filter value = 0.
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Average of all measured values greater than the filter value.
	Report Report Module Average_filter Data_point L-Parameter

Average of n data points	Average of n data points (ID: 2836)
	Calculates the average of n data points that lie within the calcula- tion interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2
	d_Data_point_n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Average of n data points that lie within the calculation interval.
	Report Beport Beport_Module Deta_points d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 d_Data_point_n
Average of n MEVAs	Average of n MEVAs (ID: 2839) Calculates the average of n MEVAs that lie within the calculation in- terval.
	Inputs:
	m MEVA 1
	m MEVA 2
	m MEVA n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Average of n MEVAs that lie within the calculation in- terval.
	E Beport E Beport E Beport_Module E S m_Average_n_MEVAs E S m_MEVA_1 E S m_MEVA_2 E S m_MEVA_n
Average previous period	Average previous period (ID: 2798)
	Calculation of average of previous period.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = AVG(measured values), whereby the query period is set back by one period (from/to).
	E Eport E Eport_Module E E m_Average_previous_period C E C M_Average_previous_period

Multiplication	Multiplication (ID: 2708) Multiplies the results of the n MEVA/datapoint/parameter inputs. Inputs: m_MEVA_1 m_MEVA_2 m_MEVA_n The function returns: RESULT[x] = m_MEVA_1 * m_MEVA_2 * * m_MEVA_n) Report Report Multiplication m_MEVA_1
Multiplication of 2 DPs with cross sum	Multiplication of 2 DPs with cross sum (ID: 2690) Forms the product of the data point values for each time stamp. Re- turns the sum of the products contained therein for each calculation interval. Inputs: d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 The function returns: RESULT[x] = SUM (d_Data_point_1 * d_Data_point_2) Additional info: If MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN in Energy Manager Options is set to 0, no check for gaps in the time series (15 min) is performed. 1 means that the check is performed. Only active if MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD is disabled (= 0). Particular for the series sum d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2
Parameter	Parameter (ID: 1728) Calculates the valid parameter value since the start of the calcula- tion interval. Inputs: t_Parameter The function returns: RESULT[x] = The valid parameter value since the start of the calcula- tion interval. Report Report Report_Module Calculates the start of the calcula- t_Parameter t_Parameter

Percentile cumulated	Percentile cumulated (ID: 2867)
	Returns the cumulative percentile of all measured values within the 'From' time of the observation period until the 'To' time of the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	t_Parameter (percentile)
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Cumulative percentile of all measured values.
	The replacement value configured in t_Parameter determines the percentile. The percentile must be in the range from 1 to 99.
	Emergenet Emergenet Emergenet Emergenet Emergenet Constant Constant Emergenet Constant Constan
Production plan correction fac-	Production plan correction factor (ID: 2660)
tor	Calculates the sum of the correction values of all connected produc- tion plans.
	Inputs:
	Plant_1
	Plant_2
	Plant_n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = SUM (correction value of the connected production plans within the calculation interval)
	Report Report Report_Module D T m_roduction_plan_correction_factor T T Equipment_1 T Equipment_2 T Equipment_n
Profile sum NLP	Profile sum NLP (ID: 2760)
	Calculates the sum of the profile values in the calculation interval.
	Inputs:
	Profile OR MasterProfile
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = SUM(profile values)
	Ereport Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module Ereport_Module

Profile value	Profile value (ID: 2730) Calculates the valid profile value since the start of the calculation in- terval. Inputs: Profile OR MasterProfile The function returns: RESULT[x] = The valid profile value since the start of the calculation interval.
Percent	Percent (ID: 2732) Calculates the quotient of two data points, multiplied by 100. Inputs: d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 The function returns: RESULT[x] = (d_Data_point_1 / d_Data_point_2) * 100 Report Report Meport_Module d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2
Percentage	Percentage (ID: 1739) Calculates the quotient of two MEVAs, multiplied by 100. Inputs: m_MEVA_1 m_MEVA_2 The function returns: RESULT[x] = (m_MEVA_1 / m_MEVA_2) * 100
Repair hours	Repair hours (ID: 2770) Calculates the total of all values in the validity period of the parame- ter. Inputs: t_Parameter (repair hours) The function returns: RESULT[x] = Sum of all values in the validity period of the parame- ter. Report Report Report Report Parameter

Rounding to n decimal places	Rounding to n decimal places (ID: 2785) Calculates rounded MEVA results Inputs: m_MEVA t_Parameter The function returns: RESULT[x] = MEVA results rounded to the nth decimal place. The replacement value configured in t_Parameter determines n. n must be in the range from 0 15. Figure Report Meter Report_Module Figure Report_Module
Upper threshold element	Upper threshold element (ID: 1769) Calculates all MEVA values which are below the threshold. Other- wise, the threshold is returned. Inputs: m_MEVA t_Parameter (threshold) The function returns: RESULT[x] = IF(m_MEVA < t_Parameter, m_MEVA, t_Parameter)
Lower threshold element	Lower threshold element (ID: 2681) Calculates all MEVA values which are above the threshold. Other- wise, the threshold is returned. Inputs: m_MEVA t_Parameter (threshold) The function returns: RESULT[x] = IF(m_MEVA > t_Parameter, m_MEVA, t_Parameter)

Subtraction	Subtraction (ID: 2772)
	Subtracts the results of the n MEVA/datapoint/parameter inputs:
	m_MEVA_1
	m_MEVA_2
	m_MEVA_n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = m_MEVA_1 - m_MEVA_2 m_MEVA_n
	E Beport A Beport A Beport_Module E S m_Subtraction E S m_MEVA_1 E S m_MEVA_2 E S m_MEVA_n
Subtraction with cross sum	Subtraction with cross sum (ID: 2784)
	Forms the difference of the n data point values for each time stamp. Returns the sum of the differences contained therein for each calcu- lation interval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2
	d_Data_point_n
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = SUM (d_Data_point_1 - d_Data_point_2
	d_Data_point_n)
	If MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN in Energy Manager Options is set to 0, no check for gaps in the time series (15 min) is performed. 1 means that the check is performed. Only active if MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD is disabled (= 0).
	Report Report Report_Module Bubtraction_cross_sum d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 d_Data_point_n
Sum	Sum (ID: 1721)
	Sum of all measured values scaled to the hour.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Sum (measured value * validity period) / 3600
	Additional info:
	MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD can be used to set a percentage limit of corrupted values as of which the corrupted result is also rejected. It is also permitted to use decimal point values (e.g. 50.5); the function is disabled with "0". Only active if MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN is disabled (= 0).
	□ □ Report □ □ □ Report_Module □ □ □ □ m_Sum □ □ □ □ ↓ □ d_Data_point

Sum (profile)	Sum (profile) (ID: 2761)
	Standardized sum calculation depending on the profile value.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	Profile OR MasterProfile
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Sum(value[t] * validity[t] / 3600) if profile[t] <> 0
	□ ➡ Report □ ➡ Report_Module □ ➡ m_Sum_profile □ ➡ d_Data_point □ ➡ Profile
Sum real	Sum real (ID: 1779)
	Calculates the sum of all measured values within the calculation in- terval.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = Sum (measured value)
	Additional info:
	MEVA_STER_THRESHOLD can be used to set a percentage limit of corrupted values as of which the corrupted result is also rejected. It is also permitted to use decimal point values (e.g. 50.5); the function is disabled with "0". Only active if MEVA_CHECK_LUECKEN is disabled (= 0).
	☐ ∰ Report ☐ ⓑ Report_Module ☐ ⓑ m_Sum_real ☐ ⓓ Data_point
Sum real (profile)	Sum real (profile) (ID: 2763)
	Calculates the sum of all measured values within the calculation in- terval depending on the profile value.
	Inputs:
	d_Datenpunkt
	Profile OR MasterProfile
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = sum(value[t] if profile[t] <> 0)
	□ Image:

Sum_HT	Sum_HT (ID: 1763) Sum of all measured values scaled to the hour as long as rate = 1. Inputs: d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 (H/L rate, represented by 0 and 1) The function returns: RESULT[x] = SUM(measured value * validity period) / 3600 IF d_Data_point_2 = 1 Report Beport d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 d_Data_point_2
Sum_HT_Real	Sum_HT_Real (ID: 2733) Sum of all measured values as long as rate = 1. Inputs: d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 (H/L rate, represented by 0 and 1) The function returns: RESULT[x] = SUM(measured value) IF d_Data_point_2 = 1 Report Report Beport_Module Data_point_1 d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2
Summe_NT	Summe_NT (ID: 1764) Sum of all measured values scaled to the hour as long as rate = 0 Inputs: d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 (H/L rate, represented by 0 and 1) The function returns: RESULT[x] = SUM(measured value * validity period) / 3600 IF d_Data_point_2 = 0 Report Report Measured value * validity period) / 3600 IF d_Data_point_2 = 0

Sum_NT_Real	Sum_NT_Real (ID: 2734)
	Sum of all measured values as long as rate = 0.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2 (H/L rate, represented by 0 and 1)
	The function returns:
	RESULT[x] = SUM(measured value) IF d_Data_point_2 = 0
	P Report
	E Report_Module
	d_Data_point_1
	d_Data_point_2
Sum energy input	Sum energy input (ID: 1772)
	Calculates the sum of the energy input scaled to hour with inclusion of parameter changes.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point (flow in [m³/h], [Nm³/h])
	t_Parameter (calorific value in [MWh/t] ,[MWh/Nm³])
	The function returns:
	RESULT[MWh] =Sum energy input[MWh] = SUM(d_Data_point * va- lidity period * t_Parameter)/ 3600
	E Report_Module
	m_Energy_supply_totals
	t_Parameter
Sum energy input real	Sum energy input real (ID: 1778)
	Calculates the sum of the energy input with inclusion of parameter changes.
	Inputs:
	d_Data_point (flow in [m³/h], [Nm³/h])
	t_Parameter (calorific value in [MWh/t] ,[MWh/Nm³])
	The function returns:
	RESULT[MWh] =Sum energy input real [MWh] = SUM(d_Data_point * t_Parameter)
	⊡ 🔜 Report ⊡ 🔂 Report_Module
	□ 😰 m_Energy_supply_totals_real
	d_Data_point

Daily average AT(t9+t14+2x t21)/4	Daily average AT (t9+t14+2x t21)/4 (ID: 2820) Calculates the daily average outdoor temperature. Inputs: d_Data_point The function returns: RESULT[x] = (temperature(09:00) + temperature(14:00) + 2 x tem- perature(21:00)) / 4
If-Then	If-Then ID: 2746 Calculates the MEVA result of the threshold depending on the logi- cal expression. Inputs: m_MEVA_1 m_MEVA_2 OR t_Parameter m_MEVA_3 m_MEVA_4 The function returns: RESULT[x]=IF (m_MEVA_1 > m_MEVA_2; m_MEVA_1; 0) RESULT[x]=IF (m_MEVA_1 > m_MEVA_2; m_MEVA_3; 0) RESULT[x]=IF (m_MEVA_1 > m_MEVA_2; m_MEVA_3; m_MEVA_4) Argument 2 may be a MEVA or parameter Arguments 3 and 4 are optional.
Time window correction	Time window correction (ID: 2902) Moves the MEVA calculation results to the future or to the past. Inputs: m_MEVA t_Parameter OR query type. t_Parameter: with direction ("-": future; "+": past) and number of pe- riods, for example, "-1" to shift the data by one period into the past. Query type: Correction From-time on the basis of duration and off- set of the query type, To-time remains unchanged. Report Report Report Module T m_Time_window_correction T m_MEVA t_Parameter

Input oil (incl. corr.)	Input oil (incl. corr.) (ID: 1738) Temperature compensated calculation of the oil supply. Inputs: t_Parameter_1 (reference density [t/m ³]) t_Parameter_2 (reference temperature [°C]) t_Parameter_3 (correction factor [1/°C]) d_Data_point_1 (operating temperature [°C]) d_Data_point_2 (flow [m ³ /h]) The function returns: RESULT[t] = oil supply[t] = SUM(d_Data_point_2 * validity period *(t_Parameter_1 + ((t_Parameter_2 - d_Data_point_1) * t_Parame- ter_3))) / 3600 Report Temperature [°C] d_Data_point_1 d_Data_point_2 d_Data_point_2
Root (n-th of x)	Root (n-th of x) (ID: 2930) The MEVA needs two input objects: The first input "n" represents the index of the formula and the second input "x" the radicand of the formula. Only (other) MEVAs, data points and parameter objects are permit- ted as input object types. If the transferred value is negative, the MEVA aborts with an error. Report Report Methodul
Power (n to the x-th)	Power (n to the x-th) (ID: 2931) The MEVA needs two input objects: The first input "x" represents the base of the formula and the second input "n" the exponent of the formula. Only (other) MEVAs, data points and parameter objects are permit- ted as input object types. Report Report Mever Content of the Report Content of the formula Report Content of the formula Re

Logarithm	Logarithm (ID: 2932)
~	Calculates the natural logarithm of a number.
	The MEVA requires one input object.
	Only (other) MEVAs, data points and parameter objects are permit-
	ted as input object types.
	If the transferred value is 0 or negative, the MEVA aborts with an error.
	E- Report
	🕂 🛍 Report_Modul
	🖨 🔁 m_Logarithm
	· d_Data_point
Power from energy	Power from energy (ID: 2934)
55	Calculation of the electrical power for a specific measured value and period.
	The MEVA requires one input object.
	Only data points are permitted as input object type.
	🖆 🔜 Report
	E- Beport_Modul
	⊡ ∑ m_Power_trom_energy
	Calculation formula when using the "Entry values" compression:
	Power value (kW) = Consumption value (kWh) / Entry inter- val (in hours)
	Calculation formula when using other compression levels:
	Power value (kW) = Consumption value (kWh) / Compression inter- val (in hr.)
Maximum power	Maximum power (ID: 2935)
	Calculates the maximum electrical power for a specific period.
	The MEVA requires one input object.
	Only data points are permitted as input object type.
	☐ 🙀 Report ☐ 🐨 m_Maximum_power ☐ 🐨 m_Maximum_power
	Calculation formula when using the "Entry values" compression:
	Max. power value (kW) = Max. consumption value (kWh) / Entry in- terval (in hours)
	Calculation formula when using other compression levels:
	Max. power value (kW) = Max. consumption value (kWh) / Compression interval (in hr.)

4.14 User jobs of the job queue

The following section specifies the database jobs of the job queue that are available.

Database job	Descriptio	on					
Generate batch data	Generates	Generates batch data in the following form:					
	From 8 Material	all)	To To Equipment	8/16/2016 10:5 Papiermaschin	67:14 AM 🔹	Refresh	
	BatchID	Starttime Δ	Endtime	Source	Destination	Material	New
	132500	8/16/2016 1:00:00 AM	8/16/2016 4:30:0	0 AM	Papiermaschine1	no Material	Edit
	12458	8/16/2016 6:00:00 AM	8/16/2016 10:00:	00 AM	Papiermaschine1	no Material	Edit
	12458	8/16/2016 10:45:26 AM	8/16/2016 10:45:	26 AM	Papiermaschine1	no Material	Delete
							Overview
							Recalc
	Ш						

Database job	Description				
Export forecast EDM	Exports all measured values of a datapoint in CSV format to an ASCII file, starting on the current day (00:15:00 h), including available forecast values. The datapoints concerned must be assigned to the "EDM forecast" export function. Assign these to the export function in the datapoint configuration of the Export dialog. The file name is also specified in this dialog. An optional time stamp with "yyyymmddhh24mi" format can be added to the file name. The file name has the extension ".TXT". The data are exported to the file successively for each datapoint.				
	Format Meaning				
	уууу	Year			
	mm	Month			
	dd	Day	Day		
	hh24	24 hours mode			
	mi	Minutes			
	Entries in Energy Manager options				
	EXPORT_PATH		Export directory. If this entry is missing, an error mes- sage is entered in the Logging Viewer.		
	EXPORT_FILENAME_MODUS		If = 0 : File name with date and time.		
			If = 1: File name without date and time.		
			If exporting is carried out without date and time, a file already existing with the same name is overwritten.		
	The following example shows an extract from an exported file that contains the follow time, measured value, and status. Date and time are in UTC time format.				
	08.04.2008;23:15:00;100	08.04.2008;23:15:00;100;0			
	08.04.2008;23:30:00;99;0				
	08.04.2008;23:45:00;98;0 09.04.2008;00:00:00;97;0				
	09.04.2008;00:15:00;96;0				
	Note: The user running the Oracle application needs write permissions for the specified directory.				

4.14 User jobs of the job queue

Database job	Description				
Export SAP R/3 PM historical PD 6h	Exports the counter value history of the PREVIOUS DAY to a file at intervals of 6 hours and in "SAP R/3 PM" format. The data points concerned must be assigned to the "SAP PM VT historical 6h" export function. Assign these to the export function in the data point configuration of the Export dialog. The file name is also specified in this dialog. A time stamp with "yyyymmddhh24mi" format is added to the file name.				
	Format	nat Meaning			
	yyyyYearmmMonthddDayhh2424 hours mode				
	mi	Minutes			
	The directory for the export is specified via the entry in the "EXPORT_PATH" in the Energy Manager op- tions. If this entry is missing, an error message is entered in the Logging Viewer.				

Database job	Description			
Export SAP R/3 PM historical PPD 6h	Exports the counter value history of the DAY BEFORE YESTERDAY to a file at intervals of 6 hours and in "SAP R/3 PM" format. The data points concerned must be assigned to the "SAP PM PPD historical 6h" export function. Assign these to the export function in the data point configuration of the Export dialog. The file name is also specified in this dialog. A time stamp with "yyyymmddhh24mi" format is added to the file name.			
	Format	Meaning		
	уууу	Year		
	mm	Month		
	dd	Day		
	hh24	24 hours mode		
	mi	Minutes		
	The directory for the export is specified via the entry in the "EXPORT_PATH" in the Energy Manager op- tions. If this entry is missing, an error message is entered in the Logging Viewer.			
Database job	Description			
-------------------------	--	----------------------	---	--
"Export PD as ASCII"	Exports all data point values measured on the PREVIOUS DAY in CSV format to an ASCII file. The data points concerned must be assigned to the "Energy Manager Standard" export function. Assign these to the export function in the data point configuration of the Export dialog. The file name is also specified in this dialog. A optional time stamp with "yyyymmddhh24mi" format can be added to the file name. The file name has the extension ".TXT". The data are exported to the file successively for each data-point.			
	Format	Meaning		
	уууу	Year		
	mm	Month		
	dd	Day		
	hh24	24 hours mode		
	mi	Minutes		
	Entries in Energy Manager options			
	EXPORT_PATH		Export directory. If this entry is missing, an error mes- sage is entered in the Logging Viewer.	
	EXPORT_FILENAME_MODUS		If = 0: File name with date and time.	
			If = 1: File name without date and time.	
			If exporting is carried out without date and time, a file already existing with the same name is overwritten.	
	The following example shows an extract from an exported file:			
	"COMP_LEVEL";"MSJO_DATE";"TIME_ID";"MEAS_ID";"MSJO_VALUE";"MSJO_INTERVAL";"MSJO_DVALID";" STER_FLAG";"STKO_FLAG"			
	"2100";"07.04.2008 00:15:00";"1002";"127795";"100";"900";"900";"0";"0"			
	"2100";"07.04.2008 00:30:00";"1002";"127795";"99";"900";"900";"0";"0"			
	"2100";"07.04.2008 00:45:00";"1002";"127795";"98";"900";"900";"0";"0"			
	"2100";"07.04.2008 01:00:00";"1002";"127795";"97";"900";"900";"0";"0"			
	"2100";"07.04.2008 01:15:00";"1002";"127795";"96";"900";"900";"0";"0";"0"			
	Note: The user running th	e Oracle application	n needs write permissions for the specified directory.	

4.14 User jobs of the job queue

Database job	Description		
Export all config- ured formats	Exports all the measured values of all the datapoint values at which export functions are configured of the PREVIOUS DAY in CSV format to an ASCII file. The values of all the configured export functions are exported. The assignment of the export functions is effected in the datapoint configuration of the Export dialog. The file name is also specified in this dialog. A optional time stamp with "yyyymmddhh24mi" format can be added to the file name. The file name has the extension ".TXT". The data are exported to the file successively for each datapoint.		
	Format	Meaning	
	уууу	Year	
	mm	Month	
	dd	Day	
	hh24	24 hours mode	
	mi	Minutes	
	Entries in Energy Manager options EXPORT_PATH Export directory. If this entry is missing, an error m sage is entered in the Logging Viewer.		
	EXPORT_FILENAME_MODUS If = 0: File name with date and time.		
	If = 1 : File name without date and time.		If = 1: File name without date and time.
			If exporting is carried out without date and time, a file already existing with the same name is overwritten.
	The following example shows an extract from an exported file: "COMP_LEVEL";"MSJO_DATE";"TIME_ID";"MEAS_ID";"MSJO_VALUE";"MSJO_INTERVAL";"MSJO_DVALID STER_FLAG";"STKO_FLAG"		
	"2100";"07.04.2008 00:30:00";"1002";"127795";"99";"900";"900";"0";"0"		
	"2100";"07.04.2008 00:45	:00";"1002";"12779	95";"98";"900";"900";"0";"0"
	"2100";"07.04.2008 01:00	:00";"1002";"12779	?5";"97";"900";"900";"0";"0"
	"2100";"07.04.2008 01:15	:00";"1002";"12779	95";"96";"900";"900";"0";"0"
	Note: The user running th	e Oracle applicatior	n needs write permissions for the specified directory.

See also

Job queue (Page 398)

4.15 Task Management

4.15.1 Task Management

Creating the Task Manager

A Task Manager is created automatically during the installation. In addition, a new Task Manager is created for each new acquisition component. If you need additional Task Managers, follow these steps:

1. Select the folder under which the Task Manager is going to be created. Save all tasks centrally in a folder. To avoid the creation of different tasks with the same content.

🕂 🚬 Configuration
🛱 🛄 TaskManagement
🛱 🔂 Export_Task_Manager
🗀 📴 Database_Export
白 🕛 Database_Export_Task
📄 📄 👾 😽 CC 1239099 - CC 1239100
📄 🖶 🔂 ODBC_Import_Task
🕴 📋 🖶 ASCII_Import

2. Click the "Insert Task Manager" button in the menu bar under "Administration > Task Management".

The "Task Manager" dialog opens.

🗟 🛛 Task Ma	anager - Export_Task_Manager 🛛 🗖	×
Name:	Export_Task_Manager	
Description:	Export Task Manager	^
		~
Hardware:	h_Siemens_PC	•
9	OK Cancel	

- 3. Enter a user "name" and an optional "description".
- 4. Select the PC on which the Task Manager is to be set up from the "Hardware" list box.
- 5. Save the configuration with "OK".

Create a task in the next step.

Reference

4.15 Task Management

Overview

The following section specifies the tasks that are available.

Task	Function
ODBD Import	Configuration
TskImpor- tODBC.cmd	□ Task Management
TskImportOD- BCall.cmd	TskImportODBC.cmd: Imports all active data channels that are assigned to the task. TskImportODBCall.cmd: Imports all active data channels.
	Task - Import_selected_ODBC_sources -
	Name: Import_selected_ODBC_sources
	Description:
	Command Line: ODBC Import TskImportODBC.cmd - Manage
	Schedule: At 9:00 AM every day, starting 8/10/2016 Schedule Run As Start
	Run only if logged on
	Account will be set to: Local System Clear
	OK Cancel
	Select the file to be executed in the command line. Define a "Schedule", if applicable. Click "Start" to launch a single run of the task.

Task	Function		
Archiving	Configuration		
TskArchive.cmd	Task Management Archiving Export Select the "TskArchive.cmd" entry from the command line list box when you define the task.		
	Task - Archiving -		
	Name: Archiving		
	Description:		
	Command Line: Archiving TskArchive.cmd Manage		
	Schedule: Schedule Run As Start		
	Run only if logged on Enabled (Scheduled Task runs at specified time.)		
	Account will be set to: Local System Clear		
	OK Cancel		
	Create an interval definition to configure the time window to export.		

Reference

4.15 Task Management

Task	Function
Archiving (continued)	The following example shows the export of data that is older than three years. "Re- move after export" deletes the data from the database within the specified time range. The exported data is written to a file.
	🕚 Interval Definition - Export 🛛 🗕 💌
	Name: Export Description:
	 Interval back: O Second Duration: O Second Remove after export Target Filename: Archiv Compression Level: Entry values Start
Job starting	You may also export all data points manually or export only selected data points. This task can be used to initiate the database jobs that are available in Energy Man- ager PRO and which are also used in the job queue
.cmd	Configuration Calculate_Batchdata Calculate_Batchdata CalculateBatchdata Job for batchdata producing
	Connect the object of the database job that is to be executed to the task node. The jobs available in the system are listed in the plant tree at "Configuration > Constants and definitions" / Functions / Jobs.
	Image: Configuration Image: Constant and definitions Image: Constant and definitions

4.15.2 Task

Creating the task

1. Click "Insert Task" in the menu bar under "Administration > Task Management".

The "Task" dialog opens.

•	Task - Database_Export		- 🗆 🗙
Name: Databa	se_Export		<u>^</u>
			¥.
Command Line:	Data Export archive.cmd	•	Manage
Schedule: Schedule Run As Start			^
	Run only if logged on ✓ Enabled (Scheduled Task runs at specified time.)		
9		ок	Cancel

- 2. Enter the task "name" and an optional "description". The name may not contain special characters.
- 3. Select the function that the task has to execute from the "Command Line:" list box.

Note

After having changed or updated the command line contents (*.CMD file), you must enter your login information once again.

- 4. If you want to store a schedule that determines the start of the task, proceed as follows:
 - Click "Schedule".
 - Configure the schedule and then close the input dialog with "OK". For more information on Microsoft Scheduler, refer to the Microsoft Windows online help.

The Microsoft Scheduler opens.

5. Authorize yourself with "Run as" and enter the user name and password. This is only required if the task is not to be executed with the local Windows user.

Click "OK".

- 6. To start a task manually, click "Start".
- 7. Save the configuration with "OK".

If necessary, specify an interval definition.

Note

Subsequent changing of the password

If you are not using the local Windows user, you must log on with the new password via "Run as".

See also

Task Manager (Page 405) Interval definition (Page 837)

4.15.3 Interval definition

Creating the interval definition

1. Click the "Insert Interval Definition" button in the menu bar under "Administration > Task Management".

пе слре	it fusic alareg op	, erist		
•	Export Task - I	Database_Expor	t_Tas k	- 🗆 ×
Name: Description:	Database_Export_Task	Database_Export_Task		
Interval back: Duration:	0	Month Month	 ✓ One fil Remo 	e only ve after export
Offset			Target Fil export	ename:
O Hours	Minutes Second	S	Compres	sion Level:
	0 : 0 :	0		Start
9			ок	Cancel

The "Export Task" dialog opens.

- 2. Enter a "Name" and an optional "Description" for the interval definition.
- 3. Define the time window in the "Interval back:", "Duration:", and "Offset:" fields. The time window contents are always relative to the current time.
- 4. To export all data points to a single file, select the "One file only" check box and enter the "Target Filename". However, be aware of the fact that the size of the import file is limited to 5000 lines.

A separate file is generated for each data point if this option is not activated.

5. Select the "Remove after export" check box to delete the files from the database on completion of the export.

- 6. Click "Start" to export only selected data points.
 - Select the data points to export and then click "Start selected".

•	Choose	measurements	for ex port		×
Database_ Control Control Con	Export_Task 1_Access 1_Access2				
		Start Selected			
				Cance	

7. Save the configuration with "OK".

Example

Example: Configuration of the example above Let us assume that the task is going to be launched on January 17, 2008 at 13:57 Truncate with "Month" 01/01/2008 00:00 Interval back (6) 07/01/2007 00:00 Offset (no offset) 07/01/2007 00:00 Duration (1 day) 07/01/2007 00:00 - 07/02/2007 00:00 The interval from 07/01/07 00:00 to 07/02/07 00:00 is now defined in the example.

See also

Task (Page 835) Task Manager (Page 405)

4.16 ASCII FTP formats

4.16.1 ASCII FTP import interface

Using the ASCII FTP import interface, you can import the content of ASCII files of diverse formats to Energy Manager.

The specification for the supported formats is the same in all cases.

During the installation of Energy Manager, a sample file for each supported format in the %Install-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\ftp directory is stored on the acquisition system.

) +	This PC \rightarrow System (C:) \rightarrow EnMPRO \rightarrow GUI \rightarrow f	ftp
Nai	ne	
	APROL	
	BData	
	BData_XML_Daten	
	DALOG	
	EXCELCSV	
	EXCELCSVNODST	
	FREJA	
	TEXTVALUE	
	ZENON	

File format	Sample file
fp_Aprol	ChronoLogDataExport_pfil_H_15_03_2010.txt
fp_bdata	20100627_000000_FribaDP01.txt
fp_xmlparser	d_EL_E_7D_outside_temperature_20100101000000_20100102000000.xml
fp_dalog	Dalog_File.txt
fp_excelcsv	Excel_CSV.csv
fp_excelcsvNODST	Excel_CSV_NODST.csv
fp_freja	AVV_000112200_20100328000000_20100329000000.txt
TextValue	TextValues.txt
fp_Zenon.dll	zenOn.txt

The following chapters contain more information on the various parsers and supplied sample files.

See also

Data acquisition via the "FTP, sFTP" interface (Page 108) Configuring data acquisition via the "File Import" interface (Page 112) Creating an ASCII channel (Page 633)

4.16.2 APROL

APROL is a process control system. This system also exports the values as a "*.txt" file with a specific HTML format. The structure will look as follows:

<record date="YYYY-MM-DD" time="hh:mm:ss" id="Addressidentifier">

<field name="val">Value</field>

<field name="mode">0</field>

</record>

To assign values to a data point, enter the address identifier of the values in the entry field "Address" during configuration.

Example

```
<record date="2018-03-15" time="00:00:00" id="V15:Zlt/ABBMSU8 10 J1Ab">
 2
         <field name="val">0.4780000150203705</field>
 3
         <field name="mode">0</field>
 4
     </record>
 5
 8
     <record date="2018-03-15" time="01:00:00" id="V15:21t/ABBMSU8 10 J1Ab">
 7
         <field name="val">0.5780000150203705</field>
 8
 9
         <field name="mode">0</field>
    </record>
 10
 11
    <record date="2018-03-15" time="02:00:00" 1d="V15:Zlt/ABBESU8 10 J1Ab">
 12
        <field name="val">0.3800000250339508</field>
 13
         <field name="mode">0</field>
 14
 15
    </record>
 16
    <record date="2018-03-15" time="03:00:00" id="V15:21t/ABBMSU8 10 J1Ab">
 17
        <field name="val">0.7780000150203705</field>
 18
         <field name="mode">0</field>
 19
 20 </record>
    <record date="2018-03-15" time="04:00:00" id="V15:21t/ABBMSU8 10 J1Ab">
 22
            <field name="val">0.4780000150203705</field>
 23
         <field name="mode">0</field>
 24
 25
    </record>
 26
    <record date="2018-03-15" time="05:00:00" id="V15:21t/ABBMSU8 10 J1Ab">
 27
         <field name="val">0.5680000150203705</field>
 28
         <field name="mode">0</field>
 29
 30
    </record>
 31
    <record date="2018-03-15" time="06:00:00" id="V15:Zlt/ABBMSU8_10_J1Ab">
 32
        <field name="val">0.4780000150203705</field>
33
         <field name="mode">0</field>
 34
35 </record>
```

4.16.3 BDATA

You can import "*.txt" files from B.Data with the format BDATA. Do not modify the files of B.Data or else the import will no longer work. The separator is the semicolon sign. Each entry also features quotation marks at the beginning and the end.

To assign values to a data point, enter the ID number of the values in the "Address" entry field when configuring the data point. You can find the ID number under the entry "MESS_ID". The ID number for the first entry in the example below is "00059".

Example

The following figure shows a file with the required structure:

```
"COMF LEVEL"; "MEGO DATUM"; "ZEIT ID"; "MESS ID"; "MEGO VEFT"; "MEGO INTERVALL"; "MEGO DEVELTIG"; "STER FLAG"; "STKO FLAG"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 01:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.89";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0"
 З
        "2100";"26.06.2018 02:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.39";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
  4
        "2100";"26.06.2018 03:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.61";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 04:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.53";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
  5
        "2100";"26.06.2018 05:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.48";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 06:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.48";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 07:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.24";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 08:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.59";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 09:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.43";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 10:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"0";"3600";"0";"0";"0";"0";"0";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0";"0";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0";"0";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0";"0";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"00059";"0";"00059";"243.600";"3600";"3600";"00059";"00059";"243.52";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"00059";"00059";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"00059";"00059";"3600";"3600";"3600";"00059";"00059";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"3600";"
11
        "2100";"26.06.2018 11:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.45";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0"
         "2100":"26.06.2018 12:00:00":"1002":"00059":"243.64":"3600":"3600":"0":"0":"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 13:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.65";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";"0"
14
         "Z100":"Z6.06.Z018 14:00:00":"100Z":"00059":"Z43.58":"3600":"3600":"0":"0"
16
        "2100";"26.06.2018 15:00:00";"1002";"00059";"245.16";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
        "2100";"26.06.2018 16:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.44";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
1B
        "2100";"26.06.2018 17:00:00";"1002";"00059";"245.26";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
19
        "2100";"26.06.2018 18:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.95";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";
        "2100";"26.06.2018 19:00:00";"1002";"00059";"245.08";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";
2 D
21
        "2100";"26.06.2018 20:00";"1002";"00059";"243.14";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
2.2
        "2100";"26.06.2018 21:00:00";"1002";"00059";"243.49";"3600";"3600";"0";"0";
       "2100";"26.06.2018 22:00:00";"1002";"00059";"244.48";"3600";"3600";"0";"0"
```

Note

Where applicable, as in Germany, use a comma as the decimal separator for the operating system.

Otherwise use a period as the decimal separator.

The figure above uses a period as the decimal separator. This file is therefore correct for non German-speaking operating systems.

4.16.4 BDATA_XML_Format

In Energy Manager you can export values in an "*.xml" file. You can import these values with the BDATA_XML format. Do not modify the "*.xml" files of Energy Manager Pro or the import will no longer work.

To assign values to a data point, enter the ID number of the values in the "Address" entry field when configuring the data point. The ID number for the first entry in the example below is "110357".

Note

Importing XML files with or without line breaks

If you wish to import an XML file with more than 65533 bytes, the XML file must be formatted with line breaks.

If the XML file does not contain any line breaks, a maximum of 65533 bytes of data is imported.

Example

```
?xnl version='1.0" encoding='UTF-8" standalone="no' ?>
      ECIDOCTYPE hdate-export [
         <!ELEMENT bdata-export (measurements, measurevalues) >
       ATTLIST bdata-export
               id CDATA #REOUIRED
               from CDATA #REQUIRED
               to CDATA #REQUIRED
 в
          <!ELENENT measurements (measurement) + >
          <!ELEMENT measurement |description, measurevalues) >
<!ELEMENT description |#FCDATA) >
       ATTLIST measurement
12
13
14
15
16
              id CDATA #REQUIRED
             name CDATA #REQUIRED
             loggen CDATA #INPLIED
dapu-adr CDATA #INPLIED
              ident CDATA #INPLIED
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
          ZIELENENT measurevalues (val)+3
          elenent val (#PCDATA)
       id CDATA #REQUIRED
time CDATA #REQUIRED
               normtime CDATA #REQUIRED
               isdst CDATA #RECUIRED
               comp CDATA #INPLIED
value CDATA #REQUIRED
               int CDATA #IMPLIED
dur CDATA #IMPLIED
               flag CDATA #INPLIED
                KOTT CDATA #INPLIED
               mexdete CDATA #INPLIED
         ŝ,
33
34
35
36
37
30
39
         1>
      Godata-export id="110357' from='2018-01-01 00:00:00' to='2018-01-02 00:00:00">
      E-measurements:
       🕂 Guessurement 1d='110357' name='&_EL6#95;EL6#95;FL6#95;Fettersttn6#95;Aussentemperatur' loggen='1' Gapu-adr='110357' ident='' >
        ELG#95;E-7D Wetterstation Istwert Aussentemperatur
           /description>
      Excessorevelues)
      cvalid='110357' time='2018-01-01 00:03:00' normtime='2018-01-01 00:15:00' indst='false' comp='0' value='11.034' int='900' dur='900' flag='0' korr='0"/>
<valid='110357' time='2018-01-01 00:30:00' normtime='2018-01-01 00:45:00' indst='false' comp='0' value='11.034' int='900' dur='900' flag='0' korr='0"/>
<valid='110357' time='2018-01-01 00:30:00' normtime='2018-01-01 00:45:00' indst='false' comp='0' value='10.966' int='900' flag='0' korr='0"/>
<valid='110357' time='2018-01-01 00:30:00' normtime='2018-01-01 00:45:00' indst='false' comp='0' value='10.966' int='900' dur='900' flag='0' korr='0"/>
```

4.16.5 DALOG

The DALOG system is a data storage system which imports values as a "*.txt" file. The structure will look as follows:

The address identifiers of the individual data points are found in the first line:

Address label 1@ Address label 2@ Address label 3@ Address label 4

A "1" stands for each data point in the second line:

1@1@1@1

From the third line, the time stamps are listed with the respective values:

timestamp@Value1@Value2@Value3@Value4

To assign values to a data point, enter the address identifier of the values in the "Address" entry field when configuring the data point.

The separator in this case is "@". The following structure is required for the time stamp: YYYY.MM.DD hh:mm:ss

Example

```
DE00722531628HSA00000D0WKLAF01000 1-81:1.9.1@datapoint address 2@datapoint address 3@datapoint address 4
    1010101
    ZD18.0Z.01 D0:00:0006540054.20
 3
    2D18.03.01 D0:00:000123.4560523.6042062.5
 4
 5
    2018.03.31 23:00:0008630052.3041
    2018.04.30 23:00:00052046.80084.7
 6
 7
    2018.05.31 23:00:00087017.10198.780
 8
   2018.06.30 23:00:00025.10422056021.3
    2018.07.31 23:00:00089.60422056021.3
 9
10 2018.08.31 23:00:00032.40523.6042062.5
11 Z018.09.30 Z3:00:0002130052.3041
    2018.11.01 00:00:0005201520084.7
12
13
    2D18.12.01 D0:00:00087030198.780
14 2019.01.01 00:00:00021105105602
```

4.16.6 EXCELCSV

You can import CSV files from Excel with the EXCELCSV format.

In the EXCEL file, the time stamps of the values are listed in the first column (column A). The format of the time stamp is the German time and date format: DD.MM.YYYY hh:mm

You can choose any header of the column with the time stamps.

From the second column, the values for a time stamp are entered. Every column represents a data point. The address label for the values is the column header in the first line.

To assign values of a column to a data point, enter the address label of the values in the "Address" entry field when configuring the data point.

The separator is the semicolon. However, the separator is only visible outside of Excel.

Example

	А	В
1	Zeitstempel	EXCELCSV_01
2	28.03.2018 00:15	25
3	28.03.2018 00:30	26
4	28.03.2018 00:45	27
5	28.03.2018 01:00	28
6	28.03.2018 01:15	29
7	28.03.2018 01:30	30
8	28.03.2018 01:45	31
9	28.03.2018 03:00	32
10	28.03.2018 03:15	33
11	28.03.2018 03:30	34
12	28.03.2018 03:45	35

4.16.7 EXCELCSVNODST

The difference between the formats EXELCSV and EXCELCSVNODST is the time basis. The time stamps in this format are consistently requested in UTC+1 (standard time).

Energy Manager adds an hour with this format for representation in daylight saving time.

The structure of the file is identical to that of a file in the EXCELCSV format.

Example

	А	В
1	Zeitstempel	EXCELCSV_01
2	28.03.2018 00:15	25
3	28.03.2018 00:30	26
4	28.03.2018 00:45	27
5	28.03.2018 01:00	28
6	28.03.2018 01:15	29
7	28.03.2018 01:30	30
8	28.03.2018 01:45	31
9	28.03.2018 03:00	32
10	28.03.2018 03:15	33
11	28.03.2018 03:30	34
12	28.03.2018 03:45	35

4.16.8 FREJA

The FREJA system is an energy accounting system. The system uses the data format "*.txt". The required structure of the file is described in the following table:

Column	Column header	Contents	Example							
1	Year	Year value of the timestamp	2018							
2	Month	Month value of the timestamp	03							
3	Day	Daily value of the timestamp	28							
4	Hour	Hour value of the time stamp	09							
5	Minute	Minute value of the timestamp	45							
6	TAGname	Address label	HQK_FJV_ATOF_LEV_EGI_1M							
7	Unit	Unit of the value	MWh							
8	Value	Value of the entry	200							

Columns 9 and 10 with the column headers "Quality" and "Remark" are not used by Energy Manager.

The separator field between the columns is a tabulator. Import is only possible with correct column headers.

To assign values to a data point, enter the address label of the values in the "Address" entry field when configuring the data point.

Example

1	Year	Month	Day	Hou	r Minute TAGname Unit	Value	Quality Remark
2	2018	03 28	3 00	15	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
3	2018	03 28	8 00	30	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
4	2018	03 28	3 00	45	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
5	2018	03 28	01	00	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
6	2018	03 28	01	15	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
7	2018	03 28	01	30	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
8	2018	03 28	01	45	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
9	2018	03 20	03	00	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
10	2018	03 28	03	15	HQK_FJV_ATOF_LEV_EGI_1M_MWh	200	
11	2018	03 20	03	30	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
12	2018	03 28	03	45	HQK FJV ATOF LEV EGI 1M MWh	200	
13	2018	03 28	8 04	00	HQK_FJV_ATOF_LEV_EGI_1M MWh	200	

4.16.9 TextValue

You can import texts with this format.

The TextValue format has the following structure:

Time stamp; address label; text

The German time and date format is requested for the time stamp: DD.MM.YYYY hh:mm

The semicolon sign is the separator.

Example

The following figure shows a file with the required structure:

1 01.02.2018 00:15;ENG2;engine 2 failure 2 03.02.2018 00:00;ENG2;hotwater failure 3 05.03.2018 01:00;engine_1;plant 2 OK again

4.16.10 ZenOn

The ZenOn system is a system which saves values in a "*txt" file in CSV format. The required structure of the "*.txt" file is described in the following table:

Column	Contents	Example
1	Address label	H2_UYC01_CT001
2	Value of the entry	8.6
3	Standard or daylight saving time	SPONT WINTER
4	Date of the timestamp	27 January 2018
5	Time of the timestamp	01:00:00

Example

The following figure shows a file with the required structure:

 1
 H2_UYC01_CT001_YQ01;8.6;SPONT WINTER ;27.01.18;01:00:00

 2
 H2_UYC01_CT001_YQ01;8.6;SPONT WINTER ;27.01.18;02:00:00

 3
 H2_UYC01_CT001_YQ01;8.5;SPONT WINTER ;27.01.18;03:00:00

 4
 H2_UYC01_CT001_YQ01;8.7;SPONT WINTER ;27.01.18;04:00:00

 5
 H2_UYC01_CT001_YQ01;8.5;SPONT WINTER ;27.01.18;05:00:00

 6
 H2_UYC01_CT001_YQ01;8.6;SPONT WINTER ;27.01.18;06:00:00

 7
 H2_UYC01_CT001_YQ01;8.5;SPONT WINTER ;27.01.18;07:00:00

4.17 XML stylesheets

4.17.1 XML export interface

The XML export interface is used for the export of data point information and measured values from Energy Manager to XML format files. The XML data is converted into the selected ASCII format by means of a style sheet.

The entire process is controlled by means of Task Management. For this, the setup installs five CMD files in the "%Installations-DIR%\CMD" folder on an acquisition computer.



"TskArchive.cmd" uses "%Installations-DIR%\DB\EnMPRO\DbLogArchive" as the output folder.



The remaining CMDs employ the "%Installations-DIR%\EDIEL" output folder. The other output folders are generated by the respective CMD.

It is possible to adapt the CMD files or style sheets to enable generation of all necessary ASCII formats.

Setup installs six style sheets in the "%Installations-DIR%\EnMPRO\GUI\Export XML" folder on an acquisition computer.



The next chapters provide a short overview of the various style sheets.

4.17.2 CSV_localtime.xsl

XML file

Execution file: Output folder: TskExportCSV.cmd C:\EnMRPO\GUI\EDIEL\EXPORT

This style sheet exports all columns of the data model via the task as CSV file except for the columns "ENTRYDATE", "MINDATE" and "MAXDATE". The time stamps of the measured values are entered by the application server in local time of the operating system.

	A	8	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	1	K	L	M	N	0
1	COMP_LEVEL	VALUEDATE	MESS_ID	VALUE	EINH_KTEXT	STATE_VAL	STATE_ACQ	STATE_COR	MIN	MAX	AVG	SUM	PVALUE	OFFSET	TEXT
2	2100	19.09.2017 00:15:00	5225	54.468	hl	30	0	0	54.468	54.468	54.468	54.468	217.872	1	
3	2100	19.09.2017 00:30:00	5225	109.038	hl	30	0	0	109.038	109.038	109.038	109.038	436.152	1	
4	2100	19.09.2017 00:45:00	5225	54.366	hl	30	0	0	54.366	54.366	54.366	54.366	217.464	1	
5	2100	19.09.2017 01:00:00	5225	54.468	hl	30	0	0	54.468	54.468	54.468	54.468	217.872	1	
6	2100	19.09.2017 01:15:00	5225	54.876	hl	30	0	0	54.876	54.876	54.876	54.876	219.504	1	
7	2100	19.09.2017 01:30:00	5225	108.528	hl	30	0	0	108.528	108.528	108.528	108.528	434.112	1	
8	2100	19.09.2017 01:45:00	5225	54.468	hl	30	0	0	54.468	54.468	54.468	54.468	217.872	1	
9	2100	19.09.2017 02:00:00	5225	109.038	hl	30	0	0	109.038	109.038	109.038	109.038	436.152	1	

Example for time stamp: 19.09.2017 00:15:00 54,468

4.17.3 CSV_normtime.xsl

XML file

Execution file:	TskExportCSV_local.cmd
Output folder:	C:\EnMRPO\GUI\EDIEL\EXPORT

This style sheet, too, exports all columns of the data model via the task as CSV file except for the columns "ENTRYDATE", "MINDATE" and "MAXDATE". The time stamps of the measured values are entered in local time without taking daylight saving time into account.

4	A	B	с	D	E	F	G	н	- E	J	к	L	м	N	0
1	COMP_LEVEL	VALUEDATE	MESS_ID	VALUE	EINH_KTEXT	STATE_VAL	STATE_ACQ	STATE_COR	MIN	MAX	AVG	SUM	PVALUE	OFFSET	TEXT
2	2100	18.09.2017 23:15:00	5225	54.468	hl	30	0	0	54.468	54.468	54.468	54.468	217.872	1	
3	2100	18.09.2017 23:30:00	5225	109.038	hl	30	0	0	109.038	109.038	109.038	109.038	436.152	1	
4	2100	18.09.2017 23:45:00	5225	54.366	hl	30	0	0	54.366	54.366	54.366	54.366	217.464	1	
5	2100	19.09.2017 00:00:00	5225	54.468	hl	30	0	0	54.468	54.468	54.468	54.468	217.872	1	
6	2100	19.09.2017 00:15:00	5225	54.876	hl	30	0	0	54.876	54.876	54.876	54.876	219.504	1	
7	2100	19.09.2017 00:30:00	5225	108.528	hl	30	0	0	108.528	108.528	108.528	108.528	434.112	1	
8	2100	19.09.2017 00:45:00	5225	54,468	hl	30	0	0	54.468	54.468	54,468	54,468	217.872	1	
9	2100	19.09.2017 01:00:00	5225	109.038	hl	30	0	0	109.038	109.038	109.038	109.038	436.152	1	

Example for time stamp: 18.09.2017 23:15:00 54,468

4.17.4 CSV_simple.xsl

XML file

Execution file: Output folder: TskExportCSV_simple.cmd C:\EnMRPO\GUI\EDIEL\EXPORT

In a simplified style sheet, only the measured values (VALUE) including time stamp (VALUEDATE), ID number (MESS_ID) and acquisition state (STATE_ACQ) are exported to a CSV file. The time stamps of the measured values are entered in UTC time.

.4	A	В	С	D
1	VALUEDATE	MESS_ID	VALUE	STATE_ACQ
2	18.09.2017 22:15:00	5225	54.468	0
3	18.09.2017 22:30:00	5225	109.038	0
4	18.09.2017 22:45:00	5225	54.366	0
5	18.09.2017 23:00:00	5225	54.468	0
6	18.09.2017 23:15:00	5225	54.876	0
7	18.09.2017 23:30:00	5225	108.528	0
8	18.09.2017 23:45:00	5225	54.468	0
9	19.09.2017 00:00:00	5225	109.038	0

Example for time stamp: 18.09.2017 22:15:00 54,468

4.17.5 CSV_V6Style.xsl

XML file

Execution file: Output folder: TskExportCSV_V6.cmd C:\EnMRPO\GUI\EDIEL\EXPORT

This style sheet was created to export the information in the SIMATIC B.Data V6 format. A CSV file is created once again, whereby the time stamps of the values are entered in local time.

A In		В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1 I I	
1	COMP_LEVEL	MSJO_DATUM	ZEIT_ID	MESS_ID	MSJO_WERT	MSJO_INTERVALL	MSJO_DGUELTIG	STER_FLAG	STKO_FLAG	
2	2100	19.09.2017 00:15:00	1002	5225	54.468	900	900	0		0
3	2100	19.09.2017 00:30:00	1002	5225	109.038	900	900	0		0
4	2100	19.09.2017 00:45:00	1002	5225	54.366	900	900	0		0
5	2100	19.09.2017 01:00:00	1002	5225	54.468	900	900	0		0
6	2100	19.09.2017 01:15:00	1002	5225	54.876	900	900	0		0
7	2100	19.09.2017 01:30:00	1002	5225	108.528	900	900	0		0
8	2100	19.09.2017 01:45:00	1002	5225	54.468	900	900	0		0
9	2100	19.09.2017 02:00:00	1002	5225	109.038	900	900	0		0

Example for time stamp: 19.09.2017 00:15:00 54,468

4.17.6 StandardCSV.xsl

XML file

Execution file:	TskExportXML.cmd
Output folder:	C:\EnMRPO\GUI\EDIEL\EXPORT

This style sheet exports all columns of the data model as a CSV file. All time stamps are in UTC time in this case.

1	A		C.	D	. t				н.	1	1	К.	1	M	N	0		Q		5
1	COMP_LEVEL	ALUEDATE	MESS_ID	WALUE	ENH_KTERT	STATE_V	AL STATE	ACQ STA	TE_COF	R ENTRYDATE	MIN	MINDATE	MAX	MAXDATE	AVG .	SUM	PVALUE	OFFSET	VERSION	TEXT
2	2300 3	8.09.3017 22:15:00	5225	54.468	N		30	0		0 24.11.2016 13:26:30	54.468	18.09.2017 22:15:00	54.468	18.09.2017 22:15:00	54.468	54.468	217.872	1	01.01.0001 00:00:00	9
3	2300 3	8.09.201722:30:00	5225	109.038	N		30	0		0 24.31.2016 13:26:30	109.038	18.09.2017 22:30:00	109.038	18.09.2017 22:30:00	309.038	109.038	436.152	1	01.01.0001 00:00:00	p
4	2300 3	8.09.201722:45:00	5225	54.366	N		30	0		0 24.11.2016 13:26:30	54,366	18.09.2017 22:45:00	54.366	18.09.2017 22:45:00	54.366	54,366	217,464		01.01.0001 00:00:00	2
5	2300 3	8.09.201723:00:00	5225	54.468	hi		30	0		0 34.11.2016 13:26:30	54,468	18.09.2017 23:00:00	58.468	18-09-2017 23:00:00	54.468	54.468	217.872		01.01.0001 00:00:00	5
4	2300 3	8.09.2017 23:15:00	5225	54.876	hi		30	0		0 24.11.2016 13:28:30	54.876	18.09.2017 23:15:00	54.876	18.09.2017 23:15:00	54.876	54.876	219.504	1	01.01.0001 00-00-00	9
7	2300 3	8.09.201723:30:00	5225	108.528	N		30	0		0 24.11.2016 13:26:10	108.528	18-09-2017 23:30:00	108.528	18.09.2017 23:30:00	208.528	108.528	434.112	1	01-01-0001-00-00-00	p
4	2300 3	8.09.201723:45:00	5225	54.468	N		30	0		0 24.11.2016 13:26:30	54.468	18.09.2017 23:45:00	54.468	18.09.2017 23:45:00	54.468	54.468	217.872		01.01.0001 00:00:00	5
9	2300 3	9.09.201700:00:00	5225	109.038	ni		30	0		0 24.11.2016 13:26:10	309.038	29.09.201700:00:00	309.058	19.09.2017 00:00:00	209.038	109.038	436.152	1	01.01.0001 00:00:00	5

Example for time stamp: 18.09.2017 22:15:00 54,468

4.17.7 Selecting a personal XML style sheet

Requirements

- You have created a personal XML style sheet.
- The XML style sheet is available in the XML Stylesheet directory of the Energy Manager.

File storage and file names

The task executes a CMD file. This CMD file contains information that are necessary for export as well as information on where the XML file is to be stored. You can locate the individual CMD files in the Task object using the "Manage" button.

Ex Ex	ecutable Tasks		ß				×
Id	د Name	De	Execution File	Active	-	New	
44	Export values to Archiv (delete option)	Ехр	TskArchive.cmd	\checkmark			
45	Export with style sheet standard XML	Ехр	TskExportXML.cmd			Edit	
47	Export with stylesheet CSV (only UTC)	Ехр	TskExportCSV_simple.cmd			Delete	
46	Export with stylesheet CSV (UTC)	Ехр	TskExportCSV.cmd				
					<u> </u>		
			ОК	Apply		Cancel	

Use the following "Edit" buttons to define in the CMD file which of the CSV style sheets you want to use. For example, when you want to use your own style sheets.

Executable Task X Name: Export with stylesheet CSV (UTC Description: Export with style sheet standard CSV (I Command Line: TskExportCSV.cm ✓ Active Edit Cmd File × Name: TskExportCSV.cmd SET EXE="C:\EnMPRO\GUI\BData2008\TaskInitiator.exe" SET LOGFILE="C:\EnMPRO\GUI\Logdateien\%~n0.log" SET STYLESHEET="C:\EnMPRO\GUI\Export XML\StandardCSV.xsl" %EXE% /Function DataExport /NodeID %1 /s %STYLESHEET% /CompVer 7 /l %LOGFILE% l Z Cancel

The XML file that is generated by default is converted into a CSV file using the style sheets.

The file name is made up of the following components:

• "Consecutive number"_"Object name"_"From"_"To".csv

Example: 000000963_d_Active energy_Reference_Cell10_20211115000000_20211120000000.csv

Export_"Task ID"_From"_"To".xml

Example: Export_000018624_20211101000000_20211201000000.xml

By default, the exported file is stored in the directory "EnMPRO\GUI\EDIEL":

To use a different directory, change the directory in the Full Client options. Proceed as follows:

- 1. Click the "File" tab.
- 2. Click "Options".
- 3. Open the "DB" tab and look for the entry "EXPORT_PATH".

4.18 SAP interface

4.18.1 DTD for the ERP interface

DTD structure (data type definition)

The following tables show the DTD structure from which the XML file is created. Using this DTD you can map the attributes in the ERP system.

Table 4-8 DTD for ERP objects

DTD	Comment
xml version="1.0" encoding="ISO-8859-1" standalone="no" ?	
bdata-export [</td <td></td>	
ELEMENT bdata-export (measurements, measurevalues)	
ATTLIST bdata-export</td <td>Definition of time range to be exported.</td>	Definition of time range to be exported.
export-version CDATA #REQUIRED	Export version of time range
export-id CDATA #REQUIRED	Unique export ID
from CDATA #REQUIRED	Export start time (local time)
to CDATA #REQUIRED	Export end time (local time)
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of interval definition
>	
ELEMENT costcentre-relations (costcentre-relation)+	
ELEMENT costcentre-relation (description,properties)	Definition of cost center relation
ELEMENT description (#PCDATA)	
ATTLIST costcentre-relation</td <td>ID of the Energy Manager cost center relation</td>	ID of the Energy Manager cost center relation
id CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of the Energy Manager cost center relation
name CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of the Energy Manager source cost center
source-costcentre CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of the Energy Manager target cost center
dest-costcentre CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of business unit in ERP system
business-unit CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of cost center relation in ERP system
costcentre-relation-extern-label CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of source cost center in ERP system
source-costcentre-extern-label CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of destination cost center in ERP system
dest-costcentre-extern-label CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of business unit in ERP system
business-unit-extern-label CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of service type in ERP system
cost-element-extern-label CDATA #REQUIRED	
personnel-number CDATA #REQUIRED	Personnel number
accounting-day CDATA #IMPLIED	Entry date, e.g. "14" (optional)
>	
ELEMENT properties (property)+	
ELEMENT property (#PCDATA)	
ATTLIST property</td <td>Properties of the data point</td>	Properties of the data point

DTD	Comment
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of the Energy Manager property
name CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of the Energy Manager property
value-type CDATA #REQUIRED	Data type of the Energy Manager property;
	Value range from 1 to 5:
	• 1: String;
	• 2: Float;
	• 3: Date/time;
	• 4: Integer;
value CDATA #REQUIRED	• 5: String
>	Value of the Energy Manager property
ELEMENT measurements (measurement)+	
ELEMENT measurement (description, measurevalues)	
ELEMENT description (#PCDATA)	
ATTLIST measurement</td <td>Definition of data point</td>	Definition of data point
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of data point
name CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of the data point
unit CDATA #REQUIRED	Unit of data point
loggen CDATA #IMPLIED	Logging in database (optional)
dapu-adr CDATA #IMPLIED	Name of data point in the Energy Manager database
ident CDATA #IMPLIED	(optional)
>	Additional ID of data point (optional)
ELEMENT measurevalues (val)+	
ELEMENT val (#PCDATA)	
ATTLIST val</td <td></td>	

Reference

4.18 SAP interface

DTD	Comment
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of data point
time CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp in local time
normtime CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp in normal time
isdst CDATA #REQUIRED	Summer/Winter time (TRUE = daylight saving time)
comp CDATA #IMPLIED	Compression level
value CDATA #REQUIRED	Value
valuedate CDATA #REQUIRED	Interval between the values in seconds
state-val CDATA #REQUIRED	Validity between the intervals
state-acq CDATA #REQUIRED	Acquisition quality in Energy Manager
state-corr CDATA #REQUIRED	Correction quality in Energy Manager
entrytime CDATA #REQUIRED	Date/Time of value generation; only partially availa-
mintime CDATA #REQUIRED	ble
minvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp of the minimum value in the interval
maxtime CDATA #REQUIRED	Minimum value in the interval
maxvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp of the maximum value in the interval
avg CDATA #REQUIRED	Maximum value in the interval
sum CDATA #REQUIRED	Mean value in the interval
pvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	Power value in the interval
offset CDATA #REQUIRED	
version CDATA #REQUIRED	
textvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	
>	
>	

Table 4- 9	DTD for derived data	a points
------------	----------------------	----------

DTD	Comment
xml version="1.0" encoding="ISO-8859-1" standalone="no" ?	
bdata-export [</td <td></td>	
ELEMENT bdata-export (measurements, measurevalues)	
ATTLIST bdata-export</td <td>Definition of time range to be exported.</td>	Definition of time range to be exported.
export-version CDATA #REQUIRED	Export version of time range
export-id CDATA #REQUIRED	Unique export ID
from CDATA #REQUIRED	Export start time (local time)
to CDATA #REQUIRED	Export end time (local time)
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of interval definition
>	
ELEMENT measurements (measurement)+	
ELEMENT measurement (description, measurevalues)	
ELEMENT description (#PCDATA)	
ATTLIST measurement</td <td>Definition of data point</td>	Definition of data point
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of data point
name CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of the data point
unit CDATA #REQUIRED	Unit of data point
loggen CDATA #IMPLIED	Logging in database (optional)
dapu-adr CDATA #IMPLIED	Name of data point in the Energy Manager database
ident CDATA #IMPLIED	(optional)
>	Additional ID of data point (optional)
ELEMENT properties (property)+	
ELEMENT property (#PCDATA)	
ATTLIST property</td <td>Properties of the data point</td>	Properties of the data point
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of the Energy Manager property
name CDATA #REQUIRED	Name of the Energy Manager property
value-type CDATA #REQUIRED	Data type of the Energy Manager property;
	Value range from 1 to 5:
	• 1: String;
	• 2: Float;
	• 3: Date/time;
	• 4: Integer;
value CDATA #REOUIRED	• 5: String
>	Value of the Energy Manager property
ELEMENT measurevalues (val)+	
ELEMENT val (#PCDATA)	
ATTLIST val</td <td></td>	

Reference

4.18 SAP interface

DTD	Comment
id CDATA #REQUIRED	ID of data point
time CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp in local time
normtime CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp in normal time
isdst CDATA #REQUIRED	Summer/Winter time (TRUE = daylight saving time)
comp CDATA #IMPLIED	Compression level
value CDATA #REQUIRED	Value
valuedate CDATA #REQUIRED	Interval between the values in seconds
state-val CDATA #REQUIRED	Validity between the intervals
state-acq CDATA #REQUIRED	Acquisition quality in Energy Manager
state-corr CDATA #REQUIRED	Correction quality in Energy Manager
entrytime CDATA #REQUIRED	Date/Time of value generation; only partially availa-
mintime CDATA #REQUIRED	ble
minvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp of the minimum value in the interval
maxtime CDATA #REQUIRED	Minimum value in the interval
maxvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	Time stamp of the maximum value in the interval
avg CDATA #REQUIRED	Maximum value in the interval
sum CDATA #REQUIRED	Mean value in the interval
pvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	Power value in the interval
offset CDATA #REQUIRED	
version CDATA #REQUIRED	
textvalue CDATA #REQUIRED	
>	
>	

Example of an exported XML file

The following figure shows an XML file exported from Energy Manager via the SAP interface. The file name is made up of the following components as standard:

<Definition in the interval definition>_<ID of interval definition>_<FROM>_<TO>.xml

xml version="1.0"</th <th>" encoding="UTF-8"?></th>	" encoding="UTF-8"?>
bdata-e</td <td>choqx</td>	choqx
- <bdata-export export<="" td=""><td>rt-version="1" export-id="71" to="2021.11.30T23:00:00Z" from="2021.10.31T23:00:00Z" id="18624"></td></bdata-export>	rt-version="1" export-id="71" to="2021.11.30T23:00:00Z" from="2021.10.31T23:00:00Z" id="18624">
- <measurem< td=""><td>ent id="5504" zoneoffset="PT1H" timezoneid="W. Europe Standard Time" ident="" loggen="0" unit="EUR" name="a_FA_cst_total_1d"></td></measurem<>	ent id="5504" zoneoffset="PT1H" timezoneid="W. Europe Standard Time" ident="" loggen="0" unit="EUR" name="a_FA_cst_total_1d">
- <pre>cpropen</pre>	operty id="25000" name="Business Unit" value="DI FA HMI ISW" value-type="1"/>
<pre><pre>pre</pre></pre>	operty id="25001" name="Cost Element" value="PH1" value-type="1"/>
<pre>cpre</pre>	operty id="25002" name="Destination Cost Center" value="CC01" value-type="1"/>
<pre>cpre</pre>	operty id="25003" name="Source Cost Center" value="CC Source" value-type="1"/>
<td>rties></td>	rties>
- <measur< td=""><td>revalues></td></measur<>	revalues>
<val< td=""><td>/id="5504" value="25981.6942831463" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:002" offset="1" pvalue="1082.5705951311"</td></val<>	/id="5504" value="25981.6942831463" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:002" offset="1" pvalue="1082.5705951311"
1	sum="25981.6942831463" avg="25981.6942831463" maxvalue="25981.6942831463" maxtime="2021.11.01T23:00:00Z"
1	minvalue="25981.6942831463" mintime="2021.11.01T23:00:00Z" entrytime="2021.11.16T12:50:26Z" state-corr="0" state-car="0" state-val="50"
	comp="2100" valuedate="2021.11.01T23:00:00Z" isdst="faise" normtime="2021.11.02T00:00:00" time="2021.11.02T00:00:00"/>
<val< td=""><td>id="5504" value="34508.8387559622" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:002" offset="1" pvalue="1437.86828149843"</td></val<>	id="5504" value="34508.8387559622" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:002" offset="1" pvalue="1437.86828149843"
5	sum="34508.8387559622" avg="34508.8387559622" maxvalue="34508.8387559622" maxtime="2021.11.02T23:00:00Z"
	minvalue="34508.8387559622" mintime="2021.11.02T23:00:002" entrytime="2021.11.16T12:50:262" state-corr="0" state-acq="0" state-val="50" comp="2100" valuedate="2021.11.02T23:00:002" isot="false" normime="2021.11.03T00:00:00" time="2021.11.03T00:00:00"/>
<val< td=""><td>id="5504" value="27557.8332631162" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:00Z" offset="1" pvalue="1148,24305262984"</td></val<>	id="5504" value="27557.8332631162" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:00Z" offset="1" pvalue="1148,24305262984"
1	sum="27557.8332631162" avg="27557.8332631162" maxvalue="27557.8332631162" maxtime="2021.11.03T23:00:002"
	minvalue="27557.8332631162" mintime="2021.11.03T23:00:002" entrytime="2021.11.16T12:50:262" state-corr="0" state-val="50" comp="2100" valuedate="2021.11.03T23:00:007" isdst="false" normtime="2021.11.04T00:00:00" time="2021.11.04T00:00:00"/>
eval	id="\$504" value="31157.5355268661" textvalue=" version="0001.01.01T00:00:007" offset="1" ovalue="1298.23064695275"
	sum="31157_5355268661" ava="31157_5355268661" maxvalue="31157_5355268661" maxtime="2021.11.04723:00:007"
	minvalue="31157.53552686661" mintime="2021.11.04T23:00:00Z" entrytime="2021.11.16T12:50:26Z" state-corr="0" state-acq="0" state-val="50"
5	comp="2100" valuedate="2021.11.04T23:00:00Z" isdst="false" normtime="2021.11.05T00:00:00" time="2021.11.05T00:00:00"/>
<val< td=""><td>i id="5504" value="29827.1068347272" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:002" offset="1" pvalue="1242.79611811363"</td></val<>	i id="5504" value="29827.1068347272" textvalue="" version="0001.01.01T00:00:002" offset="1" pvalue="1242.79611811363"
1	sum="29827.1068347272" avg="29827.1068347272" maxvalue="29827.1068347272" maxtime="2021.11.05T23:00:002"
	minvalue="29827.1068347272" mintime="2021.11.05T23:00:00Z" entrytime="2021.11.16T12:50:26Z" state-corr="0" state-acq="0" state-val="50" comp="2100" valuedate="2021.11.05T23:00:00Z" isdst="false" normtime="2021.11.06T00:00:00" time="2021.11.06T00:00:00"/>

4.19 Dashboard objects

4.19.1 Configuring the dashboard

You can configure the Dashboard as follows:

Y		Diagram pro	opertys	×
Document din	nensions			
Height	680	Nidth	900	
Background				
Image	(none) 🔎 🌑			
Image layout	Tile			•
Style		•		
Line				
Style	1			
Color	1			
Grid				
Horizontal	10	Vertical	10	
Global docum	ent font			
Microsoft Sans	s Serif; 10 🧹			
Global Sankey	/ object configura	ation		
Refresh cycle	60 [sec]	Timeshift	180 [sec]	
			ОК	Cancel

Settings	Description
Document size	Sets the Dashboard size in pixels.
Background	Sets the Dashboard background.
	You may use a background image of the "*.bmp", "*.jpg", "*.gif", or "*.png" format from your file system for the Dashboard.
Line	Sets the border style for the Dashboard.
Grid	Sets the Dashboard grid that is used to align the dashboard objects.
Global document font	Sets the font and font size for the Dashboard.
Global Sankey object configu- ration	Sets the update cycle for Sankey objects.

See also

Creating the dashboard layout (Page 310)

4.19.2 Configuring the time range

You can configure the time range for dashboard objects as follows:

		Pie Chart		
Datapoints Tim	e Frame Parameter			
imeframe				
💿 dynamic da	te:			
Querytype:	Month currrent			
Offset:	0			
Example: D	ata selection from 01.03.2014 00:00:00	0 to 01.04.2014 00:00:00		
🔿 fixed date (#	Ad hoc):			
From:	01.03.2014 00:00:00 💽 To: 01.	04.2014 00:00:00 💌		
🔘 from DateTi	me-Picker.			
		*		
omn Loual Filto	r Entruchuco			
omp Lever Fille	r. Entry values			
bject refresh				
tefresh cycle	5 [sec]			
			OK	Consol

Settings	Description
Dynamic time range	Sets a default query type, for example, "Curr. month".
	In this case, the dashboard object evaluates the values of the current month.
Fixed time range (ad hoc)	Sets a customizable time range.
	In this case, the dashboard object evaluates the values of the defined period.
From time selection object	Uses the period from the "Time selection" object with the specified number.
Display value for last cycle	Displays the value of the last cycle.
(only for "Gauge" dashboard object)	
Compression level filter	Sets the type of values to display in the dashboard object, for example, "Daily values".
	In this case, the dashboard object displays the daily values of a measured value series. Re- quirement: The daily values must be available in the system.
Object update	Defines the update interval for the dashboard object.

See also

Configuring dashboard objects (Page 313)

4.19.3 Rounded rectangle

Function

Inserts a rounded rectangle into the Dashboard.

Usage

Use the "Rounded rectangle" dashboard object for your Dashboard style.

Example



- ① Rounded rectangle with text caption for a group of dashboard objects
- 2 Rounded rectangle as group of dashboard objects to form a picture

Necessary settings

None

Reference

4.19 Dashboard objects

Optional settings

ť	Round	Rectangle		x
Size Height	30 V	Vidth	164	
Border Width	1 Radius	5 Color		
Fillstyle	<u>/</u>			
Label				
Text	Compressor			ŷ
Fontcolorstyle		2		
Fontsize	12 🖌 Bo	d Italic		
Alignment	O Top-Left	⊖Top-Center	⊖Top-Right	
	OLeft	Center	◯Right	
	O Bottom-Left	O Bottom-Cent	er 🔵 Bottom-Rigl	ht
		ок	Cancel	

- Set the size of the dashboard object.
- Set the border style.
- Set the fill color.
- Set the caption, the text style and the text alignment for the dashboard object.

4.19.4 Ellipsis

Function

Inserts an ellipsis into the Dashboard.

Usage

Use the "Ellipsis" dashboard object for your Dashboard style.

Example



Necessary settings

None

Optional settings

Ϋ́		Ellipse		×
Size Height	115	Width	260	
Linestyle Width	1 Color	1		
Fillstyle	/			
Label				
Text	Ellipse			$\hat{}$
Fontcolorstyle		1		
Fontsize	13 🖌	Bold Italic		
_	_		<u>Annual</u>	_
		UK	Cancel	

- Set the size of the dashboard object.
- Set the border style.
- Set the fill color.
- Set the caption and text style for the dashboard object.

Reference

4.19 Dashboard objects

4.19.5 Line

Function

Inserts a line into the Dashboard.

Usage

Use the "Line" dashboard object for your Dashboard style.

Example



Necessary settings

None

Optional settings

ť –	Line
Line Width	1 Color
Headdeco	prator
Size	Height 1 Width 1
Shape	Diamond
Linestyle	Width 1 Color
Taildecor	ator
Size	Height 1 Width 1
Shape	Diamond
Linestyle	Width 1 Color
	OK Cancel

- Set the line style.
- Set a separate arrow style for the start and end of the line.
4.19.6 Polyline

Function

Inserts a polyline into the Dashboard.

Usage

Use the "Polyline" dashboard object for your Dashboard style.

Example



Necessary settings

none

Optional settings

¥	Polyline ×
Add point	Add
Line Width	1 Color
Headdeco	prator
Size	Height 1 Width 1
Shape	None
Linestyle	Width Color
Taildecor	ator
Size	Height 1 Width 1
Shape	None
Linestyle	Width Color
	OK Cancel

- Add a new point if you want to add an extra line to the polyline.
- Set the line style.
- Set a separate arrow style for the start and end of the polyline.

Reference

4.19 Dashboard objects

4.19.7 Image

Function

Inserts a graphic image into the Dashboard.

Application

Use the "Image" dashboard object to insert a graphic image from your file system into the Dashboard.

Example



Necessary settings

۲		Image			×
Linestyle Width	1 Color		1		
Size Height	120	Width		135	
Image (none) 🔎					
		OK		Cancel	

• Go to "Image" to select a graphic object in "*.bmp", "*.jpg", "*.gif", or "*.png" format from your file system.

The selected graphic image is saved to the Energy Manager database.

Optional settings

- Set the border style.
- Set the size of the graphic image.

4.19.8 Traffic light

Function

Inserts a traffic light object into the Dashboard to visualize the status of data point values.

This dashboard object evaluates the limit configured in the data point and displays the status of the values with color code. The following states are possible:

- Green: The data point values do not exceed the range of the configured limit.
- Red: The configured data point limit is exceeded.

In the dashboard object configuration, you may define an additional warning limit that is indicated by the following state:

• Yellow: The data point values are still in the valid range but are approaching the configured limit.

Note

Configuring data points

Configure the plausibility settings of the data point to use this dashboard object in the Dashboard.

These plausibility settings are activated in the dashboard object configuration.

Usage

Use the "Traffic light" dashboard object, for example, to visualize the status of the values of a measured value series in the form of a traffic light.

Example



① The traffic light is red: The specified limit of a measured value series was exceeded.

4.19 Dashboard objects

Necessary settings

• Go to the "Data acquisition" field to select the data point that contains the values to be evaluated using the traffic light.

¥			Т	raffic light			×
Datapoint	Time Fram	e Plausibil	itv Lavout				
Data acqu	Data acquisition						
Datapoint	Datapoint d Electricity Production					-	
	Datacycle:	2638000	Unit: kW h		144353		
					ОК	Cancel	

• Go to "Plausibility" to activate the limit to which the dashboard object has to respond.

		Aktiv
Obergrenze:	11000	4
Obere Warngrenze:	8008	
Untere Warngrenze:	1000	
Untergrenze:	0	
Compare With:		
	Another Time Period	o 1 Monat 👻 🖵
	O Reference Object	*
	Obergrenze	0
		Absolut -
	Untergrenze	0

Note

The dashboard object returns the "Red" status if only one of the limits you activated in the "Plausibility" setting is exceeded. The evaluation is not particularly helpful in this situation.

For this reason, evaluate only one limit per dashboard object. Create additional dashboard objects for further evaluations.

Optional settings

- Go to "Plausibility" to activate the comparison set in the data point with the same data point in a different time period or with a different data point.
- Select the "Alignment" tab to set the size, border and background color for the dashboard object.

See also

4.19.9 Value

Function

Displays the current data point value in the Dashboard.

This dashboard object is also capable of evaluating the limit configured in the data point and of visualizing the values with color code. The following states are possible:

- Configured background color: The data point values do not exceed the range of the configured limit.
- Red: The configured data point limit is exceeded.

In the dashboard object configuration, you may define an additional warning limit that is indicated by the following state:

• Yellow: The data point values are still in the valid range but are approaching the configured limit.

Note

Configuring data points

Configure the plausibility settings of the data point to use this dashboard object in the Dashboard.

These plausibility settings are applied during configuration of the dashboard object.

Usage

Use the "Value" dashboard object to display the actual value of the most recent period of a measured value series.

Example



• Go to the "Data acquisition" field to select the data point that contains the value to be displayed.



Optional settings

- Display the unit of the data point by selecting the "Show unit" check box.
- Set the update cycle for the dashboard object.

The update cycle is set to five seconds by default.

Note

Specifying the update cycle

You cannot set an update cycle that is shorter than five seconds.

These plausibility settings are activated in the dashboard object configuration.

• Go to "Plausibility" to activate the limit to which the dashboard object has to respond and to visualize the values with color code.

		Aktiv
Obergrenze:	11000	v
Obere Warngrenze:	8000	
Untere Warngrenze:	1000	
Untergrenze:	0	
	Another Time Period Reference Object	0 1 Monat 🚽 🗖
	Obergrenze	0
		Absolut 👻

Note

The dashboard object returns the "Red" status if only one of the limits you activated in the "Plausibility" setting is exceeded. The evaluation is not particularly helpful in this situation.

For this reason, evaluate only one limit per dashboard object. Create additional dashboard objects for further evaluations.

- Go to "Plausibility" to activate the comparison set in the data point with the same data point in a different time period or with a different data point.
- Select the "Layout" tab to set the size, fill color, border style and text style for the dashboard object.

4.19.10 Value difference

Function

This dashboard object displays the status of the values with color code and evaluates the plausibility setting "Comparison with" configured in the data point. The following states and comparison types are possible:

- Status:
 - Configured background color: The data point values do not exceed the range of the configured limit.
 - Yellow: The data point values are still in the valid range but are approaching the configured limit.
 - Red: The configured data point limit is exceeded.
- Comparison type:
 - "Another Time Period": Compares the current value of a data point with a time-shifted value of the same data point.
 - "Reference Object": Compares the current value of a data point with the value of a reference data point.

Note

Configuring data points

Configure the plausibility settings of the data point to use this dashboard object in the Dashboard.

These plausibility settings are activated in the dashboard object configuration.

Usage

Use the "Value difference" dashboard object to display the comparison of the values of two measured value series.

Example

772	kWh
890	kWh

4.19 Dashboard objects

Necessary settings

• Go to the "Data acquisition" field to select the data point that contains the values to be visualized.

1	Value Diff ×
Datapoint	TimeFrame Plausibility Layout
Data acqui	isition
Datapoint	d_Electricity_Production
Show unit	Datacycle: 2638000 Unit: KWh Datapoint ID : 144353 t
	OK Cancel

- Under "Plausibility" activate the limits to which the dashboard object has to respond.
- Under "Compare With", activate the comparison type set in the configuration of the data point.

			Aktiv
Obergrenze:	11000		
Obere Warngrenze:	8000		
Untere Warngrenze:	1000		
Untergrenze:	0		
Compare With:			
	Another Time Period	o 1 Mona	t 🔽 🗌
	O Reference Object		*
	Obergrenze	0	
	Untergrenze	Absolut 0	T
		ОК	Abbreche

Optional settings

- Display the unit of the data point by activating the "Show unit" check box.
- Select the "Alignment" tab to set the size, fill color, border style and text style for the dashboard object.

See also

4.19.11 Time selection

Function

Changes the time range for dashboard object assigned to the "Time selection" object.

You can assign the "Time selection" dashboard object to several dashboard objects. But you can only assign a dashboard object to exactly one "Time selection" dashboard object.

Usage

Use the "Time selection" dashboard object if you want to adapt the time range for one or more dashboard objects during runtime of the dashboard.

Example

The figure below shows the "Line chart" dashboard object with the "Time selection" dashboard object positioned underneath.



- ① Scrolls back or forth one period.
- ② Specifies the query type, e.g., "Ad hoc"
- ③ Defines the time range depending on the selected query type.

Define the query type and time range in the "Time selection" dashboard object that are displayed in the assigned dashboard object when the dashboard is started:

¥	Picker
Time Frame	
Timeframe	
💿 dynamic dat	e:
Querytype:	Week
Offset:	0
Example: Da	ta selection from 24.03.2014 00:00:00 to 31.03.2014 00:00:00
🔵 fixed date (A	d hoc):
From:	24.03.2014 00:00:00 💌 To: 31.03.2014 00:00:00 💌

Assign the "Time selection" dashboard object to the dashboard object using its ID:



4.19.12 Status

Function

Displays the state of values of a data point in the Dashboard.

This dashboard object evaluates the limit configured in the data point and displays the status of the values with color code. The following states are possible:

- Green: The data point values do not exceed the range of the configured limit.
- Red: The configured data point limit is exceeded.

In the dashboard object configuration, you may define an additional warning limit that is indicated by the following state:

• Yellow: The data point values are still in the valid range but are approaching the configured limit.

Note

Configuring data points

Configure the plausibility settings of the data point to use this dashboard object in the Dashboard.

These plausibility settings are activated in the dashboard object configuration.

Usage

You can use the "Status" dashboard object to visualize the value states of a measured value series in the Dashboard.

Example



• Go to the "Data acquisition" field to select the data point with the status to be visualized.

¥	State
Datapoint	TimeFrame Plausibility Layout
Data acqu	isition
Datapoint	d_Electricity_Production
	Datacycle: 2638000 Unit: kWh Datapoint ID : 144353
	OK Cancel

• Go to "Plausibility" to activate the limit to which the dashboard object has to respond.

	Aktiv
ergrenze: 11000	
ere Warngrenze: 8000	
tere Warngrenze: 1000	
tergrenze:	
mpare With: Another Time Period Reference Object	t •
Obergrenze	
ADSULU	T

Note

The dashboard object returns the "Red" status if only one of the limits you activated in the "Plausibility" setting is exceeded. The evaluation is not particularly helpful in this situation. For this reason, evaluate only one limit per dashboard object. Create additional dashboard objects for further evaluations.

Reference

4.19 Dashboard objects

Optional settings

- Go to "Plausibility" to activate the comparison set in the data point with the same data point in a different time period or with a different data point.
- Select the "Alignment" tab to set the size and border style for the dashboard object.

See also

4.19.13 Bar chart

Function

Inserts a bar chart into the Dashboard.

Usage

Use the "Bar chart" dashboard object to visualize the values of one or several measured value series in the form of a bar chart.

Example



Reference

4.19 Dashboard objects

Necessary settings

Datapoints Time Frame Parameter Series1 Data source information Datacycle: 2638000 Datacycle: 2638000 Use Consumption Color Image: Color New Delete	Y	Bar Chart	×
Series1 Data source information Datapoint d_Electricity_Production Datacycle: 2638000 Legend Text Use Use Consumption Color Image: Color New Delete	Datapoints Time Frame Parameter		
Datapoint d_Electricity_Production Datacycle: 2638000 Legend Text Use Use Consumption Color Image: Color Image: Color Image: Color New Delete	Series1	Data source information	
Datacycle: 2638000 Unit: KWh: Datapoint ID: 144353 Legend Text Use Consumption Description Name Color Image: Color Ima		Datapoint d_Electricity_Production	•
Legend Text Use Consumption Color Image: Color		Datacycle: 2638000 Unit: KWh Datapoint ID : 144353	
Use Consumption Description Name Color Image: Color Image: Color Image: Color New Delete Image: Color Image: Color		Legend Text	
Color New Delete		Use Consumption	ODescription OName
New Delete		Color	
New Delete			
	New Delete		
O// Canad			
UK Canter		0K	Cancel

- Select "New" to set the number of measured value series to display in the bar chart.
- Assign a data point to each measured value series in the "Data source information" field.
- Set the time range to display in the bar chart.

Optional settings

- Activate the bar chart caption in the "Parameters" tab.
- Set the caption text for the bar chart in the "Datapoints" tab.
 - Activate "Use" and enter your caption text.
 - Activate "Description" if you want to use the description of the data point for the caption text.
 - Activate "Name" if you want to use the name of the data point for the caption text.
- Set the bar colors in the "Datapoints" tab.
- Set the diagram and text styles in the "Parameters" tab.

See also

4.19.14 Pie chart

Function

Inserts a pie chart into the Dashboard.

Usage

Use the "Pie Chart" dashboard object to visualize the values of one or several measured value series in the form of a pie chart.

Example



Reference

4.19 Dashboard objects

Necessary settings

×	Y Pie Chart
	Datapoints Time Frame Parameter
×	Point1 Data source information Point2 Datapoint d_consumption_plant_Hams_Hall Point3 Datacycle: 900 Unit: kWh Datapoint ID: 167743
OName	Point5 Legend Text Use Hams Hall Descri
	Layout Point color
	Bordercolor Borderwidth 1
Cancel	OK Delete
Cani	New Delete

- Select "New" to set the number of measured value series to display in the pie chart.
- Assign a data point to each measured value series in the "Data source information" field.
- Set the unit for displaying data point values in the pie chart, for example, "percent".
- Specify the period that you want to evaluate in the pie chart.

Optional settings

- Activate the pie chart caption in the "Parameters" tab.
- Set the caption text for the pie chart in the "Datapoints" tab.
 - Activate "Use" and enter your caption text.
 - Activate "Description" if you want to use the description of the data point for the caption text.
 - Activate "Name" if you want to use the name of the data point for the caption text.
- Set the bar colors in the "Datapoints" tab.
- Set the diagram and text styles in the "Parameters" tab.

See also

4.19.15 Line chart

Function

Inserts a line chart into the Dashboard.

Usage

Use the "Line Chart" dashboard object to visualize the values of one or several measured value series in the form of a line chart.

Example



Necessary settings

Series2	Data sour	ce information	
Series3	Datapoint	d_Electricity_Production	
		Datacycle: 2638000 Unit: KWh Datapoint ID: 144353	
	Legend Te	ext	
	Use 🖲	Qxford	ODescription ONam

4.19 Dashboard objects

- Select "New" to set the number of measured value series to display in the line chart.
- Assign a data point to each measured value series in the "Data source information" field.
- Set the time range to display in the bar chart.

Optional settings

- Activate the line chart caption in the "Parameters" tab.
- Set the caption text for the line chart in the "Datapoints" tab.
 - Activate "Use" and enter your caption text.
 - Activate "Description" if you want to use the description of the data point for the caption text.
 - Activate "Name" if you want to use the name of the data point for the caption text.
- Set the line colors and display width in the "Datapoints" tab.
- Set the diagram and text styles in the "Parameters" tab.

See also

4.19.16 Gauge

Function

Inserts a display instrument into the Dashboard to visualize the status of data point values.

Usage

Use the "Gauge" dashboard object to visualize the sum of the measured value series for the defined time period. Alternatively, you can also visualize the value of the last cycle.

Example



Necessary settings

nter1	Data source information
Charles and a second	Datapoint
	Datacycle: undefined Unit: undefined Datapoint ID : undefined
	Layout
	Barcolor 🗾 🗾

- Go to the "Data source information" field to select the data point that contains the values to be evaluated.
- Specify the period that you want to evaluate.

4.19 Dashboard objects

Optional settings

- Set the pointer color.
- Set the fill color and border style in the "Parameters" tab.
- Set the scale for the display instrument in the "Scale Parameter" section.
- Set the scale range in the "Scale Sections" section.

See also

4.19.17 Panel switch

Function

Inserts a button into the Dashboard that you can use to switch to another Dashboard .

Usage

Use the "Panel switch" dashboard object to distribute selected data to several dashboards. Use the new button to switch between these dashboards.

Example





- ① Dashboard 1: Represents the annual consumption of a company in kWh. The "Green Production Monitor" button returns you to dashboard 2 to show the monthly consumption.
- 2 Dashboard 2: The "Green Production Monitor II" button returns you to dashboard 1.

¥	Panel Switch ×
Border Width	1 Radius 15 Color
Button Layout	
Text	Switch to panel XXX
Fontcolorstyle	
Fontsize	10 Bold Italic
Backcolor	
Switch to panel	I
Plant Oxford	•
	OK Cancel

- At "Switch to...", select the Dashboard to which you want to switch using this button.
- Enter a caption text for the button in the "Alignment" field.

Optional settings

• Set the border and text styles.

4.19.18 Data table

Function

Inserts a table object into the Dashboard to visualize the values of one or several data points.

Usage

Use the "Data Table" dashboard object to display the values and time stamp of a measured value series of a specific time period in the form of a table.

Example

	TIMESTAMP	Water	Gas
•	06.11.2012 00:00:00	50	60
	07.11.2012 00:00:00	40	100
	08.11.2012 00:00:00	20	60
	09.11.2012 00:00:00	30	70

Necessary settings

Datapoints Time Frame Param	eter			
tem1	Data sourc	ce information		
	Datapoint	d_consumption_plant_Oxford		-
	Legend Te	Datacycle: 2638000 Unit: kWh Datapoint ID:	144353	
		Text		
	Use 🔾	d_consumption_plant_Oxford	ODescription	 Name
New Delet	e			

- Select "New" to set the number of data points to display in the table.
- Assign a data point to each entry in the "Data source information" field.
- Specify the period that you want to evaluate.

Optional settings

- Create the "Legend name".
 - Enter a text for the table header if you activate "Description".
 - The data point name is used for the table header if you activate "Name".
- Set the column color.
- Set the table style in the "Parameters" tab.

See also

Reference 4.19 Dashboard objects

4.19.19 Line for Sankey chart

Function

Inserts a line into the Sankey chart.

Usage

Use the "Line" dashboard object to visualize a quantity flow in the Sankey chart. The line width is proportional to the quantity.

Example



1 Power flow of a company

•	Line
Common	
Name Li	ne
Data acqu	isition
Datapoint	d_Water1_Compressor
	Datacycle: 900 Unit: kWh Datapoint ID: 129862
	Refresh cycle 900 [sec] Timeshift [[sec]
Flow Sele	ction
Flow Type	Energy 🗸

- Name the dashboard object.
- Go to the "Data acquisition" field to select the data point that contains the values to be visualized by the line.
- Select the flow type for the line in the "Flow selection" field, for example, "Electricity".

Optional settings

- You can create a new flow type in the "Flow selection" field and set the scaling.
- Specify the update cycle for the Sankey objects by entering the selected value in the Dashboard configuration. This value is activated for all Sankey objects.

The update cycle is set to five seconds by default.

Note

Specifying the update cycle

You cannot set an update cycle that is shorter than five seconds.

See also

Configuring the dashboard (Page 859)

Reference 4.19 Dashboard objects

4.19.20 Polyline for Sankey chart

Function

Inserts a polyline into the Sankey chart.

Usage

Use the "Polyline" dashboard object to visualize a quantity flow in the Sankey chart. The line width is proportional to the quantity.

Example



① Power flow of a company

	Polyline
Commo	on
Name	Polyline
Add po	int
	Add
Data ad	cauisition
Datapo	int d_Water2_Compressor
	Datacycle: 900 Unit: kWh Datapoint ID: 144348
	Refresh cycle 900 [sec] Timeshift 0 [sec]
Flow Se	
1104 0	
Flow Ty	pe Energy •
_	
	OK Cancel

- Name the dashboard object.
- Go to the "Data acquisition" field to select the data point that contains the values to be visualized by the line.
- Select the flow type for the line in the "Flow selection" field.

Optional settings

- You can create a new flow type in the "Flow selection" field and set the scaling.
- Add a new point if you want to add an extra line to the polyline.
- Specify the update cycle for the Sankey objects by entering the selected value in the Dashboard configuration. This value is activated for all Sankey objects.

The update cycle is set to five seconds by default.

Note

Specifying the update cycle

You cannot set an update cycle that is shorter than five seconds.

See also

Configuring the dashboard (Page 859)

4.19 Dashboard objects

4.19.21 Flow info

Function

Inserts a line or polyline into the Sankey chart.

Usage

You can use the "Flow info" dashboard object to display the name and value of a line or polyline in the Sankey chart.

Example



1 Flow quantity name

¥ .	Flow descriptor ×
Common	
Name Flow	descriptor
Border	
Width	1 Color
Layout	
Fontcolorstyle	
Font size	10 Bold Italic
Flow connect	tion
Choose Flow	Line [-]
Fill flow color	v
Show value	
Show unit	
	OK Cancel

- Name the dashboard object.
- Go to "Flow connections" and select the line you want to describe using the "Flow info" dashboard object.

Optional settings

- Set the border and text styles for the dashboard object.
- Activate the corresponding check box to display the value or unit in addition to the line name.

See also

Configuring the dashboard (Page 859)

Reference

4.19 Dashboard objects

4.19.22 Process

Function

Inserts a process step into the Sankey chart.

Usage

Use the "Process" dashboard object to visualize a process step for a quantity flow in the Sankey chart.

Example



① Process step "Transformer 10 kV" for the power and gas supply
Necessary settings

		Process	
Common			
Name Proces	s		
Size			
Height	105 Widt	h 105	
Border			
Width	1 Radius	15 Color	1
Fillstyle	1		
Label			
Text	RoundProcess		
Fontcolorstyle Fontsize	10 Bold	Italic	
Alignment	OTop-Left	O Top-Center	O Top-Right
	OLeft	 Center 	◯ Right
	OBottom-Left	O Bottom-Center	O Bottom-Right
Ports			
Edit Portlist	1		
		0	K Cancel

- Name the dashboard object.
- Enter a caption text for the dashboard object in the "Label" field.

Optional settings

- Set the size of the dashboard object.
- Set the border and text styles for the dashboard object.
- Set the fill color for the dashboard object.
- Adapt the ports list to define additional points for the line.

4.19.23 Process overview

Function

Calculates the difference between the inputs and outputs of a process step (delta calculation). The value "0" is the ideal result of this calculation. Other results indicate irregularities.

Example of two inputs and one output: Input 1 + Input 2 - Output = 0

Usage

Use the "Process overview" dashboard object to verify the result in the Sankey chart.

Necessary settings

¥.	Process Summary ×
Common	
Name Proc	ess Summary
Border	
Width	1 Color
Layout	
Fontcolorstyle	e
Font size	10 Bold Italic
Flow connec	tion
Choose process	Process
Choose Flow	×
Fill flow color	J
Show unit	
	OK Cancel
	a second s

- Name the dashboard object.
- Select the process step and the associated line at "Flow connection".

Optional settings

- Set the border and text styles for the dashboard object.
- Activate the corresponding check box to include the display of the unit or line color along with the process name.

The log files for all components except the tasks are stored in the "Installation directory\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\trace".

The log files for the tasks are stored in the "Installation directory\EnMPRO\GUI\Logdateien".

4.20.1 Kernel

Structure of the messages

All messages in the kernel log file are structured as follows: **Date|Time|Number: Alarm** The type of message is expressed by the number:

Number	Message type
1000	Information
2000	Warning
3000	Error

Starting the kernel

When the kernel is started, the following informational message is written to the log file when booting starts:

20190211 | 10:26:02:455 | 1000: ------20190211|10:26:02:455|1000: Email Error Reporter started with user defined warning level 'Severe'. Sending all messages >= 'Severe' to operator. 20190211|10:26:02:455|1000: MessageReporter Settings 20190211|10:26:02:455|1000: MaxSize = 50000 20190211|10:26:02:455|1000: Files = 1000 20190211|10:26:02:455|1000: LastUsed = 85 20190211|10:26:02:455|1000: BaseName = C:\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\trace\Kernel\tr 20190211|10:26:02:455|1000: -----20190211|10:26:02:471|1000: B.Data Kernel v702.00.500.53, Feb 1 2019 (23:14:25)... 20190211|10:26:02:486|1000: © Siemens AG, 2016. All rights reserved. 20190211|10:26:02:486|1000: Start Update-Subscription Worker 20190211|10:26:02:486|1000: no external startup processes configured 20190211|10:26:02:486|1000: Update-Subscription: poll interval 10000 20190211|10:26:02:486|1000: Please note: Daylight saving is on.

Reference

4.20 Log files

We are in time zone "W. Europe Standard Time"/"W. Europe Daylight Time", this means 3600 offset of GMT.

Please don't forget to get up on last Sun of Mar at 02:00:00 and advance your clock 3600 secs.

Never mind, you can sleep longer on last Sun of Oct.

On that day at 03:00:00 time changes back.

The kernel is then configured. At each data point, the kernel checks whether "Log to DB" is active.

The following message is written to the log file:

```
20190211|10:26:04:049|1000: create dblog d_PAC2200_E_Wh_T1_imp "5151" mode 1
```

The meaning of the important sections of the message can be found in the following table:

Message section	Meaning	
create dblog	Check where "Log to DB" is enabled	
d_PAC2200_e_Wh_T1_imp	Data point name	
mode	Test result:	
	• mode 0 = "Log to DB" not active	
	• mode 1 = "Log to DB" active	

The acquired values are only forwarded to the Acquisition service when "Log to DB" is enabled.

Once the kernel is ready to acquire values, the following message is written to the log file:

20181212|20:34:48:132|1000: sending all constants...

Kernel update event

When the configuration of a data point or interface changes, a kernel update event occurs. The following events cause a kernel update event:

- Changing the cycle time of a data point or interface
- Changing the data point name
- Changing the data point address

When a kernel update event occurs, the following message is written to the log file:

20190205|10:34:38:755|1000: Kernel: Update Event received!

The kernel then checks at each data point, as described above, whether "Log to DB" is active.

After the check, the changed data point and the corresponding interface are re-configured. The following message is written to the log file:

20190205|10:34:41:220|1000: Begin - Reconfiguration ------20190205|10:34:41:226|1000: Update Tags in Buffer (11026) 20190205|10:34:41:232|1000: changes -> Update-Tag (11027) 20190205|10:34:41:243|1000: Linkin 11027->11027 : Parameter 0 already linked. Replacing it. 20190205|10:34:41:248|1000: Create Tag: Id= 11027 (BufferId= 11026) 20190205|10:34:41:254|1000: OPC-UA: Configured cycle time for Opc-Ua buffer 'EnergySuite_IO' is 60 seconds 20190205|10:34:41:299|1000: Lastio of '11027' at 12.12.2018 20:29:00 20190205|10:34:41:344|1000: OPC-UA: Last IO for buffer was at 12.12.2018 20:29:00

20190205|10:34:41:391|1000: OPC-UA: WARNING: Creation of address <code>'ns=1;s=v|EnS_EnergyArchive\Ventilation_power'</code> for 11027 was not successful

20190205|10:34:41:437|1000: End - Reconfiguration------

Information on acquisition components

If values are transferred from an acquisition component, the following message is written to the log file:

20190206|10:04:25:170|1000: 2019-02-06 10:04:25 0-02:13:55 7296600 908.102/s (0s) 82

The meaning of the important sections of the message can be found in the following table:

Message section	Meaning
2019-02-06 10:04:25	Time stamp of acquisition
0-02:13:55	Time since the acquisition runs in the following format:
	Days-Hours:Minutes:Seconds
7296600	Number of measured values acquired since the acquisition component has been running.
908.102/s	Number of acquired values per second
(0s)	Time elapsed since the last measured value acquisition.
82	Number of measured values in the cache

Number of inserted values

If values are forwarded to the acquisition service, the following message is written to the log file:

20190205|13:34:41:437|1000: 500 numeric records inserted (32000 bytes)

In this example, "500" is the number of transmitted values and "32000 bytes" is the amount of data.

Process ID

Each channel has a unique process ID. Each message about a channel starts with the process ID of the channel in square brackets, as in the following example:

20190708|13:40:51:237|1000: [12508] ModBusDevice: OpenDevice: TCP/IP connection error

In this example, 12508 is the process ID.

If you filter the log file by the process ID in square brackets, only the messages of the corresponding channel are displayed.

Shutting down the kernel

When the kernel is stopped or restarted, the following message is written to the log file: 20190211|10:21:04:189|1000: Sending answer 'OK|Shutdown in progress' to client '' 20190211|10:21:04:194|1000: exit DELTAMANAGER 20190211 | 10:21:04:198 | 1000: Final Service Shutdown entered... 20190211|10:21:04:199|1000: Kernel: Update - Termination Event receive! 20190211|10:21:04:199|1000: Kernel: Update Thread stopped! 20190211|10:21:04:199|1000: Stop Requester (4632) (bfs modbus) ... 20190211|10:21:04:204|1000: Requester (4632) (bfs modbus) stopped ... 20190211|10:21:04:222|1000: Shut down database logger... 20190211|10:21:04:222|1000: Total Number of records stored: 82628 20190211 | 10:21:04:253 | 1000: Database Insertion thread stopped. 20190211|10:21:04:675|1000: shutdown ORA listener 20190211|10:21:04:768|1000: InsertionThread done. 20190211|10:21:04:768|1000: Wait for shutdown of database inserter succeeded 20190211|10:21:04:768|1000: flush C:\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\sink\Kernel\sink00000n.bfs ... 20190211|10:21:04:768|1000: Wrote 128 records (8192 bytes) to file C:\EnMPRO\GUI\mcl\sink\Kernel\sink00000n.bfs 20190211|10:21:04:768|1000: File Flush thread stopped. 20190211|10:21:05:284|1000: Wait for file flush thread succeeded 20190211|10:21:05:284|1000: Shut down command listener... 20190211 | 10:21:05:284 | 1000: SubscriptionWorkerThread stopped!

See also

Kernel fault (Page 740)

4.20.2 Acquisition service

The acquisition service is part of the acquisition component. There are several log files for the acquisition service. The acquisition service consists of several components, for each of which there is a log file.

The following table shows the various log files of the acquisition service and the tasks of the corresponding components.

Log file	Tasks
Compression	Compression, plausibility, gap detection
Synchronization	Synchronization of the local database of acquisition with the SQL server on the application server.
Raw File Provider	"Raw" files
Sink Data Importer	Imported "SINK" files
Data Deletion	Utilization of the local database, deletion of synchronized data
Acquisition Component Host	Management of acquisition service components
SQL Provider	Access to the local database of the acquisition

4.20.2.1 Compression

The "Compression" log file has a maximum size of 150 KB. The maximum number of log files is 100.

Startup of the component

The compression component is initialized after the acquisition service is started. The number of compression levels for each data point is logged as follows in the "Compression" log file:

```
2019-02-11 11:13:05,412 [ 5] [COP] - INFO - Initialize Compression
Component
2019-02-11 11:13:05,450 [ 5] [COP] - INFO - Load registry
settings...
2019-02-11 11:13:05,482 [ 5] [COP] - INFO - Load BData DB
settings...
2019-02-11 11:13:05,714 [21] [(null)] - INFO - LoginAccepted:
UserInfo= User ADMIN (505)
2019-02-11 11:13:06,969 [ 5] [COP] - INFO - Component Initialization
finished...
2019-02-11 11:13:06,971 [14] [COP] - INFO - Waiting until initial
configuration synchronisation is finished...
2019-02-11 11:13:11,973 [14] [COP] - INFO - Starting initialization
of compression configuration...
2019-02-11 11:13:12,173 [38] [(null)] - INFO - (PLSI) -
PlausibilityResult worker process started.
2019-02-11 11:13:12,178 [14] [COP] - INFO - Build Measurement list
2019-02-11 11:13:13,333 [14] [COP] - INFO - (SINK) - Cycle for open
sink data recalculation : 30000 [msec]
```

2019-02-11 11:13:13,480 [14] [COP] - INFO - [5621] - Compression configuration ended. Measurement contains 3 compression levels to calculate. 2019-02-11 11:13:13,491 [14] [COP] - INFO - [5623] - Compression configuration ended. Measurement contains 3 compression levels to calculate. 2019-02-11 11:13:13,507 [14] [COP] - INFO - [5624] - Compression configuration ended. Measurement contains 3 compression levels to calculate.

Reception of the acquired measured values

When measured values are acquired, the reception of the values from the kernel is confirmed with the following entry in the "Compression" log file:

2019-02-06 11:21:58,231 [13] [(null)] - INFO - Handle MemoryStream time : 06.02.2019 10:21:58 length : 32000 starting

Calculation of the compression (RCAL)

If a compressed interval is calculated, the interval and the number of compressed values are specified:

2019-02-14 10:30:14,031 [34] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [13230]* tCLevel:2105 ENDTIME:14.02.2019 09:30:00 in recalculation... 2019-02-14 10:30:14,048 [34] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [13230] 1 recalculation orders found 2019-02-14 10:30:14,059 [34] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [13230] fCLevel:2100 tCLevel:2105 fDT:14.02.2019 09:15:00 tDT:14.02.2019 09:30:00 in recalculation...

2019-02-14 10:30:14,138 [34] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [13230] - 467 msjoValues for fCLevel:2100 and range: fDT:14.02.2019 09:15:00 tDT:14.02.2019 09:30:00 found

2019-02-14 10:30:14,183 [34] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [13230]** - tCLevel:2105 ENDTIME:14.02.2019 09:30:00 (fDT:14.02.2019 09:15:00) recalculation finished...

Calculation for the defined compression levels (CMPR)

If compressions calculated by the acquisition service were written to the local database, the write operation is logged in the log file as follows with the following message:

2019-02-14 10:30:06,210 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CMPR) - 1 open items to handle 2019-02-14 10:30:06,267 [35] [(null)] - INFO - 1 measurement numeric values inserted successfully

The acquisition service calculates all compressions up to the "Daily values" compression level.

Checking the plausibility limits (PLSI)

If limits of a data point are active, the acquired measured values are checked. If a limit is violated, an alarm is generated. In this case, the following message is written to the log file:

2019-02-14 10:36:42,157 [37] [(null)] - INFO - (PLSI) [13230] -Alarm Upper Limit violation: PlausiResult: ID:13230 DT:1550136970 DV:0,866025403852806 ST:1 ME:17 CL:2

Gap detection (PLSI)

If a gap occurs and an alarm is generated, this generation is logged in the log file as follows:

2019-02-14 12:17:00,196 [32] [(null)] - INFO - (PLSI) GAP violation: PlausiResult: ID:13230 DT:1550142952 DV:0 ST:1 ME:12 CL:2

Changes in the tables of the local database (SYNC)

If one of the tables in the local database is changed, the following entry is written to the log file:

```
2019-02-14 10:12:05,175 [ 6] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) - TB MESSUNG
changed: 1 items to Insert
2019-02-14 10:12:05,240 [ 6] [(null)] - INFO - [13230] - Compression
configuration ended. Measurement contains 3 compression levels to
calculate.
2019-02-14 10:12:05,255 [ 6] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) - [13230]
measurement Insert
2019-02-14 10:12:05,265 [ 6] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) -
TB COMPRESSION changed: 2 items to Insert2019-02-14 10:22:08,387
[31] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) - TB MESSUNG changed: 1 items to
Update2019-02-14 10:22:08,398 [31] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) -
[13230] measurement Update
2019-02-14 10:36:12,795 [17] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) - TB MESSUNG
changed: 1 items to Update
2019-02-14 10:36:12,802 [17] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) - [13230]
measurement Update
2019-02-14 10:36:12,809 [17] [(null)] - INFO - (SYNC) -
TB MESS PLAUSI LIMIT changed: 1 items to Insert
```

Shutting down the component

When the component is stopped, the following message is written to the log file:

```
2019-02-11 11:12:28,397 [12] [(null)] - INFO - Shutdown compression
component.
2019-02-11 11:12:28,398 [12] [(null)] - INFO - Stop initialization
process
2019-02-11 11:12:28,574 [48] [(null)] - INFO - (MSTR) - Exit
MeasurementStringData worker process.
2019-02-11 11:12:28,576 [47] [(null)] - INFO - (CMPR) - Exit
CompressionResult worker process.
2019-02-11 11:12:28,604 [41] [(null)] - INFO - (PLSI) - Exit
PlausibilityResult worker process.
2019-02-11 11:12:28,604 [46] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - Exit
Recalculation worker process.
```

4.20.2.2 Raw file provider

This log file is usually empty.

A "Raw" file with the acquired measured values is created for each day and each data point.

If an error occurs while creating or writing the values, this is logged in this log file.

4.20.2.3 SinkDataImporter

If the kernel cannot forward the acquired values to the Acquisition service, the values are written to "SINK" files. SinkDataImporter checks if new "SINK" files are available once every minute.

If there are no new "SINK" files, the following message is written to the log file:

2019-02-06 11:11:17,507 [28] [(null)] - INFO - (DATASINNK) -Datasink Importer SearchFolders -> C:\EnMPRO\mcl\sink\Kernel | C:\EnMPRO\mcl\sink\FTP

2019-02-06 11:11:17,508 [28] [(null)] - INFO - (DATASINNK) - Watch for new sink files -> C:\EnMPRO\mcl\sink\Kernel

2019-02-06 11:11:17,509 [28] [(null)] - INFO - (DATASINNK) - Watch for new sink files -> C:\EnMPRO\mcl\sink\FTP

When there are new "SINK" files, the SinkDataImporter tries to import the new files.

In this case, the following message is written to the log file:

2019-02-06 11:12:17,972 [28] [(null)] - INFO - (DATASINNK) - Import -> sink00024n.bfs succeeded

2019-02-06 11:12:17,974 [28] [(null)] - INFO - (DATASINNK) - Move File from C:\EnMPRO\mcl\sink\Kernel\sink00024n.bfs to C:\EnMPRO\mcl\sink\Kernel\Imported\20190206_111217973_sink00024n.bfs

The imported values are written to the "Raw" files.

4.20.2.4 Data deletion

An overview is written to the "Data deletion" log file once every minute. The overview shows the size of the local database and information about the deleted values of the local database. The following figure shows the overview:

(DATA_DEL) Database Name: | Size | Free | Used in MB | Usage in %

(DATA_DEL) BDataLocalDB | 2050.00 MB | 2045.40 MB | 4.60 | 10 GB max: 0.22

4.20.2.5 Acquisition component Host

This log file is empty by default.

If an error occurs when initializing components of the acquisition service, this error is logged in the log file.

4.20.2.6 SQL provider

This log file is empty by default.

If it is not possible to access to the local database, a corresponding error message is written to the log file.

4.20.3 Calculation service

4.20.3.1 Calculation service

The calculation service is part of the application server. There are several log files for the calculation service. The calculation service consists of several components, for each of which there is a log file.

The following table shows the various log files of the acquisition service and the tasks of the corresponding components.

Log file	Tasks
Recalculation	Calculation and recalculation of compressions and data points
MEVA calculation	Calculation of MEVAs/KPIs
Counter calculation	Calculation of counter differences of acquired values
Machine calculation	Calculation of the consumers
Calculation component host	Management of calculation service components

4.20.3.2 Recalculation

The "Recalculation" log file is for messages related to the compression of the acquired measured values. The log file has a maximum size of 151 KB. The maximum number of log files is 100.

Calculation of compressions (RCAL)

If a compressed interval is calculated by the Acquisition service, the interval and the number of compressed values are specified:

```
2019-02-14 12:31:34,348 [31] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [9887] 1 recalculation orders found
```

2019-02-14 12:31:34,352 [31] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [9887] fCLevel:2105 tCLevel:2110 fDT:23.11.2019 02:00:00 tDT:23.11.2019 03:00:00 in recalculation...

2019-02-14 12:31:34,367 [31] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [9887] - 4 msjoValues for fCLevel:2105 and range: fDT:23.11.2019 02:00:00 tDT:23.11.2019 03:00:00 found

2019-02-14 12:31:34,378 [31] [(null)] - INFO - (RCAL) - [9887]** - tCLevel:2110 ENDTIME:23.11.2019 03:00:00 (fDT:23.11.2019 02:00:00) recalculation finished...

Reference

4.20 Log files

Retroactive billing of derived data points (DCAL)

When a derived data point is re-calculated, the interval and the number of compressed values is specified:

2019-03-12 12:17:00,582 [39] [(null)] - INFO - (DCAL) - ## Begin automatic recalculation of derived recalculation entrys... 2019-03-12 12:17:00,587 [39] [(null)] - INFO - (DCAL) - Search for open derived datapoints to (re)calculate 2019-03-12 12:17:00,623 [39] [(null)] - INFO - (DCAL) - 140 open derived datapoints to (re)calculate 2019-03-12 12:17:00,629 [39] [(null)] - INFO - (DCAL) - [13732] -Autom. Calculate f:12/31/2018 11:00:00 PM t:3/11/2019 11:00:00 PM 2019-03-12 12:17:01,016 [39] [(null)] - INFO - (DCAL) - [13733] -Autom. Calculate f:12/31/2018 11:00:00 PM t:3/11/2019 11:00:00 PM 2019-03-12 12:17:01,549 [39] [(null)] - INFO - (DCAL) - 140 open derived measurement orders recalculated 2019-03-12 12:17:01,554 [39] [(null)] - INFO - (DCAL) - 140 open derived measurement orders recalculated

Substitute values (REPV)

The Calculation service cyclically checks whether new gaps must be filled and fills these gaps if necessary. For each cyclic check for missing replacement values, an entry is written to the log file:

2019-02-14 13:52:31,762 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (REPV) - Missing Gaps filled for 13235; set last corr timestamp to 14.02.2019 12:51:00

Extrapolation and interpolation (EXPA)

The Calculation service cyclically checks whether new interpolations or extrapolations must be calculated and calculates these interpolations and extrapolations. For each cyclic check for missing interpolations and extrapolations, an entry is written to the log file:

2019-02-14 14:03:23,110 [37] [(null)] - INFO - (EXPA) - ** Begin search of complevel configuration for expansion... 2019-02-14 14:03:23,129 [37] [(null)] - INFO - (EXPA) - Found 0 rows to check for expansion 2019-02-14 14:03:23,135 [37] [(null)] - INFO - (EXPA) - ** End search for expansion values... 2019-02-14 14:03:23,140 [37] [(null)] - INFO - (EXPA) - ** Begin search of complevel configuration for interpolation... 2019-02-14 14:03:23,158 [37] [(null)] - INFO - (EXPA) - Found 0 rows to check for interpolation 2019-02-14 14:03:23,164 [37] [(null)] - INFO - (EXPA) - ** End search of complexel configuration

Calculation of compressions on the application server (NLCO)

With the following exceptions, the Acquisition service calculates all compressions up to daily values. If values are entered in a matrix or values are transferred directly to the SQL server (compression of acquisition values to acquisition values), the Calculation service calculates the corresponding compressions. The Calculation service cyclically checks whether a calculation of such compressions is available:

2019-02-14 13:52:39,485 [36] [(null)] - INFO - (NLCO) - Check compression level: 2120 2019-02-14 13:52:39,505 [36] [(null)] - INFO - (NLCO) - Check compression level: 2105 2019-02-14 13:52:39,538 [36] [(null)] - INFO - (NLCO) - Check compression level: 2110 2019-02-14 13:52:39,561 [36] [(null)] - INFO - (NLCO) - Check compression level: 2101

In the same interval, the Calculation service checks the counter value filter:

```
2019-02-14 13:47:52,365 [36] [(null)] - INFO - (NLCO) - Start
Counter filter check...
2019-02-14 13:47:52,624 [36] [(null)] - INFO - (NLCO) - Update 14
compression until dates
2019-02-14 13:47:52,691 [36] [(null)] - INFO - (NLCO) - End of
Counter filter check...
```

Automatic compression

ACOP messages indicate the number of compression intervals for which a recalculation is due. When the recalculation of a compression interval is pending, a RCAL message is written to the log file.

2019-02-14 14:03:32,912 [32] [(null)] - INFO - (ACOP) - Search for pending compression calculation... 2019-02-14 14:03:32,949 [32] [(null)] - INFO - (ACOP) - No pending automatic compressions found 2019-02-14 14:03:32,956 [32] [(null)] - INFO - (ACOP) - Search for past changes to recalculate compression calculation... 2019-02-14 14:03:33,901 [32] [(null)] - INFO - (ACOP) - No pending past changes recalculations found

4.20.3.3 MEVA calculation

If the calculation of a MEVA/KPI is triggered, a message is written to this log file.

The following objects can trigger the calculation of a MEVA/KPI :

- Report
- Chart
- Dashboard
- Derived data point

4.20.3.4 Counter calculation

If values of a counter are entered directly via the matrix, the Calculation service calculates the counter differences. The Calculation service cyclically checks whether calculation counter differences are available. The number of counter differences the Calculation service calculates is written to this log file:

```
2019-02-11 11:43:36,458 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) - ** Begin
search for open counter recalculation...
2019-02-11 11:43:36,473 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) - Cleanup of
closed counter recalculation items performed successfully
2019-02-11 11:43:36,475 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) - Read counter
recalculation rows to handle
2019-02-11 11:43:36,506 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) - Calcuation
ended; no values for DB saving calculated
2019-02-11 11:43:36,516 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) - Counter
recalc ended; Update 0 recalc items in DB
2019-02-11 11:43:36,517 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) -
intMainObjektReaderCnt: 0
2019-02-11 11:43:36,518 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) - 0 open
counter recalculation items merged
2019-02-11 11:43:36,519 [35] [(null)] - INFO - (CRCL) - ** End
search for open counter recalculation...
```

4.20.3.5 Machine calculation

The calculation of consumers is recorded in the "Machine calculation" log file.

4.20.3.6 Calculation component host

The Calculation component host component manages the components of the Report service.

If an error occurs when initializing components of the Acquisition service, this error is recorded in the log file.

Otherwise this log file is empty.

4.20.4 Report Server

The server of the Report service is on the same system as the SQL server. The reporting service performs the following tasks:

- Report generation
- Conversion of EXEL files into PDF files
- Sending reports
- Saving reports
- Printing reports

The "Report Server" log file has a maximum size of 200 KB. The maximum number of log files is 1000.

Starting a report

When a report is started manually or automatically, the actions are logged during report generation.

The main actions are as follows:

- Loading the template
- Filling the template
- Executing macros

Report automation

The following automated actions are logged:

- Sending the report
- Saving the report
- Print the report

See also

Reporting service error (Page 744)

4.20.5 MindUpload

The "MindUpload" log file has a maximum size of 121 KB.

A new log file is created for each day.

The following events are logged in this log file:

• Onboarding

The onboarding of the Energy Manager in the MindSphere is recorded in this log file. If onboarding does not work, an error message is written to the log file.

Data transfer

The number of uploaded values is written to the log file for each data transfer cycle to MindSphere.

4.20.6 Tasks

When a task is executed, a "Tasks" log file is created. The log file consists of the following three entries:

2019-01-16 10:19:04,892 - INFO - Start Task "Export measurement values" for Node "Export values as xml h Local PC" (NodeID: 4737).

This entry enables you to find which task is executed.

2019-01-16 10:19:05,683 - INFO - Export file "Export_000004737_20190114000000_20190116000000.xml" written.

This entry contains the name of the file with the exported values.

2019-01-16 10:19:05,740 - INFO - End Task after runtime of 00:00:02.100: 3 entries have been exported.

This entry enables you to find the time in which the task was executed and the number of exported values.

4.21 Cipher Suites

If you are hosting the web server yourself, do not configure insecure connections.

Configure the connection with a Cipher Suite from the following list. Prioritize a Cipher Suite with a security rating of 5 over a Cipher Suite with a security rating of 4.

List of recommended Cipher Suites

Cipher Suites are registered in TLS up to version 1.2 for the Internet Assigned Numbers Authority (IANA). The following table is based on the Cipher Suites registered with IANA and has been extended with a Siemens security rating. The following table lists only Cipher Suites that have a security rating of at least 4.

Cipher Suite	Value for IANA	Siemens security assessment
TLS_RSA_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x3C	4
TLS_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x3D	4
TLS_DH_DSS_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x3E	4
TLS_DH_RSA_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x3F	4
TLS_DHE_DSS_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x40	5
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x67	5
TLS_DH_DSS_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x68	4
TLS_DH_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x69	4
TLS_DHE_DSS_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x6A	5
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0x6B	5
TLS_RSA_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0x00, 0x9C	4
TLS_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0x00, 0x9D	4
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0x00, 0x9E	5
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0x00, 0x9F	5
TLS_DH_RSA_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0x00, 0xA0	4
TLS_DH_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0x00, 0xA1	4
TLS_DHE_DSS_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0x00, 0xA2	5
TLS_DHE_DSS_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0x00, 0xA3	5
TLS_DH_DSS_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0x00, 0xA4	4
TLS_DH_DSS_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0x00, 0xA5	4
TLS_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xBA	4
TLS_DH_DSS_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xBB	4
TLS_DH_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xBC	4
TLS_DHE_DSS_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xBD	4
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xBE	4
TLS_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xC0	4
TLS_DH_DSS_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xC1	4
TLS_DH_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xC2	4
TLS_DHE_DSS_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xC3	5
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA256	0x00, 0xC4	5
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x23	5
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x24	5
TLS_ECDH_ECDSA_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x25	4
TLS_ECDH_ECDSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x26	4
TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x27	5
TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x28	5
TLS_ECDH_RSA_WITH_AES_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x29	4
TLS_ECDH_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x2A	4

Reference

4.21 Cipher Suites

TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0xC0, 0x2B	5
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0xC0, 0x2C	5
TLS_ECDH_ECDSA_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0xC0, 0x2D	4
TLS_ECDH_ECDSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0xC0, 0x2E	4
TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0xC0, 0x2F	5
TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0xC0, 0x30	5
TLS_ECDH_RSA_WITH_AES_128_GCM_SHA256	0xC0, 0x31	4
TLS_ECDH_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384	0xC0, 0x32	4
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x72	5
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x73	5
TLS_ECDH_ECDSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x74	4
TLS_ECDH_ECDSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x75	4
TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x76	5
TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x77	5
TLS_ECDH_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_128_CBC_SHA256	0xC0, 0x78	4
TLS_ECDH_RSA_WITH_CAMELLIA_256_CBC_SHA384	0xC0, 0x79	4
TLS_RSA_WITH_AES_128_CCM	0xC0, 0x9C	4
TLS_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CCM	0xC0, 0x9D	4
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_AES_128_CCM	0xC0, 0x9E	5
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CCM	0xC0, 0x9F	5
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_AES_128_CCM	0xC0, 0xAC	5
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_AES_256_CCM	0xC0, 0xAD	5
TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_CHACHA20_POLY1305_	0xCC, 0xA8	5
TLS_ECDHE_ECDSA_WITH_CHACHA20_POLY1305_	0xCC, 0xA9	5
TLS_DHE_RSA_WITH_CHACHA20_POLY1305_SHA256	0xCC, 0xAA	5

Key length

Use a recommended Cipher Suite with a recommended key length for the encryption algorithm.

The following table lists the recommended key lengths:

Algorithm	Minimum key length	
Key length for signature key for certificates and key agreement		
ECDSA	250 bit	
DSS	2000 - 3000 bit*	
RSA	2000 - 3000 bit*	
Key length for Diffe-Hellmann		
ECDH/ECDHE	250 bit	
DHE	2000 - 3000 bit*	

*Starting in 2023, use a key length of at least 3000 bits.

4.22 Counter value filtering

Energy Manager filters values of data points for which a counter is configured differently to values of other data points. You configure this filter at the configuration of the counter.

The following representation shows the possible error cases that are detected by the counter value filter and how they are corrected. A constant consumption of 10 kWh is used in this example.



- ① One to three negative deviations
- One to three positive deviations
- ③ Offset downwards with subsequent constant values
- ④ Gaps

Reference

4.22 Counter value filtering

- 5 Offset downwards
- 6 Offset upwards
- Blue line: Counter values before counter value correction
- $\textcircled{\sc 8}$ $\sc 6$ Green, dashed line: Counter values after counter value correction
- (9) Black, dashed line: Upper and lower limit of the counter value that results from the consumption limits

Figure 4-1 Diagram of counter value filtering

Filtering options

• Counter value filtering

Invalid counter values are deleted.

• Counter value difference filtering

Consumption values that are outside of the valid range are corrected.

• Gap recognition

Missing counter values filled in automatically and subsequent calculation of consumption.

The following table specifies through which criteria the different error cases are detected and how the error cases are corrected:

Error case	Detection of the error case	Correction of the error case
One to three negative deviations	Through counter value filtering or through the low limit of counter value difference filtering	With invalid counter values, the counter value is deleted and the resulting gap is filled in through linear interpolation.
		With invalid consumption values, the consumption value is deleted and the resulting gap is filled in through linear interpolation.
One to three positive deviations	Through the high limit of the counter value difference filtering	With invalid counter values, the counter value is deleted and the resulting gap is filled in through linear interpolation.
		With invalid consumption values, the consumption value is deleted and the resulting gap is filled in through linear interpolation.
Offset downwards with subsequent constant values	Counter value difference - lower limit and constant values	Correction of the constant values through linear interpolation. The num- ber of constant values after the offset is not limited.

Error case	Detection of the error case	Correction of the error case
Gaps in the counter values	Gap recognition	If the counter value after the gap \geq the counter value before the gap, the gap is filled in through linear interpolation.
		If the counter value after the gap < the counter value before the gap, a counter overflow is assumed. There are the two following overflow options:
		• With a cyclic (triggered) reset, inter- polation takes place between the start value of the counter and the counter value after the gap.
		• With a normal overflow, interpola- tion takes place between the last value before the gap and the first value after the gap.
Offset of the counter values down- wards	Counter value difference - lower limit and as a result increasing values	Correction of negative consumption to zero.
Offset of the counter values upwards	Counter value difference - upper limit and as a result increasing values	Correction of excessive consumption to zero.

4.22 Counter value filtering

Linear interpolation

Linear interpolation is used to fill in gaps. The duration of the gap is not limited.

With linear interpolation, the counter value difference between the last valid counter value and the current counter value is calculated. This counter value difference is then divided by the number of intervals between the two values.

In the Energy Manager, a distinction is made between the following cases:

- Current counter value ≥ last valid counter value No overflow of the counter is assumed.
- Current counter value < last valid counter value An overflow of the counter is assumed. There are the two following overflow options:



Note

Entry of counter values via the matrix

If you enter an invalid counter value in the matrix and the filters are activated, the entered value is removed and is not visible. Linear interpolation is applied with the input of the next value.

4.23 Manual acquisition with Energy Manager PRO Mobile

4.23.1 Configuring a mobile device in Energy Manager

Overview

NOTICE
Secure connection between the Energy Manager PRO Mobile and the web server
If you configure the connection between Energy Manager PRO Mobile and the web server, use only secure Cipher Suites.
A list of secure Cipher Suites can be found in the reference under "Cipher Suites".

In Energy Manager assign the data points that you want to acquire on the mobile device to the hardware object. Improve the overview by setting up a two-layer folder structure that you can use, for example, to reproduce the production site.

in addition, you may define an existing folder structure as route for a read operation.

The following figure highlights the mapping of a folder structure in Energy Manager to the mobile device:



- ① Folders of the first hierarchy level are organized on the mobile device under "Route".
- ② Folders of the second hierarchy level are organized on the mobile device under "Area". The content of the selection list depends on the "Route" selected under ①.

Requirements

• The mobile device is configured and interconnected with the PC.

For more information on this topic, refer to the "Energy Manager - Installation" manual, keyword "Installing Energy Manager PRO Mobile and configuring it on the mobile device".

• The data points are set up in Energy Manager.

Reference

4.23 Manual acquisition with Energy Manager PRO Mobile

Procedure

1. Create a hardware object in Energy Manager for the mobile device, for example, "h MobileDevice01".

	Hardware - h_MobileDevice01 🛛 – 🗖 🔜
Name: Description:	h_MobileDevice01
Hostname: Address: Guid:	MobileDevice01 Active Acquisition Acquisition Application Server Kernel
	OK Cancel

- 2. Set up a folder structure that consists of no more than two layers if you want to use routing for reading the meters.
- 3. Copy the data points to acquire with the mobile device to the folder structure below the hardware object. Assign the data points to the folder structure:



4. Add the "Job for route synchronization" to the job queue to generate one or several routes based on a folder structure.

Note

"Job for route synchronization" prepares the route for the synchronization process. Run this job whenever you have made changes to the folder structure.

5. Start synchronization on the mobile device for the initial transfer of the data points to the mobile device.

Result

The data points are inserted in Energy Manager below the hardware object of the mobile device. On completion of this initial synchronization, the measured values of the data points are available on the mobile device as well.

When you connect the mobile device after the first synchronization to the Energy Manager PRO Client, the measurement values are synchronized automatically.

See also

Creating hardware (Page 76) Synchronizing data (Page 434) Cipher Suites (Page 919)

4.23.2 Generating barcode

Overview

Provided your mobile device supports scanner functionality, you can use the scanner of the mobile device to identity the meters of your plant by means of barcode. You need to generate this barcode for each meter that you have configured in Energy Manager.

Note

Configuring meters for barcode generation

Observe the following naming conventions when configuring meters:

- You may only use uppercase letters from "A" to "Z" and numbers from "0" to "9".
- Use the hyphen "-" as delimiter.

Requirement

- The "Free 3 of 9 Extended" font is installed on the PC.
- Microsoft Excel is installed and opened on the PC.
- The meter is configured in Energy Manager.

Procedure

- 1. Enter the name of the meter in Microsoft Excel.
- 2. Use the "Free 3 of 9 Extended" font to assign the barcode to the meter name, for example:

	A	В
1	COUNTER001	
2	COUNTER002	
3		

Note

Font size for the barcode

The font size of the barcodes you generate may not be smaller than 12 pt.

3. Print the generated barcode and attach it to the selected meter.

Result

You can now identify the meter by its generated barcode using the scanner of the mobile device.

4.24 Importing data

4.24.1 ODBC connector

4.24.1.1 Basics on the ODBC interface

Overview

The ODBC Connector represents an interface that you can use to transfer process data from ODBC-capable data sources to Energy Manager . The process data may be transferred manually or automatically. ODBC-capable data sources are, for example, Oracle, SQL Server, MySQL, Access, or Excel.

The next chapters cover the following contents:

- Manual import
- Automatic import
- Restrictions of the files to transfer

Requirement

Successful installation of all software components.

The data must be available in a suitable structure in Excel (always ensured in a database).

• Variant 1 - one column per data point, identification by column name

Time stamp	Data point 1	Data point 2
01.01.2008 00:15	125.36	220
01.01.2008 00:30	225.23	151

• Variant 2 - Data point identification by means of a separate column

Time stamp	Datapoint_ID	Value
01.01.2008 00:15	125	125.36
01.01.2008 00:15	200	220
01.01.2008 00:30	125	225.23
01.01.2008 00:30	200	151

The date must be available in "DD.MM.JJ HH24:MI" format (hours in 24-hour format). The date and value columns need a column header that may not contain special characters.

It must be possible to address the table (values, including column headings) by name. Open the table in Excel and enter a name on the top left. Confirm with <return>. Do not use special characters and mutated vowels.

(Data	a) 🕶 🕇	🗣 Date	
		A	В	С
	1	Date	Value	
	2	01.01.2006 01:00	12,335	
	З	01.01.2006 02:00	12,015	
	4	01.01.2006 03:00	12,155	
	5	01.01.2006 04:00	12,365	
	6	01.01.2006 05:00	12,115	
	7	01.01.2006 06:00	12,465	
	8	01.01.2006 07:00	12,215	
	9	01.01.2006 08:00	12,335	
	10	01.01.2006 09:00	12,505	
	11	01.01.2006 10:00	12,015	
	12			

The data point to which the data is to be written must have been created and activated in the system.

Note

The ODBC Connector must be created below the datapoint in which the values are to be imported.

DSN-related properties, such as the DSN, table, or columns, can only be modified if the client is running on the PC that is set up by means of the hardware reference.

Always use system DSN types.

You can run imports on the client or portal, depending on the PC that is set up by means of the hardware reference.

If the client is running on a PC that is also used as portal host, the import is carried out using the portal application.

Data flow

The ODBC Connector can only detect unidirectional data flows, i.e. from the ODBC-capable data source to Energy Manager.

4.24.1.2 Configuring manual data import

Requirement

The data and data point are available in a suitable format. New objects can only be created on a PC that is set up as active application hardware.

Creating the ODBC data channel and data source

1. Mark the data point under which the ODBC Connector is going to be created.

🗗 🫅 AVZ L 🔄 a_Total_Load_IST_AVZ

2. Click the "Insert ODBC Connector" button in the menu bar under "Insert > Import measured values".

SIEM	ENS						
File	Acquisition	Processing	Analysis	Master Da	ta Administr	ration Help	
Automati	📃 icacquisition [Datapoint Man	ual acquisition	🖙 式	ta		
🗒 Syste	m 🕨 Energy N	lanager - Web	▶ Reports ▶	Plant ove	Insert ODBC C	onnector	
Mer	าน				Connect node.	tor below selected	I V F
E F						Plant overvie	ew_F

The "Select Data Source" dialog opens.

S	elect Da	ata Source	×
File Data Source Machine Data	a Source		
Data Source Name	Туре	Description	
Excel Files MS Access Database	User User		
A Machine Data Source is sp "User" data sources are spec sources can be used by all us	ecific to th ific to a us iers on this	New is machine, and cannot be shared. er on this machine. "System" data machine, or by a system-wide service.	
		OK Cancel He	p

3. On the "Machine Data Source" tab, click "New".

The "Create New Data Source" dialog opens.

Selecting User Data Source creates a data source which is specific to this machine, and visible only to you.

- 4. Activate "System Data Source" and click "Next".
- 5. Select the Excel driver and click "Next".

	Create New Data Source	
	Select a driver for which you want to set up a	a data source.
	Name	v ^
	Microsoft dBase-Treiber (*.dbf)	6
011 0	Microsoft Excel Driver (*xls)	6
	Microsoft Excel Driver (*.xls, *.xlsx, *.xlsm, *	xlsb) 1
	Microsoft Excel-Treiber (*xls)	6
	Microsoft ODBC for Oracle	6
	Microsoft Paradox Driver (*.db)	
	Microsoft Paradox-Treiber (*.db)	6 _
	10 DT 10- MILL 1	· · ·
	< Back Next >	Cancel

6. Click "Finish".

	Create New Data Source When you click Finish, you will create the data source which you have just configured. The driver may prompt you for more information.
	User Data Source Driver: Microsoft Excel Driver (*xls, *xlsx, *xlsm, *xlsb
	< > > *
2	< Back Finish Cancel

7. Enter a meaningful data source name and an optional description. Click Select Workbook.

	ODBC Microsoft Excel Setup	?	×
Data Source Name:	Schedule AVZ	0	к
Description:	AVZ Data Source	Car	ncel
Database			
Version: Exc	Te.	яр	
Workbook:			
	Select Workbook		
Use Current Dir	rectory	Optio	ns>>

8. Select the Excel file that contains the load profile and click "OK".

Select Workbook				
Database Name Schedule_AVZ.xlsx Schedule_AVZ.xlsx	Directories: c:\\desktop C:\ USERS VMADMIN DESKTOP C:ALM C:Screenshots	OK Cancel Help Read Only		
List Files of Type: Excel Files (*xls*) V	Drives: E c: System	Vetwork		

9. The MS Excel version is pre-assigned in accordance with the version of the MS Excel file. The path and selected worksheet are displayed below the "Workbook". Confirm with OK.

	ODBC Microsoft Excel Setup	? ×
Data Source Name:	Schedule AVZ	OK
Description:	AVZ Data Source	Cancel
Database		Help
Version: Exe	нор	
Workbook: C:\	\DESKTOP\Schedule_AVZ.xlsx	
	Select Workbook	
Use Current D	irectory	Options>>

10.You have successfully created the system data source and you can now save your entries with "OK".

Select Data Source					
File Data Source Machine Data	a Source				
Data Source Name	Туре	Description			
Excel Files MS Access Database	User User				
Schedule AVZ	User	AVZ Data Source			
			- 1		
		New	- 1		
A Machine Data Source is spe "User" data sources are spec sources can be used by all us	ecific to thi ific to a us ers on this	is machine, and cannot be shared. er on this machine. "System" data machine, or by a system-wide service.			
		OK Cancel Help			

```
Reference
```

4.24 Importing data

Configuring an ODBC data source for Energy Manager

The configuration dialog of the ODBC data source opens in Energy Manager.

1. Enter a "Name" and an optional "Description".

Name:	daso_9	Schedule_AVZ					
Description:							^
							~
DSN		Schedule AVZ	User		Password [*]		
0011	_		0001.		Hardware		
		DSN Configuration			Haluwale.	BDAIA-W81P6-01	
Table:		Data					-
Where:							^
							~
Timestamp	Time		🔹 🗌 hand	from 8/2/2016 1:50:42	PM 🔽	to 8/2/2016 1:50:42 PM	•
Value	Electrici	ty	→ hand		0	-	
Interval			🖵 🔽 hand		Man	ual [s]:	0
					Overwrite Inter	val [s]:	0
Text							
State							_
State				STER_OK			•
Check last date Automatic transfer							
✓ Dates in local time							
Import							

- 2. Select the correct table from the areas that have been marked and named in Excel.
- 3. Assign the correct column header to the "Time stamp" and "Value" fields.
- 4. As a rule activate "Date in local time".
 - Activated: The time stamps are available in the local time and are accepted without change.
 - Deactivated: The time stamps are available in the UTC time format and are converted into the local time.
- 5. Confirm your settings with "OK".
- 6. Double-click the object you created to re-open the configuration dialog.

7. Click "Import" to launch the data import. The data point and ODBC data source must be active accordingly.



8. Select the desired connection in the "ODBC Connections" dialog. Select "Show trace information" if you want to verify successful completion of the data import. Then click "Import marked" or "Import active" depending on whether you want to import the connections marked in color or those activated by a check mark.

ld	Connection	Measurement	execution host	ODBC DSN	Table	Active
5193	daso_Schedule_AVZ	e_electricity_consumption_daily	BDATA-W81P6-01	Schedule AVZ	Data	✓
		Import Selected	Import Active 🛛 St	now output		
				OK	C:	ancel
						ancer

On completion of the import, the data is displayed in the application that is associated with the *.txt files. The dialog also displays the path, the file name, and the storage location for the output data.

4.24.1.3 Configuring automatic data import

Overview

If you want to cyclically import data from an ODBC data source to Energy Manager, define data channels for automatic data transfer using the Client.

Requirement

B.Data Task Management is installed.

Procedure

Two tasks are available in the Task Manager folder with which data can be transferred automatically by means of ODBC Connector.

The task called with "ODBC Import" imports all active data channels connected to the task node. The task "ODBC Import all" imports all active data channels in the system.

4.24.1.4 Configuring restrictions for the files to transfer

Overview

The data import volume should be restricted in the following scenarios:

- Cyclic data transfer to Energy Manager
- Table contains several data points

Requirement

The ODBC data channels have been created.

Procedure

1. To import only the latest values to Energy Manager, select the "Check last date" check box.

With this setting, only values that have a more recent time stamp than the oldest value present in Energy Manager are imported to Energy Manager.

Check last date
 Dates in local time

2. If you need to apply restrictions on the import data source, define a restriction in the "Where" field.
| External sys-
tem | Where condition |
|----------------------|---|
| ORACLE | DAT_KANALID=12533 AND MWP_GMT > SYSDATE-2 AND MWP_GMT < SYSDATE+2
Restriction to measurement data generated in a period from the previous two days to
the next two days, starting at the transmission date. |
| | Table: BDATA_SYS.TB_MESZJOURNAL |
| | Where: MESS_ID=281 AND MSJ0_DATUM>T0_DATE('01.01.08','DD.MM.'Y'') |
| | |
| SQL Server | $MESS_ID=1263 \text{ AND } ZEII > GEIDATE()-2$ |
| | Restriction to measurements and measured values that are no older than two days, starting at the transfer date. |
| Access | "DATUM" > DATE()-21 |
| | Restriction to measured values that are no older than three weeks, starting at the transfer date. |
| MySQL | DB='620SAN-0103ZW' |
| | Restriction to the data of one measurement. |
| Excel | Time > 39479 |
| | Restriction to measured values newer than 01.02.2008. 39479 is equivalent to 01.02.2008 (days since 01.01.1900) and is calculated using the Excel function =DATUM(2008;2;1). |

The following examples show the procedure for external systems:

Index

н

"File Import" interface Configuring data acquisition, 112 "FTP" interface Configuring data acquisition, 108 "Modbus" interface Configuring data acquisition, 105 "OLE-DB" interface Configuring data acquisition, 98 "OPC UA" interface Configuring data acquisition, 119 "OPC-DA" interface Configuring data acquisition, 116 "OPC-HDA" interface Configuring data acquisition, 116 "S7" interface Configuring data acquisition, 102 "Simulation" interface Configuring data acquisition, 128 "WinCC/PCS 7" interface Configuring data acquisition, 100

Α

Acquisition component Configuring hardware - mobile devices, 76 Acquisition computer Creating acquisition components, 91 Acquisition software Updating, 84 Alarm list Basics, 389 Configuring custom alarm list, 391 Configuring filters, 393 Configuring views, 397 Filter criteria, 756 Amortization time, 470 Analysis Basics, 436 Reports, 274 Analysis report Basics, 260 Creating and managing, 261

ASCII - FTP interface Functions, 839 Authorization Assigning authorizations, 354 Authorization in Energy Manager PRO Web, 356 Basics, 338 Creating user groups, 354

В

Backup and Restore Backup, 411 Restore, 413 Batch list Using, 236

С

Change Password, 485 Chart Bell-shaped curve, 457 Boxplot, 458 Comparing a datapoint in different time ranges, 452 Correlation and regression, 459 Creating and displaying comments, 451 Export as image, 455 exporting values to a file, 454 Fundamentals, 445 Histogram, 456 Show details, 451 Standard Chart, 450 Client Navigation tool, 20 Objects, 36 Compare datapoint to different time ranges, 452 Configuring Query type with shifts, 372 Configuring message notification Alarm list, 395 Connecting acquisition components to server Configuring acquisition components per wizard, 79 Configuring the acquisition component manually, 81

Connection manual configuration, 81 Controlling report Basics, 256 Configuring, 257 Cost center management, 13 Cycle time Configuring, 371

D

Daily load profile Basics, 252 Configuring, 255 Data acquisition wizard Starting the wizard, 91 Data Mobile Basics, 430 Defining route planning, 925 Database jobs Job queue, 827 Datapoint to different time ranges, 452 Delete Template, 298 Directory Setting up a directory, 364 Display area, 21 Document management Basics, 13, 475 Editing documents, 479 Inserting documents, 477 Saving documents, 478 Domain Assigning domains to a user group, 341 Configuring domain memberships, 342 Specifying views, 341

Ε

edit, 298 Edit Template, 298 Energy efficiency measure Attaching documents, 473 Basics, 464 Calculating cost effectiveness, 469 Create, 465 Delete, 466 Displaying information, 474 Edit, 466

Entering saving potentials, 467 Generating filtered overview objects, 327 Specifying domains, 472 Specifying responsibilities, 471 Energy management Arguments in favor of energy management, 12 Basics, 12 **Energy Manager** Configuration, 65 Options, 53 **Energy Manager PRO** Client, 20 Display modes, 774 Document management, 475 Schedule management, 239 Starting, 17 Task Management, 405 Energy Manager PRO acquisition configuration, 78, 81 **Energy Manager PRO Client** Create Quicklinks, 29 Customize Ouicklink, 31 Editing Quicklinks, 31 Energy Manager PRO Web Basics, 480 Creating Quicklinks, 494 Editing Quicklinks, 496 Folder, 499 Login, 483 Navigation, 488 Using document management, 527 Working with energy efficiency measures, 528 Working with reports, 511 **Energy Manager Web** Logoff, 487 Product Information, 487 Switching the view, 487 Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Creating ERP domains, 365 Creating service types, 366 Setting up cost center relations, 368 Setting up cost centers, 367 **ERP** interface DTD structure, 854 Examples Configuring analysis reports, 260 Configuring controlling reports, 256 Configuring daily load profiles, 252 Configuring long-term requirements forecasts, 243 Configuring schedules, 248

F

File Account settings, 69 Password settings, 69 forgotten Password, 485 Forgotten Password, 19 Functional group Single Sign On, 358 Specifying authority levels, 360

G

Groups, functional Overview, 774 Guides, 14

Н

Historicization Basics, 415 Historizing data points, 418 Historizing measuring variables, 421 Historizing reports, 422

I

Import Data from ODBC-capable files, 928 Data import from ASCII files, 839 Insert Shift, 198 Interface management, 12, 73

J

Job queue, 399 Basics, 398 System jobs, 400 User jobs, 398 Jobs, 398 Background jobs, 404

К

Kernel service, 132

L

Logging Viewer Basics, 381 Fields, 382 Filter function, 383 Opening an Editor, 381 Login Energy Manager PRO Web, 483

Μ

Managing the acquisition component Changing, resetting the acquisition component, 83 Starting, stopping acquisition component, 83 Updating the acquisition software, 83 manual configuration Connection, 81 Measurement Configuration Language (MCL), 794 Measuring variable Database functions, 798 Menu bar, 20 Module Types, 275 MS Excel Adapting module names, 288 Names manager, 288

Ν

Navigation Quicklinks, 489 Navigation bar, 20 NPV, 469

0

Objects Access rights, 37 Assigning properties, 41 Create, 39 Defining properties, 43 Displaying object relations, 50 Managing, 44 Naming, 52 Opening properties, 40 Properties, 37 Specifying authority levels, 360 Types, 36 Using and copying, 38 ODBC interface Basics, 928 Configuring automatic data import, 936 Configuring manual data import, 930 Configuring restrictions, 936 Operations for the creation of calculation blocks Compare operations, 787 Interval operations, 781 Logical operations, 786 Mathematical operations, 784 Quantity operations, 793 Switch operations, 788 Table operations, 790

Ρ

Password change, 485, 485 forgotten, 485, 485 Forgotten, 19, 19 Plant and material definitions Basics, 212 Creating material, 217 Creating plants, 219 Printing Setting up a printer, 361 Profiles Configuring, 201 Configuring root profiles, 208 Create status, 196 Selecting holidays, 204 Special effects, 210 Project tree, 20 Purpose of this documentation, 14

Q

Query type, 749 Configuring, 372 configuring forwarding by shift, 372 Quick search, 21 Quicklink Change sequence, 347 Create, 347 Customize background, 497 Customize icon, 497 Customizing background, 31, 349 Customizing icon, 31, 349 Delete, 498 Deleting, 349 Rename, 497 Renaming, 31, 349 Specifying the homepage, 31, 497 Quicklinks Creating, 346

R

Reference, 745 Reports Basics, 274 Configuring a Word template, 291 Configuring an Excel template, 289 Configuring modules, 284 Configuring guery types, 279 Configuring report templates in MS Excel, 287 Create, 276 Create a template, 294 disconnecting from template, 299 Entering values, 300 Historizing, 422 Managing templates, 298 Opening results, 443 Using a template, 295 Required basic knowledge, 14 Requirements forecast, long-term Basics, 243 Configuring reports, 245 Creating derived data points, 243 Creating measuring variables, 244 ROI, 469

S

SAT interface, 91 Schedule Basics, 248 Configuring, 250 Schedule management Basics, 13, 239 Examples, 260 Plant and material definitions, 212 Profiles, 196 Scope of validity, 14 Service Cockpit Using, 385 Shift Configuration, 198 Single Sign On Functional group, 358 Users, 345 Starting Energy Manager PRO, 17

Т

Task Management Basics, 13, 405 Creating the interval definition, 837 Creating the task, 835 Creating the Task Manager, 831 Functions, 832 Template, 298 Deleting, 298 Time unit abbreviations, 756

U

Unit configuration, 369 UNL notation, 364 Update Acquisition software, 84 user Assigning a name, 343 User creating, 343 Users Lock, 344 set new password, 345 Single Sign On, 345 unlock, 344

V

Value Acquisition status, 745 Correction status, 747

Х

XLS report servers Connection settings, 65 XML - ASCII interface Basics, 848 Style sheets, 850